

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 1 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 6:00 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. 


 


Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. 


 


Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957)  


Information for possible action 


2.3 Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction form Trustees regarding negotiations with 
the GSCFT. 


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome  


3.2. Pledge of Allegiance   


3.3. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 


Announcements 


 


1/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 2 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 


5.2. Students’ Reports 
 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.2. Board President's Report  
 


   


7. Approval of Minutes   


7.1. Meeting September 01, 2021  


   


8. General Public Business   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Educational Services  


8.1.1.1. William’s Quarterly Report  


2/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 3 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.2. Business Services  


8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  


8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  


8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers  


8.1.2.4. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.3. Human Resources  


8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions--Certificated  


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions--Classified  


8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services  


8.2.1.1. Memorandums of Understanding with 
Neighbouring Districts: SAIL 


 


8.2.1.2. Strong Workforce Grant  


8.2.1.3. Agreement for Professional Services: 
Deborah Bell 


 


8.2.1.4. Non Public Agency: Speechrighter, Inc.  


8.2.2. Business Services None. 
   


8.2.3. Human Resources None. 


3/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 4 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.2.4.1. ThoughtExchange Additional Licenses  


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


8.3.1 19Six Architects Inc.: Amendment 
Agreement: Bay View Elementary School 
Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY 


 


8.3.2. 19Six Architects Inc.: Amendment 
Agreement: Branciforte Small Schools Multi 
Project Overhead 21.22 FY 


 


8.3.3.  19Six Architects Inc.: Amendment 
Agreement: DeLaveaga Elementary School 
Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY 


 


8.3.4. 19Six Architects Inc.: Amendment 
Agreement: Soquel High School Multi 
Project Overhead 21.22 FY 


 


8.3.5. Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: Bay View 
Elementary School Fencing 


 


8.3.6. Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: Mission Hill 
Middle School Gate Lock 


 


8.3.7. Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: Santa Cruz 
High School Gate Replacement 


 


8.3.8. Anaya Construction: Proposal: Santa Cruz 
High School Temporary Housing 


 


4/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 5 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.9. Bartos Architecture: Amendment 
Agreement: Santa Cruz High School 21.22 
FY Temporary Housing 


 


8.3.10. Bartos Architecture: Change Order 1: Santa 
Cruz High School Modernization Phase 4 


 


8.3.11. Colbi Technologies: Proposal: Secure Bids 
Software 21.22 FY 


 


8.3.12. CRW Industries: Change Order 3: Santa 
Cruz High School Switchgear Replacement 


 


8.3.13. Geo H Wilson: Proposal: Soquel High 
School Cafeteria Gas Line 


 


8.3.14. I & A Contractor Inc.: Change Order 2: 
Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof 


 


8.3.15. Lewis and Tibbitts Inc.: Change Order 2: 
Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear 
Replacement 


 


8.3.16. Locatelli Moving and Storage: Proposal: 
DeLaveaga Elementary School Classroom 
Moves 


 


8.3.17. Peninsula Business Interior Proposal Bay 
View Elementary School Principal Furniture 


 


8.3.18. PSR Electric: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Electrical for Temporary Housing 


 


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Educational Services  


5/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 6 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.1.1. New Business: Single Plans for Student 
Achievement 


Recommendation: Approve the sites’ Single Plans for 
Student Achievement. 


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Preliminary CBEDS Report Staff will present information from the California Basic 
Educational Data System (CBEDS), data collection 
administered annually the first Wednesday in October. 
 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: District Sustainability Plan Staff will present a draft plan of next steps on sustainability 
efforts for Board discussion.  


8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. New Business: GSCFT 2021-2022 Articles Recommendation: Approve the SCCS Sunshine Articles for 
GSCFT 2021-2022. 


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent   


8.5.4.1. Staff Report: Redistricting Trustee Areas Demographer Doug Johnson of National Demographics 
Corporation will share data with the Board on the new 
census and its impact on Trustee Areas.   


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 11-21-22: 
Indigenous Heritage Month 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 11-21-22 to 
annually recognize Indigenous Heritage Month each 
November. 


8.5.4.3. New Business: Resolution 12-21-22: AB 
361  


Recommendation: Determine whether or not to continue 
with virtual board meetings in November 2021. 


8.5.4.4. Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas  


   


9. Adjournment  


  
 


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


6/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 7 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on October 20, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Regular Meeting on November 3, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 824 3476 0747, Passcode: 511283 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


Call: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 823 6980 9561, Passcode: 043568 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting October 20, 2021 - Page 8 of 8 


6. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8/1089







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
   


AGENDA ITEM:  Williams Uniform Complaint 1st Quarterly Report 
  
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
  
FROM:                      Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:               Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Williams Uniform Complaint 1st Quarterly Report for 2021-2022. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Education Code and the District’s Administrative Regulation on the Williams 
Uniform Complaint Policy, school districts must submit quarterly reports to the County Office of 
Education of all complaints filed in the areas of insufficient instructional materials, teacher 
vacancy or misassignment, and inadequate facilities. 
  
Upon contacting each school site, it has been verified that there have been no complaints for 
the first quarter of the school year, which ended September 30, 2021. The accompanying 
report has been created to show that the district did not receive any complaints this quarter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


9/1089







QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS 


TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 


QUARTER END SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
 
 


DISTRICT:  Santa Cruz City Schools Date Reported to District Governing Board: October 20, 2021 


 
I. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 


A) Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
B)  Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
C) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


II. TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT 
A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
B)  Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with  


      More than 20% ELL in class: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


C)  Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


III. FACILITIES 


A) Conditions posing an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:     


   


10/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 09/13/2021 through 
09/24/2021. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2021-22 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $95,200 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $95,200 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $96,700 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $95,200 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 


11/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


12/1089







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/27/2021 - 10/13/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


BPO22-00004 70.00 TRNHStudent Food Handler Certificates 01 SE:PROJECT WORKEFOODHANDLERS


BPO22-00005 50.00 TRNHTPP Student Food Handler Certificates 01 REHAB:WORKABILIEFOODHANDLERS


BPO22-00006 405.00 TRNHCHECK REQUEST Bus passes for 


TPP students


01 REHAB:WORKABILISANTA CRUZ METRO


PO22-00041 20,900.00 TRANTransportation 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEOTTLEY INC DBA BLUE


PO22-00074 12,000.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs/Service 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEDIESELWORKS


PO22-00075 8,500.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs/Service 01 TRANSPORT:SPECIDIESELWORKS


PO22-00110 1,500.00 SCHSOPEN PO OFFICE SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING REPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO22-00115 3,100.00 SCHSOPEN PO - TEACHERS 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-00717 3,000.00 SQHSOPEN PO FOR OFFICE SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING REPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO22-00757 16,888.27 SQHSOPEN PO-EQUIP/SUPPLIES 01 Measure TBSN SPORTS LLC


PO22-00858 5,000.00 SCHSopen po -jewerly supplies 01 Measure TRIO GRANDE ALBUQUER


PO22-00910 28,124.00 M&OPROJECT 20037 HHS & SQHS 


EMERGENCY GENERATORS


14 DEF'D MAINT APPBELLI ARCHITECTURAL


PO22-01043 308.99 DLELDLV Extra Balls- Order end of 2020 


year


01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL SPECIALTY LL


PO22-01044 3,212.00 SCHSCFP - Assignors Fees 01 Measure TMHB VOLLEYBALL CONS


PO22-01045 960.00 SCHSCFP - Winter Sports Fees 01 Measure TCIF-CCS


PO22-01046 5,613.81 HHSIntegrated Math Books 01 NO REPORTING REFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01047 3,175.00 SCHSBusses for the Band 01 DONATIONSSAN JOSE CHARTER IN


PO22-01048 1,000.00 SCHSOpen PO for Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REWOODWIND AND BRASSW


PO22-01049 4,916.25 SCHSBaritone Sax 01 Measure TGRAY'S MUSICAL INST


PO22-01050 750.00 SCHSOpen PO for Instrument Repairs 01 Measure TGRAY'S MUSICAL INST


PO22-01051 740.00 SCHSOpen PO for Instrument Repairs 01 Measure TTHOMAS MUSICAL INST


PO22-01052 148.39 DLEL1st Grade Student Materials- Office 


Supply


01 NO REPORTING REOFFICESUPPLY.COM


PO22-01053 500.00 MHMSOpen PO for library suppllies 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01054 129.99 HHSIB Films 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01055 255.68 HHSAvid Supplies 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01056 7,384.13 CURRLexia English for Elem 01 ESEA:ENGLISH LEGREENFIELD LEARNING


PO22-01057 105.00 BMSBooks for Library 01 DONATIONSAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01058 810.00 GAELPBIS Prices & Materials 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCORIENTAL TRADING CO


PO22-01059 705.67 SPEDPYSCHOLOGIST ASSESSMENT 


MATERIALS


01 SE:STATE LOCALWPS


PO22-01060 936.53 CURRBiotech Materials for Nehal 01 Strong WorkforcFLINN SCIENTIFIC IN


PO22-01061 881.47 CURRPPE Musician Masks for WL 01 ESSERPEPWEAR


PO22-01062 202.63 CURRPPE Flute Masks for WL 01 ESSERCOUSIN'S CONCERT AT


PO22-01063 2,000.00 SCHSOpen PO for Clay/Supplies 01 Measure TPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO22-01064 2,309.10 GAELLibrary Books 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01065 234.41 SQHSCFP-TIRE REPAIR (3) & NEW (2) 01 NO REPORTING RETIRE CHOICE AUTO SE


PO22-01066 7,200.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FOR CO2 AT SCCS 


SWIMMING POOLS


01 OTHER RESTRICTEAIRGAS INC


PO22-01067 500.00 SQHSOPEN PO- SUPPLIES FOR CERAMICS 01 Measure THOME DEPOT INC


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 14 2021 10:19AM


Page 1 of 4


13/1089







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/27/2021 - 10/13/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01068 25,559.90 M&O21/22 PO REPAIRS/UPGRADES HHS 


INTERCOM


25 OTHER RESTRICTECENTRAL COAST SYSTE


PO22-01069 45.25 HHSHealth Office Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01070 106.27 HHSOffice Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01071 7,665.60 SUPTmonday.com license renewal 01 NO REPORTING REMONDAY.COM LTD


PO22-01072 300.00 HHSCFP - White Glove Service 01 NO REPORTING REAV NOW INC


PO22-01073 5,859.38 DLELGreat Minds Quotes- Goal 2 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCGREAT MINDS LLC


PO22-01074 2,400.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FOR FILTERS 01 ONGOING & MAJORTRI DIM FILTER


PO22-01075 76,040.00 SUPTSchool Resource Office - SC Sheriff 01 NO REPORTING RESC COUNTY SHERIFF -


PO22-01076 1,080.00 ITCFP: Freshworks Renewal 01 NO REPORTING REFRESHWORKS INC


PO22-01077 158.40 SCHSShredder 01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01078 8,909.00 SCHSCFP - Sports Fees 01 Measure TSC COAST ATHLETHIC 


PO22-01079 788.79 DLELDLV Headphones- (goal 1, activity 7) 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01080 2,670.00 M&O21/22 PO RELOCATE EQUIP TO 


PRESS BOX - HHS


01 ONGOING & MAJORPSR ELECTRIC


PO22-01081 1,000.00 BSSAmazon Open PO Ark Books 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01082 19,350.00 M&OHH FA BLDG DSA 21 BOND, MEASURE ADIVISION OF STATE A


PO22-01083 750.00 HHSOpen PO for Instrument Repairs 01 Measure TGRAY'S MUSICAL INST


PO22-01084 3,241.00 FINCFP HEALTH PERMITS 01 ONGOING & MAJORSANTA CRUZ COUNTY E


PO22-01085 1,800.00 SCHSOpen PO for Autoshop 01 Measure TNAPA OF SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01086 148.21 SQHSCFP-CLAMP FIXTURES 01 Measure TMACMURRAY PACIFIC


PO22-01087 103.54 SQHSCFP-BEARINGS, WATER 01 Measure TMACMURRAY PACIFIC


PO22-01088 379.04 HHSAvid Planners 01 DONATIONSAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01089 238.11 STUSEMERGENCY DRAWSTRING BAGS 


RED


01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01090 89.15 STUSEMERGENCY CLASSROOM 


SUPPLIES - GLOVES


01 OTHER RESTRICTECOAST PAPER & SUPPL


PO22-01091 108.33 SPEDAPE MATERIALS 21-22 SCHOOL YEAR 01 SE:STATE LOCALPRO-ED INC


PO22-01092 2,750.00 HHSConferences 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCINTERNATIONAL BACCA


PO22-01093 85.50 SCHSCFP-Scholastic Action 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOLASTIC INC.


PO22-01094 180.21 SCHSCFP - Bass Drum Stand 01 Measure TSTEVE WEISS MUSIC I


PO22-01095 573.89 SQHSCFP-PAPER PRODUCTS 01 NO REPORTING RECOAST PAPER & SUPPL


PO22-01096 500.00 SQHSOPEN PO-SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING RECOAST PAPER & SUPPL


PO22-01097 130.88 BSSCHS supplemental books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01098 5,676.63 CURRMarco Lucadano - Camera Purchase 01 CAREER TECHNICAB & H PHOTO


PO22-01099 750.00 CURRReading for Social Justice Conference 01 ESSER IIIUCSC-REGENTS


PO22-01100 100.00 HHSCFP - CSF Dues 01 OTHER RESTRICTECALIFORNIA SCHOLARS


PO22-01101 32.51 HHSColored Paper 01 NO REPORTING REOFFICE DEPOT


PO22-01102 2,090.00 CURRCMC North Asilomar Conference 01 ESSER IIICMC NORTH TREASURER


PO22-01103 25,000.00 BUSNPARCEL TAX EXEMPTION SERVICES 


21-22


01 NO REPORTING RESCI CONSULTING GROU


PO22-01104 88.34 HHSClassroom Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01105 8,000.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FOR POOL SUPPLIES 01 ONGOING & MAJORKNORR SYSTEMS


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 14 2021 10:19AM


Page 2 of 4


14/1089







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/27/2021 - 10/13/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01106 541,394.00 M&OTRANSPORTATION OFFICE 21 BOND, MEASURE AAMERICAN MODULAR SY


PO22-01107 281.04 BMSSupplies for Library 01 DONATIONSCOLIBRI SYSTEM


PO22-01108 500.00 BMSPrinting Services 01 NO REPORTING REALPHAGRAPHICS SUNNY


PO22-01109 200.00 BMSSupplies for wood shop teacher 01 OTHER RESTRICTEHOME DEPOT INC


PO22-01110 200.00 BMSSupplies for wood shop teacher 01 OTHER RESTRICTESAN LORENZO LUMBER 


PO22-01111 35,397.54 M&OHHS & SQHS EMERGENCY 


GENERATORS


14 DEF'D MAINT APPBELLI ARCHITECTURAL


PO22-01112 460.00 MHMSOpen PO for Amazon for 


Osborne-class supplies


01 DONATIONSAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01113 500.00 MHMSOpen PO for class books-Osborne 01 DONATIONSAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01114 220.00 WLELCool Cat Store Supplies 01 DONATIONSORIENTAL TRADING CO


PO22-01116 6,238.00 STUSEMERGENCY 


SUPPLIES/CLASSROOMS


01 ESSERMORE PREPARED LLC


PO22-01117 384.56 STUSEMERGENCY 


SUPPLIES/CLASSROOMS


01 ESSERCOAST PAPER & SUPPL


PO22-01118 696.59 WLELCFP - Jr. Library Order - Kathy Griffith 01 DONATIONSJUNIOR LIBRARY GUIL


PO22-01119 725.00 WLELTrueFlix Renewal 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCSCHOLASTIC EDUCATIO


PO22-01120 500.00 SCHSOpen PO for Gas 01 Measure TMATHESON TRI-GAS IN


PO22-01121 98.48 SCHSClassroom Supplies 01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01122 241.01 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01123 307.99 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01124 341.47 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01125 273.02 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01126 102.86 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01127 250,000.00 FINBLANKET PO FOR SUI PAYMENTS 01E.D.D./ STATE OF CA


PO22-01128 27,005.00 M&O21/22 PO FOR ELECTRIC CLUB CAR 


FOR HHS


01 OTHER RESTRICTETURF & INDUSTRIAL E


PO22-01129 367.54 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01130 3,445.00 HHSCSA - Software Program 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDITURNITIN LLC


PO22-01132 1,000.00 BSSAFE Open PO San Lorenzo 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDISAN LORENZO LUMBER 


PO22-01133 2,700.00 CURRSummer School - Math Project PD 01 ELO GFUC REGENTS PB SCI D


PO22-01134 1,000.00 CURRMath PD for K-3 Teachers 01 ESSER IIUC REGENTS PB SCI D


PO22-01135 3,075.15 DLELAccelerated Reading (Goal 1, Strategy 


4)


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIESTRELLITA INC


PO22-01136 480.00 M&O21/22 PO FOR TROUBLE SHOOT 


LOSS OF POWER AT SQHS


01 ONGOING & MAJORPSR ELECTRIC


PO22-01137 18,295.00 M&ODLV FLAG POLE INSTALLATION 01 ONGOING & MAJORDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01138 10,440.00 M&OSQ FLAG POLE INSTALLATION 01 ONGOING & MAJORDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01139 638.00 GAELLife Lab Microscopes 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01140 200.00 GAELCharlene Cheman RSP Supplies 01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01141 15,659.10 ITBorderlan Lightspeed Amendment 01 NO REPORTING REBORDERLAN SECURITY


PO22-01142 1,040.96 CURRPPE Bell Cover for WL 01 ESSERHICKEYS MUSIC CENTE


PO22-01143 7,500.00 SCHSOpen PO for Football Reconditioning 01 NO REPORTING RECONTINENTAL ATHLETI


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 14 2021 10:19AM


Page 3 of 4


15/1089







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/27/2021 - 10/13/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01144 298.43 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01145 1,158.40 DLELDLV Metal Picnic Table 01 NO REPORTING REULINE


PO22-01146 681.13 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01147 506.15 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01148 636.91 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES 01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01149 298.98 STUSEMERGENCY SUPPLIES/ALL 


SCHOOLS


01 ESSERSCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01150 1,000.00 GAELASES Materials & Supplies 01 AFTER-SCHOOL EDAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01151 136.27 HHSPE Equipment 01 NO REPORTING READA BADMINTON & TEN


PO22-01152 610.94 HHSOffice Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01153 3,500.00 ITCFP: Blackboard Renewal Set Up Fee 01 NO REPORTING REBLACKBOARD INC


PO22-01154 6,300.00 SUPTState of our schools printing 01 NO REPORTING RECOMMUNITY PRINTERS 


PO22-01155 1,047.71 BSSQuote 7339380. Sound system for 


BSSC


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDISWEETWATER SOUND IN


PO22-01156 1,043.33 MHMSnew walkie talkies 01 OTHER RESTRICTESILKE COMMUNICATION


PO22-01157 2,000.00 MHMSOpen PO for art-Crocetti 01 DONATIONSNASCO


PO22-01158 85.15 HHSCustodial Key Reels 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01159 8,600.00 SUPTState of our schools mailing 01 NO REPORTING RECOMPLETE MAILING SE


PO22-01160 147.47 HHSPrivacy Screen and Track 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01161 27.30 DLELA. Letona Ergonomics 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01162 163.79 HHSLetter Repair 01 DONATIONSPPD MULTIMEDIA


PO22-01163 500.00 BUSNOPEN ORDER FOR WORK 


COMP/SAFETY ORDERS


01 OTHER RESTRICTESTAPLES ADVANTAGE


PO22-01164 385.00 SQHSCFP-Membership 7/1/21-6/30/22 01 NO REPORTING RENATIONAL ASSOC OF S


PO22-01165 550.00 SQHSMOCK TRIAL REGISTRATION FOR 


SOQUEL HS 2021-22


01 NO REPORTING RESANTA CRUZ COE


PO22-01167 172.06 SCHSPresentation Boards 01 NO REPORTING REPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO22-01168 5,490.00 WLELi-Ready Student Licenses 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCCURRICULUM ASSOCIAT


PO22-01169 3,000.00 WLELArt Supplies 01 Measure UDICK BLICK COMPANY


PO22-01170 8,715.25 SCHSCameras 01 Measure TB & H PHOTO


PO22-01171 650.88 SCHSBack Drop Stand 01 Measure TTEAM FITZ GRAPHICS 


PO22-01172 500.00 BUSNSUPPLEMENTAL RPRT 


AUDIT/FOOTNOTE INFO


01 NO REPORTING REDFA-ACTUARIES LLC


PO22-01173 500.00 BUSNSUPPLEMENTAL RPRT 


AUDIT/FOOTNOTE INFO


01 NO REPORTING REDFA-ACTUARIES LLC


Total 1,329,876.71 


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 14 2021 10:19AM


Page 4 of 4


16/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 09/14/2021 through 09/27/2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


17/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


814526 09/30/2021 Sierra Waters 2,244.57 *


Cancelled on 10/12/2021


980420 10/04/2021 BUSINESS CARD 342.96 


980421 10/04/2021 DOMINOS/3 AMIGOS PIZZA INC 1,852.99 


980422 10/04/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 5,612.83 


Unpaid Tax


5,613.68 Expensed Amount


.85 


980423 10/04/2021 CARTRIDGE WORLD 60.08 


980424 10/04/2021 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 1,585.95 


980425 10/04/2021 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 114.80 


980426 10/04/2021 DANIELSEN CO. 6,322.21 


980427 10/04/2021 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 137.23 


980428 10/04/2021 DOMINOS/3 AMIGOS PIZZA INC 1,080.00 


980429 10/04/2021 EASTER SEALS CENTRAL CALIF 6,408.20 


980430 10/04/2021 GOLD STAR FOODS 10,011.39 


980431 10/04/2021 GRAY'S MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS 340.00 


980432 10/04/2021 GREENBACKER DBA MAGNOLIA SUN LLC 14,380.31 


980433 10/04/2021 GS DIRECT LLC 7,351.63 


980434 10/04/2021 IMAGE ONE CORP 867.00 


980435 10/04/2021 NAPA AUTO PARTS 491.24 


980436 10/04/2021 OFFICE DEPOT 65.52 


980437 10/04/2021 OLIVER PACKAGING & EQUIPMENT 1,801.69 


980438 10/04/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 775.76 


980439 10/04/2021 PENINSULA SPORTS INC 1,750.00 


980440 10/04/2021 PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 105.63 


980441 10/04/2021 PPD MULTIMEDIA 73.03 


Unpaid Tax


73.19 Expensed Amount


.16 


980442 10/04/2021 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 2,885.42 


980443 10/04/2021 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 653.38 


980444 10/04/2021 SAFEWAY STORES INC 86.56 


980445 10/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY ENVIRONMENTA L HEALTH 


SERVICE


397.00 


980446 10/04/2021 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA LLC 2,923.64 


980447 10/04/2021 SOLARCITY LMC SERIES 1 LLC 4,713.50 


980448 10/04/2021 SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 75.65 


980449 10/04/2021 TEACHERS PAY TEACHERS 7,500.00 


980450 10/04/2021 THE LIBRARY STORE INC 286.76 


980451 10/04/2021 UCSC-REGENTS 2,955.94 


980452 10/04/2021 VAN ZANTES PHOTOGRAPHY 316.10 


980453 10/04/2021 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 608.63 


980454 10/04/2021 WIESER EDUCATIONAL INC 71.24 


980455 10/04/2021 WPS 668.22 


Unpaid Tax


668.17 Expensed Amount


.05-


980456 10/04/2021 Petersen Lindberg, Erin E 516.41 


980457 10/04/2021 Volpe, Joanne M 159.05 


980458 10/04/2021 Mabrouk, Gail E 153.26 


980459 10/04/2021 Woodland, Kimberly A 126.70 


Page 1 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


18/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


980460 10/04/2021 Tuson, Kim 22.62 


980461 10/04/2021 Boscacci, Peter R 168.44 


980462 10/04/2021 Nijor, Amrik K 51.58 


980463 10/04/2021 Bentley, Thomas K 1,472.58 


980464 10/04/2021 Daniel, Alison S 52.15 


980465 10/04/2021 Hilderbrand, Laurie A 29.54 


980466 10/04/2021 Marshak, Spencer A 93.10 


980467 10/04/2021 Ohlson, Lily L 103.92 


980468 10/04/2021 Stevens, Marion 374.17 


980469 10/04/2021 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 2,762.60 


980470 10/04/2021 ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 1,232.03 


980471 10/04/2021 APPI 1,336.99 


980472 10/04/2021 B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 49.83 


980473 10/04/2021 BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE INC DBA SAN LORENZO 


LUMBER


195.40 


980474 10/04/2021 CENTRAL HOME SUPPLY 114.31 


980475 10/04/2021 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 273.31 


980476 10/04/2021 COALITION FOR ADEQUATE SCHOOLS 591.00 


980477 10/04/2021 COAST LOCK & SAFE 329.12 


980478 10/04/2021 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 323.19 


980479 10/04/2021 ELITE INTERACTIVE SOLUTIONS LLC 5,626.05 


980480 10/04/2021 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 366.78 


980481 10/04/2021 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 1,489.06 


980482 10/04/2021 HOME DEPOT INC 686.47 


980483 10/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 24.02 


980484 10/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 115.27 


980485 10/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 276.65 


980486 10/04/2021 LINCOLN AQUATICS 3,749.78 


980487 10/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 121.12 


980488 10/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ RECORDS MANAGEMENT 196.80 


980489 10/04/2021 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 304.63 


980490 10/04/2021 SUPERIOR ALARM CO 7,289.20 


980491 10/04/2021 SURTEC INC 1,978.11 


980492 10/04/2021 WESTSIDE HARDWARE 21.57 


980493 10/04/2021 ABRITE ORGANIZATION, THE 111,675.21 


980494 10/04/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 856.31 


Unpaid Tax


856.52 Expensed Amount


.21 


980495 10/04/2021 AMS.NET C/O FREMONT BANK 2,810.96 


980496 10/04/2021 BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE INC DBA SAN LORENZO 


LUMBER


561.33 


980497 10/04/2021 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 517.84 


980498 10/04/2021 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 8,222.25 


980499 10/04/2021 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 15,390.00 


980500 10/04/2021 EAST BAY RESTAURANT SUPPLY INC 11,853.75 


980501 10/04/2021 FAGEN FRIEDMAN & FULFROST LLP 442.00 


980502 10/04/2021 GOLD STAR FOODS 4,176.62 


980503 10/04/2021 HEINEMANN 1,532.23 


980504 10/04/2021 LEARNING WITHOUT TEARS 1,243.81 


Page 2 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


19/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


980505 10/04/2021 OFFICE DEPOT 235.92 


980506 10/04/2021 OFFICESUPPLY.COM 148.39 


980507 10/04/2021 ONE WORK PLACE L FERRARI LLC 85,068.91 


980508 10/04/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 755.50 


980509 10/04/2021 PG&E 13,321.89 


980510 10/04/2021 PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 428.48 


980511 10/04/2021 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 3,096.09 


980512 10/04/2021 RAY MORGAN CO. 284.31 


980513 10/04/2021 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 536.60 


980514 10/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 3,391.90 


980515 10/04/2021 SC COUNTY SHERIFF - FISCAL 6,758.88 


980516 10/04/2021 SCHOOL SPECIALTY LLC 282.83 


980517 10/04/2021 SURTEC INC 1,119.59 


980518 10/04/2021 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 12,140.69 


980519 10/04/2021 T-MOBILE USA INC 42,645.76 


980520 10/04/2021 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 847.23 


980521 10/04/2021 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 716.60 


980522 10/04/2021 BARTOS ARCHITECTURE INC 62,915.75 


980523 10/04/2021 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 23,727.73 


980524 10/04/2021 FIELDTURF USA 11,419.03 


980525 10/04/2021 GARLAND COMPANY INC, THE 196,104.60 


980526 10/04/2021 K&D LANDSCAPING INC 7,535.63 


980527 10/04/2021 MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES INC 5,227.00 


980528 10/04/2021 PSR ELECTRIC 2,828.50 


980529 10/04/2021 THE GARLAND COMPANY INC 1,544.44 


Unpaid Tax


1,547.87 Expensed Amount


3.43 


980530 10/04/2021 BSN SPORTS LLC 2,780.35 


980531 10/04/2021 LOZANO SMITH LLP 2,337.00 


980532 10/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 


SERVICES


3,241.00 


981067 10/11/2021 MCGRAW HILL EDUCATION 47,744.62 


981068 10/11/2021 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 40.00 


981069 10/11/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 3,695.18 


Unpaid Tax


3,697.37 Expensed Amount


2.19 


981070 10/11/2021 AV NOW INC 300.00 


981071 10/11/2021 BIOMETRICS4ALL INC 53.25 


981072 10/11/2021 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 405.86 


981073 10/11/2021 CENGAGE LEARNING 1,874.74 


981074 10/11/2021 CIF-CCS 960.00 


981075 10/11/2021 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 114.80 


981076 10/11/2021 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 1,155.86 


981077 10/11/2021 COUSIN'S CONCERT ATTIRE 406.00 


981078 10/11/2021 CROWE LLP 30,500.00 


981079 10/11/2021 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC 19,032.00 


981080 10/11/2021 DESMOS INC 4,780.00 


981081 10/11/2021 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 232.10 


981082 10/11/2021 DISCOVERY CHARTERS 2,522.00 


Page 3 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


20/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


981083 10/11/2021 EDGENUITY INC 26,400.00 


981084 10/11/2021 FRESHWORKS INC 1,080.00 


981085 10/11/2021 GRAY'S MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS 125.00 


981086 10/11/2021 GREAT MINDS PBC 9,900.00 


981087 10/11/2021 HEINEMANN 510.74 


981088 10/11/2021 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 116.20 


981089 10/11/2021 LEARNING A-Z 108.00 


981090 10/11/2021 MACMURRAY PACIFIC WHOLESALE BUILDERS 


SPECIALTIES


251.75 


981091 10/11/2021 MCGRAW HILL EDUCATION 545.17 


981092 10/11/2021 MHB VOLLEYBALL CONSULTING SERV 3,212.00 


981093 10/11/2021 MNRO HOLDINGS 234.41 


981094 10/11/2021 MONDAY.COM LTD 7,665.60 


981095 10/11/2021 NAPA AUTO PARTS 218.60 


981096 10/11/2021 NASCO 3,143.38 


981097 10/11/2021 OFFICE DEPOT 103.00 


981098 10/11/2021 ONE WORK PLACE L FERRARI LLC 32,161.04 


981099 10/11/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 736.31 


981100 10/11/2021 SANTA CRUZ ELECTRONICS 463.74 


981101 10/11/2021 SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 111.03 


981102 10/11/2021 SC COAST ATHLETHIC LEAGUE 8,909.00 


981103 10/11/2021 SCHOLASTIC INC. 4,455.37 


981104 10/11/2021 Aylsworth, Nancy L 39.23 


981105 10/11/2021 Grogan, Denice M 171.81 


981106 10/11/2021 Boscacci, Peter R 707.63 


981107 10/11/2021 Carranza, Helena 203.96 


981108 10/11/2021 Bettar, Brian K 460.41 


981109 10/11/2021 Asamoto, Erin E 26.75 


981110 10/11/2021 Wells, Dustin D 254.00 


981111 10/11/2021 Allabach, Angela R 394.15 


981112 10/11/2021 Carmichael, Kendra R 36.03 


981113 10/11/2021 JENNIFER BLANKE 95.00 


981114 10/11/2021 ERIN PETERSEN LINDBERG 908.40 


981115 10/11/2021 KAIA EVULICH 500.00 


981116 10/11/2021 LEILANI RENDA 500.00 


981117 10/11/2021 SYLVANA TAI MARGOLUIS 500.00 


981118 10/11/2021 ALPHAGRAPHICS SUNNYVALE 386.30 


Unpaid Tax


386.73 Expensed Amount


.43 


981119 10/11/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 883.19 


Unpaid Tax


884.19 Expensed Amount


1.00 


981120 10/11/2021 BSN SPORTS LLC 4,145.70 


981121 10/11/2021 CSU SAN BERNADINO 25.00 


981122 10/11/2021 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC 204.39 


Unpaid Tax


204.34 Expensed Amount


.05-


981123 10/11/2021 DANIELSEN CO. 11,380.14 


981124 10/11/2021 DOMINOS/3 AMIGOS PIZZA INC 945.00 


Page 4 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


21/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


981125 10/11/2021 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 2,429.98 


981126 10/11/2021 GOLD STAR FOODS 11,556.87 


981127 10/11/2021 INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE OR 2,750.00 


981128 10/11/2021 LOGMEIN COMMUNICATIONS INC 1,198.05 


981129 10/11/2021 NASCO 479.60 


981130 10/11/2021 P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC 2,820.65 


981131 10/11/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 696.00 


981132 10/11/2021 PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 922.78 


981133 10/11/2021 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 2,999.18 


981134 10/11/2021 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 402.39 


981135 10/11/2021 SAFEWAY STORES INC 121.01 


981136 10/11/2021 SCHOLASTIC INC. 250.34 


981137 10/11/2021 STEVE WEISS MUSIC INC 180.21 


981138 10/11/2021 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 3,839.98 


981139 10/11/2021 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 669.00 


981140 10/11/2021 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 338.72 


981141 10/11/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 405.92 


981142 10/11/2021 APPI 2,880.68 


981143 10/11/2021 B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 592.90 


981144 10/11/2021 BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE INC DBA SAN LORENZO 


LUMBER


224.15 


981145 10/11/2021 CENTRAL COAST SYSTEMS INC 788.50 


981146 10/11/2021 CENTRAL HOME SUPPLY 605.68 


981147 10/11/2021 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 125.54 


981148 10/11/2021 COAST LOCK & SAFE 242.24 


981149 10/11/2021 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 137.85 


981150 10/11/2021 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 1,867.21 


981151 10/11/2021 FACILITY ADVISER 10,265.00 


981152 10/11/2021 GOT GOPHERS INC 1,825.00 


981153 10/11/2021 HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL DBA R AURIA INC 110.00 


981154 10/11/2021 HOME DEPOT INC 395.86 


981155 10/11/2021 INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 2.88 


981156 10/11/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 276.65 


981157 10/11/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 347.55 


981158 10/11/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 491.59 


981159 10/11/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 17.20 


981160 10/11/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 188.46 


981161 10/11/2021 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 19.37 


981162 10/11/2021 SANTA CRUZ RECORDS MANAGEMENT 172.00 


981163 10/11/2021 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 800.00 


981164 10/11/2021 SURTEC INC 844.46 


981165 10/11/2021 TRI DIM FILTER 110.80 


981166 10/11/2021 BEST CONTRACTING SERVICES INC 230,868.76 


981167 10/11/2021 COLBI TECHNOLOGIES INC 1,380.00 


981168 10/11/2021 DILBECK & SONS INC 39,554.54 


981169 10/11/2021 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 19,350.00 


981170 10/11/2021 GARLAND COMPANY INC, THE 6,622.80 


981171 10/11/2021 LEACH GROUP INC 12,870.00 


981172 10/11/2021 VERDE DESIGN INC 825.00 


Page 5 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


22/1089







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 09/28/2021 through 10/14/2021


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


981173 10/11/2021 E.D.D./ STATE OF CALIFORNIA 55,278.96 


981174 10/11/2021 UC REGENTS OFFICE OF ADMISSIONS 3,700.00 


1,434,292.93  222Total Number of Checks


Cancel 


AmountCount
1 2,244.57 


Net Issue 1,432,048.36 


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


01 GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 684,438.54 178 


11 ADULT EDUCATION 1,595.61 2 


13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 93,363.13 25 


21 BUILDING 635,769.25 18 


40 SPL RESV CAPITAL OUTLAY PRJ 15,390.00 1 


73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 1,500.00 3 


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 1,432,056.53 221 


8.17 


1,432,048.36 


Page 6 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Oct 14 2021  


9:01AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


23/1089







                      


                                                                                                                      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 
  
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Business Services  
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 21-22 budget transfers dated from 08/01/21 through 08/31/21.  The report follows.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


24/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01  


JE # BR22-00169 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment ED-CSA GLAD TRAINING
10,800.00 ( 027417)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 524- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,325.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


9,475.00 ( 024288)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,800.00 10,800.00 


JE # BR22-00170 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 33854 FLORES, EVELYN
4,820.00 ( 024349)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


299.00 ( 024350)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


70.00 ( 024351)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


60.00 ( 024353)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


97.00 ( 024354)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


5,346.00 ( 024369)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,346.00 5,346.00 


JE # BR22-00172 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BL-EWR 33860 TREADWELL ELD TASK FORCE
360.00 ( 024349)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


83.00 ( 024340)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


23.00 ( 024350)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 024351)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 024353)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 024354)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


485.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


485.00 485.00 


JE # BR22-00173 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BL-DU81257
270.00 ( 008241)  01- 9010- 0- 1130- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


270.00 ( 007561)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 031- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


750.00 ( 008761)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3156 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


750.00 ( 008482)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 031- 3156 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,055.00 ( 008243)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,055.00 ( 007577)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,745.00 ( 015935)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3317 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,745.00 ( 016442)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 3317 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


52.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


52.00 ( 008490)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


25/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00173 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BL-DU81257(continued)
250.00 ( 008983)  01- 9016- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


250.00 ( 008490)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


148.00 ( 009180)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


148.00 ( 008522)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 038- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


12,540.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00174 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BL-DLV EWR 33665 J.BENNETT 25% PTC
213.00 ( 023755)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


53.00 ( 023760)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 3312- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,HEALTH SERVICES


13.00 ( 023761)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 3332- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,HEALTH SERVICES


11.00 ( 023763)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 3502- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,HEALTH SERVICES


18.00 ( 023764)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 3602- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,HEALTH SERVICES


308.00 ( 008750)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 2310 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


308.00 308.00 


JE # BR22-00175 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment FC-OT TYPING CLUB SUBSCRIPTION
212.00 ( 006984)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


212.00 ( 025759)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:OTHER SPEC I


212.00 212.00 


JE # BR22-00176 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment MB-SWAMP COOLER & GREASE TRAP IN KITCHEN
719.00 ( 024992)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 034- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


4,046.00 ( 027206)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 034- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE


4,765.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


4,765.00 4,765.00 


JE # BR22-00177 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment GM-TEACHER & PRINCIPAL PD
650.00 ( 027478)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 5800- 537- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


525.00 ( 027479)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 2700- 5800- 537- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,175.00 ( 025139)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,175.00 1,175.00 


JE # BR22-00178 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment GM-TEACHER & PRINCIPAL PD


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


26/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00178 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment GM-TEACHER & PRINCIPAL PD(continued)
650.00 ( 027478)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 5800- 537- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


525.00 ( 027479)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 2700- 5800- 537- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,175.00 ( 025139)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,175.00 1,175.00 


JE # BR22-00179 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment GM-TEACHER & PRINCIPAL PD
650.00 ( 027481)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 5200- 537- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


525.00 ( 027482)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 2700- 5200- 537- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,TRAVEL & CONFER,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,175.00 ( 025139)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,175.00 1,175.00 


JE # BR22-00180 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment MB-SANITARY SEWER REPAIR
2,477.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,477.00 ( 025802)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 024- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


2,477.00 2,477.00 


JE # BR22-00181 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment JL-Add Budget for Contracts
18,040.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


25,327.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


1,778.00 ( 006399)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 7210- 7310- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T


3,044.00 ( 006398)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 7210- 7310- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T


42,101.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


45,145.00 ( 006279)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,CONTRI FR:UNRES


45,145.00 ( 006280)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL,CONTRI FR:UNRES


45,145.00 ( 000055)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


45,145.00 ( 000058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


135,435.00 135,435.00 


JE # BR22-00182 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment MB-C/O FOR SUPPLIES AT ULINE & STORAGE
2,926.00 ( 001329)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,000.00 ( 001331)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


4,926.00 ( 001448)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 049- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 3 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


27/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


4,926.00 4,926.00 


JE # BR22-00185 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-DIGITAL MAGAZINES
4,225.00 ( 006151)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 534- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


4,225.00 ( 021722)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


4,225.00 4,225.00 


JE # BR22-00186 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment KT-TIRES REPAIRED
230.00 ( 027491)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5600- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


230.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


230.00 230.00 


JE # BR22-00187 JE Trans Date 09/04/2021 JE Posted 09/04/2021 Comment JL-Add Budget for Speechrighter ESY invoices
432.00 ( 025668)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 205- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


432.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


3,853.00 ( 006879)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 250- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


3,853.00 ( 006997)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 2700- 4300- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


4,285.00 4,285.00 


JE # BR22-00189 JE Trans Date 09/06/2021 JE Posted 09/06/2021 Comment JL-Add Home & Hospital Budget
10,742.00 ( 016919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 200- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,818.00 ( 016920)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 200- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


156.00 ( 016925)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 200- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


54.00 ( 016927)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 200- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


206.00 ( 016928)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 200- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


12,976.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00190 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment JL-Correct BT#124616 that hit FB s/b 4300
13,787.00 ( 023586)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


8,247.00 ( 025934)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


9,158.00 ( 025935)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 31,192.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 4 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


28/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00191 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment JL-Correct Offset to Indirects
1,266.00 ( 001138)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 899- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T


1,266.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00192 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment PS-TACO TRUCK STAFF MEETING
1,000.00 ( 000604)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,000.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BR22-00193 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment AR EDGENUITY CHANGE ORDER
1,980.00 ( 020562)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- CMP1 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,980.00 ( 016370)  01- 0000- 0- 1150- 1000- 4100- 530- c mp1 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


1,980.00 1,980.00 


JE # BR22-00194 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment MB GREASE TRAP SCHS/HEAT PUMP
4,046.00 ( 025980)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 034- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


4,046.00 ( 027206)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 034- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE


17,540.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


17,540.00 ( 024992)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 034- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


21,586.00 21,586.00 


JE # BR22-00195 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment BL-DU81334
50.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


550.00 ( 008448)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


520.00 ( 008243)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


520.00 ( 007577)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


150.00 ( 008375)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


150.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


15,015.00 ( 009039)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


15,015.00 ( 008508)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,385.00 ( 008883)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3480 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,385.00 ( 008510)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3480 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,405.00 ( 008884)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3482 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,405.00 ( 008512)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3482 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 5 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


29/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00195 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment BL-DU81334(continued)
300.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


100.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


165.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


565.00 ( 008504)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3457 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


100.00 ( 008298)  01- 9010- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


100.00 ( 007564)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 034- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


2,750.00 ( 008317)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,750.00 ( 007564)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 034- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


10.00 ( 007790)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 034- 3405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


10.00 ( 007586)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3405 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


105.00 ( 009128)  01- 9016- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 034- 3470 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


105.00 ( 008506)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3470 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,180.00 ( 007778)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,180.00 ( 007585)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


49,470.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00196 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment ML-UC COUNSELORS TRAINING/SOUL SHOPPE ELEM.
9,940.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


540.00 ( 007801)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5200- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,GUIDANCE & COUN


9,400.00 ( 007807)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5800- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN


9,940.00 9,940.00 


JE # BR22-00197 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment PS-SPOTIFY
465.00 ( 001988)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


465.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


465.00 465.00 


JE # BR22-00198 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment BD-ADJUSTING BUDGET TO PRELIMINARY ALLOCATION
32,909.00 ( 005501)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 920- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,ALL OTHER FEDER


32,909.00 ( 005581)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 920- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


47,272.00 ( 005502)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 930- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,ALL OTHER FEDER


47,272.00 ( 005582)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


99,046.00 ( 024092)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,ALL OTHER FEDER


99,046.00 ( 024105)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


69,780.00 ( 024108)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,ALL OTHER FEDER


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 6 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


30/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00198 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment BD-ADJUSTING BUDGET TO PRELIMINARY ALLOCATION(continued)
69,780.00 ( 024133)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 498,014.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00199 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment BL-BAND BOOSTER CK2579 1/2 SALINAS/SALTER POS.
11,977.00 ( 009003)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 2100- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


1,733.00 ( 009010)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3202- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


743.00 ( 009015)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3312- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


174.00 ( 009020)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3332- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


147.00 ( 009025)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3502- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


241.00 ( 009030)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3602- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


15,015.00 ( 009039)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


15,015.00 15,015.00 


JE # BR22-00200 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment BL-EWR 33757 SAUNDERS, ZIESEL
6,480.00 ( 027331)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,097.00 ( 024275)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


94.00 ( 027333)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


80.00 ( 027335)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


131.00 ( 027336)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


7,882.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,882.00 7,882.00 


JE # BR22-00201 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment MB-JSG ELEVATOR CONSULT/FLAGPOLE INSTALL
21,100.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


21,100.00 ( 027669)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 5800- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,FACILITIES ACQ


75,579.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


11,035.00 ( 027670)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 024- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ


16,562.00 ( 027671)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ


18,223.00 ( 027672)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 027- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ


18,807.00 ( 027673)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 023- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ


10,952.00 ( 027674)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 035- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ


96,679.00 96,679.00 


JE # BR22-00202 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment ML-SOUL SHOPPE ELEM SCHOOLS


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 7 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


31/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00202 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment ML-SOUL SHOPPE ELEM SCHOOLS(continued)
10,800.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


9,400.00 ( 007807)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5800- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN


20,200.00 ( 007808)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5800- 620- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN


20,200.00 20,200.00 


JE # BR22-00203 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-NEW TEACHER COMMUNITY MTG EWRS
7,128.00 ( 024394)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 1130- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,IN-HOUSE INSTR


1,206.00 ( 024395)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3101- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


103.00 ( 024400)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3331- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


88.00 ( 024402)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3501- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,IN-HOUSE INSTR


143.00 ( 024403)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3601- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,IN-HOUSE INSTR


8,668.00 ( 024404)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,668.00 8,668.00 


JE # BR22-00204 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-ELD COACHING & COLABORATION
23,400.00 ( 024122)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


3,959.00 ( 024123)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


339.00 ( 024128)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


288.00 ( 024130)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


470.00 ( 024131)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


24,236.00 ( 024109)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 2490- 1900- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,CERT:OTHER-SALA,OTHER INSTRUCTI


4,100.00 ( 024110)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 2490- 3101- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,STRS:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI


120.00 ( 024115)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 2490- 3331- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,MEDICARE:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI


28,456.00 28,456.00 


JE # BR22-00205 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER
139,216.00 ( 027608)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


139,216.00 ( 025128)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 520- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,ALL OTHER FEDER


355,419.00 ( 025134)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


355,419.00 ( 025131)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,ALL OTHER FEDER


237,987.00 ( 024557)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 536- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


237,987.00 ( 025366)  01- 3182- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 DRESSA (CSI),ALL OTHER FEDER


54,360.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 CRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


54,360.00 ( 020506)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 020- 0000 DRESSER,ALL OTHER FEDER


162,786.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 CRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 8 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


32/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00205 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER(continued)
162,786.00 ( 020508)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 030- 0000 DRESSER,ALL OTHER FEDER


486,647.00 ( 023586)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


486,647.00 ( 023569)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


2,003,564.00 ( 023587)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


2,003,564.00 ( 023571)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


1,754,082.00 ( 025934)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,754,082.00 ( 025932)  01- 3213- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRESSER III,ALL OTHER FEDER


4,698,958.00 ( 025935)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


4,698,958.00 ( 025933)  01- 3213- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRESSER III,ALL OTHER FEDER


449,419.00 ( 025938)  01- 3214- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRESSER III LL,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


449,419.00 ( 025936)  01- 3214- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRESSER III LL,ALL OTHER FEDER


1,188,756.00 ( 025940)  01- 3214- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRESSER III LL,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,188,756.00 ( 025939)  01- 3214- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRESSER III LL,ALL OTHER FEDER


33,444.00 ( 020661)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


33,444.00 ( 020655)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRGEER,ALL OTHER FEDER


70,342.00 ( 020662)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


70,342.00 ( 020657)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRGEER,ALL OTHER FEDER


185,607.00 ( 027446)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO ESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


185,607.00 ( 027444)  01- 3216- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRELO ESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


472,182.00 ( 027451)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO ESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


472,182.00 ( 027450)  01- 3216- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRELO ESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


42,591.00 ( 027449)  01- 3217- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO GEER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


42,591.00 ( 027447)  01- 3217- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRELO GEER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


108,352.00 ( 027453)  01- 3217- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO GEER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


108,352.00 ( 027452)  01- 3217- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRELO GEER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


120,905.00 ( 027456)  01- 3218- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO ESSERIII EN,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


120,905.00 ( 027454)  01- 3218- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRELO ESSERIII EN,ALL OTHER FEDER


307,581.00 ( 027458)  01- 3218- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO ESSERIII EN,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


307,581.00 ( 027457)  01- 3218- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRELO ESSERIII EN,ALL OTHER FEDER


208,423.00 ( 027462)  01- 3219- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO ESSERIII LL,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


208,423.00 ( 027461)  01- 3219- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 DRELO ESSERIII LL,ALL OTHER FEDER


530,227.00 ( 027463)  01- 3219- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO ESSERIII LL,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


530,227.00 ( 027459)  01- 3219- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 DRELO ESSERIII LL,ALL OTHER FEDER


289,571.00 ( 004963)  01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8181- 230- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,SE:ENTITLEMENT


289,571.00 ( 004965)  01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 230- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,CONTRI FR:UNRES


29,829.00 ( 024162)  01- 4127- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRESEA:STDNT SUPP,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


29,829.00 ( 024160)  01- 4127- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 520- 0000 DRESEA:STDNT SUPP,ALL OTHER FEDER


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 9 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


33/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00205 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER(continued)
72,834.00 ( 027639)  01- 4127- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRESEA:STDNT SUPP,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


72,834.00 ( 025151)  01- 4127- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 DRESEA:STDNT SUPP,ALL OTHER FEDER


15,364.00 ( 005581)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 920- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


15,364.00 ( 005501)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 920- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,ALL OTHER FEDER


8,367.00 ( 005582)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 930- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


8,367.00 ( 005502)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,ALL OTHER FEDER


6,553.00 ( 027643)  01- 4201- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRESEA:IMMIGRANT,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


6,553.00 ( 024136)  01- 4201- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 520- 0000 DRESEA:IMMIGRANT,ALL OTHER FEDER


965.00 ( 024141)  01- 4201- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRESEA:IMMIGRANT,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


965.00 ( 024139)  01- 4201- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 DRESEA:IMMIGRANT,ALL OTHER FEDER


102,241.00 ( 024105)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


102,241.00 ( 024092)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,ALL OTHER FEDER


64,824.00 ( 024133)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


64,824.00 ( 024108)  01- 4203- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,ALL OTHER FEDER


9,604.00 ( 027640)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


9,604.00 ( 024090)  01- 6010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 520- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,ALL OTHER STATE


290,497.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


290,497.00 ( 006224)  01- 6387- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 030- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,ALL OTHER STATE


54,329.00 ( 024158)  01- 6388- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 CRStrong Workforc,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


54,329.00 ( 014737)  01- 6388- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 030- 0000 DRStrong Workforc,ALL OTHER STATE


19,958.00 ( 007316)  01- 7220- 0- 1451- 1000- 4300- 035- 7220 CRPARTNERSHIP ACA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


19,958.00 ( 007309)  01- 7220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 035- 7220 DRPARTNERSHIP ACA,ALL OTHER STATE


660,991.00 ( 024586)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRIPI GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


660,991.00 ( 024584)  01- 7422- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 DRIPI GF,ALL OTHER STATE


1,649,693.00 ( 024587)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRIPI GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,649,693.00 ( 024585)  01- 7422- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 DRIPI GF,ALL OTHER STATE


147,102.00 ( 005794)  01- 5640- 0- 5001- 0000- 8290- 200- 0000 DRMEDI-CAL BILLIN,ALL OTHER FEDER


147,102.00 ( 005805)  01- 5640- 0- 5001- 2110- 4399- 200- 0000 CRMEDI-CAL BILLIN,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTIONAL S


33,777,569.00 289,571.00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST
516,983.00 ( 000055)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


962,307.00 ( 000058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


516,983.00 ( 003653)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0020 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


962,307.00 ( 003654)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0030 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


133,314.00 ( 022092)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0807 DRMeasure U,CONTRI FR:UNRES


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 10 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


34/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
20,966.00 ( 022063)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 031- 0807 CRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


45,108.00 ( 022070)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 032- 0807 CRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


34,361.00 ( 022066)  01- 0808- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 031- 0807 CRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


32,879.00 ( 022071)  01- 0808- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 032- 0807 CRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


271,740.00 ( 022060)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0807 DRMeasure T,CONTRI FR:UNRES


21,384.00 ( 022093)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0807 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES


9,043.00 ( 022089)  01- 0809- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


44,648.00 ( 022073)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 033- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


45,126.00 ( 022082)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


42,684.00 ( 022086)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 035- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


30,211.00 ( 022075)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 033- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


37,039.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


41,605.00 ( 022087)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 035- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


36.00 ( 007628)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0002 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


25,746.00 ( 007630)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0006 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


550.00 ( 007631)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0009 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


3,956.00 ( 015937)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0016 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


15,972.00 ( 007633)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0017 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


111,616.00 ( 007634)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0018 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


5,200.00 ( 007635)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0019 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


664.00 ( 007636)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0040 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


35.00 ( 007637)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0048 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


10,475.00 ( 007638)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


4,312.00 ( 021814)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0051 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,620.00 ( 007639)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0056 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


14,380.00 ( 007640)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0059 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


25,797.00 ( 007642)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0064 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


437.00 ( 007643)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0065 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


301.00 ( 007644)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0067 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


7,650.00 ( 007645)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0069 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


4,587.00 ( 007646)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0070 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


10,580.00 ( 007647)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0071 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


106.00 ( 007648)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0083 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


64,388.00 ( 007649)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


38,288.00 ( 007650)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


481,268.00 ( 021822)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0556 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


13,876.00 ( 021823)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0557 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 11 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


35/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
19,553.00 ( 021824)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0558 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


72,058.00 ( 007651)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0999 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,201.00 ( 007652)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 2732 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


3,103.00 ( 016018)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3281 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,164.00 ( 007653)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3350 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


426.00 ( 007655)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3405 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


35.00 ( 007656)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3458 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


197.00 ( 007657)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3490 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


140.00 ( 007658)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3500 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,116.00 ( 007659)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3560 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


23.00 ( 007660)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3603 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


4.00 ( 007661)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3604 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


62.00 ( 007662)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3710 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


6,519.00 ( 007663)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 3804 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,788.00 ( 016019)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 4030 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


944.00 ( 007664)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 4040 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


259.00 ( 007665)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 4041 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


49,014.00 ( 007666)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


4,850.00 ( 007668)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5110 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


363.00 ( 007669)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5303 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


5.00 ( 007670)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5404 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


38.00 ( 007671)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5405 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


7,733.00 ( 007672)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5720 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


14,980.00 ( 007673)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 5725 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


6,461.00 ( 007674)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 6767 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


5,667.00 ( 007675)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 6768 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


7,873.00 ( 007676)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 6769 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,884.00 ( 007677)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 6785 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


46,859.00 ( 007678)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 6787 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


5,542.00 ( 007679)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- CSI S DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


9,906.00 ( 021825)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- DI ST DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


146,077.00 ( 007680)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


39,658.00 ( 007681)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- I N21 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


945.00 ( 007684)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- I N30 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


608.00 ( 007685)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- I N31 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,550.00 ( 027660)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 023- I N23 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


548.00 ( 027661)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 024- I N24 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 12 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


36/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
26,705.00 ( 027662)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 032- I N32 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


31,283.00 ( 027663)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 033- I N33 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,800.00 ( 027664)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 034- I N34 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


11,176.00 ( 027665)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 035- I N35 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


120,164.00 ( 017218)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 038- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


6,988.00 ( 027666)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 038- I N38 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


61,851.00 ( 027492)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 046- FI RE DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


6,398.00 ( 007693)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 049- 6230 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


123,868.00 ( 027667)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 049- I N49 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


46,397.00 ( 027667)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 049- I N49 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


600.00 ( 007694)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 057- 5730 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,128.00 ( 027668)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 057- I N57 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,845.00 ( 007695)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 420- I NMG DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


50.00 ( 007696)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 430- 3060 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


158,398.00 ( 017217)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


29.00 ( 007698)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 624- 6786 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,884.00 ( 007715)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2110- 4300- 600- 6785 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTIONAL S


745.00 ( 007718)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2110- 5200- 055- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTIONAL S


6,461.00 ( 007721)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2130- 4300- 600- 6767 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CURRICULUM DEVE


550.00 ( 007743)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 033- 0009 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


6,988.00 ( 007751)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 038- I N38 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


301.00 ( 007754)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 530- 0067 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


933.00 ( 007756)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 921- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,206.00 ( 007757)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 923- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,165.00 ( 007758)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 924- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,784.00 ( 007759)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 927- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,839.00 ( 007761)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 932- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


807.00 ( 007762)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 933- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


708.00 ( 007763)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 934- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,403.00 ( 007764)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 935- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


865.00 ( 007765)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 938- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,415.00 ( 007778)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


150.00 ( 007788)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


426.00 ( 007790)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 034- 3405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


1,384.00 ( 007791)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


667.00 ( 007794)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 624- 6768 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


5,000.00 ( 007795)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 631- 6768 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 13 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


37/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
29.00 ( 007809)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5800- 624- 6786 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN


715.00 ( 007810)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 5800- 630- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN


7,873.00 ( 007833)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3120- 5800- 600- 6769 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PSYCHOLOGICAL S


46,859.00 ( 025569)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3130- 5800- 600- 6787 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,ATTENDANCE & SO


136,152.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


13,738.00 ( 007862)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3160- 4300- 520- 0064 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S


12,059.00 ( 007864)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3160- 4300- 530- 0064 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S


3,713.00 ( 007876)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3600- 4300- 948- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TRANSPORT


2,723.00 ( 026160)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3700- 4300- 046- FI RE CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FOOD SERVICES


38.00 ( 007882)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7150- 4300- 053- 5405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SUPERINTENDENT


363.00 ( 007883)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7150- 5200- 053- 5303 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,SUPERINTENDENT


15,972.00 ( 007885)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7200- 5900- 899- 0017 CROTHER RESTRICTE,COMMUNICATIONS,OTHER GENERAL A


8,858.00 ( 007893)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


2,005.00 ( 007895)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 5200- 058- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,FISCAL SERVICES


9,906.00 ( 021817)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 5800- 058- DI ST CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,FISCAL SERVICES


38.00 ( 007897)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 047- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


87,893.00 ( 007899)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 054- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


5.00 ( 007900)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 054- 5404 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


2,540.00 ( 007902)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 5200- 047- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


4,414.00 ( 007903)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 5200- 054- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


5,300.00 ( 007904)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7500- 4300- 949- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CENTRAL SUPPORT


1,620.00 ( 007907)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 056- 0056 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


481,268.00 ( 021818)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


13,876.00 ( 021819)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0557 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


19,553.00 ( 021820)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0558 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


72,058.00 ( 011460)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 899- 0999 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


5,875.00 ( 007909)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 5200- 056- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,ALL OTHER GENER


567.00 ( 007914)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 4300- 057- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CENTRALIZED DAT


5,542.00 ( 015895)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 4300- 057- CSI S CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CENTRALIZED DAT


2,128.00 ( 023125)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 4300- 057- I N57 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CENTRALIZED DAT


600.00 ( 007915)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 4400- 057- 5730 CROTHER RESTRICTE,NON-CAPITALIZED,CENTRALIZED DAT


4,140.00 ( 007916)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 5200- 057- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,CENTRALIZED DAT


7,733.00 ( 007917)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 5800- 057- 5720 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,CENTRALIZED DAT


14,980.00 ( 007919)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 5800- 857- 5725 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,CENTRALIZED DAT


6,398.00 ( 007923)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 6230 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


122,222.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


46,397.00 ( 007927)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- I N49 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 14 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


38/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
6,027.00 ( 007930)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5200- 049- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,MAINTENANCE


2,476.00 ( 025802)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 024- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


123,868.00 ( 007933)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- I N49 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


8,688.00 ( 016897)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 034- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE


22,528.00 ( 026161)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 049- FI RE CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS


873.00 ( 022102)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 4400- 021- 0051 CROTHER RESTRICTE,NON-CAPITALIZED,OPERATIONS


9,150.00 ( 026163)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 5513- 899- FI RE CROTHER RESTRICTE,ELECTRIC,OPERATIONS


27,450.00 ( 026162)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 5514- 899- FI RE CROTHER RESTRICTE,WATER SERVICE,OPERATIONS


3,124.00 ( 007981)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8300- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SECURITY


6,290.00 ( 008084)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 033- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 008087)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 032- 4041 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


65.00 ( 008089)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 432- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


664.00 ( 008094)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


60.00 ( 008095)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,397.00 ( 018375)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


114.00 ( 008096)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 4041 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,587.00 ( 008097)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 5110 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


270.00 ( 008098)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


39,658.00 ( 008099)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- I N21 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


33.00 ( 008101)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,550.00 ( 021730)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- I N23 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


125.00 ( 008102)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 4041 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


548.00 ( 008104)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- I N24 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


252.00 ( 008105)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 025- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,201.00 ( 008106)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 2732 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 008107)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


12.00 ( 008108)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


700.00 ( 018321)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0051 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


437.00 ( 008109)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0065 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


106.00 ( 008110)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0083 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,341.00 ( 008111)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


566.00 ( 008112)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


608.00 ( 008113)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- I N31 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,439.00 ( 008116)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


24.00 ( 008117)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,103.00 ( 013553)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3281 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


26,705.00 ( 008118)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- I N32 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 15 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


39/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
199.00 ( 008119)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,504.00 ( 008120)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,164.00 ( 008122)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3350 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


31,283.00 ( 008124)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- I N33 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


35.00 ( 008126)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3458 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,800.00 ( 022743)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- I N34 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


35.00 ( 008128)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0048 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 008129)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,176.00 ( 008132)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- I N35 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


945.00 ( 008134)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 230- I N30 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,788.00 ( 020520)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 420- 4030 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 008135)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 430- 3060 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


42.00 ( 008137)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 500- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10.00 ( 008138)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 530- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,959.00 ( 008140)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0069 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,648.00 ( 008141)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 534- 0069 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


43.00 ( 008142)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 535- 0069 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


985.00 ( 008145)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 621- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


672.00 ( 008147)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 623- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,986.00 ( 008148)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 624- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


571.00 ( 008150)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 627- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,508.00 ( 008152)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 631- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


12,441.00 ( 008154)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 633- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,083.00 ( 008156)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 635- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


263.00 ( 017795)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 024- 5110 CROTHER RESTRICTE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


10,580.00 ( 008160)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0071 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


4,587.00 ( 008161)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 855- 0070 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


5,200.00 ( 008198)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 899- 0019 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


9.00 ( 008206)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


59.00 ( 008207)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


115.00 ( 008210)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 431- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


602.00 ( 008216)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 027- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


1,227.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


568.00 ( 008220)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


143.00 ( 008221)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


119.00 ( 008222)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 421- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


253.00 ( 008225)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 434- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 16 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


40/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
387.00 ( 008226)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 435- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


662.00 ( 022315)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2700- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


626.00 ( 008239)  01- 9010- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


202.00 ( 008240)  01- 9010- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


152.00 ( 008241)  01- 9010- 0- 1130- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,915.00 ( 008242)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 031- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,663.00 ( 008243)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,585.00 ( 008245)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,815.00 ( 008246)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


158.00 ( 008247)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


20.00 ( 008250)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 5800- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


138.00 ( 008254)  01- 9010- 0- 1141- 1000- 4300- 033- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


112.00 ( 008255)  01- 9010- 0- 1141- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


315.00 ( 008286)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


49,014.00 ( 008288)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


221.00 ( 011877)  01- 9010- 0- 1160- 1000- 4200- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


155.00 ( 008293)  01- 9010- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


822.00 ( 008294)  01- 9010- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


408.00 ( 008298)  01- 9010- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,151.00 ( 008299)  01- 9010- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


168.00 ( 008303)  01- 9010- 0- 1190- 1000- 4200- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


110.00 ( 008306)  01- 9010- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 033- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,024.00 ( 008307)  01- 9010- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,494.00 ( 008308)  01- 9010- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,971.00 ( 008313)  01- 9010- 0- 1195- 3160- 5800- 420- 0059 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


5,409.00 ( 008314)  01- 9010- 0- 1195- 3160- 5800- 430- 0059 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


20.00 ( 018973)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4200- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


395.00 ( 008315)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4200- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


2,350.00 ( 008317)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,795.00 ( 008318)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


9.00 ( 008319)  01- 9010- 0- 1230- 1000- 4400- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


299.00 ( 008333)  01- 9010- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


35.00 ( 008336)  01- 9010- 0- 1270- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


22.00 ( 008342)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 2700- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


283.00 ( 008343)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S


500.00 ( 008344)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 4300- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S


608.00 ( 008345)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 4300- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 17 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


41/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
7,354.00 ( 008349)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


8,891.00 ( 008350)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


78.00 ( 008351)  01- 9010- 0- 1362- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


16.00 ( 008352)  01- 9010- 0- 1363- 1000- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


803.00 ( 008354)  01- 9010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 531- 0016 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


491.00 ( 008355)  01- 9010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 532- 0016 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


583.00 ( 008356)  01- 9010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 533- 0016 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,127.00 ( 008357)  01- 9010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 534- 0016 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


952.00 ( 008358)  01- 9010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 535- 0016 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


36.00 ( 008362)  01- 9010- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 032- 0002 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


11,350.00 ( 008363)  01- 9010- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 033- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


23.00 ( 008365)  01- 9010- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 036- 3603 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,116.00 ( 008372)  01- 9010- 0- 1450- 1000- 4300- 035- 3560 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,656.00 ( 008373)  01- 9010- 0- 1510- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


406.00 ( 008374)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,568.00 ( 008375)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


12.00 ( 008376)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


197.00 ( 008377)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 034- 3490 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,117.00 ( 008379)  01- 9010- 0- 1533- 1000- 4300- 035- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


25.00 ( 008381)  01- 9010- 0- 1565- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10.00 ( 008387)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


120,164.00 ( 008388)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,519.00 ( 008389)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 3804 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


216.00 ( 013616)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 008394)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 2420- 4200- 025- 4041 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


5.00 ( 008395)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 2420- 4200- 438- 4040 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


342.00 ( 018353)  01- 9010- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 036- 0051 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 008412)  01- 9010- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 036- 3604 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


62.00 ( 008413)  01- 9010- 0- 3300- 2700- 4300- 037- 3710 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


140.00 ( 008433)  01- 9010- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 035- 3500 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


1,845.00 ( 008436)  01- 9010- 0- 7110- 1000- 4399- 420- I NMG CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


58.00 ( 008445)  01- 9015- 0- 5760- 0000- 8999- 230- 0000 DRSPECIAL ED/WORK,CARRYOVER/CASH


58.00 ( 008446)  01- 9015- 0- 5760- 3110- 4300- 230- 0000 CRSPECIAL ED/WORK,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


3,035.00 ( 015898)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 020- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


50,539.00 ( 008530)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 021- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


43,687.00 ( 008531)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 023- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


21,610.00 ( 008532)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 024- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 18 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


42/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
28,097.00 ( 008533)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 025- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


61,646.00 ( 008534)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 027- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


57,741.00 ( 008535)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 031- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


24,598.00 ( 008536)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 032- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


79,736.00 ( 008537)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 033- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


69,736.00 ( 008538)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 034- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


4,083.00 ( 008539)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 035- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,607.00 ( 008540)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 036- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,129.00 ( 008541)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 037- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


259.00 ( 008542)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 038- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


683.00 ( 008543)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 039- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


300.00 ( 027637)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 049- 0051 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,426.00 ( 008544)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 053- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


77.00 ( 008545)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 054- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


610.00 ( 008546)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 057- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


25.00 ( 016055)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 233- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,069.00 ( 008547)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 500- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


3,071.00 ( 008552)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 600- 0000 DRDONATIONS,CARRYOVER/CASH


72.00 ( 008615)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 033- 3314 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


842.00 ( 008617)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 034- 3452 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,129.00 ( 008621)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 037- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,000.00 ( 008637)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3130- 4300- 600- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,ATTENDANCE & SO


571.00 ( 008641)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


1,426.00 ( 008648)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 7150- 4300- 053- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SUPERINTENDENT


1,000.00 ( 008649)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 7150- 4300- 053- 5304 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SUPERINTENDENT


77.00 ( 008651)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 054- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


610.00 ( 008652)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 7700- 4400- 057- 0051 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,CENTRALIZED DAT


300.00 ( 022583)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


807.00 ( 015929)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 024- 2401 CRDONATIONS,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


3,035.00 ( 008733)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


13,974.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,112.00 ( 008735)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,402.00 ( 008736)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2101 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,097.00 ( 008739)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2105 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,125.00 ( 008740)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2106 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


446.00 ( 011781)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2109 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


9,981.00 ( 008743)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2110 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 19 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


43/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
6,566.00 ( 008746)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2141 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,623.00 ( 008748)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


24,683.00 ( 008749)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,072.00 ( 008750)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,267.00 ( 008751)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 2337 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


18,920.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,330.00 ( 020638)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


333.00 ( 008754)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 2403 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


30,861.00 ( 008755)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


22,085.00 ( 011163)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,142.00 ( 008756)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 2702 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,757.00 ( 008757)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 2710 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


13,316.00 ( 008759)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,377.00 ( 008760)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3111 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,656.00 ( 008761)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3156 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


9,436.00 ( 008762)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3160 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


459.00 ( 008767)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3167 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,579.00 ( 008768)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


24.00 ( 008769)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3253 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,877.00 ( 008770)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3254 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,506.00 ( 008771)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3263 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


41,646.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,800.00 ( 008773)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3316 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


15,840.00 ( 015935)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3317 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


894.00 ( 008774)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3351 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,612.00 ( 008776)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3385 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


13,915.00 ( 013561)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3401 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,332.00 ( 008777)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3415 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,335.00 ( 008778)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3450 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,040.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


179.00 ( 008780)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3472 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,700.00 ( 008781)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- POOL CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,747.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


271.00 ( 008785)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 3599 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


250.00 ( 017417)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 632- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


250.00 ( 017416)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 634- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


135.00 ( 022822)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 031- 3113 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 20 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


44/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
569.00 ( 008802)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5710- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,XFER OF DIRECT,INSTRUCTION


31.00 ( 008828)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


1,183.00 ( 008831)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 027- 2727 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


1,116.00 ( 008832)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 031- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


172.00 ( 008833)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


2,082.00 ( 008834)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


104.00 ( 008835)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 034- 3415 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


2,698.00 ( 013563)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,535.00 ( 008880)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


300.00 ( 008881)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


44.00 ( 008882)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


175.00 ( 025156)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3476 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,298.00 ( 008883)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3480 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,514.00 ( 008884)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3482 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,852.00 ( 008885)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3483 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


206.00 ( 017867)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,405.00 ( 008886)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4400- 034- 3482 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


146.00 ( 008903)  01- 9016- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,000.00 ( 008914)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 024- 0201 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


55.00 ( 008915)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 027- 2706 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


695.00 ( 008916)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 031- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,427.00 ( 013569)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 032- 3280 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


26.00 ( 008921)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,140.00 ( 008923)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 034- 3460 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 008925)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 034- 3489 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


836.00 ( 008930)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 021- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 008937)  01- 9016- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


373.00 ( 008938)  01- 9016- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 034- 3471 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,005.00 ( 008943)  01- 9016- 0- 1170- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


398.00 ( 008944)  01- 9016- 0- 1170- 1000- 4300- 034- 3481 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


51.00 ( 008945)  01- 9016- 0- 1170- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 016860)  01- 9016- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 031- 3112 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,079.00 ( 008964)  01- 9016- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


122.00 ( 008968)  01- 9016- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 034- 3488 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 023149)  01- 9016- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,315.00 ( 023770)  01- 9016- 0- 1180- 1000- 4400- 034- 3415 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


2,090.00 ( 008970)  01- 9016- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 21 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


45/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
25.00 ( 008972)  01- 9016- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


127.00 ( 008973)  01- 9016- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 034- 3455 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


80.00 ( 008978)  01- 9016- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,009.00 ( 008983)  01- 9016- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,112.00 ( 008984)  01- 9016- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


328.00 ( 008987)  01- 9016- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 034- 3468 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


112.00 ( 012429)  01- 9016- 0- 1230- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


100.00 ( 025783)  01- 9016- 0- 1230- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,565.00 ( 017761)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 035- 3551 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,780.00 ( 016506)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 2130- 024- 2402 DRDONATIONS,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


4,145.00 ( 013478)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 032- 3210 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,891.00 ( 009035)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 032- 3266 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


280.00 ( 009036)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


423.00 ( 009038)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3435 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


170.00 ( 009041)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 530- 0072 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,175.00 ( 009053)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 5800- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


100.00 ( 009086)  01- 9016- 0- 1270- 1000- 4300- 034- 3410 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


55.00 ( 009089)  01- 9016- 0- 1270- 1000- 5800- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 009090)  01- 9016- 0- 1270- 4100- 5800- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


126.00 ( 009094)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


541.00 ( 009095)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


53.00 ( 009096)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 500- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,650.00 ( 013575)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 533- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


113.00 ( 009097)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 534- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3.00 ( 025785)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 535- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


80.00 ( 009101)  01- 9016- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 535- 0051 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


131.00 ( 009102)  01- 9016- 0- 1380- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


49.00 ( 016172)  01- 9016- 0- 1380- 4100- 4300- 032- 3211 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


2,587.00 ( 012424)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 1000- 5800- 033- 3410 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


5,750.00 ( 012425)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 1000- 5800- 034- 3410 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


325.00 ( 009113)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 023- 2303 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


79.00 ( 009115)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,127.00 ( 009117)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,443.00 ( 018748)  01- 9016- 0- 1400- 4200- 5710- 035- 3410 CRDONATIONS,XFER OF DIRECT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


18,501.00 ( 009124)  01- 9016- 0- 1450- 1000- 4300- 031- 3110 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,267.00 ( 009126)  01- 9016- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


256.00 ( 009127)  01- 9016- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 22 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


46/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST(continued)
1,210.00 ( 009128)  01- 9016- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 034- 3470 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


250.00 ( 026914)  01- 9016- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,231.00 ( 009129)  01- 9016- 0- 1531- 1000- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,365.00 ( 009130)  01- 9016- 0- 1531- 1000- 4300- 034- 3476 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


120.00 ( 009133)  01- 9016- 0- 1532- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,717.00 ( 009161)  01- 9016- 0- 1540- 1000- 4300- 023- 2338 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


865.00 ( 009162)  01- 9016- 0- 1540- 1000- 4300- 027- 2701 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3.00 ( 009177)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 025- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


251.00 ( 009178)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 025- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


27,843.00 ( 009179)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 025- 2561 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


79.00 ( 009180)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


180.00 ( 009181)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 3803 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,107.00 ( 009190)  01- 9016- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 036- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


118.00 ( 009204)  01- 9016- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 039- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


565.00 ( 009206)  01- 9016- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 039- 3961 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 009208)  01- 9016- 0- 3800- 1000- 4300- 033- 9093 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 009209)  01- 9016- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


1,202.00 ( 009210)  01- 9016- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 033- 3313 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


200.00 ( 018454)  01- 9016- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


25.00 ( 011128)  01- 9016- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 233- SAI L CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


550.00 ( 009218)  01- 9016- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,500.00 ( 009219)  01- 9016- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 036- 3611 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY


1,822.00 ( 021821)  01- 9051- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 000- 0000 DRASB FUNDS,CARRYOVER/CASH


343.00 ( 027642)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 031- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


226.00 ( 021806)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,253.00 ( 021807)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 035- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


8,504,667.00 9,345.00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00207 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER
229,289.00 ( 006118)  01- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 520- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,STATE LOTTERY R


229,289.00 ( 006131)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 520- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


150,272.00 ( 006119)  01- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 530- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,STATE LOTTERY R


150,272.00 ( 006136)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 530- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


5,117.00 ( 011910)  01- 7311- 0- 0000- 7410- 4300- 920- 0000 CRClass PD BG,MATERIALS & SUP,STAFF DEVELOPME


5,117.00 ( 011634)  01- 7311- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 920- 0000 DRClass PD BG,ALL OTHER STATE


15,601.00 ( 011599)  01- 7311- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 930- 0000 DRClass PD BG,ALL OTHER STATE


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 23 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


47/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00207 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER(continued)
15,601.00 ( 011832)  01- 7311- 0- 0000- 7410- 4300- 930- 0000 CRClass PD BG,MATERIALS & SUP,STAFF DEVELOPME


193,249.00 ( 024581)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


193,249.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


902,315.00 ( 024580)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


902,315.00 ( 024583)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


119,571.00 ( 024588)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,ALL OTHER STATE


119,571.00 ( 027683)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


298,425.00 ( 024590)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,ALL OTHER STATE


298,425.00 ( 027684)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


3,827,678.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00208 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REVERSE ADVANCE CARRYOVER
30,000.00 ( 024158)  01- 6388- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRStrong Workforc,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


30,000.00 ( 014737)  01- 6388- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 030- 0000 CRStrong Workforc,ALL OTHER STATE


4,000.00 ( 017217)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


4,000.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


50,000.00 ( 025308)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50,000.00 ( 024581)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


50,000.00 ( 025307)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50,000.00 ( 024580)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


.00 268,000.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00209 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment KT-CFP PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS
4,695.00 ( 027205)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


5,590.00 ( 015671)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 835- 0809 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


895.00 ( 027205)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


5,590.00 5,590.00 


JE # BR22-00210 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 32833 RENDON/32839 MURRAY ELD TASK F
877.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


720.00 ( 024346)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1160- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:STI,INSTRUCTION


122.00 ( 024337)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


11.00 ( 024342)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


9.00 ( 024344)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 024345)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 24 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


48/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


877.00 877.00 


JE # BR22-00211 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR RES 7425
723,830.00 ( 025530)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,739,399.00 ( 025532)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


.00 2,463,229.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00212 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR 7426
109,248.00 ( 025723)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8990- 820- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,CONTRI FR:RESTR


129,993.00 ( 025533)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


.00 239,241.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00213 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REVERSE ADAVANCE CARRYOVER
40,000.00 ( 007937)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE


35,000.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


.00 75,000.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00214 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR 3212
75,332.00 ( 023569)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 820- 0000 CRESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


81,044.00 ( 023571)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 830- 0000 CRESSER II,ALL OTHER FEDER


.00 156,376.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00215 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR RES 6388 & 6387
264,045.00 ( 006224)  01- 6387- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 030- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,ALL OTHER STATE


25,000.00 ( 014737)  01- 6388- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 030- 0000 CRStrong Workforc,ALL OTHER STATE


.00 289,045.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00216 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR RS 3182
79,618.00 ( 025366)  01- 3182- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 530- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),ALL OTHER FEDER


.00 79,618.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00217 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-INSTRUMENT REPAIR


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 25 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


49/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00217 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-INSTRUMENT REPAIR(continued)
335.00 ( 009052)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 5800- 034- 3435 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


335.00 ( 009038)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3435 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


335.00 335.00 


JE # BR22-00218 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-CDWG
1,800.00 ( 027686)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 034- I N34 CROTHER RESTRICTE,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


1,800.00 ( 022743)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- I N34 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,040.00 ( 027687)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


2,040.00 ( 007778)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,840.00 3,840.00 


JE # BR22-00219 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment GM-WALKIE TALKIE RADIOS
1,100.00 ( 007751)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 038- I N38 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 ( 027690)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 038- I N38 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 1,100.00 


JE # BR22-00221 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment AR- EMP REIMB
110.00 ( 011912)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 5200- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


110.00 ( 023618)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 530- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


110.00 110.00 


JE # BR22-00222 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-EDGENUITY PO
26,400.00 ( 027694)  01- 3215- 0- 3300- 1000- 5800- 539- 0000 CRGEER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


26,400.00 ( 020661)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


26,400.00 26,400.00 


JE # BR22-00223 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES SUMMER SCHOOL
1,385.00 ( 025335)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 3700- 3202- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,FOOD SERVICES


284.00 ( 025336)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 3700- 3312- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


67.00 ( 025337)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 3700- 3332- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


92.00 ( 025339)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 3700- 3502- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,FOOD SERVICES


97.00 ( 025340)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 3700- 3602- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,FOOD SERVICES


22,264.00 ( 025045)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 1130- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 26 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


50/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00223 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES SUMMER SCHOOL(continued)
522.00 ( 025846)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 1140- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


18,623.00 ( 025025)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 2130- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


40.00 ( 025026)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3101- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


1,582.00 ( 025029)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3202- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


75.00 ( 025046)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3311- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


783.00 ( 025030)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3312- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


3.00 ( 025047)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3331- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


183.00 ( 025031)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3332- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


216.00 ( 025049)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3501- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


64.00 ( 025033)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3502- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


23.00 ( 025050)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3601- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


242.00 ( 025034)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3602- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,400.00 ( 024993)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 1330- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SUPRVSR AD,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,584.00 ( 025019)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 2430- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST


70.00 ( 024994)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3101- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STRS:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST


691.00 ( 024997)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3202- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


189.00 ( 025020)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3312- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


6.00 ( 024999)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3331- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST


44.00 ( 025021)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3332- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


59.00 ( 025001)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3501- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


15.00 ( 025023)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3502- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


58.00 ( 025024)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3602- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,700.00 ( 027073)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 2230- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS PUPIL SUP,FOOD SERVICES


683.00 ( 027077)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3202- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,FOOD SERVICES


229.00 ( 027078)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3312- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


55.00 ( 027079)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3332- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


18.00 ( 027081)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3502- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,FOOD SERVICES


71.00 ( 027082)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3602- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,FOOD SERVICES


5,396.00 ( 025035)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 2230- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


335.00 ( 025040)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3312- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,OPERATIONS


78.00 ( 025041)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3332- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,OPERATIONS


27.00 ( 025043)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3502- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,OPERATIONS


103.00 ( 025044)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3602- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,OPERATIONS


5,133.00 ( 025790)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 2230- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS PUPIL SUP,SECURITY


818.00 ( 025794)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 3202- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SECURITY


221.00 ( 025795)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 3312- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,SECURITY


52.00 ( 025796)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 3332- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,SECURITY


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 27 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


51/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00223 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES SUMMER SCHOOL(continued)
18.00 ( 025798)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 3502- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SECURITY


68.00 ( 025799)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8300- 3602- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,SECURITY


65,220.00 ( 025307)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


67,443.00 67,443.00 


JE # BR22-00224 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-IREADY FROM SS CARRYOVER
17,162.00 ( 025307)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


17,162.00 ( 025410)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 CRELO GF,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


17,162.00 17,162.00 


JE # BR22-00225 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 LCFF Carryover Correction
214,123.00 ( 003653)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0020 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


429,168.00 ( 003654)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0030 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


516,983.00 ( 000055)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


962,307.00 ( 000058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


516,983.00 ( 017758)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CONTRI FR:UNRES


962,307.00 ( 017759)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CONTRI FR:UNRES


214,123.00 ( 017758)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CONTRI FR:UNRES


429,168.00 ( 017759)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CONTRI FR:UNRES


1,479,290.00 2,765,872.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00226 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES SUMMER SCHOOL
35,444.00 ( 025051)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 1130- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


495.00 ( 025845)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 1140- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


10,666.00 ( 025061)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 2130- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


1,752.00 ( 025052)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3101- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


658.00 ( 025055)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3202- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


433.00 ( 025056)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3311- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


449.00 ( 025062)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3312- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


43.00 ( 025057)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3331- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


105.00 ( 025063)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3332- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


407.00 ( 025059)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3501- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


36.00 ( 025065)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3502- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


107.00 ( 025060)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3601- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


139.00 ( 025066)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 3602- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 28 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


52/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00226 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES SUMMER SCHOOL(continued)
1,200.00 ( 025003)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 1330- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SUPRVSR AD,SCHOOL ADMINIST


6,157.00 ( 025013)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 2430- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST


204.00 ( 025004)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3101- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,STRS:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST


738.00 ( 025007)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3202- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


203.00 ( 025014)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3312- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


17.00 ( 025009)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3331- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST


47.00 ( 025015)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3332- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


23.00 ( 025011)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3501- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


17.00 ( 025017)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3502- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


20.00 ( 025012)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3601- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST


63.00 ( 025018)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 2700- 3602- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,176.00 ( 027083)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 2230- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS PUPIL SUP,FOOD SERVICES


269.00 ( 027087)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3202- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,PERS:CLASSIFIED,FOOD SERVICES


73.00 ( 027088)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3312- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


17.00 ( 027089)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3332- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,FOOD SERVICES


6.00 ( 027091)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3502- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,FOOD SERVICES


22.00 ( 027092)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 3700- 3602- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,FOOD SERVICES


5,655.00 ( 026174)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 2230- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


351.00 ( 026179)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3312- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,OPERATIONS


82.00 ( 026180)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3332- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,OPERATIONS


28.00 ( 026182)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3502- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,OPERATIONS


108.00 ( 026183)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 8200- 3602- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,OPERATIONS


62,546.00 ( 025308)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 505- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


64,878.00 64,878.00 


JE # BR22-00227 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-Remove Adv Carryover
28,995.00 ( 003655)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 420- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


120,324.00 ( 003656)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 430- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 149,319.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00228 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-Adj budget for CIA
5,811.00 ( 003649)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,811.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00229 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment GM-BACK TO 4300


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 29 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


53/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00229 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment GM-BACK TO 4300(continued)
1,100.00 ( 027690)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 038- I N38 DROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 ( 007751)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 038- I N38 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 1,100.00 


JE # BR22-00230 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-Offset correction for advanced C/O
264,045.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


25,000.00 ( 024158)  01- 6388- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRStrong Workforc,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


.00 289,045.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00231 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-Offset Correction for Advance Carryover
79,618.00 ( 024557)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 536- 0000 DRESSA (CSI),MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


.00 79,618.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00232 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-Offset correction for Advance C/O
75,332.00 ( 023586)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


81,044.00 ( 023587)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 156,376.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00233 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Correct 5710 Offset
5,012.00 ( 003976)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 5710- 048- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,XFER OF DIRECT,PUPIL TRANSPORT


.00 5,012.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00234 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR RES 7425
723,830.00 ( 025530)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,739,399.00 ( 025532)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


2,463,229.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00235 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-REMOVE REVENUE FOR 7426
109,248.00 ( 025723)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8990- 820- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,CONTRI FR:RESTR


129,993.00 ( 025533)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 30 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


54/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


239,241.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00236 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-To balance secondary
10.00 ( 025397)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 CRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


10.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00237 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Correct Contributions-SACS Error
302,860.00 ( 000055)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 020- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


938,193.00 ( 000058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


289,571.00 ( 004963)  01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8181- 230- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,SE:ENTITLEMENT


289,571.00 ( 004965)  01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 230- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,CONTRI FR:UNRES


289,571.00 1,530,624.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00238 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Correct Advance Carryover for Res 7422
558,174.00 ( 024586)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRIPI GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,284,843.00 ( 024587)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRIPI GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 1,843,017.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00239 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Reverse Advance Carryover for Res 7425-7426
723,830.00 ( 025530)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,739,399.00 ( 025532)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


723,830.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,739,399.00 ( 024583)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


119,360.00 ( 025531)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


129,993.00 ( 025533)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


119,360.00 ( 027683)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


129,993.00 ( 027684)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


.00 5,425,164.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00240 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES
4,956.00 ( 024133)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


45.00 ( 026112)  01- 4203- 0- 1370- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,001.00 ( 024134)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 31 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


55/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


5,001.00 5,001.00 


JE # BR22-00241 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment BD-ADJUSTING BUDGET TO REVENUE
2,986.00 ( 005517)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2110- 5800- 920- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTIONAL S


1,000.00 ( 005532)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 920- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


5,250.00 ( 005585)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 521- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 005586)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 523- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 005587)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 524- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 005588)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 527- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


4,000.00 ( 025144)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 527- 0044 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 025145)  01- 4035- 0- 3100- 1000- 5200- 525- 0044 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


115.00 ( 018888)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 510- 0020 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


194.00 ( 018890)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 511- 0020 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


17,545.00 ( 005581)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 920- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


17,545.00 17,545.00 


JE # BR22-00242 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment BD-ADJUSTING BUDGET TO REVENUE
32,000.00 ( 005518)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2110- 5800- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTIONAL S


3,000.00 ( 005533)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,000.00 ( 025146)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 534- 0044 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 ( 025147)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 535- 0044 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


41,000.00 ( 005582)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 930- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


41,000.00 41,000.00 


JE # BR22-00243 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment FL-CFP-YEARBOOKS
5,915.00 ( 008746)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2141 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,915.00 ( 027708)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2700- 5800- 021- 2141 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


5,915.00 5,915.00 


JE # BR22-00244 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment LO- INSTRUMNET REPAIRS
1,000.00 ( 022063)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 031- 0807 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 ( 022065)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 5600- 031- 0807 CRMeasure U,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 1,000.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 32 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


56/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00245 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment AR-EDGENUITY PO CHANGE ORDER
3,000.00 ( 016370)  01- 0000- 0- 1150- 1000- 4100- 530- c mp1 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 ( 017106)  01- 0000- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 530- c mp1 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 3,000.00 


JE # BR22-00246 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment JL-For OT Assessments
1,743.00 ( 006979)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


1,743.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


1,743.00 1,743.00 


JE # BR22-00247 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment BD-CAHSSP EWRS - STATUTORY BENEFITS
732.00 ( 026711)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRESSER III,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


45.00 ( 026715)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 530- 0000 CRESSER III,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


81.00 ( 026716)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRESSER III,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


56.00 ( 026718)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRESSER III,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


111.00 ( 026719)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRESSER III,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,025.00 ( 026710)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 DRESSER III,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,025.00 1,025.00 


JE # BR22-00248 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment BD-PLC IB ENGLISH EWRS
792.00 ( 024394)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 1130- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,IN-HOUSE INSTR


134.00 ( 024395)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3101- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


11.00 ( 024400)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3331- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


10.00 ( 024402)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3501- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,IN-HOUSE INSTR


16.00 ( 024403)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3601- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,IN-HOUSE INSTR


963.00 ( 024404)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


963.00 963.00 


JE # BR22-00252 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment EB-RAZ-KIDS LICENSE
205.00 ( 003639)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


205.00 ( 003676)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 023- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


205.00 205.00 


JE # BR22-00253 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment LO-REPAIR


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 33 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


57/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00253 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment LO-REPAIR(continued)
50.00 ( 022063)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 031- 0807 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


50.00 ( 022065)  01- 0808- 0- 1270- 4100- 5600- 031- 0807 CRMeasure U,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


50.00 50.00 


JE # BR22-00254 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BD-EWR 34217 TUCKER
2,160.00 ( 027711)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 2130- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


495.00 ( 027715)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3202- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


134.00 ( 027716)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3312- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


32.00 ( 027717)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3332- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


27.00 ( 027719)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3502- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


44.00 ( 027720)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3602- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


2,892.00 ( 022089)  01- 0809- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 038- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,892.00 2,892.00 


JE # BR22-00255 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-BV EWR 34436 PAVLAK, J ASES
3,313.00 ( 027745)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


759.00 ( 024059)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


206.00 ( 024060)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


49.00 ( 024061)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


41.00 ( 024063)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


67.00 ( 024064)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


4,435.00 ( 024065)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,435.00 4,435.00 


JE # BR22-00256 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-BV EWR 34439, 34440,34441 RTI ASSESSMT.
5,355.00 ( 003425)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


332.00 ( 003493)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


78.00 ( 003527)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


66.00 ( 003576)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


108.00 ( 003611)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


5,939.00 ( 003638)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,939.00 5,939.00 


JE # BR22-00257 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-EWR 34438 MARIZETTE, G 9/8/21-10/15/22


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 34 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


58/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00257 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-EWR 34438 MARIZETTE, G 9/8/21-10/15/22(continued)
2,477.00 ( 027746)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 2430- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST


568.00 ( 027750)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3202- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


154.00 ( 027751)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3312- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


36.00 ( 027752)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3332- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


31.00 ( 027754)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


50.00 ( 027755)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3602- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,316.00 ( 003638)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,316.00 3,316.00 


JE # BR22-00258 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment PS-HUDL
1,799.00 ( 022077)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 033- 0807 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,799.00 ( 022075)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 033- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,799.00 1,799.00 


JE # BR22-00259 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment AN-ALPHAGRAPHIS TARDIES
500.00 ( 001932)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 000602)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 032- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 500.00 


JE # BR22-00260 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment BD- ADDITIONAL CUSTODIAL FUNDS
1,000.00 ( 001458)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 838- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS


1,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00261 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment JL-For NFHS Network due to COVID
4,000.00 ( 027759)  01- 3210- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 833- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,000.00 ( 027760)  01- 3210- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 834- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,000.00 ( 027761)  01- 3210- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 835- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


12,000.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


12,000.00 12,000.00 


JE # BR22-00262 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment JL-For Increased hrs to deal with COVID cases/testing
656.00 ( 027213)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 821- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


656.00 ( 027223)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 823- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 35 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


59/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00262 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment JL-For Increased hrs to deal with COVID cases/testing(continued)
656.00 ( 027233)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 824- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


656.00 ( 027243)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 827- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


266.00 ( 021261)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 820- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


2,358.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


975.00 ( 027253)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 831- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


975.00 ( 027263)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 832- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


975.00 ( 027273)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 833- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


975.00 ( 027283)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 834- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


975.00 ( 027293)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 835- 0000 CRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


494.00 ( 021262)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


4,381.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


7,499.00 7,499.00 


JE # BR22-00263 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment LS-BV BOILER PROJECT
24,957.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


24,957.00 ( 027798)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 6500- 021- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,EQUIPMENT REPLA,MAINTENANCE


24,957.00 24,957.00 


JE # BR22-00264 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment BL-DU81546
3,211.00 ( 027796)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0999 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


7,478.00 ( 027795)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0557 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


500.00 ( 027811)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0554 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


500.00 ( 027810)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8650- 058- 0554 DROTHER RESTRICTE,LEASES & RENTAL


11,689.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00265 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment BL-DU81546
15.00 ( 008651)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 054- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


15.00 ( 008527)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 054- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


31,084.00 ( 027705)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 021- I N21 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


31,084.00 ( 007567)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- I N21 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


18,143.00 ( 027705)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 021- I N21 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


18,143.00 ( 007567)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- I N21 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,192.00 ( 008767)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3167 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,192.00 ( 008485)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 031- 3167 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


294.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 36 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


60/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00265 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment BL-DU81546(continued)
294.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


510.00 ( 008350)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


510.00 ( 007588)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


24,000.00 ( 009179)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 025- 2561 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


24,000.00 ( 008473)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 025- 2561 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


600.00 ( 009206)  01- 9016- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 039- 3961 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


600.00 ( 008525)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 039- 3961 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


5.00 ( 009180)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 008522)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 038- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,143.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,143.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


140.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


140.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


30.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


30.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,400.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,400.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,744.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,744.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


752.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


752.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


360.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,340.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


150.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,095.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


600.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


480.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


630.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


180.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


5,835.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


94.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


94.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


150.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


600.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


320.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,070.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


188.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 37 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


61/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00265 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment BL-DU81546(continued)
564.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


752.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


177,606.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00266 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment JL-Add Budget for ABA Cleaning
52,196.00 ( 023901)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 8200- 5800- 820- 0000 CRESSER II,PROF/CONSULT SE,OPERATIONS


8,394.00 ( 025916)  01- 3213- 0- 0000- 8200- 5800- 820- 0000 CRESSER III,PROF/CONSULT SE,OPERATIONS


34,823.00 ( 025918)  01- 3213- 0- 0000- 8200- 5800- 830- 0000 CRESSER III,PROF/CONSULT SE,OPERATIONS


52,196.00 ( 023586)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


8,394.00 ( 025934)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


34,823.00 ( 025935)  01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRESSER III,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


95,413.00 95,413.00 


JE # BR22-00267 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment LO-ONLINE SUBSCRIPTION
500.00 ( 008760)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3111 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 027856)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 031- 3111 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BR22-00268 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment KT-LEARNING A-Z LICENSES
1,900.00 ( 006172)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 535- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 ( 006152)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 1,900.00 


JE # BR22-00269 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment BD-EWR#33310 TORRES
732.00 ( 027814)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7700- 2490- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,CLASS CLERICAL,CENTRALIZED DAT


46.00 ( 027819)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7700- 3312- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,FICA:CLASS,CENTRALIZED DAT


11.00 ( 027820)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7700- 3332- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CLASS,CENTRALIZED DAT


9.00 ( 027822)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7700- 3502- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,CENTRALIZED DAT


15.00 ( 027823)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7700- 3602- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,CENTRALIZED DAT


813.00 ( 025423)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 DRESSER II,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


813.00 813.00 


JE # BR22-00270 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment BL-WL EWR 33860 DELGADO COVER STAT BEN


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 38 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


62/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00270 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment BL-WL EWR 33860 DELGADO COVER STAT BEN(continued)
125.00 ( 027243)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 2230- 827- 0000 DRESSER,CLASS PUPIL SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


83.00 ( 027247)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 3202- 827- 0000 CRESSER,PERS:CLASSIFIED,HEALTH SERVICES


23.00 ( 027248)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 3312- 827- 0000 CRESSER,FICA:CLASS,HEALTH SERVICES


6.00 ( 027249)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 3332- 827- 0000 CRESSER,MEDICARE:CLASS,HEALTH SERVICES


5.00 ( 027251)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 3502- 827- 0000 CRESSER,STATE UNEMPLOYM,HEALTH SERVICES


8.00 ( 027252)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 3602- 827- 0000 CRESSER,WORKERS' COMP:C,HEALTH SERVICES


125.00 125.00 


JE # BR22-00271 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-TPT
7,500.00 ( 003680)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 033- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


7,500.00 ( 003646)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,500.00 7,500.00 


JE # BR22-00272 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-TPT
7,500.00 ( 003681)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 034- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


7,500.00 ( 003647)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,500.00 7,500.00 


JE # BR22-00273 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-DEMOS SW PROGRAM
4,780.00 ( 003681)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 034- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


4,780.00 ( 003647)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


4,780.00 4,780.00 


JE # BR22-00275 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-LIBRARY POSTERS/PRINTING
200.00 ( 008838)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 5800- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTR LIBRARY,


200.00 ( 008834)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


200.00 200.00 


JE # BR22-00276 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BD-EWR 34715 FLIESLER
16,724.00 ( 026916)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 1230- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,CERT PUPIL SUPP,HEALTH SERVICES


1,556.00 ( 026917)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 3101- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,STRS:CERT,HEALTH SERVICES


165.00 ( 026922)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 3331- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MEDICARE:CERT,HEALTH SERVICES


106.00 ( 026924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 3501- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,HEALTH SERVICES


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 39 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


63/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00276 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BD-EWR 34715 FLIESLER(continued)
225.00 ( 026925)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 3601- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,WORKERS' COMP:C,HEALTH SERVICES


18,776.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


18,776.00 18,776.00 


JE # BR22-00277 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BD-AVID STIPENDS
2,735.00 ( 025134)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


2,248.00 ( 027800)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 1160- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:STI,INSTRUCTION


381.00 ( 027801)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


33.00 ( 027806)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


28.00 ( 027808)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


45.00 ( 027809)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


2,735.00 2,735.00 


JE # BR22-00278 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-MH iReady EWR 34482/85/86/88/89/90/91
309.00 ( 003645)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


252.00 ( 003376)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


43.00 ( 003449)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 003513)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 003562)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 003597)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


309.00 309.00 


JE # BR22-00279 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BD-21.22  TECH COACH STIPENDS
12,105.00 ( 027763)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1160- 530- CMP1 CRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:STI,INSTRUCTION


176.00 ( 027769)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- CMP1 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


149.00 ( 027771)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 530- CMP1 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


244.00 ( 027772)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 530- CMP1 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


12,674.00 ( 016370)  01- 0000- 0- 1150- 1000- 4100- 530- c mp1 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


12,674.00 12,674.00 


JE # BR22-00280 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-D.FRANKS POS 4356 ARTS COORD
5,299.00 ( 008888)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 2200- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PARENT PARTICIP


1,214.00 ( 008890)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 3202- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP


329.00 ( 008891)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 3312- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 40 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


64/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00280 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-D.FRANKS POS 4356 ARTS COORD(continued)
77.00 ( 008892)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 3332- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


27.00 ( 008893)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 3502- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


102.00 ( 008894)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 2495- 3602- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


7,048.00 ( 013563)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 027- 2729 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


7,048.00 7,048.00 


JE # BR22-00281 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-WL EWR 34570 CLEVELAND, ANNE MUSIC ENRICHM
5,738.00 ( 009006)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 2130- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


356.00 ( 009013)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3312- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


84.00 ( 009018)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3332- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


71.00 ( 009023)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3502- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


116.00 ( 009028)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3602- 027- 2729 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


6,365.00 ( 014587)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 027- 2729 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,365.00 6,365.00 


JE # BR22-00282 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-BUSINESS CARDS
500.00 ( 000603)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BR22-00283 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34627 KARLSTRAND, ROBIN ARTS & GARD
1,656.00 ( 023685)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


103.00 ( 023686)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3312- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


25.00 ( 023687)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3332- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


21.00 ( 023689)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3502- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


34.00 ( 023690)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3602- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 ( 025228)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 1,839.00 


JE # BR22-00284 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34648 RODNEY-SHARP,D ARTISTIC MOVM
1,656.00 ( 022939)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


103.00 ( 022944)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 3312- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


25.00 ( 022945)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 3332- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


21.00 ( 022947)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 3502- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 41 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


65/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00284 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34648 RODNEY-SHARP,D ARTISTIC MOVM(continued)
34.00 ( 022948)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 3602- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 ( 025228)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 1,839.00 


JE # BR22-00285 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34653 OUSE, RYAN DRUM LINE ENRICHM
1,656.00 ( 023728)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


103.00 ( 023729)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3312- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


25.00 ( 023730)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3332- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


21.00 ( 023732)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3502- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


34.00 ( 023733)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3602- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 ( 025228)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,839.00 1,839.00 


JE # BR22-00286 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34649 CULVER, J LIFE LAB & COOKING EN
2,484.00 ( 022923)  01- 0808- 0- 1130- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


155.00 ( 022928)  01- 0808- 0- 1130- 1000- 3312- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


37.00 ( 022929)  01- 0808- 0- 1130- 1000- 3332- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


31.00 ( 022931)  01- 0808- 0- 1130- 1000- 3502- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 022932)  01- 0808- 0- 1130- 1000- 3602- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


2,757.00 ( 025228)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,757.00 2,757.00 


JE # BR22-00287 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment JL-Cover Negatives
42,511.00 ( 003953)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 2200- 848- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:HOME,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PUPIL TRANSPORT


724.00 ( 003988)  01- 0724- 0- 5760- 3600- 2200- 848- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:SPECI,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PUPIL TRANSPORT


1.00 ( 003990)  01- 0724- 0- 5760- 3600- 2300- 848- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:SPECI,CLASS:SUPER & A,PUPIL TRANSPORT


35.00 ( 003991)  01- 0724- 0- 5760- 3600- 2400- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:SPECI,CLERICAL/TECH/O,PUPIL TRANSPORT


18,514.00 ( 003965)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3402- 848- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:HOME,HEALTH & WELFAR,PUPIL TRANSPORT


4,675.00 ( 003995)  01- 0724- 0- 5760- 3600- 3402- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:SPECI,HEALTH & WELFAR,PUPIL TRANSPORT


2,531.00 ( 003966)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3502- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUPIL TRANSPORT


58,494.00 ( 003941)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,CONTRI FR:UNRES


1,635.00 ( 003996)  01- 0724- 0- 5760- 3600- 3502- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:SPECI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUPIL TRANSPORT


5,620.00 ( 003987)  01- 0724- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:SPECI,CONTRI FR:UNRES


52,874.00 ( 000058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 030- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 42 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


66/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


120,244.00 67,370.00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00288 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment LS-BSN SPORTS SCHS SOCCER GOAL NET
292.00 ( 016409)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 034- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


292.00 ( 016897)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 034- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE


292.00 292.00 


JE # BR22-00289 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment KT-REPLACEMENT ID CARDS
320.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


320.00 ( 001990)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


320.00 320.00 


JE # BR22-00290 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment KT-COVER NEGATIVES
2,315.00 ( 001990)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


2,315.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,315.00 2,315.00 


JE # BR22-00291 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment KT-REPAIR, NEW TIRES/BATTERIES, RADIO PARTS
500.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


395.00 ( 027491)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5600- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


105.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,100.00 ( 027874)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SECURITY


1,600.00 1,600.00 


JE # BR22-00292 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment KT-REPLACEMENT ID CARDS
320.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


320.00 ( 001990)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


320.00 320.00 


JE # BR22-00293 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment BD-21.22 SAFETY FUNDS TO SITES
1,200.00 ( 007756)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 921- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007757)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 923- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 43 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


67/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00293 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment BD-21.22 SAFETY FUNDS TO SITES(continued)
1,200.00 ( 007758)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 924- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007759)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 927- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007760)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 931- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007761)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 932- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007762)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 933- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007763)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 934- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007764)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 935- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007765)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 938- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,200.00 ( 007904)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7500- 4300- 949- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,CENTRAL SUPPORT


14,400.00 ( 007899)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 054- 0018 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


13,200.00 14,400.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00294 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 34800 VU, LE BAKING/COOKING ENRICHME
1,080.00 ( 023705)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 2130- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


67.00 ( 023710)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3312- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


16.00 ( 023711)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3332- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


14.00 ( 023713)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3502- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


22.00 ( 023714)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3602- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


248.00 ( 023709)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3202- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


1,447.00 ( 020437)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 832- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,447.00 1,447.00 


JE # BR22-00295 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BD-EWR# 32772-BENTLEY
720.00 ( 001602)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


122.00 ( 001675)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


11.00 ( 001762)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


9.00 ( 001823)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 001869)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


877.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


877.00 877.00 


JE # BR22-00296 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment 2020/21 Carryover
9,567.00 ( 025666)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0080 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


9,567.00 ( 027886)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 600- 0080 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 44 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


68/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


19,134.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00297 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BD-EWR 34711 AL RASHID & COVER NEGATIVES
112.00 ( 027835)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 2930- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,OTHER CLASS SAL,CURRICULUM DEVE


7.00 ( 027840)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3312- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,FICA:CLASS,CURRICULUM DEVE


2.00 ( 027841)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3332- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CLASS,CURRICULUM DEVE


2.00 ( 027843)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3502- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,CURRICULUM DEVE


3.00 ( 027844)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3602- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,CURRICULUM DEVE


640.00 ( 025424)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


55.00 ( 025429)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


19.00 ( 025431)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


73.00 ( 025432)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


23.00 ( 026879)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


936.00 ( 025423)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 DRESSER II,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


936.00 936.00 


JE # BR22-00299 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BL-DU81689
300.00 ( 027888)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0559 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


300.00 ( 023768)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8650- 058- 0559 DROTHER RESTRICTE,LEASES & RENTAL


350.00 ( 008740)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2106 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


350.00 ( 008453)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 2106 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


100.00 ( 008748)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


100.00 ( 008459)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


820.00 ( 008283)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


820.00 ( 007561)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 031- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


1,100.00 ( 008241)  01- 9010- 0- 1130- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,100.00 ( 007561)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 031- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


1,000.00 ( 008374)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 007561)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 031- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


2,400.00 ( 008761)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3156 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,400.00 ( 008482)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 031- 3156 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


40.00 ( 008767)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3167 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


40.00 ( 008485)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 031- 3167 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


687.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


687.00 ( 008490)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


8,512.00 ( 017761)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 035- 3551 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 45 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


69/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00299 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BL-DU81689(continued)
8,512.00 ( 017745)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 3551 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


30,618.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00300 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BL-DU81689 9/22/21 GATEWAY SCHOOL CK56537099
48,300.00 ( 027797)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


24,629.00 ( 027797)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 4300- 058- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FISCAL SERVICES


72,929.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00301 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment BL-COMM PRINTERS QUOTE E60107 4300 TO 5800
951.00 ( 007907)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 056- 0056 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


951.00 ( 007910)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 5800- 056- 0056 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,ALL OTHER GENER


951.00 951.00 


JE # BR22-00303 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BD-EWR 34815 & 34813
288.00 ( 001602)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


49.00 ( 001675)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 001762)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 001823)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 001869)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


352.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


352.00 352.00 


JE # BR22-00304 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BD-AVID EWRS
720.00 ( 027868)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


122.00 ( 027801)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


11.00 ( 027806)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


9.00 ( 027808)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 027809)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


877.00 ( 025132)  01- 3010- 0- 1370- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


877.00 877.00 


JE # BR22-00305 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment AR - Lexia English Lic
1,557.00 ( 024107)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 46 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


70/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00305 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment AR - Lexia English Lic(continued)
1,557.00 ( 024104)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,557.00 1,557.00 


JE # BR22-00306 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BD-MOVING FUNDS TO COVER POSITION
91,822.00 ( 025724)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 2495- 1900- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,CERT:OTHER-SALA,PARENT PARTICIP


15,537.00 ( 025725)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 2495- 3101- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,STRS:CERT,PARENT PARTICIP


1,332.00 ( 025730)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 2495- 3331- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,MEDICARE:CERT,PARENT PARTICIP


460.00 ( 025732)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 2495- 3501- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


1,759.00 ( 025733)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 2495- 3601- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


21,490.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


100,000.00 ( 025362)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 1100- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION


16,920.00 ( 024143)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


1,450.00 ( 024148)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


10,800.00 ( 024149)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3401- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION


1,230.00 ( 024150)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 024151)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


132,400.00 132,400.00 


JE # BR22-00307 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BD-CTE ADVISOR COMMITEE EWRS
5,040.00 ( 024142)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


853.00 ( 024143)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


73.00 ( 024148)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


62.00 ( 024150)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


102.00 ( 024151)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


6,130.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,130.00 6,130.00 


JE # BR22-00308 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 33021 WOFFORD, K GIRLS LOCKER RM
2,561.00 ( 023287)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 2230- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,SECURITY


587.00 ( 023291)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 3202- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SECURITY


159.00 ( 023292)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 3312- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,SECURITY


38.00 ( 023293)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 3332- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,SECURITY


32.00 ( 023295)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 3502- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SECURITY


51.00 ( 023296)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 8300- 3602- 031- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,SECURITY


3,428.00 ( 003644)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 47 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


71/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


3,428.00 3,428.00 


JE # BR22-00309 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-BV EWR 30559 MARIZETTE, G CLERICAL THRU YEAR
2,081.00 ( 021771)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 2430- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST


477.00 ( 019260)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3202- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


130.00 ( 019261)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3312- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


31.00 ( 019262)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3332- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST


26.00 ( 019264)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST


42.00 ( 019265)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2700- 3602- 821- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,787.00 ( 003653)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0020 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


2,787.00 2,787.00 


JE # BR22-00310 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 33633 LOPEZ, ARELI PARAED IN KINDER
6,013.00 ( 003427)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


1,377.00 ( 003465)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


373.00 ( 003495)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


88.00 ( 003529)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


74.00 ( 003578)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


121.00 ( 003613)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


8,046.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,046.00 8,046.00 


JE # BR22-00311 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 33449 PARKS, L PBIS CLASS/PARENT
332.00 ( 003142)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2230- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


76.00 ( 003159)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3202- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP


21.00 ( 003172)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


5.00 ( 003186)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


2.00 ( 003210)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3502- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


7.00 ( 003223)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


443.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


443.00 443.00 


JE # BR22-00312 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-DLV EWR 32132 N.LAWRENCE
229.00 ( 024899)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 2230- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,CLASS PUPIL SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


53.00 ( 008574)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3202- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTR LIBRARY,


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 48 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


72/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00312 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-DLV EWR 32132 N.LAWRENCE(continued)
15.00 ( 008577)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3312- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,


4.00 ( 008580)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3332- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,


3.00 ( 008584)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3502- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTR LIBRARY,


5.00 ( 008585)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3602- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTR LIBRARY,


309.00 ( 008749)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0052 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


309.00 309.00 


JE # BR22-00313 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 31131 ZAMORA/33629 MORENO, E
2,799.00 ( 026778)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2230- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


642.00 ( 003165)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3202- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP


174.00 ( 003179)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


41.00 ( 003193)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


35.00 ( 003216)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3502- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


57.00 ( 003230)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


3,748.00 ( 003653)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0020 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


3,748.00 3,748.00 


JE # BR22-00314 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 33613 MALDONADO, ARLETT ASA CLASS
295.00 ( 024087)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


19.00 ( 024082)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 024083)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 024085)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 024086)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


329.00 ( 024088)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


329.00 329.00 


JE # BR22-00315 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BL-NSF CK223 MIDDLE BAY SP 1900275/11232628 USE
1,400.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,400.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


.00 2,800.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00316 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment PS-INSTRUMENT REPAIRS
1,490.00 ( 027924)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 5600- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,490.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 49 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


73/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


1,490.00 1,490.00 


JE # BR22-00317 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment PS-INSTRUMENT REPAIRS
750.00 ( 023726)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 5600- 833- 0809 CRMeasure T,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


750.00 ( 020423)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


750.00 750.00 


JE # BR22-00318 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment BL-EWR31986,31984,31983 DOBKIN, ROTH, YOUNG
7,560.00 ( 013557)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 2430- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,CLASS CLERICAL,INSTRUCTIONAL S


444.00 ( 008567)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3312- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S


104.00 ( 008568)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3332- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S


36.00 ( 008569)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3502- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTIONAL S


138.00 ( 008570)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3602- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTIONAL S


8,282.00 ( 008733)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 020- 1900 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,282.00 8,282.00 


JE # BR22-00319 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment BL-DU81823
486.00 ( 026777)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 2110- 4399- 200- 5640 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTIONAL S


486.00 ( 026775)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 0000- 8699- 200- 5640 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


16,053.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


16,053.00 ( 007617)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


5,865.00 ( 008388)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,865.00 ( 007592)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 038- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,933.00 ( 008750)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,933.00 ( 008463)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 2310 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


50.00 ( 008771)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3263 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 008488)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 3263 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


76.00 ( 008243)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 032- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


76.00 ( 007577)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


35.00 ( 008375)  01- 9010- 0- 1530- 1000- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


35.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


2,235.00 ( 008880)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,235.00 ( 008486)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


955.00 ( 027929)  01- 9016- 0- 1533- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


955.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,463.00 ( 008246)  01- 9010- 0- 1140- 1000- 4300- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 50 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


74/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00319 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment BL-DU81823(continued)
2,463.00 ( 007588)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


210.00 ( 027929)  01- 9016- 0- 1533- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


210.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


120.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


120.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,935.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


1,935.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


94.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


94.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


67,020.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00321 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment JL-For New Electric Bus District Contribution 13%
50,916.00 ( 014522)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 6500- 048- 0000 CRTRANSPORT:HOME,EQUIPMENT REPLA,PUPIL TRANSPORT


50,916.00 ( 003975)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 5600- 048- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,PUPIL TRANSPORT


50,916.00 50,916.00 


JE # BR22-00323 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 34827 ANDERSON, MACE PARAED ACAD 
1,489.00 ( 003427)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


93.00 ( 003495)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


22.00 ( 003529)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


19.00 ( 003578)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


30.00 ( 003613)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,653.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,653.00 1,653.00 


JE # BR22-00324 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 34828 HERNANDEZ/34829 LOPEZ TRANSL 
1,144.00 ( 003142)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2230- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


131.00 ( 003159)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3202- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP


71.00 ( 003172)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


17.00 ( 003186)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


15.00 ( 003210)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3502- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


23.00 ( 003223)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


1,401.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 51 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


75/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


1,401.00 1,401.00 


JE # BR22-00325 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 34830 LOPEZ ASES AFTER SCH
3,793.00 ( 024087)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


869.00 ( 024081)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


236.00 ( 024082)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


55.00 ( 024083)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


47.00 ( 024085)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


77.00 ( 024086)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


5,077.00 ( 024088)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,077.00 5,077.00 


JE # BR22-00326 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AR - IT BorderLan Amendment
15,670.00 ( 001315)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7700- 5900- 857- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,COMMUNICATIONS,CENTRALIZED DAT


15,670.00 ( 001318)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7700- 6400- 857- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,EQUIPMENT,CENTRALIZED DAT


15,670.00 15,670.00 


JE # BR22-00327 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AR - CS for All EMP REIM
28.00 ( 011912)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 5200- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


28.00 ( 008288)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 500- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


28.00 28.00 


JE # BR22-00328 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment GM-BUS FIELDTRIP
1,100.00 ( 003820)  01- 0700- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 025- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,100.00 ( 016179)  01- 0700- 0- 3100- 1000- 5800- 025- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,100.00 1,100.00 


JE # BR22-00329 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment LO-PRINTING SVCS
500.00 ( 001931)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 000601)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 031- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 500.00 


JE # BR22-00330 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AMM-WELCOME BACK BREAKFAST/MTGS


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 52 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


76/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00330 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AMM-WELCOME BACK BREAKFAST/MTGS(continued)
3,000.00 ( 001066)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7110- 5800- 053- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,BOARD


3,000.00 ( 001103)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 4395- 053- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,SUPERINTENDENT


3,000.00 3,000.00 


JE # BR22-00331 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment JL-Increase contractual PD for Mgmt to $1,000 per KM
1,200.00 ( 007895)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7300- 5200- 058- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,FISCAL SERVICES


200.00 ( 007902)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 5200- 047- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


200.00 ( 007903)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7400- 5200- 054- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


200.00 ( 007916)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 5200- 057- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,CENTRALIZED DAT


1,400.00 ( 007930)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5200- 049- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,MAINTENANCE


1,000.00 ( 028048)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3600- 5200- 048- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PUPIL TRANSPORT


1,000.00 ( 028049)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7180- 5200- 053- 0006 CROTHER RESTRICTE,TRAVEL & CONFER,PUBLIC INFORMAT


5,200.00 ( 007627)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 899- 0006 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


11,400.00 ( 000062)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 899- 0006 CRNO REPORTING RE,CONTRI FR:UNRES


10,400.00 11,400.00 Net decrease to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00332 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment BD-R22-01160
4,595.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


4,595.00 ( 025979)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


4,595.00 4,595.00 


JE # BR22-00333 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment KT-NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY MEMBERSHIP
385.00 ( 001990)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


385.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


385.00 385.00 


JE # BR22-00334 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment BL-DU81963
37,137.00 ( 008104)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- I N24 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


37,137.00 ( 020654)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 024- I N24 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,110.00 ( 008124)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- I N33 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,110.00 ( 011873)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- I N33 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


3,402.00 ( 027930)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 821- FLEX CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,402.00 ( 028051)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 821- FLEX DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,871.00 ( 027931)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 824- FLEX CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 53 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


77/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BR22-00334 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment BL-DU81963(continued)
2,871.00 ( 028052)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 824- FLEX DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


30.00 ( 008748)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


30.00 ( 008459)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


10.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


10.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


50.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


50.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


175.00 ( 008884)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 034- 3482 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


175.00 ( 008512)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3482 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


150.00 ( 018454)  01- 9016- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 034- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


150.00 ( 008499)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


40.00 ( 007790)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 034- 3405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


40.00 ( 007586)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3405 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


30.00 ( 008307)  01- 9010- 0- 1190- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


30.00 ( 007564)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 034- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


65.00 ( 008293)  01- 9010- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


65.00 ( 007564)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 034- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


90,140.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BT22-00293 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment PS-TEACHER SUPPLIES
120.00 ( 026984)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


120.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


120.00 120.00 


JE # BT22-00294 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment LO-READING INTERVENTION MATERIALS
2,500.00 ( 006148)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 531- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


2,500.00 ( 006160)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 531- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,500.00 2,500.00 


JE # BT22-00295 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment BD-ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR MUSIC
83.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


83.00 ( 027313)  01- 3210- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


83.00 83.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 54 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


78/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00296 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment AR- LEXIA ENGLISH LICENSES FOR WL
3,000.00 ( 024106)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 ( 024107)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 3,000.00 


JE # BT22-00297 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment JL-For Chromebook Lease payment 3 of 5
170,000.00 ( 027443)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 857- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION


170,000.00 ( 025489)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7700- 5600- 857- 0556 DROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,CENTRALIZED DAT


170,000.00 170,000.00 


JE # BT22-00298 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment GM-HEALTH OFC SUPPLIES
75.00 ( 000578)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 838- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


75.00 ( 000994)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 838- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


75.00 75.00 


JE # BT22-00299 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment GM-HEALTH OFFICE SUPPLIES
15.00 ( 000578)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 838- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


15.00 ( 000994)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 838- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


15.00 15.00 


JE # BT22-00300 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment ED-CSA-GLAD TRAINING CORRECTING FUNCTION
10,800.00 ( 027465)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 2140- 5800- 524- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,IN-HOUSE INSTR


10,800.00 ( 027417)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 524- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


10,800.00 10,800.00 


JE # BT22-00301 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment JL-Teacher Supply Allocations
160.00 ( 006980)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 221- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


160.00 ( 006649)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


757.00 ( 006651)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 221- SAI L DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


757.00 ( 006647)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 200- SAI L CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


917.00 917.00 


JE # BT22-00302 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment KT-LIBRARY SUPPLIES


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 55 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


79/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00302 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment KT-LIBRARY SUPPLIES(continued)
250.00 ( 002142)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


250.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


250.00 250.00 


JE # BT22-00303 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment FL-CSA-RUSSO
10,750.00 ( 027338)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 521- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


10,750.00 ( 005592)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 2140- 5800- 521- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,PROF/CONSULT SE,IN-HOUSE INSTR


10,750.00 10,750.00 


JE # BT22-00304 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment KT-LIBRARY SUPPLIES
35.00 ( 002142)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


35.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


35.00 35.00 


JE # BT22-00305 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment MB-WOODSHOP EXAHAUST DUCT
4,950.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


4,950.00 ( 027480)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 032- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


4,950.00 4,950.00 


JE # BT22-00306 JE Trans Date 09/02/2021 JE Posted 09/02/2021 Comment MB-FOR SHED DISPOSAL
2,020.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


2,020.00 ( 025979)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


2,020.00 2,020.00 


JE # BT22-00307 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment ED-CDW-G PAST DUE INVOICES
425.00 ( 024089)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


425.00 ( 024088)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


425.00 425.00 


JE # BT22-00310 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-SCIENCE KITS
425.00 ( 006151)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 534- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


425.00 ( 006181)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 56 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


80/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


425.00 425.00 


JE # BT22-00311 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-CHOIR MUSIC & BAND
1,500.00 ( 006194)  01- 6300- 0- 1270- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,500.00 ( 006193)  01- 6300- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,000.00 ( 006151)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 534- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


5,000.00 5,000.00 


JE # BT22-00312 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment FC-J.VOLPE TO B40M TEACHER ALLOCATION
40.00 ( 006985)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 232- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


40.00 ( 018516)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 231- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


40.00 40.00 


JE # BT22-00313 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-JEWLERY SUPPLIES CORRECTING BT127372
1,000.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 ( 022318)  01- 0809- 0- 1120- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00314 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment MB-SEWER LINE REPAIR HHS
13,541.00 ( 026060)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


13,541.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


13,541.00 13,541.00 


JE # BT22-00315 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment PS-CORDS
79.00 ( 015719)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


79.00 ( 027490)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 2700- 4300- 833- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


79.00 79.00 


JE # BT22-00316 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-SCIENCE KITS
425.00 ( 006151)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 534- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


425.00 ( 006181)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 57 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


81/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


425.00 425.00 


JE # BT22-00317 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment JB-SUPPLIES
2,500.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,500.00 ( 000568)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,500.00 2,500.00 


JE # BT22-00318 JE Trans Date 09/04/2021 JE Posted 09/04/2021 Comment JL-Add budget for Maria Ballard contract
3,282.00 ( 006676)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 5800- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:OTHER SPEC I


3,282.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


3,282.00 3,282.00 


JE # BT22-00319 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment JB-JEWELRY SUPPLIES
1,000.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 ( 022318)  01- 0809- 0- 1120- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00320 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment KT-OPEN PO AMAZON
500.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00321 JE Trans Date 09/07/2021 JE Posted 09/07/2021 Comment ED-SNACKS
52.00 ( 018319)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


52.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


52.00 52.00 


JE # BT22-00322 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment JL-Move for Datafinch
138.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


138.00 ( 016391)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 5800- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:SEPARATE CLA


138.00 138.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 58 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


82/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00323 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment AN-PHOENIX CERAMICS CROCETTI
2,000.00 ( 006149)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 006161)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 2,000.00 


JE # BT22-00324 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment AN-ELAC REVERSAL
1,000.00 ( 027384)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2495- 4395- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FOOD FOR WORKSH,PARENT PARTICIP


1,000.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00325 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment AN-ELAC MEETING FOOD SAFEWAY
1,000.00 ( 003645)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 027484)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 4395- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FOOD FOR WORKSH,PARENT PARTICIP


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00327 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment AN-STAMPED CLASS SET AMAZON
500.00 ( 006149)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 006161)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00328 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment ST-ARBITERPAY Trust Account
20,000.00 ( 015666)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 830- 0809 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


20,000.00 ( 015671)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


20,000.00 20,000.00 


JE # BT22-00329 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BL-EWR 32833/32839 FROM 1160 TO 1130
720.00 ( 024346)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1160- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:STI,INSTRUCTION


720.00 ( 024336)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


720.00 720.00 


JE # BT22-00330 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 CARRYOVER TO SITES
64,500.00 ( 024321)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 531- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


81,376.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 59 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


83/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00330 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 CARRYOVER TO SITES(continued)
145,501.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


18,375.00 ( 024443)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 536- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,125.00 ( 025138)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


319,877.00 ( 025134)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


40,226.00 ( 024035)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


40,006.00 ( 024260)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


45,062.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


125,294.00 ( 027608)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


445,171.00 445,171.00 


JE # BT22-00331 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-PHOENIX CERAMICS
4,022.00 ( 027689)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4400- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,022.00 ( 022082)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,022.00 4,022.00 


JE # BT22-00332 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-DIGITAL MARKER DOWN
1,088.00 ( 027688)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4100- 4400- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,088.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,088.00 1,088.00 


JE # BT22-00333 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-INSTRUMENT REPAIRS
335.00 ( 009044)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 5600- 034- 3435 CRDONATIONS,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION


335.00 ( 009052)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 5800- 034- 3435 DRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


335.00 335.00 


JE # BT22-00334 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment AN-HEALTH OFFICE SUPPLIES
46.00 ( 001932)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


46.00 ( 002150)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 3140- 4300- 032- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


46.00 46.00 


JE # BT22-00336 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 SUMMER SCHOOL CARRYOVER
130,678.00 ( 025307)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


111,538.00 ( 025308)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 60 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


84/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00336 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment BD-20.21 SUMMER SCHOOL CARRYOVER(continued)
130,678.00 ( 024583)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


111,538.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


242,216.00 242,216.00 


JE # BT22-00337 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment PS-HEALTH OFC SUPPLIES/LIBRARY BOOKS
91.00 ( 000990)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


91.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 008827)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


500.00 ( 008834)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


591.00 591.00 


JE # BT22-00338 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment KT-CONVERTIBLE DESK FOR AMINE
2,100.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,100.00 ( 023927)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4400- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,100.00 2,100.00 


JE # BT22-00339 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment AR-LEXIA ENGLISH LICENSES
3,885.00 ( 024106)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


3,885.00 ( 024107)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


3,885.00 3,885.00 


JE # BT22-00340 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Correct 20-21 Restricted Carryover object code
193,249.00 ( 024581)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


902,315.00 ( 024580)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,ALL OTHER STATE


119,571.00 ( 024588)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 820- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,ALL OTHER STATE


298,425.00 ( 024590)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 830- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,ALL OTHER STATE


119,571.00 ( 025531)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


298,425.00 ( 025533)  01- 7426- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


193,249.00 ( 025530)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


902,315.00 ( 025532)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


1,513,560.00 1,513,560.00 


JE # BT22-00341 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment FL-HEGGERTY BOOKS


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 61 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


85/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00341 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment FL-HEGGERTY BOOKS(continued)
520.00 ( 003638)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


520.00 ( 027706)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


520.00 520.00 


JE # BT22-00342 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment PS-OFFICE SUPPLIES & TISSUE
550.00 ( 000567)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


175.00 ( 001445)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS


725.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


725.00 725.00 


JE # BT22-00343 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment GM- WALKIE- TALKIE RADIOS
1,100.00 ( 007751)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 038- I N38 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


1,100.00 ( 027707)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8300- 4300- 038- I N38 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SECURITY


1,100.00 1,100.00 


JE # BT22-00344 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment GM-PICNIC TABLES FOR OUTDOOR CLASSROOM
6,100.00 ( 003904)  01- 0700- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 039- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,100.00 ( 003907)  01- 0700- 0- 3300- 1000- 4400- 039- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


6,100.00 6,100.00 


JE # BT22-00345 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment FL-CFP-SITSPOTS & WOODWIND BRASSWIND
85.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


85.00 ( 009032)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


85.00 85.00 


JE # BT22-00346 JE Trans Date 09/10/2021 JE Posted 09/10/2021 Comment KT-INCREASE PO FOR PAPER & OFFICE SUPPLIES
3,000.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


3,000.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,000.00 3,000.00 


JE # BT22-00347 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment BD- 20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER TO SITES
4,573.00 ( 024065)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 62 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


86/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00347 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment BD- 20.21 RESTRICTED CARRYOVER TO SITES(continued)
4,573.00 ( 024088)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


9,146.00 ( 027640)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


9,146.00 9,146.00 


JE # BT22-00348 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment C/O HHS SEWER REPAIR
4,753.00 ( 026060)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


4,753.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


4,753.00 4,753.00 


JE # BT22-00349 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment PS-STAFF MEETING
555.00 ( 027709)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4395- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,SCHOOL ADMINIST


555.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


555.00 555.00 


JE # BT22-00350 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment KT- CHEMISTRY BOOKS
7,600.00 ( 027721)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


7,600.00 ( 006152)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


7,600.00 7,600.00 


JE # BT22-00351 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment PS-OFFICE SUPPLIES
500.00 ( 000567)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00359 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment AN-SCIENCE LAB AIDS
1,618.00 ( 006149)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,618.00 ( 023949)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,618.00 1,618.00 


JE # BT22-00360 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment FL- HEINEMANN BACKORDER FROM 20-21
13,869.00 ( 024035)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


13,869.00 ( 024034)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 521- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 63 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


87/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


13,869.00 13,869.00 


JE # BT22-00361 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment BLAMBERT-JAFFE REIMB.
110.00 ( 000564)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 027- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


110.00 ( 001930)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


110.00 110.00 


JE # BT22-00362 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment FL-SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIR
134.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


134.00 ( 008724)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


134.00 134.00 


JE # BT22-00363 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-DLV EWR 34105 USE POS 1668 VAC $$
579.00 ( 027638)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1110- 2130- 223- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,CLASS INSTR AID,SE:SEPARATE CLA


36.00 ( 020613)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1110- 3312- 223- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,FICA:CLASS,SE:SEPARATE CLA


9.00 ( 020614)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1110- 3332- 223- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,MEDICARE:CLASS,SE:SEPARATE CLA


8.00 ( 020616)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1110- 3502- 223- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SE:SEPARATE CLA


12.00 ( 020617)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1110- 3602- 223- 0000 CRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,WORKERS' COMP:C,SE:SEPARATE CLA


579.00 ( 005217)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1120- 2100- 223- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,SE:RESOURCE SPE


36.00 ( 005255)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1120- 3312- 223- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,FICA:CLASS,SE:RESOURCE SPE


9.00 ( 005271)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1120- 3332- 223- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,MEDICARE:CLASS,SE:RESOURCE SPE


8.00 ( 005302)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1120- 3502- 223- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SE:RESOURCE SPE


12.00 ( 005318)  01- 3310- 0- 5760- 1120- 3602- 223- 0000 DRSE:LOCAL ASSIST,WORKERS' COMP:C,SE:RESOURCE SPE


644.00 644.00 


JE # BT22-00364 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment AE-FOOD FOR SCILL & LARRY AINSWORTH TRAINING
1,520.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


1,520.00 ( 000201)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2130- 4395- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,CURRICULUM DEVE


1,520.00 1,520.00 


JE # BT22-00365 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-BMS EWR 34283 SELDER, S COVR VAC POS 5014
2,231.00 ( 027685)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 831- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


2,231.00 ( 003423)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 831- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 64 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


88/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


2,231.00 2,231.00 


JE # BT22-00366 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment KT-CHEMISTRY BOOKS
7,600.00 ( 027756)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4100- 535- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


7,600.00 ( 006152)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


7,600.00 7,600.00 


JE # BT22-00367 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment AR-INCREASE CIA SUPPLY BUDGET
355.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


355.00 ( 026786)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


355.00 355.00 


JE # BT22-00368 JE Trans Date 09/14/2021 JE Posted 09/14/2021 Comment BL-GAEL EWR 34340 WEIZMAN, N COVR VAC POS 3114
4,986.00 ( 024087)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


4,986.00 ( 024077)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 524- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


4,986.00 4,986.00 


JE # BT22-00369 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment PS-SCHOLASTICS
105.00 ( 006163)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


105.00 ( 006151)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 534- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


105.00 105.00 


JE # BT22-00370 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment AR-INCREASE CIA SUPPLY BUDGET
355.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


355.00 ( 026786)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


355.00 355.00 


JE # BT22-00371 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment AR-INCREASE CIA SUPPLY BUDGET
355.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


355.00 ( 000200)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2130- 4300- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,CURRICULUM DEVE


355.00 355.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 65 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


89/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00372 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment PS-MAKING GRADES MATTER BOOKS
570.00 ( 003635)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 034- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


570.00 ( 003647)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


570.00 570.00 


JE # BT22-00373 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment EB-SAAVAS LEARNING COMPANY- SOCIAL SCIENCE
1,340.00 ( 003639)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,340.00 ( 003631)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 023- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,340.00 1,340.00 


JE # BT22-00374 JE Trans Date 09/15/2021 JE Posted 09/15/2021 Comment JL-For Sun Shades at Bayview
2,200.00 ( 027774)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 021- 0558 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS


2,200.00 ( 021820)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0558 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


2,200.00 2,200.00 


JE # BT22-00375 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment JL-For Elem Music Masks
1,500.00 ( 027799)  01- 3210- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,500.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,500.00 1,500.00 


JE # BT22-00376 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment JL-Correct BT for Safety Coordinator split 35/65
22,750.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 CRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


22,750.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


22,750.00 22,750.00 


JE # BT22-00377 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment AR - COVER EMP REIM
30.00 ( 001968)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


30.00 ( 014592)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


30.00 30.00 


JE # BT22-00378 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment KT-COVER EMP REIM
135.00 ( 022101)  01- 0000- 0- 1540- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


135.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 66 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


90/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


135.00 135.00 


JE # BT22-00379 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment AN-LAB AIDS/CDW CFP OLD PO21-01946
400.00 ( 006149)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


400.00 ( 023949)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 ( 024367)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 532- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


2,300.00 2,300.00 


JE # BT22-00380 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment AE-FOOD FOR LARRY AINSWORTH TEACHER TRAINING
1,853.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


1,853.00 ( 027744)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


1,853.00 1,853.00 


JE # BT22-00382 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment KT-LEARNING A-Z
1,900.00 ( 006152)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 ( 027721)  01- 6300- 0- 1150- 1000- 4200- 535- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,900.00 1,900.00 


JE # BT22-00383 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment KT-REIMB TEACHER
45.00 ( 016221)  01- 0000- 0- 1180- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


45.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


45.00 45.00 


JE # BT22-00385 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment KT-OPEN PO
500.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


500.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00386 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment BD-20.21 CARRYOVER TO SITES
64,500.00 ( 024321)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 531- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


81,376.00 ( 024366)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


145,501.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 67 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


91/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00386 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment BD-20.21 CARRYOVER TO SITES(continued)
18,375.00 ( 024443)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 536- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,125.00 ( 025138)  01- 3010- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


319,877.00 ( 025134)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 530- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


40,226.00 ( 024035)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


40,006.00 ( 024260)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


45,062.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


125,294.00 ( 027608)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 520- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


445,171.00 445,171.00 


JE # BT22-00387 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment AN-ARTS ACADEMY BAKING
500.00 ( 008771)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 3263 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 027855)  01- 9016- 0- 1130- 1000- 4300- 032- 3263 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00388 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment PS-HEALTH SUPPLIES
125.00 ( 000990)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


125.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


125.00 125.00 


JE # BT22-00389 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment GM-FOOD/GRILL FOR STAFF MEETING
155.00 ( 009180)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 038- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


39.00 ( 023744)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 2700- 4300- 038- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


116.00 ( 027869)  01- 9016- 0- 3100- 2700- 4395- 038- 0051 CRDONATIONS,FOOD FOR WORKSH,SCHOOL ADMINIST


155.00 155.00 


JE # BT22-00390 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-WL EWR 334837  HENDERSON, J TEMP PARA.ACAD 
1,013.00 ( 025108)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 827- 0000 DRELO PARA GF,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


1,013.00 ( 027354)  01- 7426- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 827- 0000 CRELO PARA GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


1,013.00 1,013.00 


JE # BT22-00391 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-DU81546 SCCOE SPRIG PLYGR STRUC/ASPHALT MG
31,084.00 ( 007567)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- I N21 CROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


31,084.00 ( 027872)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- RMNR DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 68 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


92/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00391 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BL-DU81546 SCCOE SPRIG PLYGR STRUC/ASPHALT MG(continued)
31,084.00 ( 027705)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 021- I N21 DROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


8,782.00 ( 027870)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 021- RMNR CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


22,302.00 ( 027871)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8100- 5800- 021- RMNR CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PLANT MAINTENAN


62,168.00 62,168.00 


JE # BT22-00392 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment PS-MATH UNIT ALLOCATION
1,200.00 ( 002270)  01- 0000- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,200.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,200.00 1,200.00 


JE # BT22-00393 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment GM-SCIENCE TEXTBOOKS
1,220.00 ( 006205)  01- 6300- 0- 3300- 1000- 4200- 537- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,220.00 ( 006203)  01- 6300- 0- 3300- 1000- 4100- 537- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


1,220.00 1,220.00 


JE # BT22-00394 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment JL-for Bay School ESY
65,713.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


65,713.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


4,613.00 ( 006399)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 7210- 7310- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T


4,613.00 ( 006398)  01- 6500- 0- 5001- 7210- 7310- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T


70,326.00 70,326.00 


JE # BT22-00395 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment AE-FOOD FOR AINSWORTH TEACHER TRAINING
1,500.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


1,500.00 ( 027744)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


1,500.00 1,500.00 


JE # BT22-00396 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment AE-AINSWORTH TEACHER TRAINING
878.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


878.00 ( 027744)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


878.00 878.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 69 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


93/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00397 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment KT-PRINTER FOR SCIENCE DEPT.
315.00 ( 016225)  01- 0000- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


315.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


315.00 315.00 


JE # BT22-00398 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment AR - Lexia English
135.00 ( 024107)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


135.00 ( 024106)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 520- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


135.00 135.00 


JE # BT22-00399 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment KT-CASES OF PAPER
2,500.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


2,500.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,500.00 2,500.00 


JE # BT22-00400 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BLL-GAEL EWR 33449 PARKS, L VAC PARENT COMM C
332.00 ( 026778)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2230- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


332.00 ( 003136)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2200- 824- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PARENT PARTICIP


332.00 332.00 


JE # BT22-00401 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment BLL-GAEL EWR 33449 PARKS, L ERROR REVSE S.B. 02
332.00 ( 026778)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2230- 824- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


332.00 ( 003136)  01- 0700- 0- 0000- 2495- 2200- 824- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PARENT PARTICIP


332.00 332.00 


JE # BT22-00402 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment PS-INTEGRATED MATH BOOKS
5,615.00 ( 001918)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


5,615.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,615.00 5,615.00 


JE # BT22-00403 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment LO-BOOKS/BACK TO EPL SCIENCE
105.00 ( 008832)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 031- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


105.00 ( 008825)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 031- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 70 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


94/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00403 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/23/2021 Comment LO-BOOKS/BACK TO EPL SCIENCE(continued)
796.00 ( 008111)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


796.00 ( 008283)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 031- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


901.00 901.00 


JE # BT22-00404 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment AE-SNACKS FOR AINSWORTH TEACHER TRAINING
70.00 ( 001919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 500- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


70.00 ( 027744)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 500- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


70.00 70.00 


JE # BT22-00405 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment PS-OPEN PO FOR MUSIC
1,000.00 ( 002360)  01- 0000- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00406 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment PS-BARITONE SAX
4,916.00 ( 027923)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4400- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,916.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4,916.00 4,916.00 


JE # BT22-00407 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment PS-BARITONE SAX
1.00 ( 027923)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4400- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1.00 1.00 


JE # BT22-00408 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment JL-PPE Masks for Music WL
1,403.00 ( 027799)  01- 3210- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,403.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,403.00 1,403.00 


JE # BT22-00409 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment ED-FOLLET LIBRARY BOOKS
2,310.00 ( 027925)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 524- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


2,310.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 71 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


95/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


2,310.00 2,310.00 


JE # BT22-00411 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment ED-OFFICE DECOR/SNACKS FOR PARENT MTG
85.00 ( 027927)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


85.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


49.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


49.00 ( 027928)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2700- 4395- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,FOOD FOR WORKSH,SCHOOL ADMINIST


134.00 134.00 


JE # BT22-00412 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment GM-SUPPLEMENTAL CLASSROOM BOOKS
1,000.00 ( 003903)  01- 0700- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 037- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 018647)  01- 0700- 0- 3300- 1000- 4200- 037- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BT22-00413 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment BL-CARRANZA, H SON'S MEDICATION REIMB.
204.00 ( 000986)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 023- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


204.00 ( 001928)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


204.00 204.00 


JE # BT22-00414 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment KT-EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT
50.00 ( 016223)  01- 0000- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 50.00 


JE # BT22-00415 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment PS-HEALTH OFFICE SUPPLIES
46.00 ( 000990)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


46.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


46.00 46.00 


JE # BT22-00416 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/27/2021 Comment AN-OSBORNE CLASS BOOKS
500.00 ( 008768)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 016203)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 72 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


96/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


500.00 500.00 


JE # BT22-00417 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment BD-GREAT MINDS BOOK  TO DLV
6,000.00 ( 006131)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 520- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


6,000.00 ( 006156)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,000.00 6,000.00 


JE # BT22-00423 JE Trans Date 09/23/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AR - GT CS for ALL Purchase
655.00 ( 027875)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 524- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


655.00 ( 008288)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 500- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


655.00 655.00 


JE # BT22-00424 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment AR - IT Freshworks PO
840.00 ( 001311)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7700- 5800- 857- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,CENTRALIZED DAT


840.00 ( 001315)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7700- 5900- 857- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,COMMUNICATIONS,CENTRALIZED DAT


840.00 840.00 


JE # BT22-00425 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment JL-For PPE Masks for Music at WL
468.00 ( 027799)  01- 3210- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


468.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


468.00 468.00 


JE # BT22-00428 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment PS- SPECIAL ED SUPPLY MONIES
800.00 ( 022472)  01- 0000- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


800.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


800.00 800.00 


JE # BT22-00429 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment BD-CORRECTING SITE FOR MGMT 0019
5,200.00 ( 008198)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 899- 0019 DROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


5,200.00 ( 028047)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 600- 0019 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


5,200.00 5,200.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 73 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


97/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 01   (continued)


JE # BT22-00431 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment BL-DU81823 DLV PTC CK4225 FR 2310 TO 0052
459.00 ( 008750)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 2310 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


459.00 ( 008749)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


459.00 ( 008463)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 2310 CRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


459.00 ( 008460)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0052 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


918.00 918.00 


JE # BT22-00432 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment PS-LIBRARY BOOKS
1,257.00 ( 028050)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


1,257.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,257.00 1,257.00 


JE # BT22-00433 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment AR - Marco Lucadano Cameras
5,664.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


5,664.00 ( 024153)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4400- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


5,664.00 5,664.00 


Fund 01 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 694,732.00 


Fund 13  


JE # BR22-00206 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment 20/21 Carryover - ST
327.00 ( 027641)  13- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 046- 0018 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


327.00 ( 021122)  13- 9010- 0- 0000- 3700- 4300- 046- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FOOD SERVICES


4,245.00 ( 009529)  13- 9010- 0- 0000- 3700- 4300- 046- 4606 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FOOD SERVICES


4,245.00 ( 018379)  13- 9010- 0- 0000- 3700- 8999- 046- 4606 DROTHER RESTRICTE,CARRYOVER/CASH


9,144.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00293 JE Trans Date 09/21/2021 JE Posted 09/21/2021 Comment BD-21.22 SAFETY FUNDS TO SITES
1,200.00 ( 009530)  13- 9010- 0- 0000- 3700- 4300- 946- 0018 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,FOOD SERVICES


1,200.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00331 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment JL-Increase contractual PD for Mgmt to $1,000 per KM
500.00 ( 009493)  13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 5200- 046- 0000 CRCHLD NUTR:SCHOO,TRAVEL & CONFER,FOOD SERVICES


500.00 ( 009445)  13- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 8916- 046- 0000 DRCHLD NUTR:SCHOO,FR FUND 01 TO 1


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 74 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


98/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 13   (continued)


1,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


Fund 13 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 1,200.00-


Fund 14  


JE # BR22-00188 JE Trans Date 09/04/2021 JE Posted 09/04/2021 Comment JL-Add Balances for PO21-00976
11,060.00 ( 009596)  14- 0826- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 033- 8540 CRDEF'D MAINT APP,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


17,064.00 ( 009598)  14- 0826- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 035- 8540 CRDEF'D MAINT APP,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


28,124.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00322 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment JL-Change Order for Belli
4,200.00 ( 009596)  14- 0826- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 033- 8540 CRDEF'D MAINT APP,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


4,200.00 ( 009598)  14- 0826- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 035- 8540 CRDEF'D MAINT APP,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


8,400.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


Fund 14 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 36,524.00-


Fund 21  


JE # BR22-00171 JE Trans Date 09/01/2021 JE Posted 09/01/2021 Comment TH-R22-00940
6,000.00 ( 020621)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 5800- 020- B199 CRBOND, MEASURE B,PROF/CONSULT SE,FACILITIES ACQ


6,000.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


6,000.00 ( 020620)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 5800- 030- B199 CRBOND, MEASURE A,PROF/CONSULT SE,FACILITIES ACQ


6,000.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


12,000.00 12,000.00 


JE # BR22-00183 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment TH-R22-00786
1,359.00 ( 027485)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 4300- 033- B406 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MATERIALS & SUP,FACILITIES ACQ


1,359.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


1,359.00 1,359.00 


JE # BR22-00184 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment TH-R22-00817
1,554.00 ( 026986)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 4300- 038- B019 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MATERIALS & SUP,FACILITIES ACQ


1,554.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


1,554.00 1,554.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 75 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


99/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 21   (continued)


JE # BR22-00220 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment JL-Add Budget for Series C Issuance
42,000,000.00 ( 009844)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 0000- 8951- 030- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,PROCEEDS FR:BON


20,400,000.00 ( 010391)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 0000- 8951- 020- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,PROCEEDS FR:BON


62,400,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00249 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-PO22-0146
345,180.00 ( 025789)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6201- 024- B129 CRBOND, MEASURE B,NEW CONSTRUCTIO,FACILITIES ACQ


( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


345,180.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00250 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-R22-01029
10,438.00 ( 027691)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 4400- 038- B019 CRBOND, MEASURE B,NON-CAPITALIZED,FACILITIES ACQ


10,438.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


10,438.00 10,438.00 


JE # BR22-00251 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-R22-01032
322.00 ( 027692)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 5800- 021- B004 CRBOND, MEASURE B,PROF/CONSULT SE,FACILITIES ACQ


322.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


322.00 322.00 


JE # BT22-00308 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment TH-R22-00979
7,825.00 ( 027483)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6220- 030- B503 CRBOND, MEASURE A,DSA PLAN CHECK,FACILITIES ACQ


7,825.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


7,825.00 7,825.00 


JE # BT22-00309 JE Trans Date 09/03/2021 JE Posted 09/03/2021 Comment TH-PO22-00263 & PO22-00359
14,881.00 ( 011548)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 034- B101 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


3,123.00 ( 022865)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 035- B041 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ


18,004.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


18,004.00 18,004.00 


JE # BT22-00326 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment TH-R22-01010
11,064.00 ( 020524)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6201- 038- B019 CRBOND, MEASURE B,NEW CONSTRUCTIO,FACILITIES ACQ


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 76 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


100/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 21   (continued)


JE # BT22-00326 JE Trans Date 09/08/2021 JE Posted 09/08/2021 Comment TH-R22-01010(continued)
11,064.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


11,064.00 11,064.00 


JE # BT22-00335 JE Trans Date 09/09/2021 JE Posted 09/09/2021 Comment TH-R22-01033
15,400.00 ( 018585)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6211- 027- B161 CRBOND, MEASURE B,PRIMARY CONSULT,FACILITIES ACQ


15,400.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


15,400.00 15,400.00 


JE # BT22-00352 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-R22-01039
23,980.00 ( 021700)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 038- B019 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


23,980.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


23,980.00 23,980.00 


JE # BT22-00353 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-PO22-00313
7,912.00 ( 022827)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 034- B166 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


7,912.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


7,912.00 7,912.00 


JE # BT22-00354 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-PO22-00347
29,837.00 ( 012027)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 033- B425 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ


29,837.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


29,837.00 29,837.00 


JE # BT22-00355 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-R22-01031
14,780.00 ( 011467)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B010 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


14,780.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


14,780.00 14,780.00 


JE # BT22-00356 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-PO22-00310
12,021.00 ( 022330)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6170- 032- B171 CRBOND, MEASURE A,LAND IMPROVEMEN,FACILITIES ACQ


12,021.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 77 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


101/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 21   (continued)


12,021.00 12,021.00 


JE # BT22-00357 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-PO22-00334
3,933.00 ( 023999)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 027- B150 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


3,933.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


3,933.00 3,933.00 


JE # BT22-00358 JE Trans Date 09/13/2021 JE Posted 09/13/2021 Comment TH-R22-01055
10,174.00 ( 027710)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6250- 027- B160 CRBOND, MEASURE B,OTHER COST:PLAN,FACILITIES ACQ


10,174.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


10,174.00 10,174.00 


JE # BT22-00381 JE Trans Date 09/16/2021 JE Posted 09/16/2021 Comment TH-R22-01006
78,772.00 ( 010186)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6250- 032- B125 CRBOND, MEASURE A,OTHER COST:PLAN,FACILITIES ACQ


78,772.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


78,772.00 78,772.00 


JE # BT22-00384 JE Trans Date 09/17/2021 JE Posted 09/17/2021 Comment TH-R22-01091
134.00 ( 027834)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6250- 027- B161 CRBOND, MEASURE B,OTHER COST:PLAN,FACILITIES ACQ


134.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


134.00 134.00 


JE # BT22-00418 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment TH-R22-01115
6,614.00 ( 011467)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B010 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


6,614.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


6,614.00 6,614.00 


JE # BT22-00419 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment TH-R22-01116
1,180.00 ( 017803)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6280- 034- B101 CRBOND, MEASURE A,CONSTRUCTION TE,FACILITIES ACQ


1,180.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


1,180.00 1,180.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 78 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


102/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 21   (continued)


JE # BT22-00420 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment TH-R22-01117
7,680.00 ( 028033)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B102 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


7,680.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


7,680.00 7,680.00 


JE # BT22-00421 JE Trans Date 09/27/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment TH-R22-01115, R22-01117
6,614.00 ( 011467)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B010 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


7,680.00 ( 028033)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B102 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


14,294.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


14,294.00 14,294.00 


JE # BT22-00422 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment TH-R22-01115, R22-01117 REVRSE BEA ALREADY DID BT
6,614.00 ( 011467)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B010 DRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


7,680.00 ( 028033)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B102 DRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


14,294.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


14,294.00 14,294.00 


JE # BT22-00426 JE Trans Date 09/29/2021 JE Posted 09/29/2021 Comment TH-R22-00134 & R22-01881
351,907.00 ( 028045)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6201- 030- B506 CRBOND, MEASURE A,NEW CONSTRUCTIO,FACILITIES ACQ


19,350.00 ( 010111)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6220- 033- B405 CRBOND, MEASURE A,DSA PLAN CHECK,FACILITIES ACQ


371,257.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


371,257.00 371,257.00 


JE # BT22-00427 JE Trans Date 09/30/2021 JE Posted 09/30/2021 Comment TH-R22-01881
19,350.00 ( 028046)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6220- 030- B405 CRBOND, MEASURE A,DSA PLAN CHECK,FACILITIES ACQ


19,350.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ


19,350.00 19,350.00 


Fund 21 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 62,054,820.00 


Fund 25  


JE # BR22-00298 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment JL-Wiring for Communications
25,560.00 ( 027889)  25- 9010- 0- 0000- 8500- 5600- 033- 0000 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,FACILITIES ACQ


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 79 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


103/1089







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


Fund 25  


25,560.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


Fund 25 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 25,560.00-


Fund 40  


JE # BR22-00302 JE Trans Date 09/22/2021 JE Posted 09/22/2021 Comment JL-DSA for Transportation  Yard Office Bldg
15,390.00 ( 027890)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6290- 048- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,INSCPECTION,FACILITIES ACQ


15,390.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00320 JE Trans Date 09/28/2021 JE Posted 09/28/2021 Comment JL-District Wide Proj-Transportation 35%
612,500.00 ( 028034)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6201- 048- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,NEW CONSTRUCTIO,FACILITIES ACQ


612,500.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BT22-00410 JE Trans Date 09/24/2021 JE Posted 09/24/2021 Comment JL-Move DSA for Transportation Yard Office Bldg
15,390.00 ( 027926)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6220- 048- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,DSA PLAN CHECK,FACILITIES ACQ


15,390.00 ( 027890)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6290- 048- 0000 DR2012 SERIES A G,INSCPECTION,FACILITIES ACQ


15,390.00 15,390.00 


Fund 40 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 627,890.00-


Fund 73  


JE # BR22-00274 JE Trans Date 09/20/2021 JE Posted 09/20/2021 Comment BD-SCHOLARSHIPS
1,000.00 ( 011079)  73- 0995- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRDIANE TRAPIN ME,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY


1,000.00 ( 022319)  73- 0967- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRBILL DOYLE MEMO,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY


1,000.00 ( 011029)  73- 0987- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRTENGLER SCHOLAR,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY


2,000.00 ( 011051)  73- 0990- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRMCDOWELL SCHOLA,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY


5,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


Fund 73 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 5,000.00-


21,809,515.00 119,799,663.00 Total for Org 014 


Net increase to AppropriationsOrg 014 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 62,053,378.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 9/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


9/30/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 80 of 80


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 14 2021  


9:25AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 707318


104/1089







      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose 
of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and 
Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545 (a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of 
the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may 
delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of 
property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no 
qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of 
the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of 
those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate 
by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the 
district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Education Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical 
means, provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the 
governing board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 
 


105/1089







      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.4. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metric: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


 


106/1089







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2021 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: MISSION HILL MIDDLE SCHOOL 


 # Copies Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 1 Metal Cabinet Unknown Outdated $0 


2. 1 Toshiba TV Unknown Outdated $0 


3 1 Sony Tape Recorder and VCR Set Unknown Outdated $0 


    Total $0 


 


The technology items listed were approved by the Director of Information Technology.  


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


 


 


 


 


107/1089







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2021 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: FACILITIES 


 #  Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 1 Ford F550 Regular Cab 2WD 1999 Fair 


Poor Gas 


Mielage 


Mileage 


101,319 


$8,000 


2. 1 Ford Ranger 2WD 2007 Damaged in 


an Accident 


over eight 


years ago; 


failing engine 


Milage  


65,473 


$6,000 


    Total $14,00 


 


The list provided was approved by the Facilities Director, Trevor Miller.  


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


 


 


 


 


108/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, California 


Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 


 
 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


109/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Dana Cooper, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/25/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Casey Denning, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/25/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Casey Denning, School Site Council, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 4 hours. 


 


Gjon Feinstein, Chess Enrichment Provider, Westlake Elementary, 10/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 


42 hours. 


 


Dylan Fleisch, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Thomas French, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Teresa Gaims, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Alexandre Godinho, Capoeira Enrichment Provider, Westlake Elementary, /16/21 – 5/15/22, not to 


exceed 91 hours. 


 


Rhea Hadzis, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/25/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Sonia Le, Sewing & Fashion Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to 


exceed 24 hours. 


 


Judith  Mayer, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Catherine McDougall, Reading for Social Justice Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


9/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 15 hours. 


 


Payson McNett, Mindfulness Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to 


exceed 24 hours. 


 


Jessica Murray, ELD Task Force Special Session, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 10/15/21, not to 


exceed 2 hours. 


 


110/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS (continued): 


 


Certificated: 


 


Kyle O’Brien, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Tyler Olson, Exploring the Legal Roots of Race & Whiteness Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & 


Assessment, 9/16/21 – 10/15/22, not to exceed 2 hours. 


 


Jana Peale, Reading for Social Justice Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


5/15/22, not to exceed 15 hours. 


 


Max Prescott, Teaching Hard History Professional Development, Curriculum, Intervention & 


Assessment, 9/16/21 – 10/15/22, not to exceed 4 hours. 


 


Gwendolyn Rendon, ELD Task Force Special Session, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 10/15/21, not to 


exceed 2 hours. 


 


Gwendolyn Rendon, ELAC Support, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 9 hours. 


 


Nikola Ristic, STEAM Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 24 


hours. 


 


Mary Anne Robb, MAP Test Proctor, Branciforte Small Schools, 9/16/21 – 5/22/22, not to exceed 20 


hours. 


 


Catherine Rodecker, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/25/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Stacey Saady, Reading for Social Justice Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 


– 5/15/22, not to exceed 15 hours. 


 


Nadine Said, School Site Council, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 4 hours. 


 


Alissa Saylor, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Melissa Schilling, School Site Council, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 4 hours. 


 


Ellie Schoelen, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


111/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.1 


 2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS (continued): 


 


Certificated: 


 


Elizabeth Shafer, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 5/25/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Justin Smith, CTE Advisory Committee, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 8/16/21 – 6/30/22, 


not to exceed 8 hours. 


 


Margaret Starrett Woodcock, New Teacher Community Meetings, Harbor High, 8/16/21 – 5/15/22, 


not to exceed 9 hours. 


 


Margaret Starrett Woodcock, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Thomas French, IB Training, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


 


2021-2022 Athletic Coaches (as of 10/12/2021):  


Bachman, Timothy, JV Assistant Football Coach, SQHS, Fall  


Grigsby, Jessica, Freshman/Sophomore Girls Volleyball, HHS, Fall  


Moran, Timothy, JV Football Coach, SQHS, Fall  


Tingling Albert, Boys Soccer Coach - MH, Fall  


Yniguez, Jesse, 8th Grade Girls Basketball Coach - MH, Winter  


 


112/1089







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


113/1089







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


 


Reviewed by Director-Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 10/11/2021 


 


• Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments • 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   


Carvajal, Soledad, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - DL, 6 hrs/9 mos, effective 


10/11/21 


Crosser, Barbara, Student Data Technician - SPED, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 9/20/21 


Danielson, Joanna, Food Service Worker III - FS, 6.5 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/12/21 


Gardner, Kelly, Food Service Worker I - FS, 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/1/21 


Martinez, Rosa, Parent/Community School Coordinator - GA, 6 hrs/9 mos, effective 9/13/21 


Silverman, Erin, Paraeducator-After School - BMS, 2 hrs/9 mos, effective 9/30/21  


Valdez, Jorge, Maintenance Specialist - M/O, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 9/27/21 


Increase FTE/Position:    


Henderson, Jesse, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, .6 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/7/21 


Phillips, Emily, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, .6 hrs/9 mos, effective 9/7/21 


Lateral Transfer/Increase FTE:  


Carranza, Helena, from Office Assistant - DL, 3.5 hrs/9 mos to Office Assistant-District Office - 
HR, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 9/28/21 


Sutlick, Nicole, from Playground/Recess Coach - WL, 3 hrs/9 mos to Paraeducator-Sped - WL, 5 
hrs/9 mos, effective 10/1/21 


Corrected Retirement Date:  


Pruett, Kathleen, School Administrative Assistant IV - SC, 8 hrs/11 mos, from 10/1/21 to 


9/30/21 


Transfer:  


Tolamatl, Hector, Night Custodian, 8 hrs/12 mos, from HHS to BMS, effective 10/11/21 


Separation from Service:  


Elizarraraz, Guadalupe, Night Custodian - M/O, 4 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/11/21 


Fung, Patricia, Paraeducator-Sped - WL, 5 hrs/9 mos and Paraeducator-After School - BV, 3 


hrs/9 mos, effective 10/15/21 


Garcia, Annabel, Mental Health Specialist - HH, 8 hrs/10 mos, effective 10/21/21 


Hinderliter, Beverly, Paraeducator-Sped - DL, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 11/23/21 


Honeywell, Maria, Food Service Worker I - FS, 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/8/21 


114/1089







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Phillips, Emily, Paraeducator-WL, 3 hrs/9 mos and Yard Duty Monitor-WL, .06 hrs/9 mos, 


effective 10/8/21 


Thomas, Jazelle, Paraeducator-After School - BV, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 9/24/21 


 


• Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes • 


New Temporary Employees:  


Carroll, Megan, Office Assistant - DL, effective 9/27/21 


Kemerling, Mark, School Bus Driver - TR, effective 10/11/21 


Velasco, Raymundo, Night Custodian - M/O, effective 9/20/21 


Waters, Peggy, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, effective 9/30/21 


White, Gabrielle, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - HHS, effective 10/8/21 


Temporary Employees (Limited Term Assignments):  


Carroll, Megan, Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 16 hrs, 9/27 - 9/28/21 


Wong, Juliette, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 190 hrs, 8/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Regular Employees (Extra Hours or Limited Term Assignments):  


Bajurin, Laura, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - GA, not to exceed 185 hrs, 8/16/21 - 


6/15/22 


Baxley, Leda, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - HHS, not to exceed 300 hrs, 9/16/21 - 


5/15/22 


Bennett, Jacqueline, Health Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 280 hrs, 9/16/21 - 3/31/22 


Brewer, Deedee, Program Account Technician - FS, not to exceed 20 hrs, 9/15 - 12/15/21 


Flores, Evelyn, Childcare - EDSV, not to exceed 10.25 hrs, 8/15 - 1/15/22 


Franks, Dorothy, Site Program Coordinator - WL, not to exceed 60 hrs, 9/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Hall, Jeffrey, School Bus Driver, TR, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/3/21 - 5/27/22 


Hess, Soledad, PBIS Committee - MH, not to exceed 10 hrs, 8/16/21 - 5/25/22 


Kuszmar, Kathryn, Library/Media Assistant - SHS, not to exceed 11 hrs, 7/16 - 9/15/21 


Solis Salinas, Daniela, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - HHS, not to exceed 100 hrs, 


9/16/21 - 5/15/22 


 


• Eligibility Lists Established •  


Administrative Assistant  


Attendance Technician  


Office Assistant 


115/1089







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Paraprofessional  


Payroll Technician  


School Bus Driver  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


116/1089







 


 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.1. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Memorandums of Understanding with Neighboring Districts: SAIL 


 


MEETING DATE: October 20, 2021 


 


FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 


 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the Memorandums of Understanding listed below so that Santa Cruz City Schools can serve 


students from neighboring districts. 


 


BACKGROUND: 


Santa Cruz City Schools is the largest district in our Special Education Local Planning Area (SELPA).  


As such, Santa Cruz City Schools provides the largest continuum of services for special education 


students in our SELPA. On occasion, neighboring districts may seek to have their students served in 


Santa Cruz City Schools programs because they do not have appropriate programs available in their 


home district. In these instances, the District may enter into an agreement whereby Santa Cruz City 


Schools accepts an out of district student into a special education program at one of our schools and 


then charges the neighboring district for such services.  


 


This memorandum will be for the District’s Supporting Academics and Independent Living Program 


(SAIL), which is designed to provide special education services to students who have been identified 


as needing an alternative, adapted, and functional curriculum. 


 


Please find a list of additional Memorandums of Understanding proposed for the 2021-22 school 


year. These placements may last a full year or may end prior to the end of school because a student 


is successfully able to re-integrate into a program within their home district. As well, new students 


may enroll following the date of this board meeting due to previously unidentified needs. 


 


District     District    Number of Students  


Live Oak School District  Secondary    1 


San Lorenzo Valley USD  Secondary    1 


Scotts Valley USD   Secondary    4 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


$270,000 Estimated Revenue 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


117/1089







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Strong Workforce Grant 
      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the planned 2021-2022 K12 Strong Workforce Grant Proposal. 
 
BACKGROUND & GRANT SUMMARY: 
Santa Cruz City Schools Secondary District is prepared to apply for the K12 Strong Workforce 
Program Grant, which is funded through California Community Colleges. The proposal is for 
$206,419 for the combined 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 school years. The project aims to 
develop the Sustainable Agriculture program which serves approximately 230 students a year at 
Soquel High and Costanoa High.  
 
The K12 Strong Workforce Program Grant will go towards fully implementing and realizing the 
three-year district Career Technical Education Plan, which includes a focus on increasing work-
based learning opportunities for our students, as well as on building our articulation and 
relationship with Cabrillo’s programs to increase the number of students attending and 
finishing a post-secondary program. This grant project specifically focuses on the Sustainable 
Agriculture program, which has the largest enrollment of any Career and Technical Education 
pathway in the district. Our plan aims to provide students the skills and opportunities to thrive 
in this robust industry, as well as connect students to the Cabrillo Sustainable Agriculture 
program where they can continue learning and increase wage-earning potential.  
 
The K12 Strong Workforce Program Grant requires that the district provides a match of two 
dollars for every dollar received from the grant. The district match is made from Measure T. 
Based on the two to one match required by this grant, Santa Cruz City Schools qualifies for up 
to $231,657. The final allotment is determined by California Community Colleges Chancellor's 
Office and is based on numerous factors, including regional unemployment rates, as well as the 
number and size of other districts that are awarded the grant. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Up to $206,419 additional restricted resources. See breakdown of planned budget in table 
below. 
 
 
 
 
 


118/1089







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.2. 


Item Description for Strong Workforce Grant Approximate 
Cost 22-23 


Approximate 
Cost 23-24 


.2 FTE for one Cabrillo dual enrollment Sustainable Ag section at Soquel, 
expanding pathway to three classes $17,100 $17,293 


Benefits for above FTE $6,814 $7,059 


.2 FTE for additional section of capstone Sustainable Ag course at Soquel 
High to accommodate increased student enrollment $17,100 $17,293 


Benefits for above FTE $6,814 $7,059 


40 hours at $36 an hour x 2. Pay for 2 Ag teachers to align all courses to 
Cabrillo requirements, develop articulation agreements, and develop 
student path towards Sustainable and Organic Food Production Skills 
Certificate 


$2,880 $2,880 


Benefits for above ($8x40x2) $640 $640 


Student field trips: to three local farms, Cabrillo College, UC Davis and Cal 
Poly 


$12,815 $12,815 


Materials for work-based learning student-run farm stands at both sites 
(Soquel & Costanoa): two trailers, materials to build stands 


$20,000 $0 


.4 FTE Work-Based Learning Coordinator: Classified position to support 
farmer stands, field trips, connecting students to work based learning 
opportunities, etc. 


$15,633 $15,733 


Benefits for above $1,579 $1,653 


Summer Work Based Learning - Students working on school farm, 10 kids, 
6 hrs a week, 8 weeks, $15/hr 


$7,200 $7,200 


Benefits (workers comp) for above student workers $140 $140 


Subtotal $108,715 $89,765 


Indirect costs @ 4% $4,349 $3,591 


Annual Totals $113,063 $93,355 


Combined total (22-23, 23-24) $206,419 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Prepared by Julia Hodges, Secondary Director of Curriculum, Interventions and Assessment 


119/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 1/16


K12 Strong Workforce Program Produced: Oct 14, 2021, 07:10 PM UTC Vanessa McCroskey


Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway
Status: Dra�


Details


Pathway Improvement Name


Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


Start Date


06/01/2022
End Date


06/30/2024


Assurances


This Pathway/Program Work Plan is:


✓ In compliance with K12 SWP legislation (Ed Code 88827).


✓
Aligned with your district(s)/partner district(s) LCAP


✓ Informed by, aligned with, and expands upon your region's Strong Workforce Program Regional Plan and planning e�orts
occurring through the Strong Workforce Program.


✓ Informed by Labor Market Information and regional priorities.


✓ Sta�ed by skilled teachers or faculty and provides professional development opportunities for those teachers or faculty
members.


All LEAs will:


✓ In addition, to ensure that the K12 SWP legislative reporting requirements are met, all grant recipients, both lead and
partnering LEAs, are required to do the following until an MOU is executed between CDE and CCCCO for information sharing on K–
12 data: 
1. Sign an MOU with Cal-PASS Plus to facilitate the sharing of data with the Cal-PASS Plus data system (if not already done so); 
2. Maintain a current MOU with Cal-PASS Plus throughout the life of the awarded grant; 
3. Beginning in 2021–22, upload end-of-year data files, as applicable and required by K12 SWP, into the Cal-PASS Plus system
annually by November 1.


✓ Report data that can be used by policymakers, LEAs, community college districts, and their regional partners to support and
evaluate the program, including, to the extent possible, demographic data used to evaluate progress in closing equity gaps in
program access and completion, and earnings of underserved demographic groups.


✓
Applicants must upload a signed agreement (Statement of Assurance) with each K12 partner agency whose ADA is included on
the application as the students served. 


Region within which applying


Bay Area


120/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 2/16


Applicants should download the template provided on this page then modify, sign, and upload the completed document for each
included partner agency in the "Supporting Documentation" section of the application. 


Lead Agency


Santa Cruz City High


Lead LEA Type
High School District


Agency Information


Address
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 | Santa Cruz, CA | 95060-3747
Region
Bay Area
Website
http://www.sccs.net


Community College District
Cabrillo CCD


Part of a Rural School District
No


Unemployment Rate
4.8%


Total ADA (Average Daily Attendance)
3847.17


K12 SWP 2020-21 Award/Role


Was your organization awarded funds in 2020-21?


No


CTEIG Award


Was your organization awarded CTEIG funds in 2020-21?


Yes


Will your organization apply for CTEIG funds in 2021-22?


Yes


Participating Schools


121/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 3/16


K12 Partner Agencies (optional)


No K12 Partner Agencies added.


School


Primary Contact(s)


Name Role Email


Soquel High


Costanoa Continuation High


Julia Hodges Project Lead Contact juliahodges@sccs.net


Historical Performance
Select the checkbox next to each Lead LEA's or Partner Agency's historical Pathway Improvement that is similar in
scope to this application. 
If no Pathway Improvements are similar to this application, no action is required.


Selected Year Funded Lead or Partner Agency
Pathway
Improvement ID Amount Funded


2020 Santa Cruz County ROP


Improving &
Building
Information and
Communication
Technologies
Pathways


9022 $843,686


2019 Santa Cruz County ROP


SCCOE
Consortium:
Pathways to
Employment


7105 $707,812


Positive Considerations
If any of the following options are selected, be sure to reference specifically how these populations are served in your
application.


Select the unduplicated pupils with whom are served by the proposed CTE Program/Pathway


✓ English Learners


✓ Students who qualify for free or reduced-price meals


✕ Foster youth


122/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 4/16


Select the K-12 students that are defined as special populations per Perkins V with whom are served by the proposed
CTE Program/Pathway


✓ Individuals with disabilities


✓ Low-income youth


✕ Individuals preparing for nontraditional fields


✕ Single parents, including single pregnant women


✕ Out-of-workforce individuals


✓ English Learners


✕ Homeless individuals


✕ Youth who are in, or have aged out of, the foster care system


✕ Youth with a parent who is an active duty member of the armed forces


ADA Totals


Name ADA Agency Type


Santa Cruz City High 3,847.17 High School District


Higher Education Partners


Cabrillo College


Higher Education Partner Agency Type
College


Agency Information


Address
Region
Bay Area
Website
N/A


Community College District
Cabrillo CCD


Contacts


123/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 5/16


Collaborative Partners (optional)


Name Role Email


Gerlinde Brady Project Viewer gebrady@cabrillo.edu


Dr. Mallory Stevens Project Viewer malloryjeanstevens@gmail.com


Your Future Is Our Business


Agency Type
Philanthropic Organization


Address
399 Encinal St, | Santa Cruz, CA | 95060


Website
https://yfiob.org/


Partner Role


✓ Other


Help in recruiting Work-Based Learning Coordinator


Contacts


Name Role Email


Mary Gaukel Project Viewer marygaukel@gmail.com


Problem Statement


Provide a brief Problem Statement that is concise, clear, and evidence-based, supporting the problem or need that your K12
SWP e�orts will address.


Santa Cruz City High’s plan addresses two problems: a need for robust K-14 career pathways and a supply/demand labor gap in
agriculture.


K-14 Career Pathways are the top Regional Priority of the BACCC. To this end, our district has many articulation agreements with
Cabrillo College, but there is still much work to be done. Our pathway with the largest enrollment and biggest need is Sustainable
Agriculture, which fulfills students’ UC A-G science requirements. Opportunities for improvement include articulation
agreements, dual enrollment classes, work-based learning positions, field trips, and certification opportunities. As a result of CTE
outreach initiatives, this pathway has included Latino/a students, English Learners (ELs), Socio-Economically Disadvantaged
(SED) students, and Students with Disabilities (SWD) at percentages equal to or higher than those across the district for the past
two years. In 19-20,100% of Sustainable Ag completers graduated, including all subgroups. In 20-21, all Sustainable Ag pathway


124/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 6/16


completers graduated, with the exception of one SWD who finished high school with a certificate of completion. These rates are
far higher than those for the same groups outside of the program. We aim to continue our successes in serving these students,
but also improve their outcomes by expanding the work based learning opportunities and post-secondary connections. Our
current data for students’ post-secondary success is based on survey responses and is very thin. With this project we aim to track
this cohort to learn more about equity gaps facing our student subgroups in their post-secondary education and work in the
Agricultural industry.


The BACCC Regional Priorities includes Agriculture, Water, and Environmental Technologies as a priority sector. It is a growing
industry with a demand/supply gap. According to our Regional Plan Industry Sector Data, there are 4,602 annual openings in the
sector, and 592 post-secondary awards or certificates granted with a demand/supply gap of 4,073. Agriculture also demonstrates
consistent growth in our region. According to the Centers of Excellence for Labor Market Research, “the region reported 317,700
fewer non-farm jobs and 5,200 additional farm jobs in May 2021, compared to May 2019.” For the same period, Santa Cruz county
reported 12,500 fewer non-farm jobs and 1,000 more farm jobs. Our plan aims to equip students with the skills and opportunities
to thrive in this robust industry.


Project Objectives


Provide clear, concrete objectives, which this project aims to achieve, to address the issues in the Problem Statement.
Include how the LEA(s) is using the K12 SWP funds to help meet those objectives. Avoid statements of lo�y goals.


Sustainable Ag teachers and Cabrillo sta� will develop articulation agreements and a pathway for the Sustainable and
Organic Food Production Skills Cert
Soquel High will o�er a dual enrollment Sustainable Ag class with Cabrillo 
Soquel High will add a section of the Sustainable Ag capstone class 
Students will attend field trips to local farms and college ag programs
Students will build and run farm stands 
The district will recruit and hire a Sustainable Ag Work-Based Learning Coordinator to support the student farm stands, field
trips, and work-based learning
Soquel High will o�er paid summer work-based learning on the school farm
The high school counselors, CTE counselor, and middle school teachers will continue to recruit underrepresented students
into CTE classes, including outreach in ELD and Special Ed classes at the high and middle schools
Cabrillo guidance counselors will come to the Sustainable Ag classes to guide student through registration and enrollment for
the dual enrollment class and for fall classes for interested graduating seniors
The CTE Teacher On Special Assignment (TOSA) will continue to coach the Sustainable Ag teachers in evidence-based
instructional strategies designed to improve outcomes for all learners, especially ELs and SWDs
Enrollment of Latino/a students, ELs, Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students, SED students, and SWDs in the
Sustainable Ag pathway will continue at percentages equivalent to or greater than these sub-groups’ representation in the
district as a whole
The district will track the 22-23 and 23-24 Sustainable Ag completer cohorts a�er graduation
In the spring 85% of Sustainable Ag seniors will report that they plan to attend a 2-4 year college or trade school. This same
rate will apply to the following subgroups: Latino/a students, ELs, SED students, and SWDs
70% of Sustainable Ag seniors who plan to attend a 2-4 year college will report that they plan to study agriculture or a related
field. The same rate will apply to the following subgroups: Latino/a students, SED students, ELs, and SWDs
80% of non-seniors who start the Sustainable Ag pathway will complete the pathway with a passing grade. The same rate will
apply to the following subgroups: Latino/a students, SED students, ELs, and SWDs
100% of Sustainable Ag completers will graduate with a diploma or, in the case of any SWD whose resource team deems it
most appropriate, a certificate of completion


Local/Regional Economies


125/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 7/16


Unemployment Rates & Rural School Districts


Lead/Partner LEA
Rural School
District?


Unemployment
Rate


Underserved Student Populations


Annual Adjusted Statewide Grades 9-12 Dropout Rate


Will the proposed CTE program(s) serve student subgroups that have a dropout rate higher than the state dropout rate?


Yes


Will proposed CTE program(s) serve the following unduplicated pupils?


Yes


Will the proposed CTE program(s) serve K-12 students that are defined as special populations per Perkins V?


Yes


Santa Cruz City High No 4.8%


Industry Sectors & Pathways


Pathways & Design Purpose


✕ Create a New Pathway(s)


✓ Expand and/or Scale an Existing Pathway(s)


✕ Implement Cross-Sector Work


Targeted Industry Sectors


California Department of Education Industry Sectors


✓ Agriculture & Natural Resources (CDE)


Crosswalk California Community Colleges


✓ Agriculture, Water & Environmental Technologies (CCCCO)


Pathway(s) Involved


Agriculture & Natural Resources: Agriscience


126/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 8/16


Work Plan


K14 Pathway Quality Strategies


✓ Curriculum and Instruction


✓ College and Career Exploration


✓ Postsecondary Transition and Completion


✓ Work-Based Learning


K14 Pathway Quality Strategies: Curriculum and Instruction


Describe work to be funded by K12 SWP


SWP funds will go towards .2 FTE for an additional section of the Sustainable Agriculture capstone course to support increased
student enrollment.


List project activities and expected outcomes


Soquel high will o�er a second section of the Sustainable Ag capstone class to accommodate the high student interest in the
pathway and allow for more flexible scheduling. This will enable the program to continue to accept all interested students and
will give more options for students whose schedules are impacted by support classes, which is mostly the case with our SWDs
and ELs. Sometimes our students who have ELD or SpEd Resource classes are not able to access other academic opportunities
simply because of their schedule requirements of these extra support classes. With two capstone section options, there is less
likely to be such a scheduling conflict. This step should have the outcome of supporting SWDs and ELs to complete the pathway
and graduate.


The CTE TOSA will continue to coach the Sustainable Agriculture teachers, along with all CTE teachers, on the use of evidence-
based instructional strategies designed to improve outcomes for all learners, especially ELs and SWDs. These strategies include
student self-assessment, student goal setting, rubrics, chunking assignments, and coaching on overall teacher clarity. The TOSA
position is funded by CTEIG. The braiding of funds and the instructional coaching will contribute to the success of our K12 Strong
Workforce grant work. The expected outcome of this activity is higher student achievement, especially for ELs and SWDs.


Identify partner roles and responsibilities Page 28 of 41 August 2021


Not partnerships are involved in this aspect of the project. 


Identify number of students and/or teachers to be served and the way in which they will be served and Justification for
requested funds and plans for sustaining the e�ort (Return on Investment)


An additional section of the Sustainable Agriculture capstone class will serve approximately 30 students a year, totaling 60
students during the funding period. This class will enable them to complete the Sustainable Ag pathway, fulfill an a-g science
requirement, and be positioned to continue their education for a career in agriculture, a BACCC priority sector. A�er the grant
period, the class could potentially be funded by general funds or the local parcel tax. 


The TOSA’s instructional coaching will serve two Sustainable Ag teachers and help them to serve all of their students,
approximately 230 a year, for years to come without the need for additional funding.


Describe activities designed to improve access to and completion of highskill/high-wage CTE opportunities for
disproportionately impacted students. Include activities that are designed to intentionally improve outreach and increase
targeted academic supports, such as tutoring, mentoring by professionals, and work-based learning.


As stated in response to the first question, by o�ering a second section of the Sustainable Ag capstone class, we will provide more
options for students whose schedules are limited because of required support classes. With two capstone section options, there


127/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 9/16


is less likely to be a scheduling conflict with ELD classes or SpEd Resource classes. This step should have the outcome of
supporting SWDs and ELs to complete the pathway and graduate.


Additionally, the instructional coaching that the Sustainable Ag teachers receive from the CTE TOSA is designed to hone teaching
strategies that provide targeted academic support especially for ELs and SWDs, along with any other student struggling with the
material, which may include SED students and FREP students.


Both of these steps should improve student access to and completion of the Sustainable Ag pathway, which, along with the
activities described below, will put them on the path to secondary education and a career in agriculture, a thriving BACCC priority
sector.


K14 Pathway Quality Strategies: College and Career Exploration


Describe work to be funded by K12 SWP


K12 SWP funds will cover mileage and drivers’ pay for student field trips to local colleges and universities.


List project activities and expected outcomes


The Sustainable Ag teachers and the Work-based Learning Coordinator will take the Sustainable Ag students on day-long field
trips to the agriculture programs at Cabrillo College, University of California Davis, and California Polytechnic State University.
This will give students the opportunity to learn first-hand about the post-secondary educational o�erings in agriculture, and to
experience what it feels like to actually be in a college classroom or farm. 


We will also continue the district’s ongoing college and career exploration outreach to ELs and SWDs. Our CTE counselor works
closely with the ELD teachers and Special Education teachers in the middle and high schools. Through this collaboration, ELs and
SWDs receive additional, targeted CTE career exploration lessons and take field trips to visit CTE classes in action. This work is
already funded by the local parcel tax and LCFF general funds and is designed to increase EL and SWD participation in CTE
opportunities.


Identify partner roles and responsibilities Page 28 of 41 August 2021


Cabrillo College, University of California Davis, and California Polytechnic State University will host student field trips.


Identify number of students and/or teachers to be served and the way in which they will be served and Justification for
requested funds and plans for sustaining the e�ort (Return on Investment)


Approximately 100 students a year (200 students over the life of the grant) will participate in these field trips, an experiential
lesson about the ways that they can pursue secondary education in agriculture and what their lives could look like as college
students. A�er the grant, we may be able to continue trips to Cabrillo and are looking into funding opportunities for the other
college trips.


The CTE outreach serves approximately 50 students a year by giving them extra opportunities for college and career lessons and
field trips. This work will continue to be funded through general funds and the local parcel tax.


Describe activities designed to improve access to and completion of highskill/high-wage CTE opportunities for
disproportionately impacted students. Include activities that are designed to intentionally improve outreach and increase
targeted academic supports, such as tutoring, mentoring by professionals, and work-based learning.


In planning these field trips, we will request that each college program, when possible, provide our students with potential
Latino/a role models when selecting their student tour guides or facilitators. The intention of this is to help some of our students
see themselves as belonging to groups who are integral to these higher education institutions. 


As mentioned above, our CTE counselor, ELD teachers, and SpEd teachers work together to conduct outreach to ELs and SWDs at
our high and middle schools. This collaboration is designed to improve EL and SWD access to CTE opportunities and will continue
in support of the grant work. 


128/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 10/16


K14 Pathway Quality Strategies: Postsecondary Transition and Completion


Describe work to be funded by K12 SWP


K12 SWP money will fund the hours of work needed for the Soquel High and Costanoa High Sustainable Ag Teachers to
collaborate with each other and coordinate with Cabrillo College. During this time they will write articulation agreements, update
their curriculum to align with the agreements, and design a student pathway to the Sustainable and Organic Food Production
Skills Certificate. 


K12 SWP will also fund a new Sustainable Agriculture class at Soquel High which will be dual enrollment with Cabrillo. 


List project activities and expected outcomes


Sustainable Ag Teachers will work with Cabrillo College sta� to write articulation agreements, update curriculum to align with the
agreements, and design a student pathway to the Sustainable and Organic Food Production Skills Certificate. Students will be
able to complete half of the requirements to earn their certificate in high school and follow a clear pathway to complete the
process with one additional Cabrillo class. Cabrillo and Soquel High will also collaborate to o�er a dual enrollment Sustainable
Ag class. 


These activities will engage our Sustainable Ag students in a pathway to college, even earning college credit while still in high
school. According to the BACCC Regional Plan, “High school students who engage in early college credit programs are more likely
to graduate from high school, to enroll and persist in college and to earn a bachelor’s degree in a shorter time. Students also see
benefits in college (higher rates of college enrollment, college grade point average [GPA], credit accumulation and persistence to
the second year of college).” Research indicates that this more robust pathway will go far to support our students’ success,
including our program objectives and beyond.


Cabrillo College guidance counselors will come into the Sustainable Agriculture class to guide students through their registration
and enrollment process, once for students interested in the dual enrollment course, and again in the spring for seniors who
intend to attend Cabrillo a�er they graduate. They will also be coming in to give extra assistance in the SpEd Resource classes for
graduating SWDs. This should give added access to the dual enrollment course for all students and assist graduating seniors in
the transition to Cabrillo for their postsecondary education.


This plan also includes work funded by our LCFF general fund, which will include careful tracking of the Sustainable Ag CTE
completers who graduate during the funding period in their post-secondary career and education. This will allow us to collect
data about the performance and achievements of all students in the program, especially from groups that are typically
underrepresented in post-secondary education. We will use this data to move forward with future interventions.


Identify partner roles and responsibilities Page 28 of 41 August 2021


The Cabrillo College CTE Dean and Dual Enrollment Coordinator will continue to oversee Cabrillo’s side of the collaboration.
Cabrillo Agriculture faculty will work with the high school Sustainable Ag teachers to create articulation agreements, and design a
path to Sustainable and Organic Food Production Skills Certificate. The Dual Enrollment Coordinator will work with our district’s
CTE director and Sustainable Ag teachers to select the appropriate Cabrillo class and instructor for the dual enrollment course. 


Each year, Cabrillo college counselors will come to the high schools once to help students register and enroll in the dual
enrollment course and again to help seniors register and enroll in classes for the fall a�er they graduate.


Identify number of students and/or teachers to be served and the way in which they will be served and Justification for
requested funds and plans for sustaining the e�ort (Return on Investment)


The Articulation agreements will a�ect every student in the Sustainable Ag pathway, approximately 230 a year for the life of the
program. These students will be able to receive college credit for these classes, contributing to their post-secondary success. The
articulation agreements will continue to sustain a�er the grant with very little maintenance. Any updating needed can be
included in the existing schedule of teacher collaboration time already covered by general funds. 


The Sustainable and Organic Food Production Skills Certificate will serve approximately 60 students a year for the life of the
program. These students will be able to fulfill half of the requirements for this industry-recognized certificate while still in high
school. Their teachers, high school counselors and visiting Cabrillo counselors will all assist in guiding them to the next class at
Cabrillo that will help them complete the certificate, giving them an advantage for employment in this priority industry. The


129/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 11/16


certificate pathway will also continue to sustain a�er the grant with very little maintenance. Any updating that’s needed can be
included in the existing schedule of teacher collaboration time already covered by general funds. 


Cabrillo college guidance counselors will serve approximately 30 students a year for the dual enrollment class and 60 a year for
graduating seniors, expanding students’ access to these post-secondary education opportunities. This will come at no cost to the
district and should be able to continue indefinitely.  


The postsecondary tracking of the Sustainable Agriculture student cohorts will involve approximately 100 students, but the data
that the district gathers will guide decision-making that will serve many beyond that and the work can continue through general
funding.


Describe activities designed to improve access to and completion of highskill/high-wage CTE opportunities for
disproportionately impacted students. Include activities that are designed to intentionally improve outreach and increase
targeted academic supports, such as tutoring, mentoring by professionals, and work-based learning.


The activities planned for this project aim to improve all pathway students’ access to opportunities in the agriculture industry, a
priority sector for our region. This pathway already has high representation of Latino/a students, SWDs, ELs, and SED students.
That is one of the reasons that the district has chosen to focus on developing this program: to expand opportunities for those
very students. 


In addition, our work with the Cabrillo College guidance counselors is specifically designed to serve students from groups who
are disproportionately impacted by the di�iculties of transitioning from high school to secondary school, such as ELs, SWDs, and
SEDs. This will be especially helpful to students who may not feel comfortable going to see the counselors on their own or who
struggle to complete these steps at home because of limited access to the required technology or other barriers.
Underrepresented students, such as ELs, SWDs, and SED students, o�en slip through the cracks at this transitional stage, so
having a Cabrillo counselor guide them through this process in their class will help to ensure their success, working towards our
objectives for student success. 


Finally, our data collection, which includes careful tracking of the Sustainable Ag pathway completer cohorts that graduate during
the funding period, is designed to give us more information about our disproportionately impacted students as they move into
their postsecondary career and education. This information will help inform coming plans about how to increase opportunities
for these student groups and address performance gaps that we find.


K14 Pathway Quality Strategies: Work-Based Learning


Describe work to be funded by K12 SWP


Funds will go towards the purchase of produce transportation trailers and the materials for Soquel High and Costanoa High
students to build on-site stands that they will run as work-based learning businesses. 


The grant budget also includes the bus mileage and drivers’ pay for student field trips to local farms.


Additionally, the money will cover a .4 FTE Sustainable Ag Work-Based Learning Coordinator. The person will work at Soquel and
Costanoa to help students run their farm stands, coordinate work-based learning positions, and assist on the student field trips. 


Finally, the funds will allow Soquel High to o�er paid summer work-based learning opportunities for students to maintain the
school farm.


List project activities and expected outcomes


Sustainable Ag students at Soquel High and Costanoa High will build and run on-site farm stands where they will sell school farm
produce as well as items from local industry partners at the end of the school day to teachers and parents. This work-based
learning opportunity will give students the hands-on experience of running their own small business. 


The district will work with Your Future is Our Business, a local work-based learning non-profit, to recruit and hire a classified
Sustainable Agriculture Work-Based Learning Coordinator (.4 FTE) for both sites. This position will include support for the
student-run farm stands, coordination of work-based learning positions with local farms, and support for field trips.


130/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 12/16


Students will take field trips to Fogline Farm, Rodini Farm, and Sea to Sky Farm, where they will be able to directly witness and
experience the work involved in running a sustainable farm. 


Soquel High’s Sustainable Agriculture teacher will o�er paid summer work-based learning opportunities for students to maintain
the school farm. Many students already volunteer to do this work, but by providing wages we can increase the student
responsibility level and hopefully open this opportunity to more SED students who need to use their summers to earn money for
themselves and their families.


Identify partner roles and responsibilities Page 28 of 41 August 2021


Fogline Farms, Rodini Farm, and Sea to Sky Farm will host student field trips. The Sustainable Ag teachers and work-based
learning coordinator will also reach out to these and other farms about providing student work-based learning positions.


The director of Education Partnerships at Your Future Is Our Business will work with our CTE director to recruit for the work-based
learning coordinator position and will provide a data-base of potential work-based learning employers.


Identify number of students and/or teachers to be served and the way in which they will be served and Justification for
requested funds and plans for sustaining the e�ort (Return on Investment)


Capstone students will all have shi�s working on the student-run farm stands. This means that approximately 100 students a year
will be able to get hands-on experience running a small business. Once the stands are up and running, they can continue without
the grant funds and may even generate some money from their sales that can be reinvested into the program.  


The farm field trips will be open to all pathway students, approximately 230 a year (460 throughout the life of the grant), who will
be able to directly witness and experience the work involved in running a sustainable farm. A�er the grant, we may be able to use
local parcel tax funds to run one field trip a year.


The Work-Based Learning Coordinator will assist the two Sustainable Agriculture positions and will serve all students in the
pathway, approximately 230 a year and 460 during the grant period. This position will serve students by assisting with the field
trips, guiding them through the establishment of the farm stands, and facilitating their placements in work-based learning
positions. This position will likely be temporary and the Sustainable Ag teachers can take on some of the responsibilities at the
end of the grant period. 


The summer work-based learning opportunities will serve 10 students per summer (20 students over the course of the grant),
providing a paid learning opportunity in which they will experience the responsibilities of maintaining a small farm. This project
may continue at a smaller scale a�er the grant, or may revert to being a volunteer position.


Describe activities designed to improve access to and completion of highskill/high-wage CTE opportunities for
disproportionately impacted students. Include activities that are designed to intentionally improve outreach and increase
targeted academic supports, such as tutoring, mentoring by professionals, and work-based learning.


The activities planned for this project aim to improve all pathway students’ access to opportunities in the agriculture industry, a
priority sector for our region. This pathway already has high representation of Latino/a students, SWDs, ELs, and SED students. By
improving this program's work-based learning o�erings, we hope to expand opportunities for those very students. 


Additionally, by providing paid, on-site education opportunities such as the farm stand and the summer farm positions, we can
hopefully open these o�erings to more SED students so that they can expand their education while addressing some of their
families’ financial needs. 


Leveraged Funds


✓ Perkins V (Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act)


✓ CTEIG (California Technical Education Incentive Grant)


✕ Agricultural Career Technical Education Incentive Grant


✕ CTEFP (Career Technical Education Facilities Program/Prop 51)


✕ CPA (California Partnership Academies grants)


131/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 13/16


✕ SSP (Specialized Secondary Programs grant)


✕ SWP (Strong Workforce Program)


✓ Other


Other Funds


Local Parcel Taxes (Measure T), Title 1, and LCFF general funds.


Budget & Match


Grant Funds Summary


Expenditure Type K12 SWP Grant Funds


1000 - Certificated Salaries


2000 - Classified Salaries


3000 - Employee Benefits


4000 - Books and Supplies


5000 - Services and Other Expenditures


6000 - Capital Outlay


7000 - Indirect Costs


Total Grant Funds Budgeted


Financial Match Summary


Expenditure Type Financial Match


1000 - Certificated Salaries


2000 - Classified Salaries


3000 - Employee Benefits


4000 - Books and Supplies


5000 - Services and Other Expenditures


6000 - Capital Outlay


7000 - Indirect Costs


Total Financial Match


$74,546


$45,766


$32,538


$20,000


$25,630


$0


$7,940 (4.0%)


$206,420


$308,210


$0


$124,698


$30,406


$0


$0


$0


$463,314


Santa Cruz City High: Budget


132/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 14/16


Budget Funds


Expenditure Type 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Totals


1000 - Certificated Salaries


2000 - Classified Salaries


3000 - Employee Benefits


4000 - Books and Supplies


5000 - Services and Other
Expenditures


6000 - Capital Outlay


7000 - Indirect Costs


Total Budget


Santa Cruz City High: Expenditure Descriptions


1000 - Certificated Salaries


.2 FTE for one dual enrollment Sustainable Agriculture section at Soquel High, expanding existing pathway to three
classes
.2 FTE for additional section of existing capstone Sustainable Agriculture course at Soquel High to accommodate
increased student enrollment
Additional hourly pay for 2 Sustainable Agriculture teachers to work with Cabrillo College to develop articulation
agreements, align curriculum, and develop student path towards Sustainable and Organic Food Production Skills
Certificate.


2000 - Classified Salaries


.4 FTE for Work-Based Learning Coordinator to assist with student-run farm stands, coordinate student work-based
learning opportunities with local farms, and chaperone field trips. 
Paid summer work-based learning opportunities for students to maintain the school farm (estimating 10 students, 6
hrs a week, 8 weeks, $15/hr).


3000 - Employee Benefits


Benefits for .2 FTE for one dual enrollment Sustainable Ag section Benefits for .2 FTE for additional section of capstone
Sustainable Ag course 
Benefits for additional hourly pay for 2 Sustainable Ag teachers to work with Cabrillo College 
Benefits for .4 FTE for Work Based Learning Coordinator
Benefits (workers comp) for students doing summer farm work-based learning


4000 - Books and Supplies


Materials for worked-based learning student-run farm stands at both sites: two trailers, materials to build stands


5000 - Services and Other Expenditures


Field trips to three local farms as well as the agriculture programs at Cabrillo College, UC Davis, and Cal Poly. Includes
drivers’ pay and mileage. Each field trip will last one-day only with no overnights.


7000 - Indirect Costs


$0 $37,080 $37,466 $74,546


$0 $22,833 $22,933 $45,766


$0 $15,987 $16,551 $32,538


$0 $20,000 $0 $20,000


$0 $12,815 $12,815 $25,630


$0 $0 $0 $0


$0 $4,349 $3,591 $7,940


$0 $113,064 $93,356 $206,420


133/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 15/16


Indirect costs including proper management and reporting of grant funds


Santa Cruz City High: Match


Financial Match Funds


Expenditure type
Financial


Match Source of Match Funds (100 char max)


1000 - Certificated Salaries


2000 - Classified Salaries


3000 - Employee Benefits


4000 - Books and Supplies


5000 - Services and Other
Expenditures


6000 - Capital Outlay


7000 - Indirect Costs


Total Financial Match


$308,210 Local parcel tax, LCFF, Title 1


$124,698 Local parcel tax, LCFF, Title 1


$30,406 Local parcel tax, CTEIG, Perkins


$463,314


Supporting Documents


Required documents include:


 Santa Cruz City High: High-Quality CTE Program Evaluation


 Santa Cruz City High: Statement of Assurance


Document Title Institution Type Fund Year Uploaded


SWP Statement of A
ssurances.pdf


Santa Cruz City Hig
h MOU with CALPAS
S.pdf


High Quality CTE Pr
ogram Evaluation.p
df


Santa Cruz City
High


Statement of
Assurance


2021-22 10/5/2021, 1:09:40 PM


Santa Cruz City
High


Agreement/MOU 2021-22 9/28/2021, 2:34:34 PM


Santa Cruz City
High


High-Quality CTE
Program Evaluation


2021-22 9/28/2021, 2:13:08 PM


134/1089







10/14/21, 12:11 PM NOVA: K12 Strong Workforce Program 2021-22 Expanding and Articulating our Sustainable Agriculture Pathway


https://nova.cccco.edu/swpk/applications/13688/v4/preview 16/16


2021 © California Community Colleges 
NOVA Site Version: 4.39.4


135/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for Professional Services: Deborah Bell 
 
MEETING DATE: October 20, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services for new and continuing services 
through the 2021-2022 regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 
the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for Augmentative and Alternative Communication (ACC) for students in 
Special Education that require these specialized services that could not be provided in District 
programs.  Services will be rendered through Deborah Bell, an ACC Specialist, and are 
mandated in each student’s Individualized Education Plan. The service period will be from July 
1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Not to exceed $3,200.00, Special Education Base (Restricted)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 


136/1089







AGREEMENT FOR  


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


BETWEEN 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


AND 


DEBORAH BELL 
 


1. Parties and Date. 


2. This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered as of this 11th day of October, 2021, 


by and between the SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS ("District") and Deborah Bell 


("Consultant") (collectively referred to as the "Parties" and each individually as "Party"). 


3. Recitals. 


3.1 Consultant.  Consultant is a professional consultant, experienced and properly 


certified/licensed to provide the professional services described herein, and is familiar with the 


plans of District.   


3.2 Project.  District desires to engage Consultant, an Augmentative and Alternative 


Communication (AAC) Specialist, to conduct assessments and provide service as required per 


students’ Individualized Education Program (IEP) pursuant to federal and state law and District 


policies (the "Project").   


4. Terms. 


4.1 Scope of Services, Qualifications and Term. 


(a) General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish all 


labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary to fully 


and adequately supply professional services, as more particularly described in Exhibit "A" 


attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (collectively “Services”).  All Services shall 


be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the Exhibits attached hereto and 


incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and 


regulations. 


4.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 11, 2021 until June 30, 


2022, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may mutually agree to extend this 


term by written amendment.  Should the Parties agree to extend the term of this Agreement, the 


fee for services described in Exhibit "B" shall remain the same.   


4.3 Responsibilities of Consultant. 


(a) Control and Payment of Consultants and its Subordinates. District retains 


Consultant on an independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an employee of District.  Any 


additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall 


at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, 


salaries, and other amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services 


137/1089







under this Agreement and as required by law including, but not limited to, the payment of 


prevailing wage, as applicable, and in accordance with Labor Code sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 


et seq.  The Consultant shall obtain a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages applicable to 


the work to be performed under this Agreement from the website of the Division of Labor Statistics 


and Research of the Department of Industrial Relations located at www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr/.  In the 


alternative, the District shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem 


wages.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such employees, 


including, but not limited to, social security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment 


insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. 


If the District is using State funds for the Project and is required to enforce a Labor Compliance 


Program (“LCP”), then Consultant will be required to enforce the District's Labor Compliance 


Program ("LCP"), as applicable.   


 


(b) Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by 


Consultant is subject to the approval of District and any and all applicable regulatory State 


agencies, and shall be the property of District.  


(c) Reports.  Consultant shall provide copies of all reports required to be 


submitted to applicable regulatory State agencies to District, whether or not such reports must be 


submitted to the District. 


(d) Work Authorization.  Consultant shall obtain from District a work 


authorization for the Project prior to commencing work.  Such work authorization shall reiterate 


Consultant's duties outlined herein.   


(e) Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with District 


staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to District's staff, consultants and other 


staff at all reasonable times. 


(f) Standard of Care. Consultant shall perform all Services under this 


Agreement in a skillful, competent and timely manner, consistent with the standards generally 


recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  


Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary to 


perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all of Consultant's employees and subcontractors 


shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them. Consultant 


further represents that it, its employees and subcontractors or subconsultants have all licenses, 


permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 


Services, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 


Agreement.  Any of Consultant's employees who are determined by District to be uncooperative, 


incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of 


persons or property, or any of Consultant's employees who fail or refuse to perform the Services 


in a manner acceptable to District, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 


and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project.   


(g) Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in 


compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 


138/1089







performance of the Project or the Services, and shall give all notices required by law.  Consultant 


shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services. 


(h) Insurance.  Consultant shall comply with the following insurance 


provisions, unless one or more paragraphs are specifically waived by the District in writing. 


(i) Time for Compliance. Consultant shall not commence Services 


under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to District that it has secured all 


insurance required under this Section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor 


to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to District that 


the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this Section. 


(ii) Minimum Requirements and Limits.  Consultant shall, at its 


expense, procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, insurance against claims for 


injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 


performance of the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or 


subcontractors.  Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the 


same insurance for the duration of the Agreement.  Such insurance shall meet at least the following 


minimum levels of coverage: 


(1) Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 


broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 


Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 


Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); (3) 


Workers’ Compensation and Employers' Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as required 


by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance; and (4) Professional Liability: 


Coverage which is appropriate to the Consultant ’s profession, or that of its consultants or 


subcontractors. 


(2) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain 


limits no less than: (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 


injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a 


general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 


Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) 


Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage; (3) Workers’ 


Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ compensation limits as required by the Labor 


Code of the State of California.  Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 


injury or disease; and (4) Professional Liability: Not less than $1,000,000 per claim/ $2,000,000 


aggregate.   


(3) Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 


contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 


approved by the District to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 


a. General Liability.  The general liability policy shall 


be endorsed to state that:  (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 


volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed 


139/1089







by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection 


with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, 


its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 


unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 


insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 


agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to 


contribute with it in any way. If Consultant works directly with or near children, the General 


Liability Policy shall include or be endorsed to include abuse and molestation coverage.   


b. Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability 


policy shall be endorsed to state that:  (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 


agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, 


operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed 


by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall 


be primary insurance as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents 


and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 


scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its 


directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 


insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 


c. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 


Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, its 


directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of 


the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 


d. Professional Liability.  Consultant and its sub-


consultants and subcontractors shall procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years following 


completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance with limits discussed in this 


Section.  This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. 


(4) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 


Agreement shall be endorsed to state that: (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 


or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 


requested, has been given to District; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 


provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 


District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 


(iii) Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 


required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 


insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the 


District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 


(iv) Acceptability of Insurers. With the exception of Workers’ 


Compensation Insurance, all insurance required hereunder is to be placed with insurers with a 


current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A-: VII, which are licensed to do business in California, 


and which maintain an agent for process within the state.  Workers’ Compensation insurance 


140/1089







required under this Agreement must be offered by an insurer meeting the above standards with the 


exception that the A.M. Best’s rating condition is waived at the discretion of the District. 


(v) Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish District with 


original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 


on forms satisfactory to District.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall 


be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on 


forms provided by District if requested.  District reserves the right to require complete, certified 


copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 


(i) Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 


or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all times 


be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 


exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of its employees and subcontractors appropriate 


to the nature of the Services and the conditions under which the Services are to be performed.  


Safety precautions as applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to: (1) adequate life 


protection and life saving equipment and procedures;  (2) instructions in accident prevention for 


all employees and subcontractors, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, 


bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other 


safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent 


accidents or injuries; and (3) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all 


safety measures. 


(j) Project Staffing.  Consultant shall provide adequate staff and resources to 


facilitate all contractor's activity.  Should Consultant fail to adequately staff a project, the District 


may, at its sole discretion, retain third party inspection services and back charge Consultant for all 


third party fees.   


4.4 Fees and Payments.   


(a) Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 


reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 


Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for a not-to-exceed price 


of three thousand, two hundred dollars ($3,200.00).  Extra Work may be authorized, as 


described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in 


this Agreement.   


(b) Reimbursement of Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 


expenses unless authorized in writing by District.   


(c) Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to District an itemized 


statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Consultant.  District 


shall pay Consultant within a reasonable time and in accordance with this Agreement. 


(d) Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, District may 


request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, "Extra Work" means any Services 


which are determined by District to be necessary, but which the Parties did not reasonably 


anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, 


141/1089







nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written supplemental work authorization from 


District.   


4.5 Maintenance of Accounting Records.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 


accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 


records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of District during 


normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 


other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work, 


data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of four (4) years 


from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 


4.6  General Provisions. 


(a) Suspension of Services.  The District may, in its sole discretion, suspend all 


or any part of Services provided hereunder without cost; provided, however, that if the District 


shall suspend Services for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days or more and in addition such 


suspension is not caused by Consultant or the acts or omissions of Consultant, upon recession of 


such suspension, the compensation will be subject to adjustment to provide for actual costs and 


expenses incurred by Consultant as a direct result of the suspension and resumption of Services 


under this Agreement.  Consultant may not suspend its service without District's express written 


consent.   


(b) Termination of Agreement. 


(i) Grounds for Termination.  District may, by written notice to 


Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 


giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 


at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant 


shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to District, and 


Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate this 


Agreement except for cause. 


(ii) Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 


in this Section, District may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished documents, 


data, programming source code, reports or any other items prepared by Consultant in connection 


with the performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide 


such documents and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 


(iii) Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 


whole or in part as provided herein, District may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as 


it may determine appropriate, services similar or identical to those terminated. 


(c) Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 


shall be given to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 


respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 


 


CONSULTANT:  


142/1089







 


Deborah Bell 


P.O. Box 1580 


Santa Cruz, CA  95061 


  831-818-8849 


 


DISTRICT: 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


133 Mission Street 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


 


Attn: Dr. Stacy O’Farrell 


 Director of Special Education 


 Santa Cruz City Schools 


  


 


 


 


Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered to the address set forth above, or 


forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed as 


set forth above.  Notice shall be deemed adequate on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of 


the method of service.   


 


(d) Mediation.  Disputes arising from this Agreement may be submitted to 


mediation if mutually agreeable to the Parties hereto.  The type and process of mediation to be 


utilized shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Parties. 


(e) Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality.   


(i) All materials and data, including but not limited to, data on magnetic 


media and any materials and data required to be made or kept pursuant to federal, state or local 


laws, rules or regulations, prepared or collected by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall 


be the sole property of the District, except that Consultant shall have the right to retain copies of 


all such documents and data for its records.  District shall not be limited in any way in its use of 


such materials and data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended 


by this Agreement shall be at District's sole risk and provided that Consultant shall be indemnified 


against any damages resulting from such use, including the release of this material to third parties 


for a use not intended by this Agreement.   


(ii) All such materials and data shall be provided to the District, or such 


other agency or entity as directed by District or required by law, rule or regulation, immediately 


upon completion of the term of this Agreement as directed by District.  Should District wish to 


obtain possession of any such materials or data during the term of this Agreement, it shall make 


its request in writing.  Such information shall be provided to the District within forty-eight (48) 


hours of its request.   


143/1089







(f) Attorney's Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other party, 


either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 


prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 


reasonable attorney's fees and all other costs of such action.   


(g) Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 


defend (with counsel of District’s choosing), indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, 


employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of 


action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property 


or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to 


any alleged acts, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, 


employees, subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the 


Consultant's Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of 


all consequential damages, expert witness fees and attorneys fees and other related costs and 


expenses. Consultant shall reimburse District and its officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or 


volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection 


therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant's obligation to indemnify 


shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the District, its directors, officials 


officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent 


Consultant's Services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be 


limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, 


or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant.  Consultant 


agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the District. 


(h) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 


Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 


understandings or agreements.   


(i) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 


of California.  Any action brought to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be brought in a 


state or federal court located in the County of Riverside, State of California.   


(j) Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 


this Agreement. 


(k) District's Right to Employ Other Consultants.  District reserves right to 


employ other consultants in connection with this Project.  However, Consultant shall be the 


exclusive consultant for purposes of the Services as noted within this Agreement, unless 


terminated as provided herein. 


(l) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 


and assigns of the Parties, and shall not be assigned by Consultant without the prior written consent 


of District.  


(m) Amendments/Waiver.  This Agreement may not be amended except by a 


writing signed by the District and Consultant. In order to take effect, amendments shall be 


144/1089







approved or ratified by the District Board of Education. No waiver, alteration or modification of 


the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless signed by both Parties. 


(n) Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrases of this 


Agreement, or the application thereof to any of the Parties, is for any reason held invalid or 


unenforceable, the validity of the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby and 


may be enforced by the Parties to this Agreement. 


(o) Interpretation.  In interpreting this Agreement, it shall be deemed that it was 


prepared jointly by the Parties with full access to legal counsel of their own.  No ambiguity shall 


be resolved against any party on the premise that it or its attorneys were solely responsible for 


drafting this Agreement or any provision thereof. 


(p) Conflict of Interest.  Consultant shall disclose to District any outside 


activities or interests that conflict or may conflict with the interests of the District.  Prompt 


disclosure is required if the activity or interest is related, directly or indirectly, to (1) any activity 


that Consultant may be involved with on behalf of the District, or (2) any activity that Consultant 


may be involved with on behalf of any other firm or agency.  In addition, Consultant shall comply 


with all provisions of the Political Reform Act and implementing regulations, as applicable, and 


in accordance with the District’s Conflict of Interest Code.  Consultant shall be subject to the 


broadest disclosure category in the District’s Conflict of Interest Code during the term of this 


Agreement, except to the extent specifically modified in writing by the Superintendent or designee.  


For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of District, during the term of his 


or her service with District, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present 


or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.   


(q) Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an equal 


opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 


employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-


discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, 


upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.  


Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of District's Minority Business Enterprise 


program, if any, or other related programs or guidelines currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 


Consultant must make a good faith effort to contact and utilize DVBE subcontractors or 


subconsultants and suppliers in securing bids for performance of the Agreement and shall be 


required to certify its good faith efforts towards retaining DVBE subcontractors or subconsultants 


and suppliers and identify DVBE firms utilized in performance of the Agreement.   


(r)  Fingerprinting Requirements.  Consultant hereby acknowledges that, if applicable, it is 


required to comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 45125.1 with respect to 


fingerprinting of employees who may have contact with the District's pupils.  The Consultant shall 


also ensure that its consultants on the Project also comply with the requirements of Section 


45125.1.  If required by Education Code Section 45125.1, the Consultant must provide for the 


completion of a Fingerprint Certification form, in the District’s required format, prior to any of the 


Consultant's employees, or those of any other consultants, coming into contact with the District's 


pupils.  Consultant further acknowledges that other fingerprinting requirements may apply, as set 


forth in Education Code Section 45125 et seq., and will comply with any such requirements.  


145/1089







(s)  Tuberculosis Testing    Consultant shall require that all regular and substitute employees 


provide verification of having been tested for tuberculosis and cleared to work with minors as 


evidenced by a state licensed medical doctor's signature prior to any of the Consultant's employees, 


or those of any other consultants, coming into contact with the District's pupils. Consultant shall 


keep a copy of said information in the employee file. 


(t) Confidentiality.  Consultant hereby acknowledges that certain records and information 


maintained by the District, or by Consultant on behalf of the District, are protected by law and 


shall not be released to third parties without express authorization from the District.  Such records 


include, but are not limited to, student records (i.e., any item of information relating to an 


identifiable student) and personnel records.  In addition, all ideas, memoranda, plans, strategies, 


and documents shared with Consultant by District in connection with the performance of this 


Agreement, not generally known to the public, shall be held confidential by Consultant.  


Consultant agrees that information acquired by Consultant during meetings with the District’s 


administrative team, or during closed session Board discussions are deemed confidential and, 


except to the extent required by law, shall not be shared with third parties without express 


authorization from the District.   


 


(u) Drug/Tobacco Free Facilities.  All District facilities are drug and tobacco free facilities.  Any 


drug and/or tobacco use (smoked or smokeless) is prohibited at all times on all areas of District 


facilities.  


 


(v) Board Approval Required. This Agreement shall not be binding nor take effect unless 


approved or ratified by the District Board of Education.  Any amendments to this Agreement shall 


require Board approval or ratification.  


 


(w) Exhibits and Recitals.  All Exhibits and Recitals contained herein are hereby incorporated 


into this Agreement by this reference. 
   
(x) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 


constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement.   


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their 


authorized officers as of the day and year first written above.   


 


 


146/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


By: _____________________________ 


Name: Kris Munro 


Title:    Superintendent 


Date:    _____________________________ 


 


By: _____________________________ 


Name: Stacy O’Farrell 


Title: Director, Special Education 


Date:    _____________________________ 


 


 


 


DEBORAH BELL 


 


By: _____________________________ 


Name: _____________________________ 


Title: _____________________________ 


Date:                                                              


 


 _____________________________ 


 Federal Tax I.D. Number 


 


 


 


 
Board Approved: October 20, 2021 
 


147/1089







 


EXHIBIT "A" 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 


 


Consultant is an Augmentative and Alternative Communication (AAC) Specialist 


the District is contracting with to provide 20 hours of service for assessments and 


services required per students’ Individualized Education Program (IEP).  


Consultant shall provide service and complete assessments consistent with all 


applicable federal and California State laws. 


 


If requested, consultant shall provide a copy to the District of all assessment 


information and results, including complete copies of any and all test protocols, 


instruments, or other measures used in the assessment process. 


  


148/1089







 


 


EXHIBIT "B" 


COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 


 


 


Hours for assessment: not to exceed 20 hours at $160.00 per hour 


 


Total cost not to exceed: $3,200.00 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


149/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.4.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Non Public Agency: Speechrighter, Inc.  
 
MEETING DATE: October 20, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2021-2022 regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 
of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Speech and Language Therapy to 8 students and Occupational Therapy 
services to 15 students in Special Education who require these services.  They are provided 
through Speechrighter, Inc., and are mandated in each student’s IEP. Service Period:  October 
20, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $19,251.00.   Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


150/1089







NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN 


SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES 
 


 


 


MASTER CONTRACT 
 


 


2021-2022


151/1089







 


MASTER CONTRACT 
GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,  


NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES 


LEA NORTH SANTA CRUZ COUNTY SELPA 
 


 
 


Contract Year 2021-2022 


            


 


 
Nonpublic School  


X 
Nonpublic Agency   SPEECHRIGHTER, INC. 


 


Type of Contract: 


 


X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the 


term of this contract. 
 


 


  


 Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) 


into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.  


 


 


  


 Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates.  The sole purpose 


of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year’s rates for 90 days at the sole 


discretion of the LEA.  Expiration Date:___________ 


 


 


When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above 


   shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.


152/1089







 


 


I.   GENERAL PROVISIONS                                                                                                                    Page 


   
1. MASTER CONTRACT  1 


2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES  1 


3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS  2 


4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT  2 


5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT    


        FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION  3 


6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  3 


7. DEFINITIONS  4 


   


II.   ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 


   


8. NOTICES  5 


9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS  5 


10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE  6 


11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST  6 


12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW  6 


13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO   


               CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES  6 


14. TERMINATION  6 


15. INSURANCE  6 


16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS  9 


17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  9 


18. SUBCONTRACTING  9 


19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  10 


20. NON-DISCRIMINATION  10 


 


III.  EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 


 


 


   


21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION  11 


22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION  11 


23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES  12 


24. CLASS SIZE  12 


25. CALENDARS  13 


26. DATA REPORTING  13 


27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  14 


28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  14 


29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS  14 


30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS  15 


31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  16 


32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS  16 


33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH  17 


34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS  17 


35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  17 


36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS  18 


37. TRANSCRIPTS  18 


38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE  19 


   


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


   


153/1089







 


39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM  19 


40. PARENT ACCESS  19 


41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS 


AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS  19 


42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  20 


43. MONITORING  20 


   


154/1089







 


        


EXHIBIT A: RATES  35 


EXHIBIT B:  INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  37 


   


  


IV. PERSONNEL   


   


44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS  


2


1 


45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  


2


1 


46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS  


2


2 


47. STAFF ABSENCE  


2


3 


48.  STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR  


2


3 


   


V.    HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES    


   


49. HEALTH AND SAFETY  


2


3 


50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS  


2


4 


51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  


2


4 


52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING  


2


4 


53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING  


2


4 


54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT  


2


5 


55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN  


2


5 


   


VI.  FINANCIAL   


   


56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,   


        ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES  


2


5 


57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT  


2


6 


58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES  


2


7 


59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  


2


7 


60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY  


2


8 


61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT  


3


2 


62. RATE SCHEDULE  


3


3 


63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION   


3


3 


155/1089







 


1 
 


 


 


2021-2022                                                              CONTRACT NUMBER: 
 


 CONTRACT NUMBER: 
 


  


LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY:  North Santa Cruz County SELPA   
 


NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: 


BALANCE4KIDS 
 


NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES  


MASTER CONTRACT 
 


AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 


1. MASTER CONTRACT  
  


 This Master Contract (or “Contract”) is entered into on June 2, 2021, between North Santa Cruz County 


SELPA, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), and BALANCE4KIDS (nonpublic, 


nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or “CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of 


providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the 


authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the 


California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 


(Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004).  It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for 


special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such 


special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the 


provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.  


  
 


Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement 


(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”).  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge 


CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student’s Individualized 


Education Program (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”).  The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days 


of a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by 


CONTRACTOR.  As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP 


system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing. 
 


  Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter 


referred to as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or 


authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not 


responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP 


team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is 


signed by the student’s parent.  
 


2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES 


 


CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as 


“CDE”) as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and 


licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq 


and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification and/or credential.  A 


current copy of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE 


pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement 


is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver 


is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. 


156/1089







 


2 
 


Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the 


Master Contract. 


 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils 


shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services 


and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities 


Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


  If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR 


shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state 


to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional 


needs.  The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, 


and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed.  If the CONTRACTOR 


operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the 


appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.  


 


With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any 


changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) 


major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in 


the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract 


by the LEA.  
 


3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS 
 


During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 


applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations.  


CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into 


consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy 


does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it 


accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA 


under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including 


reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with 


applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related 


services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive 


status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).    


   


CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the 


provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE 


nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a). 
 


4.  TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT 
 


The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 (Title 5 California Code of 


Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated.  Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required 


to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years.  The parties acknowledge that any subsequent 


Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2022.  In the event the contract negotiations are not 


agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days.  (Title 


5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d))  No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all 


of the contracting requirements have been satisfied.  The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR 


is at the sole discretion of the LEA. 


 


The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent 


contractors.  Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be 


provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized 


representative.   


157/1089







 


3 
 


 


 


 


 


5.   INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR 


TERMINATION 
 


This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference.  This Master 


Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement.  This Master 


Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.   


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract 


or a renewal. 


 


At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance 


documentation and CDE certification.  The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the 


application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued.  If 


CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative 


within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the 


newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new 


Master Contract’s effective date.  If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such 


ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school 


year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) 


and (2)).  In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be 


bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between 


CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion 


of the LEA. 


 


6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“ISA”) 
  


 This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide 


special education and/or related services.   An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the 


approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A).  An ISA may be effective for 


more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect.  In the event that 


this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms 


and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as 


CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.  


 


Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract 


and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP or by written agreement 


between the parent and LEA.  At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student’s parent, 


CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards 


required by law.  


 


 Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified 


in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA.  (California Education Code 


sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)).  In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service 


at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) 


business days of the last date a service was provided.  CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent 


compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student 


was served by the NPS/A. 


 


If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, 


CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees 


otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH 


158/1089







 


4 
 


consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere 


to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.  


 


Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master 


Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, 


or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code 


section 56366(c) (2). 


 


7. DEFINITIONS   


 


 The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract: 


 


a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the 


California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.  


 


b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible 


for NPS/A.  It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 


of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA.  


The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract. 


 


c. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special 


education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of 


Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which 


entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as 


defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g). 


 


d. The term “qualified”  means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent 


to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and 


designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, 


registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is 


providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 


of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in 


Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards 


of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards 


contained in the California Business and Professions  Code. 


 


Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate 


needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate 


degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations.  


(Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)). 


  


e  The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the 


Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and 


authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to 


themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board 


and care services at a residential placement.  If a license is not available through an appropriate 


state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at 


the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to 


a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations 


section 3001(l). 


 


f. “Parent” means: 


i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal 


authority to make educational decisions for the child,  


ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make 


educational decisions for the  child,  


159/1089







 


5 
 


iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, 


stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally 


responsible for the child’s welfare,   


iv. a surrogate parent,  


v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational 


decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance 


with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).   


 


Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under 


contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services 


for a child. (California Education Code section 56028). 


 


g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 


 


h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those 


in comparable LEA programs. 


 


i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education 


Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet 


or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA. 


 


j. It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Contract” and is referred to as such in 


this document. 


 


ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 
 


8. NOTICES 
  


All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing.  Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand 


and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.    


 


All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page 


of the Master Contract.  Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of 


this Master Contract. 


 


9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS   


 


 All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations.  


Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) 


years after the termination of this Master Contract.  For purposes of this Master Contract, “records” shall 


include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) 


including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code 


of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service 


logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; 


daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional 


instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports 


(BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, 


telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, 


such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials 


held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates 


of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer 


sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules 


when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications by-


laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general 


journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents 


160/1089







 


6 
 


evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled 


checks or facsimile thereof.   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent 


unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of 


CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain an 


access log for each student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or 


receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education 


Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for 


each individual requesting or receiving information from the student’s record.  Such log needs to record 


access to the student’s records by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has 


been executed by the student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate 


educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record.  CONTRACTOR/LEA shall 


maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records.  For purposes of this 


paragraph, “employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR” do not include subcontractors.  CONTRACTOR shall 


grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as 


required by state and federal laws and regulations.  CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency 


closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA.  These shall include, but not 


limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER’s, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other 


relevant reports.  LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon 


request within five (5) business days. 


 


10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 


 


 If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the 


remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect. 


 


11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 


 


 This contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of 


any change of ownership or corporate control.   
 


12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW 


  


 The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the 


County where the LEA is located. 


 


13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND 


ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES 
 


This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory 


guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency.  The party seeking such modification 


shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such changes or modifications 


made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which 


the modification or changes are based. 


 


14. TERMINATION   
 


 This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause.  The cause shall not be the availability of a public 


class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the 


public school program at an IEP team meeting.  To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty 


(20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, 


CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain 


under this Master Contract.  ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 


5 or 6.  CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause.  To terminate the ISA, either party shall 


give twenty (20) days prior written notice.  


161/1089







 


7 
 


 


15.       INSURANCE   


 


CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the 


term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer 


with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, 


liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with 


CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the 


work or any component or part thereof: 


 


 PART I -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES 


 


A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, 


with limits as follows:  


                         


$2,000,000 per occurrence 


$   500,000 fire damage 


$       5,000 medical expenses 


$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury 


$3,000,000 general aggregate 


$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 
 


The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual 


molestation or abuse.  In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for 


sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a 


supplemental policy providing such coverage. 


 


B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 


Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations 


pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ 


Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits 


of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   
 


C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with 


a $1 million combined single limit.  


 


If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.  


 


If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from 


students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR 


must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements. 


 


D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, 


including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is 


afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by 


endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits: 
 


                                    $1,000,000 per occurrence 


                                    $2,000,000 general aggregate 
 


E.     CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, 


shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage.  The certificate 


of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision.  The Commercial 


General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of 


Education additional insured’s premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by 


CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this 


contract at no additional charge. 


162/1089







 


8 
 


 
F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and approved 


by the LEA.  At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR’s 


sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such 


deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or 


(b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation. 


G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the 


CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, 


its subsidiaries, officials and employees.   Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 


LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's 


insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


 


H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency 


submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on 


the certificate. 


 


             PART II -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED 


WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”) 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following 


insurance policies are required: 


 


A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits 


as follows:  


 


$3,000,000 per occurrence 


$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.  


 


The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional 


insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be 


applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary 


despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC’s policy.  Coverage shall be maintained with no 


Self-Insured Retention above $100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA. 


 


B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 


Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to 


the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 


coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 


$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   


C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 


Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service.  If the RTC provides student bus 


services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence. 


D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees 


who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other 


assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured 


retention. 


E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of 


$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   


F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the 


Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum 


limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   


163/1089







 


9 
 


 


If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section 


is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations. 


 


16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS   
 


To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board 


Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA 


Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 


resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, 


damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of 


CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed 


directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall 


arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member 


District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense 


at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier. 


  


 To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board 


Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR 


Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 


resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, 


damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of 


LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or 


indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities). 


 


 LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-


insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that 


its self-insurance covers the LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master Contract. 


 


17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR   


  


 Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent 


relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this 


Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any 


commitment on behalf of the other.  Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any 


association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or 


employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any 


individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.   


 


 If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principle, employer or co-employer of 


CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and 


all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, 


taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.   


  


18. SUBCONTRACTING   


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education 


and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract.  In the event LEA determines that it can provide 


the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s).  If LEA elects to 


provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of 


receipt of CONTRACTOR’s original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s). 


 


CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the 


fullest extent reasonably possible.  Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the 


provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any 


student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term 


164/1089







 


10 
 


of each subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15.  Each 


subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting 


coverage required by Section 15.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer 


to bind coverage on its behalf.  The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA.  All 


endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences.  


The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the 


LEA Board of Education as additional insured. 


 


As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies of 


all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master 


Contract.  All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or 


agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency 


submitting the certificate.  In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in 


Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.  


 


19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 


 CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its 


Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated.  CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of 


Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict 


of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 


including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, 


and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate.  Pursuant to California Education code 


section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not 


recommend placement at CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted 


by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of 


interest. 


 


Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with 


CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education 


and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR 


to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR 


regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is 


enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a 


report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid 


conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation 


(hereinafter  referred to as “IEE”) and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE 


by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom 


the IEE is requested.  Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator 


whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund.   When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request 


and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has 


read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special 


education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an 


individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to 


executing this contract.  This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated 


instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to 


ten months of the school year by LEA. 


 


  CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a 


private pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to 


pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings. 


 


20. NON-DISCRIMINATION   
 


165/1089







 


11 
 


CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the 


basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, 


age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or 


expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal 


or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group 


with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.  


 


EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM  
 


21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) 


 


The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition 


Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the 


NPS/A consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, 


CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services 


outlined in the student’s IEP.  If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services 


Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.  


  


Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 


the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the 


student’s IEP and ISA.  CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education 


and/or related services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, 


assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student’s enrollment under the terms 


of this Master Contract).   LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low 


incidence disabilities when specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property 


of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment 


is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. If the NPS provides equipment, 


they will retain it. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with 


an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.  CONTRACTOR may charge a 


student’s parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate 


public education after: (a) written notification to the student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of 


the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written 


acknowledgment signed by the student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or 


activities.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of 


financial responsibility. 


 


Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public 


education shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related services as 


specified in the student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in 


writing. 


 


22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 


 


All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification 


and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq..  


  


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize 


evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course of study 


and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, 


assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular 


course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  Students 


shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted  Common Core State Standards 


(“CCSS”) for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; 


and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, 


used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) 


166/1089







 


12 
 


extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and 


vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental 


assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college 


counseling.   


 


When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to 


CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading 


toward graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements.    CONTRACTOR shall not award a high 


school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s graduation requirements. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general program of 


instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE 


guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  The NPA providing 


Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service 


for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA.  School-


based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided 


at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team.  Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR 


that is a Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the 


presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or 


caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as 


requested.   LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is 


present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately 


notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to 


LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master 


Contract.  CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or 


trained equivalent on staff.  It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE 


Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for 


transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing. 


 


23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES   
 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by 


CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided 


to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed 


in accordance with the student’s IEP. 


 


For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP 


and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at 


the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA. 


 


The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual 


instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise 


specified in the student’s IEP. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school 


day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with the 


student’s IEP. 


 


24. CLASS SIZE  
 


 When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of 


one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing.  Upon 


prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a 


167/1089







 


13 
 


ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to 


provide services to students with disabilities. 


 


 In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, 


and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, 


the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated 


staff.  The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may 


be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher.  Such an agreement shall be in 


writing and signed by both parties.  This provision does not apply to a NPA. 


 


CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between 


the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child 


ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq. 


 


25. CALENDARS  
 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with 


the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent 


to the number of days determined by the LEA’s extended school year calendar.  Billable days shall include 


only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the 


IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student.  CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school 


calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA.  Nothing 


in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes. 


 


Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site.  A 


student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP 


Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA.  Extended school year shall consist of 


twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA.  Any 


days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, 


prior to the start of the extended school year. 


 


Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school 


year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be 


eligible for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays 


and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the 


delivery of any NPS service.  Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at 


the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA.  Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran’s 


Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President’s Day, 


Memorial Day and Independence Day.  With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date 


upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved 


calendar prior to the initiation of services.  CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified 


in the LEA-developed/approved calendar.  CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-


developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA.  Unless otherwise specified 


in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those 


days that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school.  


CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the 


LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing.  Student must have actually 


been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to 


be eligible for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on 


weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, 


in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR.  Any instructional days 


provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 


168/1089







 


14 
 


 


26. DATA REPORTING  
 


  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing 


information with LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, 


including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA.  It is 


understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, 


service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA.  Additional 


progress reporting may be required by the LEA as agreed upon by the IEP Team.  The LEA shall provide 


the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow 


adequate access. 


 


  Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon 


by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of 


all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a 


disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education 


Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral 


restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 


and 48915. 


   


  The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, 


but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports.  The LEA may approve use of 


CONTRACTOR’S provided forms at their discretion. 


 


27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  


 


  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive 


Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to 


have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum 


extent appropriate. 


 


  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings 


regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  This shall include IEP team consideration 


of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary 


to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings. 


 


When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, 


CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support 


the transition.   


 


28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  


 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer 


all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment 


(“CAA”), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness 


Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), and as appropriate to 


the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.  


 


CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code 


section 52052, in the same manner as public schools.  Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by 


the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability 


program.  LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff.   


CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as 


required by LEA. 


 


169/1089







 


15 
 


29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS 


 


CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and 


procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of:  curriculum, high school graduation, 


standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, 


dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized 


testing and IEPs.  LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings.  


Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s) if legally mandated by the Federal 


or State Departments of Education. 


 


30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1 


and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others 


must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with 


the federal law and it’s implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team 


determines that a student’s behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is 


required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to 


address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States 


Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention 


Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems 


through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 


regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 


all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based 


practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR’s pupil 


population.  The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact 


or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction 


with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance 


with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the 


training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request. 


 


Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for 


a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions 


may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of 


serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately 


prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the 


behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from 


the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as 


a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others.  It 


requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical 


intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property 


damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used.  Emergencies require 


a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours 


for administrative action.  CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone.  


If the student’s IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”) or Positive Behavior Intervention 


Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine 


if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan.  If the student 


already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been 


exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule 


with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.    


    


170/1089







 


16 
 


  Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay 


for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: 


(1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, 


electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant 


sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies 


adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An 


intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, 


ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive 


interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, 


including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques 


may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in 


a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that 


precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or 


more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of 


others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral 


interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 


1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. 


 


 All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are 


used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple 


uses by the same individual.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s parent/guardian when any type of 


physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used.  Upon the use of any type of physical or 


mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the 


reporting and notification requirements listed above.   


 


31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  
 


 CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with 


state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education 


or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, 


on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA 


student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory 


offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents 


resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of 


Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915. 


 


When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for 


disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA.  


Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to:  the student’s name; the time, date, and 


description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such 


disciplinary action.  A copy of the student’s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written 


discipline report.   CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an 


IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.   


  


32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS   


 


 An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each 


student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of 


Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the 


NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be 


transitioned to a public school setting.  (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) 


and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)   


 


 If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for 


any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided 


to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as 


171/1089







 


17 
 


the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the 


transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each 


student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team.  Except 


as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team 


meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  At any time during the term 


of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s 


IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and 


participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting.  Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team 


meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA.  


CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers 


upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures.  It is understood that attendance at an IEP 


meeting is part of CONTRACTOR’S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this 


Master Contract. 


  


 It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for 


all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion.  The LEA or SELPA may provide training 


for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain 


confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the 


system.  When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of 


the approved system for that student. 


 


Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting 


provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP.  In 


the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the 


CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change 


in the student’s placement.  Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement 


unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and 


appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.   


 


33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as 


the child’s parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under 


the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-


300.756.  A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 


42238.01(b).  The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the 


educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time 


after the completion of the pupil’s second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil 


in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice 


otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1. 


 


34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS   


 
CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations 


and hearings, as requested by LEA.  Participation further includes the willingness to make 


CONTRACTOR’s staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due 


process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of 


documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any 


other state and/or federal governmental body or agency.  Full participation shall include, but in no way be 


limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator 


and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of 


CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family 


Service Plan (“IFSP”). 


 


35.  COMPLAINT PROCEDURES   


172/1089







 


18 
 


 
  CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent 


complaints.  These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with 


appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following:  (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures 


pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy 


pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, 


California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) 


(d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and 


Accountability Act (“HIPAA”).  CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. 


CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students 


and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, 


including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation. 


 
36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS   


 
 Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards.  At a minimum, progress reports 


shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives.  A copy of the progress reports/report 


cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR’s place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and 


LEA student’s parent(s) quarterly. 


 


 The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to 


determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data 


sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress 


on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans.  The LEA may request such 


data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data 


supporting progress within five (5) business days of request.  Additional time may be granted as needed by 


the LEA. 
 


CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the 


student’s annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s present 


levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and 


pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices.  CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of 


its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days 


prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols 


and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.  


 


The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, 


progress reporting and development of present levels of performance.  All assessments resulting from an 


assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that 


CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment.  Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be 


added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA’s sole discretion. 


 


It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA.  For NPA 


services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, 


shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA.  Supervision means the direct observation of 


services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each 


professional’s license, certification, or credential. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report 


cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings.  


It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It 


is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s 


record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request. 


 


37. TRANSCRIPTS  


173/1089







 


19 
 


 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, 


or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on 


LEA approved forms to the student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of 


diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of 


students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA. 


 


 


38.  STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE   
 


  Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student’s change of 


residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student’s change of residence as specified 


in LEA Procedures.  Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation 


to notify CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and 


provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents. 


 


 If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s change of 


residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA 


shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student’s change of residence.   


 


39.  WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM   


 


CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business 


days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including 


student’s change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student’s discharge 


against professional advice from a NPS/RTC. 


 


40. PARENT ACCESS   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not 


limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters.  


CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA 


students. 


 


CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s reasonable 


request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC.  CONTRACTOR shall require 


that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA 


at least thirty (30) days in advance.  CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations 


and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate.  Payment by LEA for approved travel-


related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.  


 


CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least 


one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an 


emergency, is present.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA 


prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency 


situations.  The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization 


for emergency situation.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the 


NPS/NPA service provider. 


 


All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, 


to the LEA. 


 


41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL 


TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS   
 


174/1089







 


20 
 


  If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational 


placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and 


Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), 


AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 


772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI 


shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility. 


 


If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the 


Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code 


section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education 


Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code 


Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential 


care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s IEPs. CONTRACTOR shall meet all 


monitoring requirements as noted in Section 43 below. 
 


  If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special 


education.  For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education 


eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each 


student’s IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA. 


 


  Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed 


agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement 


until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement 


is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent or another adult with educational decision-


making rights. 


 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, 


special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the 


federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  
 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under 


California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550. 


 


43. MONITORING   
 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit 


during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a 


master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to 


the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward 


the goals set forth in the pupil’s individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making 


toward the goals set forth in the pupil’s behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the 


pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA (or SELPA) shall report the findings 


resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of 


the onsite visit.  


 


The LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does 


not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement. 


 


 CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring 


of each student’s instructional program.  LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe 


the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student’s records and progress.  Such 


access shall include unannounced monitoring visits.  When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to 


175/1089







 


21 
 


CONTRACTOR's site administrative office.  CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review 


of each student’s progress. 


 


 If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether 


CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 


1501.1(b).   


 


 The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S 


facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching 


staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the 


standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall 


complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and 


(3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as 


aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code 


section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant 


state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-


up or corrective action procedures related to review findings. 


 


CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause.  


The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; 


curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the 


applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California 


Education Code Section 33126. 


 


PERSONNEL 
 


44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS   
 


CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 


35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California 


Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of 


Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers who will 


have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that 


CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI 


clearance are ascertained.  CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and 


volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, 


or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious 


felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the 


employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for 


employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j).  Contractor shall certify to LEA 


that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all 


employees who may come into contact with students.  


 


Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, 


CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal 


background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each 


owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A.  CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, 


as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency.  Background 


clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 


11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.  


 


 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  


176/1089







 


22 
 


 


  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by 


CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, 


certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold  


in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to 


Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code 


of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065.  Such qualified staff may only provide related services 


within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each 


profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special 


education teacher’s scope of practice.   


 
  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services 


to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided 


to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)). 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and 


instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The 


administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An 


administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of 


experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school 


counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral 


Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master’s degree 


issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, 


behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special 


education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming 


an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral 


Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A 


license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California 


Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)) 


 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and 


teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 


45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq.  Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, 
instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by 


CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a 


high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications:  (a) 


completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s 


(or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or 


local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; 


or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and 


mathematics readiness, as appropriate.   CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations 


governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.  


 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by 


that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with 


Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS   


 


CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, 


certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or 


related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by 


CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents 


are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools.    CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA 


with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test 


177/1089







 


23 
 


clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to 


work with any student. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other 


documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR.  


CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes 


occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. 


CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers 


are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or 


lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be 


obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are 


expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is 


providing services under this Master Contract.  Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in 


credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension 


or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 


 


47. STAFF ABSENCE  


         


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service provider 


is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as 


determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s 


service providers.  It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute 


for their student.  LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or 


CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified 


service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been 


provided.  CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any 


circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA 


representative. 


 


48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR 


SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME 


 


It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to 


the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services.  All practices shall only be within 


the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession 


as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made 


available to the CONTRACTOR.   


 


For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A 


providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus 


consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the 


CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is 


responsible for the instructional program. 


 


CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that 


at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in 


an emergency is present during provision of services.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the 


parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and 


signed authorization in emergency situations.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer 


associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR 


to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA. 


 


HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 
 


49. HEALTH AND SAFETY   


 


178/1089







 


24 
 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, 


ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety.  CONTRACTOR 


shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health 


and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s employees and 


volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual 


volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before 


an individual comes in contact with a student. 


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal 


Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student.  


CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and 


to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code. 


 


50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS   


 


  CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply 


with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to:  


disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning 


permits; and occupancy capacity.  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire 


drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550.  CONTRACTOR shall be 


responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required 


complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the 


LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension 


or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 


 


51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  


 


CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when 


CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication 


during the school day.  CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the 


administration of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written 


statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which 


such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting 


CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement.  


CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements.  


CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered.  Such 


written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each 


administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s employee who administered the medication.  


CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration 


of such medication consistent with physician’s written orders.  Any change in medication type, 


administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.   


 


52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA.  


CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures 


specified in LEA Procedures.  


 


53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING   
 


CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are 


familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and 


procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To 


protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain 


confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates.  A written statement acknowledging the 


179/1089







 


25 
 


legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted 


to the LEA.  


 


 


 


 


54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 


 


CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds 


of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as 


well as federal and state law.  The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of 


retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints.  


CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning 


sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.  


 


55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN   


 


  CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to 


adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 


49370.  A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of 


staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA.  The written statement shall be 


submitted as specified by the LEA. 


 


FINANCIAL 
 


56.  ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND 


BILLING PROCEDURES  


 


  CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an 


appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to 


implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student. 


 


  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance 


reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA 


Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services 


specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms 


and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and 


services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides.  Original attendance 


forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for 


instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be 


completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available 


for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five 


(5) years thereafter.  CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the 


basis of services being billed for payment. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month 


when education or related services were provided.  Invoices and related documents shall be properly 


submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. 


At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and 


times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed 


to by the LEA;  name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service 


and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing 


that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; 


verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent 


180/1089







 


26 
 


with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly 


or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service 


was provided.   


 


In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.  


 


Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract.  At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic 


invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the 


CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training. 


 


Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period 


in which the services were rendered.  LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number 


of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) 


days of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in 


California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA.   CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and 


submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA.  LEA 


shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely 


corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA. 


 


In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) 


extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year.  In no case shall any rebilling for the Master 


Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year 


unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay 


in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, 


but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year.  If the billing or re-billing error is the 


responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have 


communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year.  


LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee. 


 


57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT   
  


 LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when:  (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole 


or in part,  under the terms of this contract;  (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days 


other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive 


services; (c)  CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of 


its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation 


with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e)  education and/or related services are provided to 


students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f)  LEA has 


not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning  one or more students 


enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s 


change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to 


notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation;   or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from 


Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood 


that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close 


of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.  


 


 Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a 


Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for 


regular ongoing operations.  In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a 


review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA.  Such review or audit will be completed within ninety 


(90) days.  The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR 


determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the 


CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected. 


 


The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding 


paragraph are as follows:  (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of 


181/1089







 


27 
 


overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been 


provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not 


appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e)  the proportionate amount of the invoice 


related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation 


is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for 


the service provided to the student.  
 


If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) 


business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding 


payment.  Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to 


be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all 


necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding 


payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies.  Upon receipt of 


CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s time to 


correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied. 


If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should 


not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes 


payment should not be withheld.  LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business 


days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes 


payment should not be made.  If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding 


the withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, 


CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.  


After forty-five (45) business days:  The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s Representative 


of the dispute in writing.  The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in 


writing within fifteen (15) business days.   


After sixty (60) business days:  Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the 


Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of 


Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2). 
 


58.  PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES   
 


  CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated 


with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR 


shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or 


any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to 


students. 
 


59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  
  


 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE 
 


 Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an 


appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California 


Education Code section 56061.  CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute 


coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures.  Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during 


all instructional time.  LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is 


provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher. 


 


 Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in 


Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute.  LEA will not pay for services unless a 


qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision 


of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on 


which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student’s IEP. 
 


 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE 


182/1089







 


28 
 


 


 If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student’s unexcused absence, 


CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.   
 


Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California 


Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307.   LEA shall not pay for services provided on days 


that a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under 


state law.  Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be 


adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was 


served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student’s 


attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor 


shall student be eligible for make-up services. 
 


NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE 
 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless 


LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers.  LEA shall not pay for 


services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation 


evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar 


days from the date on which the services should have been provided.  CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or 


“carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by 


CONTRACTOR and LEA.  In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not 


provided shall be included. 
 


NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE  
 


If CONTRACTOR is a NPA, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) 


consecutive service day of the student’s absence.  LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services 


when a student is absent.   


 


 60.  CONTRACTOR’S CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY  


 A. THE FIRST THREE (3) DAYS OF EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES:  


For the first three (3) days of any emergency school closure of the CONTRACTOR’s site due to a 


natural disaster or unavoidable crisis event(s) as described under Education Code Section 41422 


(hereinafter “emergency school closure”), payment will be in accord with sub-paragraph “C.2” of 


Paragraph 60, below.   


When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA it serves of any 


lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEA shall work collaboratively to determine the 


need for make-up days or service changes and shall work together to amend the IEP and ISA as 


appropriate.  


B. EXTENDED EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES EXCEEDING THREE (3) 


CONSECUTIVE SCHOOL DAYS: 


“Extended emergency school closure” is defined as an emergency school closure that exceeds three (3) 


consecutive school days (which may include days from the prior school year), thereby necessitating 


either (A) alternative days/weeks, where a hybrid program involving a combination of physical school 


183/1089







 


29 
 


attendance and Distance Learning Programs is adopted, or (B) 100% Distance Learning, as defined 


below.  For any extended school closure of the CONTRACTOR’s site, the following provisions will 


apply from the first day of the closure: 


 


1.  Distance Learning Programs:   


In accordance with any the California Department of Education (“CDE”) guidance (whether or not the 


CDE explicitly states its guidance is applicable to nonpublic schools or agencies), and SELPA and/or 


LEA consultation, CONTRACTOR shall provide a Distance Learning Program during an extended 


school closure.  


“Distance learning” means instruction in which the pupil and instructor are in different locations and 


pupils are under the general supervision of a certificated employee of the local educational agency. 


Distance learning may include, but is not limited to, all of the following: 


● Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a 


computer or communications technology. 


● Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and 


certificated employee of the NPS is online interaction, instructional television, video, 


telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology. 


● The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral 


feedback. 


 


“In-person instruction” means instruction under the immediate physical supervision and control of a 


certificated employee of the NPS while engaged in educational activities required of the pupil. 


 


For  all  related services and instruction provided through virtual platforms, the CONTRACTOR will 


use due diligence to ensure  the privacy of each student’s learning, in compliance with the Family 


Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), and the Health Insurance Portability and 


Accountability Act  (“HIPAA”);Children's Internet Protection Act (“CIPA”); Children’s Online Privacy 


Protection Act (“COPPA”); and any other laws which protect the safety and confidentiality of students’ 


information.  


  


During distance learning, safeguards shall be in place in accordance with state mandates, and shall 


include the following:  


  


● Confirmation of provision of access for all pupils to connectivity and devices provided by the 


LEA adequate to participate in the educational program, including distance learning,  and to 


complete assigned work. 


● Content aligned to grade level or alternative standards, provided at a level of quality and 


challenge substantially equivalent to in-person instruction. 


● Academic and other supports designed to address the needs of pupils who are not making 


expected progress or who need support in other areas, such as English learners, pupils in foster 


care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring mental health supports. 


● Designated and integrated instruction in English language development pursuant to Section 


11300 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations for English learners, including assessment 


of English language proficiency, support to access curriculum, the ability to reclassify as fully 


English proficient, and, as applicable, support for dual language learning. 


184/1089







 


30 
 


● Daily live interaction with certificated employees of the NPS and peers for purposes of 


instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school connectedness. This interaction may 


take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under 


public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, NPS 


CONTRACTOR and LEA shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan 


for frequent live interaction that provides a comparable level of service and school 


connectedness. 


● Comparable special education services in the form of Distance Learning Plans (addressed below) 


which are substantially equivalent to the quality and rigor of in person services. 


● Procedures to re-engage students who are absent from distance learning for more than three days 


or 60 percent of the instructional days in a school week. On the third day of student absence, or 


at which point the student is absent from distance learning activities for 60 percent of the 


instructional days in a school week, the LEA will be notified by the NPS.  The NPS will 


collaborate with the LEA and determine the necessity of an IEP meeting and/or further 


procedures for student re-engagement. 


 


2.   Distance Learning Services:  


In the event a pupil does not have a Distance Learning Plan in place at the time of an extended 


emergency school closure, the following provisions shall apply for Distance Learning Services: 


a.  Within five (5) days of a school closure, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the 


LEA a plan for the provision of remote and/or distance learning educational services for 


each pupil who will receive special education and/or related services provided by the 


CONTRACTOR through a Distance Learning model or hybrid model (“Distance Learning 


Plan”). The CONTRACTOR and LEA shall discuss and mutually agree to the Distance 


Learning Plan. The LEA shall not unreasonably withhold approval of the Distance Learning 


Plan but may base its approval on the Distance Learning Plan’s consistency with applicable 


state and federal guidance. The CONTRACTOR will implement the agreed-upon Distance 


Learning Plan within ten school days of the emergency closure.  


b.  Based on the applicable ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain logs reflecting 


dates, times, manner, and description of services provided in accordance with the Distance 


Learning Plan, or tracking documents as mutually agreed upon with LEA. NPS will provide 


to LEA upon request.  


c. Within the current ISAs between the Parties, there may be services that cannot 


reasonably be provided under the Distance Learning Plan. These services will be identified 


in the course of the development of the Distance Learning Plan and CONTRACTOR shall 


not charge for services that cannot be provided. 


d.  If an extended emergency school closure occurs, the LEA may, at any time, 


terminate the Master Contract or the ISA upon twenty (20) days written notice, as provided 


in Section 14 of the Master Contract.  


3.   Legal Guidance.  


Nothing herein shall impede the CDE, Governor, Public Health Officials or Agencies, or state or federal 


legislature from issuing its own guidance, requirements, conditions or reporting requirements.  In that 


event, the parties will adhere to those requirements to the extent applicable, and all Contract provisions 


185/1089







 


31 
 


shall be deemed amended to conform to such requirements as if they were written herein, unless a party 


challenges the directive or applicability of the directive with the CDE, and/or any other judicial or quasi-


judicial body with jurisdiction to adjudicate the challenge.  


  4.  Attendance While Distance Learning Programs are in Effect.  


A day of positive student attendance shall be defined during the extended school closure as each 


documented day the student participates in the CONTRACTOR’s Distance Learning Program, for 


either the partial or full program for that day, as documented.  


A student is determined to be “absent” for both Basic Education and Related Services on days 


when there has been no participation by the student with CONTRACTOR’s Distance Learning 


Program and/or support service(s).  


Accessible attendance records will be kept in accordance with procedures agreed upon in Section 9 of 


the Master Contract, as well as detailed services logs reflecting dates, times (including duration), 


manner, and description of services will be provided upon request.  


  5.  Utilization of Behavioral Support Staff in Distance Learning.  


Behavior Implementation Intervention  providers, Behavior Implementation Development providers, 


and Intensive Individualized Services/Special Circumstance Instructional Assistance providers may be 


utilized in alternative ways to support student progress toward goals on the IEP or the Distance Learning 


Plan. The above named support providers who are normally utilized for direct student interaction and 


supervision may be utilized to provide assistance to students and consultation with their family 


members/adult caregivers and/or teachers in facilitating student access to Distance Learning via video, 


telephone, or other virtual methods, as well as via paper packets or other assignments as agreed upon by 


LEA and CONTRACTOR. During the extended emergency school closure period, such services may be 


billed as if they were directly delivered, as detailed below, in lieu of traditionally delivered Designated 


Instructional (Related) Services.  


  6.  Transportation Services for Distance Learning.  


With prior authorization from the SELPA/LEA, for those students with who have transportation 


provided by CONTRACTOR listed on their ISA, in lieu of daily transportation, transportation staff and 


equipment may be utilized up to once per week for student delivery of materials, equipment, or any 


other transportation needed to facilitate Distance Learning Programs. Documentation of transportation 


services will be separately maintained by Nonpublic School CONTRACTOR and submitted with the 


monthly invoice. If a student is transported during the week (e.g., as part of a hybrid model in which 


students are attending in person for part of the week), this service will not be offered because materials 


can be provided directly to the student and brought home by the student.  


C. Payment for Services During Emergency School Closures.  


186/1089







 


32 
 


The billing and payment provisions of the Master Contract and applicable ISAs are modified as follows 


while Distance Learning Programs are in effect during Emergency School Closure during the Regular 


School Year: 


1. Regular School Year:  For students not attending extended school year, payment for 


student attendance does not begin until the first day of Regular School Year. 


2. Initial Closure.  During the first three days of the first emergency school closure 


during a contract year, if the LEA receives reimbursement for education services from 


the state for an emergency school closure, the LEA will pay CONTRACTOR at 100% 


for their regularly scheduled services according to the ISA, regardless of whether 


services are provided.  


 


3. Multiple Closures:   In the case of CONTRACTOR experiencing multiple emergency 


closures and multiple re-openings within the course of the school year, the LEA shall 


make payment to the CONTRACTOR for those services provided by the 


CONTRACTOR pursuant to the approved Distance Learning Plan, at the regular rate for 


such services, as set forth in the Master Contract.  


 


 


61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT   
 


 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, 


records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed 


to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to:  student records 


as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service 


logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service 


logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior 


intervention aides,  bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone 


logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, 


documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-


paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school 


calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; 


state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other 


documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and 


bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.  Such access shall include unannounced 


inspections by LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including 


operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.  


 


CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR’s offices (to be 


specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge.  All records shall be provided to LEA within 


five (5) working days of a written request from LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide 


assistance for such examination or audit.  LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to 


CONTRACTOR’s offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees.  If any document or 


evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA 


agrees to the use of the electronic format. 
 


187/1089







 


33 
 


CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements 


of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.  
 


If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent 


agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over 


billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA 


shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying 


the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, 


CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or 


failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by 


an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. 


CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice 


demanding payment. 


  


62. RATE SCHEDULE 
 


 The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum 


dollar amount of the contract.  It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided 


specific services.  Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may 


be adjusted proportionally.  In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on 


the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 


46200-46208. 


 


 Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified 


personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related 


services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A. 


 


63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 


 
By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that: 


 
(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently 


debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by 
any Federal agency, and 


 
(b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil 


judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or 
subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these 
offenses. 
 


188/1089







 


34 
 


The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or 
representatives.  This contract is effective on the       20    day of October 2021 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. 
on June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 


 
CONTRACTOR     LEA 
 
BALANCE4KIDS 
___________________________________ __North Santa Cruz County SELPA_______ 
Nonpublic School/Agency   LEA Name 
 
 
By: ________________________________ By:  __________________________________ 
        Signature                              Date            Signature                                   Date 
  
Ashley Basanese, Executive Director 


________________________________ _Jessica Little, Sr. SELPA Director___________ 
Name and Title of Authorized  Name and Title of Authorized  
Representative Representative   


 
 
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: Notices to LEA shall be addressed to: 


 


Jessica Little, Sr. SELPA Director 


Name and Title 


Ashley Basenese 


Name and Title 


North Santa Cruz County SELPA 


Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider LEA 


BALANCE4KIDS 400 Encinal Street 


Address 


2601 Porter Street 


Address 


Santa Cruz                      CA                   95060 


City   State        Zip 


Soquel                            CA                          95073      


City   State        Zip 


831-466-5700 


Phone                                   Fax 


(831) 464 8669                  (831) 457 0405 


Phone                                   Fax 


jlittle@santacruzcoe.org 


Email 


ashley@balancescc.org 


Email 


  


 Additional LEA Notification 


(Required if completed) 


 Name and Title 


 Address 


 City   State        Zip 


 Phone                                   Fax 


 Email 


 
 


189/1089







 


35 
 


 
EXHIBIT A:   2021-2022 RATES 


 


CONTRACTOR  Oasis CONTRACTOR  NUMBER    


 (NONPUBLIC SCHOOL OR AGENCY)   
 


Per CDE Certification, total enrollment may not exceed   If blank, the number shall be as determine by  
CDE Certification. 


 
Rate Schedule. This rate schedule limits the number of LEA students that may be enrolled and the maximum dollar amount of   the contract.  
It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services.  Special education   and/or related services offered 
by CONTRACTOR, and the charges for such educational and/or related services during the   term of this contract shall be as follows: 


  Payment under this contract may not exceed  
Total LEA enrollment may not exceed     


 
       Rate      Period 


A.  Basic Education Program/Special Education Instruction  $320  DAY 


    Program Design  $100  HOUR 


Per Diem rates for LEA students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day shall be adjusted proportionally. 
 B.  Related Services 


(1) a.  Transportation – Round Trip  $200  round trip/daily 


rate 


 b.  Transportation – One Way     


 c.  Transportation – Dual  Enrollment     


 d.  Public Transportation     


 e.  Parent*     


(2) a.  Psychological Services  $150  HOUR 


 b.  Educational Counseling – Group of ____     


 c.  Counseling – Parent     


(3) a.  Adapted Physical Education – Individual     


 b.  Adapted Physical Education – Group of  ____     


 c.  Adapted Physical Education – Group of  ____     


(4)  a.  Certified Sign Language Interpreter     


(5) a.  SCIA** – Individual    (must be authorized on IEP)  $220  DAY 


 b.  Agency Linkages  $200  MONTH 


 c.  SCIA – Group of 3 


d.  Classroom Instructional Assistance – Per diem or per hour 


    


(6) Intensive Special Education Instruction***     


(7)   Language and Speech Therapy – Individual and Consultation     


(8) Occupational Therapy – Individual and Consultation  $150  HOUR 


(9) a.  Behavior Intervention- BII – Level I     


 b.  Behavior Intervention- BII – Level II     


 c. BCBA Assistant – Behavior Intervention Program Coach     


 d. Junior BCBA      
 e. Behavior Intervention Development- BID     
      
(10) 


(11) 


Health and Nursing 


Health Care Aide II (Personal Care Medical) 


 $150  HOUR 


(12) Transcriber     
 
 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


190/1089







 


36 
 


EXHIBIT B:   2021-2022 ISA 
 


INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES 
(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.) 


 


 
This agreement is effective on  July 1, 2021 or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency, 
if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by applicable law. 
 
Local Education Agency          Nonpublic School          


 
LEA Case Manager:  Name          Phone Number          
  
Pupil Name                              Sex: ☐  M  ☐  F    Grade:           
                                      (Last)                                                       (First)                                   (M.I.) 
Address          City           State/Zip           
 
DOB             Residential Setting:   ☐ Home ☐ Foster  ☐ LCI  #              ☐ OTHER           
 
Parent/Guardian          Phone (      )           (       )       
                                 (Residence)                       (Business) 
Address          City           State/Zip           
                                      (If different from student) 
 
AGREEMENT TERMS: 
 


1. Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the instructional day will be:             during the regular school year 


            during the extended school year 
 
2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:           during the regular school year 


           during the extended school year 
 
3. Educational services as specified in the IEP shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid at the rates specified below. 
 


A.  INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM RATE:  (Applies to nonpublic schools only):    Daily Rate:          
  
Estimated Number of Days          x Daily Rate          = PROJECTED BASIC EDUCATION  COSTS                
  
B.  RELATED SERVICES: 


 Provider     


SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 
Specify 


# of Times per 
wk/mo/yr., Duration;  


or per IEP;  
or as needed 


Cost per 
session 


Maximum 
Number of 
Sessions 


Estimated Maximum 
Total Cost for 


Contracted Period 


Intensive Individual Services (340) 
 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


Language/Speech Therapy (415) 
a.  Individual 
b.  Group 


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


 
      
      


Adapted Physical Ed. (425) 
                                          


Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical 
Health Care (435) 


                                          


Health and Nursing Services: Other (436) 
                                          


Assistive Technology Services (445) 
                                          


Occupational Therapy (450) 
                                          


Physical Therapy (460) 
                                          


Individual Counseling (510) 
                                          


Counseling and guidance (515).    
                                          


 Parent Counseling (520) 
                                          


191/1089







 


37 
 


Social Work Services (525) 
                                          


Psychological Services (530) 
                                          


Behavior Intervention Services (535) 
                                          


Specialized Services for Low Incidence 
Disabilities (610) 


                                          


Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
Services (710) 


                                          


Interpreter Services (715) 
                                          


Audiological Services (720) 
                                          


Specialized Vision Services (725) 
                                          


Orientation and Mobility (730) 
                                          


Braille Transcription (735) 
                                          


Specialized Orthopedic Service (740) 
                                          


Reader Services (745) 
                                          


Note Taking Services (750) 
                                          


Transcription Services (755) 
                                          


Recreation Services (760) 
                                          


College Awareness Preparation (820) 
                                          


Vocational Assessment, Counseling, 
Guidance and Career Assessment (830) 


                                          


Career Awareness (840) 
                                          


Work Experience Education (850) 
                                          


Mentoring (860) 
                                          


Agency Linkages (865) 
                                          


Travel Training (870) 
                                          


Other Transition Services (890) 
                                          


Other (900)J 
                                          


Other (900) 
                                          


Transportation-Emergency 
b. Transportation-Parent 
 


                                          


Bus Passes 
                                          


Other 
                                          


 
 ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST$              


 
 


TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES COSTS $            
 
4.   Other Provisions/Attachments: 


          


192/1089







 


38 
 


  
 
5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON               
 


  6.Progress Reporting 


Requirements:       


 Quarterl


y 


 Monthl


y 


 Other 


(Specify) 


 


 


 


 


The parties hereto have executed this Individual Services Agreement by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives as set forth 


below. 


 


-CONTRACTOR- -LEA/SELPA- 


 


  


(Name of Nonpublic School/Agency) 


 


  


  
(Name of 


LEA/SELPA)


  


 


  


(Signature)                                                   (Date) 


 


  


(Signature)                                                                                (Date) 


 


  


(Name and Title) 


 


  


(Name of Superintendent or Authorized Designee) 


 
 


 


 
  


 


193/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Thoughtexchange Additional Licenses  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the quote from ThoughtExchange for ten additional leader licenses. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools District Office currently uses ThoughtExchange to include and connect 
with stakeholders and the community to engage stakeholders and seek feedback. The purchase 
of additional licenses will allow principals within the District the ability to lead conversations 
with their students, parents, teachers, and other stakeholders from the community. The 
licenses include, but are not limited to, unlimited exchanges, unlimited participants, and full 
access to analytics and reports.  
 
The amount below includes the original district license, $12,000, which was previously Board 
approved.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$28,800 COVID LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


194/1089







Page 1


Thoughtexchange Draft Quote
All Amounts are in USD


Fulcrum Management Solutions Inc.


Suite 404
9116 E Sprague Ave.


Spokane Valley, WA 99206


Customer Santa Cruz City Schools Account Manager


To Kris Munro and Alyssa Martinez Alan Miljkovic


Date 2021-09-28 250-683-8179


Quote valid till 2021-10-31 alan.miljkovic@thoughtexchange.com


QUOTE SUMMARY


Product Price


Products: 1 Mid Size Rooms (up to 10 Licenses) $36,000


Additions:


Discount One Time Discount (20%) $7,200


Annual Price $28,800


FEATURES INCLUDED (in all Options above)


* Unlimited exchanges * Unlimited participants * Full access reports


* Full access analytics * Presenter mode * Multilingual exchanges


* AI generated themes * Administrative Controls * Beta access to new features


* Machine Moderation * Survey Questions * Custom Logo


* Participant Grouping


SERVICES INCLUDED (in all Options above)


* Phone, chat and email support * Access to Exchange Gallery


* Access to TE events * Access to Customer Success


195/1089







Page 2


Thoughtexchange Draft Quote


Fulcrum Management Solutions Inc.


Suite 404


9116 E Sprague Ave.


Spokane Valley, WA 99206


Agreement
Upon verbal, email, or written acceptance of this quote we will prepare an agreement that will outline the Services you are purchasing and the price to be paid.


Thoughtexchange Services are provided on an annual subscription basis. Your subscription to our Services is automatically renewed annually for a year term at the 
Annual Price, subject to a 5% annual increase, unless you provide us with notice of cancellation within 60 days of the annual anniversary of your agreement.


We will provide you with minimum 120 days' notice of any price increases.                


Terms
Thoughtexchange is a hosted Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) platform. Thoughtexchange allows Exchange Leaders to engage with Participants in structured online 
interactions. We call each of these interactions an Exchange. Each Exchange is created by an “Exchange Leader” designated by you, our customer. A “Participant” is any 
other person who participates in the Exchange.


Exchange Leaders and Participants can access Thoughtexchange via most popular web browsers on standard desktop and mobile platforms (see https://get.
thoughtexchange.help for a list of supported platforms). A Thoughtexchange iOS app is also available from the Apple App Store.


Privacy and Security
Thoughtexchange’s SaaS platform is SOC II compliant.


Base Features and Services
·   Exchange Leader subscriptions: Each holder of an Exchange Leader account can create their own Exchanges and have access to special Thoughtexchange features.                
·   Unlimited Exchanges: An Exchange Leader can create an unlimited number of Exchanges.                
·   Unlimited Participants per Exchange: Exchanges have no limit on the number of participants, although Exchanges including more than a few thousand participants 
are best served with Thoughtexchange assistance.
·   Analytics and Data Visualization: You have access to analytics and data visualization that is automatically generated by the software.                
·   Multilingual: The Thoughtexchange user interface runs natively in either English, French or Spanish. Exchanges can be created where Participants can participate in 
the same Exchange in any language that Google Translate supports.         
·   Hosting: We provide all hosting of all runtime software, data, and data backups.                
·   Software Upgrades: We provide periodic software upgrades with new functionality for Participants and Exchange Leaders. We provide release notes to customers 
and Exchange Leaders informing them of what has changed with each release.        
·   24x7 System Availability: The online services are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week except in the case of planned system maintenance outages or unplanned 
outages. In either case, we will make reasonable attempts to minimize the number and duration of these outages.                
·  Email and phone support                
·  Online access to help and resources                


Additional Features
At any time you can request more Thoughtexchange Features by speaking with your Account Manager. We can provide you with a quote for the new Features and can 
create an agreement document to add these Features at the agreed price.


Example additional features are:
Single sign-on (SSO)
Participant grouping
Additional Leaders


196/1089







 


  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 19Six Architects Amendment Agreement for Multi-Project 
Overhead Architectural Services at Bay View Elementary School 
for the 21/22 Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 19Six Architects amendment agreement for multi-project overhead architectural 
services at Bay View Elementary School for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with 19Six Architects Inc. (formerly Madi 
Architecture) on 2/1/17. This agreement amendment is for architectural services for the 21/22 
fiscal year to include regular updates to SCCS Measure A/B Dashboard and the Architect’s 
Budget Tool, preparation for quarterly site bond committee meetings and quarterly Board 
presentations in connection with the Bay View Elementary School bond projects.  This 
agreement reflects estimated costs for services for Bay View Elementary School for this fiscal 
year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$75,000.00 Estimated Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.60% of the site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the amount allocated to Bay View Elementary School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


197/1089







 


 


OWNER/ARCHITECT CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 002 
 


Date: September 23, 2021 


 


Project: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Bay View Elementary School 


Multi-Project Overhead 


19six No.: MCSBV0.01 


 


Description: Fee for ongoing services and additional scope for fiscal year 2021/2022 


 


Contract Date: July 1, 2021 


  


Modifications to Basic Contract: 


 


Project Description: 


Multi-Project Overhead is a time and material allowance for Bond project support to develop projects not 


currently under contract and gain Community consensus for the new projects. Projects under 


consideration are within the description of the Bond language.  


 


Scope of Amended Services and Fees: 


Amendments to the following Multi-Project Overhead for fiscal year 2021/2022 services include:  


 


Ongoing Principal, Site Council, Facility Department and Superintendent meetings 
Furniture standards, solicitation, and coordination 
Design studies for remaining funds from the initial Bond allocation and for the additional secondary 
allocation of funds 
Digital/Physical ribbon cuttings 
Planning for new projects include, but not limited to: 
• Portable Demo 
• Site Improvements e.g., playground improvements & shade structures 
• Any other scope agreed to by site council and staff 


 


Contract Amendment No. 00 Fee $ 75,000   


 


198/1089







19six No.: MCSBV0.01 Amendment 2 – Multi Project Overhead 


 September 23, 2021 


Page 2 of 2 


 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below, and return a copy for our records or have 


your legal counsel or accounting department prepare a formal contract revision.  Please provide written 


authorization below while the formal contract is being prepared.   


Thank you for this opportunity to be of service. 


Sincerely, Accepted by: 


 __________________________________________ 


Alan Kroeker, Architect Signature 


President  


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
Name (printed) 


 
__________________________________________ 
Title 


Ralph le Roux, Principal 


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
 Date 


 


 


 


199/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 19Six Architects Amendment Agreement for Multi-Project 
Overhead Architectural Services at Branciforte Small Schools for 
the 21/22 Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 19Six Architects amendment agreement for multi-project overhead architectural 
services at Branciforte Small Schools for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with 19Six Architects Inc. (formerly Madi 
Architecture) on 2/1/17.  This agreement amendment is for architectural services for the 21/22 
fiscal year to include regular updates to SCCS Measure A/B Dashboard and the Architect’s 
Budget Tool, preparation for quarterly site bond committee meetings and quarterly Board 
presentations in connection with the Branciforte Small Schools bond projects.   This agreement 
reflects estimated costs for services for Branciforte Small Schools for this fiscal year.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$30,000.00 Estimated Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.34% of the site budget 
$8,579,099.00 is the amount allocated to Branciforte Small Schools 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


200/1089







 


 


OWNER/ARCHITECT CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 002 
 


Date: September 23, 2021 


 


Project: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Branciforte Small Schools 


Multi-Project Overhead 


19six No.: MCSBF0.01 


 


Description: Fee for ongoing services and additional scope for fiscal year 2021/2022 


 


Contract Date: July 1, 2021 


  


Modifications to Basic Contract: 


 


Project Description: 


Multi-Project Overhead is a time and material allowance for Bond project support to develop projects not 


currently under contract and gain Community consensus for the new projects. Projects under 


consideration are within the description of the Bond language.  


 


Scope of Amended Services and Fees: 


Amendments to the following Multi-Project Overhead for fiscal year 2021/2022 services include:  


 


Ongoing Principal, Site Council, Facility Department and Superintendent meetings 
Design studies for remaining funds from the initial Bond allocation and for the additional secondary 
allocation of funds 
Digital/Physical ribbon cuttings 
Possible new projects include, but not limited to: 
• Site & Improvements  
• Building improvements 
• Furniture Design 
• Any other scope agreed to by site council and staff 


 


Contract Amendment No. 002 Fee $ 30,000   


 


201/1089







19six No.: MCSBF0.01 Amendment 2 – Multi Project Overhead 


 September 23, 2021 


Page 2 of 2 


 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below, and return a copy for our records or have 


your legal counsel or accounting department prepare a formal contract revision.  Please provide written 


authorization below while the formal contract is being prepared.   


Thank you for this opportunity to be of service. 


Sincerely, Accepted by: 


 __________________________________________ 


Alan Kroeker, Architect Signature 


President  


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
Name (printed) 


 
__________________________________________ 
Title 


Ralph le Roux, Principal 


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
 Date 


 


 


 


202/1089







 


  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 19Six Architects Amendment Agreement for Multi-Project 
Overhead Architectural Services at DeLaveaga Elementary School 
for the 21/22 Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 19Six Architects amendment agreement for multi-project overhead architectural 
services at DeLaveaga Elementary School for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with 19Six Architects Inc. (formerly Madi 
Architecture) on 2/1/17. This agreement amendment is for architectural services for the 20/21 
fiscal year to include regular updates to SCCS Measure A/B Dashboard and the Architect’s 
Budget Tool, preparation for quarterly site bond committee meetings and quarterly Board 
presentations in connection with the DeLaveaga Elementary School bond projects.   This 
agreement reflects estimated costs for services for DeLaveaga for this fiscal year.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$70,000.00 Estimated Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.49% of the site budget 
$14,188,861.00 is the amount allocated to DeLaveaga Elementary School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


203/1089







 


 


OWNER/ARCHITECT CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 002 
 


Date: September 23, 2021 


 


Project: Santa Cruz City Schools 


DeLaveaga Elementary School 


Multi-Project Overhead 


19six No.: MCSDV0.01 


 


Description: Fee for ongoing services and additional scope for fiscal year 2021/2022 


 


Contract Date: July 1, 2021 


  


Modifications to Basic Contract: 


 


Project Description: 


Multi-Project Overhead is a time and material allowance for Bond project support to develop projects not 


currently under contract and gain Community consensus for the new projects. Projects under 


consideration are within the description of the Bond language.  


 


Scope of Amended Services and Fees: 


Amendments to the following Multi-Project Overhead for fiscal year 2021/2022 services include:  


 


Ongoing Principal, Site Council, Facility Department and Superintendent meetings 
Design studies for remaining funds from the initial Bond allocation and for the additional secondary 
allocation of funds 
Digital/Physical ribbon cuttingsPossible new projects include, but not limited to: 
• Portable Demo 
• Site Improvements e.g., playground improvements  
• HVAC improvements 
• Reroofing 
• Any other scope agreed to by site council and staff 


 


Contract Amendment No. 002 Fee $ 70,000   


 


204/1089







19six No.: MCSDV0.01 Amendment 2 – Multi Project Overhead 


 September 23, 2021 


Page 2 of 2 


 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below, and return a copy for our records or have 


your legal counsel or accounting department prepare a formal contract revision.  Please provide written 


authorization below while the formal contract is being prepared.   


Thank you for this opportunity to be of service. 


Sincerely, Accepted by: 


 __________________________________________ 


Alan Kroeker, Architect Signature 


President  


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
Name (printed) 


 
__________________________________________ 
Title 


Ralph le Roux, Principal 


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
 Date 


 


 


 


205/1089







 


  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 19Six Architects Amendment Agreement for Multi-Project 
Overhead Architectural Services at Soquel High School for the 
21/22 Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 19Six Architects amendment agreement for multi-project overhead architectural 
services at Soquel High Small School for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with 19Six Architects Inc. (formerly Madi 
Architecture) on 2/1/17.  This agreement amendment is for architectural services for the 20/21 
fiscal year to include regular updates to SCCS Measure A/B Dashboard and the Architect’s 
Budget Tool, preparation for quarterly site bond committee meetings and quarterly Board 
presentations in connection with the Soquel High School bond projects.  This agreement 
reflects estimated costs for services for Soquel High for this fiscal year.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$70,000.00 Estimated Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.20% of the site budget 
$34,830,967.00 is the amount allocated to Soquel High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


206/1089







 


 


OWNER/ARCHITECT CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 002 
 


Date: September 23, 2021 


 


Project: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Soquel High School 


Multi-Project Overhead 


19six No.: MCSSQ0.01 


 


Description: Fee for ongoing services and additional scope for fiscal year 2021/2022 


 


Contract Date: July 1, 2021 


  


Modifications to Basic Contract: 


 


Project Description: 


Multi-Project Overhead is a time and material allowance for Bond project support to develop projects not 


currently under contract and gain Community consensus for the new projects. Projects under 


consideration are within the description of the Bond language.  


 


Scope of Amended Services and Fees: 


Amendments to the following Multi-Project Overhead for fiscal year 2021/2022 services include:  


 


Ongoing Principal, Site Council, Facility Department and Superintendent meetings 
Design studies for remaining funds from the initial Bond allocation and for the additional secondary 
allocation of funds 
Digital/Physical ribbon cuttings 
Possible new projects include, but not limited to: 
• Site & Security Improvements  
• Building improvements 
• Furniture Design 
• Any other scope agreed to by site council and staff 


 


Contract Amendment No. 002 Fee $ 70,000   


 


207/1089







19six No.: MCSSQ0.01 Amendment 2 – Multi Project Overhead 


 September 23, 2021 


Page 2 of 2 


 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below, and return a copy for our records or have 


your legal counsel or accounting department prepare a formal contract revision.  Please provide written 


authorization below while the formal contract is being prepared.   


Thank you for this opportunity to be of service. 


Sincerely, Accepted by: 


 __________________________________________ 


Alan Kroeker, Architect Signature 


President  


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
Name (printed) 


 
__________________________________________ 
Title 


Ralph le Roux, Principal 


19six Architects __________________________________________ 
 Date 


 


 


 


208/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal for Bay View Elementary School 
Fencing 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Abacherli Fence Co. proposal for Bay View Elementary School fencing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of adjustments to the adjusting fence lines to create more outdoor 
learning space.  This request came from the Bay View Bond site committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,365.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01 % of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


209/1089







210/1089







211/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal for Mission Hill Middle School Gate 
Lock 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Abacherli Fence Co. proposal for Mission Hill Middle School gate lock installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials to install a magnetic lock on the gate at Mission 
Hill Middle School. This is to allow programming of the gate to have a feature that will allow the 
gate to remain open for afterhours facility use parking. This will reduce street congestion for 
our neighbors.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,420.00 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


212/1089







213/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Gate 
Replacement 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Abacherli Fence Co. proposal for Santa Cruz High School gate replacement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the replacement of damaged gates at the shop complex at Santa Cruz 
High School.   This gate provides important security for the shop classrooms.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,850.00 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


214/1089







215/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Anaya Construction Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary 
Housing 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Anaya Construction proposal for Santa Cruz High School temporary housing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of relocation of portable classrooms from DeLaveaga Elementary School 
to Santa Cruz High for temporary housing during the construction of buildings C & D.  This 
contract is a portion of the overall costs for this project as outlined in the chart below. 
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (this agenda item) 


Electrical Service $25,280.00 (agenda item 8.3.18)  


Fencing Amount to be determined 


Data Installation $30,000.00 estimate - this will be final portion 
of project – has not come to Board yet 


Estimated Total $138,080.00 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$82,800.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.25% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


216/1089







Anaya Construction 


5153 Covert Rd.Salida, CA 95368 
License #: 746627 DIR #: 1000007522 


  
                                                             Proposal                                    October 04, 2021 
 


Attn: Trevor Miller  


Re: Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing  
 
Anaya Construction will provide all materials, labor and equipment needed to do scope 
of work listed below. 
 
1.  Dismantle (4) 24 x 40 portables at DeLaveaga ES  
2.  Dispose of old wood foundation and skirting materials along with a set of steps 
3.  Brace and prep portables for relocation 
4.  Dolly portables out to make accessible for transport 
5.  Transport portables to Santa Cruz HS and dolly into place 
6.  Set up portables using new wood foundation and skirting materials  
7.  Drill and install foundation pipes, install tie down plates, and vent screens 
8.  Seal roofs with new roof pans: Note (E) ones appear to be leaking due to wet ceiling 
tiles at mod lines 
9.  Install new gutter splices 
10.Seal exterior mod lines to make weather tight  
11.Install (2) existing ramps, resurface (1) existing ramp, and purchase & install (1) new 
TMP ramp 
12.Skirt all (4) ramps and paint to match (E) color as close as possible 
13.Remove (E) sink cabinets and casework & dispose 
14 Remove (E) tack board where plumbing penetrated walls and replace with new tack 
board 
15.Remove and replace exterior siding where plumbing went through walls 
16.Remove and replace front and rear gutters on (1) Enviroplex portable 
17.Scrape, clean and re-surface (1) ramp (as noted on # 11) 
18.Purchase, deliver to site, install, and skirt (1) new TMP ramp (as noted on # 11) 
19.Remove carpet, carpet squares, sheet vinyl, and VCT in portables & prep for new 
carpet. 
20.Install new 26-ounce commercial glue down carpet with 4" rubber base in all (4) 
portables  


Total Cost: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------$ 82,800.00 


Note: Cost based on weekday prevailing wage rates 


 
Thank you, 


Jesse Anaya 


217/1089







 


  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bartos Architecture Amendment Agreement for Santa Cruz High 
School Temporary Housing for the 21/22 Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021  
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Bartos Architecture amendment agreement for Santa Cruz High School temporary 
housing for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with Bartos Architecture on 12/14/16. The 
agreement amendment is for architectural services for the 21/22 fiscal year pertaining to Santa 
Cruz High School temporary housing project. This is an estimate based on time and materials.  
Because of the delays created by COVID and the need to keep class sizes smaller, staff 
determined that it was necessary to bring in temporary housing to support the bond projects at 
Santa Cruz High School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$50,000.00 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.15% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


218/1089







www.b a r t o s a r c h i t e c t u re . c om  


 


22 September 2021 
  


 Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, California 95060 
  


Re: Estimated Fees for Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing- BA No 17-008.27 


 


Dear Mr. Monreal, 


We are pleased to provide you with our recommended budget for the above-mentioned 


project for Fiscal Year 21-22. 


This is an estimate for the fiscal year and represents no change to our contract amount. We 


will invoice only for services rendered, and our invoices will be provided monthly for your 


review. 


Estimated FY Fee $50,000 


 


We appreciate this opportunity to continue serving the District. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Sincerely,  


Neal Sellers, Architect 


Bartos Architecture 


 


219/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bartos Architecture Change Order #1 for Santa Cruz High School 
Modernization Phase 4 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Bartos Architecture change order #1 to the amendment agreement for Santa Cruz 
High School modernization phase 4 architect services for the 21/22 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order is a result of accelerating the ventilation project in the main building which 
requires additional architectural design services this fiscal year.  This project is a part of the 
site’s master plan, but was scheduled for a later time.  Due to COVID, staff have accelerated the 
timeline for this project. The previously approved contract amount was $20,000.00 and the 
new total contract, including this change order, will be up to $150,000.00 depending on actual 
hours.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1 Not to Exceed $130,000.00, (650.00% increase to the contract), Measure A 
Funds (Restricted) 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


220/1089







www.b a r t o s a r c h i t e c t u re . c om  


 


22 September 2021 
  


 Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, California 95060 
  


Re: Estimated Fees for Santa Cruz High School Main Building HVAC (modernization Phase 4) 


BA No 17-008.29 


 


Dear Mr. Monreal, 


We are requesting an adjustment to the above-mentioned FY 21-22 Purchase order in the 


amount of $130,000 for a total of $150,000.  This is an estimate for the fiscal year and 


represents no change to our contract amount 


In working with your team, we now understand the full scope of the HVAC Improvements for 


the Main Building. When our initial FY PO estimates were approved, the extent of the 


project had not yet been determined.  


We appreciate this opportunity to continue serving the District. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Sincerely,  


Neal Sellers, Architect 


Bartos Architecture 


 


221/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Colbi Technologies Proposal for SecureBids Software for the 21/22 
Fiscal Year 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Colbi Technologies Inc. proposal for SecureBids annual software support for the 21/22 
fiscal year.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of a secure online software system that will allow the District to receive 
bids for construction projects. This system controls the bid process to ensure that no access is 
allowed until the date and time of bid submission has passed and ensures District compliance 
with all public works bidding requirements.  The system will provide support for the District’s 
bidding process. This is an annual expense.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,500.00 Measure A & B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


222/1089







On-Line Bidding and Submission Software                            
Proposal for Software as a Service Page 1 of 1 


 Colbi Technologies, Inc. 
  12841 Newport Avenue, Tustin, CA 92780 
                                                                                                          Office (714) 505-9544    www.Colbitech.com      


  


 
Santa Cruz City Schools  
July 6, 2021 
 
It is our pleasure to provide this proposal summarizing our Secure Bids product and 
services.  COLBI would be pleased to provide Santa Cruz City Schools with this secure online place to 
receive bids and more!  This proposal is valid for 90-days.  
 


 Initial Implementation Fee    
- One-time cost 


                       Waived 


Secure Bids provides a simple, online, secure electronic submission 
environment for hard bids and other types of submissions.  


 
Initial implementation begins with the identification of District users 
and security roles.  The database is set up by COLBI.  The District’s 
dedicated online landing page is prepared and published.  Initial 
training of District staff is included.  


Annual Service Fee  
$2,500 


The Annual Software Service fee covers the License to use Secure 
Bids software and includes unlimited district authorized users, 
unlimited number of Opportunities published and unlimited 
storage for the active and archive periods.  
 
The system controls the bids so that no access is allowed until the 
date and time for bid submission has passed, and it logs access to the 
bids, making sure they are only opened by authorized users.  
Contractors or vendors create free accounts and are then ready to 
submit.  The submission documents are securely uploaded and remain 
online for district use and download and are then archived 
automatically.  
 
COLBI will provide access to Secure Bids software, host secure 
collection and storage of submissions and supporting documents, 
provide data backup and recovery and will monitor, manage and 
remediate the servers and network infrastructure that support Secure 
Bids software services.  Automated Secure Bids software updates are 
also included and are performed remotely by our staff.  
 
Support includes:  Ongoing agency staff training, and live phone 
support for agency and contractor users during normal business 
hours.  Online help and support requests are available 
24/7.  We provide Best Practice Advisories and Alerts.  COLBI will also 
provide sample language and useable links for your website, bid 
documents, and advertisements instructing submitters how to access 
the system.  


 
We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to the Santa Cruz City Schools.   
  
Signed: ____________________________ Date: July 6, 2021_______________________ 
Lettie Boggs, CEO, COLBI Technologies, Inc. 


223/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.12. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries Change Order #3 for Santa Cruz High School 
Switchgear Replacement 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries change order #3 for Santa Cruz High School switchgear replacement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of labor and materials to install three flood lights to improve area 
safety after dark. This change order also includes a 61-day extension to the project due to soft 
saturated soils discovered while excavating the foundation changing the completion date from 
October 1, 2021 to December 1, 2021.  The soft soil required additional structural engineering 
which delayed the project, and the additional lighting was added to support campus safety. The 
previously approved contract amount was $1,416,308.56 and the new total contract, including 
this change order, will be $1,419,229.18. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #3   $2,920.62 (0.20% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


224/1089







Document G701™ – 2017 
Change Order 


AIA Document G701™ – 2017. Copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000, 2001 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: 
This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA®


Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law. This document was created on                                            under the terms of AIA Documents-on-Demand™ Order No.                           , and is not for 
resale. This document is licensed by The American Institute of Architects for one-time use only, and may not be reproduced prior to its completion. 


PROJECT: (name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
Contract For:    


CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION: 
Change Order Number:   


OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address) CONTRACTOR: (name and address) 


THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed 
upon adjustments attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.) 


The original                                                  was  $ 


The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $ 


The  prior to this Change Order was $ 


The       will be  by this Change Order in the amount of $ 


The new  , including this Change Order, will be $ 


The Contract Time will be  by                                      (      ) days. 


The new date of Substantial Completion will be 


NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the 
Contract Time, that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon 
by both the Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change 
Directive. 


NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 


ARCHITECT (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name) 


SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 


PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 


DATE DATE DATE 


Date: Date:
SCHS Switchgear Replacement


Santa Cruz High School


CRW Industries, Inc.


5346 Scotts Valley Dr STE E


Scotts Valley, CA 95066


09/29/2021 20:02:13 2114246204


Santa Cruz City Schools


133 Mission St Suite 100


Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Mark E. Bartos, Architect


1730 S. Amphlett Blvd


San Mateo, CA 94402


003Switchgears Upgrade
02/11/21 10/04/21


PCO 04 Provide and Install Three (3) Flood Lights- $2,920.62 (0 days requested) 
CCD #02 Soil Condition Revision (61 days requested) (includes any general conditions)


Contract Sum 1,391,313.00


Contract Sum


24,995.56


Contract Sum
1,416,308.56


increased 2,920.62


Contract Sum 1,419,229.18
changed sixty-one 61


12/1/2021


Bartos Architecture CRW Industries, Inc. Santa Cruz City Schools


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1D7877ED-06AC-40A4-B8C8-AECD18EFCF46


President


10/5/2021


Bill Burr


10/5/2021


Mark Bartos President


225/1089







DATE:  9/13/2021


Job Number: 5303 CONTRACTOR: CRW Industries Inc


  DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST EXTENSION


QUANTITY 
HOURS RATE EXTENSION QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENSION


-$               $120.00 -$                           -$              


-$               -$                           -$              


 MATERIAL $0.00


 LABOR $0.00
 EQUIPMENT $0.00


SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $0.00


FEE ON DIRECT COSTS (15%)


PRIME CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $0.00


PSR Electric 2,727.00$            


5% FEE ON SUBCONTRACTOR DIRECT COSTS $136.35


SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $2,863.35


2,863.35$            


BOND ( not to exceed 2% of sub total) 57.27$                 


TOTAL 2,920.62$    


PREPARED & SUBMITTED BY:  


COMPANY:  TITLE:


PCO SUBTOTAL


Bill Burr


CRW Pres


SUBTOTALS:  


$0.00


Sub Contractor Costs from Attached Cost Proposal(s)


Santa Cruz High School Switchgear Replacement


PCO #:  4


PCO  - COST PROPOSAL  -  PRIME CONTRACTOR


Provide and install (3) flood lights.


MATERIAL (sales tax included) LABOR (fully encumbered) EQUIPMENT (attach invoice)


Cost Proposal


226/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.13. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H Wilson Proposal for Soquel High School Cafeteria Gas Line 
      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Geo H Wilson proposal to increase the capacity of the Soquel High School cafeteria gas 
line. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and material to increase the capacity of  the gas line that serves 
the cafeteria at Soquel High School. Cooking equipment occasionally stops heating due to 
marginal gas supply; increasing the size of the gas line will eliminate this issue.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$16,585.01 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.04% of the overall site budget 
$34,830,967.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Soquel High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


227/1089







                                  SEE TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO BID CONTRACT           Rev. 01-26-2016


                                                             BID CONTRACT
Job #    2622161                                                               


Page 1 of 2                                                                                      
250 HARVEY WEST BLVD., SANTA CRUZ, CA. 95060 
Mailing Address:   P.O. BOX 1140, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061              
Phone # (831) 423-9522      


 


QUOTATION TO:
Santa Cruz City Schools
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
ATTN: Chris Garcia


JOB NAME/ADDRESS:
Soquel High School
401 Soquel San Jose Rd.
Soquel, CA 95073


THE CONDITIONS PRINTED EITHER ON THE REVERSE SIDE OR ATTACHED ARE PART HEREOF.
This work or price quotation does not include detection, abatement, encapsulation or removal of 


asbestos or products, materials, or equipment containing asbestos.


Geo. H. Wilson is pleased to submit a proposal to provide labor, materials and equipment to upsize the gas line serving 
the cafeteria at Soquel High. Please refer to page 2 for scope inclusions, clarifications and pricing.


“Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against 
contractors if a complaint is filed within three years of the date of the alleged violation.  Any questions concerning a contractor may be referred to the Registrar, 
Contractors’ State License Board, P. O. Box 26000, Sacramento, CA  95826.”


California State License No. 950443
The total price of this work is listed on page 2, including all taxes.  Terms of payment, unless modified herein, 
are: 0 down payment and the balance due upon the receipt of invoice.


Your signed acceptance of this Bid Contract within 30 days from October 5, 2021 shall, upon the acceptance of the Seller, constitute a contract to 
perform the work described above, including all Terms and Conditions contained herein. Seller shall be defined to mean George H Wilson or its assigns. 
Buyer shall be defined to mean the Owner, Owners/Agent, Builder, Architect, lessees, or any person acting on behalf of any of the foregoing.


Prepared by:
Geo. H. Wilson on October 5, 2021


By:        
 Jack Irwin, Project Manager


ACCEPTED for SELLER:


By:
(Authorized Signature)


Name/Title:


Date of Acceptance:   


Prepared for:             
CUSTOMER       


ACCEPTED for BUYER:


By:
(Authorized Signature)


Name/Title:


Date of Acceptance:


Buyers’ P.O:        


228/1089







Rev. 09-10-03


PROPOSAL CONTINUED
Page 2 of 3


SCOPE OF WORK:


The following scope of work is included with this proposal


INITIAL SERVICE CALL


 Responded to service call to address gas line pressure. The stove in the cafeteria is clicking and shutting off. 
 Discovered that the 1” gas line that runs from the regulator to vault is undersized and does not carry enough fuel to 


supply the cafeteria appliances when they need to operate simultaneously.


UPSIZE GAS LINE


 811 area prior to excavation
 Saw cut and excavate to expose exisiting gas line 


o Spoils to be stored onsite
 Demo and remove +/- 30’ of 1” MDPE gas line between regulator and vault
 Furnish and install +/- 30’ of 2” MDPE pipe and tracer wire
 Pressure test and check for leaks
 Backfill with sand and concrete and patch back asphalt


CLARIFICATIONS:


1. Labor is priced for straight time labor rates unless otherwise noted. 
2. Pricing below includes cost of initial service call. Service call to be invoiced separately if repair quote is not 


authorized within 30 days.
3. Any hidden / unforeseen deficiencies identified during the repair are to be quoted separately
4. It is assumed all existing equipment and materials which remains in service, are operable and in good condition 


sufficient to meet new expected use.  We do not include servicing, repairing, refurbishing, or warranty extension 
on any existing equipment or materials other than specified.


5. Any work not specifically mentioned in this proposal is excluded


PRICING:


The following pricing is for the scope of work listed in this proposal unless otherwise denoted:


Total Price .............................................................................................................................................................$16,585.04


ALTERNATE PRICING:


The following alternate items are not required to complete the project and the pricing shown is contingent on being 
accepted in conjunction with the base bid


1. ADD for Premium Time (Saturday work)....................................................................................................$1,280.00
2. ADD for Premium Time (Sunday work) ......................................................................................................$2,560.00


229/1089







Rev. 09-10-03


TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO BID CONTRACT
Page 3 of 3


All work shall be performed during normal working hours unless otherwise 
stated herein.
2. George H. Wilson agrees to maintain in full force and effect a Workmen’s 
Compensation Insurance policy and a Comprehensive Liability Insurance policy 
in substantial amounts to protect all parties to this agreement, furnishing 
certificates of insurance, if required by Buyer.
3. Buyer shall prepare the premises to permit free movement and erection of 
materials, providing necessary openings, supports, cutting, patching, necessary 
public utility and steam services, and pay all fees in accordance with codes and 
ordinances unless otherwise indicated in this Bid Contract.
4. In the event that the Seller encounters any asbestos product or material in 
the course of performing its work, the Seller shall have the right to immediately 
discontinue its work and remove its employees from the project, or that portion of 
the project wherein such product or materials were encountered, until such time 
as any hazards connected therewith are abated, encapsulated or removed 
and/or it is determined that no hazard exists; further, Seller shall receive an 
extension of time to complete its work and compensation for delays encountered 
and compensation for any change in the sequence of method or its work 
occasioned as a consequence of said encounter.
5. George H. Wilson extends manufacturer's standard warranties on all new 
equipment, misuse or abuse excepted, for a period not to exceed one year from 
date of first beneficial use, which shall be defined as the Start-up Date.  ACCO 
Engineered Systems guarantees most, but not all, repaired materials, parts and 
labor for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of first beneficial use.  There 
are no warranties, expressed or implied, other than the above unless so noted 
herein.


Seller shall not be liable for any consequential damages including, but not 
limited to, liquidated damages, loss of rent, interest expense, extended overhead 
or any other delay damages of any kind, nature or description.  It is expressly 
understood and agreed that the only liability of Seller is to replace defective 
workmanship or material as herein above set forth.
6.  George H. Wilson will not replace any refrigerant loss caused by defects in 
the equipment, material, parts, or workmanship furnished under this contract.  
Replacement of refrigerant due to failure or defects of items furnished by Seller is 
not included as a part of this agreement.
7.  George H. Wilson shall not be liable for the corrosive or erasive action of 
liquids and/or gases upon the equipment specified and no part of such 
equipment shall be deemed defective by reason of its failure to resist physical or 
chemical action of such elements or items upon such equipment.
8. This agreement shall not be binding until duly accepted by an authorized 
officer of George H. Wilson  No person has authority to make or claim any 
representation, warranty, term, promise, or condition, expressed or 
implied,statutory or otherwise, which is not expressed herein.  This agreement 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes and 
revokes any previous agreement, written or oral, with respect to the labor and 
equipment covered hereby and may not be amended or modified except in 
writing executed by the parties hereto.
9. Under no circumstances shall the liability of Seller arising out of the sale or 
erection of the equipment hereunder, or arising out of its use, whether on 
warranties or otherwise, in any case exceed the lesser of the following:  (a)  Cost 
of correcting defects in the equipment or workmanship; or (b) the difference in 
value between the installation as installed and the cost of the original installation 
thereof, if installed strictly as in the contract documents set forth.  And in no event 
shall any claims be made by either party against the other for consequential 
damages.
10. The Seller shall not be bound by any plans and specifications or conditions, 
existing or otherwise, that have not been presented to or delivered to it for the 
purpose of submitting this bid, nor shall the Seller be bound by any city 
ordinances, State laws or other governmental regulations not in effect at the time 
of submitting this bid, or which had become obsolete and which no longer was 
enforced by such public body enacting the same.
11. The Seller shall be excused for any delay in completion of this Bid Contract 
caused by acts of God, including but not limited to, wind, rain, flood, storm, 
landslide, subsidence and earthquake; acts of neglect of owner or architect or by 
any employee or agent of either; acts of neglect of separate contractors 
employed by owner; acts of public utilities or governmental or public bodies or 
their agents; material shortages; labor trouble, labor slowdowns; strikes; union 
activity causing a reduction in productivity; fire; casualty; delay in transportation; 
changes ordered in the work; failure of Buyer to make payments to Seller as 
required under this Bid Contract, or other causes beyond the reasonable control 
of Seller, any of which shall automatically entitle Seller to reasonable or 
necessary extensions of the completion date of the work and to an equitable 
adjustment of the contract price to compensate Seller for all costs and expenses 
of additional labor, service, equipment or material and extended overhead 
resulting from any such delay.


If any of the materials specified are not readily available, the Seller may 
substitute  equally efficient materials or fixtures of generally similar character in 
lieu of the equipment, materials or fixtures specified, and it shall allow any 
differential between the original cost of the materials specified and the materials 
furnished.


In the event of inability to obtain labor at union scale or without paying a 
premium above such scale, Seller may delay performance until same  shall be 
obtainable without premium payment or at the option of the Buyer the latter may 


require the use of materials or labor requiring the payment of such excess cost, 
but upon condition that the Buyer shall pay such excess.
12. No additional work will be performed unless it is authorized in writing by the 
Buyer.  If the Buyer refuses to sign a written work authorization or change order 
for the extra work, Seller reserves the right to refuse to perform the extra work.
13. Should either party hereto bring suit in court to enforce the terms hereof, any 
judgment awarded shall include court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees to the 
successful party.
14. Seller assumes no responsibility for the design on those jobs where Seller 
prepares working or shop drawings from designs furnished by others.  Seller 
assumes no responsibility whatsoever for design or operative end result under 
any contract unless there is affirmatively stated on the obverse side of this Bid 
Contract, a direct undertaking on Seller’s part so to do.
15. Seller may suspend further performance under this Bid Contract upon three 
(3) days written notice to the Buyer in the event the Buyer is in breach of this Bid 
Contract for breach other than non-payment.  Notice need not be given if work is 
suspended due to non-payment or due to the failure of the Buyer to pay for 
change orders as provided herein.  In the event Seller elects to suspend 
performance, Seller shall be entitled to remobilization costs, including profit and 
overhead, upon the Buyer bringing payments current or issuing proper change 
orders for extra work.  Such costs will equal actual losses sustained by Seller in 
terminating and restarting work.
16. This contract is entered into upon the understanding that in the prosecution 
of any work herein specified Seller will be allowed sufficient time for the 
performance of said work on the basis of a normal eight-hour day, and in the 
event that Buyer or any subcontractor require Seller to perform such labor on an 
overtime basis, then such additional expense of every kind and character as 
Seller may be required to incur on account of said overtime labor, shall constitute 
an additional charge herein.
17. It is agreed that Buyer is to provide without cost to Seller, proper hoisting 
conveyances and scaffolding (including the use of engineer) at times so as to not 
delay Seller’s part of the work, unless otherwise indicated in this proposal.
18. Any loss or damage to Seller’s work, materials or equipment occurring at the 
site of the project occasioned by fire, flood, earthquake, windstorm, riot or civil 
commotion shall be protected by Builders Risk Insurance procured by the 
contractor or owner without cost to Seller and Seller shall receive a proportionate 
share of the amount of any payment loss under any such policy or policies 
according as Seller’s interest may appear.
19.  Notwithstanding any provision in the plans, specifications, contract between 
prime contractor and owner, general conditions, or any contract documents 
executed by and between contractor and owner having to do with the subject 
now stated, Seller shall not be liable for the cost of correcting defects occasioned 
by the acts or omissions of employees of other subcontractors, the prime 
contractor, owner or any segregated contractor, to work performed by Seller.  
Before Seller proceeds with any corrective work to repair such damage, the 
prime contractor, or other person contracting with Seller in this Bid Contract, shall 
give Seller an unqualified instruction to proceed with the work upon their 
responsibility to compensate Seller therefor as an extra.
20. The Seller expressly reserves the right to assign all or any portion of its 
rights and/or duties under this Bid Contract with or without notice to the Buyer 
herein.
21. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Bid 
Contract and terms and conditions stated in the plans and specifications, or any 
other contract document, including the prime contract between owner and prime 
contractor, the terms of this Bid Contract shall govern.
22. If, in Seller’s opinion, Buyer’s credit becomes impaired, Seller may, at its 
option, suspend work and deliveries under this contract until it has received full 
settlement or security for services rendered and is satisfied as to Buyer’s credit 
for further shipments.  If Buyer fails or refuses to make such payment, or give 
such security, then the full amount due under this contract at such time, for labor 
and material and/or equipment furnished shall immediately become due and 
payable and Seller shall have the right and the option to terminate this 
agreement.  In the event that a suspension of this contract is required because of 
Buyer’s doubtful credit, an extension of the time fixed for the performance of this 
contract equal to the time of such suspension, shall automatically occur.  If legal 
action is filed to effect collection of any sums due hereunder, Seller shall be 
entitled to reasonable attorney fees in addition to all other damages found to be 
due hereunder.


ACCEPTED for BUYER


By:  ____________________________________________________
(Authorized Signature)


Name/Title:  _____________________________________________


Date of Acceptance:  ______________________________________


230/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.14. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: I & A Contractor Inc. Change Order #2 for Mission Hill Middle 
School Gym Re-Roof  


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve I & A Contractor Inc. change order #2 for Mission Hill Middle School gym re-roof. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Because of supply delays, the District has sought out another vendor that can deliver the 
roofing materials sooner.  This change order consists of the purchase and shipping of materials 
to avoid delays. There will be a future credit from the original material vendor that has had 
material delivery issues. The previously approved contract amount was $437,545.00 and the 
new total contract, including this change order, will be $456,079.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #2     $18,534.00, (4.23% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


231/1089







232/1089







233/1089







234/1089







235/1089







236/1089







237/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.15. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Lewis and Tibbitts Inc. Change Order #2 for Mission Hill Middle 
School Switchgear Replacement 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Lewis and Tibbitts Inc. change order #2 for Mission Hill Middle School switchgear 
replacement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional labor and materials to reinstall skateboard lockers in 
the bike rack area. The need for this project was not confirmed before this switchgear project 
was bid.  The previously approved contract amount was $917,140.38 and the new total 
contract, including this change order, will be $920,058.41. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #2    $2,918.03 (0.31% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


238/1089







Document G701™ – 2017 
Change Order


AIA Document G701™ – 2017. Copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000, 2001 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: 
This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA®


Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law. This document was created on                                            under the terms of AIA Documents-on-Demand™ Order No.                           , and is not for 
resale. This document is licensed by The American Institute of Architects for one-time use only, and may not be reproduced prior to its completion.


PROJECT: (name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION:
Contract For:


CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION:
Change Order Number:


OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address) CONTRACTOR: (name and address)


THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS:
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed 
upon adjustments attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.)


The original                                              was $


The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $


The prior to this Change Order was $


The will be by this Change Order in the amount of $


The new , including this Change Order, will be $


The Contract Time will be by                                     ( ) days.


The new date of Substantial Completion will be


NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the 
Contract Time, that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon 
by both the Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change 
Directive.


NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.


ARCHITECT (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name)


SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE


PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE


DATE DATE DATE


MHMS Switchgear Project


425 King Street Santa Cruz CA


Lewis and Tibbets


1470 Industrial Ave


San Jose, CA 95112


08/23/2021 19:09:33 2010755777


Santa Cruz City Schools


133 Mission St #100


Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Mark E. Bartos, Architect


1730 S. Amphlett Blvd #225


San Mateo, CA 94402


002Switchgear Upgrades
02/15/21 08/23/21


COR 08 Reinstall Lockers- $2,918.03 (0 days requested)


Contract Sum 874,100.00


Contract Sum


43,040.38


Contract Sum


917,140.38


increased 2,918.03


Contract Sum 920,058.41


unchanged zero 0


7/30/2022


Bartos Architecture Lewis and Tibbets Santa Cruz City Schools


239/1089







                                                                                                                       


                                          
 


Change Order Request #08 
                       August 20, 2021 
 
Curtis, 
 
This is a Change Order Request for additional labor, equipment, and material costs to reinstall lockers in the bike 
rack area, as requested by Santa Cruz City Schools.  
 
Reason for request: 
Additional labor, equipment, and material costs. 


 
            


Project:  Subcontractor:       
Mission Hill MS – Switchgear 
Replacement  Lewis & Tibbitts, Inc.       
425 King Street  1470 Industrial Ave       
Santa Cruz, CA  95060  San Jose, CA 95112       


L&T COR #: 08 


 L&T Job #: 21259H       
Summary:      


Reason for Change  Description  Qty  UM  Unit  EXT. 
 
 
Add:   


 
 
DWR 134232 
  


 
 
1 
 
  


 
 
LS 
 
  


 
 


$2,918.03 
   
  


 
 


$2,918.03 
 
  


 


 
 
Total This Request:      $2,918.03 


 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
Regards, 


 
 
 
 
Taro Kyllonen 


1470 Industrial Ave 
San Jose, CA 95112 
Phone: (408) 925-0220      Fax: (408) 925-0240  
 
Lic. #281666 General A, C-10, C-36, C-42 
WE ARE A UNION CONTRACTOR 


240/1089







241/1089







8/19/2021


242/1089







243/1089







244/1089







 


  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.16. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Locatelli Moving and Storage Proposal for DeLaveaga Elementary 
School Classroom Furniture Moves 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Locatelli Moving and Storage proposal for DeLaveaga Elementary School classroom 
furniture moves. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of services to remove old desks and chairs and move in new student 
desks and chairs in all classrooms at DeLaveaga Elementary School as part of the modernization 
project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,910.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


245/1089







DeLaveaga School 10/5/2021
1145 Morrissey Blvd.
Santa Cruz, CA
Attn: Chris Garcia  239-2586


REMOVE AND REPLACE DESKS AND CHAIRS IN ALL CLASSROOM


Day 1,  7 workers,  7.5 hours 3,150.00$          


Day 2, 5 workers,  8 hours 2,400.00$          


Day 3, 8 workers,  7 hours 3,360.00$          


8,910.00$          


Thank you for giving Locatelli Moving & Storage the opportunity to submit a bid 
                for your up coming move. We hope that we may be of services to you.


Sincerely


Annie Asche


LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC.
PUC CAL-188949               AGENT FOR UNITED VAN LINES                     ICC # 67234


LOCALLY OWNED AND OPERATED 26 YEARS OF SERVICES


122 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA     831-425-7775 / 800-486-7775     locatellims@aol.com


122 Encinal Street Santa Cruz, CA. 831-425-775 / 800-486-7775 Fax 831-25-0827  locatellims@aol.com


246/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.17. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Peninsula Business Interiors Quote for Bay View Elementary Office 
Furniture 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Peninsula Business Interiors quote for Bay View Elementary School’s front office 
furniture. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of purchase and installation of new office furniture for the main office at 
Bay View Elementary School as part of the modernization project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$9,703.83 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


247/1089







Quotation 660109
Quote Date 09/15/21
Project 217942
Customer SAN149
Terms Net 30
Account Representative Keith Scholz


MELISSA SCHRAMM
BAYVIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Priciple's Office
1231 BAY ST
SANTA CRUZ CA  95060-4708


TREVOR MILLER
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
133 MISSION ST STE 100
SANTA CRUZ CA  95060-3747


Ship ToQuote To


PhonePhone +1 (831) 429-3904 +1 (831) 440-7300
+1 (831) 313-6566Cell
mschramm@19six.comtrevormiller@sccs.net


All prices are guaranteed for 30 days from date of quotation unless otherwise specified in a Master Services
Agreement (MSA).


Sales taxes shown are at current rates, but subject to change without notice to those rates applicable at the time of
invoicing.


Pricing does not include the removal or the disposal of any existing furniture.


�PLEASE NOTE:  ALL AREAS MUST BE FREE AND CLEAR PRIOR TO ARRIVAL.  ANY STANDBY TIME AND/OR
RESCHEDULING MAY INCURR ADDITIONAL CHARGES�


A signed copy of this quote and/or purchase order is required to place order.


Product specified below is made to order. It is non-returnable and non-refundable. Signature of this document accepts
all products and finishes contained herein.


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


Elisa


1 T 2  277.65  555.30YS72 - Yes Series (YS)task chairs no arms
Pneumatic lift
EZ back height adjustment
Infnitely locking seat tilt
Infnitely locking back tilt
Mesh back (mid)
Seat depth adjustment


Fabric: Grade 1, 1005 Blue
OFFICEMAST   
Tag For Elisa


YES Series


248/1089







Quotation 660109
Page 2 / 6 (cont'd)


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


2 T 1  56.00  56.00FREIGHT - Office Master Freight
OFFICEMAST   


3 T 1  970.65  970.6591774-8201-HGRY - Avid 6030 Single Pedestal Desk 29.8"H x 
60"W x 30"D
Ped to be installed on right side


Laminate 8201-60 Gray Elm, 
Cool Gray edge
Grey base
MOORECO   


4 T 1  502.43  502.4391783-8201-HGRY - Avid Pneumatic Conference End 
26.5"�42.3"H x 29.3"W x 35.7"D


Laminate 8201-60 Gray Elm, 
Cool Gray edge
Grey base
MOORECO   


5 T 1  268.45  268.45FREIGHT - Mooreco Freight
MOORECO   


 2,352.83Sub Total
SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF  17.64
SANTA CRUZ, COUNTY OF  58.82
CALIFORNIA, STATE OF  141.18
Total  2,570.47


Principal


249/1089







Quotation 660109
Page 3 / 6 (cont'd)


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


Subsection Finish Summary


GR Gray No Image Available
Panel Accessory


7655 7655 - E3 ENVIRONMENTAL 
CERAMICS


8043 8043 - CLEAR ANODIZED 
ALUM


Worksurface
2HAN ASH NOCE (HPL)


6707 ASH NOCE
Support or Bracket


7225 SAND


7225 SAND
Freestanding Storage


2HAN 2HAN - ASH NOCE (HPL)


2HAN 2HAN - ASH NOCE (HPL)


2LAN 2LAN - ASH NOCE (LPL)


6707 6707 - ASH NOCE


9201 9201 - POLISHED CHROME


9211 9211 - NICKEL
Storage Accessory


5G62 ATLANTIC


6 T 6  171.73  1,030.384750 - Zenergy Ball Chair
Fabric Color Option:


 GR: Gray
SAFCO   
Tag For Principal


4750


7 T 1  306.13  306.131944 - Vum� Mobile Workstation


Finish: Natural
SAFCO   


8 T 2  345.07  690.141061FT4.AR0.MB - Movi Nester
Product Code: 1061 FT4 AR0 SC26 FG2 CS5 MB MC23 FC12 AC


BACK STYLE: Mesh
BACK FRAME & ARMS 


250/1089







Quotation 660109
Page 4 / 6 (cont'd)


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


8 COLOR: White
MESH COLOR: Fog
CAL 133: No CAL 133
TEXTILE: Grade 2
ARM STYLE: Armless
BASE FRAME & CASTERS COLOR: White
CASTERS: Carpet Casters
PACKAGING: Fully Assembled in a Carton


Textile Specifications
Manufacturer: SitOnIt
Pattern: Dice
Colorway: Ocean
Grade: 2
EXEMPLIS   
Tag For Principal


1061FT4.AR0.MB


9 T 1  312.58  312.58RPDC1836F - Cushion, 18D x 36W
UPHLSTRY: 5G62 ATLANTIC
Steelcase   
Tag For Principal


CU/18/36


10 T 1  621.92  621.92CRL15H - Lateral 1.5 High
Depth: 18.87500


Width: 36.00000


Drawer Config: Box/File


Application: Full


Top: With Top


Worksurface Thickness: 1.12500


Case Finish: Woodgrain HPL 2HAN - ASH NOCE (HPL)


Headset Finish: Woodgrain HPL 2HAN - ASH NOCE (HPL)


Top Surface Finish: Woodgrain LPL 2LAN - ASH NOCE 
(LPL)
Edge Finish: Plastic - PG1 6707 - ASH NOCE


Pull: Contemporary Pull


Pull Finish: Nickel 9211 - NICKEL


Lock Finish: Polished Chrome 9201 - POLISHED CHROME


Keys: Key Random


Counterweight: With Counterweight
Steelcase   


251/1089







Quotation 660109
Page 5 / 6 (cont'd)


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


10 Tag For Principal
LF/36/BF


11 T 1  342.81  342.81BFRR3672 - Table-Rectangle, 36D x 72W
EDGE: 6707 ASH NOCE


TOP-SURF: 2HAN ASH NOCE (HPL)


RFCHAN: *OPT:REINFORCING CHANNEL OPTION


 W RCHNL: WITH REINFORCING CHANNEL
Steelcase   
Tag For Principal


30/72


12 T 2  142.74  285.48BT26 - Base-T, 26W
BASE: 7225 SAND


COLUMN: 7225 SAND
Steelcase   
Tag For Principal


TB


13 T 1  429.93  429.93PWBWTBRD - Whiteboard-Premium
Size Option: Modular
Trim Type: Edge Series


Height: 48.25000


Width: 72.25000


Surface Finish: Ceramic 7655 - E3 ENVIRONMENTAL 
CERAMICS
Trim Finish: Anodized Aluminum 8043 - CLEAR ANODIZED 
ALUM
Mount Option: Wall Mount


Tray Option: With Tray
Steelcase   
Tag For Principal


WB/72.25000/48.25000


 4,019.37Sub Total
SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF  30.14
SANTA CRUZ, COUNTY OF  100.49
CALIFORNIA, STATE OF  241.17
Total  4,391.17
14 T 1  2,090.00  2,090.0021090260T - Labor to will call (OWP0, deliver and assemble: 


(2) Office Master task chairs, (1) Mooreco Mobile table, (1) Mooreco 
Mobile stand (conference end), 
(6) Safco Ball chairs, (1) Safeco Mobile workstation, (2) Sit on It Movi 
Nester guest chair, 


252/1089







Quotation 660109
Page 6 / 6 (cont'd)


Extended PriceQuantity Unit PriceDescription


14 (1) Steelcase 1.5hi cabinet with cushion, (1) 36x72 table, (1) wall 
mounted white board 48x72, 


Regular Business Hours, Prevailing Wage
OWPINSTDPT   


15 T 3.50  120.00  420.0011 - DESIGN FEES FOR THE PLANNING AND PRODUCTION OF 
DIAGRAMS FOR THE APPLICATION OF FURNITURE ON THIS 
ORDER.
PENINSULA   


Quotation Totals
Sub Total  8,882.20
SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF  66.61
SANTA CRUZ, COUNTY OF  222.07
CALIFORNIA, STATE OF  532.95


 9,703.83Grand Total


End of Quotation


253/1089







10
61


FT
4.


AR
0.


M
B


4750


4750


1061FT4.AR
0.M


B


4750


4750


4750


4750


Vum Mobile Wrkstn


36
" 1


.5
 D


w
r L


at


Principal's Office


Model #1944NA


Safco


36x72"


Bayview SchoolPID 217942
254/1089







Assemble as Right Ped


Mooreco Avid Option
Elisa's Office


Bayview SchoolPID 217942
255/1089







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.18. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Electrical for 
Temporary Housing 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve PSR Electric proposal for Santa Cruz High School electrical for temporary housing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials to provide electrical from the switchgear to the 
temporary classroom portables at Santa Cruz High School. These buildings are being relocated 
from DeLaveaga Elementary School for temporary housing purposes during modernization of 
buildings C&D.  
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (agenda item 8.3.8) 


Electrical Service $25,280.00 (this agenda item)  


Fencing Amount to be determined 


Data Installation $30,000.00 estimate - this will be final portion of 
project – has not come to Board yet 


Estimated Total $138,080.00 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$25,280.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


256/1089







257/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Single Plans for Student Achievement  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 2021-2022 Single Plans for Student Achievement for Bayview Elementary, 
DeLaveaga Elementary, Gault Elementary, Westlake Elementary, Monarch Community 
Elementary School, Branciforte Middle School, Mission Hill Middle School, Harbor High School, 
Santa Cruz High School, Soquel High School, Costanoa High School, The Ark Independent Study, 
and Alternative Family Education. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to California Education Code Section 64001 and the federal Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act, schools that receive state and federal funds will consolidate all school plans into 
the Single Plan for Student Achievement. 
 
In 19-20, the Single Plans for Student Achievement template was updated to align with the 
Local Control Accountability template.  As such, it is important to note the following: 


1. The Single Plan for Student Achievement is a plan that is developed and approved 
annually, and metrics include projected, yearly incremental growth. 


2. Metrics in the plans include California School Dashboard ratings. Dashboard ratings are 
colored coded and ranked as following:  
 


a. Blue - Very High 
b. Green - High 
c. Yellow - Medium 
d. Orange - Low 
e. Red - Very Low  


 
 
 


Our California Dashboard ratings have not been updated since 2019 due to the 
disruption of the pandemic. It is important to note, however, that this remains our 
accountability system and that we will continue to use Dashboard metrics in our 
planning.  


 


258/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


3. Metrics in the plans may also include “Distance from Level 3” or “number of points 
above and below standard.” Distance from Level 3 measures how far (or the distance) 
each student is from the lowest possible scale score within the Level 3 (i.e., Standard 
Met) Smarter Balanced (assessment used for California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress, or CAASPP) performance level. The Smarter Balanced 
Consortium has identified Level 3 as demonstrating the knowledge and skills necessary 
for students to be on track for college and career readiness at their grade level. 


4. When discussing “Distance from Level 3,” a three-point increase is often used. The 
growth of three points is substantial within this measurement system, and will result in 
a positive color change (or maintaining a high or very high rating) on the school’s 
California Dashboard. 
 


5. In 2020-21, the CAASPP was given to all students grades 3-8 and in grade 11. This last 
year, districts were given the option to use a standardized local assessment in place of 
Smarter Balanced. In collaboration with teachers and administrators, our elementary 
district proctored iReady assessments in math and English Language Arts. Our high 
school teachers and administrators decided to use the Smarter Balanced assessment. 
 


6. The 95% participation rate that is usually required was waived this past year. As a result 
of this waiver and due to distance and hybrid learning, there is a smaller than normal 
number of students who completed the assessments.  
 


7. Some metrics must also be viewed in the context of distance and hybrid learning. For 
example, suspensions and expulsions were minimal as students were not in person until 
March and April.  
 


8. On the Annual Review of the 20-21 plans, some actions were not implemented due to 
distance/hybrid learning. Additionally, since iReady was used for CAASPP in grades 3-8, 
there is no available CAASPP data for 20-21. Other impacts of the pandemic on actions 
and metrics are explained throughout the plans as needed. 
 


School Site Councils are required to develop the Single Plan for Student Achievement. The 
School Site Councils’ responsibilities include approving the plan, recommending it to the local 
governing board for approval, monitoring its implementation, and evaluating the effectiveness 
of the planned activities at least annually.  
 
The Single Plan for Student Achievement is a blueprint to improve the academic performance of 
all students and it is used to coordinate all educational services at the school. It addresses how 
funds provided to the school will be used to improve the academic performance of all pupils. 
Additionally, it must integrate the purposes and requirements of all state and federal 
categorical programs in which the school participates.  
 


259/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


The Single Plan for Student Achievement serves as the organizer for an individual school’s 
improvement process, and this template aligns with the Local Control Accountability Plan 
template. It addresses the root causes of student academic challenges and identifies and 
implements research-based instructional strategies to raise the achievement of students who are 
not yet proficient by state standards. This ensures that students are better equipped to achieve 
Common Core State Standards in English and math.  
 
The reports presented to the Board are intended to show the progress schools have made toward 
meeting those goals.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


260/1089







Single Plans for Student 
Achievement


October 20, 2021


261/1089







What is a Single Plan for Student 
Achievement? (SPSA)


California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the federal Elementary 


and Secondary Education Act (ESEA)


● School Site Councils (SCC) develop the SPSA


● New SPSA template mirrors the Local Control Accountability Plan 


template


○ Stakeholders


○ Metrics 


262/1089







Characteristics of a SPSA


The SPSA is a blueprint to improve the academic performance of all students and it:


● coordinates all educational services at the school


● addresses how funds will be used 


● integrates the purposes and requirements of all state and federal categorical programs


● organizes a school’s improvement process


● addresses the root causes of student academic challenges


● implements research-based strategies to address achievement


● uses metrics to monitor expected outcomes 


263/1089







lllTonight’s 


Presenters


Westlake Elementary
Principal Clyde Curley


Mission Hill Middle 
Principal Derek Kendall


Harbor High 
Principal Tracey Runeare 


264/1089







Westlake Elementary School
Single Plan 2021-22


265/1089







Goals


Academic Literacy


All students will make growth of at least 3 points in the 


distance from met on English Language CAASPP  


Mathematics


All students will make growth of at least 3 points in the 


distance from met on the Math CAASPP


English Learner Progress


All English Learners will make growth of at least 3 points in 


the distance from met on the English Language and Math 


CAASPP


School Connectedness


The percentage of students that report feeling connected to 


their school will increase each year based on the Social 


Emotional Health Survey and California Healthy Kids Survey 


will increase by 5%.  Additionally, the percentage of students 


that are chronically absent will decrease by 1% from 2019-


2020 levels.
266/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


Academic Literacy


● Ensure excellent Tier 1 instruction that includes access 


to core curriculum, Benchmark Workshop.


● Engage students through small group instruction.


● Provide targeted, differentiated intervention using 


Response to Instruction (RtI) Coordinators and 


Paraeducators.


● Monitor student progress and intervene early and often


● Create a positive literacy culture through Family Literacy 


Nights, achievement celebrations, and author visits.


267/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


Mathematics


● Ensure excellent Tier I instruction that includes access to 


core curriculum, Eureka.


● Engage students through regular Math Talks to develop 


conceptual understanding.


● Provide targeted, differentiated intervention using iReady 


software.


● Monitor student progress and intervene early and often


● Create a positive math culture through Math Mondays, 


Math Festivals, and Math Game Days.


268/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


English Learner Progress


● Provide Professional Development on Integrated English 


Language Development (ELD) 


● Provide designated ELD Groups by language level and 


grade level


● Monitor English Learner Progress on local assessments 


and formative assessments


● Provide targeted interventions in reading and math as 


needed


269/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


School Connectedness


● Supportive, caring relationships with adults.


○ Greeting students at the door


○ Weekly class meetings


● The curriculum and school activities are relevant and 


engaging.


○ Accountable talk


○ Thematic instruction


● Student leadership and ownership on campus. 


○ Kindness Ambassadors


○ Playground Helpers


○ Environmental Club


270/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


School Connectedness: Chronic Absenteeism


● Celebrate positive attendance for each grade level class 


with the best attendance


○ weekly shout out during weekly announcements 


○ monthly certificates of excellent attendance.  


● Provide teachers monthly attendance reports for their 


class to contact chronically absent students letting them 


know they are missed.  


● Monitor attendance reports monthly and contact families 


of chronically absent students to determine root cause, 


develop an attendance plan, and provide needed support


● Release teachers  to meet with parents of students who 


are chronically absent to develop improvement plans.


271/1089







Celebrations


Academic Literacy


● Provided small group reading interventions to grades K - 5.


● Collected writing samples and analyzed for all students at 


beginning of school year.


Mathematics


● Providing grades 1-5 differentiated instruction through 


iReady.


● Providing small group math interventions to grades 4 & 5 


from beginning of the school year.


School Connectedness


● Conducting weekly “Shout Outs” to students exemplifying 


the Wildcat Ways


● Administered Social Emotional Health Survey to 3rd - 5th 


grade students.


● Chronic Absenteeism decreased by 3.5% in 20-21


● On 2020 LCAP survey, 85% of students agreed/strongly 


agreed that “all students are well-supported to improve 


academically” 272/1089







Mission Hill Middle School
Single Plan 2021-22


273/1089







Goals


Goal 1 - Literacy


MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all 


learners in achieving high levels of literacy, and close the 


achievement gap that exists within student groups.


● i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to Spring - All student 


groups will increase their percentile by a minimum of 4 


percentile points (from 59.80 to 63.80).


● i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to Spring - English 


Language Learner group  will increase their percentile by a 


minimum of 4 percentile points  (from 25.00 to 29.00).


● ELPAC - English Learner Progress on will increase by 6%.  


● Walkthrough Data - Increased focused on teacher clarity 


(Learning Goals and Success Criteria), student 


engagement, and integrated ELD strategies 


274/1089







Goals


Goal 2 - Mathematics


MHMS will create an educational environment that 


supports all learners in achieving high levels of 


mathematic success, and close the achievement gap that 


exists within student groups.


● i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to Spring - All 


student groups will increase their percentile by a 


minimum of 4 percentile points (from 46.70 to 50.70).  


● i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to Spring -


English Learner group will increase their percentile 


by a minimum of 4 points (from 25.00 to 29.00).


275/1089







Goals


Goal 3 - School Connectedness


MHMS will enhance school climate and culture for all students by 


focusing on student attendance, behavioral, and social/emotional 


needs. 


● Chronic absenteeism rates will decrease by .5% in 2021/22 


(2.92% baseline)


● Student Suspensions - The number of students suspended 


at least once will decrease by 0.5%.  (baseline 2.8%)


● Social Emotional Health Survey (SEHS) - 80% of students 


will respond “strongly agree” or “agree” to the prompt: “I  


feel like I am a part of this school”.


● Social Emotional Health Survey - 80% of students will 


respond “strongly agree” or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel 


safe in my school”.


276/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


Goal 1 - Literacy


● Book Look and Reading Counts - Teacher and Librarian 


collaboration on reading comprehension program for all 


students


● Library - Replenish and update our library with high interest 


reading selections


● AVID - Support identified  students with literacy, 


organization, and other academic skills, and build community


● Academic Literacy Classes - Support English Learner growth 


in reading, writing, speaking, and listening in English


Goal 2 - Mathematics


● Participation in Grading for Equity and Grading Inquiry Action 


Research Team.


● Mindset Math (Tier 3) - supporting students below grade 


level in math 


● Math Push-in Support - 2 additional paraeducators to provide 


support in math classes 


277/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


Combined Goal 1 & 2


Goal Setting Workshops with RTI Coordinator using student 


planner.


Goal 3 - School Connectedness


Weekly meeting with Administration, RtI, and Counseling to 


discuss student academic, behavioral, and social-emotional 


needs.


Attendance Task Force - Weekly meeting to look at attendance 


data and discuss strategies to improve school-wide attendance.


MHMS Club Fair - 20 student clubs providing children peer 


connection and interaction


PBIS - Schoolwide behavioral expectations in school planner 


and explicitly taught 


Maverick Essentials Week - October 25-29


Mindfulness Workshops for Students


278/1089







Celebrations


● Mission Hill's chronic absenteeism rate of 2.92% is a 13.2% 


improvement over previous years, and below the State rate 


of 10%.


● Walkthrough data: 92% of teachers are consistently using 


meaningful, student-centered, learning objectives and 


success criteria.


● Walk through data:  100% of teachers using high impact, 


student engagement strategies


● Walkthrough data:  92% of teachers using high impact, 


social/emotional and classroom culture strategies


● School-wide agreement to use direct vocabulary instruction 


strategies everyday, across all content areas.


● 20 Student Clubs providing school connection and 


opportunity for positive peer interaction.


● Completion of athletic field and a renewed sense of 


Maverick Pride 279/1089







Celebrations


Maverick Pride
Welcoming Environment


Student 
Engagement


Academic 
Rigor and 


School-Wide 
Vocabulary


280/1089







Harbor High School
Single Plan 2021-22


281/1089







Goals


Harbor High School Goals:


● At Harbor High we will have clarity of learning for all 


students.


● We will provide targeted interventions for all students 


with a focus on EL, Hispanic/Latinx, and Under-


resourced students. 


● We will create a positive, engaging school 


environment that promotes the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well being of 


all students.


282/1089







Strategies & 
Activities


Strategies and Activities: 


● Define and implement common school-wide grading 


practices.


● Display and reference learning intentions daily. 


● Give one common formative assignment/common 


assessment (CFA) per unit


● Analyze school-wide and teacher-created assessment 


data to identify students needing Tier II  intervention


● Utilize integrated ELD strategies in the classroom


● Implement in-school interventions opportunities


● Create and implement a toolkit of Tier I and Tier II 


classroom intervention strategies


283/1089







Celebrations


Example of Tier 1 work that includes daily learning intentions:


● Daily Anchors by Professional Learning Communities


○ 100% of teachers using daily learning intentions


Examples of in-school, targeted interventions, focus on ELs:


● In school Academic Lab offered every period


● Bilingual Spanish ELD/Math 1 PLUS period, serving 22 


students


● ELD Tutorial class, serving 24 students


Examples of positive, engaging school environment:


● Club rush involved  approx. 80% of students 


284/1089







Questions?


285/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
School Year:    2021-22     


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 


School Name 
Bay View Elementary 
School         


County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 


44698156049860         


Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 


October 2021         


Local Board Approval 
Date 


October 20, 2021         


 


Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 


X Additional Targeted Support and Improvement        
 Bay View qualified for Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) because of all orange 


and red scores on the December 2019 dashboard in the areas of Chronic Absenteeism (orange), 
Suspensions (red), English Language Arts (ELA) (orange), and math (red) for students with 
disabilities.        


 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
The goals within this plan all address how Bay View staff will work to improve literacy, math, 
attendance, and suspensions for students with disabilities. 
To move out of ATSI, the following would need to occur for students with disabilities: 
1.  Decrease the number of chronically absent students to 20% (24% in 2019). 
2.  Decrease suspensions no more than 5 students total suspended (6 students in 2019) 
3.  Increase ELA CAASPP scores by 15 points 
4.  Increase Math CAASPP scores by 15 points 
         
 


286/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary 
of results from the survey(s). 
Bay View parents are surveyed yearly as part of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) writing process.  
Students take the social emotional health survey.  Staff also completes a working conditions survey. The results of these 
surveys are considered as we formulate goals for the upcoming school year.         


 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and 
a summary of findings. 
The principal visits all classrooms weekly. District office Administrators also tour classes on an monthly basis.  
Observations indicate that teachers are using their literacy strategies from last year's professional development. The 
principal is developing a walkthrough tool with the SCIL team that will help to collect data on what best practices are 
observed in the classroom.         


 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential 
Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and 
develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as 
individual students who are: 
 


• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 


 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague 
or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made.  
Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing 
monitoring of categorical programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
Bay View staff use the California Common Core standards in all content areas to determine pacing and lessons for the 
year.  Students take the iReady diagnostic in math and reading three times per year.  The results of these diagnostics 
are used to determine groupings in the classroom, and to determine students who are in need of Tier II intervention.  K-
3rd grade teachers administer the Fountas and Pinnel reading assessment three times per year.  Students also take 
three writing assessment per year that are graded on a common grade level rubric. 


 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC) 
The results of the above assessment, as well as daily formative assessments, allow teachers to determine what student 
already know, and where they need to focus their teaching energy.  Teachers also talk in grade level Professional 
Learning Communities (PLC) about data, and determine best practices and changes that can be made to better support 
students. Additionally, our two Response to Instruction(RtI) Coordinators use assessment data to determine what 
students need Tier II and Tier III instruction.  Those students participate in additional groups to supplement the core 
curriculum and boost skills. 


 
Staffing and Professional Development 


287/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
All teachers meet the requirements for highly qualified staff. 


 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training 
on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
All teachers have access to instructional materials, and participate in professional development on adopted materials. 


 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA) 
Staff are surveyed each year to determine professional development needs.  This year, Bay View teachers are 
participating in Curriculum and Assessment teams to align content and assessment across the district. 


 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC) 
Bay View teachers have worked for the past year with an instructional coach in literacy best practices. In addition, they 
have the opportunity to participate in district professional development days and curriculum and assessment teams. 


 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) 
(EPC) 
Teachers meet twice per month in grade level PLCs to collaborate about student data, teaching practices, and 
adjustments to curriculum and pacing. 


 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
We are determining priority standards and developing an aligned scope and sequence for all schools in the district. 


 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) (EPC) 
All class meet instructional minutes. 


 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC) 
Each grade level has an intervention period built into the weekly grade level schedule. 


 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
All student groups have access to appropriate standards-based instructional materials. 


 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school 
students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Bay View uses Benchmark Workshop, Eureka Math, Full Option Science System (FOSS) kits, and Houghton Mifflin for 
social studies. All materials are standards aligned and include intervention materials.  ]We have purchased Lexia 
Reading and iReady Math My Path as additional intervention curriculum. 


 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 


288/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Underperforming students are given access to small group instruction in addition to their regular core instruction.  They 
also have access to supplemental materials to support intervention needs. 


 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
Guided Reading 
Readers and writers workshop model 
Lexia Reading 
Integrated English Language Development (ELD) practices 
Designated ELD time 
Daily math lessons 
Intervention groups to support filling student gaps 
After school support in ASES program 
 


 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA) 
Bay View has a Bilingual School Community Coordinator who maintains outreach to Spanish speaking families and can 
support families with additional resources.  We have access to a Social Worker and Social Work intern that can also be 
a resource for families. 


 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary 
schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
NA 


 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Para-professional support in classrooms. 
RtI Coordinators in math and reading 
ASES after school support 
Professional development 
 


 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Title I 
Title II 
ASES 
LCFF base 
LCFF supplemental 
 


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Throughout the year, input on stakeholder needs has been collected and analyzed.  A District-wide 
survey of staff was conducted in February regarding technology needs, facility needs, and district 
operations.  The results were examined by the district management team. Site principals shared 
findings with staff and determine areas of success and need in March. Culture and Climate Surveys 


289/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


were administered in February and reviewed with staff in the Spring.  Staff would like to see more 
alignment across grade levels in all content areas. Staff is interested in exploring new ways to help 
students learn to self-regulate when experiencing difficult emotions. Classroom teachers are piloting 
Soul Shoppe, in addition to Second Step, to focus on social emotional health of all students. Overall, 
parents expressed interest in ensuring that both the academic needs and the social emotional needs 
of their children were met. 
 
         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
         


 


290/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     % 0% %  0  


African American     2.04% 1.64% 1.5% 9 7 5 


Asian     2.26% 2.1% 1.5% 10 9 5 


Filipino     0.68% 0.7% 0.3% 3 3 1 


Hispanic/Latino     40.27% 42.06% 49.4% 178 180 167 


Pacific Islander     0.45% 0.7% 0.6% 2 3 2 


White     47.51% 46.5% 40.5% 210 199 137 


Multiple/No Response     6.33% 6.31% 6.2% 28 27 21 


 Total Enrollment 442 428 338 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        68 66 56 


Grade 1        59 54 52 


Grade 2        71 64 46 


Grade3        69 70 55 


Grade 4        97 72 64 


Grade 5        78 102 65 


Total Enrollment        442 428 338 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has declined signifigantly.        


2. Percentages in sub-groups remain fairly constant even with declining enrollment.        


 


291/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        99 98 82 22.4% 22.9% 24.3% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        25 28 15 5.7% 6.5% 4.4% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        13 6 5 11.5% 6.1% 5.1% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The decrease in Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) percentage in 19-20 is because most students were 


unable to take the ELPAC, due to COVID-19 shelter in place.        
 


292/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 81 102 68 76 98 68 76 98 68 93.8 96.1 100 


Grade 4 71 80 102 67 79 99 67 79 99 94.4 98.8 97.1 


Grade 5 112 76 82 109 72 81 109 72 81 97.3 94.7 98.8 
All 
Grades 


264 258 252 252 249 248 252 249 248 95.5 96.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2414.
0 


2418.
2 


2408.
7 


22.37 30.61 20.59 22.37 18.37 14.71 21.05 16.33 30.88 34.21 34.69 33.82 


Grade 4 2441.
3 


2441.
6 


2439.
3 


19.40 21.52 18.18 16.42 21.52 20.20 16.42 16.46 22.22 47.76 40.51 39.39 


Grade 5 2525.
4 


2482.
7 


2505.
0 


33.03 19.44 27.16 29.36 22.22 24.69 15.60 19.44 22.22 22.02 38.89 25.93 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.19 24.50 21.77 23.81 20.48 20.16 17.46 17.27 24.60 32.54 37.75 33.47 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 17.11 29.59 22.06 50.00 37.76 51.47 32.89 32.65 26.47 


Grade 4 13.43 17.72 16.16 47.76 40.51 43.43 38.81 41.77 40.40 


Grade 5 39.45 25.00 34.57 36.70 38.89 41.98 23.85 36.11 23.46 


All Grades 25.79 24.50 23.79 43.65 38.96 45.16 30.56 36.55 31.05 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 21.33 19.39 10.29 46.67 41.84 54.41 32.00 38.78 35.29 


Grade 4 14.93 18.99 19.19 47.76 45.57 43.43 37.31 35.44 37.37 


Grade 5 39.45 23.61 24.69 41.28 41.67 46.91 19.27 34.72 28.40 


All Grades 27.49 20.48 18.55 44.62 42.97 47.58 27.89 36.55 33.87 
 


293/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 22.37 27.55 17.65 55.26 56.12 60.29 22.37 16.33 22.06 


Grade 4 14.93 16.46 12.12 50.75 64.56 65.66 34.33 18.99 22.22 


Grade 5 26.61 8.33 25.93 58.72 62.50 54.32 14.68 29.17 19.75 


All Grades 22.22 18.47 18.15 55.56 60.64 60.48 22.22 20.88 21.37 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 30.26 28.57 20.59 36.84 40.82 48.53 32.89 30.61 30.88 


Grade 4 22.39 17.72 17.17 43.28 49.37 52.53 34.33 32.91 30.30 


Grade 5 34.86 20.83 32.10 45.87 44.44 37.04 19.27 34.72 30.86 


All Grades 30.16 22.89 22.98 42.46 44.58 46.37 27.38 32.53 30.65 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A three year student cohort analysis of overall English Language Arts achievement shows significant decline in 


achievement. In 2016-2017, the number of third graders not meeting standards was 55.26%. In 2017-2018, the 
number of fourth graders not meeting standard was 56.97%, representing a 1.7% gain in proficiency.  Despite the 
gain, the proficiency rate for students as fifth graders is still 12% less than what this cohort achieved as third 
graders.  In 2018-2019, the number of fourth graders not meeting standards declined to 48.15 %, representing a 
9% gain in achievement for this cohort.  Similar trends of growth in Grade 5 are seen in 2016-2017, the number of 
fourth graders not meeting standard was 64.22%. In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders not meeting standards 
declined to 58.33 % representing a 6% gain in achievement for this cohort.        


2. A three year student cohort analysis of English Language Art achievement shows the reading domain to be the 
area of most significant gains in achievement in Grade 5. In 2016-2017, the number of third graders not meeting 
standards was 32%.  In 2017-2018, the number of fourth graders not meeting standard was 41% representing 9% 
decline in achievement. In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders not meeting standard was 23%, representing a 
18% gain in achievement.        


3. A three year student cohort analysis of English Language Art achievement shows the Research/Inquiry domain to 
be the only area of decline in achievement in Grade 5. In 2016-2017, the number of third graders not meeting 
standards was 32.89%.  In 2017-2018, the number of fourth graders not meeting standard was 32.91% 
representing a stagnation in achievement. In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders not meeting standard was 
30.86% representing an almost 2% decline in achievement.        


 


294/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 81 102 68 76 98 68 76 98 68 93.8 96.1 100 


Grade 4 71 80 102 67 80 100 67 80 100 94.4 100 98 


Grade 5 112 76 82 108 73 81 108 73 81 96.4 96.1 98.8 
All 
Grades 


264 258 252 251 251 249 251 251 249 95.1 97.3 98.8 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2419.
7 


2426.
4 


2421.
7 


9.21 24.49 19.12 39.47 26.53 23.53 14.47 19.39 26.47 36.84 29.59 30.88 


Grade 4 2446.
5 


2433.
4 


2439.
0 


10.45 5.00 8.00 14.93 23.75 21.00 38.81 33.75 29.00 35.82 37.50 42.00 


Grade 5 2503.
8 


2484.
8 


2473.
1 


26.85 12.33 22.22 15.74 19.18 12.35 22.22 32.88 19.75 35.19 35.62 45.68 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 17.13 14.74 15.66 22.71 23.51 18.88 24.30 27.89 25.30 35.86 33.86 40.16 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 25.00 33.67 30.88 36.84 32.65 29.41 38.16 33.67 39.71 


Grade 4 16.42 11.25 16.00 28.36 32.50 27.00 55.22 56.25 57.00 


Grade 5 28.70 16.44 22.22 26.85 35.62 27.16 44.44 47.95 50.62 


All Grades 24.30 21.51 22.09 30.28 33.47 27.71 45.42 45.02 50.20 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 21.05 28.57 23.53 43.42 39.80 50.00 35.53 31.63 26.47 


Grade 4 16.42 10.00 17.00 41.79 47.50 41.00 41.79 42.50 42.00 


Grade 5 26.85 12.33 22.22 37.96 46.58 30.86 35.19 41.10 46.91 


All Grades 22.31 17.93 20.48 40.64 44.22 40.16 37.05 37.85 39.36 
 


295/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.32 30.61 23.53 50.00 40.82 50.00 23.68 28.57 26.47 


Grade 4 10.45 11.25 15.00 50.75 46.25 37.00 38.81 42.50 48.00 


Grade 5 22.22 13.70 17.28 42.59 49.32 35.80 35.19 36.99 46.91 


All Grades 20.32 19.52 18.07 47.01 45.02 40.16 32.67 35.46 41.77 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A three year student cohort analysis of overall Mathematics achievement shows significant decline in achievement.  


In 2016-2017, the number of third graders not meeting standards was 51.31%.In 2016-2017, the number of fourth 
graders not meeting standards grew to 71.25%, representing a 19.94% decline in achievement for this cohort.  In 
2018-2019, the number of fifth graders not meeting standard was 65.43%, representing 5.82% gain in proficiency.  
Despite the gain, the proficiency rate for students as fifth graders is still 14.12% less than what this cohort achieved 
as third graders.        


2. A three year student cohort analysis of Mathematics shows that Communicating Reasoning is our greatest area of 
need.  In 2015-2016, the number of third graders not meeting standards was 23%. In 2016-2017, the number of 
fourth graders not meeting standards grew to 42%, representing a 19% loss in achievement for this cohort. In 2018-
2019, the number of fifth graders not meeting standard was 46%, representing 4% loss in achievement. In three 
year span the overall loss in proficiency in this domain is 23%.        


3. A three year student cohort analysis of Mathematics shows Problem Solving and Modeling/Data Analysis to have 
the least amount of decline in achievement. In 2015-2016, the number of third graders not meeting standard was 
35%. In 2016-2017, the number of fourth graders not meeting standards grew to 42%, representing a 7% decline in 
achievement for this cohort. In 2017-2018, the number of fifth graders not meeting standard was 46%, representing 
4% decline in proficiency.        


 


296/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1427.6 1433.5 1438.7 1450.4 1401.6 1393.6 22 19 


Grade 1        1444.6 1436.2 1466.8 1452.1 1421.9 1419.9 17 16 


Grade 2        1485.9 1483.5 1488.9 1498.0 1482.2 1468.2 17 17 


Grade 3        1492.8 1466.6 1506.7 1492.5 1478.1 1439.9 15 16 


Grade 4        1515.1 1489.7 1511.9 1501.2 1517.9 1477.6 18 16 


Grade 5        1523.5 1540.1 1525.6 1552.4 1520.8 1527.2 11 13 


All Grades              100 97 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 5.26 * 57.89 * 31.58 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 * 50.00 * 37.50 * 12.50 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 41.18 * 52.94  0.00 17 17 


   3    * 0.00 * 31.25 * 50.00 * 18.75 15 16 


   4    * 25.00 * 31.25 * 31.25 * 12.50 18 16 


   5    * 23.08 * 46.15 * 30.77 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        32.00 9.28 33.00 43.30 26.00 39.18 * 8.25 100 97 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 36.84 50.00 42.11 * 15.79 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    64.71 12.50 * 68.75 * 12.50 * 6.25 17 16 


   2    70.59 29.41 * 64.71 * 0.00  5.88 17 17 


   3    * 31.25 * 50.00  0.00 * 18.75 15 16 


   4    * 50.00 61.11 31.25  12.50 * 6.25 18 16 


   5    * 53.85 * 46.15  0.00 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        52.00 35.05 38.00 50.52 * 7.22 * 7.22 100 97 
 


297/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 5.26 * 31.58 50.00 57.89 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 * 12.50 * 62.50 * 25.00 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 23.53 * 52.94 * 17.65 17 17 


   3     0.00 * 6.25 * 31.25 * 62.50 15 16 


   4    * 6.25 * 12.50 * 31.25 * 50.00 18 16 


   5    * 7.69 * 23.08 * 53.85 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        14.00 4.12 32.00 18.56 27.00 48.45 27.00 28.87 100 97 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    50.00 10.53 50.00 84.21  5.26 22 19 


   1    64.71 31.25 * 56.25 * 12.50 17 16 


   2    70.59 17.65 * 76.47 * 5.88 17 17 


   3    * 0.00 * 75.00 * 25.00 15 16 


   4    * 18.75 * 62.50 * 18.75 18 16 


   5    * 15.38 * 84.62 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        49.00 15.46 44.00 73.20 * 11.34 100 97 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 42.11 * 52.63 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 18.75 * 75.00 * 6.25 17 16 


   2    76.47 47.06 * 52.94  0.00 17 17 


   3    73.33 93.75 * 6.25 * 0.00 15 16 


   4    72.22 81.25 * 12.50 * 6.25 18 16 


   5    * 100.00  0.00 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        65.00 61.86 28.00 35.05 * 3.09 100 97 
 


298/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 72.73 94.74 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 12.50 * 50.00 * 37.50 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 76.47 * 17.65 17 17 


   3     0.00 * 25.00 * 75.00 15 16 


   4    * 0.00 77.78 50.00 * 50.00 18 16 


   5    * 15.38 * 69.23 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        14.00 5.15 55.00 61.86 31.00 32.99 100 97 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 47.37 * 31.58 * 21.05 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 70.59 75.00 * 25.00 17 16 


   2    * 0.00 76.47 88.24  11.76 17 17 


   3    * 18.75 * 50.00 * 31.25 15 16 


   4    * 6.25 * 68.75 * 25.00 18 16 


   5    * 7.69 * 76.92 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        30.00 14.43 51.00 63.92 19.00 21.65 100 97 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over half of our students are scored an overall language proficiency level of 3 or 4 (43 and 9 percent respectively).  


Thirty-nine percent scored an overall language proficiency level 2 and 9% scored an overall language proficiency 
level 1. Most English Learner (EL) students have moderate or well developed English Development skills and EL 
target skills should focus on higher level and critical analysis skills.        


2. All EL students scored somewhat moderate or well, developed in speaking,  listening, and writing domains of 
English Language Proficiency Assessment of California (ELPAC) test. However, reading is the area of most need 
with 33% of EL students scoring as a "beginner" on English Language Proficiency Assessment of California 
(ELPAC).  Data suggests more emphasis on reading skills are needed in our English Language Development (ELD) 
instruction.        


3. An area of strength for our EL students is speaking with 62% scoring at the well-developed level.  ELD instruction 
should focus on using strength to build on area of need by increasing the amount of accountable student talk during 
reading instruction and ELD instruction.        


 


299/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


428        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


49.3        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


22.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.5        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        98 22.9 


Foster Youth        2 0.5 


Homeless        7 1.6 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        211 49.3 


Students with Disabilities        65 15.2 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        7 1.6 


Asian        9 2.1 


Filipino        3 0.7 


Hispanic        180 42.1 


Two or More Races        27 6.3 


Pacific Islander        3 0.7 


White        199 46.5 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our largest sub-group is our socio-economically disadvantaged students which represent 49.3% of our student 


population. It is critical that we continue to offer supports, such as our food and nutrition, our breakfast and lunch 
program, Second Harvest Food Distribution program, and Dientes dental screening program at our school to 
support students.        


300/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


2. Our second largest sub group is our English Language Learner group. Our Puentes (Spanish/English bilingual 
bridge program), designated and integrated English Language Development (ELD) instruction are key supports in 
place to serve these students.        


3. White and Hispanic/Latinx students are our largest racial groups (46.5% and 42.1%, respectively).  However, we 
serve students from a variety of racial backgrounds and from diverse cultural homes. We will continue to ensure 
that the curriculum we offer reflects the diversity of our student population.        


 
 


301/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Orange        


 
Mathematics 


 
Orange        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Equity report indicates (orange) "needs improvement" for school suspensions, English Language Arts, and 


Mathematics.        
2. Equity report indicates fair (yellow) progress in Attendance.        


3. Graduation Rates and College/Career Ready is not applicable for our school .        


 
 


302/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


3        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


18.2 points below standard         


Maintained ++2.4 points         


238        


English Learners 


 
Red         


91 points below standard         


Declined -8.3 points         


62        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


72.8 points below standard         


Declined -11 points         


113        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


108.6 points below standard         


Increased ++10.3 points         


50        


 


303/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


71.8 points below standard         


Declined -3.7 points         


91        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


65.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++55.3 points         
16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


12.8 points above standard         


Maintained ++1.8 points         


114        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


116.7 points below standard         


Increased ++3.7 points         


43        


Reclassified English Learners 


32.9 points below standard         


Declined -13.1 points         


19        


English Only 


8.4 points above standard         


Increased ++7.3 points         


171        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our school achieved an overall medium "orange" status in English Language Arts (ELA).  As such, we declined our 


level of achievement in ELA.        
2. Our White students represent the highest achieving student group in ELA (green) and outperform other student 


groups by two performance levels.        
3. Our socio-economically disadvantaged students and Hispanic/Latinx students and students scored in orange.  Our 


students with disabilities and English Learner (EL) students represent our lowest achieving student groups scoring in 
the red.        


 
 


304/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


2        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


39.6 points below standard         


Declined -9.8 points         


238        


English Learners 


 
Red         


97.9 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -22.8 points         


62        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


88.9 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -24.9 points         


113        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


122.4 points below standard         


Declined -6.3 points         


50        


 


305/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


84.9 points below standard         


Declined -14.6 points         


91        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


20.6 points above standard         


Increased ++11.1 points         


16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Yellow         


10.2 points below standard         


Declined -5.7 points         


114        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


117.8 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -18.2 points         


43        


Reclassified English Learners 


52.8 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -18.7 points         


19        


English Only 


18.4 points below standard         


Declined -3.7 points         


171        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our school showed overall needs improvement (orange) student performance in math.        


2. Our white students represent the highest achieving student group in math scoring fair (yellow).        


3. Our socio-economically disadvantaged students, EL students, and Hispanic students scored in needs improvement 
(orange).  Our students with disabilities represent our lowest achieving student groups in math and scored in the red.        


 
 


306/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


49.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 75          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


21.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


29.3         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


45.3         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 49.3 have progressed at least one level showing progress towards English Language proficiency.        


2. 21.3% have decreased one level.        


 
 


307/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 


 


 
 


308/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
4        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


17.4         


Increased +1.1         


460        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


15.5         


Declined -2.4         


103        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


20         


Increased +0.9         


230        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


24.4         


Declined -3.8         


82        


 


309/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


17.9         


Increased +1.2         


190        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


3.4         


Declined -18.8         


29        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


White     


 
Orange         


19         


Increased +2.5         


216        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our overall absenteeism rate is in the Yellow Band which suggests more school-wide emphasis on attendance 


improvement is needed.        
2. Student groups in the Yellow Band for attendance include: Hispanic, English Language Learners, and Socio-


Economically Disadvantaged.   Our most needy subgroup with regards to attendance is our Students with Disabilities 
who are currently in the Red Band.  Our highest performing group is our White Students, however, they are at the 
Yellow band and show great need for improvement.        


3. Despite low performance, the following groups demonstrated decreases in absenteeism:  White students, All 
students.  While our Socio-economically disadvantaged students maintained their absenteeism rate.        


 
 


310/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         2019         
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 


 


 
 


311/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


1.7         


Increased +0.3         
464        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


1         


Increased +1         
103        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


2.2         


Increased +0.6         
231        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


7.3         


Increased +2.2         
82        


 


312/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          10        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


1.6         


Increased +1.6         
193        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
29        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


White     


 
Green         


2.3         


Declined -0.6         
217        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.4         


2019     
1.7         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Data shows overall Orange Performance for suspensions.        


 
 


313/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 1 
All students will make academic literacy growth as measured by the CAASPP ELA assessment.          


 
Identified Need 
There is an achievement gap between white student group and other student groups.         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: All Students        


 18.2 below standard  "All Students" will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 91 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: Students with 
Disabilities        


 108.6 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 71.8 points below standard  Hispanic students will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 
        


 72.8 points below standard  Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: White        


 12.8 points above standard  Students identifying with two or 
more races will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


314/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Refining our progress monitoring system using two summative assessments that will be used to 
monitor our growth in English Language Arts:  Fountas and Pinnell Benchmark Assessments 
System (F&P) and iReady Reading.  Teachers will have three opportunities to come together with 
their grade level colleagues and literacy support staff in Student Learning Team (SLT) meetings to 
analyze summative assessment data and create literacy-based Action Plans.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
7,500         LCFF - Base 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub costs for SLTs 


144,317         District Funded 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
RTI Coordinator (salary) for SLT meetings 


5,000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Assessment tools such as assessment kits, 
software license, or ipads, chrome books, 
laptops, supplemental assessments 


5,000         Title IV Part A: Student Support and Academic 
Enrichment 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
F&P training for 3-5th grade teachers 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will use Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) instruction to support academic 
literacy development. Teachers will identify common summative and formative NGSS assessments 
to be used in cycles of inquiry to monitor language and content area growth.  Teachers will utilize 
assessments provided in district adopted content curriculum (Benchmark Workshop and FOSS) 
and supplement with additional resources when appropriate. 
 
 
        


315/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
replacement FOSS kits and other science 
materials 


2,500         None Specified 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Work with Lawrence Hall of Sciences to have 
science assemblies/ shows 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Striving readers, including English Language Learners, Latino Students, Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Work with consultant to improve Tier 1 literacy instruction in all classrooms, focusing on using data 
to form small groups with goals targeted to specific skills that are not yet developed to grade level 
standard. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
12,000         Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
CSA with Jennifer Russo 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students will benefit from this action        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to develop a Pyramid of Intervention that supports reading.  RtI coordinator will work with 
paraeducators, Classroom teachers, Special Education Staff, and After school staff to support 
students in need of extra assistance in ELA. 
 


316/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
4,000         Title I Part A: Allocation 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Extra hourly for paras to participate in planning 
beyond their work day 


115,022         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
ELA RtI coordinator 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Use ASES staff and after school time to support the learning needs of students, through tutoring 
and enrichment activities.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
5,000         After School and Education Safety (ASES) 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
materials to support student learning 


10,973         After School and Education Safety (ASES) 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Enrichment classes & tutoring support 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 


317/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


This will be the first time in 3 school years where students at Bay View will be taking the CAASPP 
due to COVID 19.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Because the the all students 3-5 have not had an opportunity to take CAASPP yet due to COVID 
19 we will be doing increased test prep with all 3rd-5th graders.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Looking at the 2016-2019 Data there was an overall decline in ELA achievement for all students.        


 


318/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 2 
All students will make mathematics growth as measured by CAASPP          


 
Identified Need 
Students are underperforming in math.         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
All Students        


 13.5 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
English Learners        


 68.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 31 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        


 53.9 points below standard  Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 47.2 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
White        


 11.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 


319/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


All students will benefit from this strategy/action        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Use iReady math diagnostic to monitor student growth, provide data for teachers to analyze to 
support instruction, create small groups, and target instruction to student need. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
7500         CARES Act 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
iReady Math Diagnostic software 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Striving learners, including English Language Learners, Latino Students, Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Use the services of the Math RtI coordinator to develop a comprehensive math intervention 
program to support students that are below grade level.  Students will have access to myPathway, 
a component of iReady math, to support specific learning targets for students below grade level 
with teacher taught lessons and software to improve learning. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
102,623         CARES Act 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Math RtI coordinator 


12,000         CARES Act 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
iReady myPathways math intervention 
curriuclum 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 


320/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 
Transition from whole group math instruction to a math workshop model.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2,500         Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Professional development for all teachers in 
math workshop model 


5000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
supplies for math workshop, books 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Special Education students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Collaborate with general education and Special Education teachers to support students with IEPs 
to ensure they are meeting growth targets in mathematics.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
4000         LCFF - Base 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub time for collaboration between grade level 
and SPED teachers 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Plan and deliver a Family Math Night to help parents to learn how to support their students at 
home, as well as games they can play as a family that support math growth.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 


321/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
2000         Title I 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies for family math night 


1000         Donations 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Food for family math nights 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Implementation of goals in math were limited due to COVID 19 requirements and distance learning.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
We were unable to do planned math professional development due to distance learning retractions.  
We were also unable to implement planned assessment activities because our assessment tool did 
not fit the distance learning format.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
The focus for 21-22 will need to be acceleration of learning in math.  Goals include implementing a 
robust RtI program for math to support student learning.        


 


322/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 3 
All English Learners will be academically successful as measured by ELA CAASPP, Mathematics 
CAASPP, Chronic Absenteeism and Suspension Dashboard Indicators          


 
Identified Need 
EL students are not progressing at the same rate as EO students and need focused attention to 
support their growth.         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 91 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
English Learners        


 97.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning 
students that have been absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year.        


 15.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent English Learners by at 
least .5%. 


Suspension Rate: The 
percentage of English Learners 
being suspended during the 
school year.        


 1% suspended at least once  We will maintain at 0-1% 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 


323/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Staff will use the ELD Roadmap to evaluate current practices for English Language Learners at 
Bay View, and develop action plans for how to improve learning for EL students. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
500         LCFF 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Copies of the EL roadmap for all staff 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Administer the ELPAC practice test to all EL students, and analyze the errors to better understand 
what specific skills are holding students back from passing.  Teachers will work as grade levels to 
determine time to administer the practice tests and analyze the results. 
 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners and Redesigned English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Develop a walkthrough template with the SCIL team that highlights best practices for integrated 
ELD in the classroom, and then use the data from those walkthroughs with all staff to determine 
professional development needs and help teachers to better understand integrate ELD in their 
classrooms.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 


324/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners and Redesigned English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Three times this year teachers will be released to participate in LRT meetings to monitor English 
Learner progress, determine instructional needs for those students, and plan for how to support 
those students in the classroom.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
10,000         LCFF - Base 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners and Redesigned English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Increase outreach, education and engagement and offer more opportunities for EL parents to 
participate in the school community.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
5,000         Donations 


0000: Unrestricted 
Food, supplies for ELAC/ PTO meetings. 
Supplies for parent education nights. 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 


325/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We continued to provide specific designated ELD for students even in distance learning.  We were 
not able to meet all the professional development ideas due to COVID restrictions.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Any changes were due to COVID restrictions, specifically the inability to provide in person 
conference or professional development because of COVID restrictions.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue to focus on using desginated and integrated ELD strategies to support our English 
Language Learners.        


 


326/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         


 


Goal 4 
All students will feel connected to their school as measured by attendance data and school 
suspension data          


 
Identified Need 
19-20 California Dashboard initiated red in suspensions and chronic absenteeism. By helping kids 
feel more connected to school we hope to reduce suspensions and chronic absenteeism.         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of "All Students" absent more 
than 10% of the school year        


 17.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent "All Students" by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Students with Disabilities 
absent more than 10% of the 
school year        


 24.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students 
absent more than 10% of the 
school year        


 20% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of English Learners absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year        


 15.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent English Learners by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Hispanic students absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year        


 17.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Hispanic students by 
.5% or more. 


Suspension: Percent of "All 
Students" suspended once 
during the school year        


 1.7% of all students were 
suspended once 


 We will decrease the 
percentage of suspensions for 
all students by .5% 


 


327/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Habitually truant students (with particular focus on special education, Latino, ELL,  and socio-
economically disadvantaged students)  and students at-risk of suspension        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue implementation of PBIS school wide to support positive school behavior school 
connectedness and reduce suspensions.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1,500         Title I 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Extended extra-hourly duty (when appropriate) 
for support staff to attend data entry and data 
analysis training, to enter data into data system, 
and to run reports. 
 
 
 


1,000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies to support PBIS implementation 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students with special emphasis on habitually truant students (with particular focus on special 
education, Latino, ELL,  and socio-economically disadvantaged students)  and students at-risk of 
suspension        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement Second Step and/or Soul Shoppe to support student social emotional learning. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 


328/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


1000         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Book, supplies, to implement 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students with special emphasis on habitually truant students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Develop an attendance review team. As a team analize chronic absenteeism weekly and make 
phone calls and home visits for truant kids.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1,500         LCFF - Supplemental 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
extra hourly as needed to support attendance 
review team. 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
students at-risk of suspension        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Work with the SAIL team increase mainstreaming opportunities and collaboration between general 
education and special education teachers.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2,000         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub release or extra hourly for SAIL/ RSP/ Gen 
Ed Collaborations meetings and peer 
observations 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 


329/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Our suspension and chronic absenteeism decreased in the 20-21 school year, despite distance 
learning.  We continued to use attendance team strategies as described in the plan.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Any changes were due to COVID 19 restrictions.  We were unable to provide in person services for 
parents.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue our work with Second Step, Attendance review teams, alternatives to suspension, 
and other social emotional learning strategies to ensure a re-education in suspension and chronic 
absenteeism.        


 


330/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $ 


Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $ 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $473,435.00 


 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 


Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 


Title I        $4,500.00 


Title I Part A: Allocation        $4,000.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        $14,500.00 


Title IV Part A: Student Support and Academic Enrichment        $5,000.00 


 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $28,000.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 


State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 


After School and Education Safety (ASES)        $15,973.00 


CARES Act        $122,123.00 


District Funded        $144,317.00 


Donations        $6,000.00 


LCFF        $500.00 


LCFF - Base        $21,500.00 


LCFF - Supplemental        $129,522.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $3,000.00 


None Specified        $2,500.00 


331/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $445,435.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $473,435.00 


332/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


2 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Renee Golder         X Principal        


Stu Branoff         X Classroom Teacher        


Lauren Shiner         X Classroom Teacher        


Sabina Holber         X Parent or Community Member        


Kristina Quilici         X Parent or Community Member        


Jennifer Johnston         X Classroom Teacher        


Elisa Gonzales         X Other School Staff        


X Parent or Community Member        


Meg Dolan         X Parent or Community Member        


Karen Benitez          


Manuel Castaneda         X Other School Staff        


Pat Fitzsimmons         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


333/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 49 Bay View Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Renee Golder on 10/01/2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Kristina Quilici on 10/01/2021 


 


334/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 


 
 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name DeLaveaga Elementary         


Address 1145 Morrissey Blvd.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95065-1498 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049886         


Principal Thien Hua         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 9, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 28, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


335/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School Vision and Mission 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School’s Vision and Mission Statements 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is located on the east side of Santa Cruz near DeLaveaga City Park. The highly skilled 
and collaborative teaching staff have many years of professional experience. We emphasize a strong, enriched 
educational program, supplemented by the arts and sciences, based on California Content Standards, which enables all 
children to reach their academic, social, and emotional potential. DeLaveaga houses the district’s K-5 Spanish Two Way 
Immersion program, a program strand within our school. The goal of the program is for all students to be 
bilingual/bicultural in English and Spanish. We are fortunate to have a high rate of active parent participation to support 
the classrooms and programs at our school. 
 
VISION STATEMENT 
The DeLaveaga School Community considers every child unique and deserving of the highest quality education 
available so that they may reach their own full potential, both academically and socially. 
 
MISSION STATEMENT 
At DeLaveaga, we believe every person has value and the potential to achieve their goals. We believe families are equal 
partners who support their children, as well as the needs of the whole school community. We collaborate as a team so 
that all children can learn. School should be safe and fun; a place where each child wants to be each day. We celebrate 
our diverse world in which children’s languages and cultures, talents and dreams, are fostered and valued. We believe 
the transformative power of excellent teaching makes our beliefs become reality and supports high levels of achievement 
for all students. 
         


 


School Profile 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is located on the east side of Santa Cruz near DeLaveaga Park. The highly skilled and 
collaborative teaching staff have many years of professional experience. We emphasize a strong, enriched educational 
program, supplemented by the arts and sciences, based on California Content Standards which enables all children to 
reach their academic, social, and emotional potential. DeLaveaga houses the district’s K-5 Spanish Two Way Immersion 
program, a program strand within our school. The goal of the program is for all students to be bilingual/bicultural in 
English and Spanish. We are fortunate to have a high rate of active parent participation to support the classrooms and 
programs at our school. In the academic year 2021-22, approximately 470 students registered in the Fall for its 
kindergarten through fifth grades.         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Over the course of the 2021-2022 academic year, through the use of English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC), 
School Site Council (SSC), Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership (SCIL), and Staff Meetings, we consulted with school 
staff and parents in the review and revision of our school plan.         


 


336/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.38% 0.57% 0.6% 2 3 3 


African American     1.7% 2.26% 1.7% 9 12 8 


Asian     3.03% 3.4% 4.3% 16 18 20 


Filipino     0.38% 0.38% 0.4% 2 2 2 


Hispanic/Latino     38.64% 37.36% 41.9% 204 198 197 


Pacific Islander     0.38% 0.38% 0.2% 2 2 1 


White     51.89% 53.4% 48.9% 274 283 230 


Multiple/No Response     3.22% 2.26% 1.9% 17 12 9 


 Total Enrollment 528 530 470 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        115 114 95 


Grade 1        86 89 82 


Grade 2        79 81 82 


Grade3        72 74 73 


Grade 4        100 75 69 


Grade 5        76 97 69 


Total Enrollment        528 530 470 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. While DeLaveaga has a majority of "White" students, we also have approximately 39% Hispanic and Latinx 


students. The balance of our enrollment consists of African American, Asian, Filipino and Pacific Islander students. 
These number of remained consistent over the past 3 years.        


2. The Santa Cruz City Schools District has been in a period of declining enrollment, and this has also been the trend 
at DeLaveaga. Our current enrollment in 2020-21 is 475 students; a drop of 55 students from last year to this year.        


 


337/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        113 111 83 21.4% 20.9% 17.7% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        41 36 29 7.8% 6.8% 6.2% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        11 3 9 8.8% 2.7% 8.1% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. With the trend of declining enrollment both in the District and the school site, we have also seen a reduction in our 


English Learner numbers.        
2. In 2020-21, we increased the number of students who were reclassified from 2019-20. In 2019-20, many students 


did not take English Language Proficiency Assessment of California (ELPAC) due to the COVID-19 shelter in place.        
 


338/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 87 102 72 86 102 70 86 102 70 98.9 100 97.2 


Grade 4 91 80 98 87 78 97 87 78 97 95.6 97.5 99 


Grade 5 108 87 76 106 85 75 106 85 75 98.1 97.7 98.7 
All 
Grades 


286 269 246 279 265 242 279 265 242 97.6 98.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2427.
0 


2400.
9 


2413.
9 


27.91 12.75 17.14 20.93 26.47 22.86 26.74 30.39 32.86 24.42 30.39 27.14 


Grade 4 2469.
0 


2476.
2 


2472.
6 


26.44 28.21 23.71 24.14 30.77 35.05 18.39 17.95 14.43 31.03 23.08 26.80 


Grade 5 2521.
7 


2521.
8 


2530.
5 


27.36 34.12 34.67 34.91 25.88 28.00 16.04 15.29 20.00 21.70 24.71 17.33 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 27.24 24.15 25.21 27.24 27.55 29.34 20.07 21.89 21.49 25.45 26.42 23.97 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 31.40 14.71 25.71 40.70 49.02 47.14 27.91 36.27 27.14 


Grade 4 33.33 30.77 21.65 42.53 51.28 51.55 24.14 17.95 26.80 


Grade 5 35.85 38.82 34.67 45.28 40.00 45.33 18.87 21.18 20.00 


All Grades 33.69 27.17 26.86 43.01 46.79 48.35 23.30 26.04 24.79 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 18.60 6.86 14.29 47.67 52.94 48.57 33.72 40.20 37.14 


Grade 4 18.39 21.79 24.74 51.72 48.72 58.76 29.89 29.49 16.49 


Grade 5 33.96 38.82 34.67 39.62 35.29 52.00 26.42 25.88 13.33 


All Grades 24.37 21.51 24.79 45.88 46.04 53.72 29.75 32.45 21.49 
 


339/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 24.42 16.67 12.86 68.60 63.73 67.14 6.98 19.61 20.00 


Grade 4 14.94 19.23 22.68 64.37 69.23 62.89 20.69 11.54 14.43 


Grade 5 24.53 24.71 17.33 62.26 56.47 73.33 13.21 18.82 9.33 


All Grades 21.51 20.00 18.18 64.87 63.02 67.36 13.62 16.98 14.46 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 25.58 13.73 14.29 51.16 53.92 57.14 23.26 32.35 28.57 


Grade 4 31.03 32.05 19.59 48.28 51.28 56.70 20.69 16.67 23.71 


Grade 5 31.13 29.41 34.67 46.23 49.41 48.00 22.64 21.18 17.33 


All Grades 29.39 24.15 22.73 48.39 51.70 54.13 22.22 24.15 23.14 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 54.55% of students in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts test. 23.97% of students 


in grades 3-5 did not meet standard. 21.49% nearly met the standard.        
2. Cluster scores in Reading and Research/Inquiry are relatively stronger than Writing and Listening. These were 


areas for focus for 2018-2019.        
3. The California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) was not taken in 2020 due to COVID-


19 shelter in place, so there is no current score information for students        
 


340/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 87 102 72 86 102 70 86 102 70 98.9 100 97.2 


Grade 4 91 80 98 87 78 97 87 78 97 95.6 97.5 99 


Grade 5 108 87 76 106 85 75 106 85 75 98.1 97.7 98.7 
All 
Grades 


286 269 246 279 265 242 279 265 242 97.6 98.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2424.
8 


2411.
2 


2427.
6 


13.95 8.82 17.14 30.23 30.39 38.57 31.40 28.43 10.00 24.42 32.35 34.29 


Grade 4 2458.
9 


2466.
0 


2462.
2 


13.79 11.54 11.34 24.14 30.77 26.80 32.18 32.05 37.11 29.89 25.64 24.74 


Grade 5 2516.
5 


2508.
8 


2521.
2 


21.70 25.88 25.33 34.91 20.00 21.33 20.75 23.53 37.33 22.64 30.59 16.00 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.85 15.09 17.36 30.11 27.17 28.51 27.60 27.92 29.34 25.45 29.81 24.79 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.74 14.71 25.71 36.05 41.18 38.57 37.21 44.12 35.71 


Grade 4 21.84 19.23 19.59 40.23 35.90 36.08 37.93 44.87 44.33 


Grade 5 30.19 27.06 25.33 39.62 29.41 37.33 30.19 43.53 37.33 


All Grades 26.52 20.00 23.14 38.71 35.85 37.19 34.77 44.15 39.67 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 19.77 22.55 27.14 55.81 50.00 44.29 24.42 27.45 28.57 


Grade 4 19.54 23.08 18.56 49.43 51.28 55.67 31.03 25.64 25.77 


Grade 5 30.19 29.41 29.33 47.17 44.71 53.33 22.64 25.88 17.33 


All Grades 23.66 24.91 24.38 50.54 48.68 51.65 25.81 26.42 23.97 
 


341/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 18.60 10.78 20.00 56.98 56.86 54.29 24.42 32.35 25.71 


Grade 4 18.39 19.23 18.56 52.87 50.00 54.64 28.74 30.77 26.80 


Grade 5 23.58 23.53 21.33 50.94 47.06 57.33 25.47 29.41 21.33 


All Grades 20.43 17.36 19.83 53.41 51.70 55.37 26.16 30.94 24.79 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 45.87% of students tested in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard. 75.21% of students tested in grades 3-5 nearly 


met, met, or exceeded standard.        
2. Cluster scores were relatively stronger in the area of concepts and procedures. Communicating Reasoning is an 


area of relative weakness, and were areas for focus for 2018-2019.        
3. There was no CAASPP testing in 2020 due to COVID-19 shelter in place, so there is no data for the 2020-21 school 


year.        
 


342/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1432.6 1436.0 1440.2 1445.7 1414.7 1413.1 31 21 


Grade 1        1438.0 1445.1 1456.5 1472.0 1419.2 1417.8 19 24 


Grade 2        1472.9 1465.5 1482.2 1495.8 1463.0 1434.8 27 16 


Grade 3        1483.4 1514.1 1482.6 1523.1 1483.8 1504.6 20 20 


Grade 4        1549.8 1519.4 1569.9 1515.1 1529.5 1523.2 13 18 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 10 


All Grades              117 109 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    48.39 14.29 * 38.10 * 38.10 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 8.33 * 25.00 * 54.17 * 12.50 19 24 


   2    * 6.25 44.44 25.00 * 56.25 * 12.50 27 16 


   3    * 40.00 * 25.00 * 35.00 * 0.00 20 20 


   4    * 11.11 * 50.00  38.89  0.00 13 18 


   5    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        30.77 20.18 34.19 32.11 21.37 41.28 13.68 6.42 117 109 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    51.61 19.05 * 42.86 * 28.57 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 33.33 * 37.50 * 25.00  4.17 19 24 


   2    51.85 43.75 * 43.75 * 12.50 * 0.00 27 16 


   3    * 55.00 * 25.00 * 10.00 * 10.00 20 20 


   4    84.62 50.00 * 44.44  5.56  0.00 13 18 


   5    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        49.57 42.20 30.77 37.61 11.11 15.60 * 4.59 117 109 
 


343/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    41.94 14.29 * 23.81 41.94 52.38 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 4.17 * 4.17 * 45.83 * 45.83 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 * 12.50 * 25.00 * 62.50 27 16 


   3     10.00 * 30.00 * 50.00 * 10.00 20 20 


   4    * 5.56 * 44.44 * 38.89  11.11 13 18 


   5    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        19.66 8.26 22.22 22.94 30.77 44.04 27.35 24.77 117 109 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    70.97 28.57 * 66.67 * 4.76 31 21 


   1    * 58.33 * 37.50 * 4.17 19 24 


   2    55.56 18.75 * 75.00 * 6.25 27 16 


   3    * 40.00 70.00 40.00 * 20.00 20 20 


   4    * 33.33 * 55.56  11.11 13 18 


   5    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        52.14 35.78 41.88 55.96 * 8.26 117 109 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    48.39 23.81 * 66.67 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 20.83 * 62.50  16.67 19 24 


   2    51.85 56.25 44.44 43.75 * 0.00 27 16 


   3    * 80.00 55.00 20.00 * 0.00 20 20 


   4    84.62 61.11 * 38.89  0.00 13 18 


All Grades        52.14 51.38 35.90 43.12 11.97 5.50 117 109 
 


344/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 4.76 64.52 90.48 * 4.76 31 21 


   1    * 12.50 * 50.00 * 37.50 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 44.44 50.00 * 50.00 27 16 


   3     15.00 * 65.00 60.00 20.00 20 20 


   4    * 11.11 * 50.00 * 38.89 13 18 


All Grades        18.80 10.09 53.85 63.30 27.35 26.61 117 109 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    38.71 28.57 48.39 52.38 * 19.05 31 21 


   1     4.17 * 37.50 * 58.33 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 62.96 31.25 * 68.75 27 16 


   3    * 10.00 55.00 85.00 * 5.00 20 20 


   4    * 33.33 * 61.11  5.56 13 18 


All Grades        22.22 17.43 54.70 54.13 23.08 28.44 117 109 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. About 72% of our students are in the Moderately or Well-Developed range in the Writing Domain. While in the 


Reading Domain, it was reversed - with approximately 85% of students scoring in the Beginning to Moderately 
ranges of the Domain.        


2. In Overall Language, about 52% of our English Learners scored in the 3 or 4 Performance Levels, and about 48% 
scored at Levels 1 and 2.        


3. ELPAC testing was incomplete in 2019-20 due to the COVID-19 shelter in place. There is no data for the 2019-20 
school year.        


 
 


345/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


530        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


32.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


20.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        111 20.9 


Homeless        5 0.9 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        173 32.6 


Students with Disabilities        65 12.3 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        12 2.3 


American Indian        3 0.6 


Asian        18 3.4 


Filipino        2 0.4 


Hispanic        198 37.4 


Two or More Races        12 2.3 


Pacific Islander        2 0.4 


White        283 53.4 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. DeLaveaga is a school with about 40% Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, with 22.7% English Learners, and 0.5% 


Foster Youth.        
2. We have 0.7% Homeless and 12.9% Students with Disabilities.        


 
 


346/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We have done well to keep our suspension rate low. We are at the highest performing level on this indicator.        


2. Our English Learner subgroup is performing at a very low level on the State Assessment. This is an area of focus 
for us this year.        


3. Three out of 5 groups did not do very well in the area of math. For this reason, a focus on Integrated English 
Language Development (ELD) is designed to meet this need, as well as that of our English Language Learner 
(ELL) group.        


 
 


347/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3 points above standard         


Increased ++4.9 points         


240        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


62.2 points below standard         


Increased ++8.6 points         


63        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


41.6 points below standard         


Increased ++13.9 points         


84        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


19.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.3 points         
42        


 


348/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


35.9 points below standard         


Increased ++8.8 points         


93        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


30.4 points above standard         


Maintained ++2.2 points         


128        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


82.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++29.5 points         
48        


Reclassified English Learners 


3.6 points above standard         


Maintained ++2.6 points         


15        


English Only 


24.4 points above standard         


Increased ++7.2 points         


167        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Even where we had low scores (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged (SED), Special Education (SPED), English 


Language Learner (ELL), and Hispanic/Latinx, we either increased or maintained English Language Arts (ELA) scores 
in all areas (only the Asian subgroup declined, but was still in the Very High status).        


2. Given the low scores for our ELLs, Hispanic/Latinx, and SED students, we need to focus our ELA instruction and 
intervention on these groups.        


 
 


349/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


3        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


13.5 points below standard         


Increased ++6.5 points         


240        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


68.9 points below standard         


Maintained ++0.7 points         


63        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


53.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++19.5 points         
84        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


31 points below standard         


Increased ++14.4 points         


42        


 


350/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


47.2 points below standard         


Increased ++8.8 points         


93        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


11.2 points above standard         


Increased ++8.2 points         


128        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


79.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++16.8 points         
48        


Reclassified English Learners 


33.5 points below standard         


Declined -10.8 points         


15        


English Only 


4.3 points above standard         


Increased ++12.1 points         


167        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Math is an area for focus this year. Almost all subgroups declined on math this year.        


2. A bright spot for us this year was our Special Education students who had an increase of 11.2 points over the prior 
year.        


 
 


351/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


50 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 88          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


22.7         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


27.2         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


6.8         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


43.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Again, as was mentioned earlier, our English Learner subgroup is struggling on English Learner progress towards 


Reclassification, and in the area of math. English Language Arts (increased by 7.4 points), while slightly higher than 
the other areas, is still low.        


 
 


352/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
4        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


12.5         


Maintained +0.2         


536        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


12.3         


Maintained 0         


114        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


63.6         


Increased +1.1         


11        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


19.6         


Maintained -0.4         


199        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


13.3         


Maintained +0.3         


83        


 


353/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


6.3         


Maintained +0.4         


16        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


13.9         


Declined -2.1         


209        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


15         


Declined -4         


20        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Orange         


10.9         


Increased +1.6         


276        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our Chronic Absenteeism is high compared to the State rate. In 2018, 12.3% of our students, 20% of our 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and 15.9% of our Hispanic/Latinx students were Chronically Absent.        
 
 


354/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


4        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0.2         


Declined -0.5         
544        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -1.5         
117        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -12.5         
16        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0.5         


Declined -0.8         
206        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


1.2         


Declined -2.3         
85        


 


355/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
16        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -0.9         
212        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
21        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


White     


 
Blue         


0.4         


Declined -0.3         
280        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.7         


2019     
0.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our work on Tier I and Tier II Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) for all students has contributed 


to blue and green ratings for all students in this area. This is a celebration for DeLaveaga.        
 
 


356/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our 2019-2020 CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green," meaning that overall, 
our students have met their level achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are +3 points above 
the standard. In addition, we see that many of our groups are not meeting the standard (English Language Learners, 
Students with Disabilities, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and Hispanic/Latinx). For specific student group data, see 
the metrics and baseline below. Given our current Distance Learning situation, we will be utilizing alternative metrics and 
determining baseline within the next month.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 3 points above standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 62.2 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 19.7 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic        


 35.9 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        


 41.6 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


iReady Reading for All Students         (Not currently being used in DL)  All students will meet their Expected 
Growth Targets by Spring 2021 


Lexia Progress Reports (All Grades)         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


357/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


ESGI Phonics Assessment (TK and 
Kindergarten)        


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
We will continue with a focus on developing Integrated ELD lessons, not only through our ELA lessons, but in other 
subjects as well (math, science, social studies). Developing academic discourse will be a key component of these 
lessons.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Response to Instruction (RtI) Coordinator and Classroom Teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Standards-based assessments will be used to guide and modify Language Arts instruction. We will disaggregate data 
by program (EO and TWI).        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration & RtI Coordinator, along with classroom teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 37,345        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Assessments used will include: 
* iReady 
* Fountas and Pinnell (F & P) 
* Writing Assessment  (Needs to be revised to be coordinated with CCSS) 
* Spanish DRA 
        


358/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional Development for teachers to learn new programs, instructional strategies (Literacy Strategies), and to 
collaborate with colleagues. This may be accomplished through participation in conferences, workshops, peer 
observations, and grade level articulation.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description * Release time for teachers 
* Professional Development/Professional Learning Community Days 
* Conferences 
* Workshops 
        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Provide support in Spanish for our Dos Alas Program for students to develop their Spanish literacy skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students in the Dos Alas, Two Way Immersion program.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Two Way Immersion classroom teacher, and RtI Coodinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Provide additional staff support to TWI students in need of Spanish literacy support        


Amount 5400        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


359/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Description Classified, and in some cases Certificated staff will provide tutoring or small cohort 
support to at-risk students.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Literacy Intervention, both during and after school, will address needs of struggling learners by providing phonics based 
instruction through SIPPS, Lexia, and writing support. Fund one RtI Coordinator/ teacher; fund learning assistant to 
provide small group support for reading and assessment.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and Hispanic/Latinx students will be 
the focus of this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and  RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7500        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description ASSIPs (After School Support and Intervention Programs) 
* LISTOS 
* Reading and Writing Intervention for Grades 1-3 
* Homework Club 
* Tutoring for at-risk students 
        


Amount 5000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Learning Assistants will provide small group intervention and assessment        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student Learning Teams and Language Review Teams (3 times a year) Grade level teams meet with RtI Coordinator 
to review student data (iReady, F & P, Others TBD) following trimester assessments.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Three times a year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration & RtI Coordinator, along with classroom teachers.        


 


360/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SLTs and LRTs will review data to determine the learning needs of each student, as well 
as the English Language Development needs of our ELLs. Subs will be needed to 
release teachers to attend meetings.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Purchase additional supplies and materials to support the academic literacy development of all students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 40,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Software: 
* IStation 
* RAZKids 
Supplemental Leveled Reading Materials 
Access to laminators, printers, maps, etc. 
        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Implement the adopted ELA/ELD Curricular Program School-wide and with fidelity and provide teachers time to learn 
the program and plan instruction.  All teachers will implement, with fidelity, the new ELA/ELD curriculum during a 
consistent and designed time of day.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RtI Coodinator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


361/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Strategy/Activity 9 
Science will be a focus for the year through the implementation of Integrated ELD, FOSS Kits, and the Science 
Practices on a monthly basis. Teachers will work together during grade level and Professional Learning Communities 
(PLC) time to plan activities that develop and support language development through Science.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Science Leads and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description FOSS kit refill materials        


 


362/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematic growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our 2018-2019 CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green," meaning that overall, 
our students have met their level achievement and are 13.5 points below standard. In addition, when we dig deeper into 
our different student groups, we see that there is significant need to improve our students' level of proficiency in 
mathematics, especially among our English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Hispanic/Latinx students, and 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students. For specific student group data, see the metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 13.5 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 68.9 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 31 points below standard (Not being 
currently used) 


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 53.9 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic/Latinx        


 47.2 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 Hispanic/Latinx will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         11 points above standard (Not being 
currently used) 


 White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Zearn Progress Reports         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


363/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Unit Tests in Eureka Math Program         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Teachers will implement the adopted math curriculum (Eureka) with fidelity.  There will be a designated time during the 
day for math instruction for each grade level.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and classroom teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Professional Development for Staff and Parents        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator, Classroom Teachers, and Parent/Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Conferences, workshops, collaboration, and articulation days will provide teachers the 
time and training to better meet the needs of their students.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Math intervention both during the day and after school will be provided to those students who are in need of additional 
support. An Additional RtI Coordinator will assist in identifying students in need of intervention using iReady 
assessment data.        


 


364/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be considered for these programs, but will be selected based on assessment data, teacher 
recommendation, and parental agreement.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RtI Coordinator and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 108,137        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Salary of RtI Coordinator        


Amount 8000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Small group support in math with our Response to Intervention teacher and Learning 
Assistants. In addition, students will have access a computer software program to 
support math skill/concept 
* iReady Math 
        


Amount 5400        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified and in some cases Certificated staff will tutor or provide small cohort support 
for at-risk students.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Materials and supplies will be purchased for students and staff as supplemental curriculum and manipulatives to 
strengthen learning in math.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinators, and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


365/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Amount 5000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Manipulatives, printed and electronic materials to support math instruction        


 


366/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
About 72% of our students are in the Moderately or Well-Developed range in the Writing Domain. While in the Reading 
Domain, it was reversed, with approximately 85% of students scoring in the Beginning to Moderately ranges of the 
Domain. In Overall Language, about 52% of our English Learners scored in the 3 or 4 Performance Levels, and about 
48% scored at Levels 1 and 2. 
 
In addition to the ELPAC, our district monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Performance, Academic Engagement, School Conditions and Climate. In analyzing all of these data points, we see that 
supporting our English Learners in all areas needs to be a focus for our district. See below for specific English Learner 
metrics and data. 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 62.2 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 68.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


ELPAC Data         52% scored at a Level 3 or 4  65% will score at a Level 3 or 4. 


EL Student Suspensions         0%  Maintain 0% 
 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


367/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Integrated ELD (Professional Development, Administrator walkthroughs, peer observations, coaching, etc.) in the areas 
of ELA and Math        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator, classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Parent training on ELPAC and in math to better understand the Reclassification process, the math program, and how 
they can support their child/children at home. Schedule time to provide explanations of the assessment process, test 
scores, and data to parents at ELAC, Family Math Nights, and Back To School Night.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Child Care cost and snacks for parents to increase attendance and participation        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Staffing and materials to support the LRT process and coordinate the ELPAC testing        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners (LEP, RFEP, IFEP)        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator and ELPAC Coordinator        


 


368/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description English Learner Designee to organize Language Review Team meetings, plan ELPAC 
schedule and testing, maintain records, and develop ELD programs.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Designated ELD for all English Language Learners.  All ELLs will be grouped by proficiency levels for 30-45 minutes 
daily for ELD instruction. 
Annual and weekly schedule will be created by each grade level that shows when ELD instruction will happen. 
Students at the higher levels of English Proficiency will receive ELD instruction based on an Individual Service Plan 
(ISP) that identifies standards to be learned. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5400        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified (and Certificated staff when possible) will provide ELD tutoring or small cohort 
support for our most at-risk English Language Learners        


Strategy/Activity 5 
RtI Coordinator and Learning assistants will support English Learners’ progress towards proficiency in English 
Language Arts.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learner subgroup will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 30,839        


369/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Academic Intervention support aide salaries for small group instruction based on student 
reading levels (Learning Assistants)        


Amount 112,680        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RTI Coordinator Salary        


Amount 37,542        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Academic Intervention support aide salaries for small group instruction based on student 
reading levels (Learning Assistants)        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Teachers include research based engagement strategies, such as Integrated English Language Development, in their 
instruction to support English Language Learning and all student learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


 


370/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data and suspension data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, 
and the Socio-Emotional Health Survey, we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When 
determining the level of School Connectedness in our district, we are specifically looking at data related to students 
reporting they have supportive, caring relationships with adults, the curriculum, school activities are relevant and 
engaging, and there is a sense of student leadership and ownership on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 12.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 13.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 19.6% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 12.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 13.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


Suspension: Percent of Students with 
Disabilities suspended once during 
the school year        


 1.2% suspended  We will decease the percentage of 
suspended Students with Disabilities 
to less than 1%. 


Attendance/Engagement Gradebook 
Record        


    


 


371/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Positive Behavioral Instruction and Support (PBIS) principles and school wide expectations will be implemented school-
wide. Counselor and Principal will present PBIS video on school wide expectations at grade level assemblies in 
September. PBIS team will analyze behavior data from office referrals to monitor locations and types of behavior that 
need attention. We will provide an updated "online" version of our Dragon Way Expectations, as well as a system for 
student (and staff) recognition (Dragon Tickets and Drawings). Teachers will systematically implement school-wide 
expectations - The Dragon Way.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, counselor and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of Materials & Supplies to Implement the Dragon Wheel: 
* Dragon Tickets 
* Calming Corner/Space 
* Second Step 
* WITS 
* Zones of Regulation 
* Playground Games and Rules 
* Behavior Forms for Minor and Major Referrals 
        


Strategy/Activity 2 
We will improve school-wide attendance through identification of chronically absent and truant students, communication 
with staff and parents, and intervention through conferences, Tier/Student Study Team meetings and School 
Attendance Review Board referrals, as well as tutoring and/or small cohort support. We will develop a site-based 
system for address attendance issue. Some of which will include Attendance/Truancy letter revision to better 
communicate the importance of attendance and the consequences of missing school. In addition, teachers will receive 
information on Chronic Absenteeism, along with Truancy, to better address these issue within their classrooms. We will 
better incorporate attendance into our Tier/Student Study Team and School Leadership Team meetings to more 
promptly address attendance issues. We will involve the Nurse, Health Clerk, and School Community Coordinator in 
the process, so that other issues that may be affecting attendance can be more promptly addressed. We will look into 
the addition of a Student Attendance Award as a way to motivate students and parents to attend school daily.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 


372/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, PBIS Committee, Attendance Clerk and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Cost of extra hourly for classified support staff to conduct above activities.        


Amount 5400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified Staff (and Certificated when available) will provide tutoring and small cohort 
support for our most at-risk students.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Communicate with staff, students, and in particular, parents about our School-wide Behavior System (The Dragon 
Way), along with the curriculum Second Step and Soul Shoppe. We will communicate through newsletters, parent 
meetings, Back To School Night, our school website, and flyers information about our Dragon Way Program, including 
"Walk away, Ignore, Talk it out, and Seek help," Zones of Regulation, and instruction in the areas of focus, Optimism 
and Growth Mindset. Cost of promotional materials.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 350        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials and supplies to support learning social-emotional curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Celebrations for Positive Student Behavior. We will reinforce positive student behavior through: 
* Spirit Days 
* Dragon Tickets and Dragon Ticket Winners 
* Classroom Awards 
* Dragon Way Awards Assemblies 


373/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


* Dragon Way Celebration Assemblies 
* Student Leadership 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 480        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of materials and supplies to support reinforcement of positive behaviors        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Provide training in Playworks Games and strategies for all staff        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, classroom teachers, and yard duty monitors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Training of all school staff by Playworks program staff        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student Referral System to better respond to student needs (Tiers staff-support meetings). This team will meet bi-
monthly to identify students at risk based on attendance and engagement measures.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 


374/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


August 2020-June 2021        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, School Counselor, and PART (Participation and Attendance Review Team)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 7 
Provide parents training in technology (Seesaw, Google Classroom, Email, and Parent Portal with Infinite Campus to 
better support their children both in Independent Studies (quarantine) and in-person learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing during the academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal and RtI (Response to Intervention) Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Provide funding for trainers and materials purchase and preparation.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
We will increase parent participation in school and through organized groups (Parent-Teacher Conference, English 
Learner Advisory Committee, School Site Counsel, etc.). We will explore different ways of reaching out to encourage 
volunteerism, meeting participation, and parent education opportunities.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Parent/Community Coordinator, and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


375/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Description Fund for speakers, trainers, and materials        


 


376/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 Data Not Available 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 Data Not Available 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


 Data Not Available 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic/Latinx        


 Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 Data Not Available 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


 Data Not Available 


MAP Reading for All Students         All students will meet their Expected 
Growth Targets by Spring 2020 


 Data Not Available 


Lexia Progress Reports (All Grades)         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Data Not Available 


Pioneer Valley F&P online test 
(Grades 1-5)        


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Data Not Available 


ESGI Phonics Assessment (TK and 
Kindergarten)        


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Data Not Available 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


RtI Coordinator and Learning assistants will 
support English Learners’ progress towards 
proficiency in English Language Arts. 


 Services were provided via Zoom during distance 
learning, and in-person once on-site learning 
resumed. 


 


Standards-based assessments will be used to 
guide and modify language arts instruction. We will 
disaggregate data by program (English Only and 
Two Way Immersion). 


 Implemented Pioneer Valley reading assessments 
in reading, and used Eureka Math assessments 
for math.  Did not use MAP, as it was not possible 
to administer remotely.  Used iReady at the end of 
the year instead of CAASPP. 


 


Professional Development for teachers to learn 
new programs, instructional strategies (Literacy 
Strategies) and to collaborate with colleagues. 


 Professional development time was prioritized to 
learn skills and strategies to support distance 
learning. Due to the extra preparation time during 


 


377/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


This may be accomplished through participation in 
conferences, workshops, peer observations, and 
grade level articulation. 


the school week, there was no need to release 
teachers. Were also unable to attend conferences. 


Technology will be updated. We will purchase new 
Chromebooks for assisting with English Language 
Arts and assessment purposes. We will also 
purchase additional technology hardware as 
needed, as well as pay for repairs to keep our 
computers functioning. We hope to purchase 
additional Chromebooks as we will need laptops 
both at school and for home when we return to in-
person instruction. 


 Due to distance learning, the district purchased 
several hundred Chromebooks for each site, so 
there was no need to fund this activity out of site 
funds. 


 


Literacy Intervention, both during and after school, 
will address needs of struggling learners by 
providing phonics based instruction through 
Systematic Instruction in Phonological Awareness, 
Phonics, and Sight Words, Lexia, and writing 
support. Fund one Title I Intervention Coordinator/ 
teacher; fund learning assistant to provide small 
group support for Walk to Read and assessment. 


 Staff could not be recruited, so action was not 
completed. 


 


Student Learning Teams and Language Review 
Teams (3 times a year) Grade level teams meet 
with RtI Coordinator to review student data (MAP, 
F & P, Others TBD) following trimester 
assessments. 


 School Leadership Team and Learning Resource 
Teacher meetings were held remotely.  No 
substitute time was needed as teachers attended 
on Wednesday, which is a work and preparation 
day. 


 


Purchase additional supplies and materials to 
support the academic literacy development of all 
students. 


 Action completed  


Implement the newly adopted English Language 
Arts/English Learner Development Curricular 
Program School-wide and with fidelity, and provide 
teachers time to learn the program and plan 
instruction. 


 New curriculum was used by all teachers  


Science will be a focus for the year through the 
implementation of Integrated English Learner 
Development, Full Option Science System Kits, 
and the Science Practices on a monthly basis. 


 Teachers used Mystery science in addition to Full 
Option Science System kits for science curriculum 
during distance learning 


 


We will continue with a focus on developing 
Integrated English Language Development 
lessons, not only through our English Language 
Arts lessons, but in other subjects as well (math, 
science, social studies). Developing academic 
discourse will be a key component of these 
lessons. With Distance Learning, we want to make 
sure that teachers are using English Language 
Development strategies throughout the day in both 
synchronous and asynchronous instruction. 


 Teachers continued to work on Integrated English 
Language Development instruction in their 
lessons. 


 


We will increase parent participation in school and 
through organized groups (Parent-Teacher 
Conference, English Learner Advisory Committee, 
School Site Council, etc.). We will explore different 
ways of reaching out to recruit parents for 


 Parent meetings were held via Zoom, but no 
speakers were used during these meetings 


 


378/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


volunteering, attending meetings, and through 
parent workshops. 
Provide support in Spanish for our Dos Alas 
Program students to develop their Spanish literacy 
skills. 


 Staff supported students in Dos Alas during the 
school day, so extra funding was not needed. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We were able to implement many of our desired activities, despite distance learning.  We did need make changes to 
Professional Development plans to support teachers in the distance learning format.  We were also unable to have 
outside speakers for parent groups.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The DeLaveaga staff did a tremendous job of educating children in the worst of circumstances.  Distance learning was 
very difficult, yet we continued to see students make growth, though not as much growth as we would like. We will have 
to wait until we have CAASPP scores to evaluate against our metrics.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Next year, we will focus on intervention and finding ways to increase student learning at a rapid pace.          


 


379/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Zearn Progress Reports         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Data not available. 


Unit Tests in Eureka Math Program         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Data not available. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Teachers will implement the adopted math 
curriculum (Eureka) with fidelity. 


 Teachers used Eureka math regularly for 
instruction. 


 


Teachers include research based engagement 
strategies, such as Integrated English Language 
Development, in their instruction to support English 
Language Learners and all student learning. 


 Teachers used integrated English Language 
Development strategies. 


 


Math intervention will be provided both during and 
after school for those students in need of 
additional support. 


 Staff could not be recruited, so action was not 
completed. 


 


Materials and Supplies.  Action completed.  


Professional Development for staff and parents.  Unable to implement due to distance learning and 
COVID-19 restrictions. 


 


380/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We were able to implement many of our desired activities, despite distance learning.  We did need to make changes to 
professional development plans to support teachers in the distance learning format.  We were also unable to work as 
closely with parent groups because of COVID-19 restrictions.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The DeLaveaga staff did a tremendous job of education students in the worst of circumstances.  Distance learning was 
very difficult, yet we continued to see students make growth, though not as much growth as we would like.  We will have 
to wait until we have CAASPP scores to evaluate against out metrics.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Next year, we will focus on intervention, and finding ways to increase students learning at a rapid pace.          


 


381/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


 Data not available. 


ELPAC Data         65% will score at a Level 3 or 4.  42.5% scored a 3 or 4. 


EL Student Suspensions         Maintain 0%  Maintained in 20-21. 
 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Integrated English Language Development 
(Professional Development, administrator 
walkthroughs, peer observations, coaching, etc.) in 
the areas of English Language Arts and math. 


 We were unable to complete peer observations 
and coaching due to distance learning. 


 


Parent training on English Language Proficiency 
Assessment of California (ELPAC) and in math to 
better understand the Reclassification Process, 
and the math program, and how they an support 
their child/children at home. Schedule time to 
provide explanations of the assessment process, 
test scores and data to parents. 


 Training for parents occurred through videos and 
district-led parent meetings.  English Language 
Advisory Committee meetings focused on 
reclassification and supports for students. 


 


Staffing and materials to support the Learning 
Resource Teacher process and coordinate the 
ELPAC testing 


 Learning Resource Teacher meetings occurred via 
Zoom. 


 


Designated English Language Development for all 
English Language Learners. 


 Teachers grouped students for designated English 
Language Development. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We were able to implement all goals in this area, despite distance learning.  The exception was in-person parent 
meetings and activities.          


 


382/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The DeLaveaga staff did a tremendous job of education students in the worst of circumstances.  Distance learning was 
very difficult, yet we continued to see students make growth, though not as much growth as we would like. We will have 
to wait until we have CAASPP scores to evaluate against our metrics.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Next year, we will focus on intervention and finding ways to increase students learning at a rapid pace.          


 


383/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
All students will feel connected to their school.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


 Decreased 7.1% 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Suspension: Percent of Students with 
Disabilities suspended once during 
the school year        


 We will decease the percentage of 
suspended Students with Disabilities 
to less than 1%. 


 0 students suspended 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Positive Behavioral Instruction and Support (PBIS) 
principles and school wide expectations will be 
implemented school-wide. Counselor and principal 
will present PBIS video on school wide 
expectations at grade level assemblies in 
September. PBIS team will analyze behavior data 
from office referrals to monitor locations and types 
of behavior that needs attention. We will provide 
an updated "online" version of our Dragon Way 
Expectations, as well as a system for student (and 
staff) recognition (Dragon Tickets and Drawings). 


 Staff continued to use PBIS principles during 
distance learning. 


 


We will improve school-wide attendance through 
identification of chronically absent and truant 
students, communication with staff and parents 
and intervention through conferences, Tier/Student 
Study Team meetings and School Attendance 


 The attendance team worked very hard to reach 
out to families that were not attending in distance 
learning.  As a result, our engagements 
percentages were very high. 


 


384/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Review Board referrals, as well as tutoring and/or 
small cohort support. 
Communicate with staff, students, and in particular 
parents about our School-wide Behavior System 
(The Dragon Way), along with the curriculum 
Second Step. 


 Communication was done through newsletters.  
Second step curriculum was used as part of 
asynchronous Wednesday activities. 


 


Celebrations for Positive Student Behavior.  Students were celebrated in class and with virtual 
certifcates. 


 


Provide training in Playworks games and 
strategies for all staff. 


 This activity was not implemented due to the 
distance learning format. 


 


Student Referral System to better respond to 
student needs (PART - Participation and 
Attendance Review Team). This team will meet bi-
monthly to identify students at risked based on 
attendance and engagement measures. 


 PART team met regularly to deal with attendance 
and discipline issues. 


 


Provide parents training in technology (Seesaw, 
Google Classroom, email, and asynchronous apps 
(Lexia, Zearn, iStation, etc.) to better support their 
children both in Distance Learning and in-person 
learning. 


 District provided training for parents.  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We continued to use Second Step and our attendance review process during distance learning.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Our number of chronic absentees decreased according to the attendance and engagement records of 20-21.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Next year, we will continue our focus on PBIS, social emotional activities and student support.          


 


385/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  464,973.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


386/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         113,537.00 


Donations         3,980.00 


ESSER         18,300.00 


LCFF - Base         37,542.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         170,425.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         60,000.00 


Title I         61,189.00 
 


387/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         247,817.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         97,481.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         106,675.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 2,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 11,000.00 


 


388/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  108,137.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  5,400.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Donations  2,500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Donations  1,480.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 ESSER  10,800.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         ESSER  7,500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  37,542.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  119,680.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  5,400.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  37,345.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  2,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  6,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  60,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  20,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  35,839.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  350.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  5,000.00 


 


389/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Thien Hua         X Principal        


Elizabeth Becerra         X Other School Staff        


Kimberly Hecko         X Classroom Teacher        


Shanna Kiesz         X Classroom Teacher        


Hilda Oliva         X Classroom Teacher        


Aracely Contreras         X Parent or Community Member        


Jessy Beckett Parr         X Parent or Community Member        


Shuntelle Emanuel         X Parent or Community Member        


Juliana Reyes         X Parent or Community Member        


Emilyn Green         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


390/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 57 DeLaveaga Elementary


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 X English Learner Advisory Committee        
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Thien Hua on September 28, 2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Jessy Beckett Parr on September 28, 2021 


 


391/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 66 Gault Elementary School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Gault Elementary School         


Address 1320 Seabright Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-2525 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049894         


Principal Amariah Hernandez         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 22, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 22, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


392/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................4 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................22 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................25 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................27 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................27 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................35 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................40 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................45 


Annual Review and Update ............................................................................................................................51 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................51 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................54 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................56 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................59 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................61 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................61 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................61 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................62 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................63 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................64 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................65 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................66 


 


393/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School Vision and Mission 
 
MISSION STATEMENT: 
We are a collaborative, creative community of professional educators committed to academic excellence in all areas. We 
build a strong foundation in literacy and mathematics for all children through a meaningful curriculum, focusing on the 
visual performing arts and sciences. We create a challenging and engaging environment that honors diversity, 
encourages community building, and inspires each student to do their personal best. We use effective educational 
practices based on the state standards, creative expression through the arts, and social understanding. 
 
OUR VISION 
Gault is a safe and nurturing community that academically challenges students to become inspired life long learners and 
creative problem solvers. 
DISTRICT GOALS 
Listed below are the district goals that are supported by our school goals: 
 
All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students. 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Gault Elementary is a K-5 neighborhood school of about 340 students.  Gault School was constructed in 1928 and 
covers one city block on the eastside of the coastal city of Santa Cruz.  We serve students from our local neighborhood, 
as well as those that reside in Beach Flats and Lower Ocean St. 
 
The Gault School programs emerge from a commitment to educating the whole child. All students receive instruction in 
art by a credentialed art teacher and students in 3rd-5th grades receive music lessons during the school week. Gault 
students participate in our nutrition program, as well as hands on science in the life lab garden, which includes an 
outdoor kitchen.  Over 90 students daily participate in our ASES afterschool program until 6:00 every evening.  During 
the ASES program, our students receive homework support, academic help, physical activity and enrichment classes. 
Additionally, students are a served snack and a supper meal. We have a library/media center staffed with a full-time 
credentialed library teacher and a 4-hour library assistant. 
 
Our Special Education staff includes 2 Resource Specialists, 1 Speech/Language Therapists, two part-time instructional 
aides, and services of Adaptive PE, OT, providing services to approximately 40 students.  Student Study Team meetings 
are held monthly during the school day with English and Spanish speaking teams of regular education and special 
education teachers.  We meet monthly for Tier 1 and Tier 2 meetings that address social emotional and academic 
concerns of students. We meet with grade levels and our Student Learning Team three times a year to discuss progress 
of all students, focusing on students approaching benchmark and those that are far behind. Additionally, we hold 
language review team meetings 3 times a year to monitor the growth of our English Language learner students. 
 
We offer many intervention services during and after school as part of our instructional program.  We have an RTI model 
that includes interventions during the instructional and after school day. Through categorical funds, we provide reading 
and math support services with additional staff including paraeducators, direct services from an intervention 
coordinator/teacher, Mathematics  tutorial, English Language Development, ASES, several Supplemental Education 
Service (SES) classes in reading and mathematics. All grade levels, K-5, provide leveled instruction of English Language 
Development (30 minutes for grades K-3 and 45 minutes grades 4-5) to English Learners through grade level teams. 
 
Our continuing Life Lab program, including garden and kitchen, is offered to all students bi-weekly.  We collaborate with 
several community partners including the Santa Cruz Warriors,  Dientes, UCSC Science partnership, and other local 
businesses to enrich our students lives. 
 


394/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 66 Gault Elementary School


         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Our School site council meets quarterly  to give input to the single plan. Our GPTO and ELAC also has opportunities 
monthly to communicate information to administration and staff to better inform our site plan.         


 


395/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     % 0% %  0  


African American     1.17% 0.6% 1.0% 4 2 3 


Asian     % 0% 0.3%  0 1 


Filipino     % 0% %  0  


Hispanic/Latino     64.04% 67.86% 68.4% 219 228 199 


Pacific Islander     % 0.6% 0.3%  2 1 


White     30.99% 28.27% 28.2% 106 95 82 


Multiple/No Response     3.51% 2.68% 1.7% 12 9 5 


 Total Enrollment 342 336 291 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        55 78 45 


Grade 1        66 38 59 


Grade 2        40 64 36 


Grade3        73 40 57 


Grade 4        45 66 33 


Grade 5        63 50 61 


Total Enrollment        342 336 291 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault Elementary has seen a continuous decline in enrollment over the past 4 years. We attribute this decline to the 


rising housing costs in our neighborhood and surrounding areas.        
 


396/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        156 156 116 45.6% 46.4% 39.9% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        28 27 23 8.2% 8.0% 7.9% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        19 7 10 10.8% 4.5% 6.4% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant number of second language learners many of whom reside in the Beach Flats and lower 


Ocean neighborhoods.        
2. In the 20-21 school had over 80 students attend our small group cohorts during the pandemic, specifically targeting 


our ELL and Title 1 students        
 


397/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 63 52 69 61 52 69 61 52 69 96.8 100 100 


Grade 4 72 62 50 70 57 48 70 57 48 97.2 91.9 96 


Grade 5 63 61 62 62 61 61 62 61 61 98.4 100 98.4 
All 
Grades 


198 175 181 193 170 178 193 170 178 97.5 97.1 98.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2383.
3 


2375.
3 


2397.
4 


19.67 7.69 14.49 11.48 15.38 23.19 21.31 30.77 23.19 47.54 46.15 39.13 


Grade 4 2396.
7 


2413.
2 


2433.
1 


8.57 17.54 16.67 12.86 10.53 14.58 10.00 19.30 27.08 68.57 52.63 41.67 


Grade 5 2467.
4 


2424.
9 


2459.
0 


14.52 8.20 18.03 20.97 16.39 11.48 29.03 13.11 19.67 35.48 62.30 50.82 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 13.99 11.18 16.29 15.03 14.12 16.85 19.69 20.59 23.03 51.30 54.12 43.82 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 11.48 7.69 13.04 27.87 46.15 44.93 60.66 46.15 42.03 


Grade 4 14.29 15.79 18.75 31.43 38.60 39.58 54.29 45.61 41.67 


Grade 5 11.29 13.11 18.03 50.00 21.31 36.07 38.71 65.57 45.90 


All Grades 12.44 12.35 16.29 36.27 34.71 40.45 51.30 52.94 43.26 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 16.39 9.62 15.94 44.26 40.38 52.17 39.34 50.00 31.88 


Grade 4 4.29 16.07 16.67 40.00 35.71 45.83 55.71 48.21 37.50 


Grade 5 24.19 8.20 22.95 37.10 34.43 44.26 38.71 57.38 32.79 


All Grades 14.51 11.24 18.54 40.41 36.69 47.75 45.08 52.07 33.71 
 


398/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 13.11 9.62 10.14 49.18 65.38 78.26 37.70 25.00 11.59 


Grade 4 8.57 8.77 12.50 45.71 57.89 62.50 45.71 33.33 25.00 


Grade 5 8.06 11.48 16.39 59.68 36.07 49.18 32.26 52.46 34.43 


All Grades 9.84 10.00 12.92 51.30 52.35 64.04 38.86 37.65 23.03 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 13.11 11.54 11.59 49.18 42.31 52.17 37.70 46.15 36.23 


Grade 4 8.57 14.04 16.67 48.57 40.35 50.00 42.86 45.61 33.33 


Grade 5 17.74 11.48 13.11 41.94 32.79 32.79 40.32 55.74 54.10 


All Grades 12.95 12.35 13.48 46.63 38.24 44.94 40.41 49.41 41.57 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 18-19 we did meet our site goal around CAASP ELA data as we saw significant growth.        


 


399/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 63 52 69 61 52 69 61 52 69 96.8 100 100 


Grade 4 72 62 50 70 60 48 70 60 48 97.2 96.8 96 


Grade 5 63 61 62 62 61 60 62 61 60 98.4 100 96.8 
All 
Grades 


198 175 181 193 173 177 193 173 177 97.5 98.9 97.8 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2398.
6 


2382.
5 


2415.
7 


14.75 7.69 17.39 22.95 13.46 24.64 18.03 28.85 20.29 44.26 50.00 37.68 


Grade 4 2412.
7 


2429.
2 


2417.
7 


2.86 13.33 10.42 15.71 8.33 12.50 25.71 31.67 29.17 55.71 46.67 47.92 


Grade 5 2447.
5 


2434.
1 


2465.
1 


1.61 8.20 15.00 16.13 3.28 6.67 32.26 24.59 25.00 50.00 63.93 53.33 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 6.22 9.83 14.69 18.13 8.09 15.25 25.39 28.32 24.29 50.26 53.76 45.76 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 21.31 15.38 24.64 29.51 21.15 31.88 49.18 63.46 43.48 


Grade 4 7.14 20.00 10.42 25.71 21.67 25.00 67.14 58.33 64.58 


Grade 5 6.45 9.84 16.67 35.48 9.84 21.67 58.06 80.33 61.67 


All Grades 11.40 15.03 18.08 30.05 17.34 26.55 58.55 67.63 55.37 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 19.67 11.54 24.64 36.07 42.31 43.48 44.26 46.15 31.88 


Grade 4 5.71 18.33 8.33 41.43 31.67 43.75 52.86 50.00 47.92 


Grade 5 3.23 8.20 23.33 48.39 36.07 36.67 48.39 55.74 40.00 


All Grades 9.33 12.72 19.77 41.97 36.42 41.24 48.70 50.87 38.98 
 


400/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.23 9.62 23.19 34.43 51.92 49.28 39.34 38.46 27.54 


Grade 4 8.57 15.00 8.33 30.00 26.67 37.50 61.43 58.33 54.17 


Grade 5 1.61 8.20 11.67 43.55 36.07 35.00 54.84 55.74 53.33 


All Grades 11.92 10.98 15.25 35.75 37.57 41.24 52.33 51.45 43.50 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, we saw a decline in students near or meeting standards in all math areas.        


2. One of our main foci for this school is to make significant changes to our Tier 1 math instruction. We have shifted to 
workshop math model with the inclusion of daily math talks for fluency support.        


 


401/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1417.2 1419.9 1433.3 1439.8 1379.4 1373.0 45 24 


Grade 1        1469.5 1456.7 1480.0 1478.7 1458.6 1434.2 22 39 


Grade 2        1486.4 1467.5 1501.6 1481.7 1470.9 1452.9 35 17 


Grade 3        1483.7 1502.8 1481.4 1517.0 1485.4 1488.1 23 29 


Grade 4        1505.4 1503.1 1501.1 1509.9 1509.3 1495.8 20 24 


Grade 5        1544.8 1557.7 1547.3 1568.0 1541.9 1546.9 25 21 


All Grades              170 154 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    26.67 16.67 33.33 29.17 * 33.33 24.44 20.83 45 24 


   1    50.00 10.26 * 43.59 * 25.64 * 20.51 22 39 


   2    45.71 17.65 37.14 47.06 * 23.53  11.76 35 17 


   3     17.24 * 44.83 * 37.93 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    * 29.17 * 41.67 * 20.83 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    68.00 47.62 * 28.57 * 23.81  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        35.29 21.43 34.12 39.61 18.82 27.92 11.76 11.04 170 154 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    40.00 20.83 24.44 33.33 * 33.33 * 12.50 45 24 


   1    68.18 33.33 * 35.90 * 23.08 * 7.69 22 39 


   2    68.57 41.18 * 35.29 * 11.76  11.76 35 17 


   3    * 44.83 47.83 44.83 * 10.34 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    * 50.00 * 41.67 * 0.00 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    80.00 61.90 * 33.33 * 4.76  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        53.53 40.91 28.24 37.66 8.82 14.94 9.41 6.49 170 154 
 


402/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 * 25.00 33.33 50.00 31.11 25.00 45 24 


   1    * 7.69 * 17.95 * 38.46 * 35.90 22 39 


   2    * 0.00 37.14 47.06 * 29.41 * 23.53 35 17 


   3     0.00 * 27.59 * 51.72 * 20.69 23 29 


   4    * 16.67 * 16.67 * 41.67 * 25.00 20 24 


   5    * 9.52 48.00 47.62 * 33.33 * 9.52 25 21 


All Grades        18.24 5.84 30.00 27.92 25.88 41.56 25.88 24.68 170 154 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    53.33 16.67 26.67 62.50 * 20.83 45 24 


   1    68.18 51.28 * 46.15 * 2.56 22 39 


   2    60.00 41.18 40.00 52.94  5.88 35 17 


   3    * 17.24 65.22 72.41 * 10.34 23 29 


   4    * 37.50 60.00 54.17 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    56.00 14.29 * 80.95 * 4.76 25 21 


All Grades        50.00 31.17 40.00 60.39 10.00 8.44 170 154 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    35.56 33.33 42.22 37.50 * 29.17 45 24 


   1    72.73 23.08 * 64.10 * 12.82 22 39 


   2    80.00 58.82 * 23.53 * 17.65 35 17 


   3    47.83 82.76 * 17.24 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    60.00 70.83 * 20.83 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    88.00 100.00 * 0.00  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        61.76 57.79 27.06 31.17 11.18 11.04 170 154 
 


403/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 60.00 83.33 26.67 16.67 45 24 


   1    * 10.26 * 48.72 * 41.03 22 39 


   2    31.43 0.00 34.29 64.71 34.29 35.29 35 17 


   3     0.00 * 51.72 56.52 48.28 23 29 


   4    * 16.67 60.00 45.83 * 37.50 20 24 


   5    * 14.29 52.00 76.19 * 9.52 25 21 


All Grades        21.18 7.14 47.06 59.74 31.76 33.12 170 154 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    24.44 25.00 44.44 37.50 31.11 37.50 45 24 


   1    * 5.13 54.55 61.54 * 33.33 22 39 


   2    * 0.00 71.43 94.12 * 5.88 35 17 


   3    * 20.69 56.52 68.97 * 10.34 23 29 


   4    * 12.50 * 66.67 * 20.83 20 24 


   5    52.00 19.05 * 76.19 * 4.76 25 21 


All Grades        29.41 13.64 52.94 65.58 17.65 20.78 170 154 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant number of ELL students ,154 (k-5), that must participate in the ELPAC exam each winter.        


2. Our current data illustrates approximately 30% of students maintained their identified English proficiency level, 30% 
grew a English language level or more, and 30% dropped a level.        


3. Of the 30% who dropped, we observed large group of 3rd graders were a part of that group. We attribute this to an 
exam change of moving from a K-2 exam to a 3-5 exam, and a lack of consistent instruction in grammar, which we 
are now addressing in our new ELA/ELD adoption.        


 
 


404/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


336        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


66.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


46.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.6        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        156 46.4 


Foster Youth        2 0.6 


Homeless        3 0.9 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        224 66.7 


Students with Disabilities        66 19.6 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        2 0.6 


Hispanic        228 67.9 


Two or More Races        9 2.7 


Pacific Islander        2 0.6 


White        95 28.3 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant Title I population of over 70%. There are a vast number of needs for students living in 


poverty. Gault is truly a wrap around service school, providing breakfast, lunch and dinner, counseling services, 
after school programs.        


2. Gault has a significant population of ELL students, (46.9%) which illustrates our need for a consistent viable ELD 
program and daily instruction and ongoing translation.        


 
 


405/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Yellow        


 
Mathematics 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our English Learner progress and Suspension Rate indicators are both areas of strength at Gault.        


2. Four of our five student groups are in the orange category and performing below grade level in ELA and math.        


 
 


406/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


41.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.1 points         
173        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


83.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.3 points         
87        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


67.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++29.9 points         
121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


90.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++26.1 points         
42        


 


407/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 66 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


74.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.1 points         
112        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


26.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++35.2 points         
55        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


94.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++22.9 points         
69        


Reclassified English Learners 


37.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++30.3 points         
18        


English Only 


2.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.7 points         
82        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English learners, Socioeconomically disadvantaged, Students with disabilities, and Hispanic students are very low 


on ELA as measured by CAASPP, but all groups saw higher than average growth.        
2. Performance of English only students and RFEP students increased significantly.        


 
 


408/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


49.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++19.3 points         
172        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


80.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++22.3 points         
87        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


70.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++27.5 points         
121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


90.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++31.4 points         
41        


 


409/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 66 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


73.6 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++25.1 points         
112        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


2.7 points above standard         


Increased ++12.6 points         


54        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


94.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.2 points         
69        


Reclassified English Learners 


26.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++57.9 points         
18        


English Only 


18.1 points below standard         


Increased ++14.5 points         


81        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All subgroups experienced an increase in mathematics on CAASPP, though they are still lower than hoped.        


 
 


410/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


55.1 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 127          


Performance Level: High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


14.9         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


29.9         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


7.8         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


47.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Progress in acquiring English improved significantly for English Learners.        


2. English learners are very low in their English Language Arts CAASPP assessment.        


3. English learners are low in their Mathematics CAASPP assessment.        


 
 


411/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 


 


 
 


412/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
3        


Orange        
2        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


18.6         


Increased +2         


355        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


16         


Increased +2.8         


163        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


21.3         


Increased Significantly +4.1         


249        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


21.7         


Increased +6         


83        


 


413/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 66 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


18.9         


Increased Significantly +3.5         


227        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


15.4         


Declined -3.4         


13        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Orange         


17.1         


Increased +0.6         


111        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019, chronic absenteeism rates increased for some student groups.        


 
 


414/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         2019         
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 


 


 
 


415/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


2        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


2.8         


Increased +1.5         
358        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


0.6         


Increased +0.6         
164        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


3.2         


Increased Significantly +2.2         
250        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


7.1         


Increased +2.4         
84        


 


416/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 66 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


3.1         


Increased +1.9         
229        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
13        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Orange         


2.7         


Increased +1.9         
112        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.2         


2019     
2.8         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Students with disabilities and White students are suspended at a higher rate than the other groups.        


2. English Learners and Socioeconomically students have a low suspension rate are therefore in the "blue" category.        


 
 


417/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS          


 
Goal Statement 
 
For 2021-22 we decrease the points below standard on the  ELA CAASPP from 41.2. to 35.3 for 14% decrease. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Pioneer literacy assessment- Local ELA assessment for 2020          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 41.2 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 83.1 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 90.8 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 74.8 points below standard  Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 67.4 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


418/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 26.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give input and implement both formative and summative ELA assessments to 
have on going reading assessments to identify students who are in need of additional support. 
Release time or supplemental pay for members of the Tier 1, SST, focusing on Tier 2 and 3 students. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with strategies and interventions to support students learning, substitutes 
and release time. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for 21-22 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI Coordinator, Tier 1 Tier 2 meetings        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description certificated substitutes and certificated extra hourly        


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified extra hourly        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Organizational materials related to data teams        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


419/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Food and snacks for professional development, trainings,  staff meetings        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Professional Learning communities will collaborate at grade level meetings to discuss progress of all students focusing 
on target students.  Teachers learn best practices for all students. Peer observations to support highly qualified 
teachers in developing best practices to support struggling students or curriculum area focus 2 times in the year.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 12,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL Stipends        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Continue implementation and support of GLAD. Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD training. Teachers will 
modify and differentiate instruction using research-based strategies to best meet the individual needs of the students. 
Release time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for targeted 
grade levels.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, Certificated teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description HQT will attend GLAD training        


420/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Amount 2000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes for certificated teachers        


Amount 2500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies and materials for GLAD curriculum, includes, poster paper, marker sets, 
lamination, INK for printing, color copies, related technology such as printer etc.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Hourly Guided reading coach and phonics support coach for certificated teachers and instructional support staff 
including ASES staff in all grades, add hourly for  para educators and other staff to instruct guided reading groups in 
primary classrooms during Reader's workshop        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing year of 21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly Guided reading and phonics instruction coach for certificated teachers and 
instructional support staff in all grades        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Professional development for ASES staff and additional hourly to support students in afterschool setting and provide 
interventions. 
Materials and supplies for ASES to support student learning, including books, music, activities and needed technology 
for program 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 


421/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source After School and Education Safety (ASES)        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Enrichment provider for ASES program        


Amount 2,000        


Source After School and Education Safety (ASES)        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials for ASES        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Library to support academic literacy with use of digital literacy programs, books, multiples collection and supplies for 
nonfiction and diverse text to support integrated ELD and academic literacy        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Librarian        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Funds to purchase digital literacy resources and vooks        


Source None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Purchase technology supplies such as IPADs, Headphones, cords, MACBook Pro        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


422/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 66 Gault Elementary School


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Librarian        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase MACbooks or equivalent to support digital literacy in the classroom and access 
to online ELA resources        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Learning goals  in all classrooms for content lesson.  Teachers will post them on the board and students should be able 
to explain the learning goal.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
August-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL Team, Principal, All staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 9 
Supplies for parent education meetings such as cafecitos, presentations, family engagement        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI Coordinator, Principal, librarian, counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase materials, communication supplies and food for parent engagement events        


Strategy/Activity 10 


423/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Purchase new curriculum for Tier 1 and intervention to support differentiation        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Focus on ELL /Title one students, impact for all students        


 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI and Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description curriculum purchase        


Amount 4000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description curriculum purchase        


Strategy/Activity 11 
Materials  and technology such as classroom supplies, flat screen TV, IPADS, TV mounts, cords, , equipment  
notepads, markers and additional supplies and books for meeting the varied needs in classrooms.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
August-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES Coord, RTI        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase needed materials for TIER1 and TIER 2 programs and strategies        


Source None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 12 


424/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Instructional aides/IT  will be hired to conduct small group interventions        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RTI        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 28,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Instructional aides/IT  will be hired to conduct small group interventions        


Strategy/Activity 13 
Provide sub time for teachers to collaborate and examine student data to better serve all students, additionally fund 
certificated teacher to support phonics instruction in primary SLT/LRT        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
July- June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Fund hourly a certificated teacher to support phonics instruction in classrooms, 
specifically focusing on title 1 and ELL students        


Amount 6,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Provide substitutes for teacher collaborations, including IEP at a glance, SLT , Fall 
planning , LRT        


 


425/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT ELD          


 
Goal Statement 
 
For the 21-22 school year 75% of EL students will make one year's growth on the ELPAC. 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
ELPAC and learning loss for ELL students          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 83.1 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 80.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Suspension Rate: The percentage of 
All students being suspended during 
the school year.        


 Yellow Indicator - 0.6% suspended at 
least once 


 We will maintain at 0.6% to 0% of our 
English Learners being suspended. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Language Review Team- Student learning teams will review student data to inform instruction and instructional 
practices for ELD, monitor student progress towards reclassification 
 
District policy requires a minimum of 30 minutes daily of ELD instruction for Kindergarten and 45 minutes 1st-5th 
grades. Teachers will augment classroom based ELD to meet the required minutes by using district adopted curriculum 
        


 


426/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Grade level teams        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description release time for ELD planning and Language Review teams        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will be trained on a new program or strategies GLAD, SVMI Number talks to better meet the needs of English 
Learners along with collaboration time to develop the program, as well as trainings in Science to support English 
Learners assessing all curricular areas. 
 
Teachers will be trained to analyze ELPAC data and determine best strategies for taking the ELPAC and teachers will 
understand ELPAC data to better inform their instruction, 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI, certificated teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 25,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description release time for teachers, training opportunities for teachers        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Continue implementation and support of GLAD. Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD training. Teachers will 
modify and differentiate instruction using research-based strategies to best meet the individual needs of the students. 
Release time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for targeted 
grade levels. Purchase of materials for newcomer students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


427/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 66 Gault Elementary School


All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        
 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplemental GLAD materials.        


Amount 2000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Brain Pop ELD software subscription        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Newcomer students receive additional small group instruction during school day to practice English 
Curriculum needed for interventions 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 , ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 64,000        


Source Title III        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .5 FTE Newcomer Teacher        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Principal/Community coordinator will present information to parents in ELAC about ELD program, assessments, and 
student results. Handouts will be sent home.  Extra hours to bilingual staff to support written and oral translation for 
office communication and conferences, Back to School Night.        


 


428/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TITLE 1 , ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Comm. Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Materials, color copies for ELAC presentations        


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Extra hours to bilingual staff to support written and oral translation for office 
communication.        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Training in reclassification requirements will be provided to parents via ELAC meetings.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, community coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community coordinator extra hourly for translation and additional parent meetings        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Outreach will be provided to increase involvement of parents of English Learners in all school wide events such as 
Cafecitos, Family Fridays, ELAC/GPTA, conferences, childcare and craft and learning materials for parent events.        


 


429/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/CoSchool Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Outreach will be provided to increase involvement of parents of English Learners in all 
school wide events such as Cafecitos, Family Fridays, ELAC/GPTA, conferences, 
childcare to parent events.        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Food, materials, computers for communication will be provided.        


Amount 42594        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description School Community Coordinator Salary        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Survey school site regarding feedback for ELL and Title 1 supports, Bond Measures and input for LCAPP spending        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Comm Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


 


430/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
MATHEMATICS          


 
Goal Statement 
For 2021-22 we will decrease the points below standard on the MATH CAASPP from 49.5 points to 42.4 points for a 
total of 14% 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Learning loss in Math during Covid          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 49.5 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 80.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 90.7 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 70.4 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 73.6 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         2.7 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


431/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 66 Gault Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give input on Zearn instructional reports to have ongoing math talks to identify 
students who are in need of additional support. 
Supplemental pay for members of the Tier 1, SST & Cost  teams focusing on second and third tier students. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with strategies and interventions to support students learning. Substitutes 
and release time. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on TItle 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers , principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitute teachers        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will collaboratively use and adapt formative assessments from Eureka  and  Zearn math to help drive the 
instruction for all students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Grade Level Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
To retain and attract HQT teachers provide opportunities to observe Cognitively Guided Lessons Eureka math and 
Other math trainings, including continued participation for grades 2-3 in the county NIC grant cohort        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 


432/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Admin, staff will attend PD opportunities        


Strategy/Activity 4 
To retain and attract HQT Admin may research and pursue professional development trainings in Math, Science, 
Reading, Writing, ELD and common core standards.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Admin and Staff will pursue professional development trainings in Math, Science, 
Reading, Writing, ELD and common core standards.  When needed and appropriate, 
housing and meals will be covered for staff, including classified and management.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Teachers will have the opportunity to observe math lessons and be able to discuss best practices with colleagues and 
examine vertical alignment with supplemental materials such as equations, math games, Iready- math, Eureka math, 
ZEARN        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


433/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Teachers, RTI, Admin        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release time for staff to participate in peer observations and create materials        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Students in the ASES afterschool program will use technology, Chromebooks to access ZEARN, KHAN ACADEMY 
and more        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TITLE 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source After School and Education Safety (ASES)        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Technology purchases to support student learning        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Teachers will utilize GLAD strategies and Math talks in developing Math. Materials may be needed, release time for 
making materials        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


434/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Subs for release time.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Purchase I-Ready or other approved math curriculum to support Tier 2 instruction        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Student needing Tier 2 intervention in math        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RtI coordinator, classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description iReady teacher toolbox, supplemental math lessons        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Provide translated parent education trainings in Math during parent meetings in Spanish and English specifically 
targeting ELL  and Title 1 parents 
 
Provide parent education and enrichment around Common Core Math, such as family math night and new standards 
education 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Paid hourly for staff to host family math night and festivals        


 


435/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
Culture and Climate          


 
Goal Statement 
We will reduce our chronic absenteeism by 10 % 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Illuminate engagement records          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 18.6% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
White Student absent more than 10% 
of the school year        


 17.1% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent White students by 
.5%or more 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 21.7% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 21.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 16% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 18.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
students of Two or More Races 
absent more than 10% of the school 
year        


 15.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent students of Two or 
More Races by .5% or more. 


 


436/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
 
 
Access to technology with which to connect with school staff and peers on a regular basis if students are absent 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
22-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, community coordinator, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Continued implementation and professional development regarding PBIS for all staff to encourage motivation for 
student attendance        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, Counselor, PBIS team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release or hourly for PBIS team        


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials, prizes for PBIS program including snacks, candy, drinks for student incentives 
and for situations of behavior deescalation as outlines in our trauma informed trainings        


437/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 3 
Access to a balance of social/emotional and academic learning to develop executive functioning skills        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
When need arises        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Access to counseling services 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description School Counselor        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Use family contracts that provide incentives for student attendance        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, Principal, staff        


 


438/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 800        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials, resources for incentives        


Strategy/Activity 6 
We will seek opportunities for social work, counselor interns to work with families        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Additional social worker hours to support families and students with various needs and 
school attendance        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Purchase materials and tools to support de-escalation of Tier 2, 3 behaviors, including materials and tool kits        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
Sept-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal , Counselor, PBIS        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Needed resources for sensory, cozy corners and school assembilies        


439/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 8 
Provide teachers training and resources for supporting students with trauma informed services 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Stipend teachers for training, book club etc        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Continue school wide celebrations and assemblies for climate and community building        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TItle 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
20-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Buses, costs for field trips, assemblies, classroom presentations        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Fund school wide activities/assemblies, craft supplies and treats for special school wide 
events and celebrations        


440/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Source None Specified        


Source None Specified        


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Extra hourly for PBIS staff for beginning of year preparations for welcome back 
assemblies and events        


 


441/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
SCHOOLWIDE ACADEMIC GOAL 
100% students will make progress on the Pioneer Literacy assessment. Student progress will be made thru guided 
reading groups, eduprotocals, tier 2 interventions, tutoring and small cohort learning for those who qualify 
 
 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give 
input and implement both formative and 
summative ELA assessments to have on going 
reading assessments to identify students who are 
in need of additional support. 
Release time or supplemental pay for members of 
the Tier 1, SST & Cost  teams focusing on second 
and third tier students. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with 
strategies and interventions to support students 
learning. Substitutes and release time. 
 


 SLT were able to meet throughout the year 
virtually, and during teacher preparation time, so 
there was not need for substitutes. 


 


442/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Professional Learning communities will collaborate 
at grade level meetings to discuss progress of all 
students focusing on target students.  Teachers 
learn best practices for all students. Peer 
observations to support highly qualified teachers in 
developing best practices to support struggling 
students or curriculum area focus. 2 times in the 
year 


 Peer observations were not practical during 
distance learning. 


 


Continue implementation and support of GLAD. 
Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD 
training. Teachers will modify and differentiate 
instruction using research-based strategies to best 
meet the individual needs of the students. Release 
time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers 
to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for 
targeted grade levels. 


 Teachers continued to use GLAD strategies when 
developing lessons.  Teachers coaching was not 
practical during distance learning. 


 


Hourly Guided reading coach for certificated 
teachers and instructional support staff including 
ASES staff in all grades 


 Guided reading coach was able support teachers 
and classified staff in guided reading, both virtually 
and in person. 


 


RtI 
Differentiated Support - instructional aides and 
instructional techs will support classroom 
instruction and new ELD program implementation. 
Additional computers, software, books, and 
materials will be purchased to support classroom 
differentiation. 
 


 RtI coordinator continued to provide support 
virtually to teachers and students 


 


Professional development for ASES staff and 
additional hourly to support students in afterschool 
setting and provide interventions. 
Materials and supplies for ASES to support 
student learning, including books, music, activities 
and needed technology for virtual and in person 
learning. 
 


 ASES staff were used after school to provide 
virtual support for students in math and reading. 


 


Library to support academic literacy with use of 
digital literacy programs, books, multiples 
collection and supplies for nonfiction text to 
support integrated ELD and academic literacy 


 Librarians supported students with regular 
checkouts throughout distance learning. 


 


Purchase Books for the library and multiples 
collection to support ELA nonfiction text to support 
integrated ELD and academic literacy 


 Complete  


Purchase technology supplies such as touch TV, 
Wall mounts that move, chords, headphones etc. 


 Complete  


Learning goals  in all classrooms for content 
lesson.  Teachers will post them on the board and 
students should be able to explain the learning 
goal. 


 Complete  


Supplies for parent education meetings such as 
cafecitos, presentations, family engagement 


 Meetings were done virtually, so there was no 
need for supplies. 


 


443/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


School Visitations and PD trainings for staff  No practicable to implement with COVID 
restrictions and distance learning. 


 


Materials  and technology such as classroom 
supplies, flat screen TV, IPADS, TV mounts, 
cords, rolling whiteboards, equipment  i.e  Easels, 
notepads, markers , water bottles and additional 
supplies and books for meeting the varied needs 
in classrooms. 


 Complete  


Instructional aides/IT  will be hired to conduct small 
group interventions 


 Implemented  


Purchase 15-16 new MACbook airs to support 
data talks, and universal screener implementation 


 Implemented  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Our site administered the Pioneer K-5 3 times in the year as a ongoing assessment.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
We offered live instruction in ELA  via Zoom daily. We continued with our Benchmark program for phonics and workshop 
for Tier 1 instruction          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We have moved back to State Testing as a basis for our Goals.          


 


444/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
 
For the 2020 School all ELL students will make progress on Pioneer ELA assessments. 
 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Suspension Rate: The percentage of 
All students being suspended during 
the school year.        


 We will maintain at 0.6% to 0% of our 
English Learners being suspended. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Language Review Team- Student learning teams 
will review student data to inform instruction and 
instructional practices for ELD, monitor student 
progress towards reclassification 
 
District policy requires a minimum of 30 minutes 
daily of ELD instruction for Kindergarten and 45 
minutes 1st-5th grades. Teachers will augment 
classroom based ELD to meet the required 
minutes by using district adopted curriculum 
 


 Goal was implemented, but paid release time was 
not required. 


 


Teachers will be trained on a new program or 
strategies GLAD, SVMI Number talks to better 
meet the needs of English Learners along with 
collaboration time to develop the program, as well 
as trainings in Science to support English Learners 
assessing all curricular areas. 
 
Teachers will be trained to analyze ELPAC data 
and determine best strategies for taking the 
ELPAC and teachers will understand ELPAC data 
to better inform their instruction, 
 


 Professional development priorities were adjusted 
to support teacher needs and learning for distance 
learning. 


 


Continue implementation and support of GLAD. 
Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD 


 Implemented  


445/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


training. Teachers will modify and differentiate 
instruction using research-based strategies to best 
meet the individual needs of the students. Release 
time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers 
to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for 
targeted grade levels. Purchase of materials for 
newcomer students 
Newcomer students receive additional small group 
instruction during school day to practice English 
Curriculum needed for interventions 
 


 Implemented  


Principal/, Community coordinator will present 
information to parents in ELAC about ELD 
program, assessments, and student results. 
Handouts will be sent home. 


 Implemented, no need for materials for virtual 
meetings 


 


Training in reclassification requirements will be 
provided to parents via ELAC meetings. 


 Implemented  


Outreach will be provided to increase involvement 
of parents of English Learners in all school wide 
events such as Cafecitos, Family Fridays, 
ELAC/GPTA, conferences, childcare and van 
expenses for transportation to parent events. 
Food, materials, computers for communication will 
be provided. 


 Implemented.  No need for funding as meetings 
were virtual 


 


Survey school site regarding feedback for ELL and 
Title 1 supports, Bond Measures and input for 
LCAPP spending 


 Implemented  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Our site administered the Pioneer K-5 3 times in the year as a ongoing assessment. We saw growth for 75 % of our ELL 
on the Pioneer          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
We offered live instruction in ELA  via zoom daily. We continued with our Benchmark program for phonics and workshop 
for Tier 1 instruction, additionally we used Brainpop ELD as an added program for our ELL students          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
This year we will use the state ELPAC as a basis for our ELL Goal moving forward          


 


446/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
 
For the 2020-21 school 100% of Gault students will participate in Zearn weekly for independent math instruction and 
practice. 
 
 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 No CAASPP data for 20-21 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give 
input on Zearn instructional reports to have 
ongoing math talks to identify students who are in 
need of additional support. 
supplemental pay for members of the Tier 1, SST 
& Cost  teams focusing on Tier 2 and 3. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with 
strategies and interventions to support students 
learning. Substitutes and release time. 
 


 Substitutes not needed for implementation  


Teachers will collaboratively use and adapt 
formative assessments from Eureka math to help 
drive the instruction for all students 


 Implemented  


447/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


To retain and attract HQT teachers provide 
opportunities to observe Cognitively Guided 
Lessons Eureka math and Other math trainings, 
including continued participation for grades 2-3 in 
the county NIC grant cohort 


 Implemented  


To retain and attract HQT Admin may research 
and pursue professional development trainings in 
Math, Science, Reading, Writing, ELD and 
common core standards. 


 Not implemented due to need for distance learning 
professional development. 


 


Teachers will have the opportunity to observe 
math lessons and be able to discuss best practices 
with colleagues and examine vertical alignment 
with supplemental materials such as equations, 
math games, Khan Academy, Eureka math, 
ZEARN 


 Observations not practical due to distance learning 
restrictions. 


 


Students in the ASES afterschool program will use 
technology, chromebooks to access ZEARN, 
KHAN ACADEMY and more 


 ASES staff worked with students virtually after 
school. 


 


Teachers will utilize GLAD strategies in developing 
Math.  Materials may be needed, release time for 
making materials 


 Implemented  


RTI coordinator will focus on Tier 2 math groups 
for grades 2nd and 3rd grade 


 Implemented  


Use technology and other means to enhance Math 
lessons for students with current/updated 
hardware, software and tech support. New 
technology may need to be bought to allow 
students access to the math curriculum in the 
library and in the classrooms. This includes 
computers as a teaching tool for all classrooms. 


 District funded technology needs for virtual and 
hybrid learning 


 


Provide parent education trainings in Math during 
parent meetings in Spanish and English 
specifically targeting ELL and Title 1 parents 
 
Provide parent education and enrichment around 
Common Core Math, such as family math night 
and new standards education 
 


 Implemented virtually  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Every classroom at Gault school offered live instruction for math. Additionally, we used the ZEARN program as daily 
math practice of a grade level          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Zearn provided ongoing practice for students that matched the teacher's instruction. It took great effort to support 
students in participating in ZEARN through distance learning, but we saw significant participation in all subgroups.          


 


448/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We are stilling using ZEARN as a Tier 1 practice daily in math workshop but will use CAASPP math data for future goals          


 


449/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
Every student will feel a strong sense of well-being and connectedness as a result of learning in school environments 
where conditions enable every student to achieve to the best of their ability and be successful in all aspects of learning 
and life. 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
White Student absent more than 10% 
of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent White students by 
.5%or more 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
students of Two or More Races 
absent more than 10% of the school 
year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent students of Two or 
More Races by .5% or more. 


 Exceeded goal 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 
 
Access to technology with which to connect with 
school staff and peers on a regular basis 
 
 


 Implemented  


Continued implementation and professional 
development regarding PBIS for all staff to 
encourage motivation for student attendance 


 Implemented.  Release time was not necessary.  


450/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Access to a balance of social/emotional and 
academic learning to develop executive 
functioning skills 


 Implemented  


Access to counseling services 
 
 


 Implemented  


Use family contracts that provide incentives for 
student attendance 


 Worked with families to improve attendance.  
Incentives not practical due to distance learning. 


 


We will seek opportunities for social work, 
counselor interns to work with families 


 Implemented  


Purchase materials and tools to support de-
escalation of Tier 2, 3 behaviors, including 
materials and tool kits 


 not implemented due to distance learning  


Provide teachers training and resources for 
supporting students with trauma informed services 
 
 


 not implemented due to distance learning format  


Continue school wide celebrations and assemblies 
for climate and community building 


 Implementation not practical due to distance 
learning and COVID restrictions. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During distance learning we offered 2-3 hours daily of live Zoom instruction          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Attendance increased.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any discrepancies were due to being unable to implement the activity because of distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue to focus on keeping students engaged and attending school.          


 


451/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  435,894.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


452/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 66 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


After School and Education Safety (ASES)         12,000.00 


District Funded         42,594.00 


LCFF         16,000.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         177,300.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         8,000.00 


Title I         94,500.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality         21,500.00 


Title III         64,000.00 
 


453/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 66 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         253,500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         72,594.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         64,300.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 21,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 24,500.00 


 


454/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 66 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         After School and Education Safety 
(ASES) 


 7,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 After School and Education Safety 
(ASES) 


 5,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  42,594.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  6,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  9,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  1,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  158,500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  1,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  17,800.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  8,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  27,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  29,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  25,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  7,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  6,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 4,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 17,500.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title III  64,000.00 


 


455/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 66 Gault Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


1 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Amariah Hernandez         X Principal        


Ebby Della Mora         X Other School Staff        


Lacie Wheeler         X Classroom Teacher        


Raven Graham         X Parent or Community Member        


Meghan Caspers         X Classroom Teacher        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


456/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 66 Gault Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 


X State Compensatory Education Advisory Committee        


 


X English Learner Advisory Committee        


 


X Special Education Advisory Committee        


  Other: Parents: Chris Garcia, Sam Rolens Megan Sutton, Carrie Castillo- 
Mustante., Lacie Wall Staff: Ebby Dellamora, Raven Graham, Charlene 
Sheman, Amariah Hernandez, Charlene Oatey        


 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Amariah Hernandez on September 30, 2021 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Lacie Wheeler on September 30, 2021 


 


457/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Westlake Elementary School         


Address 1000 High St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-2596 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049928         


Principal Clyde Curley         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date October 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


458/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools District Mission 
Santa Cruz City Schools, part of a dynamic and diverse coastal community, will ensure that each student acquires the 
necessary knowledge, skills and values to achieve his or her highest aspirations and to be a contributing member of a 
rapidly changing society. A highly qualified, inspired, and dedicated staff, in partnership with our families and community, 
will provide a well-balanced education in a safe environment, utilizing effective educational practices and technologies. 
 
Westlake Elementary School Mission 
Westlake is a place where children are supported to achieve their highest potential academically, physically, socially and 
emotionally.  Our school community inspires life long learning.  We are problem solvers who celebrate our diverse 
perspectives and experiences.  Positivity and optimism are core values that guide our learning. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Westlake Elementary School is located on the northwest side of Santa Cruz, California, near the campus of the 
University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC). Westlake Elementary School is known throughout the Santa Cruz area for 
its commitment to academic excellence and the arts.  This reputation is possibly due to the hard work of a dedicated and 
talented staff, the full participation of parents, and community involvement.  Westlake has four focus areas that guide the 
work of the school under the umbrella of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: Academic Literacy, Mathematics, School 
Connectedness and English Language Development.  The Westlake community is also dedicated to providing a well 
rounded education which includes a rich Visual and Performing Arts program, Science Garden, Library Media Center 
and Playground Coaches. 
 
The tiered levels of support in the Response to Instruction framework is used to guide both the academic and social 
emotional learning programs at the school.  Teachers work in Professional Learning Communities organized by grade 
level or department.  Teams meet regularly to unpack essential standards, review common assessments and align 
instructional practices. The Common Core State Standards have been adopted by the school district and are used to 
guide the curriculum.  Teams of teachers unpack the standards to identify learning goals and student success criteria.  
iReady Academic assessments are used three times per year in reading and math to identify student learning needs and 
to measure growth.  The Positive Behavior Instruction Supports program supports a positive school culture and climate.  
Grade level representatives work with the School Counselor and Principal to develop, maintain and monitor school 
climate.  Systems for positive reinforcement at the student, classroom and school level are used to support students 
meeting expectations, following rules and creating a safe and orderly school environment.  Behavior tracking forms and 
office referrals are used to gather information about behavioral challenges.  All students receive lessons from the social 
emotional learning program, Second Step.  Some students receive small group or individual support from the School 
Counselor.  English language development is provided to all students that are learning English.  Support in the 
classroom is provided to individuals and small groups by an Instructional Technician.  Classroom teachers provide daily 
English language development focused on academic vocabulary. 
 
Students at Westlake receive a rich and well rounded education.  The Visual and Performing Arts programs at Westlake 
includes K-5 Visual Art, K-5 Music and K-5 Dance.  All students visit the Science Garden for weekly lessons.  The 
Library has over 20 thousand volumes and is staffed by a Library Media Teacher and Library Media Assistant.  
Playground coaches structure recess and lunch activities and provide lessons to classes.  These programs are 
supported by the City of Santa Cruz community through parcel taxes and donations to the Westlake PTA.  Together 
these programs make Westlake a great place to learn and grow. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 


459/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


The School Site Council meets as needed to provide input to the SPSA, monitor progress towards goals, and approve 
expenditures.  The Site Council also reviews the prior year SPSA and achievement of annual goals.  The Westlake PTA 
and PTA Executive Board are consulted on the school goals annually.  An annual review of the prior year goals and 
current year goals is also provided at the first PTA meeting of the year.         


 


460/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.19% 0% % 1 0  


African American     1.13% 1.28% 1.1% 6 7 5 


Asian     4.73% 6.93% 6.8% 25 38 32 


Filipino     0.19% 0% % 1 0  


Hispanic/Latino     23.25% 22.08% 22.2% 123 121 104 


Pacific Islander     % 0% %  0  


White     60.3% 61.13% 61.1% 319 335 286 


Multiple/No Response     10.02% 8.58% 8.8% 53 47 41 


 Total Enrollment 529 548 468 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        90 103 81 


Grade 1        91 78 72 


Grade 2        79 98 72 


Grade3        87 85 86 


Grade 4        96 87 81 


Grade 5        86 97 76 


Total Enrollment        529 548 468 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has declined over the last three years.        


2. The demographic distribution of students has remained relatively constant with 20% Hispanic and 60% white.        


 


461/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        42 49 31 7.9% 8.9% 6.6% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        32 43 24 6.0% 7.8% 5.1% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        1 7 2 2.5% 16.7% 4.1% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Approximately 7% of all students are English Learners.        


 


462/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 92 92 86 85 92 79 85 91 79 92.4 100 91.9 


Grade 4 109 86 94 101 82 93 101 81 93 92.7 95.3 98.9 


Grade 5 98 106 87 93 103 82 93 103 82 94.9 97.2 94.3 
All 
Grades 


299 284 267 279 277 254 279 275 254 93.3 97.5 95.1 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2470.
5 


2476.
5 


2485.
5 


43.53 51.65 55.70 25.88 23.08 24.05 22.35 15.38 12.66 8.24 9.89 7.59 


Grade 4 2515.
8 


2505.
1 


2527.
3 


41.58 43.21 52.69 33.66 23.46 25.81 12.87 19.75 11.83 11.88 13.58 9.68 


Grade 5 2547.
5 


2552.
1 


2551.
0 


39.78 45.63 43.90 29.03 25.24 25.61 12.90 15.53 17.07 18.28 13.59 13.41 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 41.58 46.91 50.79 29.75 24.00 25.20 15.77 16.73 13.78 12.90 12.36 10.24 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 41.67 48.35 53.16 44.05 38.46 37.97 14.29 13.19 8.86 


Grade 4 43.56 34.57 51.61 47.52 55.56 39.78 8.91 9.88 8.60 


Grade 5 41.94 46.60 46.34 40.86 39.81 39.02 17.20 13.59 14.63 


All Grades 42.45 43.64 50.39 44.24 44.00 38.98 13.31 12.36 10.63 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 36.90 38.46 41.77 51.19 46.15 50.63 11.90 15.38 7.59 


Grade 4 34.00 39.51 45.16 52.00 41.98 47.31 14.00 18.52 7.53 


Grade 5 47.31 50.49 39.02 38.71 33.01 45.12 13.98 16.50 15.85 


All Grades 39.35 43.27 42.13 47.29 40.00 47.64 13.36 16.73 10.24 
 


463/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 33.33 36.26 45.57 61.90 58.24 48.10 4.76 5.49 6.33 


Grade 4 32.67 37.04 35.48 56.44 55.56 62.37 10.89 7.41 2.15 


Grade 5 35.48 30.10 28.05 53.76 60.19 57.32 10.75 9.71 14.63 


All Grades 33.81 34.18 36.22 57.19 58.18 56.30 8.99 7.64 7.48 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 41.67 47.25 44.30 46.43 45.05 50.63 11.90 7.69 5.06 


Grade 4 47.52 28.40 39.78 45.54 60.49 51.61 6.93 11.11 8.60 


Grade 5 44.09 52.43 48.78 37.63 33.01 34.15 18.28 14.56 17.07 


All Grades 44.60 43.64 44.09 43.17 45.09 45.67 12.23 11.27 10.24 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 76% of students in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts test.        


2. Clusters show strong performance in all areas. Listening cluster appears to be an area for growth.        


 


464/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 92 92 86 87 92 82 87 92 82 94.6 100 95.3 


Grade 4 109 86 94 101 84 94 101 84 94 92.7 97.7 100 


Grade 5 98 106 87 92 103 83 92 103 83 93.9 97.2 95.4 
All 
Grades 


299 284 267 280 279 259 280 279 259 93.6 98.2 97 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2468.
8 


2458.
1 


2475.
7 


33.33 32.61 37.80 34.48 34.78 35.37 19.54 20.65 15.85 12.64 11.96 10.98 


Grade 4 2495.
3 


2478.
3 


2512.
3 


22.77 17.86 28.72 32.67 27.38 40.43 36.63 35.71 23.40 7.92 19.05 7.45 


Grade 5 2545.
6 


2553.
7 


2559.
1 


36.96 45.63 42.17 28.26 20.39 21.69 17.39 19.42 22.89 17.39 14.56 13.25 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 30.71 32.97 35.91 31.79 27.24 32.82 25.00 24.73 20.85 12.50 15.05 10.42 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 40.23 45.65 52.44 41.38 34.78 30.49 18.39 19.57 17.07 


Grade 4 28.71 30.95 40.43 48.51 32.14 42.55 22.77 36.90 17.02 


Grade 5 42.39 55.34 49.40 32.61 22.33 33.73 25.00 22.33 16.87 


All Grades 36.79 44.80 47.10 41.07 29.39 35.91 22.14 25.81 16.99 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 44.83 35.87 42.68 45.98 45.65 45.12 9.20 18.48 12.20 


Grade 4 28.71 23.81 35.11 54.46 52.38 57.45 16.83 23.81 7.45 


Grade 5 43.48 41.75 39.76 38.04 42.72 46.99 18.48 15.53 13.25 


All Grades 38.57 34.41 39.00 46.43 46.59 50.19 15.00 19.00 10.81 
 


465/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 47.13 41.30 42.68 45.98 44.57 50.00 6.90 14.13 7.32 


Grade 4 32.67 27.38 42.55 55.45 48.81 50.00 11.88 23.81 7.45 


Grade 5 36.96 40.78 42.17 48.91 41.75 43.37 14.13 17.48 14.46 


All Grades 38.57 36.92 42.47 50.36 44.80 47.88 11.07 18.28 9.65 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 68% of all students met or exceeded standard.        


2. 3rd grade had the highest number of students who met or exceeded standard at 72%.        


 


466/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1445.9 * 1447.7 * 1442.1 * 16 7 


Grade 1        * 1432.7 * 1450.3 * 1414.8 * 12 


Grade 2        * * * * * * * 6 


Grade 3        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 4        * * * * * * * 5 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 7 


All Grades              37 45 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 8.33  58.33 * 0.00 * 33.33 * 12 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3     * * *  * * * * * 


   4    * *  * * * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        45.95 15.56 * 40.00 * 17.78 * 26.67 37 45 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 41.67  25.00 * 8.33 * 25.00 * 12 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3     * * *  * * * * * 


   4    * * * *  * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        48.65 31.11 * 33.33 * 13.33 * 22.22 37 45 
 


467/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 8.33 * 16.67 * 41.67 * 33.33 * 12 


   2    * * * *  * * * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4     * * * * * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        29.73 8.89 35.14 17.78 * 40.00 * 33.33 37 45 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    68.75 * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 58.33 * 25.00 * 16.67 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        51.35 31.11 * 48.89 * 20.00 37 45 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 25.00 * 50.00  25.00 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        48.65 40.00 35.14 35.56 * 24.44 37 45 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 33.33 * 16.67 * 50.00 * 12 


   2    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        35.14 13.33 37.84 46.67 * 40.00 37 45 
 


468/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    81.25 * * * * * 16 * 


   1     0.00 * 58.33 * 41.67 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        40.54 13.33 40.54 53.33 * 33.33 37 45 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 28/45 students tested scored level 3 or 4 in Oral Language.  28/45 of students tested were at the well, somewhat, 


or moderate range in Written Language.        
2. In the domains of language, reading had the lowest number of students scoring well developed.  This indicates a 


continued need to support our English Learners in their reading development.        
 


 


469/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


548        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


20.8        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


8.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        49 8.9 


Homeless        4 0.7 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        114 20.8 


Students with Disabilities        76 13.9 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        7 1.3 


Asian        38 6.9 


Hispanic        121 22.1 


Two or More Races        47 8.6 


White        335 61.1 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. One in every five students qualifies for free or reduced lunch.        


2. Less than 10% of all students are English learners.        


 
 


470/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Blue        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Yellow        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic Absenteeism is an area for growth.        


 
 


471/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


51.5 points above standard         


Increased ++11.1 points         


255        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


12.8 points below standard         


Declined -13.6 points         


21        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++15.9 points         
50        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


12.3 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++36.4 points         
54        


 


472/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


6.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++17 points         


60        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


64.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++42.6 points         
19        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


66.2 points above standard         


Increased ++8.1 points         


162        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


41.8 points below standard         


11        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


10        


English Only 


57.1 points above standard         


Increased ++13.4 points         


218        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall high performance for all students.        


2. Sub group performance needing improvement for Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with 
Disabilities.        


3. Hispanic student performance is disproportionately lower than all students and needs improvement.        


 
 


473/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


31.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.1 points         
255        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


21.5 points below standard         


Maintained -1.2 points         


21        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


14.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++16.4 points         
50        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


34.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++37 points         


54        


 


474/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


8.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.6 points         
60        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


48.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++31.2 points         
19        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


43.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.7 points         
162        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


41.7 points below standard         


11        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


10        


English Only 


35.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.6 points         
218        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall high performance for all students.        


2. Sub group performance needing improvement for Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with 
Disabilities.        


3. Hispanic student performance is disproportionately lower than all students and needs improvement.        


 
 


475/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


46.4 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 28          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


28.5         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


3.5         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


42.8         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Almost half of all English learners met the reclassification criteria for ELPAC in 2018.        


 
 


476/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
1        


Orange        
3        


Yellow        
2        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


10.5         


Declined -1.3         


552        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


17         


Declined -8         


53        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


22.8         


Increased +0.5         


123        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


14         


Declined -1.2         


100        


 


477/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
Orange         


6.5         


Increased +0.9         


31        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


13.3         


Increased +3         


128        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


18.2         


Increased +1.8         


55        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Green         


8.2         


Declined Significantly -4         


330        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learners and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student groups have higher percentages of chronic 


absenteeism than other groups.        
 
 


478/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


3        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


0.5         


Increased +0.4         
554        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


1.9         


Increased +1.9         
53        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


0.8         


Maintained 0         
123        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


2         


Increased +1         
101        


 


479/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Asian     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
31        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


0.8         


Maintained -0.1         
129        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


1.8         


Increased +1.8         
56        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


0.3         


Increased +0.3         
330        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.2         


2019     
0.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Suspensions are low.        


 
 


480/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make growth of at least 3 points in the distance from met on ELA CAASPP.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, our 
students have maintained their level of achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are 41 points 
above the standard. However, when we dig deeper into our different student groups, we see that many of our groups are 
not meeting the standard. For specific student group data, see the metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 51.5 points above standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2021-22 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 12.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2021-22 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 12.3 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2021-
22 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 4.9 points above standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2021-22 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 6.8 points above standard  Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2021-22 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 66.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2021-22 
ELA CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


481/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2021-22 school year is on implementing the Readers Workshop 
curriculum.   We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on using professional learning communities to identify 
essential standards, common assessments, and align instruction.  We will use assessment results to create and 
maintain a system of interventions for students that do not master standards and extensions for those that do.  
Paraeducators will push into classrooms to support Tier 2 interventions in the classroom.  RtI coordinator will provide 
Tier 3 interventions to students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & SCIL Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,892        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Paraeducator Academic Intervention        


Amount 13,577        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Paraeducator Academic Intervention        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will participate in lesson study and peer observations to develop collective teacher efficacy.  Specifically, 
these cycles will focus on implementation of Benchmark Workshop, and in-class Tier 2 reading interventions.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this strategy.        


 
Timeline 
Teachers will participate in at least two peer observations during the 2021-22 1school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal.  SCIL Team.  Teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


482/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes will be provided for teachers to participate in professional development, 
collaborative planning, student study teams, and other professional growth activities such 
as peer observations        


Strategy/Activity 3 
RtI coordinator will work with paraeducators and staff to implement an intervention program for students struggling in 
ELA.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students below grade level in ELA        


 
Timeline 
21-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RtI coordinator, paraeducators,  Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 104320        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI coordinator position        


 


483/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, our 
students have maintained their level achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are 14.6 points 
above standard. In addition, when we dig deeper into our different student groups, we see that there is significant need 
to improve our students' level of proficiency in mathematics, especially among our English Learners, Students with 
Disabilities, Hispanic students, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students. For specific student group data, see the 
metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 31.3 points above standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 21.5 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 34.8 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 14.9 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 8.5 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         43.9 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


484/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide students with access to appropriate instructional materials in math by purchasing student consumable 
materials for Eureka Math.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students.        


 
Timeline 
Annually        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Eureka Math consumables        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide paraeducators for classroom support for students to make progress towards grade level standards.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RTI Coordinators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 38,500        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Paraeducator Academic Intervention.  Three, 15 hour per week positions.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Math Intervention 


• Identify, purchase, and implement a technology based math intervention to be used as a Tier 2 intervention 
in the classroom. 


• -Implement math intervention program that provides Tier 2 and tier 3 intervention for struggling students. 


485/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students struggling with grade level math content        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Intervention Coordinator, Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Online math intervention program subscription        


Amount 116966        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math RtI coordinator        


 


486/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
55% of students tested on the ELPAC scored at either a Level 3 or Level 4. 
 
In the domains of language, reading had the lowest number of students scoring well developed.  This indicates a 
continued need to support our English Learners in their reading development. 
 
In addition to the ELPAC, our district monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Performance, Academic Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate. In analyzing all of these data points, we see 
that supporting our English Learners in all areas needs to be a focus for our district. See below for specific English 
Learner metrics and data. 
 
 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 12.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 21.5 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 17% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by at least .5%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


487/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Integrated ELD 
Staff will review Integrated ELD strategies for implementation in the classroom. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
All year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, SCIL Team, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Designated ELD 
 
Provide designated ELD to groups of students. 
Purchase licenses of Rosetta Stone for students to use as part of their classroom Tier 1 instruction. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
All year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, RTI Coordinator, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase licenses of Rosetta Stone and Lexia English for students to use as part of their 
classroom Tier 1 instruction.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Progress Monitoring 
 
Classroom teachers and admin will meet after trimester 1 and 2 to monitor EL progress 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 


488/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


November and  March of each school year.        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, RTI Coordinator, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 560        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitute teachers        


 


489/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. The percentage of students that are chronically absent will decrease from 
5% in 2019-2020.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, and the Social-
Emotional Health Survey we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When determining the level 
of School Connectedness in our district, we are specifically looking at data related to students reporting they have 
supportive, caring relationships with adults, the curriculum and school activities are relevant and engaging, and there is a 
sense of student leadership and ownership on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 10.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 14% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities students by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 22.8% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 17% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 13.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by 1%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


490/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Attendance monitoring 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best attendance will be identified weekly and given a shout out during weekly 
announcements. 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best attendance will be identified monthly and be given a certificate of 
excellent attendance. 
Teachers will be given monthly attendance reports for their class and will contact chronically absent students letting 
them know they are missed. 
Administration will monitor attendance reports monthly and will contact families of chronically absent students to 
determine root cause, develop an attendance plan, and provide needed support. 
Teachers will be released by substitutes to meet with parents of students that are chronically absent to develop 
improvement plans. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Weekly, Monthly and Quarterly        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Attendance Clerk, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Attendance incentives        


Amount 560        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes        


 


491/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 5 
 
Subject 
          


 
Goal Statement 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 
startcollapse  
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


 


492/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
All students will make growth of at least 3 points in the distance from me on ELA CAASPP.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020-21 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020-21 
ELA CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020-
21 ELA CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020-21 ELA CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020-21 
ELA CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020-21 
ELA CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for 
the 2020-21 school year was on implementing the 
Readers Workshop curriculum.   We will do this by 
focusing our year long site PD on using 
professional learning communities to identify 
essential standards, common assessments, and 
align instruction.  We will use assessment results 
to create and maintain a system of interventions 
for students that do not master standards and 
extensions for those that do.  Paraeducators will 
push into classrooms to support Tier 2 
interventions in the classroom.  Paraeducators will 
provide Tier 3 interventions to students. 


 Students were supported in small groups in 
classrooms.  Students not yet at grade level were 
were provided with reading intervention services. 


 


Teachers will participate in lesson study and peer 
observations to develop collective teacher efficacy.  


 Teachers on evaluation cycle that were eligible to 
participate in peer observations were supported to 


 


493/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Specifically, these cycles will focus on 
implementation of Benchmark Workshop, and in-
class Tier 2 reading interventions. 


do so.  Substitutes were not necessary or 
available due to distance learning and COVID 
restrictions. 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Paraeducators supported students in zoom breakout rooms during distance learning to provide reengagement lessons 
as needed.  They also provided intervention lessons to students reading below grade level.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Students grew in their academic achievement in the area of reading as measured by the Pioneer Valley online reading 
assessment.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Substitute costs were not actually expended because substitutes were not used during distance learning or during 
hybrid, or during full in person because of COVID restrictions.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes will be made to this goal.          


 


494/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide students with access to appropriate 
instructional materials in math by purchasing 
student consumable materials for Eureka Math. 


 Materials were purchased and provided to 
students. 


 


Math Mondays 
 Provide math games weekly on Mondays 


in the library at lunch in order to develop 
a culture of math as a fun and important 
part of our school. 


 


 Math games and storage were purchased for use 
on Mondays. 


 


Math Intervention 
 Identify, purchase, and implement a 


technology based math intervention to 
be used as a Tier 2 intervention in the 
classroom. 


 


 Intervention systems were piloted without direct 
cost to the school site.  Licenses were purchased 
from centrally held school district funds. 


 


 


495/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Students were provided with core math program including consumable materials.  Math games were purchased for 
building math culture by having Math Mondays.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Students made academic gains in math and the culture of math being fun built through student participation in Math 
Mondays.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Intervention systems were piloted without direct cost to the school site.  Licenses were purchased from centrally held 
school district funds.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Additional paraeducators will be hired to support math intervention and reengagement in the classroom.  The annual 
outcome expected is an increase in student performance as measured by the iReady assessments system.  These 
changes can be found in our math goal for 2021-22.          


 


496/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


 CAASPP not administered in 2020-
21. 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by at least .5%. 


 Goal exceeded 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Integrated ELD 
Staff will review Integrated ELD strategies for 
implementation in the classroom. 
 


 Staff reviewed the CA EL Roadmap and identified 
effective strategies for use in the classroom. 


 


Designated ELD 
 
Provide designated ELD to groups of students. 
Purchase licenses of Rosetta Stone for students to 
use as part of their classroom Tier 1 instruction. 
 


 Students participated in designated ELD groups 
and utilized the Rosetta Stone software program. 


 


Progress Monitoring 
 
Classroom teachers and admin will meet after 
trimester 1 and 2 to monitor EL progress 
 


 Teachers reviewed EL progress at the end of each 
trimester and used results to identify students 
eligible for reclassification. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
English learners were provided with integrated ELD in the classroom and designated ELD through a pull out program 
that included extended learning time and the use of the Rosetta Stone software.  Teachers met after each trimester to  
monitor student progress          


 


497/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Students made gains in their English language acquisition as a result of the opportunities to receive designated ELD and 
through teacher use of integrated ELD strategies in the classroom.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Substitute teachers were not allowed due to the COVID 19 pandemic.  Meetings with teachers were held on 
asynchronous school days.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes to this goal.  Continue to implement integrated ELD strategies and provide designated ELD to English 
learners.          


 


498/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
All students will feel connected to their school. The percentage of students that are chronically absent will decrease from 
5% in 2019-2020.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
1%. 


 Goal exceeded 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities students by 1%. 


 Goal exceeded 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by 1%. 


 Goal exceeded 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by 1%. 


 Goal exceeded 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by 1%. 


 Goal exceeded 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Attendance monitoring 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best 
attendance will be identified weekly and given a 
shout out during weekly announcements. 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best 
attendance will be identified monthly and be given 
a certificate of excellent attendance. 
Teachers will be given monthly attendance reports 
for their class and will contact chronically absent 
students letting them know they are missed. 
Administration will monitor attendance reports 
monthly and will contact families of chronically 
absent students to determine root cause, develop 
an attendance plan, and provide needed support. 
Teachers will be released by substitutes to meet 
with parents of students that are chronically absent 
to develop improvement plans. 
 


 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many of these 
strategies were unable to be performed. 


 


 


499/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
These strategies were not effective during distance learning due to the COVID 19 pandemic.  Student attendance and 
engagement were monitored carefully by teachers.  Students with poor attendance, participation, or engagement were 
referred to participation in a small cohort program.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Attendance rates were very high during distance learning, hybird and in person learning.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Incentives were not purchased during distance learning.  Chromebooks, hotspots, and other materials were purchased 
to support students in small cohorts.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Attendance incentives will be used on a student by student basis to encourage regular attendance.  Other components 
of the plan will continue.          


 


500/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  319,375.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


501/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         116,966.00 


District Funded         560.00 


Donations         1,060.00 


ESSER         38,500.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         135,789.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         24,000.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality         2,500.00 
 


502/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         224,906.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         69,969.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         24,500.00 
 


503/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  116,966.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  560.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Donations  560.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Donations  500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 ESSER  38,500.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  104,320.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  31,469.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  24,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 2,500.00 


 


504/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Clyde Curley         X Principal        


Kathy Griffith         X Classroom Teacher        


Justine Howell/Karen Attema         X Classroom Teacher        


Kristen Lenz         X Classroom Teacher        


Eleanor Jonas         X Classroom Teacher        


Jennifer Simington         X Classroom Teacher        


         X Parent or Community Member        


         X Parent or Community Member        


         X Parent or Community Member        


         X Parent or Community Member        


         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


505/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 49 Westlake Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/24/2019. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Clyde Curley on  


 


 SSC Chairperson, Brianna Donaldson on  


 


506/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Branciforte Middle School         


Address 315 Poplar St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1131 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698236060149         


Principal Casey O'Brien         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date 9-15-21         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date 9-15-21         


Local Board Approval Date 10-20-21         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


507/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Vision Statement: Opening Minds - Opening Hearts - Opening Doors 
 
Mission Statement: Branciforte is a creative and stimulating learning community built on a foundation of respect and 
integrity, where individuals are safe, known well, and cared for, where everyone contributes and values the contributions 
of others, where everyone learns every day, and where scholarship leads to academic excellence. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Branciforte Middle School serves a diverse student population primarily from the east side of Santa Cruz. Our academic 
program is designed to meet individual students’ needs. Our base program includes an English/Social Studies Core, 
math, science, P.E., and an elective. Our math classes use the College Prep Math curriculum with a focus on problem 
solving, explaining your reasoning, collaboration, and perseverance. The program includes both a standard middle 
school track and an opportunity for acceleration. For a school of our size, we have an outstanding exploratory program. 
At sixth grade, this includes options for Instrumental Music, Introduction to Computer Science, AVID (Advancement via 
Individual Determination - a college-preparatory program), and Visual Art. In the seventh and eighth grade, exploratories 
include: Instrumental Music, Art, AVID, Woodworking, and Culinary Arts. Students from our district’s Dual-Language 
Immersion program continue their studies in Spanish Language Arts on our site. 
 
Branciforte is proud of the many programs and services we offer. We have greatly expanded our access to technology, 
including: our state-of-the-art library computer lab staffed by our librarian; our "Bee Inn", (an innovation center designed 
to support use of technology in research, collaboration, and presentation, and a dedicated writing space); Chromebook 
carts in most classrooms, several sets of iPads, and technology curriculum in our elective program. Branciforte is also in 
its second round of a Computer Science for All grant that emphasizes computing for the social good - exposing all 
students to the benefits and opportunities in Computer Science.  Our Wednesday afternoon Arts Academy provides the 
opportunity for our students to participate in a variety of enrichment activities. Recent course offerings include: Baile 
Folklorico, ROV (under water robotics), Gardening, Bike Club, Parkour, Culinary Arts, and Drumline. Bilingualism is 
supported in our Two Way Immersion program and our English Language Development (ELD) program. In the fall of 
2016, we started the Academic Achievement Academy, an after-school program, on Monday through Thursday for two 
hours after school. This program includes an hour of academic support and an hour of enrichment activity including 
music, cooking, and physical activity. 
 
Major Achievements:  In addition to the increase in access to technology and the Computer Science for All Grant, we 
have been concentrating on improving academic support for our English learners and under-performing students. Our 
ELD offerings include three levels of ELD instruction, a Newcomers class, and access to bilingual learning assistants in 
some classes. Students struggling with math skills may: use iReady or get additional support from a math teacher during 
our sustained silent reading (SSR) time, or be enrolled in a math intervention class for a portion of their elective wheel or 
during zero period. There is a strong focus on Trauma Informed Schools training for teachers and on the implementation 
of Social Emotional Learning strategies and curriculum. Many teachers practice mindfulness with their students on a 
regular basis. In the 2017-18 school year, the school implemented a Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports 
(PBIS) program that emphasizes doing the right thing and rewards students for contributing positively to the school 
climate. This includes various lessons in the classroom, special events such as assemblies and random drawings for 
students who are making good decisions. 
 
At Branciforte, we strive to involve families in the school community. Our Home and School Club, English Language 
Advisory Committee (ELAC), and School Site Council offer formal ways for parents to participate. We also host 
workshops on parenting and planning for college, a math and science night, and a Social Emotional Learning night for 
families. Our Home and School Club and ELAC parents partner to celebrate our community's cultures. In the fall, we 
host an annual Tamalada that includes wonderful food, music and Baile Folklorico. In the spring, we host a Family Math 
Night in Spanish and our Spring Festival, which highlights student performances and fabulous food. The Tamalada and 
Spring Festival events bring thousands of dollars into Branciforte classrooms. 
 
Branciforte also involves families through celebrations of student learning. We host activities throughout the school year 
that celebrate student success, including music concerts, featuring performances from our Arts Academy classes, 
walking field trips for all grade levels throughout the year, a Turkey Trot (a Thanksgiving fun run), the Egyptian Museum 
for sixth graders, the Renaissance Presentations for seventh grade students, and an Invention Convention for eighth 


508/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


grade students. Our eighth graders also produce a Voices of Change night. This includes an evening of student 
produced videos, theatrical vignettes, and musical interludes. 
 
Focus for Improvement: We continue to work towards our goal that all students will be proficient or advanced in English 
Language Arts and math. Our professional development time focuses on building our repertoire of teaching strategies to 
engage students in the content, improving content literacy, increasing academic talk in the classroom, and developing 
priority learning goals and success criteria in each department. We have offered professional development in the 
practice of an evidence, analysis, action Impact Protocol using student work on formative assessments to inform our 
practice. We have introduced the universal iReady assessment to evaluate student progress in math and reading and to 
assign students to intervention. 
 
Our school community coordinator provides support to our students and their families. This work has increased the 
connection between home and school. We work to promote a college-going culture at our school. Our AVID students 
visit universities and partner with UCSC tutors to develop college level study skills. All seventh graders visit either the 
University of California or the California State Monterey Bay campus. Students in our Dual Immersion Program are 
working towards the Seal of Biliteracy, which represents master attainment of two or more languages. In addition, our 
school community coordinator is the driving force for the Latino Role Model conference that is held annually and 
provides students with the opportunity to hear Latino professionals talk about their preparation and experience in a wide 
range of careers. 
 
Leadership: Casey O'Brien is enjoying his 19th year as a principal and his in his fourth year as Principal of  Branciforte. 
He brings experience leading at both the high school and middle school level, leadership experience in Special 
Education and Student Services at the district level, has served as an adjunct professor in the Masters of Educational 
Leadership program at SJSU.  While at Aptos High School, he was awarded the Association of California School 
Administrators (ACSA) Region 10 Secondary Principal of the Year in 2014. 
 
All stakeholders, teachers, classified staff, students, parents, and administrators take part in decision making at this 
school. Teachers determine instructional methods as a team; the leadership team, along with the administration, plans 
staff development. Our School Site Council (SSC) and English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC) play a key role in 
shaping our students’ educational experience. The Student Council advises the school administration and helps guide 
our activities and enrichment. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA is developed, monitored and reviewed annually across at least five evening SSC meetings.  The site principal 
also met and conferred with district personnel, the Site Leadership Team (SCIL), and the entire school staff during 
faculty meetings.  The Principal offers invitation to review and discuss individually as necessary with any and all 
stakeholders.         


 


509/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.43% 0.22% % 2 1  


African American     1.72% 2.17% 2.1% 8 10 9 


Asian     4.09% 2.61% 1.2% 19 12 5 


Filipino     1.29% 0.43% % 6 2  


Hispanic/Latino     44.73% 47.39% 45.5% 208 218 191 


Pacific Islander     0.22% 0.22% 0.2% 1 1 1 


White     42.37% 42.83% 46.2% 197 197 194 


Multiple/No Response     5.16% 4.13% 4.8% 24 19 20 


 Total Enrollment 465 460 420 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 6        155 152 133 


Grade 7        152 155 141 


Grade 8        158 153 146 


Total Enrollment        465 460 420 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a decrease in student enrollment over the past three years (465 to 420).        


2. Student group demographics have stayed relatively constant over the last three years.        


 


510/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        79 84 63 17.0% 18.3% 15.0% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        106 90 88 22.8% 19.6% 21.0% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        11 18 34 13.8% 22.8% 40.5% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Consistent with overall enrollment - there has been a slight decrease in the overall percentage of English Learners 


at B40 over time (from 79 to 63) students that are EL, (17% to 15%).        
2. The number of students who have reclassified as Fluent English Proficient has increased significantly over the past 


three years.  (13.8% to 40.5%)        
 


511/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 166 162 156 155 157 152 155 156 152 93.4 96.9 97.4 


Grade 7 165 168 154 157 159 150 157 159 150 95.2 94.6 97.4 


Grade 8 177 162 157 172 150 152 172 150 151 97.2 92.6 96.8 
All 
Grades 


508 492 467 484 466 454 484 465 453 95.3 94.7 97.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2546.
5 


2540.
3 


2535.
3 


23.87 21.15 19.08 34.84 37.18 34.21 24.52 23.72 27.63 16.77 17.95 19.08 


Grade 7 2558.
4 


2569.
5 


2571.
9 


17.20 20.75 20.00 39.49 40.25 42.67 23.57 18.24 22.67 19.75 20.75 14.67 


Grade 8 2553.
2 


2561.
4 


2587.
3 


17.44 12.67 19.21 31.98 36.67 41.72 25.00 30.00 21.85 25.58 20.67 17.22 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 19.42 18.28 19.43 35.33 38.06 39.51 24.38 23.87 24.06 20.87 19.78 17.00 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 27.74 24.03 24.34 47.10 51.95 43.42 25.16 24.03 32.24 


Grade 7 33.12 34.59 27.33 40.13 41.51 48.00 26.75 23.90 24.67 


Grade 8 24.42 22.67 31.13 41.86 46.00 44.37 33.72 31.33 24.50 


All Grades 28.31 27.21 27.59 42.98 46.44 45.25 28.72 26.35 27.15 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 35.48 27.27 28.95 45.81 55.19 50.66 18.71 17.53 20.39 


Grade 7 26.75 37.11 34.90 56.05 49.69 46.98 17.20 13.21 18.12 


Grade 8 23.39 22.67 31.79 44.44 53.33 51.66 32.16 24.00 16.56 


All Grades 28.36 29.16 31.86 48.65 52.70 49.78 22.98 18.14 18.36 
 


512/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 20.65 17.53 16.45 67.10 68.18 71.71 12.26 14.29 11.84 


Grade 7 19.11 19.50 13.33 59.87 61.01 68.67 21.02 19.50 18.00 


Grade 8 18.02 18.67 20.53 59.30 63.33 65.56 22.67 18.00 13.91 


All Grades 19.21 18.57 16.78 61.98 64.15 68.65 18.80 17.28 14.57 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 32.90 30.52 23.68 49.03 58.44 60.53 18.06 11.04 15.79 


Grade 7 28.66 35.22 38.00 54.14 48.43 50.00 17.20 16.35 12.00 


Grade 8 29.07 34.00 33.77 41.86 46.67 49.67 29.07 19.33 16.56 


All Grades 30.17 33.26 31.79 48.14 51.19 53.42 21.69 15.55 14.79 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall ELA CAASPP scores have improved over the past three years. Overall, the percentage of students remains 


above/at/near standard: 16-17 = 54%, 17-18 = 56%, 18-19 = 59% 
Relative area of strength in ELA is for above/at/near standard:  Research Inquiry = 85%, Listening = 85%, Writing = 
80%, Reading = 73%. 
 
        


2. Student Group Progress:  English Learners who exceeded or met standard increased from 3% to almost 5%. 
Additionally, there was a significant decrease in the percentage of ELs in the standard not met category over the 
past four years (15-16 = 95%, 16-17 = 84%, 17-18 = 61% and 18-19 = 59%.  This is very encouraging and is a 
school highlight for 2018-19 CAASPP.  Students with disabilities CAASPP ELA scores have improved over the past 
two years with an increase of 3% more students in the standards met & exceeded categories and with a decrease 
in standard nearly and not met categories over the past two years.  Students who are socio-economically 
disadvantaged have shown improvement, increasing the number of students in standard exceeded and met 
categories by 7% and standard not met category decreasing by 6%.        


3. There was no CAASPP given in the 2019-20 or the 2020-21 school years, which is why the most recent data 
analysis is based on 2018-19 data.        


 


513/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 166 162 155 161 158 149 161 158 149 97 97.5 96.1 


Grade 7 166 168 154 159 159 151 159 159 151 95.8 94.6 98.1 


Grade 8 177 162 157 174 150 153 174 150 152 98.3 92.6 97.5 
All 
Grades 


509 492 466 494 467 453 494 467 452 97.1 94.9 97.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2516.
4 


2511.
9 


2498.
4 


19.88 15.19 17.45 20.50 18.35 11.41 22.36 31.01 29.53 37.27 35.44 41.61 


Grade 7 2538.
8 


2552.
9 


2535.
3 


12.58 25.79 19.21 27.04 20.13 25.17 33.33 26.42 25.83 27.04 27.67 29.80 


Grade 8 2521.
6 


2551.
4 


2567.
5 


17.24 20.67 27.63 15.52 15.33 22.37 20.11 30.00 18.42 47.13 34.00 31.58 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.60 20.56 21.46 20.85 17.99 19.69 25.10 29.12 24.56 37.45 32.33 34.29 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 22.98 19.74 16.78 29.81 41.45 28.19 47.20 38.82 55.03 


Grade 7 21.38 34.81 28.48 40.25 29.11 30.46 38.36 36.08 41.06 


Grade 8 19.54 24.00 35.53 29.89 38.00 30.26 50.57 38.00 34.21 


All Grades 21.26 26.30 26.99 33.20 36.09 29.65 45.55 37.61 43.36 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 23.60 16.46 18.79 41.61 48.10 46.31 34.78 35.44 34.90 


Grade 7 17.61 30.19 21.85 58.49 44.03 43.05 23.90 25.79 35.10 


Grade 8 18.39 24.67 26.32 35.06 46.00 42.11 46.55 29.33 31.58 


All Grades 19.84 23.77 22.35 44.74 46.04 43.81 35.43 30.19 33.85 
 


514/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 24.22 17.95 14.77 41.61 50.00 44.97 34.16 32.05 40.27 


Grade 7 16.35 25.32 20.53 57.86 55.06 58.28 25.79 19.62 21.19 


Grade 8 22.41 22.67 28.95 37.93 50.00 44.08 39.66 27.33 26.97 


All Grades 21.05 21.98 21.46 45.55 51.72 49.12 33.40 26.29 29.42 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall Math CAASPP scores have also remained largely static over thee past three years with a slight growth in 


2018-19. Overall, the percentage of students is above/at/near standard:  15-16 = 39%, 16-17 = 38%, 17-18 = 39%  
and 18-19 = 41% 
Relative area of strength in math is for above/at/near standard:  Communicating Reasoning = 70%, Problem 
Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis = 66%, Concepts and Procedures = 57%. 
 
        


2. Student Group Progress:  English Learners CAASPP Math scores have mostly remained stagnant. The percentage 
of EL students at the standard met category stayed the same and an increase in the standard not met category 
from 70% in 15-16 to 84% in 16-17, 82% in 17-18 and 89% in 18-19. Sp Ed students remained static in the 
categories of standard met and exceeded over past two years, but have shown an overall decrease in standard not 
met over past three 72% in 16-17, 77% in 17-18 and 65% in 18-19.  Students who are socio-economically 
disadvantaged showed improvement with an increase of 3% in the standards met and exceeded category in 18-19 
but have been relatively flat other than that increase.        


3. There was no CAASPP given in the 2019-20 or the 2020-21 school year, which is why the most recent data 
analysis is based on 2018-19 data.        


 


515/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6        1532.8 1549.9 1516.1 1553.4 1549.0 1545.9 31 24 


Grade 7        1532.5 1552.3 1519.5 1553.2 1545.1 1550.8 28 28 


Grade 8        1529.8 1551.2 1507.8 1555.0 1551.3 1546.9 17 19 


All Grades              76 71 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 54.17 41.94 29.17 * 12.50 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    * 32.14 * 39.29 * 14.29 * 14.29 28 28 


   8    * 26.32 * 52.63 * 5.26 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        35.53 38.03 35.53 39.44 18.42 11.27 * 11.27 76 71 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    35.48 79.17 48.39 16.67 * 0.00 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    46.43 50.00 * 25.00 * 14.29 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 52.63 * 31.58 * 0.00 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        43.42 60.56 34.21 23.94 * 5.63 * 9.86 76 71 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 20.83 * 37.50 38.71 29.17 * 12.50 31 24 


   7    * 21.43 * 32.14 * 25.00 * 21.43 28 28 


   8    * 0.00 * 47.37 * 36.84 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        32.89 15.49 18.42 38.03 32.89 29.58 15.79 16.90 76 71 
 


516/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 37.50 64.52 54.17 * 8.33 31 24 


   7    * 17.86 50.00 53.57 * 28.57 28 28 


   8    * 15.79 * 63.16 * 21.05 17 19 


All Grades        31.58 23.94 56.58 56.34 * 19.72 76 71 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    41.94 87.50 54.84 8.33 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    71.43 75.00 * 14.29 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 73.68 * 10.53 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        56.58 78.87 34.21 11.27 * 9.86 76 71 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 20.83 * 45.83 48.39 33.33 31 24 


   7    * 25.00 * 35.71 53.57 39.29 28 28 


   8    * 15.79 * 47.37 * 36.84 17 19 


All Grades        32.89 21.13 19.74 42.25 47.37 36.62 76 71 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 45.83 67.74 50.00 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    * 17.86 60.71 71.43 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 0.00 * 89.47 * 10.53 17 19 


All Grades        30.26 22.54 63.16 69.01 * 8.45 76 71 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall scores suggest that 6th graders slightly outperform their 7th and 8th grade peers with 6th graders scoring at 


Level 4 overall.        
2. Oral language is a relative strength for our students when compared to written language.        


3. Not all ELs took the ELPAC in the 2019-20 school year due to COVID and shifting to distance learning in the spring, 
which is why the most recent data analysis is based on 2018-19 data.        


 


517/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 


518/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


460        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


47.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


18.3        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.2        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        84 18.3 


Foster Youth        1 0.2 


Homeless        7 1.5 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        218 47.4 


Students with Disabilities        78 17.0 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        10 2.2 


American Indian        1 0.2 


Asian        12 2.6 


Filipino        2 0.4 


Hispanic        218 47.4 


Two or More Races        19 4.1 


Pacific Islander        1 0.2 


White        197 42.8 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The biggest student groups at our school are: Hispanic, White, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, English 


Learners, and Students with Disabilities.        
 
 


519/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Orange        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Language Arts, Suspension Rates, and Chronic Absenteeism Rates are all improving, as indicated by the 


overall green rating on our CA dashboard.        
2. Mathematics overall scores decreased, which is why our Mathematics rating is Orange on the CA Dashboard.        


 
 


520/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


15.3 points above standard         


Increased ++6.2 points         


445        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


59.8 points below standard         


Increased ++13.1 points         


130        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


24.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++15.4 points         
219        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


58.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++22.3 points         
65        


 


521/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


86.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.5 points         
18        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


25.9 points below standard         


Increased ++11.2 points         


198        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


31.4 points above standard         


Declined -13.2 points         


23        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Blue         


50.8 points above standard         


Maintained -1.1 points         


190        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


97.8 points below standard         


Increased ++5.2 points         


61        


Reclassified English Learners 


26.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++21.1 points         
69        


English Only 


46.7 points above standard         


Maintained -1.5 points         


268        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, Branciforte students are performing above standard (medium level) and overall scores have slightly 


increased.        
2. There is a significant achievement gap between white students and other student groups in ELA as indicated in the 


data above.        
3. Overall and all student groups either maintain or increased scores with exception of students in the Two or More 


Races student group.        
 
 


522/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


33 points below standard         


Declined -6.4 points         


442        


English Learners 


 
Red         


123.4 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -15.3 points         


128        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


82.2 points below standard         


Declined -3.3 points         


218        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


112.3 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.4 points         
63        


 


523/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


93.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++48.7 points         
18        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


87 points below standard         


Declined -13.2 points         


195        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 points below standard         


Declined -3.3 points         


24        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


6.5 points above standard         


Declined -9.7 points         


190        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


164.1 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -26.5 points         


61        


Reclassified English Learners 


86.5 points below standard         


Declined -3 points         


67        


English Only 


2.1 points above standard         


Declined -11.6 points         


269        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, Branciforte students scored in the low range in mathematics, and there was a decrease in overall scores.        


2. All student groups decreased in their scores with the exception of students in the Students with Disabilities and Asian 
student groups. Students with Disabilities increased their math scores by 20.4 points and Asian students increased 
48.7 points.        


3. English Learners, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with Disabilities are our lowest 
performing student groups in math.        


 
 


524/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


77.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 66          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


10.6         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


12.1         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


15.1         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


62.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 77.3% of our English Learners are making adequate progress towards English language proficiency, which is much 


higher than the state average. We are proud of this data!        
 
 


525/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No reportable data        


 
 


526/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
0        


Yellow        
2        


Green        
3        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


8.6         


Declined Significantly -4.4         


475        


English Learners 


 
Green         


6.3         


Declined -4.8         


79        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


10.6         


Declined Significantly -5.4         


236        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


18.3         


Declined -8.3         


71        


 


527/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


7.6         


Declined Significantly -5.2         


211        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


16         


Increased +3.5         


25        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


9         


Declined Significantly -5.6         


201        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of overall students that are considered chronically absent decreased by 4.4%, putting us in the Green 


on this indicator.        
2. Our Students with Disabilities chronic absenteeism rate decreased by 8.3% and moved this student group into the 


yellow on the CA Dashboard. 18.3% of this student group is still considered chronically absent and is the student 
group that has the highest chronically absent rate, which means this is definitely still an area of focus for our school.        


 
 


528/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         2019         
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No reportable data        


 
 


529/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


4        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -1.6         
484        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


3.6         


Maintained 0         
83        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.1         


Declined Significantly -3.4         
244        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


6.8         


Declined -9.6         
73        


 


530/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          10        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


2.8         


Declined Significantly -3         
218        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


4         


Declined -8.5         
25        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


White     


 
Green         


3.4         


Declined -0.7         
203        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
5         


2019     
3.3         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All Students (School Placement) and all student groups decreased their suspension rates over the previous year's 


rating with the exception of English Learners who maintained a consistent rate of being suspended.        
2. All student groups are scoring in the Green with the exception of English Learners who scored a yellow on the CA 


Dashboard Suspension indicator.        
 
 


531/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress & Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
English Learner Progress:  All Ever English Learners (IFEP, RFEP, ELs) will have academic success and social-
emotional well being in an asset-based, needs responsive learning community, and will participate fully in our schools 
and graduate ready for college and career. 
Academic Literacy: All students will engage in daily relevant, complex reading, writing, speaking, listening across all 
content areas so they can build knowledge, engage in collaborative, academic discussions, and support a position with 
evidence. 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing our CA Dashboard data, ELPAC data, and local assessments, we see the need to focus on increasing all of 
our students' academic literacy. Additionally, a significant number of our students are English Learners (ELs), and we 
want to ensure that our ELs are making progress and are successful in not only acquiring English language proficiency, 
but in being academically successful in all content areas.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP - ELA         59% of students met or exceeded 
standard in 2018-2019 


 The number of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2022 CAASPP. 


CAASPP - ELA         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged  -
25.5 avg points from standard (low) 


 Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
2022 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


CAASPP - ELA         Students with Disabilities  -59.6 avg 
points from standard (low) 


 Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on 2022 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 
positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


CAASPP  - ELA         Hispanic  -26.8 avg points from 
standard (low) 


 Increase Hispanic students scores on 
2022 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


CAASPP  - ELA         English Learners  -60.6 avg points 
from standard (very low) 


 Increase English Learner students 
scores on 2022 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 


532/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


Spring 2022 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 54% of all students scored "Meeting 
Standard" or higher on the Spring 
2019 School Wide Writing district 
assessment. 


 All students will score "Meeting 
Standard" or higher in Spring 2022 
School Wide Write. 


Spring 2022 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 Average distance from peers on 2019 
spring SWW:  18.1% distance 
between Sp Ed students and their 
peers and 20.3% difference between 
ELs and their peers 


 We will close the achievement gap 
between Sp Ed students, EL students 
and their peers on SWW by 10% (to 
8.1% for Sp Ed and 10.3% for ELs). 


ELPAC         In spring 2019, 77% of English 
Learners grew at least one level of 
English Proficiency as demonstrated 
on the ELPAC. 


 80% or more of English Learners will 
grow at least one level of English 
Proficiency as demonstrated on the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Strategies Overview:  Teachers and school staff will present engaging and California Common Core State Standards 
based lessons using evidence based strategies to engage all learners in English Language Arts and designated or 
integrated English Language Development for English Learners.  Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide a foundation for 
the bulk of all learners at Branciforte.  For learners who need additional support, Tier 2 and 3 strategies and programs 
will be employed during and after the regular school day.  Staff will engage in on-going professional development to 
improve teacher efficacy, as well as curriculum and program alignment.  Particular focus will be paid to 
underperforming student groups such as English learners and Students with Special Needs. 
 
During 21-22, staff will continue to implement and refine Tier 1 strategies including: teacher clarity/visible learning, 
productive student-talk strategies, integrated ELD, Universal Design for Learning (UDL), Social Emotional Learning 
(SEL) and other evidence based and creative ways to connect with students and engage them in learning.  
Administration and teacher collective efficacy groups will use classroom walk-throughs and possibly the peer 
observation process to enhance efficacy and to assess implementation.  Funds provided for staff to attend professional 
conferences, for release time pay, substitutes, guest presenters, consultant fees, and other similar professional 
development opportunities are provided. 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students and specific student groups listed above        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration and Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


533/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds provided to staff for travel and conference fees and reimbursement, consultant 
fees, supplemental pay for Computer Science planning/lesson prep and collaboration for 
Gen Ed teachers, release time subs, and other related PD needs (including paying our 
own teachers if they need prep time to host or prep for PD) .  Outride PD for PE teachers.        


Amount 16,388        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Funds to pay for AVID class/program - 7/8th grade elective        


Amount 750        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Supplemental pay for teachers to do Language Review Team (LRT) collaboration for 
Multilingual learner success  - EWAs        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide opportunities for all students to have access to college and career literacy skills.  AVID, tutors, field trips.  
Purchase of common binders and supplies school wide. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, socio-economically disadvantaged        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase of common binders and supplies school wide.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Implement Silent Sustained Reading (SSR) time and provide multiple Tier 2 and 3 strategies utilizing this time in the 
schedule.  Pay for Reading Ally license so that students performing well below grade level can access core curriculum 
and literature.  Purchase Lexile leveled books.  Other high interest lower readability novels as needed. Replace worn 
texts and add culturally relevant novel sets. 
 


534/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff and Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,600        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Pay for Reading Ally license        


Amount 2,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Consumable art supplies for art class        


Amount 2,500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Upgrade novel sets and other related materials to be more current and culturally relevant 
to our student population (move towards being a "Project Lit" and "Own Voices" school.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
After school support provided for homework completion, intervention support, and enrichment. 
During the school day (2) Bilingual para-pro X2 @ 3.75 hrs each. 
Two afterschool program paraprofessionals - support at-risk students. 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, support staff such as RtI and administration        


535/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 35,206        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description AAA - afterschool program - 2 paraprofessionals        


Amount 27,002        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description During school day - 2 Bilingual para-professionals to support Newcomer program @ 3.75 
hrs        


Amount 64,901        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description During school day - Bilingual para-professional to support Newcomer program @ 35 
hours        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Encourage parent involvement to support student learning 


• Community Coordinator 
• Supplies, food, Childcare for Parent Ed Nights, ELAC, SSC, etc. 
• EWA for extra hourly for Parent Coordinator to do translations or extra hours to support school at evening 


events, etc. 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Assistant Principal & School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 43,525        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator        


Amount 500        


536/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies, food - Parent Ed nights        


Amount 25,394        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator - 40%        


Amount 500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Childcare - Parent Ed nights        


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA for extra hourly for Parent Coordinator - evening translation and parent contacts        


Strategy/Activity 6 
ELD classes leveled with appropriate supplemental curriculum and support. 
Additional class sections to reduce class size and create distancing due to pandemic and to create additional 
opportunities for college bound courses such as AVID, support for multilingual learners, or classes in the Arts 


 Achieve3000 curriculum and other related ELD materials 
 PD for Achieve3000 


 
 Classroom materials, supplies, technology. 


 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners, all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, support staff such as RtI, counseling, and administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 38,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


537/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Description 8th grade Core teacher        


Amount 19,943        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 6th grade Core teacher        


Amount 6,895        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Achieve3000 Curriculum for ELD and RSP classes        


Amount 19,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Art teacher        


Amount 19,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Drama Teacher        


Amount 19,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description English Learner Release Counselor - push into ELD classes and support ELs in various 
ways        


Amount 19,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description AVID 6 teacher        


Amount 19,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Art classes through VAPA/Measure U funds        


538/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Amount 19,000        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description School Connectedness through Global Citizen Elective Class        


Amount 21,000        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Newcomer ELD 1 teacher        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Create 21st century, engaging learning opportunities using technological tools 


 New or replacement technology including chromebooks, laptops, ipads, printer, licenses, cartridges, and 
other related tech tools 


 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description New or replacement technology including chromebooks, laptops, ipads, printer, licenses, 
cartridges, carts, and other related tech tools        


Amount 2,415        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Technology Support Services for at risk and other students in areas such as Computer 
Science (including tech liaison EWA).        


Amount 9,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


539/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Description Annual licenses for programs such as, but not limited to, Padlet, Kami, Kids Discover, 
WeVideo, Informative.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Implementation of Social Emotional Learning (SEL) Curriculum and activities and Universal Design for Learning (UDL) . 
(SUMS MTSS Grant $5,000).  2nd Step SEL curriculum. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students (socio-emotionally and/or behaviorally)        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
All staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description (SUMS MTSS Grant $5,000).  2nd Step SEL curriculum, and other related needs to 
support SEL        


 


540/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics and Tiered Support          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will develop conceptual understanding, procedural skills and fluency that they will apply to make sense of 
mathematical problems and persevere in solving them.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
CA Dashboard CAASPP data indicates mathematics needs to be a focus at Branciforte Middle.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP - Math         41% of students met or exceeded 
standard in 2018-2019 


 The percent of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2021-22 CAASPP 


CAASPP - Math         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students -82.2 avg points from 
meeting standard (low)  in 2018-19 


 Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
math 2022 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


CAASPP - Math         Hispanic students -87 avg points from 
meeting standard (very low) in 2018-
19 


 Increase Hispanic students scores on 
math 2022 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


CAASPP - Math         Students with disabilities -112.3 avg 
points from meeting standard (very 
low) in 2018-19 


 Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on math 2022 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


CAASPP - Math         English Learners -123.4 avg points 
from meeting standard in 2018-19 


 Increase English Learner student 
scores on math 2022 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


541/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Strategies Overview: Teachers and school staff will present engaging California Common Core State Standards based 
lessons using evidence based strategies to engage all learners in mathematics. Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide a 
foundation for the bulk of all learners at BMS. For learners who need additional support, Tier 2 and 3 strategies and 
programs will be employed before, during, and after the regular school day. Staff will engage in on-going professional 
development to improve teacher efficacy and curriculum and program alignment. Particular focus will be paid to 
underperforming student groups such as English learners and Students with special needs. 
 
All teachers will be able to implement the CPM and iReady math curriculum, including implementation of group 
activities that support accountable student talk and other Integrated ELD for all students. 


 New staff will participate in CPM training. 
 PLC time, professional conferences, and coaching will be provided to teachers to support implementation of 


CPM curriculum and Silicon Valley Math Initiative (SVMI) strategies to implement Math Mindset and Goal 
Setting in the classroom. BMS math team will apply to be involved in an Action Research Group at the 
county level to learn about and implement equitable, standards based grading practices. 


 Teachers will infuse technology into teaching and learning with innovative and advanced classroom 
strategies that engage students at a high level, using tech tools or licenses. 


 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students and specific student groups listed above        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
RtI coach to support universal & benchmark assessments, identification of students for intervention and support of 
intervention strategies.  1.0 FTE RtI coach 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, under performing students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RtI & Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 117,095        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


542/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Description RtI coach        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Add additional sections of mathematics to lower class size to benefit at-risk and all students and to make physical 
distancing due to pandemic 
Add Zero Period Math+ for intensive Tier 3 Intervention in Mathematics 
Add 6th period intervention - push in to general education and pull out of electives for intervention as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, under performing students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RtI, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,709        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 1 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


Amount 16,468        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Zero Period Math+ Intervention class        


Amount 18,604        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Course 3 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


Amount 16,468        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math intervention - 6th grade push into Gen Ed Math classes        


Amount 16,468        


Source LCFF - Base        


543/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math and ELD support - push into classes to help ELs success in math and other areas        


Amount 18,324        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 2 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


Amount 10,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Open library from 3-5pm after school for drop in for homework, reading, access to 
reference materials, printer, chromebooks.  EWA/hourly pay for staff        


Amount 35,186        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Small group tutoring.  20 hrs a week.  EWAs for staff hourly pay        


Amount 2,416        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Peer Tutoring Coordinator - stipend        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Create and execute ways to bring math to a school wide level across all disciplines 


 Begin monthly all-staff meetings with math task or number talk to have whole school recognize cross 
curricular opportunities to pull math into their content areas 


 Problems of the Month on BTV. host math "contest" that all or most kids can access and give out prizes for 
kids who complete them. Complete 10 and get a "Math Guru" prize! 


 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RtI, & SCIL Team        


 


544/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Explore other ways to make math a priority and to create access to interventions 


 When creating the master schedule for 2021-22 - align math interventions and math teacher prep time to 
ease additional pressure on teachers and students (that exists when these courses are not aligned) 


 Explore the possibility of zero period for Integrated math to reduce "tracking" of advanced kids during the 
school day. Work to ensure all kids with math intervention have the opportunity for zero period PE. 


 EWA for professional development and release time planning 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, under performing students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
Explore ways to continue folding Computer Science for all Grant initiatives with engineering standards into core 
curriculum areas. This has been done through 8th grade science robotics unit and Core class curriculum but can be 
extended to other areas. 


 release time pay for CS for All Grant TOSA to train teachers 
 robotics supplies 


 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, CS for All TOSA        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


 


545/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Social Emotional Learning & School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to the school and feel supported in their personal and academic growth. They will learn 
about and show growth in Social Emotional Learning (SEL) competencies of self-awareness, self-management, social 
awareness, relationship skills and responsible decision making.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Branciforte MS chronic absenteeism and suspension data indicate a focus on social emotional supports and learning for 
students is a need. Teachers also report that this is a needed focus based on their classroom observations and as 
indicated in the MTSS self assessment rubric used by SCCS schools.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 60% of the students in fall 2018 and 
68% ion 2019 responded “strongly 
agree” or “agree” to the prompt: “I  
feel like I am a part of this school.” 


 In 2021, when taking the Social 
Emotional Health Survey (SEHS), 
73% of students will respond 
“strongly agree” or “agree” to the 
prompt: “I  feel like I am a part of this 
school”. 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 68% of the students in fall 2018 and 
67% in 2019 responded “strongly 
agree” or “agree” to the prompt: “I  
feel safe in my school.” 


 In 2021, when taking the SEHS, 72% 
of students will respond “strongly 
agree” or “agree” to the prompt: “I  
feel safe in my school”. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         All Students (School Placement) - 
8.6% (high) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2022 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         English Learners - 6.3% (high) 
according to the 2018-19 data on the 
most recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2022 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Socioeconomically. Disadvantaged - 
10.6%  (medium) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
1% on the 2022 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Hispanic - 7.6% (high) according to 
the 2018-19 data on the most recent 
CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2022 CA Dashboard. 


546/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         White - 9%  (high) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2022 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Students with Disabilities - 18.3%  
(medium) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism to 
less than 10% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         All students - 3.3% (high) according 
to the 2018-19 data on the most 
recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - 
4.1% (high) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Students with Disabilities - 6.8% 
(high) according to the 2018-19 data 
on the most recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Hispanic - 2.8% (high) according to 
the 2018-19 data on the most recent 
CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         White - 3.4% (high) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2022 CA 
Dashboard. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Strategies Overview:  Teachers and staff will continue to learn and improve our knowledge and skills in areas such as 
Trauma Informed Schools, Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS), and in Social Emotional Learning 
(SEL).  The school will provide ongoing professional development for veteran and new teachers in these areas.  
Additional support staff such as a second counselor, a mental health specialist counselor, a social worker, a social 
worker intern, and a community coordinator are added to our team and they all support our school connectedness 
goals.  The school will track data such as qualitative data from the student Social Emotional Health Survey, chronic 
absenteeism, and suspension rates.  BMS will refine or implement systems to encourage positive behavior and 
attendance. 
 
Counseling staff will implement mindfulness lessons and theme weeks such as anti-bullying week, suicide prevention 
awareness, college week, etc., and develop small group counseling for students in need of support around areas such 
as social isolation, organization/executive functioning, bullying issues, anger management, and identity issues. 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


547/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


All Staff        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 24,655        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Zero period PE teacher        


Amount 3,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Stipends for 2 WEB leaders - Ease transition for new students        


Amount 138,068        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Licensed Marriage and Family Counselor for more in depth counseling and therapy 
needs for students        


Amount 1,500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Field Trip fees for AVID, ELD, students.  Transportation fees, entrance fees, mileage 
reimbursement for staff, lunch for kids        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Design and implement school connectedness activities. 


 Enhance school environment to develop and continue pride in school facility and to enhance college and 
career going culture. 


 .09 FTE to implement multiple school connectedness strategies and to enhance School Leadership/Activities 
class work, (field trips, lunch time activities, SSR lessons,…) through ASB/Leadership class (Activities 
Director) $9,771 


 Enhance school by adding display cabinets, school pride and college awareness posters or other marketing 
materials, etc. 


 Replace broken, old, obsolete classroom and office furniture, 
 Continue newly developed Student Support Team of counselors, admin, attendance specialist, social 


workers, and RtI specialist to reduce chronic absenteeism and reduce suspension of all and of at-risk 
student groups. Do this by implementation of restorative justice practices (in lieu of suspension), attendance 
goal setting, and student incentives. 


 Extra hourly pay for prep or supplies monies for club advisors to encourage and enhance club participation 
($100 per club per advisor) 


 EWA - Add five hours a week to Attendance Specialist/Health Clerk position for Campus Supervision and 
Connectedness activities for students 


 Upgrade outdoor life lab to excite kids about learning Science, Culinary Arts, Agriculture "Farm to table" - 
needs electricity, water, improved seating and tables, storage and other related supplies 


 
 


548/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
All Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 23,886        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .20 FTE to implement multiple school connectedness strategies (split between two 
teachers)        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Replace broken, old, obsolete classroom and/or office furniture        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Design and implement Tier 1 & 2 strategies counseling strategies. 


 Counselors, school psychologist, social workers and administration work on developing Tier 1, 2, & 3 
practices and systems including bi-monthly meetings to strategize and execute chronic absenteeism 
interventions and caseloads 


 Implement Second Step (evidence based) Social-Emotional Learning (SEL) curriculum across all 6th grade 
classrooms. Explore other evidence based and creative ways to connect with students and engage them in 
learning. 


 Train new staff, including para-professionals, in trauma informed schools practices 
 Pay School Support Staff members for after hours home visits for chronic absentees 
 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (LCFF - $18,708) 
 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (T1 $18,709) 
 Social Work Intern fees (LCFF $5,000) 


 
 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students, Students with Disabilities and English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, AP, Counselors, & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


549/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Description School Support Staff members for after hours home visits for chronic absentees        


Amount 37,416        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .4 FTE Bilingual counselor - Measure U Parcel Tax funding        


Amount 5,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Social Work Intern fees        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Increase opportunities for non-certificated staff to be more involved in school activities and to receive more professional 
development in their work roles. 


 Release time sub pay and conferences for classified and other non-certificated staff. 
 Food for regular mtgs of classified staff. ($500 - donations acct) 


 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students, Students with Disabilities and English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & Classified Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Increase opportunities for non-certificated staff, PD or sub pay        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Bi-annually review the LGTBQ School Climate Survey with a representative group of students and staff.  Seek ways to 
improve overall rubric score to make safer climate for LGTBQ students. 
release time, subs, conference fees, pay for consultants, transportation to conferences or for PD. 
Increase engagement and school spirit and pride with spirit wear and other related school mascot wear, etc. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, LGTBQ students, at-risk students        


550/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Assistant Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Increase engagement and school spirit and pride with purchase of spirit wear and other 
related school mascot wear, etc.        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Provide small group academic cohorts during and after school - Tier 3 Interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Identify and mitigate learning loss to reduce or prevent achievement gap growth due to COVID 19        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,550        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - During School Day Support        


Amount 21,600        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - Before/After School Support & 
Tutoring        


Amount 8,250        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - Teacher and classroom supplies        


551/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Amount 20,975        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - hardware and software programs and 
technology to aid Distance Learning and Hybrid Instruction        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Instructional Materials.  Replacement parts, supplies for Outride - Riding for Focus - PE 
Program        


 


552/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
English Learner Progress:  All Ever English Learners (IFEP, RFEP, ELs) will have academic success and social-
emotional well being in an asset-based, needs responsive learning community and will participate fully in our schools 
and graduate ready for college and career. 
Academic Literacy: All students will engage in daily relevant, complex reading, writing, speaking, listening across all 
content areas so they can build knowledge, engage in collaborative, academic discussions, and support a position with 
evidence. 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


CAASPP - ELA         The number of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2021 CAASPP. 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - ELA         Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - ELA         Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on 2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 
positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


CAASPP  - ELA         Increase Hispanic students scores on 
2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


CAASPP  - ELA         Increase English Learner students 
scores on 2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 
positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Spring 2021 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 All students will score "Meeting 
Standard" or higher in Spring 2021 
School Wide Write. 


 Data not available 


Spring 2021 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 We will close the achievement gap 
between Sp Ed students, EL students 
and their peers on SWW by 10% (to 
8.1% for Sp Ed and 10.3% for ELs). 


 Data not available 


ELPAC         80% or more of English Learners will 
grow at least one level of English 
Proficiency as demonstrated on the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 Data not available 


 


553/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Strategies Overview:  Teachers and school staff 
will present engaging and California Common 
Core Standards based lessons using evidence 
based strategies to engage all learners in English 
Language Arts and designated or integrated 
English Language Development for English 
Learners.  Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide a 
foundation for the bulk of all learners at BMS.  For 
learners who need additional support, Tier 2 and 3 
strategies and programs will be employed during 
and after the regular school day.  Staff will engage 
in on-going professional development to improve 
teacher efficacy and curriculum and program 
alignment.  Particular focus will be paid to under 
performing student groups such as English 
learners and Student with Special needs. 
 
a.  During 2020-21, staff will continue to implement 
and refine Tier 1 strategies including: teacher 
clarity/visible learning, AVID strategies, productive 
student-talk strategies, integrated ELD, a pilot of 
Universal Design for Learning (UDL), Social 
Emotional Learning (SEL) and other evidence 
based and creative ways to connect with students 
and engage them in learning.  Administration and 
teacher collective efficacy groups will use 
classroom walk-throughs or peer observation 
process to enhance efficacy and to assess 
implementation.  Funds provided for staff to attend 
professional conferences, for release time pay, 
substitutes, guest presenters, consultant fees, and 
other similar professional development 
opportunities. 
Funds to pay for two AVID class/programs. 6th 
grade exploratory and 7/8th grade elective (LCFF 
Central $45,682). 
 
 


 Action was completed  


b.  Teachers use universal and common formative 
& benchmark  assessments to inform instruction.  
Release days for School Wide Write (SWW) 
norming and scoring 
 
 


 Assessment not completed due to distance 
learning 


 


c.  Provide opportunities for all students to have 
access to college and career literacy skills.  AVID, 
tutors, field trips.  Purchase of common binders 
and supplies school wide. 
 
 


 Action was completed  


554/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


d.  Implement Silent Sustained Reading (SSR) 
time and provide multiple Tier 2 and 3 strategies 
utilizing this time in the schedule.  Pay for Reading 
Ally license so that students performing well below 
grade level can access core curriculum and 
literature.  Purchase Lexile leveled books.  Other 
high interest lower readability novels as needed. 
Replace worn texts and add culturally relevant 
novel sets. 
 
 


 SSR not implemented due to distance learning.  
Reading Ally still utilized. 


 


e.  After school support provided for homework 
completion, intervention support, and enrichment. 
During the school day (2) Bilingual para-pro X2 @ 
3.75 hrs each.  One centrally funded for 
Newcomer program and the other via site Title 1 
monies 
Two afterschool program paraprofessionals - 
support at-risk students. 
 
 
 
 


 Not implemented due to distance learning  


f. Encourage parent involvement to support 
student learning 


 Community Coordinator - 
 Supplies, food, Childcare for Parent Ed 


Nights, ELAC, SSC, etc 
 EWA for extra hourly for Parent 


Coordinator to do translations or extra 
hours to support school at evening 
events etc. 


 
 


 Action was completed  


g. ELD classes leveled with appropriate curriculum 
and support 


 Additional ELD sections for push-in 
support and lower class size - ELD 6 
($23,479) ELD 8 ($19,943) 


 Achieve3000 curriculum and other 
related ELD materials 


 PD for Achieve3000 
 


 Classroom materials, supplies, 
technology. 


 


 Action was completed  


h. Create 21st century, engaging learning 
opportunities using technological tools 


 New or replacement technology including 
Chromebooks, laptops, iPads, printer, 
licenses, cartridges, and other related 
tech tools 


 Action was completed  


555/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 
 
l. Provide rich classroom resources to engage 
students in their learning 
 


 classroom supplies, reimbursement for 
staff, or other classroom related needs. 
Paper, pens, pencils, clerical supplies, 
literary resources, art supplies, printer 
cartridges, tech supplies and and other 
classroom materials - provided with Site 
Council mini-grants. Staff come to SSC 
and ask for up to $1,000 per grant - must 
be connected to school goals and 
support at-risk student group(s). 


 
 
Departments to enhance or replace obsolete 
materials or add new materials as necessary 
 


 Not implemented due to distance learning  


j.  Enhance Tier 1 classroom instructional 
strategies and enhance classroom environment 
with furniture and supplies.  Begin gradual 
implementation of Social Emotional Learning 
(SEL) Curriculum and activities and Universal 
Design for Learning (UDL) with early innovators 
that are ready to learn and provide future 
professional development for other staff.  (SUMS 
MTSS Grant $5,000).  2nd Step SEL curriculum. 
 
 


 Action was completed  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
          


 


556/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
          


 


557/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
All students will develop conceptual understanding, procedural skills and fluency that they will apply to make sense of 
mathematical problems and persevere in solving them.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


CAASPP - Math         The percent of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2020-21 CAASPP 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - Math         Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
math 2021 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - Math         Increase Hispanic students scores on 
math 2021 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - Math         Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on math 2021 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


 Data not available 


CAASPP - Math         Increase English Learner student 
scores on math 2021 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


 Data not available 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Strategies Overview: Teachers and school staff 
will present engaging and California Common 
Core Standards based lessons using evidence 
based strategies to engage all learners in 
mathematics. Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide 
a foundation for the bulk of all learners at BMS. 
For learners who need additional support Tier 2 
and 3 strategies and programs will be employed 
during and after the regular school day. Staff will 
engage in on-going professional development to 
improve teacher efficacy and curriculum and 
program alignment. Particular focus will be paid to 
underperforming student groups such as English 
learners and Student with Special needs. 
 
a. All teachers will be able to implement the CPM 
and iReady math curriculum, including 
implementation of group activities that support 
accountable student talk of all students 


 New staff will participate in CPM training. 


 Actions implemented  


558/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 PLC time, professional conferences, and 
coaching will be provided to teachers to 
support implementation of CPM and 
iReady curriculum and SVMI strategies 
to implement Math Mindset and Goal 
Setting in the classroom. BMS will apply 
for Community Foundation Grant that will 
heavily support this work. $20,000 for 
teacher release time pay, travel and 
conference, subs, and other grant 
initiative work 


 Teachers will infuse technology into 
teaching and learning with innovative 
and advanced classroom strategies that 
engage students at a high level using 
tech tools or licenses. Pay for PD 
presenters, release time, and tech tools 
via mini-Tech Cadre through SCCS Tech 
Cadre 


 
 
b.  RtI coach to support universal & benchmark 
assessments, identification of students for 
intervention and support of intervention strategies.  
1.0 FTE RtI coach 
 
 


 Actions implemented  


Add additional sections of mathematics to lower 
class size to benefit at-risk and all students 
Add Zero Period Math+ for intensive Tier 3 
Intervention in Mathematics 
Add creative Culinary Arts elective to address 
math and ELA skills in the general education 
setting 
 


 Actions implemented  


d. Create and execute ways to bring math to a 
school wide level across all disciplines 


 Begin monthly all-staff meetings with 
math task or number talk to have whole 
school recognize cross curricular 
opportunities to pull math into their 
content areas 


 Problems of the Month on BeeTV. host 
math "contest" that all or most kids can 
access and give out prizes for kids who 
complete them. Complete 10 and get a 
"Math Guru" prize! 


 Funds for cool math or other schoolwide 
rewards or prizes 


 
 


 Actions implemented  


e. Explore other ways to make math a priority and 
to create access to interventions 


 Actions implemented  


559/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 When creating the master schedule for 
2019-20 - align math interventions and 
math teacher prep time to ease 
additional pressure on teachers and 
students (that exists when these courses 
are not aligned) 


 Explore the possibility of zero period for 
Integrated math to reduce "tracking" of 
advanced kids during the school day. 
Work to ensure all kids with math 
intervention have the opportunity for zero 
period PE. 


 Add additional section of Exploratory 
Computer Science for 6th graders 


 EWA for Computer Science professional 
development and release time planning 


 
 
h. Explore ways to continue folding Computer 
Science for all Grant initiatives with engineering 
standards into core curriculum areas. This has 
been done through 8th grade science robotics unit 
and Core class curriculum but can be extended to 
other areas. 


 release time pay for CS for All Grant 
coordinator to train teachers 


 robotics supplies 
 EWA - extra pay for Arts Academy 


Classes, (3 classes for one semester . 
E.g. drum line, rock band, mosaic, or 
other) $3,300, LCFF supplemental 


 
 


 Actions implemented  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
          


 


560/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
          


 


561/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
All students will feel connected to the school and feel supported in their personal and academic growth. They will learn 
about and show growth in Social Emotional Learning (SEL) competencies of self-awareness, self-management, social 
awareness, relationship skills and responsible decision making.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 In 2020-21, when taking the Social 
Emotional Health Survey (SEHS), 
70% of students will respond 
“strongly agree” or “agree” to the 
prompt: “I  feel like I am a part of this 
school”. 


 68% of the students in fall 2020 
responded “strongly agree” or “agree” 
to the prompt: “I  feel like I am a part 
of this school.”) 
 
 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 In 2020-21, when taking the SEHS, 
78% of students will respond 
“strongly agree” or “agree” to the 
prompt: “I  feel safe in my school”. 


 67% of the students in fall 2019 
responded “strongly agree” or “agree” 
to the prompt: “I  feel safe in my 
school.”) 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 
 
 


 Data not available 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
1% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Decrease chronic absenteeism to 
less than 10% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Suspension Data         Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Suspension Data         Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Suspension Data         Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Suspension Data         Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


Suspension Data         Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 Data not available 


562/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Strategies Overview: Teachers and staff will 
continue to learn and improve our knowledge and 
skills in areas such as Trauma Informed Schools, 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Support 
(PBIS), and in Social Emotional Learning (SEL). 
The school will provide on-going professional 
development for veteran and new teachers in 
these areas. Additional support staff such as a 
second counselor, a social worker, and a 
community coordinator are added to our team and 
they all support our school connectedness goals. 
The school will track data such as qualitative data 
from the student Social Emotional Health Survey, 
chronic absenteeism, and suspension rates. 
School will refine or implement systems to 
encourage positive behavior and attendance.  
 
a. Maintain and refine PBIS, MTSS and other 
school connectedness strategies that create a 
rigorous learning environment with high 
expectations and appropriate support for all 
students 


 PBIS release days for planning 
 Stipends for 3 WEB leaders 
 WEB and ASB/Leadership T-shirts ($500 


paid by Home and School Club)) 
 Attend PBIS and other similar trainings 
 Food, prizes, materials and school 


connectedness related rewards for 
positive attendance, behavior, and other 
PBIS related needs to improve behavior, 
connectedness, and decrease student 
discipline (suspension). 


 EWA extra pay for supervision help at 
lunch and/or after school activities, 


 Add zero period PE so ELs can take 
required ELD class and still access 
elective program 


 
 


 Actions implemented  


b. Design and implement school connectedness 
activities. 


 Enhance school environment to develop 
and continue pride in school facility and 
to enhance college and career going 
culture. 


 .09 FTE to implement multiple school 
connectedness strategies and to 
enhance School Leadership/Activities 
class work, (field trips, lunch time 


 Most of these actions were not possible due to 
distance learning 


 


563/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


activities, SSR lessons,…) through 
ASB/Leadership class (Activities 
Director) $9,771 


 Enhance school by adding display 
cabinets, school pride and college 
awareness posters or other marketing 
materials, etc. 


 Replace broken, old, obsolete classroom 
and office furniture, 


 Continue newly developed Student 
Support Team of counselors, admin, 
attendance specialist, social workers, 
and RtI specialist to reduce chronic 
absenteeism and reduce suspension of 
all and of at-risk student groups. Do this 
by implementation of restorative justice 
practices (in lieu of suspension), 
attendance goal setting, and student 
incentives. 


 Extra hourly pay for prep or supplies 
monies for club advisors to encourage 
and enhance club participation ($100 per 
club per advisor) 


 EWA - Add five hours a week to 
Attendance Specialist/Health Clerk 
position for Campus Supervision and 
Connectedness activities for students 


 Upgrade outdoor life lab to excite kids 
about learning Science, Culinary Arts, 
Agriculture "Farm to table"- needs 
electricity, water, improved seating and 
tables, storage and other related 
supplies 


 
 
c. Design and implement Tier 1 & 2 strategies 
counseling strategies. 


 Counselors, school psychologist, social 
workers and administration work on 
developing Tier 1, 2, & 3 practices and 
systems including bi-monthly meetings 
to strategize and execute chronic 
absenteeism interventions and 
caseloads 


 Implement Second Step (evidence 
based) Social-Emotional Learning (SEL) 
curriculum across all 6th grade 
classrooms. Explore other evidence 
based and creative ways to connect with 
students and engage them in learning. 


 Train new staff, including para-
professionals, in trauma informed 
schools practices 


 Actions implemented  


564/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 Pay School Support Staff members for 
after hours home visits for chronic 
absentees 


 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (LCFF - 
$18,708) 


 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (T1 $18,709) 
 Social Work Intern fees (LCFF $5,000) 


 
 
 
d. Increase opportunities for non-certificated staff 
to be more involved in school activities and to 
receive more professional development in their 
work roles. 


 Release time sub pay and conferences 
for classified and other non-certificated 
staff. 


 Food for regular mtgs of classified staff. 
($500 - donations acct) 


 
 


 Actions not implemented due to distance learning  


Respect staff and parents by offering food for 
meetings that are held at inopportune times of the 
day/evening 


 Actions not implemented due to distance learning  


f.  Bi-annually review the LGTBQ School Climate 
Survey with a representative group of students 
and staff.  Seek ways to improve overall rubric 
score to make safer climate for LGTBQ students. 
release time, subs, conference fees, pay for 
consultants, transportation to conferences or for 
PD. 
Increase engagement and school spirit and pride 
with spirit wear and other related school mascot 
wear etc 
 
 


 Actions not implemented due to distance learning  


Provide small group academic cohorts during and 
after school - Tier 3 Interventions 


 Actions implemented  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
          


 


565/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
          


 


566/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  89,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  1,021,657.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


567/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         61,375.00 


District Funded         321,625.00 


Donations         3,000.00 


LCFF - Base         114,059.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         46,498.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         2,000.00 


SB86         420,547.00 


Title I         52,553.00 
 


568/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         567,155.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         378,282.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         57,720.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 10,500.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 5,000.00 


None Specified         3,000.00 
 


569/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  32,150.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  29,225.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  197,397.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  110,733.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  13,495.00 


None Specified         Donations  3,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  114,059.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  18,604.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  25,394.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  2,500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  2,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  182,392.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  238,155.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  22,553.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  4,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  10,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  10,500.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  5,000.00 


 


570/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


3 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Casey O'Brien         X Principal        


Molly O'Neil         X Classroom Teacher        


Blake Battles         X Classroom Teacher        


Lisa Orozco         X Other School Staff        


Stephen Nakazawa-Hewitt         X Parent or Community Member        


Balam Latona         X Parent or Community Member        


Maria Gonzales         X Parent or Community Member        


Emily Warren         X Classroom Teacher        


Zara Patterson Chao         X Secondary Student        


Jessica Robledo Solorio         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


571/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 66 Branciforte Middle School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 


X English Learner Advisory Committee        


 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/6/21. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Casey O'Brien on 9/29/21 


  SSC Chairperson, Stephen Nakazawa-Hewitt on 9/29/21 


 


572/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Mission Hill Middle School         


Address 425 King St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3411 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698236060156         


Principal Derek Kendall         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date October 4, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 4, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


573/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School Vision and Mission 
 
MHMS Vision:  All Mavericks are learners who who persevere, collaborate and innovate. We grow into our world with 
responsibility and integrity. 
 
MHMS Mission:  Engaging students' hearts and minds - every student, every day. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Mission Hill Middle School is located on the central coast of California in a residential community on the west side of 
Santa Cruz. We are situated between King Street and Mission Street, within walking distance of downtown, and in close 
proximity to the University of California. Mission Hill serves about 625 students in grades 6 through 8, and our student 
body reflects the wide range of socioeconomic and cultural diversity found in the neighborhoods of west side Santa Cruz. 
 
Through partnership and collaboration with its stakeholders, Mission Hill is able to provide a safe environment for 
students and a positive school climate that supports all learners. Mission Hill places great value on academic rigor while 
also being mindful of the unique, social-emotional needs of adolescents. This sentiment is apparent in our school 
mission: "Engaging students' hearts and minds; every student, every day." In addition to rigorous academic instruction, 
we also support students in the pursuit of the Maverick Essentials - Perseverance, Responsibility, Integrity, Innovation, 
Collaboration. The Essentials are referenced in our school vision: "All Mavericks are learners who persevere, 
collaborate, and innovate. We grow into our world with responsibility and integrity." 
 
Mission Hill Middle School believes: 


• all students should be known and valued 
• all students can learn 
• that rigorous academic instruction is essential to students' academic growth 
• in providing a safe and caring environment in which students and staff respect one other 
• in maintaining high expectations for all learners 
• that music and the arts are important 
• that educational equity is essential for all students to feel connected and be successful 
• in doing whatever is necessary to close the achievement gap 
• in challenging all learners 
• that demographics should not determine outcomes 


 
 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA is developed, monitored and reviewed annually across at least four evening SSC meetings.  The site principal 
also met and conferred with district personnel, the Site Leadership Team (SCIL), and the entire school staff during 
faculty meetings.  Principal offers invitation to review and discuss individually as necessary with any and all 
stakeholders.         


 


574/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.16% 0.16% % 1 1  


African American     2.8% 2.08% 1.9% 17 13 11 


Asian     3.62% 3.36% 3.2% 22 21 18 


Filipino     0.49% 0.32% 0.4% 3 2 2 


Hispanic/Latino     30.31% 30.08% 30.2% 184 188 172 


Pacific Islander     0.33% 0.16% % 2 1  


White     55.19% 56.32% 56.8% 335 352 324 


Multiple/No Response     6.26% 7.52% 7.5% 38 47 43 


 Total Enrollment 607 625 570 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 6        186 182 201 


Grade 7        238 203 163 


Grade 8        183 240 206 


Total Enrollment        607 625 570 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. White students are the largest demographic group.        


2. The second largest demographic group is Hispanic/Latino students.        


3. Enrollment has remained relatively stable over the last three years.        


 


575/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        37 42 49 6.1% 6.7% 8.6% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        111 109 101 18.3% 17.4% 17.7% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        12 11 17 29.3% 29.7% 40.5% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to our enrollment data, the number of ELs and number of RFEPs is staying relatively consistent over the 


past 3 years.        
 


576/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 184 218 185 177 214 179 177 214 179 96.2 98.2 96.8 


Grade 7 217 171 240 213 167 231 213 166 231 98.2 97.7 96.3 


Grade 8 191 212 182 186 210 176 186 210 176 97.4 99.1 96.7 
All 
Grades 


592 601 607 576 591 586 576 590 586 97.3 98.3 96.5 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2559.
4 


2546.
8 


2560.
9 


29.38 23.36 27.93 35.59 36.45 36.31 23.16 21.50 20.11 11.86 18.69 15.64 


Grade 7 2577.
5 


2584.
2 


2575.
3 


24.88 24.70 22.51 39.44 46.39 42.42 20.66 16.27 19.48 15.02 12.65 15.58 


Grade 8 2584.
5 


2590.
0 


2599.
7 


25.27 24.29 22.73 33.87 38.57 46.02 22.04 19.05 21.02 18.82 18.10 10.23 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.39 24.07 24.23 36.46 40.00 41.64 21.88 19.15 20.14 15.28 16.78 13.99 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 41.81 31.31 30.17 39.55 47.20 46.93 18.64 21.50 22.91 


Grade 7 32.86 36.75 30.30 46.48 46.99 47.19 20.66 16.27 22.51 


Grade 8 36.02 37.62 35.23 42.47 36.67 45.45 21.51 25.71 19.32 


All Grades 36.63 35.08 31.74 43.06 43.39 46.59 20.31 21.53 21.67 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 29.94 31.31 34.64 50.85 44.39 50.28 19.21 24.30 15.08 


Grade 7 37.56 35.54 33.33 42.72 50.60 51.08 19.72 13.86 15.58 


Grade 8 33.33 34.29 31.82 44.62 42.86 53.41 22.04 22.86 14.77 


All Grades 33.85 33.56 33.28 45.83 45.59 51.54 20.31 20.85 15.19 
 


577/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 28.25 21.96 23.46 64.97 63.55 67.04 6.78 14.49 9.50 


Grade 7 22.54 19.28 17.32 63.38 69.28 74.03 14.08 11.45 8.66 


Grade 8 25.27 33.33 26.14 60.75 55.71 68.75 13.98 10.95 5.11 


All Grades 25.17 25.25 21.84 63.02 62.37 70.31 11.81 12.37 7.85 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 35.03 36.92 38.55 52.54 48.13 49.16 12.43 14.95 12.29 


Grade 7 46.95 42.17 35.06 42.25 47.59 48.48 10.80 10.24 16.45 


Grade 8 31.72 40.00 40.34 53.76 42.38 46.02 14.52 17.62 13.64 


All Grades 38.37 39.49 37.71 49.13 45.93 47.95 12.50 14.58 14.33 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our CAASPP ELA scores are still relatively flat overall.  We hope that our school-wide focus on increasing students' 


general academic vocabulary will boost all areas of standardized testing in English Language Arts.        
2. While the All Student group is above standard, there is still a pronounced gap between ELs and English only 


students.        
3. Our low SES student group, students with disabilities group, and Hispanic student group are still far below standard.        


 


578/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 184 218 185 178 215 180 178 215 180 96.7 98.6 97.3 


Grade 7 217 171 240 215 167 232 215 167 232 99.1 97.7 96.7 


Grade 8 191 212 182 188 210 175 187 210 175 98.4 99.1 96.2 
All 
Grades 


592 601 607 581 592 587 580 592 587 98.1 98.5 96.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2552.
3 


2535.
0 


2529.
1 


21.35 25.58 18.89 29.78 21.86 19.44 33.15 29.30 35.56 15.73 23.26 26.11 


Grade 7 2581.
2 


2570.
5 


2555.
7 


31.63 23.95 25.43 29.77 30.54 28.02 25.58 28.74 21.98 13.02 16.77 24.57 


Grade 8 2575.
1 


2598.
4 


2600.
1 


26.20 32.86 32.00 22.99 21.90 25.14 27.81 26.19 25.14 22.99 19.05 17.71 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.72 27.70 25.38 27.59 24.32 24.53 28.62 28.04 27.09 17.07 19.93 23.00 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 31.46 28.84 22.78 43.82 39.07 37.78 24.72 32.09 39.44 


Grade 7 41.86 36.53 34.91 35.81 40.12 31.03 22.33 23.35 34.05 


Grade 8 30.48 35.71 38.29 38.50 39.52 38.29 31.02 24.76 23.43 


All Grades 35.00 33.45 32.20 39.14 39.53 35.26 25.86 27.03 32.54 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 19.66 25.58 20.56 56.18 42.33 47.78 24.16 32.09 31.67 


Grade 7 31.63 28.74 28.45 51.63 53.29 50.86 16.74 17.96 20.69 


Grade 8 32.09 33.81 33.71 40.64 52.86 47.43 27.27 13.33 18.86 


All Grades 28.10 29.39 27.60 49.48 49.16 48.89 22.41 21.45 23.51 
 


579/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 30.34 26.98 22.78 49.44 46.98 49.44 20.22 26.05 27.78 


Grade 7 33.95 26.35 25.43 56.28 56.89 52.59 9.77 16.77 21.98 


Grade 8 31.55 39.52 28.57 44.39 41.43 58.29 24.06 19.05 13.14 


All Grades 32.07 31.25 25.55 50.34 47.80 53.32 17.59 20.95 21.12 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our CAASPP math scores are relatively flat overall.  We hope that our school-wide focus on increasing students' 


general academic vocabulary (Goal #1 & #2) coupled with the focus on building students' understanding of 
mathematical vocabulary will boost all areas of standardized testing in Mathematics.        


2. While our All Student group has remained relatively stable, the gap has widened amongst almost all groups -  
ELStudents, Students with Disabilities, Hispanic, low SES Students.        


 


580/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6        1499.3 1542.8 1480.2 1524.2 1518.2 1561.2 11 13 


Grade 7        1545.5 1520.9 1528.3 1501.3 1562.3 1540.0 11 15 


Grade 8        1566.0 * 1557.3 * 1574.4 * 12 8 


All Grades              34 36 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 7.69 * 38.46 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 26.67 * 53.33 * 6.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        47.06 38.89 35.29 33.33 * 19.44 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 23.08 * 23.08 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 33.33 * 46.67 * 6.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  *  * 12 * 


All Grades        55.88 47.22 32.35 30.56 * 13.89 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 23.08 * 30.77 * 30.77 * 15.38 11 13 


   7    * 20.00 * 40.00 * 26.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * * * * * * 12 * 


All Grades        47.06 25.00 * 36.11 * 27.78 * 11.11 34 36 
 


581/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 53.85 * 0.00 11 13 


   7    * 46.67 * 40.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        44.12 47.22 44.12 47.22 * 5.56 34 36 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 30.77 * 61.54 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 26.67 * 60.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        58.82 36.11 35.29 55.56 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 23.08 * 53.85 * 23.08 11 13 


   7    * 20.00 * 60.00 * 20.00 11 15 


   8    * * * * * * 12 * 


All Grades        41.18 30.56 * 50.00 32.35 19.44 34 36 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 53.85 * 46.15 * 0.00 11 13 


   7    * 6.67 * 80.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        * 25.00 67.65 69.44 * 5.56 34 36 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Based on this data, more than 70% of students are at Level 3 or 4 on the ELPAC which is highly encouraging and 


may reflect the recent work we have put into improving the instruction in our Designated ELD class, as well as the 
schoolwide emphasis on Academic Language (Tier 2 Vocabulary).        


2. Additionally, the data shows that almost 40% of students (38.89% precisely) are at Level 4 which means that over a 
third of our EL students are getting the highest rating possible on the ELPAC.        


 
 


582/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


625        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


34.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


6.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        42 6.7 


Homeless        2 0.3 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        213 34.1 


Students with Disabilities        75 12.0 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        13 2.1 


American Indian        1 0.2 


Asian        21 3.4 


Filipino        2 0.3 


Hispanic        188 30.1 


Two or More Races        47 7.5 


Pacific Islander        1 0.2 


White        352 56.3 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 34.1% of our students are socioeconomically disadvantaged.        


2. 6.7% of our students are English Learners.        


 
 


583/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Red        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019, ELA overall CA Dashboard rating was Green due to our overall student scores being in the meeting 


standard range.        
2. In 2019 our suspension rate improved, and has continued to improve over the previous year.        


3. In 2019, we received a red rating for Chronic Absenteeism.  Our Chronic Absenteeism has since increased.        


 
 


584/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


3        
Green        


1        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


28.4 points above standard         


Increased ++4.5 points         


570        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


46.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++31.1 points         
85        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


19.9 points below standard         


Increased ++11.9 points         


217        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


80.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++29.7 points         
63        


 


585/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


37.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++38.3 points         
14        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


80.8 points above standard         


Declined -10.4 points         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


23.3 points below standard         


Increased ++10.1 points         


178        


Two or More Races 


 
Green         


55.3 points above standard         


Declined -6.3 points         


35        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Blue         


54.6 points above standard         


Increased ++3 points         


317        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


68.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++44.6 points         
32        


Reclassified English Learners 


33.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++27.9 points         
53        


English Only 


43 points above standard         


Maintained ++0.1 points         


426        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019 all Student group ELA scores remained relatively stable, though we still have a big gap between our White 


student group and all other groups.        
 
 


586/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


4        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


7.1 points below standard         


Declined -7.3 points         


569        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


96 points below standard         


Increased ++7.7 points         


85        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


68.6 points below standard         


Declined -4.6 points         


217        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


129.2 points below standard         


Increased ++6.8 points         


63        


 


587/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


101.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++21.2 points         
14        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


68.5 points above standard         


Maintained -1.8 points         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


68.3 points below standard         


Declined -6.2 points         


178        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


31.7 points above standard         


Declined Significantly -36.3 
points         


35        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Green         


23.4 points above standard         


Declined -5.5 points         


316        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


109.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.4 points         
32        


Reclassified English Learners 


88.1 points below standard         


Increased ++4.6 points         


53        


English Only 


9.7 points above standard         


Declined -10.1 points         


425        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019, the all student group Math scores remained relatively stable.  We continue to have a gap between our White 


student group and all other groups.        
 
 


588/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


67.7 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 31          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


19.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


12.9         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


9.6         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


58.0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019, our English Learner students performed well on the ELPAC, with 67.7% of our English Learners growing in 


their English language proficiency. This is considered "Very High" by the state.  We still have work to do to support 
the 32.2% of students who maintained or decreased their English language proficiency.        


 
 


589/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No reportable data.        


 
 


590/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
3        


Orange        
2        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


16.1         


Increased Significantly +3.8         


627        


English Learners 


 
Green         


7.7         


Declined -12.8         


39        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


22.5         


Increased Significantly +3.1         


236        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


20.3         


Increased +4.1         


74        


 


591/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


29.4         


Increased +0.8         


17        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


4.5         


Increased +1.1         


22        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


14         


Increased +0.9         


186        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


13.2         


Increased +0.7         


38        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Red         


16.8         


Increased Significantly +5.4         


357        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2019 our chronic absenteeism rate of 16.1% was higher than the 10% state average.        


2. We need to decrease our Chronic Absenteeism rate for all student groups.        


 
 


592/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         2019         
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No reportable data.        


 
 


593/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


4        
Blue        


2        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


1.4         


Declined -1.4         
633        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -2.2         
40        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


2.9         


Declined -1.7         
239        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


5.4         


Declined -5.9         
74        


 


594/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


11.8         


Increased +5.1         
17        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
23        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


2.1         


Declined -1.9         
188        


Two or More Races 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
38        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


White     


 
Green         


0.6         


Declined -2.1         
359        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
2.8         


2019     
1.4         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our suspension rate improved from 2.8% in 2018 to 1.4% in 2019. This resulted in a Green rating on the CA 


Dashboard Suspension Rate.        
 
 


595/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Literacy and Equity          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in achieving high levels of literacy. Specifically, 
we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the “white only” 
group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these reading assessments.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Literacy is probably the single most important student skill for success in high school, college, and career. Improving 
students' literacy skills means they can access text and will be more likely to experience success in all content areas - 
from English Language Arts to Mathematics, History, and Science. Language is thinking and thinking is language.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The “All Students” group will improve 
by at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 27 points above 
standard to 30 points above standard 
or greater). 
 
        


 27 points above standard  30 points above standard 


The “English Learners” group will 
improve by at least 3 points on ELA 
CAASPP testing (from 71.6 points 
below standard to 68 points below 
standard or lower). 
 
        


 71.6 points below standard  68.6 points below standard 


The “Students with Disabilities” group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
ELA CAASPP testing (from 81.6 
points below standard to 79 points 
below standard or lower). 
 
        


 81.6 points below standard  78.6 points below standard 


The “Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 


 68.6 points below standard  65.6 points below standard 


596/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


The “Hispanic” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


 68.3 points below standard  65.3 points below standard 


English Learner Progress on ELPAC 
will increase by 6%.        


 59% of English Learners grew one or 
more levels in their English language 
proficiency as measured by the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 At least 65% of Mission Hill's English 
Learners will grow one or more levels 
in their English Language proficiency 
as measured by the spring 2022 
ELPAC. 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The All Student group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 59.80 to 
63.80). 
        


 59.80  63.80 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Hispanic/Latinx will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 40.50 to 
44.50). 
        


 40.50  44.50 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Students w/ Disabilities group 
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points (from 
18.40 to 22.40). 
        


 18.40 - It should be noted that for the 
first time in 2021, both RSP and SDC 
data is included in SWD data, which 
significantly lowers the base. 


 22.40 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The English Language Learner group  
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points  (from 
25.00 to 29.00). 
        


 25.00  29.00 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The low SES group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from to ) 
        


 Data currently unavailable.   


Principal walk-through Integrated 
ELD data        


 There is no baseline data for this data 
point. 


 Principal walk-through data will show 
that Integrated ELD strategies 
(sentence starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 


597/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable and aligned 
curricula through high quality instructional practices including: visible learning strategies, trauma-informed strategies, 
and integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work together to write essential learnings, create formative assessments, 
examine student work, and design next steps in learning including intervention and extension.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, SCIL Leads, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Paid time for teachers to do team planning over the summer for next school year.   Also, 
paid time for classroom prep for Woodshop teacher.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
All students’ reading levels will be assessed through the i-Ready reading diagnostic assessment. The data gathered 
from this diagnostic will be used to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 reading interventions and to create 
differentiated  instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, ELA Teachers, Math Teachers, Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


598/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description i-Ready Reading Diagnostic Assessment. This reading assessment was given to us at no 
charge because we purchased the i-Ready/Math Ready math curriculum.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
SB 86 (COVID relief) funds will be used to fund peer tutor coordinator to implement  a Tier 2 literacy and math peer 
tutoring program.  This program will be called MHMS Mentors. Each tutor will be in charge of about 10 students and 
activities will include: silent reading,  i-Ready work time, small group work, and individual check-ins. The RTI 
Coordinator will be responsible for managing this program and training all tutors. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Tier 2 Students in Math and Reading        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, Study Club Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,600        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Learning Ally        


Amount 2,416        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Peer Tutor Stipend        


Amount 35,196        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for one paraeducator to support Peer Tutoring program        


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt reading and writing interventions as needed. 
 
        


 


599/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling students, ELD students, Resource students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, School Counselors, ELA and Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100,574        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 FTE RtI Coordinator        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk through observations to gather data on school wide use of integrated ELD 
strategies, student engagement, and classroom culture. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide 
meaningful feedback to teachers. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling students, ELD students, Resource students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, School Site Council        


600/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of hourly pay for staff representatives to School Site Council        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leads        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 16,830        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description stipends for SCIL Leads        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Staff will be provided with opportunities and encouraged to attend professional development related to Goal 1 and its 
action steps. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


601/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of professional development activities and travel expenses as necessary        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Mission Hill currently has existing chrome books to support high quality, 21st century instruction school-wide. Ongoing 
replacement of aging technology such as chrome books, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, teacher laptops,  
and document cameras as well as the purchase of new technology. New chrome books carts will be purchased to 
cover the replacement of devices that are given out to families. New classroom furniture will be purchased as needed 
to support high quality instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Office Manager        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description replacement cost of technology        


Strategy/Activity 10 
At the start of the year, all teachers will receive a “Teacher Binder” which identifies all special population students (EL, 
RFEP, Resource, 504, in transition, etc.), houses IEPs and 504 Plans, and all handouts from school-wide Professional 
Development. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Office Manager        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 200        


602/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of new binders and materials        


Strategy/Activity 11 
AVID will continue to support identified  students with literacy, organization, and other academic skills. Student 
materials and instructional materials will be purchased to support this. AVID Teachers and other staff will attend AVID 
Trainings as needed. The AVID Site Team will continue to meet monthly to create AVID Site Plan, review AVID data, 
monitor implementation of the AVID program, and to meet all compliance requirements for AVID certification.  In 
addition, two chromebook carts will be purchased specifically for the AVID classrooms to support students' 
development in 21st century skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
AVID Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, AVID Teachers, AVID Site Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 40,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 0.4 AVID electives (part of allocated FTE)        


Amount 20,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 0.2 AVID electives        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Funding for AVID Path Trainings        


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly for AVID Teachers to attend AVID mini-trainings (Title 1) 
 


603/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


        


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly for AVID Site Team meetings        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Academic Literacy classes will support EL students’ growth in reading, writing, speaking, and listening in English. 
Emphasis will be placed on increasing students' knowledge and use of general academic language as well as providing 
support with content and skills emphasized in general education classes.  Student materials and instructional materials 
will be purchased to support this. Two para-educators will be hired to support students in Academic Literacy classes 
and to provide push-in support for newcomers in their general education classes.  Additionally, one Paraeducator will 
be hired to provide push-in support to ELs in their general education classes.  Additionally, a chrome book cart will be 
purchased for ELD students to use in class to support their development of 21st century skills.  In addition, class novels 
will be purchased to support students literacy skills. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, ELD Teachers, all Teachers of EL students        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 2 bilingual paraeducators for ELD classes        


Amount 10,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 1 paraeducator to supply push-in support for ELs in general ed classes        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of curricular materials        


604/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of classroom novels for ELD        


Amount 15,460        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of ELD release period for ELD teacher to plan and implement interventions        


Strategy/Activity 13 
ELAC will be used as an outreach vehicle to Spanish-speaking families. Funds will be used to pay for babysitting, 
translation, and food. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of food for ELAC parents        


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of babysitter for ELAC meetings        


Amount 350        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra pay for one teacher to attend 9 yearly ELAC meeting outside of contract hours        


605/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategy/Activity 14 
Community Coordinator will continue to support communication between home and school and to especially support 
our Spanish-speaking students and families. In addition, the Community Coordinator will continue to work with the AP 
to plan and implement monthly ELAC meetings. A portion of the Communicator Coordinator hours will be paid out of 
the school budget. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.15 FTE Community Coordinator 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Read 180, our Tier 3 Reading Intervention, will support students needing to make significant reading growth. 
Instructional materials will be purchased to support this. In addition, System 44, the phonics program aligned with Read 
180 will be used in Tier 3 classrooms, including SPED, to support readers who are far below grade level.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
struggling readers        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Intervention Teachers, Resource Teachers, SDC Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.2 Intervention Teacher (Read 180) - funded centrally through LCFF Supplemental 
funds 
 
        


606/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Amount 17,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Read 180 curriculum update 
 
 
 
        


Amount 1,200        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description System 44 update        


Strategy/Activity 16 
We will continue to replenish and update our library with high interest, relevant novels and non-fiction reading 
selections.  Additionally, many books from last year were not been returned (due to the switch to distance learning) so 
our library collection needs more support than is our norm. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, Teacher Librarian        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description New library books to update collection        


Strategy/Activity 17 
LRT meetings will continue to happen twice yearly to monitor the progress of EL and RFEP students.  New Teachers 
will receive training from ELD Teachers on how to use ELPP and their role in LRTs.  In addition, The ELD Task Force 
will continue to meet monthly to review data regarding English Language (EL) Learners, examine our 
practices/protocols for serving ELs and their families, and to make recommendations for changes targeted to reduce 
the instructional gap.  Members of the ELD Task Force will include the Academic Literacy teachers, the School 
Community Coordinator, the WAVE Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator,  representatives from admin and counseling, and 
teacher reps from across the campus. 
 
 
        


607/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ELD and RFEP Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, Counseling Staff, ELD Teachers, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost for hourly pay to train new teachers on how to complete the ELPP form 
 
 
        


Amount 2,200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of roving guest teachers for LRT meetings        


Amount 2,500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description hourly pay for teachers on ELD Task Force 
 
        


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description hourly pay for Math, Science, English, History teachers to complete the ELPP        


Strategy/Activity 18 
Admin, ELA staff, Teacher Librarian, and district staff  will work together to maintain and continue implementation of the 
reading comprehension program - Reading Counts -  to be used with all students.    In addition, the SDC classes will 
continue to work with students that are far below grade level in both reading and math. To support students’ reading 
needs, the SDC teachers will use leveled readings w/ comprehension questions from Reading A-Z. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


608/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


All students        
 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Teacher Librarian, ELA Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 115.45        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Reading A-Z subscription 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 19 
As a school site, we will continue to offer the option of a Zero Period PE to provide ELD, RSP, AVID, and other student 
groups with the ability to have a preferred elective class.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ELD Students, Resource Students, AVID Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, PE Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of adding 0.2 PE  for Zero Period PE        


Strategy/Activity 20 
To support all teachers in having appropriate, grade level, and differentiated texts for all students, a NewsELA license 
will be purchased. This paid version of NewsELA will integrate directly with Google Classroom. In addition, NewsELA 
training will be made available to all staff.  In addition to support students' academic writing, composition notebooks will 
be purchased for all 6th graders, ELD classes, and History classes. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 


609/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Teacher Librarian, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description NewsELA site license 
 
        


Amount 800        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Composition Notebooks        


 


610/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in high levels of achievement in mathematics. 
Specifically, we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the 
“white only” group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these math assessments. 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Math is an important "gate keeper" course in high school. Students with capable math skills are able to access higher 
courses in both math and science which sets students up for success in high school, college, and beyond.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The "All Students" group will improve 
by at least 3 points on MATH 
CAASPP testing (from 7.1 point 
above standard to 10.1 points above 
standard or greater).        


 7.1 points above standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 10.1 points above standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "English Learner" group will 
improve by at least 3 points on MATH  
CAASPP testing (from 96 points 
below standard to 93 points below 
standard or lower).        


 96 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 93 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Students with Disabilities" group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
MATH CAASPP testing (from 129.2 
points below standard to 126.2 points 
below standard).        


 129.2 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 126.2 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 
standard to 65.6 points below 
standard).        


 68.6 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 65.6 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Hispanic" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 


 68.3 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 65.3 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


611/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65.3 points below 
standard).        


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The All Student group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 46.70 to 
50.70). 
 
        


 46.70  50.70 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Hispanic/Latinx group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points (from 
40.50 to 44.50). 
        


 40.50  44.50 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Students w/ Disabilities group 
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points (from 
18.40  to 22.40). 
        


 18.40 - It should be noted that for the 
first time 2021 data included both 
RSP and SDC data, which 
significantly lowers SWD baseline 
data. 


 22.40 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The English Learner group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 points (from 25.00 to 
29.00). 
        


 25.00  29.00 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The low SES group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points. 
        


 Data not available   


Principal walk-through data focused 
on Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria), 
Trauma-Informed Practices, and 
Integrated ELD strategies (sentences 
starters, sentence frames, word 
banks, direct vocabulary instruction)        


 Gathering baseline data  Principal walk-through data will show 
that Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria) are 
regularly incorporated into instruction 
(posted on the board, stated aloud, or 
both) in Math classes at least 85% of 
the time, that Trauma-Informed 
Practices are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time, 
and that Integrated ELD strategies 
(sentences starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 
instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


612/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable and aligned 
curricula through high quality instructional practices including: visible learning strategies, trauma-informed strategies, 
and integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work together to write essential learnings, create formative assessments, 
examine student work, and design next steps in learning including intervention and extension. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leaders, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
All students’ math levels will be assessed through the i-Ready mathematics diagnostic assessment. The data gathered 
from this diagnostic will be used to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 math interventions and to create 
differentiated  instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling math students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers, Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 53,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description iReady & Ready Math curriculum were purchased as distance learning MS math 
curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 3 
SB 86 (COVID relief) funds will be used to fund peer tutor coordinator to implement  a Tier 2 literacy and math peer 
tutoring program.  This program will be called MHMS Mentors. Each tutor will be in charge of about 10 students and 


613/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


activities will include: silent reading,  i-Ready work time, small group work, and individual check-ins. The RTI 
Coordinator will be responsible for managing this program and training all tutors. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Tier 2 students, students struggling in math        


 
Timeline 
Fall 22021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt math interventions as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Coordinator. See Goal #1 for budget information        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk throughs in math classrooms to gather data on schoolwide math 
instruction. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide meaningful feedback to math teachers. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


614/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Site admin        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration and SSC Members        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leads        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Staff will be provided with opportunities and encouraged  to attend professional development related to Goal 2 and its 
action steps. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


615/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


All students, students struggling with Math        
 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, all Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Mission Hill currently has existing chrome books to support high quality, 21st century instruction school-wide. Ongoing 
replacement of aging technology such as chrome books, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, teacher laptops,  
and document cameras as well as the purchase of new technology. New chrome books carts will be purchased to 
cover the replacement of devices that are given out to families. New classroom furniture will be purchased as needed 
to support high quality instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Office Manager        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information        


Strategy/Activity 10 
All Math Teachers will receive training in new i-Ready Math curricula.  In addition, all Math teachers will receive training 
in Equatio which will support Students w/ Disabilities in completing online coursework. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, Students w/ Disabilities, struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


616/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for teachers doing i-Ready training outside of contract hours        


Strategy/Activity 11 
WAVE, our after school program, will continue to focus on math and helping to improve students’ math work completion 
and math grades. WAVE staff will work 1:1 and in small groups with students to support math and all content areas as 
needed. Special focus will also be given to relationship-building and socio-emotional support for students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
WAVE (We All Value our Education) Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, WAVE Coordinator, WAVE Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 36,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Salaries for WAVE program staff        


Amount 1,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies for enrichment portion of WAVE (after school) Program        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Khan Academy, Khan Academy Spanish, and I-Ready will be used to support instruction for Spanish-speaking students 
and English-speaking students below grade level.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Struggling Math Students who are Bilingual        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers, ELD Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


617/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Description Khan Academy is a free online curricular resource.        


Strategy/Activity 13 
Tier 3 Math (Mindset Math)  will continue to support students who are below grade level in math. Student materials,  
instructional materials, and technology  will be purchased to support this intervention class.  In addition the Mindset 
Math Teacher and RTI Coordinator will have two release days (each) to plan intervention curriculum.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & Math Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Salary for 0.2 Intervention Teacher (Mindset Math)        


Amount 400        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Cost of guest teachers for Mindset Math Teacher and RTI Coordinator release days to 
plan intervention curriculum.        


Strategy/Activity 14 
Math textbooks in Spanish, at the appropriate grade level, will be purchased for our newcomer students. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Bilingual Math Students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Office Manger, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 300        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


618/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of Math workbooks in Spanish        


Strategy/Activity 15 
SB86 funds will be used to hire 2 additional para-educators to push in to math classes and provide support to students 
not at grade level (as determined by i-Ready Math Diagnostic testing) who are unable/unwilling to participate in WAVE 
or MHMS Peer Tutoring. 
 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information        


 


619/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will improve school climate and culture by focusing on students’ behavioral, social, and emotional needs. 
Specifically we will continue our implementation of school-wide Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS), 
reduce our chronic absenteeism rate, and add Trauma Informed strategies to our classroom practices.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In order to support all learners, schools need to focus on social-emotional learning just as much as academics. Many 
students cannot engage academically until their socio-emotional needs are met; and students are more likely to achieve 
academically when learning institutions consider and support the whole child.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mission Hill's chronic absenteeism 
rate of 2.92% (20/21) is a 13.2% 
improvement over previous years, 
and below the State rate. 
Chronic absenteeism rates will 
decrease by .5% in 2021/22 
        


 2.92% chronic absenteeism  2.52% chronic absenteeism 


When taking the Social Emotional 
Health Survey (SEHS), 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel like I 
am a part of this school”.        


 70%  80% 


When taking the SEHS, 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel safe 
in my school”. 
 
        


 70%  80% 


The number of students suspended 
at least once will decrease by 0.5%.        


 2.8%  2.3% 


Principal walk-through data will show 
that Learning Goals and Success 
Criteria are regularly incorporated 
(posted on the board, stated aloud, or 


 No data available  85% 


620/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


both) into instruction at least 85% of 
the time. 
 
        


Principal walk-through data will show 
visible learning strategies related to 
classroom culture are incorporated 
into instruction at least 50% of the 
time. 
 
        


 No data available  50% 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
The PBIS Team will consist of the PBIS Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator, Admin and Counseling representatives, and 
teacher representatives from across content areas. The PBIS Team will meet monthly to continue to build and refine 
our PBIS practices, to design PBIS protocols, to create student incentive programs, to monitor data, and to determine 
PD needs for staff.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Teacher hourly for PBIS Team meetings        


Amount 20,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Salary for 0.2 PBIS Coach (paid for by Santa Cruz Community Foundation Grant)        


Strategy/Activity 2 
The Social-Emotional Health Survey will be administered to all students. Counseling and Admin staff will take action 
steps for the whole school, small groups, and individuals as indicated by the survey results.        


 


621/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin Team, PE Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
The Social Emotional Health Specialist will develop Professional Development for all staff on Trauma Informed 
Practices. The Professional Development for all staff will be delivered monthly during MHMS Staff Meetings and will be 
focused on Tier 1 strategies to use within the classroom to lower affective filters of students so that learning can occur. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, students needing social-emotional support and feeling effects of trauma        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Social Emotional Specialist        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt math interventions as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, students in Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Coordinator. See Goal #1 for budget information.        


622/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategy/Activity 5 
Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk through observations to gather data on schoolwide use of  Visible Learning 
strategies and Trauma-Informed strategies. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide meaningful 
feedback to teachers.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Site Council        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all new students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Coordinator, Counseling staff        


 


623/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL Stipends. See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
PBIS Team members will participate in professional development.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Team memnbers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of PBIS professional development        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly pay for teachers who attend PBIS trainings outside of contract hours        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Teachers and staff will liberally use Mighty Maverick tickets (or raffle tickets in virtual setting) to highlight/incentivize 
positive behaviors. Students can earn incentives by accumulating tickets. 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team, all teachers        


 


624/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 200        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description for Mighty Maverick paper tickets or raffle tix        


Amount 500        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student class incentives for each teacher        


Strategy/Activity 10 
The PBIS coordinator, PBIS Team members, and other staff and volunteers will work to maintain and staff  the PBIS 
Student Store (whether virtual or in-person). 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description student “prizes” for PBIS store        


Amount 1,500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student gift cards (paid by PTSA)        


Strategy/Activity 11 
The schoolwide matrix of behavioral expectations (PBIS) will be included in the school planner and explicitly taught in 
orientation programs, within classroom settings, and through MHTV.  Additionally, behavioral expectations will be 
posted in multiple settings across the campus. The behavioral matrix will be adjusted to support positive behaviors in 
the virtual setting.        


 


625/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Cost of signage for different areas of campus        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Maverick Essentials will be incorporated into instruction across the school.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 13 
Positive postcards, reflecting the Maverick Essentials will be sent home to recognize student success.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100        


Source ASB        


626/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of having postcards printed with MHMS logo        


Strategy/Activity 14 
The Maverick Mentor program will continue. Maverick Mentors will be used to support new student orientation 
programs (before and during the school year) and to support family events (BTSN, Open House, etc.) throughout the 
school year. 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, Counseling staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 400        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of  Maverick Mentor t-shirts        


Amount 200        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of end-of-year Mav Mentor Celebration        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Student of the Grading Period selections (by teachers and staff) every six weeks will be based on the Maverick 
Essentials.  Additionally, Essential Excellence assemblies will happen three times a year and will focus on the Maverick 
Essentials.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, School Registrar, School Community Coordinator, all Teachers        


 


627/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 100        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student certificates        


Amount 250        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of or student gifts (MHMS notebooks) for being selected as Student of the Grading 
Period        


Amount 200        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of covering student donations to charitable organizations        


Amount 500        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost for Essential Excellence awards        


Strategy/Activity 16 
Administration, the RtI Coordinator, and Counseling staff will discuss students’ academic, behavioral, and social-
emotional needs during weekly MHMS Cabinet meetings.  In addition, Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions for behavioral and 
social-emotional needs will be created. 
Tier 2  interventions -  small groups 
Tier 3 interventions -  1:1 check-ins (Counseling, Admin, RtI) 
Other supports (Social Worker, outside counseling, Parent Education). 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students in Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, RTI Coordinator, School Counselors,  Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 17 


628/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


The entire staff will continue to support the use of the organized binder system to help students organize their learning, 
gain executive function skills, and enhance study skills. Scholarships will be provided to students who need them. (For 
the 2021-2022 school year, scholarships were provided to all students.).  In addition, we will provide PE uniforms to all 
students in need. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, School Office Manager, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of  organized binder materials        


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of MHMS Planners        


Amount 5200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Provide PE uniforms for all students who do not have the funds. 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 18 
An Attendance Task Force will be created to meet weekly to look at attendance data and devise strategies to improve 
school-wide attendance. The Attendance Task Force will include the AP, Community Coordinator, Attendance Tech, 
ELD Teachers, and others as needed. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
students struggling with attendance issues        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


629/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, attendance tech, Attendance Task Force, counseling staff, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Cost of student attendance incentives        


Strategy/Activity 19 
The Attendance Tech will make timely phone calls to families regarding attendance issues. A portion of the Attendance 
Tech hours will be paid out of the school budget. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, attendance tech        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of adding 0.25 FTE for attendance tech        


Strategy/Activity 20 
MHMS will continue to hold Club Fairs 1-2 x/yr. Students will be encouraged to create their own clubs or join existing 
clubs. Club membership will be open to all students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, all Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


630/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Amount 100        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of Club Fair posters & materials        


Amount 200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of materials for Counseling-based clubs (Mindfulness, Mellow Mondays, etc.)        


 


631/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in achieving high levels of literacy. Specifically, 
we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and the I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the “white 
only” group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these reading assessments. 
 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


The “All Students” group will improve 
by at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 27 points above 
standard to 30 points above standard 
or greater). 
 
        


 30 points above standard  No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The “English Learners” group will 
improve by at least 3 points on ELA 
CAASPP testing (from 71.6 points 
below standard to 68 points below 
standard or lower). 
 
        


 68.6 points below standard  No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The “Students with Disabilities” group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
ELA CAASPP testing (from 81.6 
points below standard to 79 points 
below standard or lower). 
 
        


 78.6 points below standard  No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The “Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 
standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


 65.6 points below standard  No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The “Hispanic” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


 65.3 points below standard  No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


English Learner Progress on ELPAC         At least 70% of Mission Hill's English 
Learners will grow one or more levels 
in their English Language proficiency 
as measured by the spring 2021 
ELPAC. 


 59% of ELs grew one or more levels. 


632/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The All Student group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 63.15 to 
67.15). 
        


 67.15  59.80 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Hispanic/Latinx will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 52.31 to 
57.31). 
        


 57.31  40.50 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Students w/ Disabilities group 
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points (from 
44.35 to 49.35). 
        


 49.35 
 
 


 18.40 (it should be noted that for the 
first time in 2021, both RSP and SDC 
data is included in SWD data) 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The English Language Learner group  
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 4 percentile points  (from 
24.67 to 29.67). 
        


 29.67  25.00 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The low SES group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 47.46 to 
52.46) 
        


 52.46  data not available 


Principal walk-through Integrated 
ELD data        


 Principal walk-through data will show 
that Integrated ELD strategies  
(sentence starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 
instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 data not available 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least 
weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable 
and aligned curricula through high quality 
instructional practices including: visible learning 
strategies, trauma-informed strategies, and 
integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work 
together to write essential learnings, create 
formative assessments, examine student work, 


 Collaborative Team meetings occurred at least 
weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable 
and aligned curricula through high quality 
instructional practices including: visible learning 
strategies, trauma-informed strategies, and 
integrated ELD strategies. Teams worked together 
to write essential learnings, create formative 
assessments, examine student work, and design 


 


633/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


and design next steps in learning including 
intervention and extension. 


next steps in learning including intervention and 
extension. 


All students’ reading levels will be assessed 
through the i-Ready reading diagnostic 
assessment. The data gathered from this 
diagnostic will be used to determine student 
placement in Tier 2/3 reading interventions and to 
create differentiated  instruction in Tier 1 
classrooms. 
 
 


 All students’ reading levels were assessed through 
the i-Ready reading diagnostic assessment. The 
data gathered from this diagnostic was used to 
determine student placement in Tier 2/3 reading 
interventions and to create differentiated  
instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 


 


Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire 
three after school tutors (in addition to those in the 
WAVE program) to staff a Tier 2 literacy and math 
intervention program.  This program will be called 
MHMS Study Club. Each tutor will be in charge of 
about 10 students and activities will include: silent 
reading,  i-Ready work time, small group work, and 
individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator will be 
responsible for managing this program and 
training all tutors. 
 
 


 Learning Loss Mitigation funds were used to hire 
two after school tutors (in addition to those in the 
WAVE program) to staff a Tier 2 literacy and math 
intervention program.  This program was called 
MHMS Study Club. Each tutor was in charge of 
about 10 students and activities included: silent 
reading,  i-Ready work time, small group work, and 
individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator was 
responsible for managing this program and 
training all tutors. 
 
 


 


RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the 
progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with 
admin and teachers to design/adapt reading and 
writing interventions as needed. 
 
 


 RtI Coordinator continued to monitor the progress 
of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and 
teachers to design/adapt reading and writing 
interventions as needed. 


 


Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk 
through observations to gather data on schoolwide 
use of Integrated ELD strategies and Visible 
Learning strategies. This data will be used to 
inform instruction and provide meaningful 
feedback to teachers. 
 
 


 Admin conduct classroom walk through 
observations (as able during CIVID hybrid 
instruction) to gather data on school-wide use of 
Integrated ELD strategies and Visible Learning 
strategies. The data was used to inform instruction 
and provide meaningful feedback to teachers. 


 


The MHMS School Site Council will continue to 
meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation 
of the site plan and budget, to examine schoolwide 
data, to provide input, and to make changes as 
necessary. 
 
 


 The MHMS School Site Council met 4x/yr to 
monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine school-wide data, to provide 
input, and to make changes as necessary. 


 


The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of 
teacher representatives from across all content 
areas and admin and counseling representatives.  
The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to 
plan and guide professional development activities 
for staff in accordance with school goals, to 
examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  


 The MHMS SCIL team was composed of teacher 
representatives from across all content areas and 
admin and counseling representatives.  The SCIL 
team met monthly to plan and guide professional 
development activities for staff in accordance with 
school goals, to examine school-wide data, to 
support each other's  growth as Teacher Leaders, 
and to make leadership decisions for the site. 


 


634/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


growth as Teacher Leaders, and to make 
leadership decisions for the site. 
 
 
Staff will be provided with opportunities and 
encouraged  to attend professional development 
related to Goal 1 and its action steps. 
 
 


 Due to COVID staff did not attend outside 
professional development. 


 


Technology will be purchased to support high 
quality, 21st century instruction schoolwide. This 
may include replacement of aging technology such 
as chromebooks, headphones, printers, projectors, 
speakers, teacher laptops,  and document 
cameras as well as the purchase of new 
technology.  New chromebooks carts will be 
purchased to cover the replacement of devices 
that were given out to families. 


 Technology was purchased to support high quality, 
21st century instruction school-wide. This included 
replacement of aging technology such as chrome-
books, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, 
teacher laptops,  and document cameras as well 
as the purchase of new technology.  New chrome-
books carts were purchased to cover the 
replacement of devices that were given out to 
families. 


 


At the start of the year, all teachers will receive a 
“Teacher Binder” which identifies all special 
population students (EL, RFEP, Resource, 504, in 
transition, etc.), houses IEPs and 504 Plans, and 
all handouts from school-wide Professional 
Development. 
 
 


 At the start of the year, all teachers received a 
“Teacher Binder” which identified all special 
population students (EL, RFEP, Resource, 504, in 
transition, etc.), houses IEPs and 504 Plans, and 
all handouts from school-wide Professional 
Development. 


 


AVID will continue to support identified  students 
with literacy, organization, and other academic 
skills. Student materials and instructional materials 
will be purchased to support this. AVID Teachers 
and other staff will attend AVID Trainings as 
needed. The AVID Site Team will continue to meet 
monthly to create AVID Site Plan, review AVID 
data, monitor implementation of the AVID program, 
and to meet all compliance requirements for AVID 
certification.  In addition, two chrome book carts 
will be purchased specifically for the AVID 
classrooms to support students' development in 
21st century skills. 


 AVID continued to support identified  students with 
literacy, organization, and other academic skills. 
Student materials and instructional materials were 
purchased to support this. AVID Teachers and 
other staff attended AVID Trainings as needed. 
The AVID Site Team continued to meet monthly to 
create AVID Site Plan, review AVID data, monitor 
implementation of the AVID program, and to meet 
all compliance requirements for AVID certification.  
In addition, two chrome book carts were 
purchased specifically for the AVID classrooms to 
support students' development in 21st century 
skills. 


 


Academic Literacy classes will support EL 
students’ growth in reading, writing, speaking, and 
listening in English. Emphasis will be placed on 
increasing students' knowledge and use of general 
academic language as well as providing support 
with content and skills emphasized in general 
education classes.  Student materials and 
instructional materials will be purchased to support 
this. Three para-educators will be hired to support 
students in Academic Literacy classes and to 
provide push-in support for newcomers in their 
general education classes.  Additionally, one 
Paraeducator will be hired to provide push-in 
support to ELs in their general education classes.  


 Academic Literacy classes supported EL students’ 
growth in reading, writing, speaking, and listening 
in English. Emphasis will be placed on increasing 
students' knowledge and use of general academic 
language as well as providing support with content 
and skills emphasized in general education 
classes.  Student materials and instructional 
materials were purchased to support this. Three 
para-educators were hired to support students in 
Academic Literacy classes and to provide push-in 
support for newcomers in their general education 
classes.   Additionally, a chrome book cart was 
purchased for ELD students to use in class to 
support their development of 21st century skills.  In 


 


635/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Additionally, a chromebook cart will be purchased 
for ELD students to use in class to support their 
development of 21st century skills.  In addition, 
class novels will be purchased to support students 
literacy skills. 
 
 


addition, class novels were purchased to support 
students literacy skills. 


ELAC will be used as an outreach vehicle to 
Spanish-speaking families. Funds will be used to 
pay for babysitting, translation, and food. 
 
 


 ELAC was used as an outreach vehicle to 
Spanish-speaking families. Funds were not used 
to pay for babysitting and food due to COVID. 


 


Community Coordinator will continue to support 
communication between home and school and to 
especially support our Spanish-speaking students 
and families. In addition, the Community 
Coordinator will continue to work with the AP to 
plan and implement monthly ELAC meetings. A 
portion of the Communicator Coordinator hours will 
be paid out of the school budget. 
 
 


 Community Coordinator continued to support 
communication between home and school and to 
especially support our Spanish-speaking students 
and families. In addition, the Community 
Coordinator continued to work with the AP to plan 
and implement monthly ELAC meetings. A portion 
of the Communicator Coordinator hours were paid 
out of the school budget. 


 


Read 180, our Tier 3 Reading Intervention, will 
support students needing to make significant 
reading growth. Instructional materials will be 
purchased to support this. In addition, System 44, 
the phonics program aligned with Read 180 will be 
used in Tier 3 classrooms, including SPED, to 
support readers who are far below grade level. 


 Read 180, our Tier 3 Reading Intervention, 
supported students needing to make significant 
reading growth. Instructional materials were 
purchased to support this. In addition, System 44, 
the phonics program aligned with Read 180 was 
used in Tier 3 classrooms, including SPED, to 
support readers who are far below grade level. 


 


We will continue to replenish and update our 
library with high interest, relevant novels and non-
fiction reading selections.  Additionally, many 
books from last year were not been returned (due 
to the switch to distance learning) so our library 
collection needs more support than is our norm. 
 
 


 We continued to replenish and update our library 
with high interest, relevant novels and non-fiction 
reading selections.  Additionally, many books from 
last year were not returned (due to the switch to 
distance learning) so our library collection needed 
more support than is our norm. 
 
 


 


LRT meetings will continue to happen twice yearly 
to monitor the progress of EL and RFEP students.  
New Teachers will receive training from ELD 
Teachers on how to use ELPP and their role in 
LRTs.  In addition, The ELD Task Force will 
continue to meet monthly to review data regarding 
English Language (EL) Learners, examine our 
practices/protocols for serving ELs and their 
families, and to make recommendations for 
changes targeted to reduce the instructional gap.  
Members of the ELD Task Force will include the 
Academic Literacy teachers, the School 
Community Coordinator, the WAVE Coordinator, 
the RTI Coordinator,  representatives from admin 
and counseling, and teacher reps from across the 
campus. 


 LRT meetings continued to happen twice yearly to 
monitor the progress of EL and RFEP students.  
New Teachers  received training from ELD 
Teachers on how to use ELPP and their role in 
LRTs.  In addition, The ELD Task Force  continued 
to meet monthly to review data regarding English 
Language (EL) Learners, examine our 
practices/protocols for serving ELs and their 
families, and to make recommendations for 
changes targeted to reduce the instructional gap.  
Members of the ELD Task Force included the 
Academic Literacy teachers, the School 
Community Coordinator, the WAVE Coordinator, 
the RTI Coordinator,  representatives from admin 
and counseling, and teacher reps from across the 
campus. 


 


636/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 
 
 


 
 


Admin, ELA staff, Teacher Librarian, and district 
staff  will work together to maintain and continue 
implementation of the reading comprehension 
program - Reading Counts -  to be used with all 
students.    In addition, the SDC classes will 
continue to work with students that are far below 
grade level in both reading and math. To support 
students’ reading needs, the SDC teachers will 
use leveled readings w/ comprehension questions 
from Reading A-Z. 


 Admin, ELA staff, Teacher Librarian, and district 
staff  worked together to maintain and continue 
implementation of the reading comprehension 
program - Reading Counts -  to be used with all 
students.    In addition, the SDC classes  
continued to work with students that were far 
below grade level in both reading and math. To 
support students’ reading needs, the SDC 
teachers used leveled readings w/ comprehension 
questions from Reading A-Z. 


 


As a school site, we will continue to offer the 
option of a Zero Period PE to provide ELD, RSP, 
AVID, and other student groups with the ability to 
have a preferred elective class. 


 As a school site, we continued to offer the option 
of a Zero Period PE to provide ELD, RSP, AVID, 
and other student groups with the ability to have a 
preferred elective class. 


 


To support all teachers in having appropriate, 
grade level, and differentiated texts for all 
students, a NewsELA license will be purchased. 
This paid version of NewsELA will integrate 
directly with Google Classroom. In addition, 
NewsELA training will be made available to all 
staff.  In addition to support students' academic 
writing, composition notebooks will be purchased 
for all 6th graders, ELD classes, and History 
classes. 
 
 


 To support all teachers in having appropriate, 
grade level, and differentiated texts for all 
students, a NewsELA license was purchased. This 
paid version of NewsELA integrated directly with 
Google Classroom. In addition, NewsELA training 
was made available to all staff. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Overall, MHMS implemented all of the strategies/activities proposed in the 2020/21 plan to achieve the articulated goal.   
One notable area of difference was professional development.  Due to COVID, teachers did not attend as many outside 
professional developments, but rather participated in SCCS lead professional development to support their work with 
distance learning.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Overall, the strategies/activities proposed in the 2020/21 plan were effective to achieve the articulated goal.  Although 
iReady data shows a decrease across all demographic categories, the losses were minimal in consideration of school 
closures, distance learning, and hybrid instruction.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Despite distance learning and hybrid instruction, actual expenditures for materials were as proposed.  MHMS staff, 
teachers, and administration worked hard to provide students a consistent educational experience which included the 
same materials and supplies as an in-person experience.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
For 2021/22, MHMS will maintain it's efforts in Goal #1, keeping most of the same strategies/activities proposed in 
2020/21.  Items previously supported by Learning Loss Mitigation Funds will be funded by SB86 in 2021/22.  
Additionally, some items previously funded by Title 1 will be covered by LCFF in 2021/22.          


637/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 


638/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in high levels of achievement in mathematics. 
Specifically, we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the 
“white only” group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these math assessments. 
 
          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


The "All Students" group will improve 
by at least 3 points on MATH 
CAASPP testing (from 7.1 point 
above standard to 10.1 points above 
standard or greater).        


 10.1 points above standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


 No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The "English Learner" group will 
improve by at least 3 points on MATH  
CAASPP testing (from 96 points 
below standard to 93 points below 
standard or lower).        


 93 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


 No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The "Students with Disabilities" group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
MATH CAASPP testing (from 129.2 
points below standard to 126.2 points 
below standard).        


 126.2 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


 No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The "Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 
standard to 65.6 points below 
standard).        


 65.6 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


 No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


The "Hispanic" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65.3 points below 
standard).        


 65.3 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


 No CAASPP data for 20/21 - baseline 
and expected outcomes will carry 
over to 21/22. 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The All Student group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 54.39 to 
58.39). 
 
        


 58.39  46.70 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Hispanic/Latinx group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 percentile points (from 
44.32 to 49.32). 
        


 49.32  40.50 


639/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Students w/ Disabilities group 
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 percentile points (from 
36.19 to 41.19). 
        


 41.19  18.40 (it should be noted that for the 
first time in 2021, both RSP and SDC 
data is included in SWD data) 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The English Learner group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 points (from 18.38 to 
23.38). 
        


 23.38  25.00 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The low SES group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 5 
percentile points. 
        


 data not available  data not available 


Principal walk-through data focused 
on Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria), 
Trauma-Informed Practices, and 
Integrated ELD strategies (sentences 
starters, sentence frames, word 
banks, direct vocabulary instruction)        


 Principal walk-through data will show 
that Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria) are 
regularly incorporated into instruction 
(posted on the board, stated aloud, or 
both) in Math classes at least 85% of 
the time, that Trauma-Informed 
Practices are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time, 
and that Integrated ELD strategies 
(sentences starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 
instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 data not available 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least 
weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable 
and aligned curricula through high quality 
instructional practices including: visible learning 
strategies, trauma-informed strategies, and 
integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work 
together to write essential learnings, create 
formative assessments, examine student work, 
and design next steps in learning including 
intervention and extension. 
 
 


 Collaborative Team meetings occurred weekly to 
focus on the implementation of equitable and 
aligned curricula through high quality instructional 
practices including: visible learning strategies, 
trauma-informed strategies, and integrated ELD 
strategies. Teams worked together to write 
essential learnings, create formative assessments, 
examine student work, and design next steps in 
learning including intervention and extension. 


 


All students’ math levels will be assessed through 
the i-Ready mathematics diagnostic assessment. 
The data gathered from this diagnostic will be used 


 All students’ math levels were assessed through 
the i-Ready mathematics diagnostic assessment. 
The data gathered from this diagnostic was used 


 


640/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 math 
interventions and to create differentiated  
instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 
 
 


to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 math 
interventions and to create differentiated  
instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 


Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire 
4 after school tutors (in addition to those in the 
WAVE program) to staff a Tier 2 literacy and math 
intervention program.  This program will be called 
MHMS Study Club. Each tutor will be in charge of 
about 10 students and activities will include: silent 
reading, i-Ready work time, small group work, and 
individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator will be 
responsible for managing this program and 
training all tutors. Funds for 20hrs/week of tutoring 
will come from  District allocation of Learning Loss 
Mitigation (LLM) Funds. 
 
 


 Learning Loss Mitigation funds were used to hire 2 
after school tutors (in addition to those in the 
WAVE program) to staff a Tier 2 literacy and math 
intervention program.  This program was called 
MHMS Study Club. Each tutor was in charge of 
about 10 students and activities will include: silent 
reading, i-Ready work time, small group work, and 
individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator was 
responsible for managing this program and 
training all tutors. Funds for 20hrs/week of tutoring 
came from  District allocation of Learning Loss 
Mitigation (LLM) Funds. 
 
 
 


 


RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the 
progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with 
admin and teachers to design/adapt math 
interventions as needed. 


 RtI Coordinator continued to monitor the progress 
of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and 
teachers to design/adapt math interventions as 
needed. 


 


Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk 
throughs in math classrooms to gather data on 
school-wide math instruction. This data will be 
used to inform instruction and provide meaningful 
feedback to math teachers. 
 
 


 Admin conducted classroom walk throughs (as 
able due to COVID) in math classrooms to gather 
data on school-wide math instruction. This data 
was used to inform instruction and provide 
meaningful feedback to math teachers. 


 


The MHMS School Site Council will continue to 
meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation 
of the site plan and budget, to examine school-
wide data, to provide input, and to make changes 
as necessary. 
 
 


 The MHMS School Site Council met 4x/yr to 
monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine school-wide data, to provide 
input, and to make changes as necessary. 


 


The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of 
teacher representatives from across all content 
areas and admin and counseling representatives.  
The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to 
plan and guide professional development activities 
for staff in accordance with school goals, to 
examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  
growth as Teacher Leaders, and to make 
leadership decisions for the site. 
 
 


 The MHMS SCIL team was composed of teacher 
representatives from across all content areas and 
admin and counseling representatives.  The SCIL 
team continued to meet monthly to plan and guide 
professional development activities for staff in 
accordance with school goals, to examine school-
wide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership 
decisions for the site. 


 


Staff will be provided with opportunities and 
encouraged  to attend professional development 
related to Goal 2 and its action steps. 
 


 Due to COVID, staff did not attend outside 
professional development. 
 
 


 


641/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


 


Technology will be purchased to support high 
quality, 21st century instruction school-wide. This 
may include replacement of aging technology such 
as chrome books, headphones, printers, 
projectors, speakers, teacher laptops,  and 
document cameras as well as the purchase of new 
technology. 
 
 


 Technology was purchased to support high quality, 
21st century instruction school-wide. This included 
replacement of aging technology such as chrome 
books, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, 
teacher laptops,  and document cameras as well 
as the purchase of new technology. 


 


All Math Teachers will receive training in new i-
Ready Math curricula.  In addition, all Math 
teachers will receive training in Equatio which will 
support Students w/ Disabilities in completing 
online coursework. 
 
 


 All Math Teachers received training in new i-
Ready Math curricula.  In addition, all Math 
teachers received training in Equatio which 
supported Students w/ Disabilities in completing 
online coursework. 


 


WAVE, our after school program, will continue to 
focus on math and helping to improve students’ 
math work completion and math grades. During 
online learning, WAVE staff will work 1:1 and in 
small groups with students to support math and all 
content areas as needed. Special focus will also 
be given to relationship-building and socio-
emotional supports for students. 


 WAVE, our after school program, continued to 
focus on math and helping to improve students’ 
math work completion and math grades. During 
online learning, WAVE staff worked 1:1 and in 
small groups with students to support math and all 
content areas as needed. Special focus was given 
to relationship-building and socio-emotional 
supports for students. 


 


Khan Academy, Khan Academy Spanish, and I-
Ready will be used to support instruction for 
Spanish-speaking students and English-speaking 
students below grade level. 


 Khan Academy, Khan Academy Spanish, and I-
Ready were used to support instruction for 
Spanish-speaking students and English-speaking 
students below grade level. 


 


Tier 3 Math (Mindset Math)  will continue to 
support students who are below grade level in 
math. Student materials,  instructional materials, 
and technology  will be purchased to support this 
intervention class.  In addition the Mindset Math 
Teacher and RTI Coordinator will have two release 
days (each) to plan intervention curriculum. 


 Tier 3 Math (Mindset Math)  continued to support 
students who were below grade level in math. 
Student materials,  instructional materials, and 
technology  were purchased to support this 
intervention class.  In addition the Mindset Math 
Teacher and RTI Coordinator had two release 
days (each) to plan intervention curriculum. 


 


Math textbooks in Spanish, at the appropriate 
grade level, will be purchased for our newcomer 
students. 
 
 


 Math textbooks in Spanish, at the appropriate 
grade level, were purchased for our newcomer 
students. 


 


Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire 
2 additional para-educators to push in to math 
classes and provide support to students not at 
grade level (as determined by i-Ready Math 
Diagnostic testing) who are unable/unwilling to 
participate in WAVE or MHMS Study Club. 
 
 
 
 
 


 Learning Loss Mitigation funds were used to hire 2 
additional para-educators to push in to math 
classes and provide support to students not at 
grade level (as determined by i-Ready Math 
Diagnostic testing) who are unable/unwilling to 
participate in WAVE or MHMS Study Club. 


 


642/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Math materials to be created and sent home for 
distance learning (whiteboards, markers, etc.). 


 Math materials were created and sent home for 
distance learning (whiteboards, markers, etc.). 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Overall, MHMS implemented all of the strategies/activities proposed in the 2020/21 plan to achieve the articulated goal.   
One notable area of difference was professional development.  Due to COVID, teachers did not attend as many outside 
professional developments, but rather participated in SCCS lead professional development to support their work with 
distance learning.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Overall, the strategies/activities proposed in the 2020/21 plan were effective to achieve the articulated goal.  Although 
iReady data shows a decrease across all demographic categories, the losses were minimal in consideration of school 
closures, distance learning, and hybrid instruction.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Despite distance learning and hybrid instruction, actual expenditures for materials were as proposed.  MHMS staff, 
teachers, and administration worked hard to provide students a consistent educational experience which included the 
same materials and supplies as an in-person experience.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
For 2021/22, MHMS will maintain it's efforts in Goal #2, keeping most of the same strategies/activities proposed in 
2020/21.  Items previously supported by Learning Loss Mitigation Funds will be funded by SB86 in 2021/22.  
Additionally, some items previously funded by Title 1 will be covered by LCFF in 2021/22.          


 


643/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
MHMS will improve school climate and culture by focusing on students’ behavioral, social, and emotional needs. 
Specifically we will continue our implementation of schoolwide Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS),  
reduce our chronic absenteeism rate, and add Trauma Informed strategies to our classroom practices.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


The chronic absenteeism rate of 
16.1% (Fall 2019) will drop to at least 
10.1%, which is the state’s chronic 
absenteeism rate.        


 10.1% chronic absenteeism  2.92% chronic absenteeism 


When taking the Social Emotional 
Health Survey (SEHS), 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel like I 
am a part of this school” (71% in Fall 
2018, 70% in Fall 2019) 
 
        


 80%  70% 


When taking the SEHS, 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel safe 
in my school” (74.5% in Fall 2018, 
72% in Fall 2019). 
 
        


 80%  70% 


In 2019, the number of students 
suspended at least once will 
decrease by 0.5%. (2.8% students 
suspended at least once in 2018).        


 2.3%  2.8% 


Principal walk-through data will show 
that Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria) are 
regularly incorporated (posted on the 
board, stated aloud, or both) into 
instruction at least 85% of the time. 
 
        


 85% in 2020-21  data not available 


Principal walk-through data will show 
that Trauma-Informed Practices are 
incorporated into instruction at least 
50% of the time. 
 
        


 50%  data not available 


 


644/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


The PBIS Team will consist of the PBIS 
Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator, Admin and 
Counseling representatives, and teacher 
representatives from across content areas. The 
PBIS Team will meet monthly to continue to build 
and refine our PBIS practices, to design PBIS 
protocols, to create student incentive programs, to 
monitor data, and to determine PD needs for staff. 


 The PBIS Team consisted of the PBIS 
Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator, Admin and 
Counseling representatives, and teacher 
representatives from across content areas. The 
PBIS Team met monthly to continue to build and 
refine our PBIS practices, to design PBIS 
protocols, to create student incentive programs, to 
monitor data, and to determine PD needs for staff. 


 


The Social-Emotional Health Survey will be 
administered to all students. Counseling and 
Admin staff will take action steps for the whole 
school, small groups, and individuals as indicated 
by the survey results. 


 The Social-Emotional Health Survey was 
administered to all students. Counseling and 
Admin staff took action steps for the whole school, 
small groups, and individuals as indicated by the 
survey results. 


 


Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to pay 
extra hourly for our School Psychologist to develop 
Professional Development for all staff on Trauma 
Informed Practices. The Professional Development 
for all staff will be delivered monthly during MHMS 
Staff Meetings and will be focused on Tier 1 
strategies to use within the classroom to lower 
affective filters of students so that learning can 
occur. 
 
 


 Learning Loss Mitigation funds were used to pay 
extra hourly for our School Psychologist to develop 
Professional Development for all staff on Trauma 
Informed Practices. The Professional 
Development for all staff was delivered monthly 
during MHMS Staff Meetings and focused on Tier 
1 strategies to use within the classroom to lower 
affective filters of students so that learning can 
occur. 


 


RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the 
progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with 
admin and teachers to design/adapt math 
interventions as needed. 


 RtI Coordinator continued to monitor the progress 
of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and 
teachers to design/adapt math interventions as 
needed. 


 


Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk 
through observations to gather data on schoolwide 
use of  Visible Learning strategies and Trauma-
Informed strategies. This data will be used to 
inform instruction and provide meaningful 
feedback to teachers. 


 Admin conducted classroom walk through 
observations to gather data on school-wide use of  
Visible Learning strategies and Trauma-Informed 
strategies. This data was used to inform instruction 
and provide meaningful feedback to teachers. 


 


The MHMS School Site Council will continue to 
meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation 
of the site plan and budget, to examine school-
wide data, to provide input, and to make changes 
as necessary. 
 
 


 The MHMS School Site Council met 4x/yr to 
monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine school-wide data, to provide 
input, and to make changes as necessary. 


 


The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of 
teacher representatives from across all content 
areas and admin and counseling representatives.  
The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to 
plan and guide professional development activities 
for staff in accordance with school goals, to 
examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  
growth as Teacher Leaders, and to make 
leadership decisions for the site. 


 The MHMS SCIL team was composed of teacher 
representatives from across all content areas and 
admin and counseling representatives.  The SCIL 
team met monthly to plan and guide professional 
development activities for staff in accordance with 
school goals, to examine school-wide data, to 
support each other's  growth as Teacher Leaders, 
and to make leadership decisions for the site. 


 


645/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


PBIS Team members will attend PBIS Cohort 
training sessions with Santa Clara County Office of 
Education. 


 PBIS Team members attended PBIS Cohort 
training sessions with Santa Clara County Office of 
Education. 


 


Teachers and staff will liberally use Mighty 
Maverick tickets (or raffle tickets in virtual setting) 
to highlight/incentivize positive behaviors. 
Students can earn incentives by accumulating 
tickets. 
 
 
 


 Teachers and staff used Mighty Maverick tickets 
(or raffle tickets in virtual setting) to 
highlight/incentivize positive behaviors. 


 


The PBIS coordinator, PBIS Team members, and 
other staff and volunteers will work to maintain and 
staff  the PBIS Student Store (whether virtual or in-
person). 
 
 


 The PBIS coordinator, PBIS Team members, and 
other staff and volunteers maintained and staffed 
the PBIS Student Store (virtually and in-person). 


 


The schoolwide matrix of behavioral expectations 
(PBIS) will be included in the school planner and 
explicitly taught in orientation programs, within 
classroom settings, and through MHTV.  
Additionally, behavioral expectations will be posted 
in multiple settings across the campus. The 
behavioral matrix will be adjusted to support 
positive behaviors in the virtual setting. 


 The school-wide matrix of behavioral expectations 
(PBIS) was included in the school planner and 
explicitly taught in orientation programs, within 
classroom settings, and through MHTV.  Some 
new signage was purchased to support new 
behavior expectation related to COVID safety. 


 


Maverick Essentials will be incorporated into 
instruction across the school. 


 Maverick Essentials were incorporated into 
instruction across the school. 


 


Positive postcards, reflecting the Maverick 
Essentials will be sent home to recognize student 
success. 


 Positive postcards, reflecting the Maverick 
Essentials were sent home to recognize student 
success. 


 


The Maverick Mentor program will continue. 
Maverick Mentors will be used to support new 
student orientation programs (before and during 
the school year) and to support family events 
(BTSN, Open House, etc.) throughout the school 
year. 
 
 
 
 


 The Maverick Mentor program was suspended 
during COVID, but Maverick Mentors were used to 
support the return of students for hybrid 
instruction. T-shirts were purchased for this 
activity. 


 


Student of the Grading Period selections (by 
teachers and staff) every six weeks will be based 
on the Maverick Essentials.  Additionally, Essential 
Excellence assemblies will happen three times a 
year and will focus on the Maverick Essentials. 


 Student of the Grading Period selections (by 
teachers and staff) every six weeks were based on 
the Maverick Essentials. 


 


Administration, the RtI Coordinator, and 
Counseling staff will discuss students’ academic, 
behavioral, and social-emotional needs during 
weekly MHMS Cabinet meetings.  In addition, Tier 
2 and Tier 3 interventions for behavioral and 
social-emotional needs will be created. 
Tier 2  interventions -  small groups 


 Administration, the RtI Coordinator, and 
Counseling staff discussed students’ academic, 
behavioral, and social-emotional needs during 
weekly MHMS Cabinet meetings.  In addition, Tier 
2 and Tier 3 interventions for behavioral and 
social-emotional needs were created. 
Tier 2  interventions -  small groups 


 


646/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Tier 3 interventions -  1:1 check-ins (Counseling, 
Admin, RtI) 
Other supports (Social Worker, outside counseling, 
Parent Education). 
 


Tier 3 interventions -  1:1 check-ins (Counseling, 
Admin, RtI) 
Other supports (Social Worker, outside 
counseling, Parent Education). 
 


The entire staff will continue to support the use of 
the organized binder system to help students 
organize their learning, gain executive function 
skills, and enhance study skills. Scholarships will 
be provided to students who need them. (For the 
2020-2021 school year, scholarships were 
provided to all students.).  In addition, Learning 
Loss funds will be used to purchase supplies for 
elective classes.  Finally, we will continue to 
provide scholarships for SED students who wish to 
purchase PE uniforms but do not have the funds. 
 
 


 The entire staff continued to support the use of the 
organized binder system to help students organize 
their learning, gain executive function skills, and 
enhance study skills. Scholarships were provided 
to students who need them. (For the 2020-2021 
school year, scholarships were provided to all 
students.).  In addition, Learning Loss funds were 
used to purchase supplies for elective classes.  
Finally, we continued to provide scholarships for 
SED students who wish to purchase PE uniforms 
but do not have the funds. 


 


An Attendance Task Force will be created to meet 
weekly to look at attendance data and devise 
strategies to improve school-wide attendance. The 
Attendance Task Force will include the AP, 
Community Coordinator, Attendance Tech, ELD 
Teachers, and others as needed. 
 
 


 An Attendance Task Force was created to meet 
weekly to look at attendance data and devise 
strategies to improve school-wide attendance. The 
Attendance Task Force included the AP, 
Community Coordinator, Attendance Tech, ELD 
Teachers, and others as needed. 


 


The Attendance Tech will make timely phone calls 
to families regarding attendance issues. A portion 
of the Attendance Tech hours will be paid out of 
the school budget. 
 
 


 The Attendance Tech made timely phone calls to 
families regarding attendance issues. A portion of 
the Attendance Tech hours were paid out of the 
school budget. 


 


MHMS will continue to hold Club Fairs 1-2 x/yr. 
Students will be encouraged to create their own 
clubs or join existing clubs. Club membership will 
be open to all students. 


 MHMS continued to hold Club Fairs 1x/yr. 
Students were encouraged to create their own 
clubs or join existing clubs. Club membership was 
open to all students. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Despite distance leaning and hybrid instruction, MHMS was able to implement all of the strategies.activities intended to 
achieve the articulated goal.  Several strategies/activities were done virtually, which resulted in lower than projected 
expenses.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Overall, the strategies/activities proposed in Goal #3 were effective.  In particular, chronic absenteeism rates decreased 
significantly, and despite distance learning, 70% of students indicated they felt connected to school.          


 


647/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 76 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Most proposed expenditures met actual expenditures, with the exception of some signage and poster costs that were not 
needed due to distance learning.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
For 2021/22, MHMS will maintain it's efforts in Goal #3, keeping most of the same strategies/activities proposed in 
2020/21.  Items previously supported by Learning Loss Mitigation Funds will be funded by SB86 in 2021/22.  
Additionally, some items previously funded by Title 1 will be covered by LCFF in 2021/22.          


 


648/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 77 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  145,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  541,291.45 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


649/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 78 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


         0.00 


ASB         3,350.00 


District Funded         308,704.00 


Donations         1,700.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         100,225.45 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         7,300.00 


Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)         1,000.00 


SB86         47,612.00 


Title I         71,400.00 
 


650/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 79 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


0000: Unrestricted         5,050.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         293,930.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         119,196.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         98,915.45 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 5,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 9,000.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         5,000.00 


None Specified         5,200.00 
 


651/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 80 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


           0.00 


0000: Unrestricted         ASB  3,350.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  197,404.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  36,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  72,800.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 District Funded  2,500.00 


0000: Unrestricted         Donations  1,700.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  53,710.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  8,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  18,815.45 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  500.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  9,000.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         LCFF - Supplemental  5,000.00 


None Specified         LCFF - Supplemental  5,200.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  7,300.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)  1,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  2,416.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  45,196.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  40,400.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  30,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  1,000.00 


 


652/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 81 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        


0 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Derek Kendall         X Principal        


Amrik Nijor         X Other School Staff        


Melissa Schilling         X Classroom Teacher        


Jane Northrup         X Parent or Community Member        


Whitney Cohen         X Parent or Community Member        


Cristine Chopra         X Parent or Community Member        


Kevin Grossman         X Parent or Community Member        


Kristina Quilici         X Parent or Community Member        


Nadine Said         X Classroom Teacher        


Casey Denning         X Classroom Teacher        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


653/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 82 of 82 Mission Hill Middle School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 X English Learner Advisory Committee        
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 5th, 2020. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Derek Kendall on October 5th, 2020 


  SSC Chairperson,  on October 5th, 2020 


 


654/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 62 Harbor High School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Harbor High School         


Address 300 La Fonda Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1431 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234432340         


Principal Tracey Runeare         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 29, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 30, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


655/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 62 Harbor High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Mission: 
Educating all students to become critical thinkers and globally-minded community members. 
 
Vision: 
Where adults and students are respectful and own their learning. Harbor High graduates are college and career ready 
and equipped with the skills needed to become the best version of themselves. 
 
Staff Values: 
We believe in our school. 
We know all students can learn. 
We respect and believe in students. 
We use data and research to design and improve curriculum. 
We have clear and consistent student expectations. 
We are kind, caring, and accessible. 
We have high expectations and clearly-communicate success criteria. 
We collaborate for students. 
We are flexible and adaptable. 
We make student-centered decisions. 
We grow professionally to meet student needs. 
We listen and engage with each other professionally, respectfully and openly. 
We are responsive and supportive. 
We value and communicate with our stakeholders. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Harbor is located on the central coast of California in the City and County of Santa Cruz. The Santa Cruz County Office 
of Education serves ten county school districts including Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS). Harbor, home of the Pirates, 
is one of three comprehensive high schools, 2 middle schools, and 5 elementary schools in SCCS. Harbor High has a 
current enrollment of 1126 students for grades 9-12, and the school offers students a multitude of learning and 
extracurricular opportunities to facilitate the growth and development of each student who walks onto our campus. 
Harbor is an International Baccalaureate school and we provide a comprehensive education that includes a full athletic 
program, AVID program, Newcomer English Language Development program, SAIL special education program, and 
Career Technical Education (CTE) program on the campus. 
 
Harbor High school is a welcoming place where with a diverse student population and numerous opportunities for 
students to learn and grow. 37% of our students qualify for Free or Reduced Lunch benefits and many of our students 
come from under-resourced families. In the 2021-22 school year, we have 125 (12%) English Learners and 26 of our 
students in 2021-22 have already Re-designated Fully English Proficient. In 2021-13, in response to an increasing 
newcomer ELD population (20 new-to-the-US students enrolling at Harbor since August 2021), Harbor developed a 
program for non-English-speaking students. Over the past few years, Harbor has engaged in professional development 
activities focused on collaboration and the consistency of instruction and services that students receive. This year, 
Harbor introduced an 8 period day schedule that includes 3 times-weekly collaboration in departments and Professional 
Learning Communities for all teachers. We hold Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership (SCIL) meetings monthly, and 
professional development trainings in our monthly Staff Meetings. As a way to build student independence, we added 
the Organized Binder system for freshmen and sophomores to build a foundational approach to organization and we 
have incorporated Google classroom into that practice. In 2013, Harbor High was named the School of the Year by the 
Santa Cruz Educational Foundation. In 2014-15, Harbor was selected as a Gold Ribbon School Award School and a 
Title 1 Academic Achievement Award School for our work increasing our academic culture and student ownership of 
learning through our adoption of the Organized Binder System and our AVID program. In 2016, Harbor High was chosen 
by Educational Results Partnership (ERP) and the Campaign for Business and Education Excellence (CBEE) as a 
California Honor Roll recipient for being a school that demonstrates high levels of student academic achievement, 
improvement in achievement over time, and reduction in achievement gaps. In 2021, Harbor was recognized by the 
State of California as a Bronze Level Green Ribbon School for our school sustainability efforts. 
         


 


656/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 62 Harbor High School


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Harbor’s Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is an annual plan of actions to raise the academic performance of 
all students with an emphasis on our areas of growth as indicated in our WASC recommendations and student 
performance data. Harbor’s School Site Council (SSC) operates as oversight for the SPSA and monitors progress 
towards the action plan annually to revise or refine the following academic year’s SPSA. The SSC format is transparent 
and aligned with the SCCS LCAP goals to support our English Learners, Foster Youth, and Low Income students.         


 


657/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.24% 0.21% % 2 2  


African American     0.59% 0.96% 1.3% 5 9 13 


Asian     1.54% 2.14% 3.0% 13 20 30 


Filipino     0.71% 0.43% 1.3% 6 4 13 


Hispanic/Latino     56.53% 54.33% 53.8% 476 508 538 


Pacific Islander     % 0.11% 0.2%  1 2 


White     35.63% 36.36% 37.5% 300 340 375 


Multiple/No Response     4.04% 5.45% 3.0% 34 51 30 


 Total Enrollment 842 935 1,001 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 9        217 285 293 


Grade 10        254 224 272 


Grade 11        192 236 214 


Grade 12        179 190 222 


Total Enrollment        842 935 1,001 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor's largest demographic group is Hispanic/Latino with White being the second largest demographic group.        


2. Enrollment has increased over the past 3 years (from 926 in 2017-18 to 935 in 2019-20).        


 


658/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        109 124 120 12.9% 13.3% 12.0% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        316 338 368 37.5% 36.1% 36.8% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        4 4 6 3.1% 3.7% 4.8% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of students who have been identified as English Learners has remained relatively steady throughout 


the last three years.        
 


659/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 199 188 211 171 181 210 171 181 90.2 85.9 96.3 
All 
Grades 


234 199 188 211 171 181 210 171 181 90.2 85.9 96.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2607.
3 


2602.
6 


2627.
9 


32.86 27.49 35.36 27.62 32.75 33.70 19.52 22.81 19.34 20.00 16.96 11.60 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 32.86 27.49 35.36 27.62 32.75 33.70 19.52 22.81 19.34 20.00 16.96 11.60 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 39.52 28.65 41.44 40.48 56.73 40.88 20.00 14.62 17.68 


All Grades 39.52 28.65 41.44 40.48 56.73 40.88 20.00 14.62 17.68 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 33.81 36.26 39.23 40.95 40.35 48.07 25.24 23.39 12.71 


All Grades 33.81 36.26 39.23 40.95 40.35 48.07 25.24 23.39 12.71 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 34.29 23.98 30.94 48.10 61.99 59.12 17.62 14.04 9.94 


All Grades 34.29 23.98 30.94 48.10 61.99 59.12 17.62 14.04 9.94 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 41.43 42.11 44.20 38.57 40.94 45.86 20.00 16.96 9.94 


All Grades 41.43 42.11 44.20 38.57 40.94 45.86 20.00 16.96 9.94 


660/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 62 Harbor High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The reading and writing scores improved greatly when comparing the 2019 scores to the 2018 scores in the ELA 


subcategory.        
2. Our participation rate for CAASPP is high at 96.3% (the state requirement is at least 95% of students participate in 


testing).        
3. Our Listening scores are high at 91% above, met, or near standard with reading as the lowest scoring sub category 


of ELA at 82% above, met, or near standard.        
 


661/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 199 188 217 176 185 216 176 185 92.7 88.4 98.4 
All 
Grades 


234 199 188 217 176 185 216 176 185 92.7 88.4 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2578.
4 


2576.
3 


2588.
6 


16.67 13.64 16.76 22.22 22.73 26.49 20.37 25.57 22.16 40.74 38.07 34.59 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.67 13.64 16.76 22.22 22.73 26.49 20.37 25.57 22.16 40.74 38.07 34.59 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 26.39 25.14 30.27 24.07 29.14 27.57 49.54 45.71 42.16 


All Grades 26.39 25.14 30.27 24.07 29.14 27.57 49.54 45.71 42.16 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 20.37 18.29 18.92 41.20 49.71 46.49 38.43 32.00 34.59 


All Grades 20.37 18.29 18.92 41.20 49.71 46.49 38.43 32.00 34.59 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 22.22 18.86 18.92 51.39 50.29 56.22 26.39 30.86 24.86 


All Grades 22.22 18.86 18.92 51.39 50.29 56.22 26.39 30.86 24.86 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 43.25% of students were at or above standard in overall CAASPP math. (2018 statewide average for Math 11th 


grade CAASPP 36.37% met or exceeded).        
2. In the subcategory of concepts and procedures, student scores increased 3.56%.        


662/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 62 Harbor High School


3. In the subcategory of communicating reason, student scores increased 5.95%.        


 


663/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        1530.8 1537.2 1515.4 1541.6 1545.6 1532.3 26 28 


Grade 10        1487.3 1516.2 1460.7 1511.4 1513.4 1520.3 27 30 


Grade 11        1502.0 1503.8 1483.4 1477.1 1520.2 1529.9 30 28 


Grade 12        1530.5 1559.4 1522.9 1552.0 1537.6 1566.1 31 22 


All Grades              114 108 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 21.43 * 32.14 * 25.00 * 21.43 26 28 


  10    * 26.67 * 10.00 * 33.33 48.15 30.00 27 30 


  11    * 10.71 * 17.86 * 32.14 46.67 39.29 30 28 


  12    * 13.64 * 31.82 * 31.82 * 22.73 31 22 


All Grades        23.68 18.52 25.44 22.22 14.91 30.56 35.96 28.70 114 108 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    42.31 28.57 * 35.71  17.86 * 17.86 26 28 


  10    * 33.33 * 13.33 * 16.67 44.44 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 17.86 * 21.43 * 14.29 40.00 46.43 30 28 


  12    54.84 27.27 * 31.82 * 22.73 * 18.18 31 22 


All Grades        37.72 26.85 25.44 25.00 * 17.59 32.46 30.56 114 108 
 


664/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 62 Harbor High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 7.14 * 21.43 * 42.86 * 28.57 26 28 


  10    * 10.00 * 13.33 * 40.00 55.56 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 0.00 * 14.29 * 53.57 56.67 32.14 30 28 


  12    * 9.09 35.48 18.18 * 50.00 38.71 22.73 31 22 


All Grades        * 6.48 26.32 16.67 17.54 46.30 47.37 30.56 114 108 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 14.29 42.31 75.00 * 10.71 26 28 


  10    * 10.00 40.74 56.67 44.44 33.33 27 30 


  11    * 0.00 40.00 53.57 43.33 46.43 30 28 


  12    * 4.55 48.39 68.18 * 27.27 31 22 


All Grades        21.05 7.41 42.98 62.96 35.96 29.63 114 108 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    65.38 57.14 * 25.00 * 17.86 26 28 


  10    44.44 46.67 * 20.00 40.74 33.33 27 30 


  11    50.00 32.14 * 32.14 36.67 35.71 30 28 


  12    67.74 68.18 * 13.64 * 18.18 31 22 


All Grades        57.02 50.00 14.04 23.15 28.95 26.85 114 108 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 17.86 46.15 46.43 42.31 35.71 26 28 


  10    * 16.67 * 50.00 59.26 33.33 27 30 


  11    * 3.57 * 46.43 66.67 50.00 30 28 


  12    * 18.18 38.71 50.00 48.39 31.82 31 22 


All Grades        11.40 13.89 34.21 48.15 54.39 37.96 114 108 
 


665/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 62 Harbor High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 7.14 57.69 71.43 * 21.43 26 28 


  10    * 3.33 * 60.00 * 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 10.71 40.00 60.71 36.67 28.57 30 28 


  12    * 4.55 48.39 86.36 * 9.09 31 22 


All Grades        28.07 6.48 43.86 68.52 28.07 25.00 114 108 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. For all Domains, students that scored within the Somewhat/Moderate range need to be disaggregated to determine 


those who are close to Well Developed and those who need more targeted interventions.        
2. 50% of students scored in the Well Developed range for Speaking.        


3. 40% of students scored at a Level 3 and Level 4 for Overall Language.        


 
 


666/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


935        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


52.2        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


13.3        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.3        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        124 13.3 


Foster Youth        3 0.3 


Homeless        11 1.2 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        488 52.2 


Students with Disabilities        116 12.4 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        9 1.0 


American Indian        2 0.2 


Asian        20 2.1 


Filipino        4 0.4 


Hispanic        508 54.3 


Two or More Races        51 5.5 


Pacific Islander        1 0.1 


White        340 36.4 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over half (55.1%) of Harbor High School students are socioeconomically disadvantaged        


2. 12.9% of Harbor High School students are English Learners.        


 


667/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 62 Harbor High School


 


668/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


 
College/Career 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All CA Dashboard indicators are in the Blue or Green (the two highest dashboard ratings) with the exception of the 


College and Career Readiness Indicator, which is Yellow.        
 
 


669/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


46.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++28.6 points         
176        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


79.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++49.2 points         
31        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


16.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.5 points         
102        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


66.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++38.4 points         
19        


 


670/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 62 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


9.5 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.6 points         
97        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


94.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++36.8 points         
66        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


98.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++46.4 points         
22        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


English Only 


86.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++34.7 points         
88        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups increased their scores on the ELA CAASPP.        


2. There was an overall increase of 28.6 points on the ELA CAASPP, and the average student score is 46.8 points 
above standard.        


3. There is a gap in performance between the white student group (94.1 points above standard) and all other student 
groups.        


 
 


671/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


32.7 points below standard         


Increased ++14.9 points         


177        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


147.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++19.4 points         
31        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


67.3 points below standard         


Maintained -1.7 points         


103        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


174.3 points below standard         


Increased ++11.2 points         


19        


 


672/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 62 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


79.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -16.2 
points         


98        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


25.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++48.4 points         
66        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


171.7 points below standard         


Increased ++13.7 points         


22        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


English Only 


10 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++37.1 points         
89        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learners, White students, and Students with Disabilities all increased in math.        


2. Hispanic and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students declined.        


3. There was an overall increase of 14.9 points on the Math CAASPP.        


 
 


673/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


44.2 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 95          


Performance Level: Low        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


35.7         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


5.2         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


38.9         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 44.2% of our English Learners grew one or more Proficiency levels from 2017-18 to 2018-19.        


2. Data shows that continued focus on English Learner Progress is appropriate with regard to the SPSA and school 
goals regarding professional development and desired outcomes for ELs.        


3. No Harbor English Learners decreased in their levels of English Proficiency, meaning they either maintained or grew 
in their English Proficiency as measured by the ELPAC.        


 
 


674/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


50.3         


Maintained +1.4         


181        


English Learners 


 
Red         


6.5         


Declined -4.7         


31        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


25         


Increased Significantly +17.9         


16        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


41.3         


Increased +6.1         


121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


13         


Increased +8.9         


23        


 


675/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 62 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


44.3         


Increased +11.6         


106        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Yellow         


56.1         


Declined -14.6         


57        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
48.9 Prepared         


22.9 Approaching Prepared         
28.3 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
50.3 Prepared         


18.8 Approaching Prepared         
30.9 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a slight increase in the percent of students considered prepared over the past 3 years (48.9% in 2017 & 


2018 compared to 50.3% in 2019).        
2. Continued emphasis of resources, time, and planning for all students to support in increasing the number of students 


being college and career ready is needed indicated as a need by the data.        
 
 


676/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No reportable data.        


 
 


677/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


89.5         


Increased +2         


181        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


74.2         


Increased +9.8         


31        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


87.5         


Increased +37.5         


16        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


90.1         


Increased +6.2         


121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


52.2         


Declined -18.7         


23        


 


678/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 62 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


91.5         


Increased +10.1         


106        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Orange         


87.7         


Declined -6.3         


57        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
87.5         


2019         
89.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor increased their graduation rate from 87.5% in 2018 to 89.5% in 2019. Harbor is above the statewide graduation 


rate of 82.7%.        
2. English Learners and Students with Disabilities need to continue to be a focus for our SPSA, school goals, and 


professional development.        
 
 


679/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 62 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


5        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3.6         


Declined -0.8         
879        


English Learners 


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -2.5         
123        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -13.6         
14        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.8         


Declined -1.3         
483        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


1.9         


Declined -6.6         
105        


 


680/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 62 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


7.7         


Increased +7.7         
13        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


3.6         


Declined Significantly -2.1         
497        


Two or More Races 


 
Green         


2.8         


Declined -2.6         
36        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Orange         


3.4         


Increased +0.9         
320        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
4.4         


2019     
3.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor decreased their suspension rate from .8% (from 4.4% in 2018 to 3.6% in 2019). This decrease resulted in an 


overall Green rating on the CA Dashboard Suspension Rate.        
2. Almost all major student groups decreased their suspension rate with a slight increase in the white student group.        


 
 


681/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 62 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Areas: Math, Academic Literacy, and English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
We will have clarity of learning for all students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In our WASC self-study, staff determined that to better meet the needs of all students, while emphasizing the needs of 
our Hispanic/Latino students, socio-economically disadvantaged students, and English Learners, we must develop an 
academic program that will include the supports necessary to increase student success. This is Harbor's second year 
implementing the International Baccalaureate (IB) Program using an IB for all model. All of our students take at least one 
IB class, and in most cases they take two (English and Social Studies). This will result in increased A-G completion 
rates, improved CAASPP scores, and higher rates of graduation. The work of staff includes developing cross-curricular 
connections and practices along with building intra-departmental communication to help students better access the 
curriculum and provide reinforcement in content-area academic skills. In particular, our departments are vertically 
aligning the curriculum from grade 9-12 to teach students the skills necessary to be successful at the highest IB level. A 
renewed focus on consistency in grading policies and practices in PLCs and departments is needed to ensure that our 
grading structures are not preventing students from reaching A-G completion, graduation, and advancing through 
department pathways in math, science, and world language. Consistency in curriculum among same courses, the use 
and implementation of the Organized Binder by all teachers, and parent/student and teacher communication through 
Infinite Campus are areas of growth. More time and planning will be devoted to debriefing CAASPP, NWEA/MAP, PSAT 
and AP scores as a staff to develop purposeful responses to students’ results in these areas, including reteaching and 
interventions as needed.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Teacher Syllabus 
Gradebook alignment for teachers 
Student and parent survey regarding 
consistency 
        


 A-G rate for all students 2020-2021 
61% (11% increase since 2017-2018) 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C, grades 
Fewer course re-takes 
 


Student and teacher use of AVID or 
Organized Binder 
Learning intention visibly displayed in 
a common location in each classroom 
        


 A-G rate for all students 2020-2021 
61% (11% increase since 2017-2018) 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C grades 
Students understand the Learning 
Intention 
 


682/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 62 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


 


Each course has at least one 
common formative 
assessment/assignment per unit        


 A-G rate for all students 2020-2021 
61% (11% increase since 2017-2018) 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C, grades 
 


Options for in school tier 2 
interventions        


 Graduation rate for all students 
91.67% in 2021 (increase of 4.27% 
since 2017-2018 rate of  87.4%) 


 Proper placement of student in Tier 2 
Interventions and increased 
graduation rate by 1% (district 
average is 91.99%) 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All students        


 46.8 points above standard-Highest 
(State results for all students is High) 
Harbor increased for all students 


 All students improve 3 points on 2021 
ELA CAASPP (increase from 46.8 
points above standard) 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic students        


 9.5 points above standard-High 
(State results for Hispanic students is 
Medium) Harbor increased 
significantly for Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students will improve 3 
points on 2021 ELA CAASPP (from 
9.5 points above standard) 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for all students        


 Graduation rate for all students 
91.67% in 2021 (increase of 4.27% 
since 2017-2018 rate of  87.4%). CA 
State graduation rate is 86.6% 


 All students will increase 1.5% on 
graduation rate (from 91.67%) 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for Hispanic students        


 Graduation rate for Hispanic students 
is 90.52% in 2021  CA State 
graduation rate for Hispanic students 
86.4% 


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on graduation rate (from 90.52%) 


Math CAASPP Data: All students         -32.7 points from standard-High 
(State results for All students is High) 
Harbor increased for all students 


 All students improve 3 points on 2021 
Math CAASPP (from -32.7 points 
from standard) 


Math CAASPP Data: Hispanic 
students        


 -79.3 points from standard-Low 
(State results for Hispanic students is 
Medium) Harbor declined for 
Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students improve 3 points 
on 2021 Math CAASPP (from -79.3 
points from standard) 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
1.1 We will define and implement common school-wide grading practices.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
SCIL 
Administrators 
        


683/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 62 Harbor High School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.1 A-Release Time for common teaching and assessment practices for all teachers to 
develop learning progressions, success criteria, and aligned grading practices. Includes a 
New Teacher PLC to quickly align teachers new to Harbor and our district.        


Amount 3945.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.1 B-CSA TurnItIn.com service        


Amount 500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.1 C - Release time for common teaching and assessment practices for AVID students        


Strategy/Activity 2 
1.2 We will display and reference Learning Intentions daily.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
1.3 We will give one common formative assignment/common assessment (CFA) 1x per unit        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 


684/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 62 Harbor High School


Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
1.4 We will analyze school-wide and teacher-created assessment data to identify students needing Tier 2 interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
RTI Coordinator 
Counselors 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 700.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.4 A-Release Time        


Amount 500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.4 B-Training        


Strategy/Activity 5 
1.6 Provide books, supplies for classrooms/students/teachers, and supplemental instructional materials for all courses        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Textbook clerk 
Librarian 


685/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 62 Harbor High School


Finance clerk 
Administrator 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 28,297.00        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.6 A-Curriculum materials, library books, and texts for all subjects        


Amount 54,210.00        


Source General Fund        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.6 B-Classroom supplies, furniture, printer supplies, etc.        


Amount 30,000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.6 C-Classroom supplies, furniture, printer supplies, etc.        


Amount 36,000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined        


Description 1.6 D-Technology and supplemental teaching applications        


Strategy/Activity 6 
1.7 We will support the International Baccalaureate Diploma Program at our school        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Counselors 
SCIL 
PLCs 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


686/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 62 Harbor High School


Amount 11,650.00        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.7 A-IB fees        


Amount 30,722.00        


Source Title I Part A: Professional Development (PI Schools)        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.7 B-Staff training for IB, or AP, or other curricular workshops to support IB and AP        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.7 C-Release Time for teacher planning        


Amount 1500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.7 D-IB CAS Coordinator        


Amount 8000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.7 E-IB Services/online programs to support IB        


Strategy/Activity 7 
1.8 All staff will use the Organized Binder or AVID Binder system        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Organized Binder representative, Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000.00        


687/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 62 Harbor High School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.8 A-CSA with Mitch Weathers of Organized Binder        


Amount 3000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.8 B-Copies of binder pages and binders for students        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.8 C-Training and release time for teacher training of Organized Binder system        


Amount 5000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.8 D-Final exam Study Fest; hours for teacher support        


 


688/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 62 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Areas: Math, Academic Literacy, and English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
We will provide targeted interventions for all students with a focus on EL, Hispanic/Latino, and Socio-Economically 
Disadvantaged students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The Harbor High community is highly invested in examining our practices and striving to have more students use school-
wide supports. For instance, student access and use of our School Learning Center as an intervention for struggling 
students and staff use of differentiation strategies in the classroom are areas where we can improve our support for 
student achievement.  There is a need for increased education for teachers in the areas of differentiated instruction and 
implementation of intervention systems. Training in NWEA/MAP would support teachers’ ability to determine which 
students need specific intervention in math and ELA. Additionally, there is need to expand use of the Organized Binder 
to more classes. Develop a range of targeted in class academic interventions and responsive systems of support 
available for students in need. Staff needs training  to develop additional strategies for increased differentiation in 
classroom lessons and activities and staff identified a need to align school-wide instructional practices that allow 
students  multiple attempts to show mastery and/or growth in their learning.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Graduation Rate         Graduation rate for all students 
91.67% in 2021 (increase of 4.27% 
since 2017-2018 rate of  87.4%) 


 Increased graduation rate by 1% in 
2022 


A-G Rate         A-G rate for all students 2020-2021 
61% (11% increase since 2017-2018) 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 


Semester Grades         82% of student 1st semester grades 
were A, B, &/or C's in 2020-21 


 86% of 1st semester grades will be A, 
B, &/or C's in 2021-22. 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: all 
students        


 50.3%-Medium (State report for all 
students is Medium) Harbor 
maintained for all students 


 All students will increase 1.5% on the 
2020 College and Career Readiness 
CA Dashboard 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: Hispanic 
students        


 44.3%-High (State report for Hispanic 
students is Medium) Harbor 
increased for Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on the 2020 College and Career 
Readiness CA Dashboard 


Graduation Rate: English Learners         68.75% graduation rate in 2021 for 
English Learners 


 English Learners will increase their 
Graduation Rate by 5% in 2022. 


689/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 62 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Learner Progress         44.2% of English Learners improved 
their English Language Proficiency as 
measured by the spring 2019 
ELPAC. 


 At least 50% of English Learners will 
increase their English Language 
Proficiency level as measure by the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
2.1 We will utilize integrated ELD strategies in the classroom        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students; focus on English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
Aides 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 A-Provide release time or Extra Work Agreements for teachers to work in PLCs on 
ELD instructional strategies or integrated ELD training        


Amount 500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 B-Provide substitutes to release teachers for Language Review Team analysis of 
English Learners' progress        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.1 C-Train all teachers on Integrated ELD instructional practices        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


690/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 62 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.1 D-Provide literature in English and Spanish at a variety of lexile levels for students to 
read for pleasure and accelerate English acquisition        


Amount 3000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 E-Provide staffing for library before school year starts to prepare students with 
textbooks and recreational reading materials        


Amount 3500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.1 F-ELD curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 2 
2.2 We will implement in-school and after school intervention opportunities        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students; focus on students who need academic support        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
SCIL 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.2 A-Provide books and supplies for credit recovery and credit acceleration        


Amount 21,146.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 B-Support English Language Learners in ELD classes and mainstream classes, and 
After School Learning Center with tutors (Bilingual math tutors and HH Homework club) 
(District LCFF)        


691/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 62 Harbor High School


Amount 13,983.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 C-Support English Language Learners in ELD classes and mainstream classes, and 
After School Learning Center with tutors        


Amount 94,408.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 D-RTI Coordinator (District LCFF)        


Amount 37,357.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 E-Academic Intervention/Math and Reading intervention/Transitional English for 
English Learners (District LCFF)        


Amount 140,880.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 F-Credit Recovery teacher        


Amount 3000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description 2.2 G-Snacks for students in the After School Learning Center (ASL)        


Amount 29,015.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 H- Bilingual paraeducators        


Amount 35,196.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 I-Small group tutoring during unscheduled classes or academic lab        


Amount 2416.00        


692/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 62 Harbor High School


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 J-Peer tutoring coordinator stipend        


Strategy/Activity 3 
2.3 Create and implement a toolkit of Tier I and Tier 2 intervention strategies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
2.4 We will offer opportunities for students to be involved in after school enrichment courses to meet their needs and 
interests beyond the comprehensive school program        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,535.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.4 A-CSA with UCSC for MESA contract        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.4 B-MESA club advisor compensation        


Amount 1000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


693/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 62 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.4 C-Transportation for MESA activities        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.4 D-Supplies for MESA        


Strategy/Activity 5 
2.5 We will offer AVID at all levels and provide funding for field trips, classes, materials/curriculum, and supplies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
First generation college students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
AVID teachers 
AVID coordinator 
Counselors 
Teachers 
Administrator 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 137,381.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.5 A-AVID courses TOK and AVID 9 (Title 1 Site & central)        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.5 B-Field Trips, supplies        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.5 C-AVID curriculum        


Amount 8000.00        


694/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 62 Harbor High School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.5 D-AVID teacher training        


Strategy/Activity 6 
2.6 We will offer courses at all English Learner levels to support students' acquisition of English        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 56,417        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.6 A-Newcomer ELD, ELD 2        


Strategy/Activity 7 
2.7 We will support all students by providing opportunities for college        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with an emphasis on SED, Latinx, and English learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselors, Administrators, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8003.63        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.7 A-Scholarship coordinator        


Amount 5000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


695/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 62 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 B-PSAT test fees        


Amount 4000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 C-SAT preparation course fees        


Amount 100,000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 D-IB and Test fees        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 E-Student supports for high school pathway, planning, transition to high school, and 
transition to college (counseling supplies/supports)        


Amount 20,000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.7 F-Bilingual counselor to support English learners access to college        


Strategy/Activity 8 
2.8 We will create smaller class sizes to allow for more in class interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with a focus on English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrators, Teachers, Human Resources        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 290,470.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


696/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 62 Harbor High School


Description 2.8 A-Additional classes in Math, Health, English, Spanish, and Social Studies        


Amount 53,476.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.8 B-Courses in core subjects with a focus on English Learners        


 


697/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 62 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Area: School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
We will create a positive, engaging school environment that promotes the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Harbor’s school culture and support for student personal and academic growth is strong and it is a priority to continue 
the practices that have made it strong. Our students have access to many adults on campus, including our teachers, 
counselors, school community coordinator, health clerk, athletic director, and administrators. The Organized Binder 
along with the Daily Anchor is our strongest Tier 1 academic practice at Harbor and about 85% of staff uses the 
Organized Binder system.  Our work promoting school culture and pride has resulted in an increase in sports 
participation, school pride, and attendance at dances and sporting events. Our Learning Centers, which are open five 
days a week, is an in school support that many students access for additional help with homework and test preparation. 
We look to implementing additional supports with peer-tutoring before and after-school as well. 
 
Our school’s master schedule, student enrollment practices, and course offerings are designed to create equity in 
student access and performance. We provide support to students with and without financial need and many resources 
are provided to students at a reduced cost or free of charge, such as entrance to home sports games, PE uniforms, 
sports physicals, classroom supplies, backpacks, PSAT preparation courses, and more. Harbor provides support for 
Spanish Speaking parents and students and our school community coordinator is an essential component of our school 
culture and support for students. Though Harbor has decreased overall behavior referrals and events over the last four 
years, there is still a disproportionate number of Latino males referred for minor behavior incidents. More staff training in 
cultural proficiency and restorative practices would support this need. Furthermore, staff has identified that teachers 
need to be trained to implement AVID and integrated ELD strategies to better support all students. Teachers need 
training and practice in Infinite Campus to increase parent/student communication. 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student participation in athletics         58% of Harbor students participated 
in 1 or more sports during 2017-2018 


 Increase or maintain percent of 
students participating in athletics. 


Parent participation in ELAC, 
Boosters, and school events        


 93.8% of parents report 
agree/strongly agree to "I have 
opportunities to become involved in 
school activities." 


 Increase or maintain percent of 
parents agree/strongly agree to 
survey question "I have opportunities 
to become involved in school 
activities." 


Sales of Pirate Pride products         2018-2019 sales $3514.00 for Pirate 
Pride products (since distance 


 Increase in sales of Pirate Pride 
products 


698/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 62 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


learning saled were $2712.000 as of 
9/2021) 


Number of teacher referrals         561 teacher referrals in 2017-2018 
for student behavior events (class 
misconduct, defiance, inappropriate 
language, disrespect, derogatory 
comment, unsafe behavior) 


 Decrease in number of teacher 
referrals for student behavior by 10% 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: All students        


 3.6%-High (State report for all 
students is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for all students 
declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
all students 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: Hispanic Students        


 3.6%-High (State report for Hispanic 
students is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for Hispanics 
declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
Hispanic students 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: English Learners        


 3.3%-High (State report for English 
Learners is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for ELs declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
English Learners 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
3.1 We will train teachers on restorative practices        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
SCIL 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.1 A-Supplies and tools for teachers and staff on restorative practices and PBIS, cultural 
proficiency, and school culture/climate        


Amount 300.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


699/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 62 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.1 B- Screen all students on the Social Emotional Health Survey        


Strategy/Activity 2 
3.2 We will support student participation in school activities, athletics, and clubs        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Athletic Director 
Activities Director 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4933.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 A-Enrichment provider for football conditioning        


Amount 5694.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.2 B-Schoolwide and evening events related to a college-going culture        


Amount 2399.37        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 3.2 C-Five Star Students system for tracking intervention needs        


Amount 41,208.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 D-Activities Director release time .4 (LCFF District)        


Amount 3538.00        


700/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 62 Harbor High School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 E-180 hours Enrichment provider for Escapades Dance at Harbor        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 F-Yearbook camp        


Amount 11,000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 3.2 G - PE uniforms for students who cannot purchase their own        


Amount 35,753        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 H-Enrichment elective classes: Art and Music        


Strategy/Activity 3 
3.3 Promote positive culture and climate through school culture with visible Harbor logo products        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Activities Director 
Athletic Director 
Teachers 
Counselors 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000.00        


Source Site Based Gifts and Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 A-Provide Harbor community with Harbor-wear and other promotional items to 
support school spirit (0051 Donations)        


701/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 62 Harbor High School


Amount 2000.00        


Source Site Based Gifts and Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 B-Provide teachers with classrooms supports regarding school culture around 
instructional vision and school connectedness (0051 Donations)        


Amount 250.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 C-Celebrate academic achievements of our students with an academic awards 
ceremony        


Strategy/Activity 4 
3.4 Provide departments with needed supplies, furniture, learning extension, and classroom needs to support 
instruction        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5534.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.4 A-Departments and teachers have access to supplies needed to support students, 
instructionally and social emotionally        


Amount 650.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 3.4 B-Shakespeare Santa Cruz performance to English and other classes        


Strategy/Activity 5 
3.5 We will provide parents and students a full time school community coordinator        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with a focus on English Learners        


 


702/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 62 Harbor High School


Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School community coordinator 
Administrator 
Counselors 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 41,297.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 A-School Community Coordinator .5 position funding (District LCFF)        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.5 B-Recruit ELAC parents for meetings, events, and DELAC        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 C-Additional hours for translation at events and all written materials to parents (61 
MAA)        


Amount 41,297.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 D-School Community Coordinator .5 position funding        


Strategy/Activity 6 
3.6 We will support the Freshman transition to high school        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Freshmen        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Link Crew advisor 
Link Crew Leaders 
        


703/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 62 Harbor High School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3200.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.6 A-Link Crew leaders and advisor, materials and supplies        


Strategy/Activity 7 
3.7 We will support all students' social/emotional well being        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Human Resources, Administrators, Counselors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 128,744.00        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.7 A-Social Emotional Counselor (MFT)        


Amount 5505.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.7 B-Social Work Interns stipend        


 


704/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 62 Harbor High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
We will have clarity of learning for all students          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Teacher Syllabus 
Gradebook alignment for teachers 
Student and parent survey regarding 
consistency 
        


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C, grades 
Fewer course re-takes 
 


 In 20-21, 61% of students met A-G. 
21-22 metrics not yet available. 


Student and teacher use of AVID or 
Organized Binder 
Learning intention visibly displayed in 
a common location in each classroom 
        


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C grades 
Students understand the Learning 
Intention 
 
 


 In 20-21, 61% of students met A-G. 
21-22 metrics not yet available. 


Each course has at least one 
common formative 
assessment/assignment per unit        


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2021-2022 by 4% to meet the district 
average of 65% 
Increased A, B, C, grades 
 


 In 20-21, 61% of students met A-G. 
21-22 metrics not yet available. 


Options for in school tier 2 
interventions        


 Proper placement of student in Tier 2 
Interventions and increased 
graduation rate by 1% (district 
average is 91.99%) 


 In 20-21, graduation rate was 
91.67%. 21-22 metrics not yet 
available. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All students        


 All students improve 3 points on 2021 
ELA CAASPP (increase from 46.8 
points above standard) 


 In 20-21, students were 46.8 points 
above standard on the ELA CAASPP. 
21-22 results not yet available. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic students        


 Hispanic students will improve 3 
points on 2021 ELA CAASPP (from 
9.5 points above standard) 


 In 20-21, Hispanic students were 9.5 
points above standard on the ELA 
CAASPP. 21-22 results not yet 
available. 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for all students        


 All students will increase 1.5% on 
graduation rate (from 91.67%) 


 In 20-21, Dashboard results not 
available. 21-22 results not yet 
available. 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for Hispanic students        


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on graduation rate (from 90.52%) 


 In 20-21, Hispanic student graduation 
rate was 90.52%. 


Math CAASPP Data: All students         All students improve 3 points on 2021 
Math CAASPP (from -32.7 points 
from standard) 


 In 20-21, all students were -32.7 
points from standard. 21-22 results 
not yet available. 


Math CAASPP Data: Hispanic 
students        


 Hispanic students improve 3 points 
on 2021 Math CAASPP (from -79.3 
points from standard) 


 In 20-21, Hispanic students were 
from -79.3 points from standard. 21-
22 results not yet available. 


 


705/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 62 Harbor High School


Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


1.1 We will define and implement common school-
wide grading practices. 


 Grading consistencies defined during 2020-2021 
including accepting late work without penalty until 
end of unit, assessments not lower than 50%, 
redos/retakes on assessments and large 
assignments, a variety of versions of no zeros. 
Goal Met. 


 


1.2 We will display and reference Learning 
Intentions daily. 


 Learning intentions posted by every teacher in the 
Daily Anchor on Google Classroom and explicitly 
shared with students. Goal Met. 


 


1.3 We will give one common formative 
assignment/common assessment (CFA) 1x per 
unit 


 Some Professional Learning Communities (PLC) 
had shared formative assessments but not all 
during 2020-2021. Goal not met. 


 


1.4 We will analyze school-wide and teacher-
created assessment data to identify students 
needing Tier 2 interventions 


 During 2020-2021 we were unable to do this due 
to pandemic. Goal not met. 


 


1.6 Provide books, supplies for 
classrooms/students/teachers, and supplemental 
instructional materials for all courses 


 All books and supplies were provided to students, 
including online tools and technology such as 
Chromebooks and earphones. Goal Met. 


 


1.7 We will support the International 
Baccalaureate Diploma Program at our school 


 Teachers continued work on IB including traning 
for new teachers and an IB PLC. Goal Met. 


 


1.8 All staff will use the Organized Binder or AVID 
Binder system 


 Teachers adapted the Organized Binder to the 
digital format in Google Classroom by using the 
Daily Anchor, which every teacher used. Goal Met. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Clarity of learning is a goal that includes daily learning intentions, aligned grading practices, aligned organizational tools 
like the Organized BInder, Daily Anchor, and Google Classroom.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Overall, the strategies and activities we use to achieve the clarity of learning goal are effective. We have been meeting 
our goals and still have work to do in the area of grading consistencies.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences are due to distance learning or changing needs.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes to this goal are happening for this year. We have a renewed focus on common formative 
assessments/assignments with the secondary district curriculum and assessment committee and our work creating 
formative assessments.          


 


706/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 62 Harbor High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
We will provide targeted interventions for all students with a focus on EL, Hispanic/Latino, and Socio-Economically 
Disadvantaged students          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Graduation Rate         Increased graduation rate by 1.5% in 
2021 


 Harbor's graduation rate increased 
.87% (from 90.8% in 2020 to 91.67% 
in 2021) - Goal Not Met 


A-G Rate         Increase A-G completion by 2% to 
52.4% 


 Harbor's A-G completion rate 
decrease 1% (from 62% in 2020 to 
61% in 2021) - Goal Not Met 


Semester Grades         90% of 1st semester grades will be A, 
B, &/or C's in 2020-21. 


 90% of 1st semester grades were A, 
B, &/or C's in 2020-21. - Goal Met 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: all 
students        


 All students will increase 1.5% on the 
2020 College and Career Readiness 
CA Dashboard 


 N/A - Not on CA Dashboard due to 
Pandemic 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: Hispanic 
students        


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on the 2020 College and Career 
Readiness CA Dashboard 


 N/A - Not on CA Dashboard due to 
Pandemic 


Graduation Rate: English Learners         English Learners will increase their 
Graduation Rate by 5% in 2021. 


 Harbor's English Learner graduation 
rate stayed the same, 69% in 2020 
and 69% in 2021 - Goal Not Met 


English Learner Progress         At least 50% of English Learners will 
increase their English Language 
Proficiency level as measure by the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 22% of English Learners grew one or 
more levels on the ELPAC in 2021 - 
Goal Not Met 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


2.1 We will utilize integrated ELD strategies in the 
classroom 


 We used many scaffolding techniques to support 
distance learning. Integrated ELD training was 
delayed due to pandemic. Goal Met. 


 


2.2 We will implement in-school interventions 
opportunities 


 Harbor provided online interventions for students--
in math, science, and ELD classes and 
afterschool. We employed nine tutors during 2020-
2021. Goal Met. 


 


2.3 Create and implement a toolkit of Tier I and 
Tier 2 intervention strategies 


 Goal not met.  


2.4 We will offer opportunities for students to be 
involved in after school enrichment courses to 
meet their needs and interests beyond the 
comprehensive school program 


 During distance learning sports cohorts were 
offered. Goal Met. 


 


707/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 62 Harbor High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


2.5 We will offer AVID at all levels and provide 
funding for field trips, classes, 
materials/curriculum, and supplies 


 AVID classes were offered, however field trips 
were not allowed due to pandemic. Goal Met. 


 


2.6 We will offer courses at all English Learner 
levels to support students' acquisition of English 


 ELD offered at Newcomer, 1, 2, and 3 levels. Goal 
Met. 


 


2.7 We will support all students by providing 
opportunities for college 


 Students were provided with a dedicated college 
counselor in addition to the regular college support 
by school counselors. Parent and student nights 
for college preparation offered. Goal Met. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
This goal was difficult to implement during distance learning, however, we did employ as much support as we could to 
our multi lingual students in and out of class. Now that students are in person, this year the goal should be easier for us 
to make progress towards.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The strategies are effective, however we were not able to implement due to the pandemic and distance learning.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences are due to distance learning or changing needs.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue our goals for this year and look forward to determining the effectiveness of these goals. Many goals 
were not met and had we known about the pandemic and distance learning we might have adjusted our goals 
accordingly.          


 


708/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 62 Harbor High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
We will create a positive, engaging school environment that promotes the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Student participation in athletics         Increase or maintain percent of 
students participating in athletics. 
(Note: Due to current athletic 
restrictions, this may not be 
measurable for 2020-21) 


 Unable to measure for 2020-2021. 


Parent participation in ELAC, 
Boosters, and school events        


 Increase or maintain percent of 
parents agree/strongly agree to 
survey question "I have opportunities 
to become involved in school 
activities." 


 Unable to measure for 2020-2021. 


Sales of Pirate Pride products         Increase in sales of Pirate Pride 
products 


 N/A 


Number of teacher referrals         Decrease in number of teacher 
referrals for student behavior by 10% 


 Teacher referrals for behavior were 
increased due to COVID, however 
they were more "whole student" 
referrals regarding attendance and 
social emotional concerns. 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: All students        


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
all students 


 0 suspensions 2020-2021. 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: Hispanic Students        


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
Hispanic students 


 0 suspensions 2020-2021. 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: English Learners        


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
English Learners 


 0 suspensions 2020-2021. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


3.1 We will train teachers on restorative practices  The entire school year was based on restorative 
practices. 


 


3.2 We will support student participation in school 
activities, athletics, and clubs 


 Student participation supported for all students.  


3.3 Promote positive culture and climate through 
school culture with visible Harbor logo products 


 Harbor distributed logo masks and shirts to all 
students during 2020-2021 


 


3.4 Provide departments with needed supplies, 
furniture, learning extension, and classroom needs 
to support instruction 


 All supplies were provided to teachers and 
students. 


 


709/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 62 Harbor High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


3.5 We will provide parents and students a full time 
school community coordinator 


 Harbor supports a full time school community 
coordinator through 50% payment using 
supplemental site funds. 


 


3.6 We will support the Freshman transition to high 
school 


 Harbor held Freshman orientation remotely.  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
This goal is at the center of the work at Harbor. We recognize that if we create a positive, engaging school environment 
we are able to consider each of the next steps regarding activities, classes offered, support provided, and more. For 
example, when we consider an initiative or action, we consider whether it is inclusive of all students. If it is not, we adjust 
or change our idea to something that is engaging for all students.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The strategies/activites used to achieve our goal is extremely effective. Restorative practices, in particular, have been a 
concrete and comprehensible way to understand the Harbor way of being.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences are due to distance learning or changing needs.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Our goal will remain aligned with the district goal #2.          


 


710/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 62 Harbor High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  313,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  1,680,010.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


711/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 62 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


District Funded         11,650.00 


General Fund         54,210.00 


LCFF - Base         297,338.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         315,832.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         28,297.00 


SB86         680,197.00 


Site Based Gifts and Donations         4,000.00 


Title I         257,764.00 


Title I Part A: Professional Development (PI Schools)         30,722.00 
 


712/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 62 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


0000: Unrestricted         3,000.00 


0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined         36,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         1,115,249.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         165,174.63 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         146,685.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 213,901.37 


 


713/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 62 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 District Funded  11,650.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         General Fund  54,210.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  234,895.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  62,443.00 


0000: Unrestricted         LCFF - Supplemental  3,000.00 


0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined        


 LCFF - Supplemental  36,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  44,591.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  55,233.63 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  17,978.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  159,029.37 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  28,297.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  651,182.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  29,015.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Site Based Gifts and Donations  4,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  184,581.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  18,483.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  42,200.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  12,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I Part A: Professional 
Development (PI Schools) 


 30,722.00 


 


714/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 62 Harbor High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


2 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Tracey Runeare         X Principal        


Shannon Greene         X Classroom Teacher        


Katrina Wedding         X Classroom Teacher        


Julie Rogers         X Classroom Teacher        


Naomi Blanco         X Parent or Community Member        


Jolene Kemos         X Parent or Community Member        


Rosario Weckler         X Other School Staff        


Isa Lawrence         X Secondary Student        


Perla Valentin         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


715/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 62 Harbor High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Tracey Runeare on September 29, 2021 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Jolene Kemos on September 29, 2021 


 


716/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 


 
 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 


717/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Santa Cruz High School         


Address 415 Walnut Ave         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3633 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 4469823447109         


Principal Michelle Poirier         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 10, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 15, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


718/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Our vision is to nurture lifelong learners who demonstrate critical thinking, creativity, integrity, and personal responsibility 
as members of our school and community.  We collaborate to ensure equity to achieve college and career readiness for 
all students. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Santa Cruz High School is a comprehensive high school of approximately 1,100 students. Santa Cruz High School uses 
a Four-by-Four Block Schedule with a 40-minute Advisory period, called Cardinal Connect, four days per week. Under 
this model, students take three or four eighty-minute classes each day for eighteen weeks in the fall, and three or four 
different classes for eighteen weeks in the spring. Each class is completed in one semester and is equivalent to a year-
long class in a more traditional system. This system allows students to concentrate on fewer courses at a time. The 
option to take a fourth period allows students to participate in our instrumental and vocal music programs, leadership, 
AVID, etc. without giving up academic classes.  Special Education students are generally scheduled into a daily tutorial 
as a fourth class. Students behind in credits are also scheduled into four classes to provide an opportunity to get back on 
track for graduation. 
 
Despite the forecasted declining enrollment trends through 2025, we are committed to providing a comprehensive 
program that supports the success and meets the needs of all students. The majority of our classes are designed to 
meet A-G standards. In addition, we dedicate significant resources to provide appropriate support for the range of 
students’ needs. 
 
We offer English Language Development (ELD) 3, Transitional English, and ELD Language and Literacy classes for our 
small population of English Learner students with intermediate and early advanced English language development 
levels.  Our Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) program supports students who are first generation to 
college or traditionally underrepresented in college.  The AVID team - comprised of four AVID teachers, a counselor and 
an assistant principal - attends the AVID Summer Institutes, where they participate in professional development, 
including new strategies for delivery of AVID curriculum. 
 
To better address the need for communication with our families, Santa Cruz High School has increased the 
School/Community Coordinator to a full time position.  We have also increased our social emotional support for students 
on campus, with a full-time Marriage Family Therapist on staff.  Our peer tutoring program has been made more robust 
with the employment of a Peer Tutoring Coordinator who trains peer tutors in best practices for one-on-one and small 
group tutoring.  Santa Cruz High School is fortunate to be provided funding to participate in restorative practices, 
delivered to the full staff, as well as to a smaller implementation group through SEEDS Community Resolution Center 
(SEEDS stands for Services that Encourage Effective Dialogue and Solutions). 
 
Santa Cruz High offers a range of service options for eligible students in our Special Education department.  We have 
RSP tutorial classes to support students with Individualized Education Plans (IEPs). The IEP emphasizes the student's 
participation in the general education curriculum and the IEP team includes general education teachers. The school 
offers a variety of Special Day Class (SDC) classes and the students benefit from regular field trip opportunities in the 
community. 
 
Starting in 2015-16, SCHS hired a Multi-tiered Support System (MTSS) Coordinator to help struggling Integrated Math 1 
students. The MTSS model is also known by the term Response to Intervention (RTI).  Our MTSS/RTI program has 
grown since its inception.  In the current year, we have MTSS/RTI support in English Language Arts and English 
Language Development.  We have also increased our budget allocation of MTSS/RTI in mathematics. 
 
Currently, we offer Advanced Placement courses in Calculus AB and BC, Statistics, Computer Science A, English 
Literature and Composition, English Language and Composition, Biology, Chemistry, Physics 1 and 2, Spanish, French, 
World History, US History, and Environmental Science. 
 
Santa Cruz High is also a strong advocate of arts, enrichment, athletics, and extracurricular activities in education. We 
continue to provide an exceptional fine and performing arts program with courses in painting, ceramics, jewelry, 
photography, video production, vocal and instrumental music, and theater. Our Cardinal Regiment continues to earn first 
place awards in Marching Band and Color Guard band reviews. In addition to our robust academic program, Santa Cruz 
High supports a wide range of extra-curricular activities. The drama department has presented two student-run 


719/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


productions a year for several years, and beginning in 2015-16, a third production has been added. The Santa Cruz 
Mock Trial team has been county champion for nine out of the last twelve years. Individual and team sports benefit from 
our strong athletic program, frequently reaching Central Coast Section level competitions while several teams have won 
the California Interscholastic Federation State Academic Award each year. Students also participate in a variety of extra-
curricular clubs ranging from the Rainbow Alliance to the Ping Pong Club, and from the Latinx Student Union to the 
Origami Club. The Rainbow Alliance, SCHS’s Gay-Straight Alliance Club, is very active at school and in the community.  
They have hosted well-received events such as the “Diversity Dance” and the Dialogue Conference, at which students 
had the opportunity to talk with teachers and other guest speakers regarding gender identity, sexuality and other LGBT 
issues.  The Black Student Union attends regional and state leadership conferences every year, and has recently added 
an annual spring break trip to visit Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs).  We are hopeful that we will be 
able to return to pre-pandemic levels of involvement in all of these activities soon and we continue to create COVID-safe 
activities to reproduce student opportunities. 
 
Santa Cruz High students participate in the countywide Career Technical Education Program (CTEP) in order to gain 
exposure to post-high school careers. In addition, SCHS houses entire CTE pathway programs in Computer Science, 
Automotive Repair, Bicycle Repair, Cabinetry, and Digital Media Arts Design.  Our CTE counselor organizes the Work 
Based Learning portion of our CTE classes, which brings industry partners to critique student portfolios.  The CTE 
counselor also organizes a lunchtime career speaker program which supports students in planning for their futures. The 
incorporation of the Naviance program into the counseling curriculum assists students in identifying career interests and 
selecting postsecondary opportunities to meet their goals. 
 
Santa Cruz High School uses student performance data to assess our students and programs and presents this data to 
the school community in a number of venues. The data is shared annually with staff. Data is shared at parent nights 
including: Back to School Nights, Red and White Fair (Open House for prospective families), and Incoming Ninth Grade 
Parent Night (orientation for families of entering students), Math Information Night, the English Language Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) meetings, Parents of African-American Heritage Students (PAAHS) meetings, PTA meetings, and 
School Board meetings. 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Team (SCIL) consists of a teacher leader from each department who facilitates 
department professional learning communities (PLC) focusing on analyzing local data to enhance student performance. 
Departments meet twice monthly to share and analyze student work, develop common assessments and to use data 
cycles to determine the effectiveness of a variety of formative assessments.  District-led professional development 
opportunities have been offered and our teachers have participated in professional learning in the areas of Universal 
Design for Learning, Integrated and Designated English Language Development, Response to Intervention (RTI) 
Implementation, Next Generation Science Standards Implementation, Silicon Valley Math Initiative Trainings, Math 
Teacher Leaders and district Santa Cruz Instructional Leader workshops.  In addition, through attending job-alike 
professional development meetings twice monthly provided by the district Special Education Department, our Special 
Education teachers have had the opportunity to share best practices and to participate in IEP Compliance Trainings and 
best practices for developing IEP goals. 
 
For 2021-22, Santa Cruz High School is focusing its site professional development activities on Integrated English 
Language Development, High Impact Instructional Strategies for accelerating learning, and Equitable Grading practices.  
Our school has two interdisciplinary action research teams of teachers participating in the Santa Cruz County College 
and Career Collaborative's Grading Inquiry Project.  GIP-ART (Grading Inquiry Project Action Research Teams) share 
their learnings and results with the faculty at large.  Santa Cruz High School teachers participate in the Santa Cruz City 
Schools district's Curriculum and Assessment teams that are receiving training in Rigorous Curriculum Design with 
author Larry Ainsworth. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Goals for the single plan are developed as a part of our WASC stakeholder input process. This plan will be reviewed by 
necessary stakeholders beginning with the School Site Council, the Instructional Leadership Team, the English Learners 
Advisory Committee, faculty, staff, student representatives, and parent support groups. In addition, the School Site 
Council reviews, gives input, monitors, and approves the SPSA annually. 
 


720/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


         


 


721/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.44% 0.27% 0.3% 5 3 3 


African American     2.28% 2.44% 3.0% 26 27 33 


Asian     3.59% 4.43% 4.5% 41 49 49 


Filipino     0.7% 0.9% 0.6% 8 10 7 


Hispanic/Latino     28.55% 29.57% 31.3% 326 327 341 


Pacific Islander     0.26% 0.36% 0.4% 3 4 4 


White     56.57% 55.88% 55.5% 646 618 604 


Multiple/No Response     5.43% 6.15% 4.3% 62 68 47 


 Total Enrollment 1,142 1,106 1,088 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 9        323 255 294 


Grade 10        276 330 251 


Grade 11        275 253 305 


Grade 12        268 268 238 


Total Enrollment        1,142 1,106 1,088 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The cost of housing and the relative unavailability of high-paying jobs has made Santa Cruz one of the most 


unaffordable areas in the country.  This has been a negative driver for young families to put down roots here.  As a 
result, overall enrollment in the district is on a trajectory of steady decline.  However, Santa Cruz High School’s 
enrollment has only exhibited a slight decline over the past three years.  We have benefitted from open enrollment 
and interdistrict transfers from other area schools and enrollment from students leaving private and charter schools 
to counteract this local trend.  The percentages of our major student demographic groups have remained relatively 
stable: White ˜ 56%, Hispanic/Latino ˜ 30%, with other groups making up the remaining 14%. 
 
        


 


722/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        38 40 48 3.3% 3.6% 4.4% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        221 221 223 19.4% 20.0% 20.5% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        0 0 1 0.0% 0.0% 2.5% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Although the number of English Learners has remained low, English Learner enrollment has increased over the 


past three years, from 3.3% in 2018-19  to 4.4% in 2020-21.        
2. In response to the larger population of English Learners, Santa Cruz High School finds it necessary to create more 


specialized classes to develop academic English language and to support English learner students in their 
academics.        


 


723/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 244 257 232 228 251 231 228 251 99.1 93.4 97.7 
All 
Grades 


234 244 257 232 228 251 231 228 251 99.1 93.4 97.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2591.
8 


2617.
2 


2630.
2 


21.21 26.75 35.06 36.80 40.35 36.25 25.11 21.05 16.73 16.88 11.84 11.95 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 21.21 26.75 35.06 36.80 40.35 36.25 25.11 21.05 16.73 16.88 11.84 11.95 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 42.42 47.37 38.65 38.96 38.60 45.82 18.61 14.04 15.54 


All Grades 42.42 47.37 38.65 38.96 38.60 45.82 18.61 14.04 15.54 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 18.61 26.75 37.60 54.11 53.95 51.20 27.27 19.30 11.20 


All Grades 18.61 26.75 37.60 54.11 53.95 51.20 27.27 19.30 11.20 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 30.30 26.75 32.67 56.28 67.54 58.96 13.42 5.70 8.37 


All Grades 30.30 26.75 32.67 56.28 67.54 58.96 13.42 5.70 8.37 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 22.94 34.21 48.00 59.31 52.19 43.60 17.75 13.60 8.40 


All Grades 22.94 34.21 48.00 59.31 52.19 43.60 17.75 13.60 8.40 


724/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our participation rates have been maintained at high levels.  The 2019-20 CAASPP was not administered because 


of the pandemic year and data on 2021 is still incomplete.        
2. The overall percentage of students meeting and exceeding standards has been on an upward trend.        


3. ELA scores have been steadily increasing over the past three years, this is true in all four areas: Reading, Writing, 
Listening, and Research/Inquiry.        


 


725/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 244 257 231 231 249 231 231 249 98.7 94.7 96.9 
All 
Grades 


234 244 257 231 231 249 231 231 249 98.7 94.7 96.9 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2592.
9 


2612.
2 


2660.
1 


12.12 23.81 33.33 28.14 22.51 30.12 27.27 25.54 22.09 32.47 28.14 14.46 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 12.12 23.81 33.33 28.14 22.51 30.12 27.27 25.54 22.09 32.47 28.14 14.46 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 30.74 35.06 53.63 29.87 31.60 27.02 39.39 33.33 19.35 


All Grades 30.74 35.06 53.63 29.87 31.60 27.02 39.39 33.33 19.35 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 15.15 25.11 31.45 46.32 45.02 49.19 38.53 29.87 19.35 


All Grades 15.15 25.11 31.45 46.32 45.02 49.19 38.53 29.87 19.35 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 19.48 27.27 36.95 54.55 52.38 50.60 25.97 20.35 12.45 


All Grades 19.48 27.27 36.95 54.55 52.38 50.60 25.97 20.35 12.45 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Overall Student participation percentages again increased on the math CAASPP.  The 2019-20 CAASPP was 


not administered because of the pandemic year and data on 2021 is still incomplete.        
2. Math scores have continued to steadily increase over the past three years.        


726/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 


727/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        * 1536.3 * 1523.3 * 1549.0 * 11 


Grade 10        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 11        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * 5 


All Grades              27 32 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 54.55  18.18 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * *  * * * * * 


  11     * * *  * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 6.25 59.26 37.50 * 25.00 * 31.25 27 32 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 27.27 * 18.18  36.36 * 18.18 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11    * * * *  * * * * * 


  12    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        48.15 18.75 * 31.25 * 28.13 * 21.88 27 32 
 


728/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9     0.00 * 27.27 * 45.45 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11     * * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 48.15 31.25 * 28.13 * 40.63 27 32 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 9.09 * 81.82 * 9.09 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


  11    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 12.50 48.15 59.38 * 28.13 27 32 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 54.55 * 18.18 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        66.67 53.13 * 21.88 * 25.00 27 32 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 9.09 * 63.64 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 15.63 59.26 40.63 * 43.75 27 32 
 


729/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 81.82 * 18.18 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 70.37 75.00 * 25.00 27 32 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There are too few students to produce adequate data to make judgements of student needs.        


2. Further disaggregation of students is needed to strategically and appropriately respond to student needs.        


 
 


730/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


1,106        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


27.8        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


3.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.1        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        40 3.6 


Foster Youth        1 0.1 


Homeless        5 0.5 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        308 27.8 


Students with Disabilities        93 8.4 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        27 2.4 


American Indian        3 0.3 


Asian        49 4.4 


Filipino        10 0.9 


Hispanic        327 29.6 


Two or More Races        68 6.1 


Pacific Islander        4 0.4 


White        618 55.9 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentages of our major student demographic groups have remained relatively stable: White ˜ 60%, 


Hispanic/Latino ˜ 27%, with other groups making up the remaining 13%.  We note a sudden bump up in the 
numbers who are not reporting an ethnicity (that is, from 1 – 2 students to 25) in 2018-19. 
 
 


731/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


        


 
 


732/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Blue        


 
College/Career 


 
Green        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. With the pandemic, the state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  In 2019, all SCHS indicators are in the Blue or 


Green, which are the two highest ratings possible on the CA Dashboard.        
 
 


733/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


46.4 points above standard         


Increased ++12.6 points         


249        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


1.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++23.7 points         
81        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


98.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -27.8 points         


16        


 


734/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


7.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.3 points         
63        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


14.7 points above standard         


Increased ++4 points         


17        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


71 points above standard         


Increased ++10.8 points         


146        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


English Only 


57.7 points above standard         


Increased ++6.9 points         


197        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  Previously, SCHS experienced significant increases with all students.        


2. Significant decline in achievement with students with disabilities.  Smaller decline with Hispanic students.        


3. Some of our subgroups are too small to be statistically significant, but we see an achievement gap between Whites 
and Hispanics.  Socioeconomically disadvantaged students also have lower achievement.        


 
 


735/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


33.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++48.9 points         
247        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


7.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++47.8 points         
80        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


132.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -27.2 points         


15        


 


736/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


22.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++32.3 points         
63        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


30.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++111.2 points         
17        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Blue         


60.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++53 points         


144        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


English Only 


44.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++50.8 points         
195        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  Previously, all students, including every subgroup, showed 


improvement in mathematics.        
2. Focused improvement needs to occur with:  Two or more races, socioeconomically disadvantaged, and students with 


disabilities.        
3. The achievement gap between Whites and Hispanics are smaller in Math.  Also, socioeconomically disadvantaged 


students have higher performance in Math than in English.        
 
 


737/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


13.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 30          


Performance Level: VeryLow        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


53.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


33.3         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


3.3         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  Previously, 0% of SCHS English Learners grew 1 or more levels in 


their English Proficiency. 13.3% of SCHS English Learners were considered to make adequate progress toward 
English Proficiency as measured by the ELPAC.        


2. More than half of the English Learners are showing decreases in their ELPI level, while one third of them did not 
advance a level.        


3. SCHS needs to strategically address the needs of English Learner students.        


 
 


738/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


56         


Maintained 0         


266        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


38.5         


Maintained +1.3         


104        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


25         


Increased Significantly +9         


24        


 


739/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


32.9         


Declined -4.4         


73        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


56.3         


Increased Significantly +9.2         


16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Green         


65.8         


Maintained +1         


161        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
56 Prepared         


21.2 Approaching Prepared         
22.8 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
56 Prepared         


22.9 Approaching Prepared         
21.1 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  Previously, growth was maintained compared to the 2017 cohort        


2. There was a slight decrease in the number of students not prepared.        


3. Focus should be given to improving Hispanic College and Career Readiness, which declined slightly in the Class of 
2019.        


 
 


740/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 


 
Red 


 
Orange 


 
Yellow 


 
Green 


 
Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Though not reported here, the average attendance rate has increased over the course of the 2018-2019 school year.        


2. Attendance rates have responded positively to our case management approach to attendance, resulting in a 97.6% 
attendance rate in 2020-2021.        


 
 


741/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


2        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


94.7         


Maintained -0.7         


266        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


95.2         


Maintained +0.3         


104        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


70.8         


Declined -9.2         


24        


 


742/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


94.5         


Increased +2         


73        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


81.3         


Declined -18.8         


16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


95.7         


Maintained -0.3         


161        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
95.4         


2019         
94.7         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The state did not publish a dashboard in 2020.  Previously, SCHS' overall graduation rate has remained consistent; 


need to focus on increasing the graduation rate of Hispanic students.        
2. Students with disabilities show slight decline.        


3. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students showed an increase in graduation rates.        


 
 


743/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


1.5         


Maintained 0         
1175        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -3.1         
42        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          8        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


2.8         


Increased +0.4         
392        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


4.6         


Declined -0.5         
109        


 


744/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


3.6         


Declined -3.3         
28        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
42        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          8        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


2.1         


Increased +0.4         
341        


Two or More Races 


 
Yellow         


2.8         


Maintained -0.2         
71        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


White     


 
Green         


1.2         


Maintained 0         
677        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.5         


2019     
1.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall student suspension rate stayed the same at 1.5%.        


2. As we implement Restorative Justice, we need to look closely at suspension rates for Hispanic and Low Income 
students and examine why these rates are disproportionately higher.        


 
 


745/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
Improve school climate and culture by providing opportunities for student voice, participation, and ownership of learning 
while challenging and supporting students in their personal and academic growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The area of school connectedness continues to be a focus based upon student/staff/parent survey data, student 
participation data, CA Dashboard absenteeism and suspension data, California Healthy Kid Survey data and the Socio-
Emotional Health Survey data.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student participation data (clubs, 
activities, athletics) match 
demographics        


 2020-2021 Baseline Data on Percent 
Participation in Leadership Class & 
Athletics 
Athletics Percent of Total Population 
= 36% 
 
Leadership: Male 15% Female 85%; 
White 43% Hisp/Lat 23% Af Am 15% 
Asian 15% 
Athletics: Male 59% Female 41%; 
White 69% Hisp/Lat 21% Af Am 5% 
Asian 5% 
 


 Leadership: Increase % of male 
participation in Leadership by 10%, 
Maintain Subgroup participation in 
Leadership. 
 
Athletics: Increase % of female 
participation by 5%, Increase 
Hispanic/Latino % of participation by 
5% 
 


Chronic Absenteeism 
All students/Students with 
Disabilities/Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged/English Learners/ 
Hispanic/ 
 
        


 2018-2019 Baseline data on chronic 
absenteeism: 
All students 11.6% (134/1158) 
H/L 15.8% (53/335) 
Af Am 3.6% (1/28) 
SED 17.2% (53/309) 
SWD 24.3% (26/107) 
EL 20.5% (8/39) 
RFEP 12.9% (23/178) 
Ever EL 14.3% (31/217) 
HMLS 37.5% (3/8) 
Migrant 20.8% (5/24) 
Foster 0% (0/1) 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism rate 
by 5% of base percent in each 
demographic group 


746/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


 
2020-2021 Baseline data: 
All students 3.0% (33/1095) 
H/L 5.3% (18/342) 
Af Am 0.0% (0/33) 
SED 4.7% (18/379) 
SWD 6.2% (6/97) 
EL 4.5% (2/44) 
RFEP 5.1% (9/178) 
Ever EL 5.0% (11/222) 
HMLS 5.6% (6/107) 
Migrant 8.3% (1/12) 
Foster 50.0% (1/2) 
 


Suspension Rate         2019-20 Overall Suspension Rate 
1.1% 
2019-20 Latinx Suspension Rate 
2.1% 
 


 Given the challenges of returning to 
in-person learning, the goal is to 
maintain the overall student 
suspension rate in 21-22  and 
decrease the suspension rate for 
Latinx students in 21-22 by 0.4% to 
1.7% 


Student wellness activities: 
Mindfulness group during Cardinal 
Connect on Thursdays and Fridays 
attendance 
1 on 1 counseling (at least 2 
providers on campus every day) 
 
        


 Gather baseline data in 2021-2022  Maintain high attendance in group 
offerings 
 
Expected outcome is that student 
participation in wellness activities will 
show a balance of gender and ethnic 
subgroups.  Expect to see students 
exited from services or referred on to 
outside services. 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide students with involvement opportunities in activities, athletics, and school service.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, activities director, athletic director, counselors, advisers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 43,207        


Source District Funded        


747/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .40 FTE Activities Director-- 
Continue to increase student involvement in school-based activities and governance.  
Coordinates the LINK Crew program.  Supports the development and sponsorship of 
student clubs. 
 
 
        


Amount 121,251        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Full Time athletic director --provides support and program coordination.  Develops and 
maintains athletic code of ethics and monitors academic standing.        


Amount 2,750        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Purchase student participation software which motivates student participation and aids in 
tracking participation rates        


Amount 2,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Peer Tutoring Coordinator Stipend to recruit and train peer tutors.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide wellness opportunities and support for all students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Counselors, Social/Emotional counselors, Social Workers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 115,063        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 Social Emotional Counselor        


748/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Amount 5,544        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Stipend for Social Work Intern        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Provide connections for students, families and community        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners and Hispanic/Latino students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Counselors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 59,518        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Parent / School Community Coordinator provides translation for staff and conducts 
outreach to families        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Provide Professional Development in Restorative Practices        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description SEEDS will provide professional development to SCHS staff over the course of the 
school year.  This will include full staff trainings and implementation group coaching.        


 


749/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Academic Achievement with a Specific Focus on Academic Literacy and Math          


 
Goal Statement 
Provide professional development in order to implement research-backed high impact instructional strategies and 
aligned curriculum; common assessments in like courses; common grading practice using local data and student voice; 
while providing academic interventions and a supportive learning experience for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Review of the CA Dashboard Academic Performance, Academic Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate 
indicate a need to support all students in aligned instructional and grading practices, while providing additional 
intervention and support for struggling learners.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP English Language Arts         2018-19 Data: 
All: 46.4 points above standard 
Low Income: 1.8 points above 
standard 
SPED:  98.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 7.8 points below 
standard 
 


 Improve 3 points or more 
All: 49.4 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.8 points above 
standard 
SPED: 95.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 4.8 points below 
standard 
 


CAASPP Math         2018-19 Data: 
All: 33.3 points above standard 
Low Income: 7.2 points below 
standard 
SPED: 132.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 22.2 points below 
standard 
 


 Improve 3 points or more 
All: 36.3 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.2 points below 
standard 
SPED: 129.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 19.2 points below 
standard 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Implement Multi-Tiered Systems of Support for academics through MTSS Coordinators that coordinate interventions, 
monitor student progress and provide teachers with ongoing data to inform instruction.        


 


750/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, English Learners, RFEP, Low income Students, Special Education        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, SCIL members, MTSS Coordinators, certificated staff, classified academic support staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 103,372        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description MTSS Coordination (Math) .83  Teacher Coordinators released to support struggling 
learners, monitor student progress and coordinate assessments.  Provide data to math 
teachers to help guide instruction and  determine appropriate interventions.        


Amount 87,919        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description MTSS Coordination (ELA) Teacher Coordinators released to support struggling learners, 
monitor student progress and coordinate assessments.  Provide data to English and ELD 
teachers to help guide instruction and  determine appropriate interventions.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide identified students with additional academic intervention and support.  This includes class size reduction,  
academic support sections, the before and after school learning center support, and credit recovery.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, low income, Special Education, Hispanic        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, MTSS Coordinators, AVID Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 59,269        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3 Math Intervention Classes for identified below-grade level students        


Amount 22,132        


751/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.17 FTE Year-long English Language Arts Support class        


Amount 10,642        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Before/After School Learning Center        


Amount 13,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description After-school small group support for math for struggling students        


Amount 93,293        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Credit Recovery Teacher        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional Development and Professional Learning Communities        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders (SCIL)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,196        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Team stipends to facilitate professional learning 
communities to staff throughout the school year        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Instructional software and materials        


 


752/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Desmos Curriculum for remediation of math learning loss        


Amount 13,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Purchase of Turnitin software that provides draft coaching for students, rubric scoring for 
teachers, and originality checks for both students and teachers        


Amount 4,500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Purchase of Nearpod software that provides platform for computer-based instruction        


Amount 7,500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Purchase of Teachers Pay Teachers to provide supplemental instructional materials for 
remediation and enrichment.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Reduce class size to increase teacher-student  ratio and individual attention        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


753/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Adminstrators        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 294,919        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.0 FTE targeted at reducing class size across all curricular areas        


 


754/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Equity          


 
Goal Statement 
Create and maintain equitable educational opportunities and outcomes for all students by providing high quality 
classroom instruction and curriculum that promotes college and career readiness with academic interventions in place to 
eliminate barriers to student success          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Data from CAASPP scores, with focus on underperforming and underrepresented students and subgroups. Data from 
CA Dashboard.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CASSPP ELA 
All Students 
White 
Hispanic/Latinx 
2 or More Races 
RFEP 
Ever ELs 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2018-2019 % Met + Exceeded Data: 
71.4% of All  students 
82.0% of White students 
47.5% of Hispanic/Latinx students 
72.7% of 2+ race students 
42.9% of RFEP students 
36.6% of Ever EL students 
54.4% Low Income students 
16.4% of SPED students 
 
Groups with fewer than 11 students: 
Af Am, Nat Am, Asian, ELs, Filipino, 
Homeless,  Pac Islander 
 


 2021-2022  Goals: 
Increases in percents of students 
meeting and exceeding in All 
students and in specific subgroups to 
narrow achievement gaps 
74% of All  students 
84% of White students 
56% of Hispanic/Latinx students 
77% of 2+ race students 
47% of RFEP students 
42% of Ever EL students 
59% Low Income students 
21% of SPED students 
 


CASSPP Math 
All Students 
White 
Hispanic/Latinx 
2 or More Races 
RFEP 
Ever ELs 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2018-2019 % Met + Exceeded Data: 
63.5% of All  students 
72.3% of White students 
42.6% of Hispanic/Latinx students 
54.5% of 2+ race students 
54.3% of RFEP students 
48.8% of Ever EL students 
54.4% Low Income students 
8.0% of SPED students 
 
Groups with fewer than 11 students: 


 2021-2022 Goals: 
3% increases in percents of students 
meeting and exceeding in All 
students and in each subgroup 
66% of All  students 
75% of White students 
45% of Hispanic/Latinx students 
57% of 2+ race students 
57% of RFEP students 
51% of Ever EL students 
57% Low Income students 
11% of SPED students 


755/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Af Am, Nat Am, Asian, ELs, Filipino, 
Homeless,  Pac Islander 
 


 


A-G Completion Rate         Percent A-G, 4-year college eligible 
2018-19 74% 
2019-20 72% 
2020-21 73% 
 
2020-21 Subgroups: White 87%, H/L 
40%, AA 56%, EL 50%, RFEP 53%, 
SED 52%, SPED 29% 
 


 2021-22 Goal: 
75% are A-G, 4-year college eligible 
 
Improve H/L and SED rate by 5% 
(subgroups over 10 students) 
 


Advanced Placement Testing Data         2018-19 78% scores were 3 or higher 
2019-20 72% scores were 3 or higher 
2020-21 69% of scores were 3 or 
higher 
 
2018-19 Disaggregated Data: 
Asian 87.3% scores were 3 or higher 
Af/Am 71.4% scores were 3 or higher 
H/L 77.0% scores were 3 or higher 
2+ Races: 78.6% scores were 3 or 
higher 
White 85.6% scores were 3 or higher 
 


 2021-2022 Goal 
76% scores at 3 or higher 
 
Improve H/L number of 3+ scores to 
82%, 2+ Races number of 3+ scores 
to 83% 
 


Graduation Rate         2018-19 Graduation Rates 
All Students 94.7% 
Hispanic/Latinx: 94.5% 
White: 95.7% 
2 or More Races: 81.3% 
Low Income: 95.2% 
Students with Disabilities: 70.8% 
 
2020-2021 Graduation Rates 
All Students - 94.1% 
Hispanic/Latinx - 92.75% 
White - 95.8% 
2 or More Races - too few students to 
report 
Low Income - 91.18% 
Students with Disabilities - 76.19% 
 
African American, Asian, Filipino, and 
Homeless subgroups were too small 
to be statistically significant. 
 
Graduation rates in 2019-20 were 
roughly equal to slightly lower than 
the 2018-19 rates.  We choose to 
display 2018-19 because it's the last 
school year not impacted by COVID. 
 


 2021-22 Goals 
 
All: 96.7% (increase 2%) 
Low Income: 98.2% (increase 3%) 
Students with Disabilities: 74.8%  
(increase 4%) 
Hispanic/Latinx: 97.5% (increase 3%) 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


756/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide academic support for identified students, including first generation, English learners, socio-economically 
disadvantaged        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All 
Subgroups (RFEP, Limited Income, special education, Hispanic) 
        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, SCIL, Certificated staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 80,815        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Provide three AVID courses to support first generation and underrepresented students to 
prepare for college.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Supporting English Learner students with academic intervention and support        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learner Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Building administration, SCIL, English Language DevelopmentTeacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 22,132        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.17 FTE Classroom teacher for English Language Development support class        


Amount 10,642        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Provide Spanish language support for English Learner progress in mathematics        


757/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Amount 75,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Bilingual Para Educator to provide academic support for English Learner Students        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional development and Training (AVID and AP Specific)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, SCIL, MTSS, AVID Coordinator, AP Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 12,750        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Training and conferences for AVID and/or AP training opportunities        


Strategy/Activity 4 
AP Testing Supplemental Support        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Socioeconomically disadvantaged        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, AVID and AP Coordinators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Support socioeconomically disadvantaged students with AP testing fee payments        


Strategy/Activity 5 


758/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Technology Access and improved communication for All Students        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ALL with focus on socioeconomically disadvantaged        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Assessment and supplemental instructional programs        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student technology supplies including infrastructure        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Economically disadvantaged students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrative team, counseling team, AVID site team, certificated staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchasing of  technology, including internet access, for low income students        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Small Group Tutoring        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, Low Income, English Learners, Reclassified Fully English Proficient Students, Students below grade level 
as determined by local assessments 
        


 
Timeline 


759/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
MTSS Coordinator, Site administrators, Counselors, Parent/Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 51,500        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description One-on-one and small group after-school virtual tutoring in curricular areas of greatest 
need (math, science, social studies, LOTE)        


 


760/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
Data-informed alignment of curriculum, instruction, and assessment          


 
Goal Statement 
Develop a systematic means to collect and analyze student data to inform instruction and school programs.  This data 
will be used by all teachers to modify instruction, both short and long term, to support higher levels of student 
achievement.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Standards-based learning is one of the most effective means toward an equitable guaranteed and viable curriculum.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Departments routinely work in 
course-alike groups to implement 
standards-based learning practices: 
1. priority standards, 
2. proficiency scales, 
3. aligned tasks and rubrics, 
4. collaborative inspection and 
scoring of student work, 
5. aligned scope and sequence in 
each course, 
6. shared assessments with aligned 
scoring. 
        


 By 2020-21, most 
departments/course-alike teams have 
completed half of these steps.  A few 
departments have completed 4 of the 
6 steps. 


 All departments will complete at least 
four data cycles for one or more 
priority standards.  At least one of 
these cycles will include a collective 
scoring session. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide and facilitate professional development and collaboration in the following areas: 
Integrated English Language Development 
High Impact Instructional Strategies 
Priority Standards and Common Assessment 
        


 


761/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrators, SCIL, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Outside consultants provide training in High Impact Instructional Strategies; Integrated 
English Language Development; Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment Alignment        


Amount 7,000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Professional Development on Standards Based Learning (Equitable Grading Practices) - 
priority standards, proficiency scales, development of rubrics, and alignment of 
curriculum and assessments        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide support for Grading Inquiry Project Action Research Teams (Cohort 1 and Cohort 2)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Grading Inquiry Project Action Research Team (GIP-ART) members        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Provide stipends and paid release time for team members to receive training and to 
collaborate.        


Amount 20,736        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


762/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Grading Inquiry Project Action Research team stipends to research, develop, and 
implement Standards Based Learning 
 
        


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Provide scholarly research and research backed training for GIP-ART members        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Data Support        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Provide hourly data production and data entry for analysis by faculty, administrators, and 
GIP-ART members        


 


763/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
Improve school climate and culture by providing opportunities for student voice, participation, and ownership of learning 
while challenging and supporting students in their personal and academic growth .          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Student participation data (clubs, 
activities, athletics) match 
demographics        


 Increase of 1%.  With COVID, it is 
more difficult to create these 
opportunities and we are still 
uncertain about whether we can have 
athletics. 


 Athletics, activities, and leadership 
participation reflect the demographics 
of the school. 


Chronic Absenteeism 
All students/Students with 
Disabilities/Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged/English Learners/ 
Hispanic/Latinx 
 
        


 Decrease chronic absenteeism rate 
by 5% of base  percent in each 
demographic group 


 2018-19 Data: Total 11.6%,  H/L 
15.8%, AA 3.6%, SED 17.2%, SWD 
24.3%, EL 20.5%, RFEP 12.9%, Ever 
EL 14.3%, HMLS 37.5%,Migrant 
20.8%, Foster 0.0% 
 
2020-21 Data: Total 3.6% 
 
Goal met in total.  Need the subgroup 
data. 
 


Suspension Rate         Decrease the overall student 
suspension rate in 20-21 by .3%, for 
an overall rate of 1.2%. 


 Overall suspension rate for 2020-21 
was 0.09%. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide students with involvement opportunities in 
activities, athletics, academics, and input into 
school policies and expectations. 


 Activities director worked with ASB and leadership 
students to provide a pandemic-modified version 
of most school activities.  Clubs met on Zoom, 
socially distanced activities such as the Senior 
Breakfast and Movie Night were held outdoors.  A 
dance was not possible. 


 


Provide wellness opportunities and support for all 
students. 


 Our MFT counselor created many opportunities for 
students to meet in Zoom and later in person in 
small focused groups around a shared interest.  
One-on-one sessions were accomplished on 
Zoom. 


 


Provide connections for students, families and 
community. 


 The School Community Coordinator position was 
increased to 1.0 for the first time using site-
discretionary funding to add the additional 0.4 
necessary.  This position was immediately 
deployed in family outreach, both via phone and 
by home visits.  The SCC was instrumental in 


 


764/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


assuring that our families without internet service 
were able to receive Verizon hotspots in order to 
access their education.  In addition, the SCC 
person facilitated one of the classrooms of small 
cohorts from November through April. 


Online purchasing system for student/community 
purchases of school merchandise, charges for 
school events, AP and PSAT testing payments. 
Tracks student engagement data. 


 This intended expenditure was not enacted due to 
the complexities of how the district's finance 
department requires purchasing to be routed 
through a platform that is compatible with the 
student information system. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During the 2020-2021 school year, there were 3 phases: first, all students learned in a synchronous, but virtual 
environment; next we brought small cohorts on campus; and finally, we had about 80% of students coming to campus 2 
days per week in a hybrid schedule.  In each of these manifestations, we worked to create new ways of conducting the 
major activities of high school.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Some of our initiatives were quite successful, such as assigning a case manager to students who were demonstrating 
poor attendance and having consistent outreach by both the school community coordinator and the social emotional 
counselor.  We were able to offer a shortened sports season, with most sports able to practice and compete within a 
short time period in the spring.  Our effectiveness was difficult to measure, but we found that students  and their families 
were extremely grateful for our efforts, and were understanding of the challenges we were working against.  A particular 
highlight was that we were able to hold a socially distanced graduation with the entire senior class and all their invited 
guests in attendance on our Memorial Field.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The only material difference was in funding the School Community Coordinator position at 1.0 by adding in site 
discretionary LCFF monies.  As noted, ASB works was not purchased; this is a small proposed expenditure.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We are looking forward to a school year characterized by a gradual return to normalcy.  As such, we are hoping to 
increase athletics participation while maintaining the demographic balance that mirrors that of the school at large.  We 
have a goal to increase the diversity of students participating in leadership and to be able to measure the increases in 
underrepresented group participation in activities.  An example of an activity that we hope will help increase both 
participation and diversity is our Link Crew expansion.  All of these activities are in Goal 1: Connectedness in the SPSA.          


 


765/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
Provide professional development in order to implement common instructional strategies and aligned curriculum; 
common assessments in like courses; common grading practice using local data and student voice; while providing a 
supportive learning experience for all students.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


CAASPP English Language Arts         Improve 3 points or more 
 
ALL: 49.4 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.8 points above 
standard 
SPED: 95.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latinx: 4.8 points below 
standard 
 


 Unknown - CAASPP results not 
reported in 2020-21 


CAASPP Math         Improve 3 points or more 
 
ALL: 36.3 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.2 points below 
standard 
SPED: 129.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latinx: 19.2 points below 
standard 
 


 Unknown - CAASPP results not 
reported in 2020-21 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide and facilitate professional development 
and collaboration in the following areas: 
Academic Literacy--daily relevant, complex 
reading,writing, speaking and listening 
Develop common instructional strategies and 
aligned curriculum in course alike courses. 
Research and determine best practices in common 
grading practices 
Provide AVID-specific professional development 
and learning opportunities for certificated staff. 
 
 
 


 Teachers professional learning activities centered 
around learning how to deliver instruction in a 
synchronous virtual environment and how to 
deliver hybrid instruction with part of the class on 
Zoom and part of the class in person. 


 


Provide identified students with additional 
academic intervention and support.  Specific focus:  
mathematics (Math/Algebra Foundations and 
Integrated Math 1A/1B), ELA,  AVID 
(academic/social-emotional/College & Career). 


 Math/Algebra 1 Foundations (2 sections of this 
year long sequence), Integrated Math 1A/1B, Math 
Plus (Tsao and Anapolsky), Peer tutoring, ELA 
support class (Palumbo), 4 sections of AVID 
combined with A-G academic classes, Course-
specific tutoring with certificated teachers 


 


766/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide professional development opportunities,  
release time and/or extra work agreement to 
certificated staff for the purpose of developing:  
common instructional strategies, common 
assessments, common grading practices. 


 Professional development provided on instruction 
on Zoom, trainings in instructional software 
(Nearpod, Teachers Pay Teachers, etc.), Peer-to-
peer choice professional development offerings.  
Grading Inquiry Project Action Research Team 
stipends for meetings and trainings.  Grading for 
Equity workshop in June. 


 


Software and teacher supplies for distance 
learning and hybrid learning. 


 Purchase of Nearpod and Teachers Pay Teachers  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The planned activities were a Multi-tiered System of Support, creation of a Math Intervention class, professional 
development, and purchase of educational technology.  In addition to these activities, we created numerous 
interventions tailored to the needs of students in the distance learning environment.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Measurable performance indicators tended to dip slightly, such as the graduation rate, the A-G completion rate, and AP 
performance.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
No material differences in spending.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
The MTSS program will be expanded to include more FTE devoted to math and we will add FTE devoted to English 
Language Learners.  In addition to maintaining our Math Intervention classes, we are adding support classes in ELA and 
ELD.  We have added an ELD 3 class for EL students.          


 


767/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
Create and maintain equitable educational opportunities and outcomes for all students by providing high quality 
classroom instruction and curriculum that promotes college and career readiness with academic interventions in place to 
eliminate barriers to student success          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


SBAC ELA 
All Students 
RFEP 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2020-2021 
75% 
48% 
60% 
25% 
 


 Actual participation rate was 70% 
overall 


SBAC Math 
All Students 
RFEP 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2020-2021 
68% 
60% 
60% 
16% 
 


 Actual Participation Rate was 70% 
overall 


A-G Completion Rate         2020-21 
 
76% are A-G, 4-year college eligible 
 


 69% were A-G College Eligible 


Advanced Placement Testing data         2020-2021 
74% scores at 3 or higher 
 


 69% of scores were 3 or higher 
 
White: 85.6% scores 3+ 
H/L: 77.0% scores 3+ 
Af/Am: 71.4% scores 3+ 
Asian: 87.3% scores 3+ 
2+ Races: 78.6% scores 3+ 
 


Graduation Rate         2020-21 Goals 
 
All: 96.7% (increase 2%) 
Low Income: 96.2% (increase 1%) 
Students with Disabilities: 75.8%  
(increase 5%) 
Hispanic/Latinx: 96.5% (increase 2%) 
 


 2020-21 
All: 94.33% 
Low Income: 91.1% (increase 1%) 
Hispanic/Latino 92.9% 
Students with Disabilities: 76.2% 
 
 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide mathematics small group tutoring for 
struggling students. 


 Provide mathematics small group tutoring for 
struggling students. 


 


Supporting transitional English students with 
academic intervention and support. 


 Transitional English was provided as intended, 
with a support/preview class in the fall semester 


 


768/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


followed by inclusion into a mainstream English 1 
class in the spring. 


Professional development and Training (AVID and 
AP Specific). 


 Professional development and Training (AVID and 
AP Specific). 


 


AP Testing Supplemental Support.  AP Testing Supplemental Support.  


Technology Access and improved communication 
for All Students. 


 Technology Access and improved communication 
for All Students. 


 


Student Supplies  Student Supplies  


Small Group Tutoring  Small Group Tutoring was provided by peer tutors 
and certificated teachers 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
In the main, these planned activities were conducted with fidelity.  They had to be altered to meet COVID-safety 
requirements, with many fewer in-person opportunities.  A great deal of effort went into contacting and supporting 
families that live to the north of Santa Cruz.  They do not have wired internet services and there is only one cellular 
company, Verizon, that has somewhat reliable hotspots.  The AP was unique this past year in that it offered 3 different 
testing periods: one in person in early May, with pencil and paper tests; a second that was fully digital in mid-May; and a 
third which was also fully digital in June after school let out.  As the AP example demonstrates, each educational 
undertaking was entirely new to us.  This was complicated further by the CZU Fire which shut down school for 2 weeks 
and displaced many of our students and staff.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
We found that we were effective in any initiative where we assigned a school person to reach out to students.  When we 
created opportunities and waited for students to self-select to participate, these often went under-utilized.  For example, 
in order to increase participation with peer tutoring, we had the tutors reach out to students and invite them.  We were 
proud of what we accomplished in 2020-21.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between proposed and estimated actual expenditures.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We will be shifting our efforts to provide an equitable academic program with supports for struggling and 
underrepresented students so that they may achieve equal to their peers.  As seen in Goal 3, we will bring more 
specialized staff on campus to work with students based on their particular needs, such as bilingual para-educators to 
provide classroom, individual, and small group support.          


 


769/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
Data-informed alignment of curriculum, instruction, and assessment          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 
startcollapse  
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


startcollapse 
 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Not applicable.  This is a new goal for 2021-22          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Not applicable.  This is a new goal for 2021-22          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Not applicable.  This is a new goal for 2021-22          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Not applicable.  This is a new goal for 2021-22.          


 


770/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  0 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  1,462,650.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


771/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


District Funded         1,067,815.00 


ESSER         5,000.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         221,335.00 


SB86         161,500.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality         7,000.00 
 


772/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         893,632.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         397,018.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         5,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 62,750.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 104,250.00 


 


773/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  746,439.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  301,376.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 District Funded  20,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         ESSER  5,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  132,193.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  20,642.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  35,750.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  32,750.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  15,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  75,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 SB86  20,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 SB86  51,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 7,000.00 


 


774/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


3 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle Poirier         X Principal        


Kirsten Pohlman         X Parent or Community Member        


Victoria Sanchez-Toledo         X Parent or Community Member        


Jill Denning         X Parent or Community Member        


Cathy McDougall         X Classroom Teacher        


Peter Boscacci         X Classroom Teacher        


Rita Medina         X Other School Staff        


Gwyneth Holcomb         X Secondary Student        


Stuart Kumaishi         X Classroom Teacher        


Sam Attard         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


775/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 60 Santa Cruz High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/20/21. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Michelle Poirier on 09-15-2021 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Cathy McDougall on 09-15-2021 


 


776/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 61 Soquel High School


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Soquel High School         


Address 401 Old San Jose Rd.         
Soquel, CA 95073-2213 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234437406         


Principal Greg O'Meara         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 20, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 1, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


777/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 61 Soquel High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Vision:   Soquel High is a diverse, creative, and professional learning community that encourages and supports all 
students to achieve intellectual and personal excellence, and to be prepared for college, career, and society. 
 
Mission:  Educate - Engage - Empower 
 
Values: Kindness, Collaboration, Equity, Diversity, Integrity, Responsibility, Safety 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
School Profile 
 
The forty-acre Soquel High School campus is located on a plateau in the foothills of this Coastal California community 
one mile from the shores of Monterey Bay, six miles south of Santa Cruz and forty-five miles north of Carmel.  Soquel 
High is bordered by the confluence of Soquel Creek as it flows to Capitola-By-The-Sea through the wooded 
surroundings of this campus.  Fishing, hiking, bicycling, running, and aquatic sports are all popular pastimes for Soquel 
families and are reflected in many annual events. 
 
Strong as a “commute” community to the employment centers of Monterey, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, San Jose and the 
Silicon Valley, Soquel (a Costanoan Indian word for “place of the willows”) takes pride in its own social and commercial 
center of Soquel Village with its shops, businesses and recreational areas. 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District is comprised of four elementary schools, two middle schools, three comprehensive 
high schools, one continuation high school, and several alternative programs available to middle school and senior high 
school students.  The Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) accredits schools in our district. 
 
Students at Soquel High School reside in the Soquel Village area, Capitola-By-The-Sea, Live Oak, Aptos, Watsonville, 
and parts of Santa Cruz and Scotts Valley.  These students come from the Soquel Elementary School District, the Live 
Oak Elementary School District, the Mountain School District, Pajaro Valley Unified School District, and Santa Cruz City 
Schools.  Students are served by Cabrillo Community College, University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC), California 
State University at Monterey Bay and are in proximity to San Jose State University and many Santa Cruz County 
Regional Occupational Programs. 
 
Soquel High School is a comprehensive public school with a student population of approximately 1,200 in grades nine 
through twelve.  Soquel offers and affirms a challenging and rigorous academic program leading to graduation as well as 
surpassing college entrance requirements.  Computer research, several career technical education (CTE) programs 
articulated with area community colleges and training programs, a vital visual and performing arts department as well as 
honors and thirteen advanced placement courses in all academic areas exemplify the excellence sought by this school.  
Students from a broad and diverse suburban population come together at Soquel to learn and grow toward their futures. 
 
 
Greg O'Meara, Principal 
Amine Bouchti, Assistant Principal 
Jose Quevedo, Assistant Principal 
Stuart Walters, Athletic Director 
Layla Dawson, Activities Director 
 
 
 
 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


778/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 61 Soquel High School


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
School Site Council oversees our SPSA and regularly meets to discuss and give input into different aspects of our 
(School Plan for Student Achievement)SPSA. The Soquel High School SSC consists of certificated faculty, classified 
staff, site administration, students, and parents/guardians. Additionally, the Soquel ELAC annually reviews and gives 
input to the Soquel SPSA as does the Soquel Student Leadership team, and Soquel SCIL team. 
 
         


 


779/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     0.34% 0.28% 1.0% 4 3 10 


African American     0.26% 0.28% 1.4% 3 3 14 


Asian     1.28% 1.3% 2.5% 15 14 26 


Filipino     1.36% 1.3% 1.2% 16 14 12 


Hispanic/Latino     35.72% 36.83% 36.9% 419 397 382 


Pacific Islander     0.09% 0.19% 0.3% 1 2 3 


White     52.94% 53.53% 54.1% 621 577 559 


Multiple/No Response     5.8% 6.31% 2.7% 68 68 28 


 Total Enrollment 1,173 1,078 1,034 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 9        343 224 269 


Grade 10        314 322 209 


Grade 11        247 294 282 


Grade 12        269 238 274 


Total Enrollment        1,173 1,078 1,034 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our overall student population slightly decreased in 2020-2021        


2. Our two largest groups based on ethnicity (White/Hispanic) These population sizes continue to remain relatively 
similar over the previous three years.        


 


780/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        47 40 52 4.0% 3.7% 5.0% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        260 255 226 22.2% 23.7% 21.9% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        8 7 2 16.0% 14.9% 5.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our English Learner population increased by 12 students in 2020-2021. It should be noted that Soquel High does 


not have a newcomer program for English Learners. Harbor High School in Santa Cruz City Schools is our 
comprehensive high school offering a newcomer program.        


2. During the 2020-21 school year, RFEP percentage decreased (11%).  However, the overall number of students 
included in this data point is statistically insignificant.        


 


781/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 223 284 238 211 262 234 211 262 234 94.6 92.3 98.3 
All 
Grades 


223 284 238 211 262 234 211 262 234 94.6 92.3 98.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2625.
5 


2585.
8 


2630.
5 


33.65 22.90 32.48 34.12 32.06 38.03 17.06 19.08 20.51 15.17 25.95 8.97 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 33.65 22.90 32.48 34.12 32.06 38.03 17.06 19.08 20.51 15.17 25.95 8.97 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 44.08 36.64 43.10 43.13 41.98 44.83 12.80 21.37 12.07 


All Grades 44.08 36.64 43.10 43.13 41.98 44.83 12.80 21.37 12.07 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 37.44 27.20 37.23 40.76 42.91 48.92 21.80 29.89 13.85 


All Grades 37.44 27.20 37.23 40.76 42.91 48.92 21.80 29.89 13.85 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 39.34 22.52 32.19 52.13 62.98 62.23 8.53 14.50 5.58 


All Grades 39.34 22.52 32.19 52.13 62.98 62.23 8.53 14.50 5.58 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 35.07 25.57 42.24 47.87 47.33 50.00 17.06 27.10 7.76 


All Grades 35.07 25.57 42.24 47.87 47.33 50.00 17.06 27.10 7.76 


782/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 61 Soquel High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Data obtained in the Covid-19/Hybrid  19-20 and 20-21 cycles of CAASPP is statistically insignificant and not 


included in this analysis        
 


783/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 223 284 238 211 261 229 211 261 229 94.6 91.9 96.2 
All 
Grades 


223 284 238 211 261 229 211 261 229 94.6 91.9 96.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2559.
9 


2547.
8 


2590.
4 


9.95 9.20 10.92 21.33 18.01 30.13 24.17 22.61 25.76 44.55 50.19 33.19 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 9.95 9.20 10.92 21.33 18.01 30.13 24.17 22.61 25.76 44.55 50.19 33.19 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 18.48 20.31 26.20 27.96 23.37 32.31 53.55 56.32 41.48 


All Grades 18.48 20.31 26.20 27.96 23.37 32.31 53.55 56.32 41.48 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 14.69 13.41 17.47 48.34 40.61 55.46 36.97 45.98 27.07 


All Grades 14.69 13.41 17.47 48.34 40.61 55.46 36.97 45.98 27.07 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 14.69 11.49 21.40 50.71 52.11 53.28 34.60 36.40 25.33 


All Grades 14.69 11.49 21.40 50.71 52.11 53.28 34.60 36.40 25.33 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Data obtained in the Covid-19/Hybrid  19-20 and 20-21 cycles of CAASPP is statistically insignificant and not 


included in this analysis.        
 


784/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        1561.4 1531.3 1563.3 1524.5 1559.0 1537.3 18 16 


Grade 10        1520.9 1560.8 1512.5 1559.8 1528.6 1561.2 11 17 


Grade 11        1523.2 * 1596.2 * 1449.8 * 13 4 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * 7 


All Grades              52 44 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 6.25 * 37.50 * 37.50 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 41.18 * 17.65 * 29.41 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        34.62 20.45 36.54 36.36 * 29.55 * 13.64 52 44 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 12.50 * 43.75 * 37.50 * 6.25 18 16 


  10    * 41.18 * 29.41 * 17.65 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * *  *  * 13 * 


  12    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        55.77 25.00 34.62 40.91 * 27.27 * 6.82 52 44 
 


785/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 61 Soquel High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 18.75 * 43.75 * 37.50 18 16 


  10    * 17.65 * 41.18 * 23.53 * 17.65 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 6.82 30.77 38.64 30.77 31.82 26.92 22.73 52 44 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 81.25 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 29.41 * 47.06 * 23.53 11 17 


  11    * * * *  * 13 * 


All Grades        38.46 11.36 51.92 65.91 * 22.73 52 44 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    77.78 68.75 * 25.00 * 6.25 18 16 


  10    * 82.35 * 5.88 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    92.31 * * *  * 13 * 


All Grades        82.69 77.27 * 15.91 * 6.82 52 44 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 43.75 * 56.25 18 16 


  10    * 23.53 * 47.06 * 29.41 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 9.09 44.23 54.55 44.23 36.36 52 44 
 


786/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 61 Soquel High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 6.25 66.67 75.00 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 5.88 * 82.35 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        32.69 6.82 50.00 79.55 * 13.64 52 44 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Data obtained in the Covid-19/Hybrid  19-20 and 20-21 cycles of CAASPP is statistically insignificant and not 


included in this analysis.        
 


 


787/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


1,078        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


28.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


3.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.3        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        40 3.7 


Foster Youth        3 0.3 


Homeless        4 0.4 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        312 28.9 


Students with Disabilities        105 9.7 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        3 0.3 


American Indian        3 0.3 


Asian        14 1.3 


Filipino        14 1.3 


Hispanic        397 36.8 


Two or More Races        68 6.3 


Pacific Islander        2 0.2 


White        577 53.5 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


788/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 61 Soquel High School


 
        


 
 


789/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


 
College/Career 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Yellow        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


790/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


48.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++45.5 points         
229        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


19 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++54.1 points         
79        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


67.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++51 points         


15        


 


791/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 61 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


27.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++68.8 points         
86        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


72.2 points above standard         


12        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


59.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++33.5 points         
121        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


English Only 


58.4 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++37.8 points         
169        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


792/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


2        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


37.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++42.8 points         
224        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


71.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++55.7 points         
76        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


189 points below standard         


Increased ++3.7 points         


15        


 


793/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 61 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


66.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++62.9 points         
86        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


10.8 points below standard         


12        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


23.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++33.7 points         
116        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


English Only 


28.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++34 points         


164        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


794/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


41.5 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 41          


Performance Level: Low        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


39.0         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


19.5         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


7.3         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


34.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


795/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


49.5         


Maintained +1.1         


275        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


13        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


38.2         


Increased +5.6         


110        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


15         


Increased Significantly +15         


20        


 


796/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 61 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


43.5         


Increased +4.1         


85        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


50         


Declined Significantly -14.7         


12        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Yellow         


50.9         


Maintained -0.4         


165        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
48.4 Prepared         


24 Approaching Prepared         
27.6 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
49.5 Prepared         


20.4 Approaching Prepared         
30.2 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


797/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


91.6         


Declined -4.7         


275        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


76.9         


Declined -15.4         


13        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


89.1         


Declined -8.7         


110        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


80         


Declined -13.3         


20        


 


798/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 61 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


88.2         


Declined -9.1         


85        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


91.7         


Declined -2.5         


12        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Yellow         


92.7         


Declined -2.9         


165        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
96.3         


2019         
91.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


799/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 61 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


4        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


6.2         


Increased +2.6         
1224        


English Learners 


 
Green         


4.2         


Declined -1.3         
48        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


6.5         


Increased +2.1         
416        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


8.7         


Increased +1.6         
115        


 


800/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 61 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
15        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


6.3         


Increased +0.4         
16        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


5.3         


Increased +0.4         
437        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


8.1         


Increased +4.3         
99        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


White     


 
Red         


6.8         


Increased Significantly +3.9         
649        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
3.6         


2019     
6.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 


Dashboard. However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the 
Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of 
data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
 
        


 
 


801/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 61 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Literacy in All Content Areas          


 
Goal Statement 
Student A-G completion rates will increase by 3% for traditionally under-represented student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and Students With Disabilities.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our ELs, Hispanic/Latino, SED, and SWD students are under-performing in comparison to their White peers.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


A-G completion for white students 
compared to under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities.        


 A-G met for the Class of 2020-2021 
60% (153 of 253) of all grads 
22% (2 of 9) English Learners 
46% (42 of 91) Hispanic 
69% (91 of 132) White 
44% (36 of 82) Socio Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) 
9%  (2 of 23) Students with 
Disabilities (SWD) 
 
 
A-G met for the Class of 2019-2020 
69% (156 of 227) of all grads 
67% (2 of 3) English Learners 
63% (52 of 83) Hispanic 
72% (88 of 122) White 
59% (40 of 68) Socio Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) 
25%  (3 of 12) Students with 
Disabilities (SWD) 
 
 
A-G met for the Class of 2018-2019 
64% (166 of 259) of all grads 
17% (1 of 6) English Learners 
49% (39 of 80) Hispanic 


 Soquel High School A-G completion 
rates will increase by 3% for 
traditionally under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities. 


802/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 61 Soquel High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


69% (107 of 156) White 
43% (37 of 86) Socio Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) 
19%  (3 of 16) Students with 
Disabilities (SWD) 
 
 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide ELA Support Classes entitled  English PLUS.  Students enroll in courses when struggling in ELA class. This is 
especially crucial for providing support in a distance learning environment. Criteria for enrollment: Achievement data, 
teacher recommendation.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students who are struggling in English class and receiving grade of C- or lower.  ELA teacher can recommend students 
for the course.        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
ELA Teacher(s) and ELA PLUS Teacher(s)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 37,530        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description This is a .4 allocation for sections/courses designed specifically to support under-
performing students.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,650 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, SCIL team        


803/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 21,450        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Each content area is represented by Santa Cruz Instructional Leader (SCIL) who 
facilitates PLC meeting with content area departments and serves as the instructional 
leader in respective curricular dept.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Homework Club        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Teachers, and School Counselors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,574        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for two teachers to run homework club.        


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Extra Work Hours Compensation for Tutoring beyond contracted time.        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description .        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Amount 35,196        


Source SB86        


804/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 61 Soquel High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Small group and individual tutoring via Soquel HS Virtual Tutoring Center (Learning Loss 
Mitigation Funding)        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Peer Tutoring Program        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students will have access to supplemental tutoring services via trained peer tutors in each core area.        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and Peer Tutoring Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,416        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Peer Tutoring Coordinators        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Collaboration release time for staff in order to support instructional strategies and articulation between departments        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release/Collaboration Time        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Supplemental Technology to support student access to curriculum.        


 


805/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 61 Soquel High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School and District Personnel        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description Technology hardware to supplement current inventory.        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Professional Development to Support School Goals        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and SCIL Leaders        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 12,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Professional development opportunities to support enhanced curriculum  content 
knowledge and delivery.        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Additional classes throughout the SHS Master Teaching Schedule to provide additional access to overall high school 
program        


 


806/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 61 Soquel High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Soquel Administration and Certificated Teachers as assigned        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 255,812        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Thirteen additional sections in the SHS Master Schedule (AVID 10, Math Plus, Biology, 
Choir, Sustainable Agriculture, Advanced Floral Design, English, Ceramics)        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Full time Credit Recovery Teacher        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students needing to recover academic credits not earned toward graduation and/or A-G Requirements        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School Administration and Credit Recovery Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 93,825        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Full time teacher to support students needing to gain units needed for graduation and/or 
A-G completion.        


 


807/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 61 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
We will continue to focus on equity as it relates to school-wide student involvement in extracurricular activities.  
Specifically, the demographics of our student population will be reflected in ASB Leadership, AVID, campus clubs, 
athletics, theatre productions, and participation in our music programs.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our ELs, Hispanic/Latino, SED, and SWD students are less involved in our school community compared to their White 
peers. Students participating in ASB, Athletics, Campus Clubs, and Performing Arts are White/Caucasian.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student groups participating in 
Athletics        


 2020-2021 
Athletics impacted by pandemic. Data 
not available. 
 
2019-2020 
 
21%  EL 
28%  SED 
16%  SpEd 
33%  Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
5.3% EL 
17.5% SED 
4.3% SpEd 
25.4% Hispanic 
 


 2021-2022 
 
EL (maintain or improve 2019-20 % 
of ELs participating in athletics) 
SED (maintain or improve 2019-20 % 
of SED participating in athletics) 
SpEd (maintain or improve 2019-20 
% of SpEd participating in athletics) 
Hispanic (maintain or improve 2019-
20 % of Hispanics participating in 
athletics) 
 


Student groups participating in 
Advancement Via Individual 
Determination (AVID)        


 2020-2021 
 
36% EL 
46% SED 
2.9% SpEd 
66% Hispanic 


 2021-2022 
 
EL  (maintain or improve 2020-21 % 
of ELs participating in AVID) 
SED  (maintain or improve 2020-21% 
of SED participating in AVID) 


808/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 61 Soquel High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


 
 
2019-2020 
 
21% EL 
21% SED 
3% SpEd 
20% Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
34% EL 
54% SED 
2.8% SpEd 
71% Hispanic 
 


SpEd (maintain or improve 2020-21 
% of SpEd  participating in AVID) 
Hispanic  (maintain or improve 2020-
21% of Hispanics participating in 
AVID) 
 


Student groups participating in 
Campus Organizations        


 2020-2021 
 
Clubs/Organizations impacted by 
pandemic. Data not available. 
 
 
 
2019-2020 
 
33% EL 
30% SED 
20% SpEd 
29% Hispanic 
 
2018-2019 
 
4.5% EL 
28% SED 
6.8% SpEd 
37% Hispanic 
 


 2021-2022 
 
EL  (maintain or improve 2019-20% 
of ELs participating in campus 
organizations) 
SED (maintain or improve 2019-20 % 
of SED participating in campus 
organizations) 
SpEd (maintain or improve 2019-20% 
of SpEd  participating in campus 
organizations) 
Hispanic (maintain or improve 2019-
20 % of Hispanics participating in 
campus organizations) 
 


Student groups participating in 
Performing Arts        


 2021-2022 
 
12.2 %EL 
14.3 %SED 
10.3 %SpEd 
16 %Hispanic 
 
 
2019-2020 
 
10% EL 
18% SED 
14% SpEd 
17% Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
2.6% EL 
30% SED 
9.3% SpEd 


 2020-2021 
 
EL (maintain or improve 200-21% of 
ELs participating in the Performing 
Arts) 
SED (maintain or improve 2020-21% 
of SED participating in Performing 
Arts) 
SpEd (maintain or improve 2020-21% 
of SpEd participating in Performing 
Arts) 
Hispanic (maintain or improve 2020-
21% of ELs participating in 
Performing Arts) 
 


809/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 61 Soquel High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


36% Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Leadership Class        


 2021-2022 
 
0 %EL 
1 %SED 
1 %SpEd 
1.3 %Hispanic 
 
 
0% EL 
2% SED 
0% SpEd 
2% Hispanic 
 
2018-2019 
 
0% EL 
14% SED 
0% SpEd 
22% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
EL (Increase of 5% to reflect general 
student population) 
SED (Increase of 5% to reflect 
general student population) 
SpEd (Increase of 5% to reflect 
general student population) 
Hispanic (Increase of 5% to reflect 
general student population) 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Social Emotional Specialist/Counselor        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site/District Administration along with Social Emotional Specialist/Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 150,916        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Full time Social-Emotional Specialist/Counselor to support students as we emerge from 
the Covid-19 pandemic        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


810/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 61 Soquel High School


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Bi-Lingual Academic College/Career Counselor (.6)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
202-2022 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site/District Administration, School Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 55,122        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Additional .6FTE (60%) for bilingual school counselor (Other .4 Funded through General 
Fund)        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Bi-Lingual Community Coordinator (.4)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for the 2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School Community Coordinator, Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 46,289        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Additional .4  FTE (40%) for bilingual school community coordinator.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Link Crew Transition and Orientation program for incoming 9th graders        


 


811/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 61 Soquel High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All 9th grade and new students enrolling at Soquel High School.        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Link Crew Mentors (two teachers)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds for supplies for new student orientation        


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Stipends for Link Crew Leaders        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Additional professional development for Link Crew Leaders and Coordinators        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Activities Director (.4)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site/District Administration  and Activities Director        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 51,418        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


812/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 61 Soquel High School


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 6 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


 


813/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 61 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
The demographics of students in our most challenging courses (AP & Honors), will be reflective of our overall school 
demographics. Specifically, 35% of our population is Hispanic/Latino, so our challenging courses should be at/near 35% 
Hispanic/Latino.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our Hispanic/Latinx and English Language Learners are under-performing their peers.  The majority of students taking 
our most challenging courses are white/Caucasian. This population is not representative of our overall student 
population, which is only 56% white/Caucasian.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student groups participating in 
Honors/AP Courses        


 2020-2021 
 
1.3% EL Taking Honors/AP 
18.4% SED Taking Honors/AP 
1.0 % SpEd Taking Honors/AP 
23% Hispanic Taking Honors/AP 
 
2019-2020 
 
19% EL Taking Honors/AP 
40% SED Taking Honors/AP 
4% SpEd Taking Honors/AP 
35% Hispanic Taking Honors/AP 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
0.7% EL Taking Honors/AP 
21% SED Taking Honors/AP 
2% SpEd Taking Honors/AP 
27% Hispanic Taking Honors/AP 
 
 


 2021-2022 
 
Our school demographics will be 
mirrored in our AP/Honors courses: 
EL (Maintain/Increase percentage of 
EL Taking Honors/AP) 
SED (Maintain/Increase percentage 
of SED Taking Honors/AP) 
SpEd (Maintain/Increase percentage 
of SpEd Taking Honors/AP) 
Hispanic (Maintain/Increase 
percentage of Hispanic Taking 
Honors/AP) 
 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


814/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 61 Soquel High School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Continue to support our under-performing ELL, Hispanic/Latinx student populations by offering additional counseling 
services outside contracted hours.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All English Language Learners and Hispanic/Latinx students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, School Counselors, School Community Coordinator; administrative team will evaluate and analyze 
grading data and share with SCIL team and then all faculty.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Administrative/Counseling team will evaluate and analyze grading data and share with 
SCIL team and then all faculty.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners and Hispanic/Latinx students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, SCIL Leaders        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach based 
on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department 
colleagues.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Revision and Monitoring of Tier 1/School-wide Expectations (WASC)        


815/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and SCIL Team, along with Faculty/Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Transitional English yearlong course to support our ELL population; .2 FTE provided for ELD teacher        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
District office, Site Administration, and ELD Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 FTE Transitional English course for English Learners        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Homework Club, after school support and tutoring        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


816/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 61 Soquel High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for two teachers to run homework club        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Bi-Lingual Community Coordinator (.6)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, with focus on English Learners and their families        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site and District Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 55,095        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Support for English Learners and family outreach        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Additional part-time Bilingual Para-educators (@2)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 27,575        


Source SB86        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Bi-lingual Para-educators will supplement current outreach to underrepresented 
demographics, and expand family outreach to support our English Learners        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Teachers provide after school tutoring beyond contractual hours        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 


817/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 61 Soquel High School


2020-2021 School Year        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Teachers support under-performing students after school        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Six sections of AVID offered (one) at each grade level        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All AVID students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, AVID teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description AVID instructor to teach all four grade level sections of AVID        


Strategy/Activity 10 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 11 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 


818/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 12 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


 


819/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 61 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
Math Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
Maintain or increase the percentage of students passing Math 1 (C- or better) on the first attempt          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
All 9th grade students pass Integrated Math 1 during their 9th grade year.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Six week marking period grading data 
and semester 1 and 2 grades.        


 2020-2021 
81% of Integrated Math 1 students 
met this goal 
 
2019-2020 
94% of Integrated Math 1 students 
met this goal 
 
2018-2019 
84% of Integrated Math 1 students 
met this goal. 
 


 2021-2022 
94% of Integrated Math 1 students 
will pass Integrated Math 1 with C- or 
better. 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Implementation of Math PLUS Intervention Sections (x2) Site administration, RTI Coordinator, and math teachers will 
evaluate and analyze Math 1 grading data for all 9th graders enrolled in Math 1 to determine how many students met 
this school goal. The Math PLC will discuss these percentages and will analyze and how to increase this student 
performance data.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


820/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 61 Soquel High School


All Students        
 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Math Teachers, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 38,859        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Two Math PLUS intervention classes for students        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Full time RTI coordinator to support math department with data gathering and analysis, PLC work, creating common 
assessments, department-wide grading alignment, support with Math PLUS intervention classes, and new teacher 
support.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, RTI coordinator, math teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 140,090        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 FTE to support intervention class, data gathering and analysis, PLC work, common 
assessment, grading alignment, and new teacher support.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-2022 School Year        


 


821/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 61 Soquel High School


Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL stipends for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; SCIL teams will discuss low 
performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Collaboration/Release time for Math teachers (Each teacher allocated 2 days per Semester)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students enrolled in Math classes at Soquel High School        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and SHS Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 14 total days (7 teachers @ 2 days)        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Implementation of MAP (Measure of Academic Progress) to support data analysis within Math Department.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


822/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Timeline 
2021-2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL Leader/Math Teachers/RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Periodic assessment for Math students to gauge academic achievement.        


 


823/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 61 Soquel High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
Student A-G completion rates will increase by 3% for traditionally under-represented student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and Students With Disabilities.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


A-G completion for white students 
compared to under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities.        


 Soquel High School A-G completion 
rates will increase by 3% for 
traditionally under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities. 


 The completion rate for the overall 
student population decreased 9%. 
(69/60) This downward trend in A-G 
completion rate was also evident in 
other subgroup demographics.  While 
decreases varied, there seemed to 
be the steepest decline in our 
Hispanic population (63/42) 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Provide an ELA Support Class entitled  English 
PLUS.  Students enroll in course when struggling 
in ELA class. This is especially crucial for providing 
support in a distance learning environment. 
Criteria for enrollment: Achievement data, teacher 
recommendation. 


 Provide an ELA Support Class entitled  English 
PLUS.  Students enroll in course when struggling 
in ELA class. This is especially crucial for 
providing support in a distance learning 
environment. Criteria for enrollment: Achievement 
data, teacher recommendation. 


 


During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,650 each; 


 During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,650 each; 


 


Homework Club  Homework Club (On-Line Version)  


Additional Technology to support 1:1 
Student/Chromebook allocation. 


 Additional Technology to support 1:1 
Student/Chromebook allocation. 


 


Collaboration release time for staff in order to 
support instructional strategies and articulation 
between departments 


 Collaboration release time for staff in order to 
support instructional strategies and articulation 
between departments 


 


Implementation of Small Cohorts to expand In-
Person Learning 


 Implementation of Small Cohorts to expand In-
Person Learning 


 


Technology and Supplies to support Distance 
Learning 


 Technology and Supplies to support Distance 
Learning 


 


 


824/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 61 Soquel High School


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Although it was necessary to start the 2020-2021 school year in distance learning due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, all 
strategies and activities outlined in the Single School Plan for Student Achievement were implemented with fidelity.  
Categorical funding was allocated for crucial staffing along with significant technology to support distance learning.  As 
we pivoted to a "Hybrid" model of on-line and in-person instruction, the outlined strategies and activities were still a 
focus.  An exception was the  original allocation of tutoring funding.   Typical in-person tutoring services were replaced 
with a robust on-line tutoring system which still required substantial funding for staff.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Effectiveness as measured by straight percentages of students satisfying A-G requirements reflected a decline.  This 
being the case, there will be a substantial adjustment in statistical evidence as the UC?CSU system has agreed to allow 
students to gain A-G credit through the reclassification of transcript credits achieved in 2020-2021.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Monies allocated for in-person tutoring and extra work hours were re-allocated to on-line tutoring services for struggling 
students.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No Changes in expected outcomes. Additional staffing allocations can be found in outlined strategies.          


 


825/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 61 Soquel High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
We will continue to focus on equity as it relates to school-wide student involvement in extracurricular activities.  
Specifically, the demographics of our student population will be reflected in ASB Leadership, AVID, campus clubs, 
athletics, theatre productions, and participation in our music programs.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Student groups participating in 
Athletics        


 2020-2021 
 
24% EL (maintain or improve 2019-
20 % of ELs participating in athletics) 
31% SED 
19% SpEd 
36% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
Athletics impacted by pandemic. Data 
not available. 
 


Student groups participating in 
Advancement Via Individual 
Determination (AVID)        


 2020-2021 
 
24% EL  (maintain or improve 2018-
19 % of ELs participating in AVID) 
24% SED  (maintain or improve 
2018-19 % of SED participating in 
AVID) 
6% SpEd 
23% Hispanic  (maintain or improve 
2018-19 % of Hispanics participating 
in AVID) 
 


 2020-2021 
 
36% EL 
46% SED 
2.9% SpEd 
66% Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Campus Organizations        


 2020-2021 
 
36% EL  (maintain or improve 2018-
19 % of ELs participating in campus 
organizations) 
33% SED 
23% SpEd 
32% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
Clubs/Organizations impacted by 
pandemic. Data not available. 
 
 


Student groups participating in 
Performing Arts        


 2020-2021 
 
13% EL 
21% SED 
17% SpEd 
20% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
12.2 %EL 
14.3 %SED 
10.3 %SpEd 
16 %Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Leadership Class        


 2020-2021 
 
3% EL 
5% SED 
3% SpEd 
5% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
0 %EL 
1 %SED 
1 %SpEd 
1.3 %Hispanic 
 


 


826/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 61 Soquel High School


Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Spanish translation at parent events, translation of 
all documents for our families, Spanish translation 
on our website.  Additional supplies to support 
community events. 


 Spanish translation at parent events, translation of 
all documents for our families, Spanish translation 
on our website.  Additional supplies to support 
community events. 


 


Provide ongoing counseling support including 
information regarding connecting students to our 
school community. 


 Provide ongoing counseling support including 
information regarding connecting students to our 
school community. 


 


Provide students and families with ongoing 
information and support regarding our school. 


 Provide students and families with ongoing 
information and support regarding our school. 


 


Link Crew Leaders address school involvement 
during Freshmen and New Student Orientation 
and through the beginning of the school year. This 
work is part of a Link Crew curricular pillar and is 
supported by two Link Crew Teacher Mentors. 


 Link Crew Leaders address school involvement 
during Freshmen and New Student Orientation 
and through the beginning of the school year. This 
work is part of a Link Crew curricular pillar and is 
supported by two Link Crew Teacher Mentors. 


 


National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training 
(Diversity & Inclusion workshops) in all freshmen 
PE classes. 


 NCBI Training did not take place due to COVID-19 
Pandemic 


 


Specific Professional Development in the area of 
Restorative Justice 


 Restorative Justice Training did not take place due 
to COVID-19 Pandemic 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The COVID-19 Pandemic altered an accurate collection and reporting of demographic data around participation in clubs, 
organizations, and athletics.  Conversely, the demographic participation data for the AVID program is quite promising.  
Significant increase in participation and enrollment rates for  our subgroups increased for each demographic. A slight 
downward trend in enrollment of underrepresented demographics in the Performing Arts is noted.  The restrictive format 
of on-line learning in the area of Performing Arts is certainly a factor here.  The Soquel High School Leadership Class is 
still striving to build a class enrolment that is more consistent with our overall student population.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The highlight of effectiveness in this Goal area is certainly the enhanced and expanded AVID Program that continues to 
grow in overall numbers (6 sections) and diversity.  General increase in all demographic subgroups.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Professional Development for our staff in the area of Restorative Justice was not an actual expenditure, but did remain a 
focus for admin and staff in building our on-line and hybrid learning community.  NCBI Training was another program 
placed on hold due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, and was thus not an expenditure as originally planned. All other planned 
expenditures were implemented.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Additional staffing to increase social emotional support and family outreach were added. All staffing additions are 
outlined in strategies/activities/expenditures          


 


827/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 61 Soquel High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
The demographics of students in our most challenging courses (AP & Honors), will be reflective of our overall school 
demographics. Specifically, 35% of our population is Hispanic/Latino, so our challenging courses should be at/near 35% 
Hispanic/Latino.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Student groups participating in 
Honors/AP Courses        


 2020-2021 
 
Our school demographics will be 
mirrored in our AP/Honors courses: 
4% EL 
34.1% SED 
9.8% SpEd 
37.3% Hispanic 
 
 


 2020-2021 
 
1.3% EL Enrolled in Honors/AP 
18.4% SED Enrolled in Honors/AP 
1.0 % SpEd Enrolled in Honors/AP 
23% Hispanic Enrolled in Honors/AP 
 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Continue to support our under-performing ELL, 
Hispanic/Latinx student populations by offering 
additional counseling services outside contracted 
hours. 


 Continue to support our under-performing ELL, 
Hispanic/Latinx student populations by offering 
additional counseling services outside contracted 
hours. 


 


During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; 


 During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; 


 


Monitoring of Tier 1/School-wide Expectations 
(WASC) 


 Monitoring of Tier 1/School-wide Expectations 
(WASC) 


 


Transitional English yearlong course to support our 
ELL population; .2 FTE provided for ELD teacher 


 Transitional English yearlong course to support 
our ELL population; .2 FTE provided for ELD 
teache 


 


Homework Club, after school support and tutoring  Homework Club, after school support and tutoring 
(On-Line) 


 


Hourly pay for University (UCSC) students to tutor 
Soquel High students 


 Was not implemented due to COVID-19 Pandemic  


Retired ELA teacher to support students in 
Homework Club 


 Was not implemented due to COVID-19 Pandemic  


Teachers provide after school tutoring beyond 
contractual hours 


 Teachers provide after school tutoring beyond 
contractual hours 


 


Four sections of AVID offered (one) at each grade 
level 


 Four sections of AVID offered (one) at each grade 
level 


 


828/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 61 Soquel High School


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Math support class for students who are struggling 
with Integrated Math 1 and Math 2. 


 Math support class for students who are struggling 
with Integrated Math 1 and Math 2. 


 


RTI Coordinator for Math; credentialed math 
teacher 


 RTI Coordinator for Math; credentialed math 
teacher 


 


Collaboration release time for staff in order to 
support instructional strategies and articulation 
between departments 


 Collaboration release time for staff in order to 
support instructional strategies and articulation 
between departments 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Implementation of the planned strategies were extremely difficult due the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Digital access to the 
regular high school program was increasingly difficult as many students and their families did not have equitable 
resources for suitable access.  Much of the strategic plan in this area was predicated on a necessity for in-person 
learning which did not take place until a hybrid version was implemented in March of 2021.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Enrollment and subsequent success in our most challenging courses is dependent on live interaction between adults 
and students, which was severely limited in 2020-2021.  As a result, our straight percentages for underrepresented 
demographic groups in these coursed declined.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Hourly pay for College Tutors, typically a significant allocation, was not implemented due to COVID-19 Pandemic.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Additional staffing and a bolstered focus on tutoring support are included in the 2021-2022          


 


829/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 61 Soquel High School


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
The percentage of 9th grade students passing Integrated Math 1 by the end of 9th grade with a C- or better, will increase 
by 5%          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Six week marking period grading data 
and semester 1 and 2 grades.        


 2020-2021, 96% of Integrated Math 1 
students will pass Integrated Math 1 
with C- or better. 


 The goal of 96% was not met.  (81%) 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Implementation of Math PLUS Intervention 
Sections (x2) Site administration, RTI Coordinator, 
and math teachers will evaluate and analyze Math 
1 grading data for all 9th graders enrolled in Math 
1 to determine how many students met this school 
goal. The Math PLC will discuss these 
percentages and will analyze and how to increase 
this student performance data. 


 Implementation of Math PLUS Intervention 
Sections (x2) Site administration, RTI Coordinator, 
and math teachers will evaluate and analyze Math 
1 grading data for all 9th graders enrolled in Math 
1 to determine how many students met this school 
goal. The Math PLC will discuss these 
percentages and will analyze and how to increase 
this student performance data. 


 


Full time RTI coordinator to support math 
department with data gathering and analysis, PLC 
work, creating common assessments, department-
wide grading alignment, support with Math PLUS 
intervention classes, and new teacher support. 


 Full time RTI coordinator to support math 
department with data gathering and analysis, PLC 
work, creating common assessments, department-
wide grading alignment, support with Math PLUS 
intervention classes, and new teacher support. 


 


During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; 


 During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will 
discuss low performing students, engage in data 
cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or 
department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay for 
13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; 


 


Lunch time math tutoring for low performing math 
students 


 Not implemented due to COVID-19 Pandemic  


Collaboration/Release time for Math teachers 
(Each teacher allocated 2 days per Semester) 


 Collaboration/Release time for Math teachers 
(Each teacher allocated 2 days per Semester) 


 


Implementation of MAP (Measure of Academic 
Progress) to support data analysis within Math 
Department. 


 Implementation of MAP (Measure of Academic 
Progress) to support data analysis within Math 
Department. 


 


 


830/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 61 Soquel High School


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The implementation of planned strategies, activities and expenditures was carried out with fidelity.  As with Goals 
previously mentioned, there was a natural decline in our collective ability to provide services in person for most of the 
year.  Our focus and dedication on the overall improvement of student achievement in math through addressing gateway 
courses remains steadfast.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
A substantial decrease in the pass rate (C- or Better) in our gateway mathematics course (Integrated Math 1) is noted.  
The Math department has dedicated much collaboration and discussion to this and has proposed a revised goal that is 
simply more realistic and sustainable.  (See Below)          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Similar to previous goals, strategies, activities, expenditures, the main difference in our delivery of school support 
systems was the required transition to on-line learning which began in March of 2020.  The additional pivot/transition to 
"hybrid" learning in 2021 resulted in less expenditures for in-person tutoring and support to a focus on technology access 
for students, and instructional resources for staff.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
The Math department has dedicated much collaboration and discussion to this and has proposed a revised goal that is 
simply more realistic and sustainable.  The new Math progress goal is stated as follows: Maintain or increase the 
percentage of students passing Math 1 (C- or better) on the first attempt.          


 


831/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 61 Soquel High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  0 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  1,206,167.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


832/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         7,000.00 


District Funded         320,399.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         313,028.00 


SB86         565,740.00 
 


833/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         898,292.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         279,875.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 4,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 9,000.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         15,000.00 
 


834/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 61 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 CARES Act  7,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  320,399.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  190,644.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  101,384.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  4,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  2,000.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         LCFF - Supplemental  15,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  387,249.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 SB86  178,491.00 


 


835/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 61 Soquel High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


3 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Greg O'Meara         X Principal        


Barney Levy         X Classroom Teacher        


Troy Kusanovich         X Classroom Teacher        


Val Goodwin         X Other School Staff        


Dana Snyder         X Parent or Community Member        


Lori Vienna         X Parent or Community Member        


Emily Hanson         X Parent or Community Member        


Cynthia Coahran         X Parent or Community Member        


Ava Burke         X Other School Staff        


X Secondary Student        


Andrew Beaton         X Secondary Student        


Margarita Nunez         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


836/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 61 Soquel High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 X English Learner Advisory Committee        
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 9.15.21. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Greg O'Meara on 10.01.21 


  SSC Chairperson, Ava Burke on 10.01.21 


 


837/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus         


Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234430195         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 8, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 14, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


838/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School Vision and Mission 
 
Inspired Purpose: 
 
AFE supports, nurtures and inspires families and students to discover and develop their potential through engaged 
learning, problem solving, and community involvement. 
 
Vision: 
 
AFE cultivates... 
 
the ability to use our minds well. 
the tools to choose our paths. 
the ability to act upon our passions. 
the desire to contribute to the local community and the world. 
the vision and heart to see and feel things from other perspectives. 
the ability to express our own voices. 
the habit of self-reflection. 
a sense of well-being. 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools Alternative Family Education (AFE) is an independent home study school provided for 
kindergarten through twelfth grade students and families who prefer an individualized approach to education, combined 
with the support of school district resources. The program gives parents the responsibility to directly supervise 
instruction, with professional guidance from a credentialed teacher-consultant. The program is designed by and for 
homeschool families, with teacher-consultants who are knowledgeable and supportive of home-based learning, state 
frameworks, and school district curriculum guidelines. AFE shares a campus with three other small schools. You can 
read about our campus on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) website. 
 
With the onset of COVID-19 school closures, AFE more than doubled its student population due to many elementary and 
secondary students attending public and private schools in 2019-20 choosing to opt for a more hands-on, family directed 
educational approach. Several AFE teachers retired in 2019-20 (2.2 FTE) and we hired 1.9 FTE before the summer 
ensued and AFE's population grew. Several teachers were transferred from comprehensive schools to be able to serve 
such rapid and explosive growth (4.2 FTE has been added, for a total of 7.7 FTE to serve 231 students). In addition, two 
part-time library media assistants were transferred to support the increased circulation needs of the Resource Center 
which is staffed by a .5 FTE library media assistant. The Small School library is assisting AFE families by facilitating 
intra-library loan of textbooks and trade books from other campuses. A retired teacher was able to apply her pre-
retirement hours in order to train new staff in the practices, tools, and culture of homeschooling and AFE. In addition, the 
two returning AFE teachers are devoting many extra hours of training for the new teachers. In light of school closures, 
each teacher is offering one distance learning enrichment class each semester, and all parent-led activities are on hold 
until schools reopen at low or no restrictions per District and Public Health Department guidelines. A substantial barrier, 
once we were able to transfer teachers to serve the great number of students, is that AFE is needing to purchase 
materials for the Resource Center as the comprehensive schools cannot provide text books or student work books that 
are part of the Board approved adopted curriculum for elementary students. Many of the new families intend to return to 
the comprehensive schools once schools reopen at low or no restrictions. We expect a percentage will not return to their 
comprehensive neighborhood school as homeschooling is an attractive alternative for families who are finding ways for 
parents to balance working at home and/or only having one parent work outside the home. AFE also had to adjust its 
enrollment processes and the administrative staff has taken on all intake communication, teacher assignment, and 
registration processes from the campus registrar who is focusing on acquiring proper enrollment verification and health 
file paperwork for so many new students. 
 
Alternative Family Education, 840 N. Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


839/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
This plan is reviewed and approved annually by the School Site Council, which consists of students, parents, classified 
and certificated staff, and administrators. In addition, the parent group reviews the plan while planning fundraising goals. 
The plan is available to stakeholders via the school's website. District personnel, Director of Curriculum, and Assistant 
Superintendent of Educational Services also provide input and suggestions for goal setting based on student data.         


 


840/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     1.79% 0.89% 1.3% 2 1 3 


African American     % 2.68% 2.1%  3 5 


Asian     4.46% 5.36% 1.3% 5 6 3 


Filipino     % 0.89% 0.8%  1 2 


Hispanic/Latino     11.61% 14.29% 17.2% 13 16 41 


Pacific Islander     % 0% 0.4%  0 1 


White     75% 69.64% 74.1% 84 78 177 


Multiple/No Response     7.14% 6.25% 2.9% 8 7 7 


 Total Enrollment 112 112 239 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        2 2 28 


Grade 1        3 5 24 


Grade 2        4 3 21 


Grade3        1 7 18 


Grade 4        7 3 22 


Grade 5        5 10 14 


Grade 6        10 7 21 


Grade 7        10 14 24 


Grade 8        20 14 20 


Grade 9        10 17 16 


Grade 10        11 8 14 


Grade 11        18 9 9 


Grade 12        11 13 8 


Total Enrollment        112 112 239 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment numbers are progressively higher through the rising grades.        


841/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 


842/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        2 3 1 1.8% 2.7% 0.4% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        3 5 7 2.7% 4.5% 2.9% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        0 0 2 0.0% 0.0% 66.7% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE does not serve many students learning English as an additional language.        


 


843/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 8 * * 20 * * 5 * * 5   25 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    
All 
Grades 


86 89 85 17 22 12 17 22 12 19.8 24.7 14.1 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 52.94 40.91 58.33 41.18 40.91 41.67 5.88 4.55 0.00 0.00 13.64 0.00 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 76.47 54.55 66.67 17.65 40.91 33.33 5.88 4.55 0.00 
 


844/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 64.71 61.90 41.67 35.29 23.81 58.33 0.00 14.29 0.00 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 29.41 45.45 58.33 70.59 45.45 41.67 0.00 9.09 0.00 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 52.94 50.00 66.67 47.06 45.45 33.33 0.00 4.55 0.00 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students to draw conclusions.        


 


845/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    


All 
Grades 


86 89 85 18 21 9 18 21 9 20.9 23.6 10.6 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 55.56 33.33 * 11.11 28.57 * 22.22 19.05 * 11.11 19.05 * 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 55.56 33.33 * 16.67 42.86 * 27.78 23.81 * 


846/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 


Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 55.56 47.62 * 33.33 33.33 * 11.11 19.05 * 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 50.00 52.38 * 44.44 33.33 * 5.56 14.29 * 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated to draw conclusions.        


 


847/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 2        *  *  *  *  


Grade 3        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4         *  *  *  * 


All Grades              * * 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * *  *  * * * 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  *  *  * * * 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         *  * * * * * * * 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  *  * * * 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * 
 


848/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too small student population to draw conclusions.        


 
 


849/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


112        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


17.0        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


2.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        3 2.7 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        19 17.0 


Students with Disabilities        21 18.8 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        3 2.7 


American Indian        1 0.9 


Asian        6 5.4 


Filipino        1 0.9 


Hispanic        16 14.3 


Two or More Races        7 6.3 


White        78 69.6 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. White student group makes up almost 70% of total enrollment.        


 
 


850/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


 
College/Career 


 
No Performance Color        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Blue        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Attendance is a strength of the school.        


 
 


851/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


89.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++23.9 points         
11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


852/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


0 Students        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


88.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++23.4 points         
11        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's integrated ELA is meeting the needs of enrolled students.        


 
 


853/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


854/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's mathematics instruction is meeting the needs of its students.        


 
 


855/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students:           


Performance Level: No Data        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not enough data to make a conclusion.        


 
 


856/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


20         


Increased Significantly +20         


15        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


 


857/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


23.1         


Increased Significantly +23.1         


13        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
0 Prepared         


0 Approaching Prepared         
100 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
20 Prepared         


6.7 Approaching Prepared         
73.3 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Relevant data is not available.        


 
 


858/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
0        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


2.4         


Declined -6         


82        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -29.2         


14        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -11.8         


18        


 


859/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -9.1         


11        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -4.9         


60        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. More stringent adherence to attendance policies is an area for further investigation.        


 
 


860/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


81.3         


Increased +4.8         


16        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


 


861/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


78.6         


Increased +2.1         


14        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
76.5         


2019         
81.3         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE graduates are approaching realization of SCCS Strategic Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to 


successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.        
 
 


862/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
138        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
25        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
26        


 


863/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
18        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
102        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's students' needs are accommodated by the alternative setting.        


 
 


864/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The staff is continuing to focus on developing writing rubrics and anchor papers in each writing type. This endeavor 
continues in order to raise academic rigor and to be able to provide parent/teachers with more concrete criteria that is in 
alignment with CCSS. The SCCS has reinvigorated its commitment to high-impact instructional strategies. AFE will 
spend professional development time in delving deeply into Teacher Clarity, Feedback, and Goal Setting/Self 
Assessment in 2021-22.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Developmental Writing rubrics of 4-
8th grade students        


 77% of targeted students made 
adequate yearly progress. 


 Increase percentage of students 
making at least one year growth to 
90%. 


CCAP writing requirement         71% of all high school students were 
on track for completion at the end of 
2020-21. 


 Increase percentage of students 
making adequate progress towards 
completion of CCAP requirements to 
90%. 


Credit completion rates for high 
school students        


 94% of all high school students were 
on track for graduation requirements 
at the end of 2020-21. 


 Increase percentage of students 
making adequate progress towards 
graduation credit requirements to 
90%. 


Developmental Reading rubrics of 4-
8th grade students        


 This will be a year to establish 
baseline data 


 90% of students will make at least 
one year growth 


MAP Reading         This will be a year to establish 
baseline data 


 90% of student will meet the 
projected growth on the MAP 
Reading assessment 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


865/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2021-22 school year is on writing in all content areas. We will do 
this by focusing our year long site PD on scaffolding and supporting students with different types of academic writing by 
standardizing evaluation practices on writing rubrics in each writing type, leveling anchor papers for each grade span 
during PLC work.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration & SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Short term project for classified staff to inventory, replenish Resource Center curriculum and instructional materials, 
managing influx of new instructional materials        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
January 2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Short term project for classified staff to inventory, replenish Resource Center curriculum 
and instructional materials, managing influx of new instructional materials        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Increase the diversity of materials available in the Resource Center        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


866/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Site Administration        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplemental books and supplies including district adopted curriculum/materials        


Amount 4500        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Consumables i.e art supplies, workbooks, classroom materials        


 


867/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students who are taking math will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
With an increase in first time homeschooling families and many returning families AFE staff will develop a parent 
education program on the eight math practices. We will prepare by working to deeply understand the math resources 
that are aligned with CCSS.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


A combination of MAP growth and/or 
paper-based assessment, and work 
samples demonstrate overall 
achievement in mathematics for 3rd-
11th grade students        


 82% of targeted students made 
growth in mathematics. 


 90% of all students will achieve 
growth from fall to spring in 
mathematics. 


Parent and staff surveys         This is a new goal so there is no 
baseline 


 80% of families attending parent 
education opportunities, and 100% of 
teachers will demonstrate greater 
understanding of the Eight Math 
Practices via survey. 


Math requirements         In 2020-21, 94% of students 
completed Math 1 by 11th grade or 
within two years of beginning that 
curriculum 


 98% of students will complete Math 1 
by 11th grade or within two years of 
beginning that curriculum. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
After a deep dive into math practices and applications that are aligned with CCSS, staff will develop a parent education 
program about the eight math practices.        


 


868/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school years        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration/SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Consumable materials for Resource Center to support student learning in the home and school environments (i.e. 
games, manipulatives, workbooks)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration/SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4500        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Consumable materials for Resource Center to support student learning in the home and 
school environments (i.e. games, manipulatives, workbooks)        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional learning related to Independent Studies.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000.00        


869/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description CCIS compliance workshop 
 
        


 


870/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students' feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, and tenets and practices of Trauma-informed schools.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
With the return to in-person services and the near completion of BOND-supported new buildings and furnishing, the 
school will work to support the student, parent, and staff communities' involvement in re-establishing in-person school 
culture.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student surveys         Via survey 93% of students felt 
connected to school in 2020-21 


 We expect that we will increase the 
rate of students feeling connected to 
their school to 95% positive 
response. 


Parent surveys         Via survey 83% of parents felt 
connected to school in 2020-21 


 We expect that we will increase the 
rate of parents feeling connected to 
their school to 90% positive 
response. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 4.1% of all students were chronically 
absent, or in this case, did not 
complete assignments on time in 
2020-21. 


 No more than 2% of all students will 
be chronically absent. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Develop student, parent and staff community building opportunities through campus beautification and parent 
education activities.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


871/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Timeline 
The 2021-22 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, staff, parents        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies and materials to support community involvement in re-establishing in-person 
school culture (i.e. outdoor furniture, gardening supplies, art materials, seeds)        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Improve students' feelings of well-being, safety, and community through implementation of tenets and practices of 
Trauma-informed schools with consultant that specializes in TINS.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
January 2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Provide professional development for new and continuing staff in Trauma-Informed 
practices.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
The staff will attend the Caliciano Symposium-Topic to be announced        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
March 2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


872/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Conference attendance for all staff        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Provide ceramics instruction to students of all ages once a week in order to build community and a sense of belonging 
for students and families.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500        


Source Other        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Parcel tax will fund clay teacher once a week at AFE        


 


873/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Developmental Writing rubrics of 4-
8th grade students        


 Maintain or improve 86% of all 
students making at least one year 
growth. 


 77% of all students made at least one 
year growth 


CCAP writing requirement         90% of students make adequate 
progress towards completion of 
CCAP requirements. 


 71% of students made adequate 
progress towards completion of 
CCAP requirements. 


Credit completion rates for high 
school students        


 Maintain or improve 96% of students 
will make adequate progress towards 
graduation credit requirement. 


 94% of students made adequate 
progress towards graduation credit 
requirement. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for 
the 2020-21 school year is on writing in all content 
areas. We will do this by focusing our year long 
site PD on scaffolding and supporting students 
with different types of academic writing by 
standardizing evaluation practices on writing 
rubrics in each writing type, developing anchor 
papers for each grade span during PLC work. 


 The Resource Center purchased curriculum, 
games, and supplies to accommodate 150% 
student enrollment. 


 


Purchase and administer MAP for Math and 
Reading at least twice a year. 


 Fewer licenses were necessary than expected at 
the beginning of 20-21. 


 


Increase the diversity of materials available in the 
Resource Center. 


 The Resource Center purchased curriculum, 
games, and supplies to accommodate 150% 
student enrollment. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The year of Distance Learning dramatically affected the AFE program by increasing enrollment by 150% and staffing by 
150%. Throughout the year, families continued to enroll as the conditions of the COVID pandemic incomprehensibly 
fluctuated. Much of the professional development consisted of bringing on new staff and teaching them the legalities, 
monitoring processes, and record keeping associated with Independent Studies. Staff spent much of their time 
counseling families on curricular choices, having to learn all subject areas and instructional materials in the K-12 
environment.          


 


874/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
In our effort for continuous improvement, we set goals based on the most recent pre-COVID data. We did not achieve 
improved achievement data; this fact is undeniably a result of the conditions of the pandemic on Santa Cruz City 
Schools families and staffs.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
2020-21 brought with it several one-time funding sources which unexpectedly landed in site budgets. Knowing that these 
were one-time funds, the school invested in quality materials and supplies in order to support the increased enrollment 
and needs of families new to Independent Studies.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
In 2021-22, we intend to return to the work that was interrupted related to academic achievement growth.          


 


875/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
All students who are taking math will make mathematics growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


A combination of MAP growth and/or 
paper-based assessment, and work 
samples demonstrate overall 
achievement in mathematics for 4th-
8th grade students.        


 90% of all students will achieve 
growth from Fall to Spring in 
mathematics. 


 82% of all students achieved growth 
from Fall to Spring in mathematics. 


Parent and Staff survey of 
understanding NGSS.        


 80% of families attending parent 
education opportunities, and 100% of 
teachers, will demonstrate greater 
understanding of the NGSS via 
survey. 


 Unable to implement due to remote 
nature of the presentations. 


Math requirements.         90% of students will complete Math 1 
by 11th grade or within two years of 
beginning that curriculum. 


 90% of students completed Math 1 in 
a timely manner. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


A Tier 1 school wide focus for the 2019-21 school 
years is on Mathematics. We will do this by 
focusing our year long site PD on designing 
NGSS-based science resources for families, using 
science to support the math practices. 


 The Resource Center purchased curriculum, 
games, and supplies to accommodate 150% 
student enrollment. 


 


In support of our school wide focus on 
Mathematics for the 2019-21 school years, we will 
use the services of a consultant to co-lead with 
teachers eight Parent Education sessions on 
NGSS including DCIs and CCCs; FOSS; science 
and math practices; etc.  for K-12 students. In 
coordination with site admin and SCIL, provider 
will work with AFE teachers to develop, plan and 
deliver professional development to family 
educators in grade span specific groups, K-12 
groups, and other configurations. 


 The classified consultant assembled kits and 
instructions for families to complete on their own. 


 


Professional learning related to Independent 
Studies. 


 This compliance workshop was cancelled due to 
the pandemic. 


 


 


876/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The year of Distance Learning dramatically affected the AFE program by increasing enrollment by 150% and staffing by 
150%. Throughout the year, families continued to enroll as the conditions of the COVID pandemic incomprehensibly 
fluctuated. Much of the professional development consisted of bringing on new staff and teaching them the legalities, 
monitoring processes, and record keeping associated with Independent Studies. Staff spent much of their time 
counseling families on curricular choices, having to learn all subject areas and instructional materials in the K-12 
environment.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The school was unable to implement the MAP assessment before January, and then again in May, therefore leaving little 
time to target math instruction, especially for younger students and their families who were adjusting to Independent 
Studies in a culture of fear of the effects of the pandemic.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
2020-21 brought with it several one-time funding sources which unexpectedly landed in site budgets. Knowing that these 
were one-time funds the school invested in quality materials and supplies in order to support the increased enrollment 
and needs of families new to Independent Studies.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
In 2021-22, we intend to return to the work that was interrupted related to academic achievement growth.          


 


877/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students' feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, and tenets and practices of Trauma-informed schools.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Parent surveys         We expect that we will maintain or 
increase the rate of parents feeling 
connected to their school at 95% 
positive response. 


 83% of parents reported feeling 
connected to their school. 


Student surveys         We expect that we will maintain or 
increase the rate of students feeling 
connected to their school at 92% 
positive response. 


 93% of students reported feeling 
connected to their school. 


Restorative Justice rating scales for 
staff        


 We expect that 90% of staff will 
increase their comfort with 
Restorative Justice principles and 
practices. 


 This data was not available due to 
Distance Learning 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 No more than 2% of all students will 
be chronically absent. 


  


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


In 2019-21, all Branciforte Small Schools staff 
(certificated and classified) will continue learning 
Restorative Justice principles and practices. This 
is a three-year commitment that aligns with the 
deep work and resources devoted to training and 
supporting adults and children in the practices and 
principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma 
Informed Services. We will develop student, parent 
and staff surveys on this topic, as well as use 
surveys provided by the consultant company. 


 All AFE staff attended the remaining two 
professional development opportunities via the 
online format. 


 


Per the family survey, the school website will be 
improved and serve as the central source for 
information, announcements and forms. 


 The website was maintained; improving this space 
continues to demand attention. 


 


The staff will attend the Caliciano Symposium-
Childhood Trauma: Addressing the Clinical Needs 
from Current and Historical Perspectives. 


 All ten certificated staff were able to attend the 
webinar entitled "Childhood Trauma: Addressing 
the Clinical Needs from Current and Historical 
Perspectives." 


 


 


878/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The cohesion and collaboration among the staff led to the success of students feelings of school connectedness meet 
the growth projection. We understand that the stress of being thrown into homeschool, layered with the fear of the 
effects of the pandemic, was extremely challenging as parents juggled their family lives, work lives, and taking on 
majority responsibility for their children's social and educational needs.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The staff approached every student and family with respect and took a personalized approach to supporting families as 
they too had all the same pressures as noted above; as well as learning a plethora of new instructional strategies, 
technologies, and Education Code related processes and record keeping procedures.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
None          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
In 2021-22, the effects of the pandemic are still prohibiting students and families to live relatively fear free lives, as 
related to health and safety in their wider communities. However, we intend to return to the work that was interrupted 
related to our students' and families' social/emotional/connectedness needs and growth in the data points.          


 


879/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  42,500.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


880/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


LCFF         31,000.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         9,000.00 


Other         2,500.00 
 


881/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         12,500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         23,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 7,000.00 


 


882/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF  10,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  14,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  7,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  9,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Other  2,500.00 


 


883/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


3 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Kim Woodland         X Classroom Teacher        


Mary Anne Robb         X Classroom Teacher        


Amelia von Gerer         X Classroom Teacher        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Micah Posner         X Parent or Community Member        


Michelle Easter         X Parent or Community Member        


TBD         X Parent or Community Member        


TBD         X Parent or Community Member        


X Secondary Student        


Matthew Domencelli         X Secondary Student        


Nativo Davila         X Secondary Student        


Avery Addae         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


884/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 48 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on September 21, 2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Michelle Easter on September 21, 2021 


 


885/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Ark Independent Studies         


Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234430096         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date October 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


886/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School Vision and Mission 
 
At the Ark Independent Studies we connect with students as individuals, inspire students to find meaning, motivate 
students to take responsibility, and support students to discover and pursue their interests.         


 


School Profile 
 
Ark Independent Studies High School is a fully accredited public high school that currently serves approximately 80 
students in grades 6 through 12. As of the 2020-2021 school year, the Ark has added a 100% online middle school 
option to address several issues faced by our school district due to COVID-19 and the move the distance learning. We 
have also added an A to G curriculum through the education program Edgenuity, to increase the ability for our students 
to have A to G pathways. Since moving to full distance learning, The Ark Independent Studies program has been 
essential in supporting students across the district. Our enrollment has increased over the past two school years due to 
the pandemic. Because of this, we have had to increase our staffing. We have recently added a .4 FTE teacher to staff, 
as well as increasing our Math Lab teacher by .2 FTE. 
 
The Ark is housed on a Santa Cruz City Schools' campus that is home to four small alternative schools. The Ark serves 
students in multiple locations across the county to provide students and families convenient locations and access to 
academic programs, emotional support, and social opportunities. The Ark’s primary campus and textbook room is 
located mid-town on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC); the Westside campus is located at Santa Cruz 
High; the Eastside campus is located at Harbor High; and the southside campus is at Soquel High. Students meet 
weekly for one hour meetings with an instructor on a one-to-one basis.  During that time, the students are given specific 
assignments covering a minimum of 20 hours, and feedback on coursework is offered and assignments are evaluated. 
Students complete their weekly course work independently from the school location.  Students enrolled in a math course 
must attend a weekly Math Lab to receive focused support from a certificated math teacher. Again, due to our increase 
of enrollment, our Math Lab teaching position has been increased a full .2 FTE to .4 FTE.  Assignments are tailored to fit 
the individual student's interests, needs, and learning styles. All Ark teachers are fully credentialed, with a broad range of 
teaching experience and expertise. 
 
The Ark is a school of choice that students and families may initiate a transfer to, or a guidance counselor may advise 
enrollment due to a variety of reasons that range from the need to make up missing credits to a concern with mental 
and/or physical health issues. Traditionally, students were able to join the program at the beginning of their 9th grade 
year. However, we have expanded our program to allow for students to enroll starting in 6th grade (for 100% Edgenuity 
only). The program is available to self-disciplined and motivated students who are working toward a high school diploma. 
It provides over 60 course offerings that include textbook and online classes and are accredited by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC). Ark’s program is in session for 180 days a year. 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Many stakeholders were involved in the annual SPSA review and update. As part of our full self-study for WASC 
accreditation, the schoolwide action plan was closely reviewed and revised at multiple staff and parent meetings in Fall 
2020. Our WASC visiting committee offered feedback on the plan during their March 2019 visit resulting in further 
changes to our SPSA action plan. Finally, the BSSC School Site Council reviewed progress on the 2020-2021 SPSA 
and approved the goals, metrics, and schoolwide action plan changes for the 2021-22 SPSA.         


 


887/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     % 2.04% 2.6%  1 2 


African American     % 0% 4.0%  0 3 


Asian     % 0% %  0  


Filipino     % 0% %  0  


Hispanic/Latino     39.66% 46.94% 34.2% 23 23 26 


Pacific Islander     % 0% %  0  


White     55.17% 51.02% 55.3% 32 25 42 


Multiple/No Response     5.17% 0% 4.0% 3 0 3 


 Total Enrollment 58 49 76 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 6          4 


Grade 7          1 


Grade 9        3 4 4 


Grade 10        7 7 11 


Grade 11        18 13 30 


Grade 12        30 25 26 


Total Enrollment        58 49 76 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has increased. This can be attributed to the pandemic and the need for more students traditionally 


served at comprehensive school campus to turn to independent studies as an option for students and families with 
health concerns.        


2. Enrollment for the past two years has grown to meet maximum student enrollment based on Ark FTE.        


 


888/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        5 5 2 8.6% 10.2% 2.6% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        10 11 14 17.2% 22.4% 18.4% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of English learners attending the Ark remains very low.        


2. The administrator must continue to hold bi-annual language review team (LRT) meetings with Ark teachers of 
English Learners. This will ensure that the specific needs of English Learners are highlighted throughout the year.        


 


889/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    
All 
Grades 


* * * * * * * * *    
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 


890/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASPP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


2. CAASPP was not administered in 2019-20 due to COVID-19 and the shift to distance learning.        


 


891/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    


All 
Grades 


* * * * * * * * *    


* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 2019-20 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 


892/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9         *  *  *  * 


Grade 11        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * * 


All Grades              * 5 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * * * * * * 
 


893/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  * * * * * 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * * * * * * 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few English Learners took the ELPAC in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


894/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


49        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


34.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


10.2        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        5 10.2 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        17 34.7 


Students with Disabilities        3 6.1 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


American Indian        1 2.0 


Hispanic        23 46.9 


White        25 51.0 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentage of Hispanic/Latinx students at The Ark indicates a need to provide more translation of key Ark 


documents. Many Hispanic/Latinx students' parents prefer Spanish communication.        
 
 


895/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


 
College/Career 


 
Red        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark was able to maintain their 0% suspension rate.        


2. Graduation rate numbers need to be improved and analyzed by individual student to determine if there are any 
patterns. The Ark has developed an end-of-year process to ascertain and analyze the reasons for student dropouts.        


3. The Ark needs to look into a different A-G curriculum provider to increase enrollment in A-G pathways, with the 
intention of improving the College/Career Dashboard.        


 
 


896/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


 


897/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


0 Students        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


898/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Students with Disabilities 


 


899/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


900/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students:           


Performance Level: No Data        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark has too few English Learners to make any conclusions.        


 
 


901/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


0         


Declined -2.7         


42        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


22        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 


902/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -7.1         


17        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


22        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
2.7 Prepared         


5.4 Approaching Prepared         
91.9 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
0 Prepared         


4.8 Approaching Prepared         
95.2 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We had a decline in our graduation rates which caused a decline in our College/Career Dashboard        


 
 


903/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


72.1         


Declined -10.8         


43        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


87         


Increased +10.8         


23        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 


904/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


82.4         


Maintained 0         


17        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


60.9         


Declined -20.1         


23        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
82.9         


2019         
72.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Graduation rates have declined 10.8%, with 43 graduated students in 2019.        


2. Graduation rate numbers need to be improved and analyzed by individual student to determine if there are any 
patterns. The Ark has developed an end-of-year process to ascertain and analyze the reasons for student drop outs.        


 
 


905/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


3        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
94        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          9        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
45        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
11        


 


906/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
45        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
44        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark has maintained their 0% suspension rate.        


 
 


907/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
Develop, test, and revise ELA curriculum and assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Standards, 
and modify instructional practices to increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Despite gains related to reading achievement, student literacy achievement and literacy instruction must remain a focus 
to ensure academic growth.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


MAP-Reading assessment         In 2018-19, 73% of Ark students 
(11/15) who scored below the 70th 
percentile on the MAP reading 
assessment improved their reading 
comprehension (one grade level) as 
measured by at least a 5 percentile 
increase in scores (freshmen, 
sophomores, and juniors) or at least 
4 RIT points (all seniors). 
 
 


 80% of students who score below the 
70th percentile on the MAP reading 
assessment will improve their reading 
comprehension (one grade level) as 
measured by at least a 5 percentile 
increase in scores (freshmen, 
sophomores, and juniors) or at least 
4 RIT points (all seniors). 


Argumentative essay rubric scores         In 2019-20, 85% of Ark students 
improved their argumentative essay 
rurbric score by at least half a point 
each semester. 


 90% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the narrative essay writing 
rubric will increase their score by at 
least half a point each semester. 


Response to informative text rubric 
scores        


 In 2019-20, 92% of Ark students 
improved their paragraph DOK 
scores by at least half a point each 
semester. 


 95% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the Informative rubric 
(Written & Verbal DOK) will increase 
their score by at least half a point 
each semester. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


908/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Strategy/Activity 1 
Purchase and administer formative & summative assessments (MAP and CC student writing assessments) to all 
traditional Ark IS students at least twice a year; record and analyze results. Store and share results in Illuminate and 
shared Google document.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Ark teachers, Ark principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description MAP assessment for reading and math        


Amount 600.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Extra hours for teacher planning and administration of MAP test.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Implement, throughout all disciplines, evidence based instructional strategies including DOK (Depth of Knowledge) 
Levels 3 & 4 to ensure Common Core State Standards are adequately being addressed as well as to increase the rigor 
in learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Ark staff will work towards this goal in PLCs        


909/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Strategy/Activity 3 
Place students who score below grade level on the MAP reading assessment on a Reading Advancement Plan with 
agreement from parent/ guardian, teacher, and student to support and advance reading skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students reading below grade level        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, parents/guardians, students        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Monitor progress of EL students in ELA through LRT (Language Review Team); coordinate services for ELs and 
recently re-designated ELs, and purchase appropriate curricular materials.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers of English Learners        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Purchase relevant books and supplies that support student achievement of schoolwide learning outcomes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, principal's secretary, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,249        


910/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase of needed books and supplies, particularly those associated with Edgenuity.        


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase supplemental books and textbooks. 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Purchase & implement online program to support A-G pathway options and supplies and student achievement of 
schoolwide learning outcomes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Ark Teachers, Secondary Curriculum & Instruction Director        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 18000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description SCCS/The Ark will purchase Edgenuity online program in order to offer A-G pathways        


 


911/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
With the guidance of a 0.4 FTE credentialed math teacher, staff identifies and adopts mathematics curriculum and 
assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Power Standards, and modifies instructional practices to 
increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Student math achievement as measured by credit earning improved over the year, but fell far short of the expected 
outcome. It is clear that increased communication with the math lab teacher and Ark Independent Studies teachers is 
needed to improve student performance.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Credit Earning         In 2019-20, 48% of Ark students 
earned 5 credits of math each 
semester. 


 70% of students enrolled in a math 
course will earn 5 or more credits 
each semester. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Continue to provide robust support for math program that includes a certificated math teacher based on a Math Lab 
model to provide CC Power Standards based course descriptions (a-g), curriculum, instruction, and assessments.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in math class        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, tutor, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


912/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Amount 3559        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Amount 7385        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Amount 11,900        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Purchase District CC aligned math textbooks and materials as identified by a certificated math teacher.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in math class        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, tutor, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1590        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and supplies as needed by certificated math teacher        


Amount 4000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase of materials and exams for Cyber High        


Strategy/Activity 3 


913/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Align strategic CC Power Standards based instruction, and purposeful, authentic assessments to specified goals that 
are backed up with data that drives instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in appropriate math class aligned to their mathematics assessment data and previous experience in 
math coursework.        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Purchase and administer formative and summative assessments (MAP)  to all traditional Ark IS students at least twice 
a year; record and analyze results. Store and share results in Illuminate and shared Google document.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Ark students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Ark Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description For funding of the MAP Assessment, please see Goal #1, Activity 1.        


 


914/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
Improve school culture and climate through increased student participation and implementation of trauma informed 
tenets and Restorative Justice practices.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The Ark’s continued focus on trauma informed practices and new focus on restorative justice principles and practices will 
ensure that students are taught, practice, and reflect on the use of self-regulation strategies and effective communication 
skills. Many Ark students have faced or are facing significant health issues. In order to help them continue to be 
successful with despite these issues, while still maximizing their learning, students need tools to reduce stress in the 
face of difficult circumstances. Survey and credit earning data shows that solidifying trauma informed practices will 
continue to benefit our students’ connection to school and their academic performance.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Parent/teacher/student conference 
attendance        


 In 2019-2020, 94% of Ark parents 
attended Fall & Spring conferences. 


 98% of parents/guardians will attend 
Fall and Spring Semester 
conferences. 


Locally created student and parent 
survey        


 In 2019-20, 94% responded that they 
regularly use self-regulation 
strategies. 


 95% of students & parents will 
respond positively to questions 2, 3 & 
5 on the student & parent surveys 
(2=school considers social & 
emotional student needs, 3=teachers 
explain stress relief techniques, 
5=students feel respected by 
teachers) 
 


Credit earning by semester         In 2019-20, 86% of Ark students 
earned at least 20 academic credits 
per semester. 


 90% of students will earn at least 20 
academic credits per semester while 
enrolled at the Ark. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


915/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Communicate Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs) to students and families        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Explore, seek out, and participate in appropriate and relevant professional learning opportunities to better serve 
students in an independent studies program.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 300.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Calciano Symposium        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Review school needs, goals and governance opportunities at the beginning and throughout the school year. Review 
the Ark Family Orientation PowerPoint for late starting students/families.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 


916/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Hold 3 family/guardian conferences per year: start of school year, mid Semester 1, and mid Semester 2. Inform re UC 
A-G and non- A-G tracks  throughout the school year. Provide interpretation of all meetings for parents when needed 
and translate all relevant materials for Spanish speaking parents.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator, school counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Structure and define specific academic and post high school pathways to ensure all students are prepared for college, 
career, and other postsecondary high school options.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator, school counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Continue mindfulness and restorative justice training for teachers.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, SEEDS Community Resolution Center, teachers        


917/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description SEEDS for BSSC staff is funded in the 2020-2021 Costanoa SPSA        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Continue to offer enrichment opportunities (field trips, mini-classes) for students and families        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description If funding becomes available, we will move it here.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Develop a monitoring system (dropout rate analysis, academic barriers table maintained, teacher input requested, 
principal and counselor consultation) to respond to student mental health needs to provide access to support services 
to support students (e.g an internal google form to track student mental health needs and our response).        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students in need of mental health support        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, school counselor, mental health counselor, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


918/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Description Additional hours for counseling        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Pilot a weekly College & Career exploration opportunity for students to learn more about Career Pathways in the 
community and beyond        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Ark Students        


 
Timeline 
2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, Ark Teachers, CTE Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


 


919/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
Develop, test, and revise ELA curriculum and assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Standards, 
and modify instructional practices to increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


MAP-Reading assessment         80% of students who score below the 
70th percentile on the MAP reading 
assessment will improve their reading 
comprehension (one grade level) as 
measured by at least a 5 percentile 
increase in scores (freshmen, 
sophomores, and juniors) or at least 
4 RIT points (all seniors). 


 28% of students tested Spring 2021 
in grades 6-11 scored in the low 
range for their grade level on the 
MAP reading assessment. 


Narrative essay rubric scores         90% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the narrative essay writing 
rubric will increase their score by at 
least half a point each semester. 


 86% of students who scored a 3 or 
below on the narrative essay writing 
rubric in the fall increased their score 
by at least half a point each 
semester. 


Response to informative text rubric 
scores        


 95% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the Informative rubric 
(Written & Verbal DOK) will increase 
their score by at least half a point 
each semester. 


 90% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the Informative rubric 
(Written & Verbal DOK) increased 
their score by a. t least half a point 
each semester. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Purchase and administer formative & summative 
assessments (MAP and CC student writing 
assessments) to all traditional Ark IS students at 
least twice a year; record and analyze results. 
Store and share results in Illuminate and shared 
Google document. 


 Students were able to complete two 
administrations of the MAP assessment in 20-21. 


 


Implement, throughout all disciplines, evidence 
based instructional strategies including DOK 
(Depth of Knowledge) Levels 3 & 4 to ensure 
Common Core State Standards are adequately 
being addressed as well as to increase the rigor in 
learning. 


 Ark staff assessed all students in narrative and 
informational writing using a 4 point rubric. 


 


Place students who score below grade level on the 
MAP reading assessment on a Reading 
Advancement Plan with agreement from parent/ 
guardian, teacher, and student to support and 
advance reading skills. 


 Students who scored below grade level on the 
MAP reading assessment were placed on a 
reading contract by consultant teacher. 


 


920/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Monitor progress of EL students in ELA through 
LRT (Language Review Team); coordinate 
services for ELs and recently re-designated ELs, 
and purchase appropriate curricular materials. 


 Ark IS program did not hold LRTs for the 2020-21 
school year. English Learners were primarily 
placed with one bilingual consultant teacher and 
provided rich multilingual instruction in both weekly 
meetings and in math support (with bilingual math 
teacher) 


 


Purchase relevant books and supplies that support 
student achievement of schoolwide learning 
outcomes. 


 Marine Science and Mathematics texts were 
purchased to support A-G coursework. 


 


Purchase & implement online program to support 
A-G pathway options and supplies and student 
achievement of schoolwide learning outcomes. 


 Edgenuity is available to all 6th-12th grade 
students including A-G coursework. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Goal: Develop, test, and revise ELA curriculum and assessments that support student mastery of Common Core 
Standards, and modify instructional practices to increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all 
students. 
Due to a year of full distance learning, Ark Independent Studies struggled to implement MAP Assessments virtually. All 
students were asked to complete the assessment from home on their district issued Chromebooks or home computers. 
There were some tech issues with this process. The Ark staff worked toward developing ELA curriculum and common 
assessments in our weekly staff meetings. We also had students complete their narrative and informative writing virtually 
with success, as it was added to student's assignment sheet with a point value. We will be continuing this goal for the 
2021-22 school year with a strong focus on accessing our district adopted ELA curriculum, writing course descriptions, 
and adapting it to fit Independent Studies. 
          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Ark IS was mostly successful in assessing the majority of students on the MAP assessment for both ELA and Math. Due 
to our virtual setting, we struggled as a staff to develop, test and revise ELA curriculum & shared assessments. This is 
work that will continue in 2021-22 in our Professional Learning Community (PLC).          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences were due to distance learning and the need for less in-person materials or resources.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
As stated, we will continue this same goal with a strong focus on utilizing our Title one monies to fund needed texts and 
materials. The Ark staff will be working as a PLC three times per month with a sole focus on building strong common 
core curriculum for all subject areas, writing course descriptions and working towards shared assessments. We are 
strong in modifying instructional practices and continue to need to work as a team to build a more aligned core 
curriculum for ELA.          


 


921/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
With the guidance of a 0.4 FTE credentialed math teacher, staff identifies and adopts mathematics curriculum and 
assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Power Standards, and modifies instructional practices to 
increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Credit Earning         70% of students enrolled in a math 
course will earn 5 or more credits 
each semester. 


 75.5% of students enrolled in a math 
course earned 5 or more credits each 
semester. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Continue to provide robust support for math 
program that includes a certificated math teacher 
based on a Math Lab model to provide CC Power 
Standards based course descriptions (a-g), 
curriculum, instruction, and assessments. 


 The math lab teacher meets individually with 
students every week to deliver personalized math 
support. 


 


Purchase District CC aligned math textbooks and 
materials as identified by a certificated math 
teacher. 


 CPM math textbooks were purchased.  Pearson 
was purchased in a prior year for IS math 
program. 


 


Align strategic CC Power Standards based 
instruction, and purposeful, authentic assessments 
to specified goals that are backed up with data that 
drives instruction. 


 Teachers regularly reviewed MAP data and 
student work samples to inform instruction. 


 


Purchase and administer formative and summative 
assessments (MAP)  to all traditional Ark IS 
students at least twice a year; record and analyze 
results. Store and share results in Illuminate and 
shared Google document. 


 The site used discretionary funds to purchase 
licenses for this formative assessment system. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Goal: With the guidance of a 0.4 FTE credentialed math teacher, staff identifies and adopts mathematics curriculum and 
assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Power Standards, and modifies instructional practices to 
increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students. 
 
Implementation of this goal was a challenge due to the nature of distance learning. The goal includes identifying and 
adopting math curriculum and assessments that support CC standards and rarely was the team able to focus on math 
specifically in virtual collaboration. The Ark adopted a math curriculum several years ago that is appropriate for 
Independent Studies. Implementation of this curriculum and their corresponding assessments has been inconsistent. 
Additionally, our .4 credentialed math teacher supports students in 15 minute tutoring sessions, which were all over 
zoom in 2021. 
          


 


922/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Ark Independent Studies could demonstrate more effective practices in order to achieve this goal. We could be more 
effective in our curriculum and assessment clarity and implementation, as well as our instructional practices. That being 
said, we exceeded our annual measure outcome for students receiving credits.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
With an increase in students taking A-G courses at the Ark, we purchased materials as needed.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
2021-22 Goal: With the guidance of a 0.4 credentialed math teacher, staff identifies and adopts mathematics curriculum 
and assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Power Standards, and modifies instructional practices 
to increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students. 
 
There is no change to this goal, however the implementation of this goal will be more focused in the 2021-22 school 
year, particularly because the majority of our students will be attending their consultant teacher meetings and math 
meetings in person. The team will be utilizing Professional Learning Community (PLC) time to identify the adopted math 
curriculum and develop assessments that correlate, thus concurrently developing a strong mathematics instructional 
model to meet all student's needs. 
          


 


923/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
Improve school culture and climate through increased student participation and implementation of trauma informed 
tenets and Restorative Justice practices.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Parent/teacher/student conference 
attendance        


 98% of parents/guardians will attend 
Fall and Spring Semester 
conferences. 


 98% of parents/guardians attended 
Fall and Spring Semester 
conferences. 


Locally created student and parent 
survey        


 95% of students & parents will 
respond positively to questions 2, 3 & 
5 on the student & parent surveys 
(2=school considers social & 
emotional student needs, 3=teachers 
explain stress relief techniques, 
5=students feel respected by 
teachers) 
 


 92% of students & parents will 
respond positively to questions 2, 3 & 
5 on the student & parent surveys 
(2=school considers social & 
emotional student needs, 3=teachers 
explain stress relief techniques* 
5=students feel respected by 
teachers) 
*Question #3 was an average of 
76.35% positive response 
 
 


Credit earning by semester         90% of students will earn at least 20 
academic credits per semester while 
enrolled at the Ark. 


 93% of students earned at least 20 
academic credits per semester while 
enrolled at the Ark. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Communicate Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs) 
to students and families. 


 Teachers hosted at least two parent conferences 
in addition to the weekly check ins and Google 
Classroom communications. 


 


Explore, seek out, and participate in appropriate 
and relevant professional learning opportunities. 


 All staff attended PD on SEL and some staff 
participated in CCIS webinars. 


 


Review school needs, goals and governance 
opportunities at the beginning and throughout the 
school year. Review the Ark Family Orientation 
PowerPoint for late starting students/families. 


 Staff made revisions to the presentation about the 
Ark program, expansion to middle school, and the 
addition of Edgenuity as a curriculum source. 


 


Hold 3 family/guardian conferences per year: start 
of school year, mid Semester 1, and mid Semester 
2. Inform re UC A-G and non- A-G tracks 
throughout the school year. Provide interpretation 
of all meetings for parents when needed and 
translate all relevant materials for Spanish 
speaking parents. 


 Conferences with translation were offered as 
indicated. 


 


924/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


Structure and define specific academic and post 
high school pathways to ensure all students are 
prepared for college, career, and other 
postsecondary high school options. 


 Students' assignments included researching 
career pathways and were presented to consultant 
teachers. 


 


Continue mindfulness and restorative justice 
training for teachers. 


 BSSC completed its three-year implementation 
plan in Restorative Justice, including Trauma-
Informed practices, in 20-21. 


 


Continue to offer enrichment opportunities (field 
trips, mini-classes) for students and families. 


 Consultant teachers were unable to offer field trips 
during distance learning, however guest speakers 
from the community presented on zoom weekly in 
one consultant teacher's weekly meeting. 


 


Develop a monitoring system (dropout rate 
analysis, academic barriers table maintained, 
teacher input requested, principal and counselor 
consultation) to respond to student mental health 
needs to provide access to support services to 
support students (e.g. an internal google form to 
track student mental health needs and our 
response). 


 A referral process was established district wide, as 
well as an internal Student of Concern form, and 
there is planning for site funds to be used to 
extend mental health services in 21-22. 


 


Pilot a weekly College & Career exploration 
opportunity for students to learn more about 
Career Pathways in the community and beyond. 


 Consultant teachers were unable to offer field trips 
during distance learning, however guest speakers 
from the community presented on zoom weekly in 
one consultant teachers weekly meeting. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Goal: Improve school culture and climate through increased student participation and implementation of trauma informed 
tenets and Restorative Justice practices. 
 
Ark implementation of Fall and Spring conferences was strong. Ark implementation of a bilingual parent and student 
survey was successful. Ark students exceeded their target for earning 20 credits or more per semester. 
          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The Ark was effective in utilizing the strategies and activity to achieve the goal. These strong community building 
practices are a large part of the Ark IS program. All Ark students were online and working from home. Because of the 1:1 
nature of the IS consultation model, many students opened up to their teachers about how they were feeling. Several 
students received trauma informed instruction, as well as mental health support through our mental health team and 
social work intern.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences were due to distance learning and the need for less in-person materials or resources.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Goal for 2021-22: Improve school culture and climate through increased student participation and implementation of 
trauma informed tenets. The only change with this goal is the removal of Restorative Justice practices due to the fact 
that we are not receiving any Restorative Justice Professional Development. We will be attending the Calciano 
Symposium as a staff, as well as funding some guest speakers.          


 


925/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  11,900 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  57,083.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


926/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


         0.00 


CARES Act         5,059.00 


District Funded         18,000.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         17,985.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         3,839.00 


None Specified         0.00 


Title I         12,200.00 
 


927/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


         0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         26,444.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         30,339.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 300.00 


None Specified         0.00 
 


928/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


           0.00 


           0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  3,559.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  1,500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  18,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  10,985.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  7,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  3,839.00 


None Specified         None Specified  0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  11,900.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  300.00 


 


929/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Mary Anne Robb         X Classroom Teacher        


Amelia von Gerer         X Classroom Teacher        


Kim Woodland         X Classroom Teacher        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Micah Posner         X Parent or Community Member        


Michelle Easter         X Parent or Community Member        


Matthew Domenceiili         X Secondary Student        


Nativo Davila         X Secondary Student        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


930/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 46 Ark Independent Studies


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on September 21, 2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Michelle Easter on September 21, 2021 


 


931/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
School Year:    2021-22     


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 


School Name 
Costanoa Continuation 
High School/Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus         


County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 


44698234436960         


Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 


September 21, 2021         


Local Board Approval 
Date 


October 20, 2021         


 


Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 


X Comprehensive Support and Improvement        


 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
Costanoa is in CSI due to California Dashboard data that shows high rates of suspension, low rates 
of graduation and low rates of College and Career Readiness. Costanoa will focus on enhancing our 
CTE pathways, focusing on Project Based Learning (PBL) to increase engagement, implementing 
academic assessments in both math and reading and contracting with outside support providers to 
support high quality math instruction and build systems for increased success of our students. 
Costanoa is is also providing college and career exploration as a co-curricular course. All of these 
interventions will help Costanoa meet the ESSA (Every Student Succeeds Act) requirements.         
 


932/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary 
of results from the survey(s). 
Students were surveyed in Spring of 2021 around their academic and social emotional well being. Students appreciated 
being back on campus in person and expressed desire to the Leadership and Advisory periods as well as give 
opportunities for students to give input into the classes that are offered at Costanoa. 
 
Staff met weekly throughout the 20-21 school year to discuss student needs and support. As a result of this collaboration 
and input small group interventions were put in place during distance learning and plans were implemented as soon as 
possible to bring all students back on campus every day in the spring of 2021. Additionally, in lieu of a survey staff 
participated in a summer input and planning day to look at data and student needs and determine action steps to adjust 
for the 21-22 school year. As a result of this input meeting, staff determined to extend the school day for students and 
also offer specific courses to ensure students are clearly receiving the credits needed for graduation. For example, there 
are going to be math and English specific courses for students, as most students coming to Costanoa need credits in 
these content areas. The decision to lengthen the school day was made to accommodate additional learning 
opportunities for students including participation in the new CTE Sustainable Agriculture pathway. 
 
         


 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and 
a summary of findings. 
Costanoa has a daily four period schedule and has also extended the school day from what it was in past. The Principal 
and Assistant Principal are in classrooms weekly to informally observe and provide weekly feedback to teaching staff. 
The current instructional focus is on Teacher Clarity, which includes having written Learning Goals that are aligned to 
standards as well as posting student Success Criteria. Success Criteria are the check list of items that students will be 
able to do that demonstrates they have met the day's Learning Goal. The second instructional focus for the 21-22 school 
year is on student accountable academic talk, which is the focus of PLC work. 
 
A Classroom Walkthrough tool was co-created with the Small School SCIL team and administrative staff and focuses on 
Teacher Clarity and Student Accountable Talk, both of which are high yield instructional strategies and aligned to the 
district instructional focus. This walkthrough tool is used to collect data and give feedback to staff. 
 
Costanoa is also continuing a focus on student social emotional health and well being and are continuing to integrated 
socio emotional learning as well as the restorative justice practice of community circles. 
 
 
 
         


 


933/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential 
Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and 
develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as 
individual students who are: 
 


• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 


 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague 
or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made.  
Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing 
monitoring of categorical programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
Costanoa teachers, counselor, admin and support staff analyze CAASPP, ELPAC, and MAP data, as well as attend and 
give input to weekly Team Intervention Protocol meetings (Tier 1) and weekly Attendance and Counseling meetings (Tier 
2). 


 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC) 
Using data to monitor student progress continues to be an area of growth for Costanoa, however, we are also proud of 
the strides we have made in this area over the past school year. During the 20-21 school year, Costanoa implemented 
the use of NWEA MAP assessments in Reading and Math. These assessments were given twice during the year to 
monitor student growth or lack there of. This nationally normed assessment system continues to be used this school 
year (21-22) with a focus on supporting staff to use the data to plan for instruction and meet student specific needs. The 
Small Schools SCIL team and administration are supporting Costanoa staff with moving forward in data based 
instructional planning. 


 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
Currently, we are meeting the requirements for having a highly qualified staff. We have 5 fully credentialed certificated 
staff with EL authorization. 


 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training 
on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
As an alternative school, Costanoa uses a variety of instructional materials to support students in earning credits 
towards graduation. Teachers have access to professional development and SBE-adopted instructional materials, and 
find that the materials do not always meet the students where they are in their learning. Determining additional 
instructional materials to support the unique needs of students at Costanoa is a need. 


 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA) 
Alignment of staff development to content stances, assessed student performance, and professional needs is a place of 
growth for our school. In 2021-22, we plan to provide instructional coaching to support teaching teams in aligning 
essential standards, learning outcomes, and success criteria in project-based learning units. 


 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC) 
In 2020-21, Costanoa contracted with PBL Works from the Buck Institute, a professional development group focused on 
supporting teachers and schools to effectively implement project based learning. Costanoa will continue to contract with 
PBL Works for the 2021-22 school year to continue this professional development focus. 
 
Additionally, Costanoa staff PD meetings will focus on the high impact schoolwide instructional foci: Teacher Clarity & 
student accountable academic talk. This PD will be delivered by staff, admin, and district office instructional experts. 
 


 


934/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) 
(EPC) 
As part of the Project Based Learning professional development focus, teacher collaboration is focused on refining 
current projects and creating new ones that engages students in meaningful, relevant topics and that also meet the 
requirements of the standards. The Buck Institute will also provide instructional coaching to support teaching cohort 
teams in aligning essential standards, learning outcomes, and success criteria in project-based learning units. Costanoa 
is also increasing the FTE of the current CTE instructor to allow for her to develop and implement a CTE Sustainable 
Agriculture pathway to support an increase in career and college readiness for Costanoa students. The Costanoa CTE 
teacher is collaborating with the CTE Sustainable Agriculture teacher at Soquel High, one of the three comprehensive 
high schools in our district, to ensure rigorous course projects aligned to the California Model CTE Sustainable 
Agriculture standards. 


 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards is a place of growth for 
Costanoa. In 2021-22, we plan to provide instructional coaching to support teaching teams in aligning essential 
standards, learning outcomes, and success criteria in project-based learning units. 


 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) (EPC) 
As a continuation high school, Costanoa staff endeavor to personalize education for every student. While we believe that 
this is our inspired purpose, we also need to adhere to our agreements about consistent instructional strategies, 
administration and analysis of common formative assessments, and increase our competence in applying data analysis 
to inform instruction in order to ensure student success in meeting their educational goals. 


 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC) 
In 2021-22, we plan to continue to provide professional development in Project Based learning theory and practices so 
that differentiation in Tier 1, 2, and 3 learning environments will be responsive to students' learning needs so that more 
students will be able to meet their educational goals: 
1) graduate within four years or earlier 
2) complete enough credits each year to be on track for meeting graduation requirements 
3) leave Costanoa career and/or college ready. 
 


 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
There have been no Williams Act complaints at Costanoa in its history. As an alternative school, Costanoa uses a 
variety of instructional materials to support students in earning credits towards graduation. Teachers have access to 
professional development and SBE-adopted instructional materials, and find that the materials do not always meet the 
students where they are in their learning. 


 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school 
students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Costanoa students and staff have access to a wide range of instructional materials, including but not limited to the 
curricular materials at each of the comprehensive high schools. Teachers at Costanoa are working on course outlines 
that include projects that are aligned to state standards in each content area in order to ensure access to standards 
aligned core courses. This is part of our Project Based Learning work and focus during PLC collaboration and Staff PD 
meetings. 


 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 


935/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
In the 2021-22 school year, Costanoa is able to employ a full time MFT Therapist to support students in their social 
emotional needs. This therapist is part of Costanoa's efforts to create a Health Center for students. Implementing this 
Health Center and employing a therapist is in direct response to student and staff input on the needs for students at 
Costanoa. By supporting students social emotional needs, students will be better able to engage in their academics. 
 
Additionally, Costanoa lengthened the school day to increase the academic opportunities students have access to. 
Students now have access to a computer science class and a CTE Sustainable Agriculture pathway, both of which are 
using curriculum from the comprehensive high schools to ensure Costanoa students are engaging in rigorous and 
meaningful curriculum like their peers in comprehensive programs. All Costanoa students also participate in the daily 
Advisory class, which focuses on building different academic skills and also gives students a place to center and ground 
themself. Additionally, Costanoa has small class sizes to allow for more one on one support from their teachers. 
Similarly, Costanoa also has hired a paraeducator to add another support for students in the classroom. 
 
Teachers are also employing high impact, evidence based instructional practices into their instruction as a means to 
support students in engaging and accessing the curriculum and meeting the state standards in each content area. 
 


 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
The 3 keystone evidence-based educational practices that Costanoa regularly uses are: 
 
1) Project Based Learning 
2) Schoolwide Integrated Units 
3) Restorative Justice Practices 
 
While these are currently used, there is room for growth and refinement in the use of these practices to maximize 
student learning and achievement. Thus, the Costanoa staff will be engaging in professional learning specific to both 
Project Based Learning as well as Restorative Justice Practices. 
 
Additionally, Costanoa is reviewing the current use and implementation of student portfolios and wants to expand this 
practice. 
 
 


 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA) 
All Costanoa families are invited and expected to participate in conferences at least three times per year. During this 
conference time, families are expected to participate in making a plan for graduation for their child. Families are 
consistently communicated with and included on all district communication. Costanoa offers support through our 
outreach programs (e.g. contracting with local farms, donations, school community coordinator). 


 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary 
schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
All Costanoa families are invited to participate in School Site Council, ELAC & DLAC (as appropriate). Students are 
regularly surveyed about their learning needs, mental health status, engagement status, etc. 


 


936/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
As a small school, (70-90 students on average) Costanoa is allocated categorical funds in accordance with State and 
local funding formulas. We use these funds to most efficiently address students' individualized learning needs by 
providing professional development for teachers, involvement in intervention planning and delivery by both certificated 
and classified personnel, pursuing CTE pathways to provide Career and College readiness, and coaching in Literacy 
and Mathematics in 2021-22 and beyond. 
 
Currently, Costanoa receives Title 1 funding as well as Local Control Funding Formula Supplemental funds. Additionally, 
this is the 2nd school year in which Costanoa received a significant Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
grant to support the improvements needed at Costanoa. 
 


 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Our school district values alternative programs and the innovative instructional approaches necessary to address the 
learning needs of students who generally transfer to our school as Tier 2 or 3 students. Costanoa is adequately funded, 
staffed and resourced. We intend to utilize the above mentioned fiscal funding sources to better understand formative 
assessment data, processes related to project based learning, professional learning communities, and students' mental 
and social emotional well-being. 


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Many stakeholders were involved in the planning process as part of the annual SPSA review and 
update. The Costanoa SCIL lead and the principal met to review overall progress on the schoolwide 
action plan in late April. The Costanoa staff then reviewed the progress on goals and status on 
meeting 2020-21 metrics in an end of year staff meeting. Additionally, all Costanoa students were 
surveyed in the Spring in regards to academic and social emotional needs. This data was responded 
to accordingly and elements included in the school plan.The SCIL lead, the principal and the staff 
met to review this important student survey data and school data. The schoolwide action plan was 
modified slightly to ensure the greatest likelihood of achieving our three schoolwide goals. Finally, 
the school Site Council reviewed progress on the 2020-21 SPSA and approved the goals, metrics, 
and schoolwide action plan changes for the 2021-22 SPSA. 
 
         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
The students that enroll at Costanoa are credit deficient, some significantly so. 
 
Many students access our school because they were unsuccessful in their previous school. 
Costanoa students are often discouraged by school by the time they enroll at Costanoa. 
 
Many students have experienced trauma in their life, which impacts their learning and academic 
performance. 
 


937/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Many students lack internet resources, are from low income households, have to take care of 
siblings, and/or have additional challenges which impact focus and ability to engage in their 
schoolwork. 
 
Some Costanoa students are working full time and/or live outside of our district, which has caused 
these students attendance issues. 
 
Costanoa instructional staff not aligned in their practices/systems (e.g. common formative 
assessments, Senior Projects, etc.). 
 
English Learners (ELs) and Long Term English Learners (LTELs) a significant part of our population 
and not making adequate progress. 
 
Students in Special Ed with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) also not making adequate 
progress. 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 


938/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     % 2.3% 2.1%  2 2 


African American     2.33% 2.3% 2.1% 2 2 2 


Asian     % 0% %  0  


Filipino     % 0% %  0  


Hispanic/Latino     68.6% 59.77% 62.8% 59 52 59 


Pacific Islander     % 0% %  0  


White     26.74% 32.18% 28.7% 23 28 27 


Multiple/No Response     1.16% 3.45% 4.3% 1 3 4 


 Total Enrollment 86 87 94 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Grade 9        2   


Grade 10        9 2  


Grade 11        39 34 17 


Grade 12        36 51 77 


Total Enrollment        86 87 94 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Costanoa enrollment has maintained steady for the past several years. However, in our current school year, 21-22, 


we have seen a slight decrease in enrollment. This is in part due to state legislation that was passed that allows 
students to graduate from their comprehensive high schools meeting the minimum state requirements for 
graduation.        


2. Comprehensive counselors are not sending 10th grade students to Costanoa, which is a topic of ongoing 
conversation at counselor and Assistant Principal meetings. This is why we see low 10th grade enrollment. They 
are waiting until 11th and 12th grade to send students.        


3. There are more 12th grade students enrolled because there are a number of 5th year seniors at Costanoa.        


 


939/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        15 16 22 17.4% 18.4% 23.4% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        30 26 29 34.9% 29.9% 30.9% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        1 0 0 7.7% 0.0% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of English Learners has been steadily increasing over the past three years, while the FEP students has 


slightly decreased over the past 3 years.        
2. 18.4% of the Costanoa student body are still classified as English Learners. This demonstrates the need for 


integrated ELD professional learning.        
 


940/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 36 25 39 26 22 35 26 22 35 72.2 88 89.7 
All 
Grades 


36 25 39 26 22 35 26 22 35 72.2 88 89.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2500.
7 


2487.
5 


2470.
9 


0.00 0.00 0.00 7.69 18.18 5.71 50.00 36.36 31.43 42.31 45.45 62.86 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.69 18.18 5.71 50.00 36.36 31.43 42.31 45.45 62.86 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 9.09 2.86 61.54 59.09 37.14 38.46 31.82 60.00 


All Grades 0.00 9.09 2.86 61.54 59.09 37.14 38.46 31.82 60.00 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 42.31 45.45 22.86 57.69 54.55 77.14 


All Grades 0.00 0.00 0.00 42.31 45.45 22.86 57.69 54.55 77.14 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 18.18 0.00 80.77 45.45 68.57 19.23 36.36 31.43 


All Grades 0.00 18.18 0.00 80.77 45.45 68.57 19.23 36.36 31.43 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 0.00 2.86 57.69 54.55 48.57 42.31 45.45 48.57 


All Grades 0.00 0.00 2.86 57.69 54.55 48.57 42.31 45.45 48.57 


941/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No students tested above standard in any language arts strand.        


2. 77% of students tested below standard on writing and 60% of students tested below on reading. This was the 
lowest performance on any strand.  Our continued professional development focus on writing is key in order to 
support students to produce clear and purposeful writing.        


3. Our students' scored the highest in Research/Inquiry and in Listening.        


 


942/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 36 25 39 21 22 30 21 22 30 58.3 88 76.9 
All 
Grades 


36 25 39 21 22 30 21 22 30 58.3 88 76.9 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2435.
4 


2444.
6 


2416.
2 


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.52 4.55 0.00 90.48 95.45 100.0 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.52 4.55 0.00 90.48 95.45 100.0 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 100.0 100.0 


All Grades 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 100.0 100.0 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.00 18.18 23.33 85.00 81.82 76.67 


All Grades 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.00 18.18 23.33 85.00 81.82 76.67 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.33 27.27 23.33 66.67 72.73 76.67 


All Grades 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.33 27.27 23.33 66.67 72.73 76.67 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All students' scored overall in the "Standard Not Met" range.        


2. Costanoa needs to look at their math program and local math assessments.        


 


943/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 10        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11        * * * * * * * 9 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * 5 


All Grades              15 16 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11     * * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 * 12.50 * 43.75 * 43.75 15 16 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11     * * *  * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 * 18.75 * 37.50 * 43.75 15 16 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10     * * * * * * * * * 


  11     *  * * * * * * * 


  12     * * *  * * * * * 


All Grades         6.25 * 12.50 * 18.75 * 62.50 15 16 
 


944/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 * 37.50 * 62.50 15 16 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


  11    * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 25.00 * 31.25 * 43.75 15 16 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         6.25 * 12.50 * 81.25 15 16 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 * 81.25 * 18.75 15 16 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 16 students took the ELPAC in 18-19 and they majority of their scores were in the Level 1 and beginning range        


2. There was a relative strength in the area of the Writing portion of the ELPAC for those tested, with 81.25% scoring 
in the "Somewhat/Moderately" range        


3. There are not enough EL students at Costanoa to register a significant need.        


 


945/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


87        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


64.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


18.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


3.4        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        16 18.4 


Foster Youth        3 3.4 


Homeless        3 3.4 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        56 64.4 


Students with Disabilities        26 29.9 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        2 2.3 


American Indian        2 2.3 


Hispanic        52 59.8 


Two or More Races        3 3.4 


White        28 32.2 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Costanoa students have extremely high needs as evidenced by the high percentage (79.1%) of socioeconomically 


disadvantaged students.        
2. Costanoa must continue to hold weekly attendance/counseling meetings attended by district nurse, 


attendance/health clerk, principals, school community coordinator, counselors, mental health counselor, and district 
social worker to address students' diverse needs.        


3. Costanoa staff must continue to discuss students of concern at weekly team intervention planning sessions during 
staff meetings.        


 


946/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 


947/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


 
College/Career 


 
Red        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Red        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Red        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Given the current course offerings and configuration of Costanoa, the College and Career indicator will stay in the 


Red. However, Costanoa is moving towards a CTE pathway approach to begin moving the needle on this indicator.        
2. The graduation rate went down and the suspension rate went up, which caused these two indicators to be in the 


red. Costanoa engaged in a needs assessment to determine possible reasons why this occurred and next steps to 
remediate.        


 
 


948/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


119.2 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -18.7 points         


26        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


128.2 points below standard         


20        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


 


949/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


118.3 points below standard         


19        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


107.7 points below standard         


11        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Costanoa does not have enough students in each group to register a color.        


 
 


950/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


215 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -25.2 points         


21        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


222.9 points below standard         


17        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


 


951/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


215.9 points below standard         


16        


Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Costanoa does not have enough students in each group to register a color.        


2. While there are no colors, Costanoa is using the data they do have to work towards improving students' skills and 
scores.        


 
 


952/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


20 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 15          


Performance Level: VeryLow        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


46.6         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


33.3         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 20% of English Learners progressed 1 or more levels on the ELPAC, 33.3% of English Learners maintained their 


level of proficiency on the ELPAC, & 46.6% went down 1 or more levels.        
2. Increasing student talk and academic language should continue to be a focus at Costanoa.        


3. The language review team must continue to focus on ways to support English learners during the fall and spring 
meetings.        


 
 


953/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


0         


Maintained 0         


32        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


25        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


 


954/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


27        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
 Prepared         


 Approaching Prepared         
 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
0 Prepared         


2.2 Approaching Prepared         
97.8 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
0 Prepared         


3.1 Approaching Prepared         
96.9 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Costanoa does not have enough students in each group to register a color.        


2. Costanoa needs to offer students participation in a second-semester cohort enrolled in the same community college 
Cabrillo course (online VAPA).        


 
 


955/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


65.6         


Declined -5.5         


32        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


68         


Declined -5.5         


25        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


 


956/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


63         


Declined -8.5         


27        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
71.1         


2019         
65.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The graduation rate declined 5.5%.        


2. High numbers of Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students as well as Hispanic/Latinx students are declining in their 
graduation rates.        


 
 


957/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


3        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


12.2         


Increased +6.4         
123        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


12.5         


Increased +8         
24        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          9        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


12.6         


Increased +8.5         
87        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


16         


Increased +11.8         
25        


 


958/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Red         


11.8         


Increased +6.5         
85        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Red         


15.2         


Increased +6.8         
33        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
5.8         


2019     
12.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups increased their suspension rates.        


2. Special Education students (11.8%) as well as English Learners (8%) and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged (8.5%) 
students disproportionately increased their suspension rate.        


 
 


959/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
2. SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the 
social emotional well-being of all students.         


 


Goal 1 
Improve students' attendance and decrease suspensions by increasing feelings of wellbeing, safety, 
and community through implementation of restorative justice principles and practices, positive 
discipline, and tenets of trauma-informed schools.          


 
Identified Need 
Using the CA Dashboard data as well as an MTSS rubric self-assessment Costanoa staff reviewed 
student progress as well as systems of support available to students at Costanoa. As a result, it was 
identified that students are in need of a restorative approach to discipline, behavior, academics, and 
attendance. 
 
         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism 
Attendance Data        


 33% of Costanoa students 
were considered chronically 
absent in the 2020-21 school 
year. 
 
39% of Costanoa students 
were considered chronically 
absent in the 2018-19 school 
year. 
 


 There will be a 6% decrease or 
more in chronically absent 
students at Costanoa. 


Annual mid-year parent and 
student survey        


 In the February 2021 LCAP 
student and parent survey, 
89% of parents indicate that 
they feel safe at school. 
 
89% of parents "feel that my 
child's school recognizes and 
values student 
accomplishments." 
 
 
 


 The number of students and 
parents who indicate that CHS 
is a safe and respectful place 
for learning (as evidenced in 
February survey at 89% 
success rate) will be 
maintained or improved. 


Suspension Rate         10.4% of students were 
suspended in 2019-20 and 
12.2% of students were 


 There will be a 5% decrease or 
more in the suspension of 
students at Costanoa. 


960/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


suspended in the 2018-19. 
This is a ~2% decrease from 
year to year 


Community circle participation         All students at Costanoa 
enrolled for a full semester 
participated in at least 4 
community circles during the 
2019-20 school year. 


 All students will participate in at 
least 16 community circles in 
the 2021-2022 school year. 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All        
 
Strategy/Activity 
1- Develop, implement, and review on-going Positive Discipline, trauma informed care, and 
Restorative practices work in order to create an effective classroom management plan that serves 
all students and respects autonomy, cohesion, and diversity among the staff and is aligned with the 
Student Learning Outcomes (SLO) and Habits of Mind to advance academic achievement.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
15000         District Funded 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Contracting with Mountains 2 Sea paid with 
MAA funding. 


2000         Title I 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Restorative Justice Coach 


800         Title I 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Calciano Symposium for 10 staff members (Title 
1 PD) 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All        


961/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Strategy/Activity 
3-Continue to develop cohort course descriptions that reflect the unique influencing factors at CHS. 
Align cohort course descriptions with the SLOs, the Habits of Heart, Mind, and Work, Common 
Core State Standards, project based learning tenants and restorative justice principles.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         None Specified 


None Specified 
This work will be done in PLC meetings 


23771         District Funded 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.2 Certificated WASC Coordinator 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students of concern related to attendance, work production, behavior, or socioemotional needs        
 
Strategy/Activity 
4- Analyze, refine and implement existing systems developed (Attendance and Counseling Team 
and Team Intervention Plan (TIP) to support equity and access for Costanoa students of concern.  
Monitor attendance and engagement rates, Social Emotional Health Survey data, and frequent 
student survey data of all students and disaggregate to determine trends.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2000         LCFF - Supplemental 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Instructional tech attendance at weekly staff 
meeting 


68214         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
.5 Social Emotional Counselor 


77368         District Funded 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
.5 Social Emotional Counselor 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 


962/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
5. Administer surveys to all parents and students at semester conference and to students at risk of 
not meeting credit needs at quarter conferences. Review CHS Stakeholders’ annual survey data. 
Analyze and determine survey results and conclusions in March.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
5100         ESSER 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Extra hourly for teachers to hold quarter 
conferences 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
7. Increase field study/work study opportunities and field trips related to Common Core standards-
based curriculum to foster real world connections between classroom work and the community.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         None Specified 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Certificated teacher on staff provides "real world 
connections" course as part of teaching 
schedule 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 


963/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Overall, Costanoa students' attendance did increase in the 21-22 school year. This was due to the 
implementation of all of the activities outlined in the 20-21 SPSA including implementing 2 student 
cohorts that tied students to two teachers. These two teachers were integral into following up with 
students in their cohort that missed class. Additionally, when able to move from distance learning to 
in person learning in the spring of 2021, Costanoa was able to implement a schedule that allowed 
for all students to be on campus daily for their courses. Students gave feedback that being on 
campus was a huge support to them. Additionally, a small cohort of students was able to be on 
campus daily during distance learning, and this also had positive student feedback and contributed 
to the increase in student attendance. 
 
        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between the intended implementation and actual implementation. 
 
        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
In 2021-22, Costanoa will 1.) resume professional development in restorative practices (Goal 1, 
Activity 1) and Trauma Informed practices (Goal 1, Activity 1); 2.) increase the frequency of 
parent/teacher/student conferences to better monitor students' progress (Goal 1, Activity 6); 3.) 
continue to fund a mental health counselor (Goal 1, Activity 4); and 4.) begin the process of its 
regular WASC accreditation self-study cycle that was postponed due to the Pandemic from the 
organization (Goal 1, Activity 3); 5. continue to fund a Restorative practices coach and extra hours 
for key classified staff to attend weekly Team Intervention meetings to address specific students' 
learning needs (Goal 1, Activities 1 and 4).        


 


964/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
1.  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
3.  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
         


 


Goal 2 
 


• Advance student academic achievement through literacy development. 
• Advance English Learners language proficiency through implementation of integrated 


English language development strategies across the content areas 
 


 
Identified Need 
Using the CA Dashboard data as well as an MTSS rubric self-assessment Costanoa staff reviewed 
student progress as well as systems of support available to English Learners at Costanoa. As a 
result, it was identified that teachers are in need of ongoing assessment data to assess literacy (e.g. 
teacher professional development around accountable student talk).         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


MAP-Reading assessment (all 
students)        


 In 20-21, 50% of the students 
assessed improved their 
reading comprehension by one 
grade level as measured by the 
RIT to Lexile measure 
correlation. 
 
 


 At least 65% of students will 
improve their reading 
comprehension MAP scores 
(RIT) by one grade level. This 
would be a 25% increase 
compared to the 2020-21 
school year. 


MAP-Reading assessment 
(English Learners)        


 In 2019-20, 28.5% (2/7 
students) of English Learners 
assessed on the MAP 
improved their reading 
comprehension by one level as 
measured by the Lexile 
measure correlation. No 
English Learners completed 
the assessment in the 2020-21 
school year. 


 At least 52% of English 
Learners will improve their 
reading comprehension MAP 
scores (RIT) by one grade 
level. This would be a 23.5% 
increase compared to the 19-
20 school year. 


Students will earn at least 25 
credits each semester they are 
enrolled at Costanoa        


 In 2020-21, 41% 25/60 
students enrolled for the entire 
1st semester earned at least 
25 credits. 50% of English 
Learners enrolled earned 25 or 
more. 


 70% of sophomores, juniors, 
and seniors (only those who 
need at least 25 credits to 
graduate) enrolled for all of 
semester 1 and 2 will earn at 
least 25 credits each semester. 


965/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
1. Staff will work with an instructional coach to focus on implementing high impact instructional 
strategies including but not limited to the 2 schoolwide instructional focus areas: Teacher Clarity & 
Student Accountable Academic Talk. The instructional coach will also work with staff to create and 
utilize writing rubrics embedded in student projects to support increased outcomes for English 
Language Learners in the area of writing.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
44211         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.4 Certificated Instructional Coach 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
2-Increase number of high-interest, culturally relevant core instructional materials and book sets 
that are related real world learning and that meet the needs of diverse learners and provide training 
opportunities for teacher implementation        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3500         ESSER 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Books and Supplies 


0         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Instructional Coach (For Budget Line Item - 
Goal 2, Strategy 1) 


14503         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


966/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Contract with PBLWorks(Project- Based 
Learning) 


1000         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Extra Work Agreement for PD days 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English learners and students with IEPs        
 
Strategy/Activity 
3-Continue to provide and increase focused support for English Learners with IEPs by 1. analyzing 
multiple points of Special Ed related data (e.g. Qualifying conditions, academic assessment data, 
cognitive data, goal areas, etc.) and English Learner data (e.g. ELPAC scores, curriculum based 
assessments, work samples, etc.) and identifying and implementing goal-based instruction, 
including increasing opportunities for accountable student discourse.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         Title I 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Extra certificated hourly salary 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
4-Administer the district funded MAP assessment and administer the MAP Reading Assessment 
multiple times per year and work with instructional coach to analyze results to measure student 
reading growth over time.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Instructional Coach (For Budget Line Item see 
Goal 2, Strategy 1) 


967/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


1,200         District Funded 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
NWEA MAP Assessment for Reading and Math 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
5.Maintain a fully staffed library, increase book collection, and build on resource access for 
research projects (e.g. individual projects based on student interest, junior & senior projects, work 
study/field study projects)        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
8000         LCFF - Supplemental 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Books for library 


7500         District Funded 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Parcel tax for Library Media Assistant 


1000         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental Books for Library & Student 
Learning 


Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
6. Increase real-world learning inside and outside the classroom by aligning Agriculture program, 
building Sustainable Agriculture pathways, and adding additional FTE.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
20000         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.2 FTE for CTE teacher 


22000         Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


968/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.2 FTE for CTE Sustainable Course 
Development & Implementation (shared 
between two staff - Woodland & Bentley, .1 
each) 


2000         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Fieldtrips to local farms and or other work based 
learning opportunities for students 


12184         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.1 Certificated CTE Additional CTE Sustainable 
Agriculture Section 


12184         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
.1 FTE Certificated for academic support in 
Sustainable Agriculture 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
50% of students demonstrated growth on the MAP Reading assessments during the 2020-21 
school year. While this is only one measure of academic literacy development, it is our main 
objective assessment, and indicates we did not meet our goal of advancing every student's literacy 
growth. 
 
Additionally, during distance learning it was incredibly challenging to adequately include Integrated 
ELD supports for English Learners. While supports were provided as much as possible, the 
limitations of distance learning caused us not to meet this goal either. 
 
Costanoa also fell short in looking at the number of credits students earned each semester. While 
41% of all students and 50% of English Learners did earn 25 credits first semester, we want to see 
all students hitting this target. This was also impacted by the pandemic and the limitations we had 
during distance learning. 
        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
A math coach was not able to be hired for the 20-21 school year, which was part of the CSI SPSA 
plan. This was due to a lack of staffing and no qualified individuals applying for the position. This 


969/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


resulted in not being able to use part of the CSI grant funds that were allocated to Costanoa. All 
other activities in Goal 2 were completed as planned.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
On the whole, Costanoa is continuing all parts of the 20-21 plan into the 21-22 school year. 
Progress was seen and staff believe that if they continue on the current data informed and research 
based trajectory and focus, they will continue to see student growth and engagement increase.        


 


970/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
1.  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
3.  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
         


 


Goal 3 
Advance student math skills in targeted math courses (Algebra/Algebra Readiness) & 
interdisciplinary math courses (Computer Science, Functional Economics, etc)          


 
Identified Need 
In reviewing our CA Mathematics Dashboard data, we see our students have great need for growth 
in mathematics. We currently have one credentialed math teacher on staff.         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Develop local math 
assessments        


 2021-22 will be a baseline year 
for local math assessments 
(e.g. MARS Assessment) 


 65% of students will score 
proficient on the agreed upon 
local math assessment 


MAP Mathematics Growth 
Assessment        


 2020-21 42% of students met 
their growth goal on the MAP 
Math Growth Assessment. 


 65% of students that will meet 
their growth goal 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
1. Continue to provide training for teachers and Language Review Team members to develop their 
EL instructional strategies and to use materials to facilitate EL access to math curriculum.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1000         Title I 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 


971/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Language review team coordinator 
1000         Title I 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Attendance at planning meetings to develop 
curriculum 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
2. Continue to provide Common Core standards aligned math support by working directly with 
Instructional coach. Instructional coach will support instructional staff in integrating standards-
based math practices into project-based learning (e.g. weekly collaboration with cohort teachers to 
analyze MAP and curriculum based assessment data, cross-reference math needs with credit 
needs of students, design math instructional practices into daily instruction to meet student needs).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         None Specified 


None Specified 
.4 Certificated Instructional Coach (see Goal 2 
Activity 1) 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
3-Provide appropriate math instructional materials to support integrated project based learning that 
bridge math classroom learning to real world applications.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
5000         LCFF - Supplemental 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Additional supplies for math classes 


0         None Specified 
None Specified 
 


972/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
4. Increase field study opportunities and field trips related to Common Core Math standards to 
foster real world connections between classroom work and the community.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
5-Utilize the district funded MAP assessment and administer the MAP Math Assessment multiple 
times per year and work with instructional coach to analyze results to measure student math growth 
over time.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         None Specified 


None Specified 
.4 Certificated Instructional Coach (see Goal 2 
Activity 1) 


1200         District Funded 
None Specified 
NWEA MAP Assessment for Reading and Math 
(see Goal 2 Activity 4) 


 
 


Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 


973/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
In 2020-21, Costanoa worked towards developing multiple data points with regards to mathematics, 
including purchasing and administering the MAP Growth progress monitoring assessment (Goal 2, 
Activity 5). This was a huge stride and gave Costanoa teachers and administrators much needed 
information on student mathematics levels as well as annual growth. While only 42% of Costanoa 
students met their annual growth goal in the 2020-21, this gives Costanoa a solid baseline to shoot 
for even more students meeting their growth goal in 2021-22.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Part of the 20-21 CSI SPSA was to hire a math coach to choose and/or develop local assessments 
connected to the essential standards of the project-based units and standards (such as 
Mathematics Assessment Project, Silicon Valley Math Initiative materials, etc.) (Goal 3, Activity 2). 
This was not able to be realized due to no qualified candidates for this coaching position. 
 
        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
A math teacher was hired for the 21-22 school year to provide students with an instructor that is 
solely math focused. This is an adjustment to years past, and is also a change in the plan due to 
the fact that finding a math specific instructional coach is incredibly challenging. The current math 
teacher has 3 different math courses, one of which is a Computer Science course using the same 
curriculum as the comprehensive high schools. 
 
With the exception of not moving forward with hiring a math coach, all other parts of the 20-21 
school plan to support an increase in student mathematics achievement will continue on in the 21-
22 school year. Including 
        


 


974/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $31,496 


Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $168,630 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $354,735.00 


 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 


Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI)        $168,928.00 


Title I        $23,984.00 


 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $192,912.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 


State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 


District Funded        $126,039.00 


ESSER        $8,600.00 


LCFF - Supplemental        $27,184.00 


None Specified        $0.00 


 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $161,823.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $354,735.00 


975/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Kim Woodland         X Classroom Teacher        


Amelia von Gerer         X Classroom Teacher        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Mary Anne Robb         X Classroom Teacher        


Matthew Domencelli         X Secondary Student        


Nativo Davila         X Secondary Student        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Micah Posner         X Parent or Community Member        


Michelle Easter         X Parent or Community Member        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


976/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 46 Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2021. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on September 21, 2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Michelle Easter on September 21, 2021 


 


977/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
School Year:    2021-22   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 


Campus         
Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         


Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156108203         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date September 14, 2021         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 14, 2021         


Local Board Approval Date October 20, 2021         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


978/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School Vision and Mission 
 
Inspired Purpose 
A community of creative problem solvers learning to use their hearts and minds together. 
 
Vision 
Monarch students are expressive communicators and creative problem solvers who are willing to take risks. They take 
on leadership roles and have a voice in the school. They are competent and confident learners, both individually and in 
groups. Monarch students use their minds well: they find evidence, see from multiple viewpoints, discover connections, 
make suppositions, and determine relevance (Habits of Mind). They display personal best effort and are kind and helpful. 
They demonstrate listening skills and the ability to follow directions. Students develop a strong social consciousness that 
manifests in real social action. Monarch parents are involved in shared governance through active membership in Site 
Council and the Monarch Community School Parent Board. They are fundraisers. They are actively involved in school 
wide jobs. They are committed to clear communication with each other, the staff, and the students. Monarch parents are 
partners in supporting the educational mission of the school. 
 
Mission 
Students learn a foundation of skills and knowledge that will serve them well in life and in their academic careers. The 
Monarch "Bill of Rights" is the guide post for eliciting safe, pro-social behavior. All students are known well by many 
adults, including parents who volunteer in the classroom. The small size of the school, as well as parental and campus-
wide involvement, help to create good spirit and a sense of community. Students are usually grouped according to their 
learning needs, not their grade level or age. Students take responsibility for their learning and the learning of their fellow 
students by creating and evaluating learning goals, developing excellent Habits of Mind, creating culminating projects, 
exercising choices at multiple points in the curriculum, and initiating real-world actions, including community service. 
Curriculum and instructional strategies are planned collaboratively and adapted to the learning styles and developmental 
stages of the students. 
 
Monarch Alternative Community School Visioning Document/Long Range Plan 
Revised May 2016 
 
Basic Assumptions: 
At Monarch Community School, we believe that for a school to operate effectively, its staff, parents, and students need 
to have a shared educational philosophy. We believe that learning is a lifelong process, that we are all learners, 
(students, teachers, and parents alike), and that there are developmental stages of social and academic maturity. People 
learn best from hands-on experiences both individually and in multi-age groups. Finally, and perhaps most importantly, 
we must feel safe and cared for in order to develop to our fullest potential. 
 
Philosophy: 
At Monarch, we believe that learning happens best when we are all working together, (students, teachers, and parents), 
to develop a rich learning environment spanning home, school, and the greater community. We are committed to 
providing a developmentally appropriate learning environment in which students are ‘constructing’ their own knowledge 
connected to their real lives and building upon their prior experiences.  We believe that students learn best when they 
are involved and engaged in purposeful learning in which they have: 
 
o Ownership and responsibility 
o A balance of choice and direction, experience and practice 
o Knowledgeable guides (adults, parents, mentor students) 
 
At Monarch, we nurture a culture of respect, where each individual works toward his or her personal best both 
academically and socially. 
 
What follows are descriptions of the Guiding Principles and Practices that are rooted in our assumptions about learning, 
and bring our philosophy to life.  They are generally broken down into three component areas: 1) Social-Emotional 
Curriculum, 2) Academic (Cognitive) Curriculum, and 3) Shared Governance/Community Relationships. 
 
Component I 
 
Social-Emotional Curriculum: 
 
Guiding Principles: 


979/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


The social-emotional curriculum is the foundation of our program. It is based on our beliefs about what is important for 
the social and emotional functioning of the school community. Our first and foremost goal is to create a healthy 
environment of mutual respect and dignity for both children and adults. This foundation gives the academic curriculum a 
place to root itself and grow.  To that end, we address several overall areas of social-emotional development: 
 
1. Intrapersonal skills: the ability to understand personal emotions and to use that understanding to develop self-
discipline and self-control and to learn from experiences. 
 
o We work toward helping young people develop into empowered, compassionate beings. 
o We support students in developing self-awareness so they can use their personal power to make choices that 
influence what happens to them as individuals and the community as a whole. 
o We create curriculum that develops self-esteem, a sense of competence, and a desire to learn. 
 
2. Interpersonal skills: the ability to work with others through listening, communicating, cooperating, negotiating, sharing 
and empathizing. 
 
o Spending time together in mixed-age groupings builds community and fosters a caring, closer-knit community. 
o We need to feel safe and included in order to develop to our fullest potential. 
o Students and adults need to feel that they contribute in meaningful ways and are needed. 
o All students and adults are capable people working toward their personal best. 
o We are all working toward being the best communicators and problem solvers we can be. 
 
3. Systemic skills: the ability to respond to the limits and consequences of every day life with responsibility, adaptability, 
flexibility and integrity. 
 
o We nurture tolerance, social justice, and personal responsibility. 
o We encourage students to take risks. We see making mistakes as an important part of social emotional development 
and learning. 
o We guide students toward developing self-motivation and self-direction in social and academic pursuits. 
o We lead students toward a sense of industry and competence, in both work and play. 
 
4. Judgment skill: the ability to develop wisdom and evaluate situations according to appropriate values. 
 
o We all have personal power that we can use to make good choices and influence what happens to our community and 
us. 
o We all work toward understanding how our behavior affects others, our community and the greater community. 
o Students and adults need to have many opportunities to improve their communication and problem solving skills 
through daily practice. 
o As students grow, we expect them to take on more responsibility for themselves, others and the community. 
 
5. Adults in the community accept responsibility for aiding and guiding students in their social emotional growth. 
 
o Adults role model the same open communication skills and problem solving techniques they wish students to use with 
each other in their behavior with other adults. 
o Adults are facilitators who direct children toward pro-social behaviors. 
o The staff shares a commitment to providing kind, firm behavior agreements and consequences. 
 
Current Practices: 
o Staff works collaboratively on both academic and social emotional issues. 
o Reading Buddies are used to develop and promote multi-age peer interactions, as are frequent cooperative, small 
group projects. 
o Our School Bill of Rights is used as a guide for behavior. A school-wide behavior agreement based on this is 
discussed and signed by all families when the year starts. Both are referenced frequently throughout the year. 
o Class meetings, all school community meetings, student leadership team, parent meetings, and staff meetings are all 
used as places to problem solve and discuss issues. They also serve to develop leadership skills and shared 
responsibility for our school community. 
o We all work to take responsibility and care for our community, school, materials and each other through classroom and 
school wide jobs. 
o Fun days, field trips, and learning celebrations are used to build community, share and celebrate. 
o Have a shared language for problem solving and create clear and reasonable consequences when needed. 
o Social activism and community service components of our program are developed. 
o Positive Discipline skills training for staff and parents is developed. 


980/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o School-wide diversity and inclusion strategies and education are in place. 
o Support Monarch Community and Parent Board in various diversity celebratory events (i.e. Dia del Nino). 
o All BSSC shared professional development in Trauma Informed Schools. 
o Flexibility with location and structure of Community Meeting to meet the needs of the current student population. 
o In 2015-16, addition of part-time counseling services. 
 
 
Practices we are working toward: 
o Strengthen social activism and community service in all classes. 
o Supporting and developing the economic, ethnic, and language diversity of our community. 
o Investigate an anti-bias curriculum, i.e. Teaching Tolerance, Human Rights Campaign, etc. 
 
 
Component II 
 
The Academic (Cognitive) Curriculum 
With a strong and stable social-emotional curriculum as a foundation, the academic curriculum offers the students the 
framework to stretch themselves intellectually. Over the years at Monarch students progress from learning skills to 
developing and mastering these skills and then applying them. Through experiential learning they broaden and deepen 
their understanding of themselves and the world around them. 
 
Guiding Principles: 
1.Teaching and facilitating: 
 
Developmentally appropriate practice focuses on taking students from where they are and guiding them towards 
achieving their full potential.  Developmentally appropriate practice is rooted in Constructivist theory which is based on 
the idea that learning is most meaningful when based upon prior experience and connected to real life.  Adults in a 
Constructivist classroom scaffold student learning supporting students in stretching beyond their comfort zone and 
challenging them to reach beyond their current understandings. Engaging curriculum strategies that incorporate the 
Multiple Intelligences (linguistic, logical-mathematical, spatial, bodily kinesthetic, musical, interpersonal, intrapersonal, 
and ecological) are essential. 
 
Students are grouped in a variety of heterogeneous and homogenous groupings, with a low student to adult ratio. Adults 
and student mentors are integral to each student’s success as they assist the students in creating goals, taking 
responsibility for and reflecting upon their own learning. 
 
2. Curricular planning: 
 
We have created a thematic multi-year curricular plan, that is used school-wide. We use “backward planning” 
(Understanding by Design) methods to design curriculum and establish essential questions that guide thematic learning. 
Basic skills and Common Core State Standards (CCSS) are integrated into this plan as appropriate. Input to the 
curriculum comes from staff, students, and parents. The staff engages in training to support the process and refine their 
craft. Teachers have collaborative planning time in which they prepare the environment for learning, design curriculum, 
plan lessons, and coordinate instruction. 
 
3. Assessment and accountability: 
 
Our assessment system is based on portfolios that contain student work samples, assessments and rubrics that each 
student maintains throughout their time at Monarch. We utilize authentic assessment such as reflection on the student’s 
own learning, self-evaluation, teacher observation, basic skills assessment (to inform instruction), and provide ongoing 
progress information for parents as well as the greater community. Student portfolios, in combination with the 
assessment practices, give a balanced, authentic representation of the students’ learning. Exit criteria presentations are 
the culminating rite of passage where students exhibit present evidence of their learning over their years at Monarch. 
 
Current Practices: 
o Our math, reading and writing workshops offer differentiated instruction, which is designed to take advantage of small, 
strength-based, multi-age, group instruction. 
o Thematic centers and activities offer student opportunities for student- or teacher-selected, adult- or student-directed 
activities. 
o We offer elective courses that are led by teachers, parents, students, and other community volunteers and reflect the 
instructor’s and students' interests. 
o We offer choice time (exploration, play, and creativity), projects and learning centers. 


981/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o We provide school wide inquiry-based, thematic, integrated curriculum school wide. 
o We integrate the Habits of Mind and Exit Criteria expectations throughout the students’ years at Monarch. 
o We provide access to art, music, and P.E. 
o Students have opportunities for multi-age social and academic activities. 
o Teachers, students and parents collaborate to generate the students’ learning goals. 
o Teachers connect lesson planning with formative assessments. 
o We maintain portfolios of select student work and assessments. 
o Parent conferences occur twice a year (more often if needed) to keep parents informed of students’ achievements and 
needs. At least one of these conferences is student led. 
o Twice yearly progress reports and conference records are maintained. 
o We provide training opportunities for our in-class adult community in order to have everyone (staff and volunteers) 
connected and working together in the best academic interests of the students. 
o We have a clearly defined family participation component that supports our academic goals. 
o We have standardized and formalized assessment components of our academic program, including development of 
school-wide formative assessments. 
o Students of Concern format is used three times a year to implement supports and on-going assessment for struggling 
students. 
o Working with English Language Development consultants on integrating ELD strategies into curriculum 
o Adding additional components to the student portfolios, including reflections and observations, and/or project-specific 
rubrics. 
o Adjusted grade span in portfolio system to TK-2 and 3-5. 
o Added exit criteria reference in Thematic Planning documents. 
 
Practices we are working toward: 
o More functionally integrating the portfolios into the students’ learning process by using developmental rubrics in each 
subject area, including Social Emotional skills. 
o Improving our ability to generate and evaluate clear academic and social goals that are both teacher and student 
initiated and measurable. 
o Continue building intervention support opportunities for struggling and language diverse students. 
 
Component III 
 
Shared Governance/Community Relationships 
In order for the social emotional and academic components to flourish, many different systems and activities must 
function behind the scenes.  We are a small, public school with limited funding. In order to provide the variety of 
educational options and small group instruction we feel is critical to student learning, we need a committed parent 
community who are highly involved in the education of our students and the running of our school. At Monarch it really 
does take the whole village to raise a child. 
 
Guiding Principles: 
o We share a community-wide vision and philosophy. We understand that this philosophy develops, grows, and changes 
over time, but we work to maintain its focus. 
o We are a small, family oriented, cooperative community that relies on dependable family participation. We offer equal 
access to our program regardless of in-district address, ability, personal connections, and language. All families are 
welcome. 
o We hope to instill a sense of social responsibility, ecological awareness and an understanding of the deep connection 
between the inner life of people and the surrounding environment. 
o We recognize the necessary relationship between school and community. We strive to maintain a positive image in the 
community through open communication. We work to build and maintain positive relationships with the community 
(district, S.C., etc.), other schools, other teachers, etc. 
o All levels (students, parents, and staff) participate in governance of the school. 
 
Current Practices: 
Many of these practices apply to more than one principle. The following bullet points are grouped according to the 
primary constituency they concern. 
 
Monarch Community School 
o Courses - weekly, parent/student, or volunteer led elective courses whose focus is team building and social ease 
among multi-age members. 
o Field trips – monthly school-wide and/or core group trips generally related to current curricular theme. 
o Family participation Agreement – families provide consistent classroom assistance as well as participate in out-of-
classroom projects or jobs. 


982/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o Student Leadership Team – has community-based responsibilities including planning and presiding at school events, 
as well as events outside the school community. 
o Fundraising 
o Parent meetings – classroom, committee, emergency, community building, planning, and parent education/training. 
o Regular class meetings, all-school weekly meetings 
o Prompt response to parent concerns 
o Open, consistent communication between school and home (newsletter, phone tree, email, buddies, classroom 
coordinators, weekly school bulletins, one-on-one conferencing). 
 
District 
o Open enrollment 
o Adhere to district mandates and policies 
o Maintain positive relationship with the district 
o Open to visits from district and school board 
o Maintain positive relationship with teachers’ and classified employees’ unions 
o Santa Cruz Education Foundation 
o CHS buddy classes 
o All BSSC events (i.e. Dia del Nino, Storytelling Festival, etc.) 
o All BSSC Site Council 
o All BSSC and Branciforte Middle School shared professional development in Trauma Informed Schools 
o Representation on district-wide committees, task forces, PLCs 
 
 
State 
o Site Council – oversees LCAP funds, annual Site Plan/Single Plan for Student Achievement, when funds are available 
o Consider Common Core State Standards in curriculum planning 
o Maintain positive relationship with state 
o Adhere to Ed code, Section 504 and IEP rules, including instructional minutes, staffing ratios, etc. 
o Advocate for increased revenues 
 
Global 
o Guest speakers who share their experiences 
o Field trips 
o School wide projects 
 
Practices we are working towards: 
o Increasing family participation 
o Increasing fundraising including grant writing 
o Develop school-wide and/or group specific project focused on community service and social justice 
o Clarify and develop role of student leadership team 
o Increasing participation in ELAC 
o Regular interaction/outreach with local Headstart 
o Recruiting and maintaining support staff (Community Coordinator, learning assistants, etc.) 
 
 
References 
Koetzsch, R. (1997).  The Parents’ guide to alternatives in education.  Boston, MA:  Shambala. 
Nelson, J., Lott, L., & Glenn, S. (2000). Positive discipline in the classroom: Developing mutual respect, cooperation and 
responsibility in your classroom.  Roseville, CA:  Prima Publishers. 
Rogoff, B., Goodman Turkanis, C., & Bartlett, L. (2001).  Learning together:  Children and adults in a school community.  
Oxford; New York:  Oxford Univ. Press. 
 
 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 


983/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


In August 2021, Monarch School welcomed students back into the five classrooms. Teachers maintain Google 
Classroom in case students are COVID quarantined and require short-term independent study. The school’s academic 
focus will be to accelerate learning by intentionally implementing high-impact instructional strategies. Reinvigorating in-
person social-emotional growth will be equally attended to through teachers’ re/certification in Positive Discipline in the 
Classroom, learning more about Trauma-Informed teaching practices, and learning more about neuro-atypical students 
and how to best support them. Monarch School is able to support the five classrooms with part-time paraeducators, and 
one classroom is hosting a student teacher from a local university program.  
 
Monarch Community School has resumed traditional school hours; students are interacting with multi-age classroom 
peers; the school is able to offer in-class parent participation on a limited basis due to COVID; the school is resuming its 
schoolwide thematic, project-based science and social studies units; and multi-age literacy and mathematics workshops 
will be in place.  
 
COVID safety protocols are in place: mask-wearing is mandatory for everyone indoors; outdoor masking is optional yet 
the majority of students and all school personnel wear masks throughout the day; school staff is trained in administering 
rapid anti-gen tests; the school district has implemented on site PCR testing for all staff, students and family members. 
Parent volunteers who work in the classrooms must show proof of vaccination; unvaccinated staff must PCR test weekly 
and vaccinated staff test at least once a month.  
 


• ------------------------- 
 
Monarch is a small alternative elementary school. We provide a developmental approach, where each child is seen as 
an individual with various strengths and needs. Our curriculum uses science and social studies themes from the 
Common Core State Standards to teach both basic skills and critical thinking to our students in mixed-age groups.  
 
The foundation of our program is a robust social-emotional curriculum, based on the Positive Discipline philosophy. Our 
goal is to create a healthy environment of mutual respect and dignity for both children and adults, as well as to foster 
good communication and problem-solving skills. This foundation gives the academic curriculum a place to root and grow.  
 
Monarch is located on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) and has five multiage classrooms. Children are 
grouped according to their academic and social strengths, not according to their age alone. The school benefits from the 
support of the nonprofit Monarch Community Board, a group of parents that supports parent participation, parent 
education, and fund-raising within our school community. Parent participation is critical to the running of the school and 
the spirit of the community.  
 
This year, students successfully “graduated” from Monarch to Branciforte and Mission Hill Middle Schools, Alternative 
Family Education (AFE) Home school, Georgiana Bruce Kirby Preparatory School and Pacific Collegiate Charter School.  
 
Every year, graduating students demonstrate their mastery of our exit criteria to a panel of adults and peer students. 
Graduating students present evidence showing their academic growth in all subject areas including Math and English 
Language Arts, as well as leadership development, while at Monarch School.  
 
 
 
 
 


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
This plan is reviewed and approved annually by the School Site Council, which consists of students, parents, classified 
and certificated staff, and administrators. In addition, the parent group reviews the plan while planning fundraising goals. 
The plan is available to stakeholders via the school's website. District personnel, Director of Curriculum, and Assistant 
Superintendent of Instruction also provide input and suggestions for goal setting based on student data.         


 


984/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


American Indian     % 0% %  0  


African American     5.67% 2.99% 0.9% 8 4 1 


Asian     0.71% 2.99% 4.3% 1 4 5 


Filipino     % 0% %  0  


Hispanic/Latino     26.24% 25.37% 25.0% 37 34 29 


Pacific Islander     % 0% %  0  


White     58.16% 64.18% 63.8% 82 86 75 


Multiple/No Response     7.09% 4.48% 6.0% 10 6 7 


 Total Enrollment 141 134 117 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


18-19 19-20 20-21 


Kindergarten        24 23 22 


Grade 1        22 24 23 


Grade 2        20 23 22 


Grade3        26 20 18 


Grade 4        22 24 12 


Grade 5        27 20 20 


Total Enrollment        141 134 117 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Adding 20 students and an additional classroom complies with Class Size reduction.        


2. The multi-age nature of the classrooms allows families to enroll multiple members of their families in a school with 
consistent pedagogy, rigor, and emphasis on social/emotional curriculum.        


3. The current classroom configuration necessitates enrolling students in to the intermediate classrooms, therefore 
creating inconsistency in commitments and understanding of pedagogy and expectations of rigor, and invites 
students who have been chronically unsuccessful to have opportunities for building different sets of skills and 
coping strategies.        


 


985/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21 


English Learners        28 22 14 19.9% 16.4% 12.1% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        9 9 5 6.4% 6.7% 4.3% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        0 1 0 0.0% 3.6% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Students are not reclassifying while in the K-5 grades.        


2. Over the years, the school's EL population is continually declining.        


3. In order to stay within EL parity for the District average, the school might increase its EL population by 10% by the 
beginning of 2023-24.        


 


986/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * 25 * * 4 * * 4   16 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * 25 25 * 13 6 * 13 6  52 24 
All 
Grades 


* 75 70 * 17 11 * 17 11  22.7 15.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 2475.
1 


* * 7.69 * * 15.38 * * 38.46 * * 38.46 * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * 5.88 45.45 * 23.53 18.18 * 35.29 9.09 * 35.29 27.27 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 7.69 * * 61.54 * * 30.77 * 


All Grades * 5.88 36.36 * 70.59 36.36 * 23.53 27.27 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 7.69 * * 38.46 * * 53.85 * 


All Grades * 11.76 18.18 * 41.18 63.64 * 47.06 18.18 
 


987/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 15.38 * * 69.23 * * 15.38 * 


All Grades * 17.65 36.36 * 64.71 36.36 * 17.65 27.27 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 23.08 * * 46.15 * * 30.77 * 


All Grades * 29.41 54.55 * 35.29 18.18 * 35.29 27.27 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


2. Not statistically significant sample size.        


 


988/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * 25 * * 4 * * 4   16 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * 25 25 * 11 6 * 11 6  44 24 
All 
Grades 


* 75 70 * 16 11 * 16 11  21.3 15.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 2431.
8 


* * 9.09 * * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 63.64 * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * 6.25 9.09 * 12.50 9.09 * 25.00 27.27 * 56.25 54.55 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 72.73 * 


All Grades * 6.25 9.09 * 31.25 18.18 * 62.50 72.73 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 9.09 * * 27.27 * * 63.64 * 


All Grades * 12.50 9.09 * 31.25 36.36 * 56.25 54.55 
 


989/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 72.73 * 


All Grades * 12.50 9.09 * 31.25 54.55 * 56.25 36.36 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 


990/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        * * * * * * * 4 


Grade 1        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 2        * * * * * * * 5 


Grade 3        * * * * * * * 4 


Grade 4        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 5 


All Grades              30 28 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * *  *  * * * 


   1    * *  *  * * * * * 


   2    * *  * * *  * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * *  * * * 


   5     * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 14.29 * 50.00 * 17.86 * 17.86 30 28 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * *  *  * * * 


   1    * * * * * *  * * * 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3    * * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        36.67 39.29 43.33 42.86 * 7.14 * 10.71 30 28 
 


991/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K     * * * * *  * * * 


   1    * *  *  * * * * * 


   2     * * * * * * * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * * * 


   5     * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 7.14 * 17.86 * 39.29 43.33 35.71 30 28 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        46.67 17.86 36.67 64.29 * 17.86 30 28 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   1    * * * * * * * * 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        43.33 53.57 50.00 39.29 * 7.14 30 28 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 10.71 * 53.57 53.33 35.71 30 28 
 


992/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   1    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 3.57 56.67 64.29 40.00 32.14 30 28 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


2. Not statistically significant sample size.        


 
 


993/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. 
However, available data that would have been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they 
were determined to be valid and reliable. Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and 
Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2019-20 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


134        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


29.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


16.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        22 16.4 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        39 29.1 


Students with Disabilities        20 14.9 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        4 3.0 


Asian        4 3.0 


Hispanic        34 25.4 


Two or More Races        6 4.5 


White        86 64.2 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The school is within SED parity for the District average.        


2. The school's population of students with disabilities is within the RtI pyramid model's 20/80 Tier 3 to Tiers 1 and 2 
expectation.        


3. In order to stay within EL parity for the District average, the school might increase its EL population by 5%.        


 
 


994/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic absenteeism is a place for improvement.        


 
 


995/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


2.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++42.5 points         
11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


996/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 
 


997/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


87 points below standard         


Increased ++10.8 points         


11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


998/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 
 


999/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


70.8 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 24          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


12.5         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


16.6         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


4.1         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


66.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The school will construct goals that will support English Language Learners.        


 
 


1000/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
1        


Orange        
3        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


17.7         


Increased +4.5         


141        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


20         


Maintained 0         


30        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


19.2         


Increased +1.6         


52        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


20         


Declined -2.6         


30        


 


1001/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


29.7         


Increased +4.7         


37        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


23.1         


13        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Orange         


12.2         


Increased +2.3         


82        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Attention to chronic absenteeism is a place for growth at this school. The addition of short-term independent studies 


contracts in 2021-22 could help students stay engaged with their learning even if they are not in class. Attendance 
rates could improve with short-term IS in place.        


2. Attention to supporting Hispanic students with chronic absenteeism is a place for growth at this school.        


 
 


1002/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The data provided below is from the 2019 Fall California School Dashboard.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law has 
suspended the reporting of state and local indicators on the 2020 Dashboard. However, available data that would have 
been included in the Dashboard are reported on the Department’s web site if they were determined to be valid and reliable. 
Information regarding the reporting status of data is available at COVID-19 and Data Reporting. 
 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


5        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -0.7         
142        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
31        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
53        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -3.2         
30        


 


1003/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          8        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -2.8         
38        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


13        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
82        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.7         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All staff is participating in 12 hours of training in Positive Discipline and continue to apply Restorative Justice practices 


schoolwide.        
 
 


1004/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing student growth on the reading developmental rubric and F&P/DRA assessment of all students, we find 
that overall students are not meeting the projected growth criteria. With the onset of COVID-19 school closures in March 
2020, Monarch teachers and students were forced into Distance Learning with minimal opportunity for transition to the 
new format. As a result, one of the six teachers left the school in March creating a classroom full of students without a 
teacher and we resorted to bringing a retired teacher in as a full-time substitute teacher.  Unfortunately our students 
experienced degrees of learning loss in the spring. Without the benefit of end of year assessment and in-person 
beginning of year assessment, we are finding that students are requiring higher levels of support. Many of our students 
are at our school of choice as they thrive in a social learning environment and the loss of this teaching tool has had an 
impact on student progress. As Monarch is a community school, we place a high value on small group instruction, and 
were not able to provide such instruction and were without viable, end of year assessment data in 2019-20. We look 
forward to focusing our year long site PD on deepening teachers' understanding of high-impact instructional strategies 
and tools.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


F&P Assessment:  All students are 
expected to make at least one year of 
growth.        


 In 2020-21, 97% of students made 3+ 
levels of growth 


 Maintain or increase 97% made 3+ 
levels of growth 


Developmental Reading Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2020-21, 75% made a years worth 
of growth or more 


 Increase percentage of students who 
make a years worth of growth or 
more by 5% to 80% 


Developmental Writing Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2020-21, 67% made a years worth 
of progress or more 


 Increase percentage of students who 
make a years worth of growth or 
more by 8% to 75% 


MAP Reading: All students in grades 
3-5 will make at least one year of 
growth        


 Data related to meeting growth 
projections were not available 
 
 


 80% of 3rd-5th grade students will 
meet the projected growth between 
the fall and spring administrations of 
the assessment. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


1005/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2021-22 school year is on reading and spelling/writing in all 
content areas. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on scaffolding and supporting students with different 
types of academic writing.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff, admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Purchase materials for Readers Workshop in all grade levels (Units of Study for Teaching Reading Series Bundle, 
Grades K-5 with Trade Book Packs and Reading Pathways Performance Assessments and Learning Progressions, 
Grades 3–5)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students of Concern and students learning English as an additional language, as well as general ed classrooms        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Online Learning Licenses        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Each teacher will choose a professional development conference to attend that supports this goal.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2021-22        


1006/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin and staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 18,000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Registration and other costs associated with professional development        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Short term project to plan and implement an equity audit of the TK-5 library materials; additional hours for library 
support. An equity audit will contribute to students having access to relevant, current, and representative literature to 
choose from during Readers Workshop.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
20 weeks        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin and staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Extra hours for LMA to work under the supervision of the Teacher Librarian to conduct an 
equity audit per professional standards of such audits        


Strategy/Activity 5 
We will change our common formative and summative reading assessment tools as part of the implementation of the 
Readers Workshop curriculum. Teachers will be trained to use these new tools to inform instruction, support students in 
short and long-term goal setting that is in alignment with developmental rubrics, and provide a data format to share with 
families on how to work with their students outside of school.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 21-22 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, staff        


 


1007/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
In our PLC we will be trained to use Writers Workshop checklists and other formative assessments to support students 
in self-evaluation and goal setting.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 21-22 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Material/supplies/books may include: Literature books, Writers Workshops anchor charts, 
etc.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
We will offer after school tutoring in grade span groupings.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students of Concern, Students learning English        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 21-22 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description After school support to accelerate learning        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Books and materials to support spelling instruction        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


1008/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


English language learners        
 
Timeline 
November 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Consumables and teacher editions of curricular materials        


 


1009/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Given that Distance learning interfered with instructional strategies, we find that some students are, and others are not, 
meeting the projected growth criteria on MAP, developmental rubrics and/or local assessments. Students in the younger 
grades, however, are making greater advances on local summative assessments. We believe this may be the case 
because the younger students are exposed to Cognitively Guided Instruction and are constructing their own meaning 
whereas the older students are relying more on traditional methods. We look forward to professional development in 
deepening teachers' understanding of tools and high-impact instructional strategies.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
All students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2020-21, 54% made a years worth 
of growth or more 


 Increase percentage of students who 
make a years worth of growth or 
more by 6% to 60% 


MAP Growth data: All students are 
expected to make at least one year's 
growth.        


 In 2020-21, Data related to meeting 
growth projections were not available 
 
 


 All 3rd-5th grade students -  80% of 
students will meet the projected 
growth between the fall and spring 
administrations of the assessment. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Mathematics school wide focus for the 2021-22 school year is on improving practice with the CCSS 
Mathematics standards and practices. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on implementing the standards 
and practices in Mathematics through deepening teachers' understanding of tools like CGI, MARS tasks, Problems of 
the Month, and high-impact instructional strategies such as Teacher Clarity, Feedback, and Student Self Assessment.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


1010/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


All Students        
 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers, SCIL leader        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
We will use data cycles and lesson study to meet students' needs while building on foundational learning in our PLC 
work.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers, SCIL leader        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Field trips to support math curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 3 
We will review, align, and revise assessment and evaluative tools (developmental rubric) to more closely reflect the 
demands of the Common Core in our PLC meetings.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers, SCIL leader        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Coordinate with consultant on best math practices in on-going parent education.        


1011/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 21-22 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, SCIL leader        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Consultant will support teachers in planning and implementing Family Math Nights for all 
families        


 


1012/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In addition to the ELPAC, our school monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate data, as well as growth on the English Language Proficiency Profile 
(ELPP); achievement of Individualized Service Plan (ISP) goals; and the Mathematics developmental rubrics. In 
analyzing all of these data points, we see that supporting our English Learners in academic areas needs to be a focus 
for our school. See below for specific English Learner metrics and data.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 In the 2020-21 school year, 
attendance rates averaged at 97% 


 Maintain or improve EL attendance at 
97%. 


Growth on the ELPP rubric: using the 
criteria on the ELPP, individualized 
goals for each student are created 
and revised at two Language Review 
Team (LRT) meetings per year.        


 In 2020-21, growth on this rubric for 
20-21 is not available. In the 19-20 
school year, 75% of English Learners 
showed improvement on the ELLP. 


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners improving on the 
ELPP by at least 5% to 80%. 


ISP: Students receive integrated and 
direct ELD instruction in support of 
achieving individualized English 
Language Development criteria.        


 In 2020-21, all students were able to 
meet their ISP goals. 
 
 


 Maintain 100% students are able to 
meet their ISP goals. 


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
Students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 Data related to meeting growth 
projections are not available 


 All 2nd-5th grade EL students -  80% 
of students will meet the projected 
growth between the fall and spring 
administrations of the assessment. 


Growth on ELPAC summative 
assessment over one year's time        


 In 2020-21, 50% increased overall 
one point; 33% no change; 17% 
decreased by one point. 


 Increase the percentage of students 
who grow at least one overall point 
on the ELPAC by 25% to 75%. 


 


1013/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
School Community Liaison will facilitate communication with Spanish speaking families including translation at all 
meetings and for documents regarding students' progress, schedule meetings and conferences with Spanish speaking 
families, and assist with monitoring in class parent participation. Through ELAC meetings, Spanish speaking parents 
will be exposed to instructional strategies and assessment practices for English development, and how to support their 
students at home.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2021-212 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers, consultant, SCIL, Counselor, Community Liaison        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 21,812        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator 19.5 hours per week        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Coordination, implementation and monitoring of after school tutoring program to be designed with certificated personnel 
and admin to support students with ELD, ELA, vocabulary building, connecting with thematic curriculum        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners and Students of Concern        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2021-22 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, teachers, classified        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description After school tutoring program coordinated by certificated personnel and implemented by 
classified personnel        


1014/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Strategy/Activity 3 
The bi-lingual .4 FTE school counselor will have regular meetings with English Learners to help navigate the social and 
academic demands of school, through Lunch Bunch, supporting students in the General Ed classroom, and meeting 
with students as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
EL students        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 2021-22 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 58,314        


Source ESSER        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Part-time social emotional counselor        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Assess needs and develop designated ELD strategies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English language learners        


 
Timeline 
May 2022        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Sub or extra work hours for staff to assess, design, plan, and implement designated ELD 
program        


 


1015/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students'  feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, Positive Discipline, and tenets and practices of Trauma-
informed schools.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, and the Socio-
Emotional Health Survey we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When determining the level 
of School Connectedness in our school, we are specifically looking at data related to students reporting they have 
supportive, caring relationships with adults and peers, and there is a sense of student safety that promotes pro-social 
behaviors on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 In 2020-21, attendance rates 
averaged at 97% 


 Maintain or improve attendance at 
97%. 


SEHS survey: School Belonging and 
Membership data        


 This data was not available for 20-21. 
In 19-20, 23% of students reported 
never feeling a sense of belonging. 


 We will decrease the percentage of 
students reporting never feeling a 
sense of belonging by 5% or more to 
no more than 18%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
In 2020-21, all Branciforte Small Schools staff (certificated and classified) will continue learning Restorative Justice 
principles and practices. This is a three-year commitment that aligns with the deep work and resources devoted to 
training and supporting adults and children in the practices and principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma Informed 
Services.  We will develop student, parent and staff surveys on this topic, as well as use surveys provided by the 
consultant company.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


1016/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Timeline 
The 2021-22 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Branciforte Small schools will support an MOU with professional development services 
for training for all staff in Trauma Informed practices.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Staff will become certified in Positive Discipline in the Classroom via training from the PDCR. Staff will continue to 
teach and implement grounding strategies with students, SCIL team and other teachers may form a study group to plan 
for a book study on building Resilience, and use resources from Sanford Harmony curriculum to work towards this 
School Connectedness goal.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2021-22 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, consultant        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description 16 hours of training plus hourly rate for certificated staff in Positive Discipline in the 
Classroom        


Strategy/Activity 3 
The staff have requested learning how to best support neuro-atypical students. We will purchase membership to a PD 
series from Bright and Quirky and learn instructional strategies, including the embedded high-impact teaching 
strategies discussed earlier.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
The 2021-22 academic year        


 


1017/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Membership to Bright and Quirky        


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Consulting firm Rose Consulting will provide training on the effects of trauma and best 
classroom practices for the staff        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Purchase portable sound system so that the school can hold assemblies and other group events with reliable 
equipment.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students and families        


 
Timeline 
November 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Portable sound system        


Strategy/Activity 5 
The part-time school counselor will reinforce the social-emotional curriculum in their meetings with groups and 
individual students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2021-22        


 


1018/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
We are able to offer in person music instruction and other enrichment opportunities for students this year.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2021-22        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Music teacher funded through Parcel Tax        


 


1019/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 1 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


F&P Assessment:  All students are 
expected to make at least one year of 
growth.        


 Establish baseline scores for all 
students 


 97% made 3+ levels of growth. We 
now have baselines for every 
continuing student. 


Developmental Reading Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth on the developmental reading 
rubric by at least 6% to 100%. 


 75% made a years worth of growth or 
more. We did not make our target 
due to the lack of in-person learning 
and assessment in 20-21. 
 
 


Developmental Writing Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth on the developmental writing 
rubric by at least 4% to 100%. 


 67% made a years worth of progress 
or more. We did not make our target 
due to the lack of in-person learning 
and assessment in 20-21. 
 
 


MAP Reading: All students in grades 
3-5 will make at least one year of 
growth        


 Establish baseline scores for all 
students 


 16% improved RIT by 10 or more 
points. We now have baselines for 
every continuing student. In 21-22 we 
will focus on supporting students in 
meeting the projected growth from 
Fall to Spring. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 1 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for 
the 2020-21 school year is on reading and writing 
in all content areas. 
1. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD 
on scaffolding and supporting students with 
different types of academic writing via digital 
formats. 
2. We will change our common formative and 
summative reading assessment tools to more 
closely reflect the demands of the Common Core. 
Teachers will be trained to use these new tools to 
inform instruction, support students in short and 
long-term goal setting that is in alignment with 
developmental rubrics, and provide a data format 
to share with families on how to work with their 
students outside of school. 


 A certificated teacher provided after school 
tutoring in mathematics for a targeted group of 
students via Zoom and a classified employee 
provided tutoring in English Language Arts for 70.5 
hours. 


 


1020/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


3. In our PLC we will be trained to use Writers 
Workshop checklists and other formative 
assessments to support students in self-evaluation 
and goal setting. 
4. We will offer after school tutoring in grade span 
groupings during Distance Learning. 
 
A Tier 1 & Tier 2 strategy/activity will be to offer 
online supports for literacy instruction. 
Purchase and Professional Development for online 
academic literacy supports, including Epic books, 
Lexia, Learning Ally 
 


 Online supports have been implemented with the 
needed professional development and training. 


 


A Tier 1 & Tier 2 strategy will be to purchase and 
administer the MAP Growth from NWEA online 
assessment for Reading and Mathematics. 


 MAP formative assessments assisted teachers in 
being able to meet the needs of students in 
distance and hybrid learning. 


 


A Tier 2 strategy/activity will be to offer small group 
cohort support/paraeducators during Distance 
Learning in grade span groups in early literacy. 


 Monarch school was able to offer two outdoor 
onsite cohorts from November through May. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
In 2020-21 teachers began the year in full Distance Learning, implementing instructional best practices for students at 
home. Paraeducators supported small group instruction via Zoom, and materials were distributed biweekly to all families. 
In November 2020 small outdoor cohorts were established on site, and paraeducators were able to support English 
Language Learners and students with IEPs during these cohorts.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The Distance Learning format was quite challenging for students and teachers alike. The practice of frequent, formative 
assessment was difficult to carry out as students at home were supported by their parents and the integrity of some of 
the assessment and instruction suffered. Distance Learning was not an effective format for many of our students. At the 
beginning of the 2021-22 school year we are finding that many students gained leaps in reading and are needing more 
support with recovering from the trauma of isolation, covid fear, and lack of routine and community rituals.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The actual expenditures fairly closely matched the proposed expenditures with the exception of para-educators. As the 
small outdoor cohorts grew more para-educator time was needed. In addition, due to the highly technical requirements 
of the job all para-educators were hired as Interventionists and at a higher pay rate.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Staff will participate in professional development in literacy workshops, high-impact instructional strategies, and 
implement data dives into formative and summative data sources in order to plan effective re-engagement strategies. 
See Planned Improvements Goal #1.          


 


1021/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 2 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
All students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth by at least 5% to 58%. 


 54% made a years worth of growth or 
more. Our target of increasing the 
percentage of students making at 
least one years' growth was not 
reached. 


MAP Growth data: All students are 
expected to make at least one year's 
growth.        


 We will increase the percentage of 
students making at least one year's 
growth by 10% to 89%. 


 This data is not available. 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 2 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


A Tier 1 Mathematics school wide focus for the 
2020-21 school year is on improving practice with 
the CCSS Mathematics standards and practices. 
1. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD 
on implementing the standards and practices 
through deepening teachers' understanding of 
tools such as Problem of the Month, MARS tasks, 
Eureka Math strategies, and Cognitively Guided 
Instruction, and participate in school wide Project 
Based Learning professional development. 
2. We will use data cycles and lesson study to 
meet students' needs while building on 
foundational learning in our PLC work. 
3. We will review, align, and revise assessment 
tools to more closely reflect the demands of the 
Common Core in our PLC meetings. 
4. Purchase classroom materials that support the 
needs of diverse learners. 
 


 While training and work in this area occurred, not 
all implementation was completed due to the pivot 
to distance learning. During Distance Learning 
most of the assessments were sent home, so the 
student achievement data may inaccurate. The 
staff received training on interpreting MAP data, 
and worked to align differentiation strategies 
through a combination of one-to-one direct 
instrution, small group instru tion, and internet 
based practiced (i.e. Zearn). 


 


Provide targeted in class support for Students of 
Concern. 


 The service provider took another job and was 
unable to complete the hours. The students 
received support in English language arts. 


 


 


1022/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Due to the difficulty of Distance Learning and ongoing challenges for instruction, the staff did not delve as deeply into re-
engagement strategies. This goal will roll over to 2021-22 goals and objectives.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Due to COVID and Distance Learning it was difficult to support students using observation, peer tutoring, and formative 
assessment in 2020-21.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Regarding the planned intervention, the service provider took another job and was unable to complete the hours. The 
students received support in English language arts.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Staff will participate in professional development in high-impact instructional strategies, analyze assessment practices, 
and implement data dives into formative and summative data sources in order to plan effective re-engagement 
strategies. See Planned Improvements Goal #2.          


 


1023/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 3 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by at least 5%. 


 During Distance Learning, 
attendance rates averaged at 97% 


Suspension Rate: The percentage of 
English Learners being suspended 
during the school year.        


 Continue to maintain zero 
suspensions of English Learners in 
2020-21. 


 Maintained 0 suspensions for 
academic year 


Growth on the ELPP rubric: using the 
criteria on the ELPP, individualized 
goals for each student are created 
and revised at two Language Review 
Team (LRT) meetings per year.        


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners improving on the 
ELPP by at least 5%. 


 This data is not available 


ISP: Students receive integrated and 
direct ELD instruction in support of 
achieving individualized English 
Language Development criteria.        


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners meeting their ISP 
goals by at least 5%. 


 All students were able to meet their 
ISP goals. 


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
Students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners making at least one 
year growth by at least 5%. 


 Data related to meeting growth 
projections are not available 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 3 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


School Community Liaison will facilitate 
communication with Spanish speaking families 
including translation at all meetings and for 
documents regarding students' progress, schedule 
meetings and conferences with Spanish speaking 
families, and assist with monitoring in class parent 
participation. Through ELAC meetings, Spanish 
speaking parents will be exposed to instructional 
strategies and assessment practices for English 
development, and how to support their students at 
home. 


 The SSC co-faciltated bi-monthly Cafecitos, both 
in the mornings and evenings; provided translation 
services at parent/teacher conferences and at a 
student's Exit Criteria presentation. Several ELAC 
meetings were scheduled, and no family members 
attended; this precipitated the moving the agendas 
to the more casual settings of the Cafecitos. 


 


The part-time para-educator assists English 
learners in the General Ed classroom with small 
group and individual support, under the direction of 
the certificated teachers. 


 The part-time para-educator supported students in 
meeting individual and school-wide outcomes, as 
evidenced in the data above. 


 


1024/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


The bi-lingual .2 FTE school counselor will have 
regular meetings with English Learners to help 
navigate the social and academic demands of 
school, through Lunch Bunch, supporting students 
in the General Ed classroom, and meeting with 
students as needed. 


 The bi-lingual .2 FTE school counselor established 
weekly or regular check-ins with Spanish speaking 
families in order to support students and families in 
staying connected to the school and learning. 


 


Instructional supplies to support students in 
improving academic and language outcomes. 


 We were able to use school supplies already in 
stock so didn't have to purchase more. 


 


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During Distance Learning and hybrid learning, supports were available via Zoom including counseling, meeting 
attendance, translation during parent/teacher conferences, and translation of all written communications with parents.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
The establishment of the Small Outdoor Cohorts provided EL students with in-person support by para-educators and 
stable internet connections.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
We were able to use school supplies already in stock so didn't have to purchase more.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
Teachers have asked to explore more formal spelling instruction/curriculum so researching, purchasing, training staff 
and implementing systematic spelling instruction within a Writer’s Workshop (UDL) format will be added. We intend to 
offer in person enrichment and after school tutoring. See Planned Improvements Goals #1 and 4.          


 


1025/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Annual Review and Update 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21 
   
Goal 4 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students'  feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, Positive Discipline, and tenets and practices of Trauma-
informed schools.          


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Expected Outcomes Actual Outcomes 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
5% or more. 
 


 Attendance rates averaged at 97% in 
2020-21 given Distance Learning. 


SEHS survey: School Belonging and 
Membership data        


 We will decrease the percentage of 
students who don't feel a sense of 
belonging by 5% or more. 


 SEHS data was not available for 
2020-21 


 
Strategies/Activities for Goal 4 
   


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


In 2020-21, all Branciforte Small Schools staff 
(certificated and classified) will continue learning 
Restorative Justice principles and practices. This 
is a three-year commitment that aligns with the 
deep work and resources devoted to training and 
supporting adults and children in the practices and 
principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma 
Informed Services.  We will develop  student, 
parent and staff surveys on this topic, as well as 
use surveys provided by the consultant company. 
The part-time school counselor will reinforce the 
social-emotional curriculum in her meetings with 
groups and individual students. 


 Action completed.  


In addition to the further implementation of 
Restorative Justice practices, families and staff will 
be offered (funded by the PTA) trainings in 
Positive Discipline. Staff will continue to teach and 
implement grounding strategies with students, 
SCIL team and other teachers may form a study 
group to plan for fourth year of implementation, 
and use resources from Sanford Harmony 
curriculum to work towards this School 
Connectedness goal. 


 Action completed.  


Monarch school is home to a diverse population 
including several African or African-American 
students (9%). In addition, four students identify as 
trans-gender (3%); 20% of the students are 
English Learners; 14% of the students are fully 
served in the Resource program; 3 students are in 


 The staff participated in a book study of Teaching 
with Poverty in Mind-taking a Trauma-Informed 
approach to classroom systems that can open 
doors for students living with poverty, food 
insecurity, and parental job insecurity. 
 


 


1026/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Actual 
Actions/Services 


adoptive families; and one student uses a power 
wheelchair. In order to build on this diversity, we 
will continue to develop and implement a Creating 
a Community of Belonging Program. 
1. We will work with a team of parent volunteers 
trained in Cultural Competency to develop and 
implement an on-going support group for people 
who want to work towards Cultural Competency. 
2. We will investigate presentations from local 
community resources will be offered to the 
students and staff. 
3. The Community Building committee will 
continue to work with the parent community to 
promote inclusion and equity in conjunction with 
the School Community Liaison. 
 
 


 
The parent group held four meetings of a book 
group comprised of parents and staff to discuss 
How to Be An Anti-Racist, with special attention to 
school systems and practices. The group 
suggested adding a habit of mind to the school's 
mission and vision: Justice - Does this work for all 
people? How does it benefit (or harm) different 
people differently? Who makes the decisions? 
Who is represented? 
 


The ELAC, School Site Council, and parent group 
will have at least one yearly joint meeting co-
facilitated by school community coordinator. 


 Action completed.  


 
Analysis 
   


Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Due to the nature of Distance Learning, attendance was quite positive, given that students did not have to leave their 
homes for instruction.          


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the school. 
Due to the nature of Distance Learning several students transferred to home school programs. Given the adjusted 
attendance requirements under SB98, the students who remained in DL and in Small Outdoor Cohorts participated with 
a high level of engagement.          


 
Explain any material differences between the Proposed Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Any material differences are due to distance learning or changing needs.          


 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We will use the SEHS data again in 2021-22. We have increased our social/emotional counselor from .2 to .4; however 
there has been a change in personnel and as of September, we haven't been able to hire a new counselor yet. We 
intend to offer in person enrichment and after school tutoring. See Planned Improvements Goal #3 and 4.          


 


1027/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  143,926.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


1028/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


District Funded         26,812.00 


ESSER         64,314.00 


LCFF         51,600.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         1,200.00 
 


1029/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         10,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         87,126.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         11,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 7,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 28,300.00 


 


1030/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  5,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  21,812.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 ESSER  3,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 ESSER  61,314.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF  2,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF  4,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  11,500.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  7,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  27,100.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  1,200.00 


 


1031/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Kim Woodland         X Classroom Teacher        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Mary Anne Robb         X Classroom Teacher        


Amelia von Gerer         X Classroom Teacher        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Michelle Easter         X Parent or Community Member        


Micah Posner         X Parent or Community Member        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        


Nativo Davila         X Secondary Student        


Matthew Domencelli         X Secondary Student        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        


TBA         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


1032/1089







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 56 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on September 21, 2021 


  SSC Chairperson, Michelle Easter on September 21, 2021 


 


1033/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT  
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:                    Preliminary CBEDS Report 
 
MEETING DATE:                   October 20, 2021      
 
FROM:                                  Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:                           Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) is an annual data collection administered 
the first Wednesday in October. This year, CBEDS Information Day was October 6. The purpose 
of CBEDS is to collect demographic information on students, faculty, and district employees.  
 
The District has experienced a slight decline in enrollment from 2020-21 to 2021-22 of 21 
students. Staff will provide a report on year-over year enrollment variations by grade span. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
In 2022-23, SCCS will be funded with the higher of Average Daily Attendance of 2021-22 or 
2022-23. Hence, the current CBEDs enrollment will affect our LCFF Base funding. In addition, 
LCFF Supplemental will be impacted by our decline in enrollment of unduplicated count 
students. The exact calculation for projected LCFF Supplemental will be not clear until we have 
December certification of non-duplicated student counts.  


This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: Santa Cruz City Schools will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management. 


  


  


1034/1089







CBEDS Preliminary Report
October 20, 2021


1035/1089







2021-22 CBEDS Enrollment
Census Day:
10/06/2021


1036/1089







2021-22 CBEDS Enrollment- Elementary School
Census Day:
10/06/2021


2021-22 
TOTALS


Certified 2020-21 
TOTALS


Yr. to Yr. 
Diff.


Bay View 335 338 (3)


DeLaveaga 477 470 7


Gault 303 291 12


Westlake 495 468 27


Elementary total 1,610 1,567 43


District total 6,184 6,205 (21)
1037/1089







2021-22 CBEDS Enrollment- Middle School
Census Day:
10/06/2021


2021-22 
TOTALS


Certified 2020-21 
TOTALS


Yr. to Yr. 
Diff.


Branciforte 
Middle 423 420 3


Mission Hill 
Middle 565 570 (5)


Middle Total 988 990 (2)


District total 6,184 6,205 (21)


1038/1089







2021-22 CBEDS Enrollment- High School
Census Day:
10/06/2021


2021-22 
TOTALS


Certified 2020-21 
TOTALS


Yr. to Yr. 
Diff.


Harbor High 1,043 1,001 42


Santa Cruz High 1,132 1,088 (44)


Soquel High 1,023 1,034 (-11)


High School 
Total 3,198 3,123 75


District total 6,184 6,205 (21)


1039/1089







2021-22 CBEDS Enrollment- Small Schools
Census Day:
10/06/2021


2021-22 TOTALS Certified 2020-21 TOTALS Yr. to Yr. Diff.


Costanoa 61 94 (33)


Ark IS 88 76 12


AFE 118 239 (121)


Monarch 121 116 5


Small Schools Total 388 525 (137)


District total 6,184 6,205 (21)
1040/1089







CBEDS Enrollment by Grade Span


1041/1089







CBEDS Enrollment- Elementary School


1042/1089







CBEDS Enrollment- Middle School


1043/1089







CBEDS Enrollment- High School


1044/1089







CBEDS Enrollment- Branciforte Small Schools


1045/1089







Questions?


1046/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: District Sustainability Program Proposal 
      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 22, 2021, staff presented a review of district sustainability efforts.  This report 
provides an overview of potential next steps in reducing greenhouse gas emissions.  Proposed next 
steps include: 


● Solar panel projects at Bay View, DeLaveaga, Gault and Branciforte Middle School  
● New HVAC systems at Bay View and DeLaveaga Elementary Schools 
● Additional lighting modernization districtwide 


 
All of these projects are designed to increase energy efficiency or generate power to reduce our 
reliance on fossil fuels.  The solar project at Bay View would make the school the District’s first Net 
Zero Energy (NZE) site. In addition, at the request of students, staff will share information on the 
cost and timeline of a potential net zero assessment.   
 
Staff will make recommendations and seek Board input on the next steps in our District 
sustainability efforts.  Below is an outline of the fiscal impacts and potential funding sources if all 
of the projects presented were funded.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


PROJECT ESTIMATED 
COST 


POTENTIAL FUNDING 


Solar Projects $   300,000  
$2,800,000 


Measures A & B 


Redevelopment Agency Funds 


HVAC Projects $ 3, 500,000 Elementary Redevelopment Agency Funds 


Lighting 
Modernization 


$700,000 


 


Measures A & B 


Redevelopment Agency Funds 


Net Zero Assessment $ 225,000+  LCFF Base, Redevelopment Agency Funds, or 
pursue grants 


For 2021-22, the unbudgeted balances available in Redevelopment Agency Funds are: 
Elementary:  $3,500,000 


Secondary:    $3,500,000 


 


1047/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


1048/1089







ClDistrict Sustainability Program 
Proposal


October 20, 2021


1049/1089







Program Goals


Improve


Learning 


Environment Safety 


and Comfort


Modernize


Targeted 


Aging + Energy 


Infrastructure


Reduce


Energy, Green 


House Gas 


Emissions + 


Operational Costs


1050/1089







Phase I-III 
Projects completed to date


 HVAC Modernizations at 4 Sites 
to improve efficiency


 Automated HVAC control
systems at 6 Sites to improve 
efficiency


 Partial Replacement of Interior & 
Exterior LED Lighting districtwide 
for energy savings


 Pool Pump Controls to maximize 
energy efficiency at SCHS


Phase IV
Proposed Future Projects


 Add new HVAC Units at Bay 
View and DeLaveaga with 
upgraded controls and energy 
efficiency 


 Additional Interior & Exterior LED 
Lighting Modernization 
districtwide


 New Solar Structures at Bay View, 
DeLaveaga, Gault and 
Branciforte Middle School. 
(Bayview ES = Net Zero Energy)Sc


op
e 


O
ve


rv
ie


w


1051/1089







CURRENT


LIGHTING


PROPOSED


LIGHTING


1052/1089







PROPOSED


CURRENT HVAC AT


DELAVEAGA
1053/1089







PROPOSED SOLAR STRUCTURES


1054/1089







BAY VIEW ES BRANCIFORTE MS


PROPOSED SOLAR LOCATIONS


1055/1089







DeLaveaga ES Gault ES


PROPOSED SOLAR LOCATIONS


1056/1089







Environmental Benefits from Phases 1 – 3
Not including District initiatives


1,595
Cars removed from 


the roadway 


883
Santa Cruz homes 


powered 


121,285
Trees preserved 


from deforestation 


825,359
Gallons of gasoline 


saved


1057/1089







Environmental Benefits with Proposed Projects 


Net Zero Site
Bay View ES after phase IV 


implementation


26% 
Additional GHG reduction after phase IV 


implementation


1058/1089







Total Phase IV Project Scope


$7,316,837


Lifecycle Savings 


$9,752,953


Potential Funding Sources


Utility Incentives


District General Obligation Bond


District Redevelopment Agency Funds


Projected Project Costs, Utility Savings & 
Potential Funding Sources


1059/1089







Things to Consider for Phase Four Projects


• Anticipated change to 


benefits of solar projects


• District benefits by filing 


to complete solar projects 


before January 


• Entering a contract with 


Climatec locks in the 


prices for at the proposed 


level  


• Anticipated huge rate 


hikes to sustain PG&E 


losses 


Net Energy 
Metering 3.0 


Transition


(Jan 2022) 


Inflammatory 
Construction 


Market 


PG&E Rate 
Increases/


Wildfire 
Mitigation


1060/1089







Net Zero Assessment Cost Estimate


• Assessment and strategy to reach net zero 
emissions


• Estimated timeline nine to twelve months


• Cost Estimate: $225,000+


1061/1089







Staff Recommendation & Next Steps


• Commit to solar projects now - ensuring greatest benefit to the district 
utilizing Measures A & B and Redevelopment Agency funds


• Complete HVAC projects now – using elementary Redevelopment Agency 
funds


• Continue with plans to poll for a general obligation bond that includes 
sustainability projects


• Research grants to support Net Zero assessment
• Bring back additional phase IV steps to the board after polling


1062/1089







Questions?


1063/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Opening of Sunshine Period for Santa Cruz City Schools to the 


Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers K-12 Unit for the 2021-
22 School Year 


 
DATE:    October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools’, 2021-22 contract proposals to Greater Santa Cruz 
Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit for sunshining. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Schools’ contract proposals are being submitted for sunshining at the 
October 20, 2021 Board Meeting.  This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for 
public notice of contract proposals before official negotiations may begin.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Undetermined at this time. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


1064/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1 
 


Board of Trustees Sheila Coonerty, John Owen, Jeremy Shonick, Cindy Ranii, Patricia Threet, Deborah Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  |  (831) 429-3410  |  www.sccs.net  


   Kris Munro                  Molly Parks           Jimmy Monreal         Dorothy Coito 


Superintendent of           Assistant Superintendent    Assistant Superintendent               Assistant Superintendent 


     Schools               Human Resources         Business Services    Educational Services 


     


 


   


2021-22 Sunshine Items 


from SCCS to GSCFT 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


October 20, 2021 


 


 
The Santa Cruz City Schools proposes to open the following articles for negotiations with the Greater Santa 


Cruz Federation of Teachers’, K-12 Unit: 
 
 


ARTICLE XII· INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER 


 


ARTICLE VII· HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT 


 


 


Mutual Negotiated Items 
 
CALENDARS   


 


ARTICLE XVII ·SALARY AND FRINGE BENEFITS 


1065/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Staff Report: Redistricting Trustee Areas  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board voted to shift to Trustee Areas Elections.  Education Code 
section 5019.5 requires that the governing board “adjust the boundaries of any or all of the 
trustee areas of the district” if new Census data reveals that the old trustee areas are not 
population balanced.    
 
During the process of moving from “At Large Elections” to Trustee Area Elections, the Board 
adopted the following guiding principles for Trustee Area map development: 
 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas are at 


least as nearly equal in population as required by law. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall not be gerrymandered in violation of the 


principles established by the United States Supreme Court in Shaw v. Reno, 509 U.S. 630 


(1993), and other applicable law. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas do not 


result in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen to vote on account of race or 


color as provided in Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be compact, insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be created to contain contiguous territory, 


insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall observe communities of interest, such as the 


District’s underlying elementary and high school attendance areas, rural or urban 


populations, municipalities, social interests, agricultural, industrial or service industry 


interests, and the like, insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas may take into account visible features, such as 


topography and geography, including mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-made 


geographical features such as highways and canals, etc., insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas may consider avoiding pairing two or more 


incumbents in a single trustee-area, to the extent legally allowable. 


 To assign more than one Trustee and more than one school per area. 


1066/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 


Demographer Doug Johnson of National Demographics Corporation will share 2021 Census data 
with the Board on its impact on Trustee Areas. The Board will discuss the data presented and 
provide guidance for new map development.  
 
On January 12, 2022, Demographer Doug Johnson will present new proposed map options, 
based on Census data and input received at this meeting for first and potentially final reading.  
 
If necessary, a third meeting will be held on February 9, 2022, to conduct a final review of maps 
and take action.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$18,750  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


1067/1089







Santa Cruz City Schools


2021 Redistricting


October 20, 2021
1068/1089







Redistricting Process


October 20, 2021


Step Description


September 27, 2021 State-adjusted Census data released.


Hearing(s) on draft 


maps


Board determines how many public hearings to hold, if  any.


Map Adoption Revised map must be adopted and delivered to the Registrar by 


February 28, 2022.


No County Committee hearing or State 


Board of  Education waiver is required.


1069/1089







 Equal Population


 Federal Voting Rights Act


 No Racial Gerrymandering


 Communities of  interest


 Compact


 Contiguous


 Visible (Natural & man-made) boundaries


 Respect voters’ choices / continuity in 


office


 Planned future growth


 Minimize voters shifted to different 


election years


 Preserving the core of  existing election 


areas


Federal Laws Traditional Redistricting Principles


October 20, 2021


Districting Rules and Goals


1070/1089







2019 Board Adopted Principles


• Trustee-areas shall be established so that they


are at least as nearly equal in population as 


required by law.


• Trustee-areas shall not be gerrymandered in 


violation of the principles established by law.


• Area boundaries established so that they do 


not result in a denial or abridgement of the 


right of any citizen to vote on account of race 


or color as provided in the federal Voting 


Rights Act.


• Trustee-areas shall be compact, insofar as 


practicable.


• Trustee-areas shall be created to contain 


contiguous territory, insofar as practicable.


• Trustee-areas shall assign more than one 


Trustee to more than one school per area.


 Trustee-areas shall observe communities of 


interest, such as:  the elementary and high school 


attendance areas, rural or  urban populations, 


municipalities, social interests, agricultural, 


industrial or service industry interests, and the 


like, insofar as practicable.


 Trustee-areas may take into account visible 


features, such as topography and geography, 


including mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-


made geographical features, etc., insofar as 


practicable.


 Trustee-areas may consider avoiding pairing two 


or more incumbents in a single trustee-area, to 


the extent legally allowable.


October 20, 20211071/1089







Existing Trustee Areas


October 20, 2021


District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total


Total Pop 19,212 17,963 16,276 16,722 16,974 17,002 17,714 121,863


Deviation from ideal 1803 554 -1,133 -687 -435 -407 305 2,936


% Deviation 10.36% 3.18% -6.51% -3.95% -2.50% -2.34% 1.75% 16.86%


Only Areas 1 and 3 require changes.


1072/1089







Demographic 


Detail of  


Existing 


Districts, part I


District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total


Total Pop 19,212 17,963 16,276 16,722 16,974 17,002 17,714 121,863


Deviation from ideal 1803 554 -1,133 -687 -435 -407 305 2,936


% Deviation 10.36% 3.18% -6.51% -3.95% -2.50% -2.34% 1.75% 16.86%


% Hisp 25.9% 28% 21% 27% 18% 24% 19% 23%


% NH White 51% 57% 62% 62% 69% 65% 69% 62%


% NH Black 5% 2% 3% 2% 2% 1% 1% 2%


% Asian-American 15% 8% 10% 5% 6% 6% 6% 8%


Total 17,204 12,924 13,090 13,199 13,221 12,392 13,523 95,553


% Hisp 19% 16% 15% 19% 11% 15% 11% 15%


% NH White 57% 72% 72% 75% 82% 77% 82% 73%


% NH Black 3% 4% 1% 2% 1% 0% 2% 2%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 18% 6% 8% 3% 4% 5% 4% 7%


Total 8,969 10,350 12,134 11,730 12,497 12,172 13,110 80,962


% Latino est. 10% 15% 13% 14% 10% 14% 12% 13%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10% 14% 12% 13% 10% 13% 11% 12%


% Asian-Surnamed 4% 3% 4% 2% 2% 3% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%


% NH White est. 81% 78% 81% 82% 85% 83% 84% 82%


% NH Black 2% 3% 1% 1% 1% 0% 2% 2%


Total 7,093 8,603 10,337 10,085 11,042 10,719 11,612 69,491


% Latino est. 9% 13% 11% 13% 10% 13% 11% 12%


% Spanish-Surnamed 8% 13% 11% 12% 9% 12% 10% 11%


% Asian-Surnamed 4% 3% 3% 2% 2% 3% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%


% NH White est. 83% 79% 82% 83% 86% 83% 84% 83%


% NH Black 2% 3% 1% 1% 1% 0% 2% 1%


Total 7,008 7,257 7,600 7,681 9,082 8,435 8,964 56,027


% Latino est. 11% 12% 10% 12% 8% 11% 9% 10%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10% 12% 10% 11% 7% 10% 9% 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 4% 3% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%


% NH White est. 80% 81% 84% 85% 88% 86% 86% 85%


% NH Black est. 2% 3% 1% 1% 1% 0% 2% 1%


Santa Cruz City Schools Existing Trustee Areas Demographics


Voter Turnout 


(Nov 2018)


Voter Turnout 


(Nov 2020)


Voter Registration 


(Nov 2020)


Citizen Voting Age 


Pop


Total Pop


1073/1089







October 20, 2021


Part II District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total


ACS Pop. Est. Total 20,981 17,640 16,690 17,700 16,599 16,775 17,834 124,220


age0-19 40% 18% 17% 19% 18% 22% 23% 23%


age20-60 46% 62% 65% 59% 58% 51% 49% 55%


age60plus 14% 20% 18% 22% 24% 28% 28% 22%


immigrants 14% 15% 15% 15% 13% 15% 11% 14%


naturalized 36% 36% 39% 41% 44% 43% 47% 40%


english 67% 75% 77% 71% 81% 79% 86% 76%


spanish 15% 17% 12% 26% 13% 16% 10% 16%


asian-lang 12% 4% 6% 1% 2% 2% 1% 4%


other lang 7% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3% 2% 4%


Language Fluency
Speaks Eng. "Less than 


Very Well"
5% 9% 7% 11% 5% 7% 4% 7%


hs-grad 30% 32% 33% 38% 37% 39% 39% 36%


bachelor 30% 28% 27% 23% 28% 23% 25% 26%


graduatedegree 27% 23% 28% 16% 22% 17% 17% 21%


Child in Household child-under18 24% 19% 20% 22% 22% 30% 28% 23%


Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 50% 67% 67% 64% 69% 62% 61% 62%


income 0-25k 17% 28% 22% 19% 16% 11% 13% 18%


income 25-50k 11% 18% 16% 19% 13% 15% 16% 16%


income 50-75k 12% 12% 12% 14% 10% 17% 16% 13%


income 75-200k 41% 30% 36% 37% 42% 41% 42% 38%


income 200k-plus 20% 13% 14% 12% 18% 16% 13% 15%


single family 81% 59% 63% 72% 75% 81% 71% 71%


multi-family 19% 41% 37% 28% 25% 19% 29% 29%


rented 33% 62% 51% 49% 44% 35% 40% 46%


owned 67% 38% 49% 51% 56% 65% 60% 54%


Housing Stats


Household Income


Education 


(among those age 


25+)


Language spoken at 


home


Immigration


Age


1074/1089







Minimal Change Required


October 20, 2021


The area shown in red in the image and light blue in the map (west 


of  Bay St. and Western Dr.) would move from Area 1 to Area 3.1075/1089







Discussion


October 20, 2021


 Is the Board interested in a minimal changes map, or 


in a larger-scale review?


1076/1089







Next Steps


October 20, 2021


 On January 12, 2022, Demographer Doug Johnson will 


present new proposed map options, based on Census 


data and input received at this meeting for first and 


potentially final reading.


 If  necessary, a third meeting will be held on February 9, 


2022, to conduct a final review of  maps and take action.


1077/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Resolution 11-21-22: Indigenous Heritage Month  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 11-21-22 to annually recognize Indigenous Heritage Month each 
November.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Indigenous Heritage Month celebrates the heritages and cultures of Native Americans and the 
contributions of Native Americans to the United States.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


1078/1089







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL 


RESOLUTION #11-21-22 


Proclaiming Indigenous People’s Heritage Month 


 


WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City School district recognizes the land on which we gather is the 


unceded territory of the Awaswas-speaking Uypi Tribe;  


 


WHEREAS, the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band, comprised of the descendants of indigenous people 


taken to missions Santa Cruz and San Juan Bautista during Spanish colonization of the Central 


Coast, is today working hard to restore traditional stewardship practices on these lands and 


heal from historical trauma;  


 


WHEREAS, the United States celebrates Indigenous People’s Heritage Month every year in 


November;  


 


WHEREAS, Indigenous People’s Heritage Month is an opportunity to consider and recognize the 


contributions of Native Americans to the history of the United States;  


 


WHEREAS, Native Americans are the original Indigenous people of what is now the United 


States;  


 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to improving the academic and social-


emotional outcomes for Native American students and all students in the region;  


 


WHEREAS, we have a responsibility to acknowledge and make visible our history, our 


relationships and our debt to Indigenous Peoples; and  


 


WHEREAS, the 2010 Census estimated that 5.2 million people in the United States and more 


than 723,000 people in California identified as American Indian;  


 


WHEREAS, Native Americans maintain vibrant cultures and traditions, hold a deeply rooted 


sense of community and have made and continue to make distinct and important contributions 


to the United States and the rest of the world in many fields, including the fields of agriculture, 


medicine, music, language, and art.  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Cruz City School District Board of Education 


recognizes November 2021 as Indigenous People’s Heritage Month.  


 


1079/1089







BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education urges schools within the District to 


observe Indigenous People’s Heritage Month with appropriate programs and activities;  


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz City School District Board of Education on this 20th 


day of October, 2021, by the following vote: 


 


Ayes: 


Noes: 


Absent: 


Abstain: 


Approved on this date, October 20, 2021 


  


_________________________________                        _____________________________ 


Board President, Santa Cruz City Schools                                        Superintendent, Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


1080/1089







AGENDA ITEM: 1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 12-21-22 Assembly Bill 361  
      
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 12-21-22 authorizing continued use of remote teleconferencing provisions 


pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953. 


 


BACKGROUND: 
Consistent with Government code section 54953, on September 22, 2021 , Santa Cruz City 


Schools Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in 


person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  


At the October 20, 2021, meeting, the Board will discuss and consider adopting Resolution 12-
21-22, to make a finding after reconsidering the state of the pandemic, that the current 
circumstances meet the requirements of AB 361 and Government Code section 54953 for the 
Board to continue conducting meetings remotely. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


1081/1089







SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 


RESOLUTION NO. 12-21-22 AUTHORIZING USE OF REMOTE  


TELECONFERENCING PROVISIONS (AB 361) 


 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (“Board of 


Education”) is committed to open and transparent government, and full compliance with the 


Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”); and  


 


WHEREAS, the Brown Act generally requires that a public agency take certain actions in order 


to use teleconferencing to attend a public meeting virtually; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education recognizes that a local emergency persists due to the 


worldwide COVID-19 pandemic; and 


 


WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the ongoing state of emergency due to 


the COVID-19 pandemic and has responded by creating an additional means for public meetings 


to be held via teleconference (inclusive of internet-based virtual meetings); and 


 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (“AB”) 


361, which amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 


teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 


officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 


determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would 


present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body holds a 


meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 


to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present 


imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, in order for the Board of Education to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 


after October 1, 2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the Board of 


Education to conduct teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) says; and 


 


WHEREAS, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency for the State of California 


due to the COVID-19 pandemic in his order entitled “Proclamation of a State of Emergency,” 


signed March 4, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education hereby finds that the state and local emergencies have 


caused and will continue to cause imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education is conducting its meetings through the use of telephonic 


and internet-based services so that members of the public may observe and participate in 


meetings and offer public comment.  


 


1082/1089







NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals set forth above are true and correct 


and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.   


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education has determined that given the 


state of emergency, holding in-person meetings would present imminent risks to the health or 


safety of attendees.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions taken by the Board of Education through this 


resolution apply to any and all District committees which are otherwise governed by the Brown 


Act.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Education authorizes the County Superintendent 


of Schools or their designee(s) to take all actions necessary to conduct Board of Education 


meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable 


provisions of the Brown Act, using teleconferencing for a period of October 20, 2021 through 


November 20, 2021, thirty (30) days from the adoption of this Resolution after which the Board 


of Education will reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 20th day of 


October 2021, by the following vote: 


 


AYES          _____ 


 


NOES         _____ 


 


ABSENT     _____ 


 


ABSTAIN    _____    


1083/1089







Assembly Bill 361
October 20, 2021


1084/1089







Assembly Bill 361
Effective September 16, 2021


If there is a proclaimed state of emergency, agencies can choose to 
continue virtual board meetings if:


● State or local officials have imposed or recommended social 
distancing


Or


● Meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety or attendees due to the emergency


1085/1089







Previous Executive Order


Executive Order N-29-20:


● Allows, but does not require electronic meetings
● Requires opportunity for public to observe and address 


electronically
● Expired September 30, 2021


1086/1089







● Location(s) must be open and accessible to the public


● Agenda must identify all locations and be posted in all locations


● Public comment must be allowed at all locations


Teleconference under the Brown Act:


1087/1089







● Allows, but does not require, electronic meetings for local 
agencies


● Similar, but modified, requires from Executive Order N 29-20


● Agencies must reevaluate every 30 days if electronic meetings 
are appropriate 


● Effective until 2024


AB 361 modifications:


1088/1089







Recommendation:


● Continue to livestream meetings of the Board of Education for 
the next thirty (30) days as ongoing community spread of COVID 
19 continues to pose imminent risk to the health and safety of 
attendees


1089/1089





		Agenda 10.20.21

		8.1.1.1. Williams 1st Quarter Cover

		8.1.1.1. Williams Complaint Form Q1

		8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover

		8.1.2.1. PO BOARD REPORT FOR 09.27-10.13

		8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover

		8.1.2.2. Warrant Register 09.28-10.14

		8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers Report cover

		8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers 09.01-31.21

		8.1.2.4. Disposition of Surplus 10.20.21

		8.1.2.4. Surplus List- MHMS 10.20.21

		8.1.2.4. Surplus List- Facilities10.20.21

		Personnel Actions--Certificated

		Personnel Actions--Classified

		Memorandums of Understanding with Neighbouring Districts_ SAIL

		8.2.1.2. Strong Workforce Board Cover

		8.2.1.2. SCCS Application for K12 SWP Grant 21-22

		8.2.1.3. Agreement for Professional Services- Deborah Bell- Cover

		8.2.1.3. Deborah Bell Agreement

		NPA - Speechrighter 10.20.21 Brd Agenda Cover (1)

		8.2.1.4. NPA Speechrighter

		8.2.4.1. Thoughtexchange Additional License Cover

		8.2.4.1. Thoughtexchange Additional License Quote 10.20.21

		8.3.1. 19Six Architects Bay View Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY Cover

		8.3.1. 19Six Architects Bay View Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY

		8.3.2. 19Six Architects Branciforte Small Schools Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY Cover

		8.3.2. 19Six Architects Branciforte Small Schools Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY

		8.3.3. 19Six Architects DeLaveaga Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY Cover

		8.3.3. 19Six Architects DeLaveaga Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY

		8.3.4. 19Six Architects Soquel High Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY Cover

		8.3.4. 19Six Architects Soquel High Amendment Agreement Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY

		8.3.5. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Bay View Elementary School Fencing Cover

		8.3.5. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Bay View Elementary School Fencing

		8.3.6. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Mission HIll Middle School Gate Lock Cover

		8.3.6. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Mission HIll Middle School Gate Lock

		8.3.7. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Santa Cruz High School Gate Replacement Cover

		8.3.7. Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal Santa Cruz High School Gate Replacement

		8.3.8. Anaya Construction Proposal Santa Cruz High Sschool Temporary Housing Cover

		8.3.8. Anaya Construction Proposal Santa Cruz High Sschool Temporary Housing

		8.3.9. Bartos Architecture Amendement Agreement Santa Cruz High School FY 21.22 Temporary Housing Cover

		8.3.9. Bartos Architecture Amendement Agreement Santa Cruz High School FY 21.22 Temporary Housing

		8.3.10. Bartos Architecture Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Modernization Phase 4

		8.3.10. Bartos Architecture Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Modernization Phase 4

		8.3.11. Colbi Technologies Inc. Proposal Secure Bids Software 21.22 FY Cover

		8.3.11. Colbi Technologies Inc. Proposal Secure Bids Software 21.22 FY

		8.3.12. CRW Industries Change Order 3 Santa Cruz High School Switchgear Replacement Cover

		8.3.12. CRW Industries Change Order 3 Santa Cruz High School Switchgear Replacement

		8.3.13. Geo H Wilson Proposal Soquel High School Cafeteria Gas Line Cover

		8.3.13. Geo H Wilson Proposal Soquel High School Cafeteria Gas Line

		8.3.14. I & A Contractor Inc Change Order 2 Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof Cover

		8.3.14. I & A Contractor Inc Change Order 2 Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof

		8.3.15. Lewis and Tibbitts Inc. Change Order 2 Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear Replacement Cover

		8.3.15. Lewis and Tibbitts Inc. Change Order 2 Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear Replacement

		8.3.16. Locatelli Moving and Storage Proposal DeLaveaga Elementary School Classroom Furniture Moves Cover

		8.3.16. Locatelli Moving and Storage Proposal DeLaveaga Elementary School Classroom Furniture Moves

		8.3.17. Peninsula Business Interiors Quote Bay View Elementary School Principal Furniture Cover

		8.3.17. Peninsula Business Interiors Quote Bay View Elementary School Principal Furniture

		8.3.18. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Electrical for Temporary Housing Cover

		8.3.18. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Electrical for Temporary Housing

		8.5.1.1. SPSA Cover 10.20.21

		Single Plans for Student Achievement 10.20.21

		SPSA- BV

		SPSA-DL

		SPSA-GAULT

		SPSA-WL

		SPSA-BMS

		SPSA- MHMS

		SPSA- HH

		SPSA-SCHS

		SPSA- SQHS

		SPSA- AFE

		SPSA- ARK

		SPSA- COSTANOA

		SPSA- MONARCH

		8.5.2.1. Prelim CBEDS Report Cover

		8.5.2.1. CBEDS Preliminary Report 10.20.21

		District Sustainability Program Proposal Cover 10.20.21

		District Sustainability Proposal 10.20.21

		8.5.3.1- Cover - Sunshine SCCS to GSCFT 2021-22

		8.5.3.1 - Attachment - Sunshine SCCS to GSCFT 2021-22

		8.5.4.1 Redistricting Trustee Areas Cover 10.20.21

		8.5.4.1. Santa Cruz City Schools 2021 Redistricting 1

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 11-21-22 Indigenous Heritage Month Cover 10.20.21

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 11-21-22 Indigenous Heritage Month 10.20.21

		8.5.4.3. Resolution 12-21-22 Ab 361 Cover 10.20.21

		8.5.4.3. Resolution 12-21-22 AB 361

		8.5.4.3. AB 361 presentation




